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IR E P O R T.

EXTRACT FR0M THE JOURNALS 0F THE SENATE, WEDNESDAY, 24th JUNE, 1891.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE Room No. 2,
WEDNESDAY, 24th June, 1891.

The Select Committee appointed, by order of your Honourable House on Thurs-
day, the 18th of June instant, to take into consideration all letters and documents
submitted to them, relating to the subject of inquiry made in the Session- of 1888, bythe Select Committee of the Senate appointed to inquire as to the resources of the
Great Mackenzie River Basin, which have been received by the Senate, or by the then
Chairinan of the said Comnittee, the Honourable John Schultz, at present Lieutenant
Governor of Manitoba, or any public Departnent, since the date of the Third Reportof the said Cominmittee, made on the second day of May, 1888, and adopted by theSenate on the 1 1th May, 1888, and which are not included in the said Third Report, or
in the Appendices thereto; to report, with all convenient speed, as to the value of the
information, if any, given in the said letters and do'cunents, and as to what action
should be taken thereon in the public interest, in pursuance of the following recom-
inendation, made in the said Third Report, namely :-" Your Committee desire that this
" Report be considered an interin one and the estimates given to be approximate, inas-"much as they are based upon evidence received up to this date, and a final report can
"only be made when answers shall have been received to questions sent to officers of
"the Hudson's Bey Company, missionaries, Arctic explorers, and others, now resident

in, or who have visited parts of, the country within the scope of your Committee's
enquiry ;" have the honour to make their First Report, as follows :-

At pages 19 to 23 of the Third Report of the Select Committee appointed, in 1888,to enquire into the resources of the Great Mackenzie Basin, as printed in the Appendix
No. 1 to "The Journals of the Senate, Vol. XXII, 1888," will be found a List of Ques-tions sent to persons mentioned, in order to elicit information. For the better under-
standing of the documents which form the subject of the present inquiry, a copy of the
said List is herewith subnitted.

When the Committee appointed in 1888 made their said Third Report, it wasknown that it would not be possible to receive replies from some of the persons to whom
these Questions had been addressed until after the close of the Session, on account ofthe great distance to, and the difficulty of communication in, the almost unknown partsof Canada which formed the subject of enquiry. That Committee, accordingly, madethe recommendation above quoted, which was adopted by your Honourable House and
referred to in the Order appointing the present Committee, whose work thus became
simply a completion of the work commenced in 1888.

Through the exertions of His Honour Judge Schultz, Lieutenant Governor of
Manitoba, who had been the Chairman of the Committee of 1888 and continued, after
leaving the Senate, to take an active interest in the subject, a number of communications
bearing thereon have been received by him and transmitted in due course to the properauthorities, by whom they have been submitted to your Committee. Among these are
the following:-

1. From His Lordship Bishop Farand, dated Mission du Lac La Biche, 1lth
September, 1888.

2. From His Lordship Bishop Bompas, dated Mackenzie River, 18th July, 1888.
3. From Ris Lordship Bishop Young, dated Fort Chippewyan, Athabasca, July

20th, 1888.
l-là 3
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4. From Magnur Anderson, Esquire, Presbyterian Mission School Teacher, dated
Edmonton, , 1888.

5. From William Cornwallis King, Esquire, of the Hudson Bay Company's service,
dated Fort Pelly, , 1888.

6. From W. E. Trail, Esquire, of the Hudson's Bay Company's service, dated Fort
Vermilion, 1st August, 1888.

7. From George Elmare, R. H. Armstrong and M. P. Elmare, Esquires, formerly
traders in the Mackenzie River District, dated Sioux Falls, Dakota, 1st December, 1889.

8. From His Lordship Bishop Bompas, dated Mackenzie River, August, 1888.
The documents enumerated, together with certain letters from and to His Honour

Lieutenant Governor Schultz, forming part of and explanatory thereof, are herewith
submitted. They have been carefully examined by your Committee, who are of opinion
that the information therein contained would form a valuable addition to the Third
Report of the Committee of 1888, and they recommend that these documents be printed,
as was the evidence accompanying that Report, as a supplement to the Journals of the
Senate, and also that the present Report and the said documents be referred to the
Joint Committee of both Houses on the printing of Parliament, with the view of having
the same printed for general distribution.

All of which is respectfully submitted.
M. A. GIRARD,

Chairman.

(Extractfron the Journals of the Senate, Tuesday, 11th August, 1891.)

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Girard, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Read
(Quinté), it was

Ordered, That the Answers sent by R. Macfarlane, Esq., Chief Factor of the
Hudson Bay Company, Fort St. James, New Caledonia, District of British Columbia,
to the List of Questions sent out by the Select Committee of the Senate appointed in
1888 to inquire into the resources of the Great Mackenzie River Basin, and the Lists of
Birds and Mammals accompanying the said Answers, which Answers and Lists have
only recently been received by the Honourable Mr. Girard and'are herewith submitted,
be added to the documents which, by order of the Senate, made on Thursday, 2nd July
last in pursuance of the Report of the Select Committee appointed to examine and
report upon documents relating to the Great Mackenzie River Basin received since the
Third Report of the Select Committee appointed in 1888, are to be printed as a supple-
nient to the Journals of the Senate ; and that the said Answers and Lists be referred
to the Joint Committee of both Houses on the Printing of Parliament with the view of
having them added to those which have, upon report of the said Joint Committee, been
ordered to be printed for general distribution.

LIST OF QUESTIONS SENT TO PERSONS MENTIONED TO ELICIT INFOR-
MATION REGARDING THE RESOURCES OF THE GREAT

MACKENZIE BASIN.

With instructions to forward answers to nearest post office and a direction to
"fill in on the above lines your full name, occupation, residence and post office address,
and for convenience of reference and comparison please write in your replies opposite
the questions, and if more space is needed continue the answers on the back of the same
sheet, indicating the connection by reference to the number of the enquiry."

SERIEs A.-RELATING To NAVIGATION AND COMMUNICATION.

1. Please give in your answers all the information which you have obtained by
actual travel, or from other reliable sources, and state the particular part of the region
to which your answers refer, and give generally the sources whence you obtained the
information.
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2. Please mention the portions of the various rivers of the region mentioned which
you regard as continuously navigable. Give the approximate length of each stream,
with depth of water during the season of navigation, the velocity of the current, etc.
Give also the kind and size of steamer suitable for such navigation.

3. At what points would it be desirable to connect these navigable reaches by road
or railway with other navigable reaches of the same or different rivers, or with lakes
for the purposes of affording facilities for traffic ? Give the approximate lengths of land
carriage in each of such cases as will be necessary.

4. Give the name and general description of all the lakes of the region which youare familiar with ; their extent, depth, harbours, general suitability for navigation, their
connection with navigable streams ; and if no connection with other navigation, what
length of road or railway, and at what points will it be necessary to make such connec-
tion. Give also the size and kind of steam or sail craft suitable for these waters.

5. Give all possible information regarding the character of the navigation of the
sea-coast of this region, with particular reference to the portion adjacent to the mouth
of the Great Mackenzie River, the depth of water, the average length of open water,the character of the harbours formed by the different mouths of the river, the navigation
of the estuary itself, and the kind of craft suitable for such navigation. Also your
opinion as to whether whaling and sealing craft, if built at the head waters of the
Mackenzie River, could descend that streain early enough and ascend it late enough topermit of some months of fishing near the mouth of the river.

6. How far is the Athabasca or any of its affluents navigable for vessels drawing
30 inches of water above the mouth of the Clearwater? Is any portion of it suitable
for steam navigation ? What is the nature of the obstructions ?

7. Give the same information regarding the Athabasca and its affluents below the
Clearwater, and is the Clearwater itself navigable for steamers ?

8. What is the character of the Great Slave River ; size, depth, obstructions,
velocity of current, craft suitable for navigation, etc.

9. Give the same information regarding the Liard River.
10. Give the same information regarding the Peace River, both to the east and

west of the Rocky Mountains.
11. Give general character of the Beaver River and the lakes along the upper partof the Churchill River.
12. Give the same information regarding the Mackenzie.
13. Give all possible information regarding Lake Athabasca, particularly as regards

its navigation and generally as regards such of its mines, timber, fish and other products
as are available for transportation by water.

14. Give the same information regarding Great Slave Lake.
15. Give the same information regarding Great Bear Lake.
16. If you know of any other body of fresh water such as the Lesser Slave Lake,

give all possible information relating thereto.
17. Can sea-going steamers ascend the Mackenzie? If so, how far and with what

draft of water and during what period of the year?
18. Give the Committee all information as to the steamers which are now actuallyrunning on the Athabasca and Mackenzie Rivers.
19. Do you know anything as to the west coast of Hudson Bay ? If so, please

describe it to the Committee.
20. What are the principal lakes and rivers between the west coast of Hudson Bayand the Mackenzie River? What is known in regard to any of these ?
21. Give the quantities of rain and the depth of snow at any or all the parts of the

Mackenzie Basin which you have mentioned.
22. Give any possible information you can as to the depth to which the winter

frosts penetrates the soil at the different places.
23. Please give any additional information upon this portion of the subject which

has not been elicited by the foregoing enquiries.
5
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SERIEs B.-EXTENT OF ARABLE AND PASTORAL LAND.

24. Indicate gerierally on a map or otherwise those portions of the region in
question which are alluvial and diluvial, and those which are rocky and sterile, generally
called barren grounds.

25. What is the nature of these barren grounds? Give the Cominmittee as full
information as you cai as to this region.

26. How far north have barley and potatoes been grown, and how far to the east
and west on various parallels of latitude ?

27. How far north has wheat been grown?
28. How far north, east and west have the hardy varieties of Indian corn arrived

at maturity ?
29. Give the time of planting and reaping at any of the places mentioned in your

answers to the foregoing questions.
30. When does spring open in these different localities, meaning by spring the first

appearance of flowers?
31. How long before the flowering of plants at any of these places is the ground fit

for seeding.
32. What is the average time of ripening at any of the places you have mentioned

of wheat, barley, rye, oats, potatoes, turnips, Indian corn, strawberries, gooseberries and
other small fruit?

33. What is the general character of the three growing months, June, July and
August, at all of the places you have mentioned ?

34. Are there summer frosts during these three months at any of these places?
(Meaning by frost, a local white frost.)

35. Are these frosts general or local?
36. Will the settlement of the region inake it less liable to such frosts ?
37. When do summer rains hegin?
38. What is the character.of the climate of September and October at the various

places you have mentioned?
39. What effect has the intensity of cold in winter upon vegetation ?
40. What is the character of the natural grasses of the country in different parts ?

Compare them with those in the eastern Provinces.
41. Does the wild pea or vetch grow in any portion of this region, and if so, at

what places?
42. Is any other plant indigenous that would make good food for cattle other than

the natural grasses ?
43. What is the character of the soil of the district you mention ? Is it clay,

loam, sand, etc. ?
44. What percentage of the whole area is fit for pasturage, and what area is fit for

the production of the more hardy grains?
45. Give your general knowledge of the climate and its effect upon plant life?
46. What insect pest, if any, is vegetation sulbject to in any portion of the

Mackenzie Basin ?
47. Do you know of any records which have been kept as to the climate of different

localities, and what is your general impression as to the climate in any district you have
spoken about ? If you have any records please attach them in a separate sheet to the
last page of your answers.

48. Do the larger lakes and rivers exert any influence in keeping off the summer
and autumn frosts, giving examples, and give dates when rivers and lakes in different
portions of these regions freeze over in autumn and break up in spring ?

49. What are the prevailing winds of different seasons, and how do they affect the
climate ?

50. Over what portion of the Mackenzie Basin is the warm effect of the south-west
chinook wind felt?

55 Victoria. A. 1891
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51. In the region under consideration what attempts have been made at agriculture
and stock-raising, and with what results ?

52. Is there any class of donestic animals which could find food in that regionknown as the barren grounds?
53. What animals now find sustenance there and elsewhere in the region in ques-tion, giving particular information regarding the size, habits, weight, food, value of outer

covering of the following animals : Cariboo, musk ox, wood buffalo, moose, elk, and all
other animals, except those which are carniverous.

54. Give all information regarding the numbers, localities, quality of covering,habits and methods of capture of the following animals : Lynx, Arctic fox, black fox,silver fox, cross fox, red fox, fisher, wolverine, otter, beaver, martin, mink, ermine,musk rat.
55. Give the amount of shipments of peltries of the foregoing animals during thelast ten years.
56. Please state in addition to your other answers all the information you possessin regard to the information sought to be obtained by Series B of these questions, andif you have records bearing upon the climate of the region please copy these and attachthem to the end of your communication, and give opportunities you have had for acquir-ing information.

SERIES C.-RELATING TO FIsHIERIEs, FOREsTS AND MINES.
57. Describe the fish existing in all the waters mentioned in Series A of thesequestions, giving size, weight, quality, species, method of taking, probable increase or

decrease, and any other information bearing upon this subject.
58. State particularly all the knowledge you possess of whales and other sea

animals in the mouths of rivers or along the coast of the Polar Sea, giving localities,
probable quantities, and methods by which they are now taken.

59. Give your view as to the value of these sea coast fisheries, the class of vessels
suitable for its pursuit, and the point from which such vessel could sail, with particular
reference to the possible use of the head of navigation on the Mackenzie River as a
starting point and depot of supplies.

60. Is there timber suitable for the construction of seal and whaling craft on thehead waters of the Mackenzie River proper?
61. Give any further information regarding the fish and fisheries of the regionwhich you have not embodied in the foregoing answers.
62. Please indicate on a map or otherwise the nature and extent of the woodedregion. Also the various kinds of trees found there; the size, commercial value,quantity, etc. What would be the best outlet for sending this timber to market in the

future?
. 63. Are there any economic plants of small size in the forest or plains of theseregions 1 If so, state locality, quantity, quality, etc. ?64. Have you any knowledge of medicinal plants used by Indians or others ? Ifso, state fully ?

65. How far west and north does the Labrador tea plant extend, and to what
extent is it used in these northern regions ?

66. What is your opinion of it as a substitute for the Asiatic tea ?
67. Please state opposite the different minerals mentioned hereunder, the localities

of any of them, the extent of the deposits, the means of export, commercial value, andall other information regarding them: Gold, silver, copper, iron, sulphur, salt, petro-
leum, asphaltum, gypsum, alum, precious stones, coal, lignite, plumbago, lead.

68. Give all the information you can regarding brick, pottery Clay, moulding sand,marble, lime and sandstones, granites, etc. ?
69. Give all additional information you can relative to the mineral resources of the

Mackenzie Basin which you have not given in reply to the foregoing questions.
NOTE.-The Committee will be glad to receive and acknowledge the receipt of anysmall specimens of any of the minerals mentioned, if sent from the nearest Post Office
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in packages not exceeding two pounds weight, marked " Free." These will be placed in
one of the Government offices with your name upon them and such description attached
to it as you choose to send with them.

SERIES D.-GENERAL QUESTIONS RELATING TO MACKENZIE BAsIN.

70. Give all the information you possess as to the breeding grounds of migratory
wild fowl ; locality, numbers, species, date of hatching, time of arriving and leaving,
and all other information bearing upon these points ?

71. What kind of wild fowl are considered of the most value in the spring and fall
migrations ? Are they in great numbers ?

72. During the migrations do these birds stop to feed in any of the districts you
are acquainted with, and where?

73. What is the food of the different varieties of these .migratory birds during the
breeding season?

74. Give the time of their appearance in the spring, going north, and their return
flights in the autumn, going south, at different places?

75. What is the usual food of these wild fowl after the hatching season is over?
76. Give a list of native berries and fruits in the various portions of the country

that you are acquainted with ?
77. Has the natural pitch of the Athabaska River any prospective value?
78. What quantity is there of this deposit ?
79. Should petroleum be discovered in large quantities by boring wells in the

Athabaska region, what would be the best way of bringing it to market?
80. What would be the approximate cost of taking in machinery and sinking-say

three wells to the necessary depth to test this important question?
81. Is there any geological evidence that would enable us to trace the gold of the

North Saskatchewan to its probable source?
82. Give all information regarding the Indians of the district, the different tribes,

their localities in the summer and winter, their increase or decrease, the epidemic dis-
eases to which they are subject, and all other information which bears upon their food
and bodily welfare?

83. What is the food used by theim at different times of the year in different
localities, and to what extent have they endeavoured to cultivate the soil and with what
success? Give the localities and full information?

84. Can you give any reasons for the occurrence of years of comparative plenty and
comparative scarcity ?

85. What is the cause and nature of disease which periodically kills off rabbits?
86. How many varieties of rabbits are there in the Mackenzie Basin?
87. Are all equally affected by this disease ?
88. Give a list of all the food animals not included in your former answers, their

locality, present and future importance, and necessity for protection or otherwise ?
89. What effect would the opening up of the Mackenzie Basin to civilized men have

upon the Indians of the region?
90. Could their labor be employed much to the advantage of employers and employed,

and how far would such employment tend to civilize and make them self-supporting?
NOTE.-In closing these series of questions the Committee will be glad to receive

and acknowledge any assistance in the way of information to be derived from original
memoranda, journals or other documents, or from little known maps, pamphlets, etc.,
bearing upon the region to which this enquiry relates; and generally have to request
that you will add on separate sheets any information of a general or particular character
which is directly or indirectly within the objects of this enquiry. State also your oppor-
tunities for procuring information.
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Mr. JOHN SCHULTZ, MIssIoN oF LAC LABICHE, l1th September, 1888.

Secretary Senate Committee,
Ottawa.

Si,-I have been for some time in possession of the letter addressed to me by the
committee at Ottawa, on the 5th April, 1888. The object of the letter was to ask nie
for sundry details respecting the arable lands, the plains, the mineral wealth, the geo-graphical position and superficies of the lakes, the course and the navigability of the
rivers, &c., of the great Athabaska-McKenzie Basin.

Having lived in this region for the last forty-one years, 1 could no doubt tell what
I know, and elucidate certain obscure points. It would be a long story and one I would
gladly undertake, in order to enlighten the Government as to the true interests of the
country. The difficulty is that, in respect to inany points, I am only imperfectly in-formed ; and that in order to be accurate, it would be necessary for me to carefullyrevisit and examine again everything I have only the opportunity of glancing at super-flcially as a passing traveller.

This would not be to attain the end in view, and and this it is that stops me. It.isbetter, in my opinion, not to add to the number of more or less unreliable reports,published in bulky volumes, of which the Government is already in possession. It is,moreover, easy for you to secure orally all the information I could give you, by applyingto my assistant, Mgr. J. Clut, who is spending the winter in Montreal, and who has
travelled more, and has consequently seen more than I have. He will deem it a pleasure
to i'eply to the full extent of his ability to any questions you May put to him.

I beg, therefore, Mr. Secretary, that you will commniend to the Senate Committee
the reasons I have submitted. It is quite possible that I may spend the'winter of 1889-
90 at Winnipeg. If it should be considered that I can be of use there, my services shall
not be wanting. It is the interest of every one of us to secure for our adopted countryan honourable position amongst the nations of the world.

. I purpose forwarding shortly samples of wheat, barley and splendid oats harvested
this year at Lac LaBiche. I will also send some plugs of tobacco grown and manufac-
tured here. .

I have, &c.,
hv ., HENRI J. FARAND,

Bishop of Arsemour, Vicar Apostolic, Athabasca-McKenzie.

MACKENZIE RIVER, 18th July, 1888.
SIR,-I have to acknowledge the receipt of your circular requiring for the informa-

tion of the Senate of Canada very detailed and exhaustive particulars regarding thiscountry.
To reply hastily to the inquiries made might cause dissatisfaction, and as J am

expecting to be occupied all summer in voyaging, J can but postpone my answer till the
autumn, when 1 may hope, if spared in life, to address myself to the task.

Meanwhile, I may take the liberty of replying to a pamphlet which is, I thiik,recently published by the Society for Pronoting Christian Knowledge, Northumberland
Avenue, London, England, entitled a " History of the Diocese of Mackenzie River,"which, I think, contains in condensed form most of the information desired, so far as it
lies in my possession, with reference also to other sources of knowledge regarding thesame matter.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. C. BOMPAS, D.D.

The Hon. Dr. SCHULTZ, Bisw0 of Jackenzie River.

Lieutenant Governor, Senator, &c., &c., &c.
9
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ST. PAUL'S MIssIoN, FORT CHIPEWYAN,
ATIABASCA, 20th July, 1888.

DEAR DR. SCIIULTZ,-As I understand that you are taking a special interest in the
North-West and that the results of your efforts in the committee of enquiry upon its
resources which has been sitting during the early part of this year, I venture to enclose
for your perusal copy of a memorial sent by the Synod of Athabasca to the Minister of
the Interior respecting the serious condition to which the Indians of this country are
at present reduced. I feel sure that your influence will be exerted in securing for them
if possible, the same help which is extended to the Indians in other and more southerly
parts of the North-West by the Government.

Without such assistance they nust die off in large numbers, as the scarcity of food
is becoming every year more serious.

One great need, and without it I cannot see how the Government can render
any effective assistance, is the opening up a road into the country.

I read with interest, Dominion Surveyor Ogilvie's report as to the best route which
was laid before the North-West Council last year. Perhaps, however, a proper survey
with this object in view would discover a more practicable route, than either of those
mentioned by him.

Trusting you are enjoying improved health, and with kind regards to Mrs. Schultz.
I remain,

Yours very sincerely,
RICHARD YOUNG,

Bishop of Athlabasca.

ST. LUKE'S MISSIoN, VERMILION,
ATHABASCA, N.W.T., 6th July. 1888.

The Right Honourable, the Minister of the Interior.

SIR,-We, the undersigned, as members of the Synod of the Anglican Church in
Athabasca diocese, now in session, venture to lay before you for yojr consideration the
present condition of the Indians generally throughout this portion of the North-West
Territories, including the Provincial District of Athabasca.

There is a great decrease throughout this part of the country of both the larger
and smaller game as well as of fur-bearing animals, excepting one or two kinds, such as
martens and fishers, which are not used as food. The consequence is the Indians, not
only during the winter, but also in summer, are in an almost constant state of semi-
starvation. This condition is, of course, seriously aggravated during the winter month's
and you will perpeive from the facts which we beg to lay before you, the very serious
results which arise therefrom:-

1. The almost total disappearance of rabbits and scarcity of partridge.
2. A great mortality amongst the beaver during last winter.
3. Present scarcity of lynx which will, in all probability, continue at least two

years longer, as they are affected by the rise and fall of rabbits.
4. The above affects not only the food supply of the Indians, but also their power

of procuring clothing, ammunition, &c.
Many of the Indians are almost destitute of clothing, and owing to their small

take of furs are unable to provide themselves with the necessary clothing and hunting
outfit for the coming winter.

The above scarcity has greatly decreased the number of their dogs (so necessary to
the Indian travelling and hunting) which have perished, thus seriously increasing the
difficulty of obtaining a livelihood.

The Beavers, who used to have a considerable number of horses, have killed so
many of them on account of the scarcity of.other food, that they now possess very few.

5. At Lake Athabasca, and at some other lakes, a great failure of the fall and
winter fisheries.
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6. During the winter of 1886 and 1887, between the Peace and Athabasca Rivers,
on account of starvation and consequent cannibalism, a party of twenty-nine Cree
Indians was reduced to three.

In the Mackenzie River district there were several cases of death by starvation,
and one or more of cannibalism.

7. During the last winter of 1887 and 1888, amongst the Fort Chipwewyan
Indians, between twenty and thirty starved to death, and the death of others was
accelerated by want of food.

A party of about twenty Beavers had to be conveyed fron Grande Prairie, near
Dunvegan, Peace River, to Lesser Slave Lake, to prevent their starving to death;
some of them died after arriving there.

.Within the personal knowledge of the undersigned, many other Indians, Crees,
Beavers and Chipewyans, at almost all points where there are missions or trading posts,
would certainly have starved to death but for the help furnished by the traders and
misssionaries at those places-furnished very often at great personal inconvenience,

8. Owing to the above facts recorded and previous mortality, a great number of
widows and orphans are left without natural providers.

9. Owing to strong competition in the fur trade and other causes, the Indians
cannot now look to the Hudson Bay Company for help as they used to (o.

In face of the above facts and with the prospect, at no very distant date of this
country forming a valuable and important portion of the Dominion ; and as we under-
stand that Parliament has already taken action by granting a committee of enquiry on
this country and its resources, we would respectfully press on the Government the
urgent necessity of rendering speedy help to preserve the survivors.

(Signed,).
RICHARD YOUNG, Bishop of Athabasca.
MALCOLM SCOTT, Incumbent of St. Luke's, Vermilion,
G. HOLMES, C.M.S., Missionary, Lesser Slave Lake.
W. E. TRAILL, J.P., Vermilion.
A. C. GARRIOCH, C.M.S., Missionary, Dunvegan, P.R.
E. J. LAWRENCE, Principal of Irene Training School.
WM. J. MELROSE, Farmer.
A. J. KNEELAND, Mechanic, Vermilion.
W. D. REEVE, Archdeacon of Chipewyan and Secretary of Synod.

RESOURCES OF THE GREAT MACKENZIE BASIN.

Answere from Magnus Anderson, late ofî the Hudson Bay Service, teacher of the Presby-
terian Mission School on Stoney River Indian Reserve, near Edinonton.

SERIES A-RELATING TO NAvIGATION AND CoMMUNICATION.

1. The following answers are from the personal knowledge of Mr. Anderson acquired
during his service in the Hudson Bay Company.

2. The Mackenzie is navigable from its mouth to Fort Smith. It is there unnavig-
able for about 12 miles, where it passes through a spur of mountains. Above these
rapids it is navigable to Fort McMurray. The Hudson Bay Company have ten steamers
running repectively above and below the obstruction spoken of. They draw about 2
feet of water when loaded.

The Hudson Bay Company is now building a steamer at the Athabasca Landing to
run to the head of the Lesser Slave Lake, from whence there is a portage of 64 miles to
Peace River. She will also run down the Athabasca to Grand Rapids, some 80 miles
from Fort McMurray. On the portage to Peace River waggons are used, as also on that
at Fort Smith. At the Grand Rapids York boats are run down with light loads and
Men pack the remainder along the bank for upwards of a mile. The York boats run
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the succession of rapids from Grand Rapids to Fort McMurray loaded, but steamboat
navigation is said to be impossible on this stretch of river. There is a pack trail from
Grand Rapids to Fort McMurray, but no waggon road. The Peace River is navigable
from Vermilion to St. John for light draught steamers, say of 18 inches. The inter-
ruption at Vermilion is a ridge of rock which runs across the river, so that steamers can-
not pass. The portage is about 1,200 yards. From there to Athabasca Lake steamers
can run.

3. From Edinonton to Athabasca Landing is 90 miles. Freight comes by steamer
to Edmonton from Winnipeg or by waggon from Calgary, and is taken by waggon to the
landing.

4. Great Slave Lake is suitable for boats or sailing vessels such as are used on
Lake Superior, as it is as large or larger. Great Bear Lake is also similiarly navigable,
but the strean which connects it with the Mackenzie is not navigable for steamboats.
Lake Athabasca, which receives the Athabasca and Peace Rivers, is navigable.

5. The mouth of the Mackenzie cannot be got into by sailing vessels, being shut
up by ice. For information regarding the mouth of this river, get McClintock's & Mc-
Clure's travels in that region.

6. The boat froni Athabasca Lake runs to Fort McMurray, at the foot of the series
of rapids on the Athabasca and fronm the head of these rapids. Another (now building)
will run to the head of Lesser Slave Lake. Ordinary river steamers are used for this
purpose.

7. The Clearwater, the chief affluent of the Athabasca, is not navigable for steamers.
8. The obstruction is that mentioned in paragraph 2 as being at Fort Smith.

Current 3 to 4 miles per hour, and in some parts only 1 miles; water very deep, from
8 to 10 feet.

9. The Liard River is not navigable for steamers unless locks were* put in, having
many rocky bars across it. The boats which the Hudson Bay run on it only draw from
18 inches to 2 feet of water.

10. The Peace is navigable to Fort St. John's, only for the short interruption before
mentioned. Before Fort Vermilion I only know of the east side of the mountain.

11. Such information can be furnished by some other one.
12. Described already.
13. Minerals-Gold, copper, iron and sulphur; timber plentiful, also fish ; clay is

found suitable for cement and also pottery clay.
14. Timnber plentiful, also fish. Have no knowledge of minerals there, worth ex-

porting.
15. Copper is found ; timber and fish plentiful.
16. On Lesser Slave Lake coal oil can be found, and also on the river.
17. Sea-going vessels could cone up the Mackenzie but for the mouth being packed

with-ice, as before mentioned.
18. Mentioned already.
19. Know nothing of the matter.
20, 21,'22. Sane answer.
23. Salt River falls into the Mackenzie below Fort Smith, and runs from a plain

where salt springs and rock salt also are abundant.

SERIES B-EXTENT OF ARABLE AND PASTORAL LAND.

24. Peace River district is of fertile soil and suitable for agriculture, as are the
Liard and Mackenzie districts.

The Salt Plains are the only barren lands I know of, the abundance of salt being
the cause.

25. No answer.
26. Potatoes have been grown as far north as Fort Good Hope and also barley, but

how far east or west I could not say.
27. Wheat is grown at Fort Simpson and Fort Liard, but whether any further

north or not I could not say.
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28. Cannot say.
29. Sow in May and reap in August or September.
30. End of April or beginning of May.
31. Only a few days.
32. Potatoes, beginning of August; strawberries, July; gooseberries, later; other

small fruit; Saskatoon, July.
33. Warmer and more genial than that of Edmonton district.
34. No frost to my knowledge.
35. No answer.
36. If there was such a thing as local or general frosts, settlement would undoubt-

edly make them less liable to injure plant life or vegetation, were the ground properly
drained by the settlers.

37. About the month of June.
38. Generally dry.
39. No answer.
40. No answer.
41. Grows in most places, but especially in the Peace River district.
42. Can't tell.
43. Black loam and clay underneath.
44. No answer.
45. The climate is not so severe as to prevent cattle from feeding out in winter.
46. I know of none.
47. The only record I know of is taken by the Hudson Bay factors at the different

posts.
48. This information can be obtained from the above source.
49. No answer.
50. It is felt as far as Fort Yukon, in Alaska, on the Yukon River.
51. Stock-raising has done well on the Peace River and Mackenzie, including Fort

Simpson, Fort Liard, Fort Resolution, Fort Confidence and Fort Chipewyan. Farming
has been carried on at all these places with good results.

52. I cannot say.
Evidence of Magnus Anderson, taken by Frank Oliver, Edmonton, Alberta.

A4n8wer8from Wm. Cornwallis King, lludson Bay Company, Fort Pelley, A.Qsa., P. 0.
Ardpatrick, Jfanitoba.

SERIES A-RELATING TO NAVIGATION AND COMMUNICATION.

1. I entered the Hudson Bay Company in 1862, and resided 20 years in McKenzie
River and Athabasca, also at Ile à la Cup and Fort Pelley; came out and returned home
via York Factory and Hudson Bay. Travelled from Winnipeg via Ellice, Carleton,
Emerson, Lesser Slave Lake to Fort Dunvegan, also on to McLeod Lake and mostly all
over the north.

2. Needless to reply to this-as the information you already have (see the Senate
Debates) is very very nearly correct. Useless for anyone to deny or cavil at it.

3. There are many other routes-for instance, the Peace and Liard start at Half-
Way River above St. Johns, and strike the head waters of the Liard, not west bank ;
again, Athabasca Lake and Great Slave Lake start from the bottom of Christie's Bay,
Slave Lake, and strike across, land direct to Athabasca Lake; much waters or solid land,
whichever you wish; also start from Great Bear ]iAke, and strike Chesterfield Inlet. If
Hudson Bay route is practicable that is too. Get a good map, and you will be able to fol-
low me.

4. Great Slave Lake.-North, deep blue water and rocky; west, stoney and shoal
close to land ; east, sandy and also shoal close to land.

Great Bear Lake.-Very deep and clear water; shoal close to land.
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Athabasca Lake too well known; no use to describe.
5. See Government maps, &c. by Captain Pullen. Can be bought at the Poultry,

London, for Is.
6. After a short distance rapids begin ; above the rapids the water is good. The

proof is the company is building a steamer.
7. The Clearwater is subject to a very great rise and fall; at the sand banks close

to Fort McMurray for about a mile it would require dredging; after that it would be
good mostly always. In places stones would require to be removed ; then it would be
good as far as the Humpher Springs.

8. Shifting sand bars ; varies in size fron - to } mile ; no obstruction of conse-
quence except the five rapids ; some sand bars, and planted drift, sticks or snags, or what-
ever they are çalled (I don't know how they are spelt), what I mean is drift sticks,
caught by their roots and end buried in the sand, the snall end sticking up, dangerous
to travel at night. Current not very strong except at certain points.

9. Current strong ; 3 to 500 yards wide ; upper part stoney ; battures below the
Grand Rapid ; mostly sandy ; rise and fall of water rapid and severe. High water twice
after ice goes off, and when the snow water from iountains come down in early sum-
mer, and after severe rain. Not a good river for steamers, but might be used.

10. The Peace River is a noble stream, broad, in places deep and current strong,
but still it is possible to have steam, but at the same time it has many drawbacks, and
would reluire iuch care. The Athbasca and Slave River are far better adapted for it.
But the noble Mackenzie is fit for anything, and boats could travel day or night with
but little risk. Seeing is believing-in fact, it is a wonderful river.

11. No answer.
12. Some of the reaches or views are 20 to 30 miles almost straight; nice sloaping,

stoney banks and wooded, in places open out like lakes. The level of the country is
from 3 to 5 miles back ; some beautiful views could be taken, say from the top of the
Horns Mountains also at the forts, as Fort Simpson, and many other places. I could
talk for ever of it, and still not say enough.

13. If the proposed Hudson Bay Railroad tapped the Fond du Lac end, timber
might be towed or rafted across the lake; quantity boundless. Minerals, etc., require
experts to speak about. Lots of lead and copper and varieties of valuable stones, and
agates and flints.

14. Fish plentiful. Canning might be undertaken, also fruits exported, say blue-
berries, raspberries, gooseberries, Saskatoon, yellow berries, strawberries, pembin-berries,
crow-berries, &c., &c., &c. Geese and ducks also might be canned. Athabasca is one of
the best wild fowl hunting spots in the North-West.

15. The saine holds good for all two outlets: 1. Via the mouth of Mackenzie
River, and the other portage ]and and water to Chesterfield Inlet ; then by Hudson
Straits.

16. There are so many very large united lakes, directly N. E. to S. W., many 50 to
60 miles long, with narrows, which separate the barren lands from the timber country,
just as if it had been marked out by man. North of the lakes you will find the strata
turned up on end as a belt.

17. Steamers (ocean) might very likely ascend as far as Point Separation if of right
draft, August and September; but can't say positively, which would only be known
after a proper sounding had been taken.

18. A new steamer is being built at Athabasca Landing ruiining down to head of
rapids above Fort McMurray. A stern-wheel steamer runs from Fort McMurray down
the Athabasca, crosses Athabasca Lake and on to the head of the rapids above Fort Smith,
also ascends the Peace River to (Fort) Little Red River, at the " Chutes " which bar the
river, a fall of 12 feet. Another steamer runs from below the rapids at Fort Smith
across Slave Lake, down to Point Separation, or on to the sea. (Seine boat). For
description, &c., apply H. B. C. office.

20. It is one mass of lakes, some about 100 miles long and others very small, and
all full of fish. Large lakes-small fish, and inedium-sized lakes, strange to say, have
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larger fish (whitefish). Great Bear Lake, Martin Lake, and Lac de Marde or Dirt Lake,
and legions of others.

21. The rainfall is light. Snow about 2 feet deep on the land ; chance years
deeper.

22. Digging pillars and sinking posts for pickets, graves for Indians, &c., I never
knew of it over 3 feet, say at Fort Rae, or Great Slave ,ake, Fort Nelson on the
Liard, also at Fort Resolution on Great Slave Lake. Of course, if a person tried in
wet soil like muckages, it would be more, but I allude to sandy or gravelly soil.

23. Almost everywhere water can be struck at from 5 to 20 feet. Sulphur and
mineral springs are most coiioni. Nearly everywhere.

24. Barren lands. Bounded-sea coast on one side, then take the Mackenzie
River all to the west, varying in distance from 5 to 100 miles in places and on to Slave
Lake. Banks of Coppermine River, Anderson Bank, Yellow Knife and Big Fish
Rivers. Rivers all timbered and pretty heavy. They abound with fur-bearing animals ;
then east of Slave River, on to Athabasca Lake and bounded by the English River,
and on down to Churchhill. Different spots ; different distance back from the afore-
said rivers.

25. Fancy an immense plain, of heaven knows what size ; fill this up with innum-
erable lakes, mostly connected by small rivers, the lands in places large flats, also other
parts, rocky and gravelly knolls in places, hills and sometimes alnost mountains. In
summer it looks like an immense park, minus trees. Parts lime-stone, other places
granite proper, some places sand-stone, iron and copper ore. In fact great scope for a
scientist or geologist. Many places grapes, and the hills covered with blueberry bushes,
raspberries, cranberries, yellow berries, and all this teeming with game and wild fowl
in summer, and nothing in winter, except " barrenness." No spot is so rich with game
in summer, and no spot so dreary and God forsaken in winter. Make this the talked-of
penal settlement; and you soon will be short of criminals. But for heaven's sake don't
send them to Mackenzie River, to spoil a veritable paradise, only to be contaminated
by the march of civilization, and where you will find the Indian far ahead of his white
brethren. Of course, there are some bad instances. By all manner of means establish-
mines, and turn the barren lands into daenal settlement.

30. You can't say when spring begins or autumn ends. Mostly two seasons-1st
October to lst June, winter; the balance sunner.

31. You can almost fancy you see the flowers growing. It is nigh all day light for
so lon,.

The barren lands are subject to inmensely heavy rains at times, in July, and fright-
ful storms or squalls rather, for why I can't say. I have known it unbearably hot; sud-
denly comes a storm on, rain, then hail, and within two or three hours about 4 or 5 feet
of snow. Clears away equally quick.

Let a survey party start for Churchill, strike for old Fort Anderson on the Ander-
son river and thence to Fort Good Hope, then strike back from Good Hope to Bear
Lake, Hudson's Bay post ; call at Fort Rae, touch at Fond du Lac, Great Slave Lake,
strike on to Fond du Lac, Athabasca ; call at Lac La Hache and come to civilization at
the Grand Rapid, and the report they would give, I fully believe, would astonish Can-
ada and the Canadians, especially if my old friend Prof. McCowan, was there as
botanist, I would envy the trip. It can easily be done with the aid of birch canoes,
plenty of amunition and nets. No use to take provisions, except tea and tobacco, and
only young healthy men, and they who like adventure and "roughing " it.

Amateurs talking geology is likely to amount to rubbish. I once sent a stone to
Prof. Selwyn, A.R.C., which I thought a lot of as g'>d. He told me it was copper
pyrites, so I pitched away the rest of my specimens which cost me trouble and expense
to collect.

If you wish a right and correct account of the barren lands, send along a chap who
will take it down in writing, as I am lazy and a poor hand at composition; let him
also be a decent coon, and I will give him facts enough. I came to this country with
the desire of thinking and keeping my eyes open and I have done so, and expect at



some future day to turn it to some use. I an known by Dr. Schultz in 62 at the Lower
Fort, also by Mr. Sanford Fleming, A. R. C. Selwyn, Prof. McCowan, V. N. Coté, Half-
Breed Commissioner, and many others. Not forgetting my much respected friends R.
Goulet, Esq., Bishop Grandin, Favard, Bompas.

Renarks on the Great Mackenzie Basin.

I firmly believe this spot when known properly will astonish many, not only for what
can be grown or produced, but also for its mines, coal, salt, tar, oil, &c., but I do believe,
and that firnly, that for the next 20 or 25 years Providence intends it only as a large
fur preserve. The difficulties of geting in and out are too great, and it would never do
to attempt aiding settlers, as they could not get on; they might exist, but what could
they make or better theinselves and where get their supplies. Let Manitoba and the
North-West fill up and prosper, 20 or 25 years hence; then cast an eye towards the
Great Mackenzie Basin. Canada has a great work before her, let her attend to this just
now and in the distant future, then let her drive in railroads and develop the Great
Mackenzie Basin. But by all manner of means let it alone just now, except survey
parties in the barren lands.

I forgot to mention, between the chain of lakes and barren land there is a belt of
rock strata turned up just like ploughed land, only straight up, which has passes through ;
these passes always tally with the narrows on the lakes, hence the cariboo know it and
choose the routes. Strange, but true, I have a painfully vivid recollection of this fact, as
I sprained both ankles and cut up my feet pretty badly once, whilst crossing. I had
been off with the Indians one summer hunting deer ; my interpreter Wm. Hoole, accom-
panied me, who is now dead, and never enjoyed myself more in my life.

Sand flies are the curse of the barren lands, but when the deer approach the flies
leave you. When the deer are coming it reminds you of the rumbling you hear when
living close to London. .

A fact, and strange at that, badgers, skunks, fishers, snakes and lizards are never
found north of or across the Salt River or Slave River, although it is but a very small
stream. This spot is one of the most valuable in all the North-West as a farming and
grazing centre, and the only one I could recommend as a settlement or town site. It is
worth looking into.

W. C. KING.

Answers fron W. E. Waite, Fort Vermnilion.

SERIEs A.-RELATING To NAVIGATION AND COMMUNICATION.

1. Know only Athabasca River from mouth of River LaBiche to mouth of Little
Slave River, Little Slave River and Lake, and Peace River from Lake Athabasca to
Dunvegan, a survey of which was made by W. Ogilvie, D.L.S.

2. Athabasca River is navigable from head of Grand rapids for some <'istance above
the mouth of Slave River. In high water probably nearly to the Jasper House. Lesser
Slave River navigable for steamers in high water only, for vessels not drawing more
20 than inches water. The chutes below Vermilion are the only real break in the navi-
gation of the Peace.

3. To connect Upper Peace River with Athabaska River a road from mouth of
Little Slave River to Little Slave Lake, say 30 miles, north end Slave Lake at Smoky
River Crossing 75 or 80 miles. To connect Upper and Lower Peace River, canal or
tramway (3) three miles.

4. Am only acquainted with Little Slaýe Lake which has been surveyed and des-
cribed by W. L. Thompson, D.L.S., and W. Ogilvie, D.L.S. Vide their reports on
the same.

5. No answer.
6. Vide Report of William Ogilvie, D.L.S.
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7. Same answer.
8. Do no know by personal observation.
9. Do not know.
10. No obstruction except chutes below Vermilion. Average strength of current

above Battle River probably 4 miles per hour; below that point about 2 i miles per hour.
Average width in low water about half a mile below Vermilion. Above that point
about 600 yards. Above Dunvegan do not know.

For average depth, see W. Ogilvie's report; also for Little Rapid, about hailf way
between Fort Vermilion and Lake Athabasca.

11. Know nothing of this river and its lakes. Great quantities of drift wood during
June freshet.

12. No answer.
13. No answer.
14. No answer.
15. No answer.
16. Lesser Slave Lake quite navigable for crafts of all kinds, of light draft. The

lake is shoal and subject to high winds. North shore very irregular, giving many deep
bays. North shore very few good harbours.

17. No answer.
18. Am not sure of exact dimensions of steamer "Graham." Think it is 150 feet

with 28 feet beam, 20 inches draft, stern-wheeler. Steamer " Wrigley " on Mackenzie,
screw propeller, 80 feet, 14 foot beam. Don't know what draft steamer now building or
just finished on Upper Athabasca ; sanie size or rather bigger than "Graham."

19. Nothing.
20. No answer.
21. For rainfall and snowfall vide reports of Toronto Meteorological Office. Obser-

vations have been taken for sone years at Duinvegan, Lesser Slave Lake and Fort
Chipewyan.

29. Can rive none.

23. No ainswer.
W. E. TRAILL.

FORT VERMILION, 1st August, 1888.

SERIES B.-EXTENT OF ARABLE AND PASTORAL LAND.

24. No answer.
25. No answer.
26. Both wheat, barley and potatoes have, I believe, been grown at Fort Liard; I

believe barley and potatoes are grown there yearly. Fort Providence is the most
northern part where barley and potatoes cari be grown with any amount of success.

27. No answer.
28. I am not aware of Indian corn having matured at any point north and west of

Lac LaBiche. J raised good corn at that station, seasons 1877 and 1878, which
iinatured well. Have not tried corn at any other station.

29. During my charge of 7 years at Lac LaBiche, was always able to sow wheat
and barley from 20th April to first week in May. Wheat ripened in August. Lesser
Slave Lake, the spring is usually a little late, and the harvest corresponds. Have, how-
ever, sown wheat and barley at the latter place in April.

30. The earliest flowers are a species of anemone which flowers alnost as soon as
the snow is off the ground which frequently happens early in April, on slopes having a
southern aspect.

31. From 10 days to 2 weeks-much, however, depends upon the nature of the
soil. Light ground being dry enough immediately after the snow is off and the frost out
sufficiently for ploughing. Stiff clays do not admit of such early culture.
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32. Wheat, at Lac LaBiche, 1st Sept.; at Lesser Slave Lake, 15th Sept.
Barley do do 15th Aug. do do Tst Sept.
Potatoes (o do lst Oct. do do 1st Oct.
Strawberries do Tst July do do 10th July
Gooseberries do 15th Aug.

33. June is usually the ionth of greatest rainfall ; July and August, warm with
light rainfall and that principally thunder showers, particularly at Lac La Biche.

34. There is a prevalence of sunner frosts at both Lac La Biche and Lesser Slave
Lake, particularly the latter place, but these frosts are not usual in the iniediate vicinity
of the lakes. The influence of the lakes seems to be confined to a radius of three or four
miles fron those bodies of water.

35. Local as a rule.
36. I should judge so.
37. Early in June.
38. Septeiber, bright and warm as a rule with little real heat. October, cool and

very often a great deal of snoke in atnosphere which prevents the sun from having any
power-hence the coolness of the mnonth.

39 and 40. No answer.
41. The wild pea or vetch of several kinds grows in all parts of the North-West

except on the prairies. Ridges of dry land between mnuskegs and low ground seems to
be its favourite habitat, also ground that has been burned a year or two before.

42. I cannot call to mind any.
43. Loamy clay with stiff clay subsoil. This applies to Lac La Biche, Lesser Slave

Lake and the prairie country round Dunvegan.
44. Fron Athabasca River south to Saskatchewan, west of Lac La Biche, I should

judge that one-fourth of the area was fit for agriculture. Fron Athabasca River north
to Lesser Slave Lake there is very little land fit for agriculture or even pasture. Fromn
west end of Lesser Slave Lake to Peace River and west, I should say that there was
comnparatively little land unfit either for pasture or agriculture. An not prepared to
say in what proportion, as a considerable area is covered with jack pine. Very little muskeg
country exists in this region. From Slave Lake east and north there is a great deal of
nuskeg country with ridges of jack pine. This remnark is also applicable to the country
between that and Athabasca River.

45. No answer.
46. The turnip fly is commoni to this whole region as far as ny knowledge goes.

Cut-worms are also very troublesone some years. For several years in succession cater-
pillars were very numerous, but they seemed to confine their ravages to the poplars,
which they kept almost bare of foliage for several seasons. I know of no other insect
pests.

47. J have already referred to the reports of Toronto Meteorological Office. Obser-
vations have been kept for some years at Dunvegan, Lesser Slave Lake and Fort
Chipewyan.

48. The larger lakes certainly exert great influence in keeping off summer frosts,
but the influence does not generally extend any great distance exc.ept where there is a
wind blowing off the water.

49. The meterological report above referred to, will give the answer to this ques-
tion better than I can from memory.

50. It is generally allowed by those who are competent to judge that the chinook
winds affect the upper Peace River. The effect was quite observable at Lesser Slave
Lake by a rise in temnperature whenever the wind blew any length of tine from the
west. In fact the west wind at that place is the warmest wind that blows in winter.
I do not think the influence is felt at any station further east.

51. Bishop Faraud could give particulars of results of agriculture at Lake La Biche.
At Slave Lake nothing decided has been done more than the raising of potatoes and
barley for some years by the Hudson Bay Company and a few settlers. Wheat has not
been raised yearly as a crop, but when it has been tried it has generally ripened.
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52. None.
53. Wood buffalo, these animals are undoubtedly the same as the plain buffalo

which have become cut off from the plains by the growth of forest, and other causes ;
elk, this animal is now extinct in this region if they ever did exist. Have never come
across old antlers north of the Athabasca River.

54. No answer.
55. Have not the necessary data. The Hudson Bay Company could, if willing,

supply the necessary information.
56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64. No answer.
65. I believe the Labrador tea-plant grows in all muskegs east of the Rocky

Mountains. It is very little used by the natives-never when they can obtain the teas
of commerce. It is said that it has an injurious effect upon the urinary organs, causing
stricture, if used too freely.

66. I (o not think it at all suitable. Few persons care for the flavour, which inay
be described as medicinal. Have used the infuson myself as a change. The flowers are
considered superior in flavour to the leaves.

67. Gold, Upper Peace River; Salt, Salt River on Great Slave River; Petroleum,
Peace River (Smoky River perhaps), Athabasca River below Grand Rapids; Gypsum,
Lower Peace River at Rapid de Boger; Coal, Smoky River in thick seams.

68, 69, 70. No answer.
71. Grey geese (two kinds) brant or grey wavy, white wavy (2 kinds) ducks of

many varieties, swans of two kinds. These fowl are very numerous in some localities,
Lesser Slave Lake, Athabasca Lake, Great Slave Lake and other places being passes for
them. In some localities removed from large lakes or feeding places very few of the
larger fowl are seen.

72. At the various places above mentioned there exist feeding places where they
congregate in great numbers especially in the f all, only leaving when the hard f rosts set
in. The ducks leave the snaller lakes as they freeze up and congregate in the larger
lakes, somte varieties only leaving when the lakes set fast.

73. The wild swanip grasses seem to be the principal food of these fowl except such
kinds as feed on fish such as the loon, cormorant and of such as feed on insects as several
varieties of ducks particularly of black ducks of which there are several varieties.

74. The first of April may be given as the average time of the appearance of geese
and a few days later of ducks, although sometimes ducks are the first seen. These fowl
however do not corne in any great numbers until the 20th April. The wavies and swans
are later. The great flight of these birds does not take place until May.

75. To the best of my knowledge the same as at other tinies.
76. Missaskatoon or service berry, rasberry (red), strawberry, sand bill cranberry,

Swamp cranberry, huckleberry, gooseberry, black currant (3 kinds), red currant (2 kinds),
moose berry, high bush cranberry, red cherry, choke cherry, whortle berry7 A large
yellow berry like white raspberry (growing ini muskegs and very luscious), 2 kinds of creep-
ing raspberry.

77. Specimens of this pitch were taken to Ottawa by W. Ogilvie, 1). L. S. and no
doubt have been analysed.

78. I believe there is a great quantity.
79. Either a railroad connecting the navigable waters of the Peace and Athabasca

with the existing railway system or a railroad from Athahasca Lake to Churchill Bay.
A road from 500 to 600 miles would connect Churchill Bay with Athabasca and open
out this whole region.

80. Cannot say.
81. I understand not.
82. Very few Indians proper exist between the Athabasca and Peace Rivers, proper.

Those at and trading at Lesser Slave Lake and outposts, are principally Metis of French
and Cree extraction with a dash of Iroquois blood here and there.

The Indians of Peace River proper, are all Beavers and are very few in numbers.
They are fast dying out. They have been subject to some kind of scrofula or venereal
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disease which carried them off in great numbers. The disease seens to have run itself
out but the survivors are a waste and degenerate race. They are opposed to making
treaty and yet if not assisted by government they must speedily disappear. The country
is now very poor in game and fur bearing animals ; and the Indians are consequently
naked and unable to make a living.

83. At the larger lakes fish is the principal diet, at Lesser Slave Lakes they cultivate
a few potatoes, elsewhere they depend almost wholly on the chase. They say they would
like to raise crops but have nothing to subsist on while engaged in farming operations
and have no tools.

84. The increase and decrease of rabbits is periodical, and the lynx live on rabbits
and increase and decrease to a great extent with them. The moose seem to migrate but
not periodically. No cause has been assigned for these migrations. The caribou are
also somewhat erratie in their migrations, even the partridge or arctic partridge is to be
found some winters in great numbers, other years there are none, as last winter. No
cause can be assigned unless the severity or midness of the season.

85. The cause cannot be stated. The disease seems to be a swelling about the neck
but many die without any appearance of this swelling.

86. I only know of two, one of which the great arctic hare is confined to the open
country. The other also a hare I believe is conunon to the whole North-West.

87. I am not aware of the great arctic hare (which is scarce at all times), being
affected by the disease to which the other kind is subject.

88. Jumping moose not found on the Lower Peace, beaver now getting scarce an
epidemic having killed off great numbers winter 1887-8, one year, porcupine very rare
except near and in the Rocky Mountains. The other animals such as wolfe, wolverine,
fisher, marten, mink and otter are only eaten when scarcity of other food compels the In-
dians to (o so. Musquash when plentiful are a considerable stand-by, but in the north
they are scarce at all times and now almost extinct.

89. I an of opinion that they would soon disappear fron the earth, however J an
not acquainted with the northern Indians. The foregoing remark was in reference to the
Beaver tribe.

90. The Cree and people of mixed blood could be advantageously employed by white
men at many kinds of work both as regards employer and employed. I think such
employment calculated to civilize them. It must be borne ini mind however -that the
natives are more apt to copy the vices of white men than their virtues.

NOTE. Being pressed for time I can give no further information but will send later
a copy of the dates of the opening and closing of the Peace River at the post for a
number of years fron the year 1835 to the present tiie. These records are not coin-
plete as there occur gaps of several years. The journals have either been removed or
destroyed.

W. E. TRAILL.
FouT VERMILION, lst August, 1888.

GOVERNMENT HoUSE,
WINNIPEG, l7th November, 1890.

SIR,-Very much of the information I transmit herewith does not relate directly to
the District of Keewatin, but to that vast and in some parts unknown region to the
West; as, however, it contains much information that is isothermally and otherwise
important to the District of Keewatin, which cannot be very well culled with that
special reference, and, as moreover, it adds, and fron a reliable source, materially to
our knowledge of the North and North-West Territories of Canada, I have caused it to
be attached hereto in its entirety.

In the spring of 1888 I caused to be sent, together with a series of questious, to
the writer, His Lordship Bishop Bompas of the Mackenzie River, then residing at Fort
Simpson, a small bag each of Ladoga and Onega wheat, Polar barley, and Onega oats,
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respectively, requesting him to plant thein at Fort Simpson and report upon the result.
The grain sent, with some Saskatchewan barley, was planted and gathered in 1889, and'
this spring I received a small bag of the different grains reaped, a portion of which being
sent by me to the Department of Agriculture at Ottawa for examination and test of
vitality, I have recently received the letter, of which the following is a copy:-

CENTRAL EXPERIMENTAL FARM, DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
OTTAWA, 7th November, 1890.

Lieutenant Governor SCHULTZ, Winnipeg, Man.

DEAR GOVERNOR SCIULTZ,-The tests of the germinating power of the samples of
grain received fron Bishop Bompas, of Fort Simpson, on the Mackenzie River, have
been completed and the results are as follows:-Wheat, Ladoga and Onega mixed,
germinated in the proportion of 85 per cent., 75 per. cent. of the plants making strong
growth and 10 per cent. weaker growth. The Polar barley 92 per cent., 80 per cent.
making strong growth and 12 per cent. weak growth. The common country barley 54
per cent., 41 per cent. strong growth and 13 per cent. weak. The Onega oats 93 per
cent., 90 per cent. strong and 3 per cent. weak. You will see from this that these
newer introductions promise to be of more value to them than the grain they have in
cultivation, if we can judge from the saniples of barley they have sent, as it only has 54
per cent. of germinating power. I an sorry that the result of this test could not have
been sent you earlier. It is very interesting, and shows that the grain of that district
ripens well and makes very good seed; it also shows the importance of introducing new
varieties there for test. I shall take the opportunity of sending to Bishop Bompas
several varieties more for test very shortly. Thanking you for the kind interest you
have taken in this matter,

I remain, yours very truly,
WILLIAM SAUNDERS,

Director.
I have the honour to be, sir, your obedient servant,

JOHN SCHULTZ.
The Honourable the Minister of the Interior, Ottawa.

ANSWER FROM WILLIAM CARPENTER BOMPAS, D.D. BISHOP OF
MACKENZIE RIVER, NORTH-WEST, CANADA.

1. Except where otherwise stated the following answers are intended to refer
especially to the course of the Mackenzie river from Great Slave Lake to the Artic Sea,
a distance of nearly 1,200 miles. The information is gained from superficial observation
during 23 years residence.

2. The whole of the above course of the Mackenzie is navigable for the months of
June, July and August, for river steamers of light draught, say not over 6 feet, but in
September, in some seasons, the navigation may be obstructed by low water. The cur-
rent is mostly from 3 to 4 miles an hour, but in places 6, 7 or 8 miles an hour. The
depth of the main stream where there is no obstruction may be from 5 to 10 fathonis.
The lake might be navigable for a swift steani launch in- spring only, but there is a
difficult rapid near its mouth.

3. The navigation of the Mackenzie river from the sea is for 1,400 miles continuing
to Fort Smith portage, (Lat. 60), which it is very desirable to bridge by a tramway, length
15 milet. Thence the southerly navigation is good for about 400 miles to the falls of
the Peace river. These would be bridged over again by a tramway, length *3 miles.
This would throw open another stretch of navigable water on the Peace river to Rocky
Mountain House, about 600 miles further, depth 6 feet in suimer to 3 feet in all over
obstructions. The 2,400 miles of navigation would be open, with breaks of only 18
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miles. A tramway on the Athabasca river would open about 600 miles of further
southerly navigation in anothe.r direction, but the tramway mnight be difficult of con-
struction, and 30 miles long or more. The Peace river tramways are quite easy.

4. The lakes in connection with the Mackenzie river are the Great Slave lake and
Great Bear lake. The former is about 300 miles long and average breadth of about of
50 miles, and say 10 fathoms deep. It is, of course, navigable throughout, with many
islands and river mouths to afford shelter from the wind to small craft. But the
navigation would not be safe for the ordinrry flat bottoned river steamers, but vessels
with a keel are required, if it can be judged of by the Canadian lakes.

Great Bear Lake is about 200 miles long, and nearly as wide as its length. It con-
tains therefore probably a larger body of water than Great Slave Lake. It bas many
deep bays and harbours. The waters are of crystal clearness and very deep. It is only
open for navigation for three months, and is connected with Mackenzie river by a very
swift and limpid river with rapids (Bear river-) which would with difficulty be nounted
by a steam launch, though navigable by canoes and cork boats. A steamer drawing 5
or 6 feet of water with a keel is needful for Great Bear or Great Slave lakes. There
are no other important lakes in the sane region, though many smaller ones inland.
Athabasca Lake may be reported of by others. It is in figure like Great Slave lake, but
smaller. Both these lakes taper off at their eastern ends to narrow channels or bays,
which have the likeness of, and in fact, estuaries of rivers and are filled with number
less islands of picturesque beauty. Athabaska lake is perhaps 200 miles long and 30
wide.

5. The surroundings of the mouth of the Mackenzie River and its neighbourhood
are laid down on a published British Admiralty chart, which can be referred to. The
general depth of water in the estuary of the Mackenzie River and along the seà-coast
is shallow, say fron 4 to 6 feet, but there is deeper water to be found. The navigation
might be open for three months of July, August and September in favourable seasons,
but in July, especially, a north wind would bring in the Arctic ice on the coast.. Steam
launches or light draught steamers would be the best vessels for navigation. They
could be built at Fort Nelson, on the east braich of the Liard River, where the timber
is good, and could descend the Mackenzie in time for the coast navigation and mount
again at its close. The draught should be 3 or 4 feet. The engines must be brought
in either fron the Pacific coast by way of Dease Lake, or by the Saskatchewan. It is
not likely that the seal or white fishery at the mouth of the Mackenzie would answer
unless the little craft above mentioned delivered their cargoes to large vessels waiting
at Point Barrow, to go out by way of Behring Straits.

6. This question I cannot answer from personal knowledge. I believe that a
steamer with the dIraught nentioned could run for 30 miles about the Clearwater, and
that above that distance the obstacles are mainly boulder stones, which might be
removed by blasting.

7. The Athabaska below the Clearwater is navigable and already navigated by
a steamer of the draught mnentioned. The Clearwater is itself only navigable for
steamers safely to the mouth of the Pembina River (about 50 miles). The lower
Arthabaska lias no important affluents beside the Clearwater River. The tinber on the
Athabaska is valuable, and it may be asked how it is to be exported. The only possible
scheme seems to be that of a railwav from the east end of Athabasca Lake to the coast
of Hudson's Bay, a distance of about 400 miles, but 300 miles might suffice by using navi-
gable water. This would form an outlet for all timber and other produce on the Peace
and Athabaska Rivers, and a wide district round. The plan bas been already projected
and postponed.

8. Great Slave River is about 400 miles long, nearly half a mile wide, and with
depth fron 1 to 5 fathons, the current about 3 miles an hour, and suitable for river
steamers, but the lower part has at times rough water, and vessels with a keel would
suit it best. The only obstruction is at Fort Smith. At this point the rapids are
passed either by 5 short portages averaging 100 yards each, or by any portage with a
good level-road of 15 miles. This should be bridged by a tramway.
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9. Liard River is at present navigated by canoes and york boats. Its length
from its junction with the Mackenzie to Fort Halkeft on the west branch or Fort
Nelson on the east branch, is about 500 miles. It is about 500 yards wide. There are
obstructions, especially a rapid about 30 miles from the mouth of the river. In the
months of May, June or July, however, there is depth of water for a steamer of light
draught to mount. The current is strong, with an average in spring of 4 or 5 miles,
mounting at certain places to 8 to 10 miles an hour, and caution with the steamer
would be necessary in descending the rapid.

10. Peace River is a finely navigable river for about 800 miles upward from Atha-
basca Lake, with only one obstruction, which could be easily bridged by a tramway of
about 3 miles, and might be removed by blasting. 'Peace River is nearly half a mile
wide anid its depth frot a fathom and upwards. But in the fall its depth may fall a
fathom on obstructions.

11. Of this I have no personal knowledge.
12. This has been anticipated. The Mackenzie is about 1,300 miles long, north of

Great Slave Lake, and averages about 1 mile wide, with a depth from 1 to 10 fathoms,
or more. The average current is 3 to 4 miles, but increased at certain points to 6 or 8
miles, or even 10. It is suitable for navigation by the steamer now running on it, which
draws about 6 feet. The obstructions are chiefly :-1st. Sand at the entrance fron
Great Slave Lake, which reduces the depth of water in the fall of the year to about 6
feet ; and in certain years, when the water of the lake happens to fall very low, this
depth might be further reduced. 2nd. Between Good Hope and Normand, latitude 66,
is a rapid, where in fall the depth might be not over 6 feet, and the current 10 miles an
hour. 3rd. At Good Hope close to the Arctic circle, is a flat shelf of rocks, where in the
fall of the year (September) is said to be only 3 feet of water.

13. Lake Athabasca is about 200 miles long and about 30 miles wide, with varied
depth. It needs a lake steamer of light draught for its navigation. The " Graham " a
flat river steamboat, crosses only the shallow end of the lake, which it is unable to navi-
gate. Valuable minerals have not yet been discovered, but the timber on the Athabasca
River and the Peace River is valuable, and would all naturally be floated dowin to this
lake for shipment. Timuber imiight float to this lake on the Athabasca River and its
adjoining lakes and affluents for more than 1,000 miles, and down the Peace River for
1,500 miles at least, and driftwood probably does come front these distances. A vast
amount of large and very valuable timber could thus be gathered in Athabasca Lake
with little expense beyond that of hewing. The timber of 100,000 square miles of country
could probably be floated to Athabasca Lake. The natural outlet for this would be
either by a railway to Hudson's Bay, or by inproving the navigation thither. There are
fish (white-fish) in Athabasca Lake that might suffice to feed those engaged in the timber
trade there, but not enough for exporting. Nothing else but timber and fur is yet known
that would pay for exporting, unless rock oil or mica.

14. This has been anticipated. Great Slave Lake is about 300 miles long and 50
miles wide, and with a depth of 10 fathomts and upwards. It is of course navigable for
lake steamers and other vessels. A large number of rivers run into it, and some of con-
siderable size, as Slave River, Hay River, Yellow Knife River and others. Rock oil or
tar springs are found it it, and sulphur abounds at Sulphur Point on it southern shore.
It is possible that a manufactory of gunpowder might be advantageously carried on here,
but the saltpetre required might have to be imported. Salt is very abundant on Slave
River, but saltpetre is not known here. Sulphur and charcoal being accessible, it might
be better to import saltpetre than manufactured gunpowder, for the greater need of the
country is ammnunition. Lead is said to exist in the samne neighborhood on Bufialo
River, and that nay imply the presence of silver, which has long been reported of in the
neighborhood of Peace River. White-fish and large trout are numerous in Great Slave
Lake, but not enough so for export. They might suffice to support those engaged on its
shores in mining or mineral industry. The timber round Great Slave Lake is not large
or valuable for exports, but suffices for building on the spot. No other valuable pro-
duct is known besides fur, unless it be mica.
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15. Great Bear Lake has been described in paragraph 4. It is the lunt of the
reindeer. The fish are mostly trout and herring, but there are white-fish fisheries in
places. The trees around Bear Lake are small. There is a portage of only 6 miles from
water running into Great Bear Lake to water running into the Coppermine River ; so
that if copper is worked on the Coppermine, this might be the readiest way of bringing
it to market. •A tramway might be made over the portage. But at present the cost of
transport f rom Great Bear Lake to Manitoba is reckoned at fully 25 cents per pound, and
this appears too close upon the value of raw copper to leave sufficient margin for mining
repairs and profit.

16. I have no personal knowledge of " Lesser Slave Lake " or " Hay Lake " or other
important lakes, except La Lacte ind Ile à la grosse lakes.

17. Sea-going steamers would only ascend the Mackenzie if constructed for it. But
a light draught steamer drawing say 6 feet inight nake the round from Victoria, British
Columbia, through Behring Straits and mount the Mackenzie. It is true that Point
Barrow is often encumbered by ice, but I make no doubt but that a passage could be
effected by a steamer either inside or outside the ice, according to the wind and weather.
On a large sea-going vessel being brought as far as Point Barrow, a steam launch could
be despatched thence along the coast to meet the Mackenzie.

18. On the Athabasca River it is understood that two steamers are this year (1888)
run by the Hudson's Bay Company, one the " Graham ", about 150 feet long and carry-
ing about 100 tons, and running between the Grand Rapids and Clearwater River and
Fort Sinith Landing on Horn River, and also up Peace River as far as the Falls.
Another steamer has been built for the Upper Athabasca River, above the Grand Rapids
to run to Athabasca Landing and Lesser Slave Lake.

On the Mackenzie River only one steamer is at present running about 100 feet
long and 14 feet beam, carrying about 60 tons, with high pressure engine and screw.
This is a lake steamer, drawing about 6 feet of water, but hardly enough for the traffic
required. It is named the " Wrigley ", and is also run by the Hudson Bay Company.

19. I know nothing of Hudson's Bay.
20. What little knowledge I have of these would hardly be of service. The old

route fron York Factory to Portage La Loche, fornerly used by the Hudson's Bay Coni-
pany for their 'Y ork route, is well known. It runs through Nelson River, Lake Winni-
peg, Saskatchewan River, Sturgeon River, English River, La Leche River andi many
lakes, including Cross Lake, Cedar Lake, Cumberland Lake, and Fleet Cross Lake. The
route is very much impeded, having about 100 portages enroute. It could not be
adopted in these days of steamers and railways.

21. This question is very general. The rainfall varies much in Mackenzie River in
diflerent seasons. We have wet sumners and dry summers, but dry weather pre-
dominates. If there occur sufficient showers in spring to proinote vegetation, the crops
are unusually sucoessful. Unsettled weather often occurs about the end of July or early
in August. I cannot give the rainfall in inches. The average depth of winter is pro-
bably about 4 feet, but varying from 2 or 3 to 6 feet in special seasons; and the snow
may be deep towards the south and scanty towards the north in the sanie season, or
vice versa.

22. This is a difficult question, but can be determined probably by general princi-
ples, after ascertaining average annual temperature of the air' at any given point. It is
understood that a certain known distance below the surface, the soil will be found per-
manently of this average annual temperature, and below that point the temperature of
the soil rises as you descend, at a known fixed rate. Where the temperature at the
surface is averaging below freezing point, there is permanently frozen ground at a certain
depth. Such is the case in latitudes higher than 65.

23. At Peel River, latitude 68, the soil hardly thaws more than 2 feet fromt the
surface in summer. Below this is permanently frozen ground for a gool depth, say
20 feet at least. At Fort Simpson I do not think the ground is perimanently frozen: I
suppose, therefore, the average temperature of the place is above freezing point, but I
think the winter frost will penetrate the ground to the depth of 8 or 10 feet. In Peace
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River, root crops ean be preserved in pits at a depth of 6 or 8 feet, the winter frost not
reaching them ; but this cannot be done iii Mackenzie River.

24. A belt of country, fringing the artic shore, and varying in breadth from 100
miles on the west to 200 miles on the east, is called the barren lands, simply because
devoid of trees, which are killed by the salt sea breezes. South of this line the whole
country is entirely covered with spruce and pine forests. These are firs and stunted in
the north and they increase in size towards the south till on the Peace River and Liard
or Upper Yoma they mingle with poplar or cotton wood and tamarac. Among these
pinie forests are numerous lakes and swamps and more or less underwood of willows or
other scrub. The ground is a good deal covered with a white moss knowin as reindeer
moss, because the chief food of the reindeer.

25. On the barren ground as trees will not grow, so neither of course will crops.
The soil is partly rocky or stoney, and partly mossy. On the rocks grow the edible
lichens known as " Tripe des Roches." UTnless some edible or medicinal extract should
have or may be made fron those mosses or lichens, the barren grounds are not known
to have commercial value. They form the permanent home of the musk-ox and the
summer haunt of the reindeer, which are hunted there by the Indians with success and
waste. The deer leave the forests in suimer to escape the flies, and resort to them in
winter for shelter from the wind.

26. Barley and potatoes have been grown as far north as the Arctic Circle, on the
Mackenzie and Yukon Rivers, though the crops are hardly safe from frost at that
latitude. East of the Mackenzie, the most northern place at which I am aware potatoes
have been grown is Fort Ray, Great Slave Lake, latitude 62, 30.

27. Wheat has been grown at Fort Simpson, Mackenzie River, latitude 62, and
ripens there in a favourable season, and yields good grain. For a permanent crop and
profitable increase it needs careful cultivation and a selection of the most desirable seed.

28. On the Mackenzie, Indian corn will niot ripen, but it might be used green.
29. Barley, wheat and potatoes are planted and sown on the Mackenzie River

immediately after the spring plowing, which is (lone after the melting of the wvinter
snflows, as soon as the soil is dry enough. At Fort Simpson this is generally from the
20th to the 25th May. At Good Hope, about the 1st June. The reaping will be some
time in September, according to the season. The potatoes are taken up at the first sign
of frost, about the middle of Septenber.

30. Spring opens on the Mackenzie River from the 1st to the 15th May. Within
the Arctic Circle, say of Red River, about the first week in June. At Peel River the
low cranberry bushes may be found in flower as the snow meilts off them, so powerful is
the unsetting sun, even through the snow.

31. It is obvious that in such case the ground is only fit for seeding after the
flowering of the berry bushes. Event at Great Slave Lake you may see the buds burst
On the gooseberry bushes one week, the leaves fully out the iext week, so speedy are the
spring's advances. I should say the seeding time is usually about the same as the
flowering time.

32. Wheat, September ; barley, September ; rye and oats, untried ; potatoes and
turnips, Septemiber ; Jndian corn, does not ripen ; strawberries and gooseberries, August.

33. There is a liability to summer frosts on Mackenzie River as on Athabasca,
Peace River and the Saskatchewan, but J should think with care potatoes would yield
their seed about ten-fold in three seasons out of four; barley, its seed five-fold in three
seasons out of four; and wheat, its seed five-fold in two seasons out of four ; but
selected seed, careful cultivation and dressing of the land is required. Turnips and
other quick-growiiig crops and beet answer well.

S34. The frosts in these months are generally only occasional night-frosts, but are at
times enlough to wither the potato stems. The length of the summer day, approaching
perpetual sunlight near the Aretie Circle, hastens vegetation, and nmakes the night frosts,
if any, very short till towards the fall. The present year, 1888, there were night frosts
at Great Slave Lake iii July, but probably nione at Peel River after the Ist of June,
there being perpetual sunlight from that date to the mniddle of July.
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35. The frosts are general, but a field sheltered fron the north wind, or bordering
a river which runs from the south may escape the frosts.

36. The settlemuent of a region is known to make it less liable to frost, and the
annual working of the soil will in a few years abate its liability to frost. It is generally
thought that the winter temperature of Mackenzie river has abated since its occupation
by the whites. This may be owing to the lires, which may have been allowed to run
more frequently in the woods, causing large tracts of burnt woods where the underwood
being consumed, the sunmer sun can take the frost fron the soil. The burnt woods
have the samne effect as so nuch land cleared.

37. At Peel river, Lat. 68. the suminier rains seeni to be expected regularly about
the last week in July, to last to the middle of August. : Further south there is no such
regularity, but unsettled weather more or less is generally experienced about the samne
tine.

38. Septeniber and October are generally fine and pleasant months, but navigation
closes on the Mackenzie river through drifting ice in October; about the first week in
October north of the Arctic Circle, and down to the 20th further south. The winter
snows begin to lie fron the 20th to the 25th October.

39. Autun-sown crops have bardly been tried, but self-sown barley grows in the
spring. The grass withers in the winter, but it is renewed in the spring. The sap in
the spruce and birch rises in May, and the willows becone green from May to June,
according to latitude. but seasons vary much, some being about a mouth later in the

spring than others. Snall spruce is more easily felled when hard frozen, but hardly so
large trees.

40. The grasses are mostly confined to the Hay swamps or river banks, and are not
aburidant. They suffice, when collected, for the keep of a few cattle. On Peace river
there are grass prairies, intermingled with forest land, and in the neighbourhood of
Dunvegan and Smoky Rivers the hills are quite free fron trees, and are clothed with
short grass, suited for horses or cattle pasture.

41. I have not noticed it to any extent. It may exist to a slight extent on Peace
river and the Upper Yuckon.

42. Not that I an aware of. The cattle are at times fed with chopped willows in
spring in default of hay.

43. The cultivated soil on the Mackenzie River is mostly the product of decayed
vegetation, and on the banks of the rivers mixed probably with sone amount of alluvial
mu(l brought down by the stream. In sone parts the soil is stony and in some sandy.
Mostly when the trees and brushwood are cleared off there is enough vegetable soil for
the growth of some crops. In sonie parts this is better and in sonie worse, but there is
much mossy ground.

44. There is no part of Mackenzie river region or the country north of Athabasca
that is fit for profitable farming or pasturage; but in most parts a patch of ground can
be cultivated as a field or garden by a resident to eke out his existence, with the pro-
duce of the chase or imported provisions. If there are residents for the purpose of the
fur trade, or operations in minerals, the cultivation of the soil should be pushed forward
by them for their subsistence, and a Government farmi might be attempted on the
Upper Mackenzie or Liard rivers, for the behoof of starving Indians, and a large amount
of vegetable crops could doubtless be raised upon it.

45. On parts of the Liard River the soil is only lightly covered with small poplars
and could be easily cleared. Cattle could be raised and kept by artificially sown grass,
and fair and safe crops of barley and potatoes could be relied on, according to the extent
of land brought under cultivation.

A Governnent farm here I should view as a blessing to the country. This in Lat.
60. On the Upper Mackenzie River, Lat. 61, cattle and crops could also be raised, and
the access to and from thein would be more easy and convenient here, in consequence
of the rapids in the Liard River.

46. Occasionally grasshoppers have destroyed the barley crops, but not frequently.
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47. Prinited tables are published of ieteorological observations of Fort Simpson,
Mackenzie River, in 1851, examined by Col. Sabine. Meteorological observations at
Fort Ray were lately taken and published by Capt. Dawson, of the circumpolar expedi-
tion. Meteorological observations of Peel River were made by Mr. Holland, sent to the
Smithsonian Institute. Observations have been inade by Archdeacon Sterne and sent
to the Toronto Observatory, etc., etc. The ordinary lowest teinperature at Fort Simpson
is about 50 below zero, Fahrenheit ; and of Peel River about 60 below zero. The tem-
perature of Fort Ray, observed by the circumpolar expedition, was the lowest but one
observed iii the world. But Fort Ray is mnilder than Peel River. The climate of
Mackenzie River is a very healthy one for hardy Europeans, but not for delicate ladies,
who suffer from exposure, damp feet, etc. Patients with weak lungs or consuniptive
tendencies generally recover in Mackenzie River.

48. The influence here spoken of is uncertain. When a frosty wind drives up from
the north, an open river or lake may increase this by affording free space for the wind.
When there is no wind, water of a lake or of a river flowing from the south will tend
to preserve from frost the crops on its iminediate banks. Great Slave Lake usually
Opens froin 20th to 25th June, but this year (1888) it was closed till 10th July. It
closes about 1st Noveinber. Great Bear Lake usually opens about the middle of July,
and closes )y the middle of October. The Mackenzie River opens about the 15th May
and closes for navigation about 20th October. The Liard River opens the first week in
May and closes navigation the middle of October. The Mackenzie River sets fast about,
the 20th November. It is not free fromi ice at its exit to the sea till the beginning or
imiddle of Julne.

49. The winds are variable, but generally blowing up and down Mackenzie River
alternately for a few days or a week at a time. In spring time northerly winds prevail,
aMd sometimes continue for six weeks.

.0. A three days' west wind will sometimes produce a thaw in Mackenzie River,

even in January. This is rare, but a westerly wind is usually mild.

.51. At Fort Liard 20 or 30 head of cattle have been raised, but they have now but
six. Sone hundreds of bushels of barley and potatoes are generally raised there with-
out difficulty. At Fort Simpson are now about 12 head of cattle and there have been

more. About 1,000 bushels of potatoes have been raised at Fort Simpson, and about

100 bushels of barley ; but that is above the average crop. Further north the cattle
are few and the crops small, but cattle are kept and potatoes raised at Good Hope on

the Arctic Circle.
52. I think not.
53. The musk-ox permanently, and the reindeer in sunmer, have their haunt in the

barren grounds. The reindeer or cariboo averages about 100 pounds of ineat per carcase.
The skin is of little value, as the hair is loose ; but the fawn skins make good robes.
The reindeer is migratory, travelling south to the woods in winter and to the Arctic
Circle iii sumimer. Its food is reindeer imoss.

lusk-O.x. These are confined to the barren grounds and are not very numerous.
The meat is coarse and of a disagreeably, musky flavour. The robes are valued, being
more shaggy than the buffalo robes.

IJood Bufahlo. These have almost or quite disappeared, but some cows have been
killed not long since near Fort Smith. Their only haunt seems to be Slave and Peace
Rivers, where they are attracted probably by the salt.

JIoose. They have been nuinerous on Mackenzie River, the past three years,
during which seasons there have been no reindeer on the river.

It would seen that in these seasons the reindeer have, in their migrations in the
fall, taken a more easterly course, towards Hudson's Bay, being turned aside either by
burnt woods, which frightened them, or possibly by rotting carcases of deer incautiously
killed and forsaken. Providence has kindly supplied their lack by large numbers of
Moose, which seeni probably to have been driven eastward by the wolves from the west
side of the Rocky Mountains. The Cariboo is a gregarious animal, and is hunted
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running. The Moose is a solitary animal, and is stalked with great caution. The
meat weighs from 300 to 500 lbs. ,

EILk. This animal is generally considered to be the same as the moose, but some
apply the same to the red deer, called also the wood deer or biche, which is found
throughout the woods in small bands, but not in large numbers. It is much larger than
the reindeer, and its meat will weigh from 150 to 200 lbs. Its robe is not valuable,
nor is that of the moose, but the leather of both is good. The inoose feeds on the willow.
The red deer probably on the leaves or grasses.

Bear. These are rather numerous, and are black or brown. The grizzly bears are
in the mountains. The commoiin bears are timid and not dangerous. Their flesh is
good. They hibernate the whole time the snow is on the ground.

Goat. These are rather numerous on the mountains, and their flesh is good meat.
There are no other carnivorous animais in Mackenzie larger than wolves, which are

not dangerous.
54. Numbers rise and fall. Skin good. Follow the rabbits. Caught in steel traps,

or snared, or shot.
Arctic Fox. White, on the Arctic coast. Traded from Esquimaux only. Caught

in steele traps.
Black, Silver, Red and Cross Fox. Apparently an accidental variety, generally

distributed, caught in steel traps. The numbers vary. The skins are good. Foxes are
pretty numerous on the Arctic coast.

Fisher. Found at the lake side, and trapped or shot.
Wolverine. A troublesome enemuy to the trapper and hard to trap. Caught in

trip stick or steel traps, or at tines.poisoned.
Otter. Found in the lake and shot.
Beaver. Their numbers seem diminishing through wanton destruction of the

young. The hunt should be limited by a close season, but this seems impossible unless
the number of petty traders is limited by requiring a license to trade.

Martin, Mink, Ermine, Musk-rat. The martin rise and fall in number. They are
widely distributed and taken in trip-stick traps. The mink are trapped or shot. The
Ermine are not thought of value for trade, and muskrat are little sought for, though
numerous in McKenzie River, as they are thought hardly to pay the expense of trade
and export.

55. This is intended for those engaged in the trade.
56. The general result as to agriculture is that immigration cannot be invited to

Mackenzie River, nor agricultural pursuits for export or for profit ; but for the purpose
of raising food for the inhabitants, whether whites or Indians, farming should be urged
forward, and any assistance or encouragement by the Government, would be valuable.
Regarding the fur trade, there certainly seems to be sone danger of the extermination of
the fur-bearing animais through indiscriminate trade, and it is for the Government to
consider whether it would be well in this view to restrict the number of traders by a lease
or exclusive license of trade over the more northern part of the country.

57. In Great Slave Lake the tish are trout, whitetish, inconnu, perch, roach, jack-
fish, etc., but the two first are most valued. About 100,000 whitefish are taken in
Great Slave Lake with nets every fall, and these fisheries might be increased. But
neither here nor elsewhere in MacKenzie River must any provision be thoight of for
export, as provisions are too scanty even for the sparse inhabitants. Nor could a penal
settlement or any large colony find provisions, but Indians settled around the lake and
provided with nets might find food, and a small number of men engaged in any industry
connected with rock oil, mica, sulphur, or other minerals, might be fed largely on fish. The
trout in Great Slave Lake are good, and weigh from 30 to 50 lbs. They are taken
chiefly with hooks. In Bear Lake the fish are chiefly trout and fresh water herrings.
The latter are taken in nets, or attracted by lights and speared through a hole in the
ice on winter nights. In MacKenzie River the fish are scanty. There are inconnu, jack-
fish, blue fish, perch, loach, which afford a sumer subsistence to Indians on the banks.
At Peel River are good whitefish in sumier, with herring and delicious mountain trout
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of small size, and blue-fish. West of the mountains, on the Porcupine and Upper Yukon
are salmon and salmon-trout in numbers, which mount from the Pacific Coast. The
special use of the fish in the north is as food for the dogs, which are used in winter for
hauling meat and fuel, etc. Each train of dogs consumes about 1,000 white-fish per

58. Whales, walrus and seals, that is, the hair seal, are hunted by the Esquimaux
in the Artic Sea, off the mouth of the Mackenzie. Not many whales are killed. If two
or three are killed in a summer, this is thought a good supply for the following winter.
The ivory of the walrus tusk is good, but it is not brought by them for trade, though
used by them in making needle-cases, fish-hooks and other small articles. There are no
fur-seals off the Mackenzie such hs are so valuable on the Pacifie coast. The skin of the
hair-seal is not highly valued. There do not seem to be more seals taken by the Esqui-
maux than are required for their own food. The flesh is very coarse meat, and the oil,
though a luxury to the Esquimaux, is of mawkish and sickly taste. The whales, walrus
and seals seem to be all taken by the Esquimaux with fish-spears.

59. I do not think these fisheries likely to be very valuable or to pay for exporting
their produce overland. I think they must probably be approached for profit by way
of Behring Straits, and any vessels used for whale fishery should be constructed outside,
and brought in by way of Behring Straits. If a fishing station was formed at the
mouth of Mackenzie River, it should be chiefly provisioned from outside by way of
Behring's Straits, though herring and deer's meat, as well as seal ineat, might be obtained
on the spot for future use Though Point Barrow is said to be often encumbered with
ice, I am of opinion that it could be passed by a properly protected steamer every sum-
mer, or if not, a vessel could be loaded there across the ice. The rest of the coast west
of the Mackenzie River seems to be free from ice during the summer months.

60. The best place for the construction of vessels to be used on the Arctic Sea in
connection with the Mackenzie River might be Fort Smith on Slave River, or Fort
Nelson on the east branch of the Liard River. At the latter place the timber is very
large and good, and at Fort Smith it is very fair. But provisions must be imported for
those building the craft, and the expense of importing nails and ironwork would be great,
raising the cost far too high for any profit. Any such vessels had far better be built.
outside and brought by way of Behring's Straits.

Light draught steam launches would seem the best vessels for the purpose. There
is plenty of driftwood along the Arctic coast for their fuel, and harbours of refuge from
Storn. If Point Barron were impassible, such light vessels could be crossed on the ice
and lauiiched to the eastward.

I think if a single Government Station were established at the mouth of Mackenzie
River, a successful and inexpensive expedition might probably be conducted thence to the
North Pole, either by a small steamer (say a gunboat) in summer, or by dog-sleds in
Winter. Instead of a million pounds sterling, the cost of the old Arctic expeditions, I
should think a few thousand might cover the cost. The distance would be about 1,500
miles each way, say a week's run each way for a steamer in summer, including detours
for ice, or about two months' journey each way for dogs in winter. But for the winter
trips, a train of provisions must be laid beforehand. Probably the voyage would be
begun in the steamer and conpleted with dog-sleds on encountering ice.

61. The introduction of salmon or sturgeon spawn into northern waters by the Gov-
ernment might be tried with the view of increasing the supply of fish.

62. This has been anticipated. The whole of the Mackenzie River region is already
covered with spruce pine, except on the Liard and Peace Rivers and Upper Yukon,
where poplar and cotton-wood and tamarac mingle with it. Birch is also sparsely scat-
tered on many parts. The timber on the Mackenzie River is not large, and it is unlikely
that it would pay the cost of export, but there is large timber up the Laird River.

On the Peace and Athabasca Rivers and their affluents the timber is very plentiful
and valuable, and implies a vast amount of wealth. The timber of about 100,000 square
miles of country could be floated down these rivers to Athabasca Lake. Reckoning only

per stick, and a million sticks to the -square mile, this would be worth 100,000 million
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dollars. If tiniber rights were leased by the Government at $10 per annum per square
mile, it would bring an annual incomie of $1,000,000 ; or if sold at $100 per square mile,
would fetch a price of $10,000,000.

The best outlet for this timber would seem to be a railway fron the east end of
Athabasca Lake to Hudson's Bay, or to rivers running thither, unless timber shoots
could be made to connect the east end of Athabasca Lake with Hudson's Bay by water,
in the way of a timber aqueduct or canal, which might or might not be cheaper than a
railway. The railway would be about 300 miles long. But the Governient have not
yet bought the Indian Title to the lands on Peace and Athabasca Rivers. It is doubt-
ful, however, whether the Indians can fairly claint ownership in the titmber, or whether
the Indians now resident on Peace and Athabasca Rive/s can claim any hereditary owner-
ship of the country, except one or two insignificant bands, for the resident Indians are
now mostly late immigrants. The original Beaver Indians on Peace River, and
Chipewyans of Athabasca River have nearly died out, and have been replaced by Crees
and half-breeds from the plains, and Chipewyans from Athabasca Lake.

63. Sarsaparilla and Liquorice are found on Peace River, and of course any amount
-of Salacene could be made from the red willow throughout the country; but I know of
no plants useful for export. There is a root on the Mackenzie and Yukon Rivers said
to be good for chest complaints.

64. The Indians of Mackenzie River do not use herbal medicines themselves, but
Crees, Saulteaux and half-breeds resident practice with herbal medicines on the natives.
This seems to be partly trickery and deceit, but the Crees know some medicinal herbs,
particularly astringent ones, as the raspberry root, and the Saulteaux appear to use at
times poisonous and deleterious herbs for the purpose of mischief and revenge.

65. The Labrador Tea Plant extends west and north everywhere, but it is very little
used except occasionally as a last resort and in want of Asiatic Tea. Tea made with the
leaves is far too bitter to be palatable. The sprigs stripped of the leaves and boiled
twice will make on the second boiling a fairly palatable tea. But the effect of drinking
Labrador tea on the bowels is too astringent to be healthy, udless medicinally, as a
renedy for Diarrhtea or Dysentery. Raspberry shoots or roots, or the twigs of the
Saskatoon berry, or even birch twigs in spring, will make a more agreeable tea than the
Labrador tea plant. The raspberry tea is also astringent ; I am not sure as to the others.
Wild rhubarb is plentiful at Peel River, and along the rivers west of the Rocky Moun.
tains. This is agreeable to eat with sugar when boiled, or for preserving. Wild leeks
grow on the banks of the Mackenzie. Some of the weeds can be boiled as table greens,
especially the garden weed known as "Fasten."

66. I am surprised to hear that the Labrador Tea Plant is well thought of as a
substitute for Asiatic Tea, and only fear it nay be used to adulterate that article. But
if the Government think fit to essay the naturalization of the Asiatic Tea Plant in this
country, it might be tried. North China is hardly south of Canada, and seems to be
very cold, as bordering an eastern coast. Wild or swamp rice might be introduced fromn
Manitoba, and sown in the swamps of Peace River and Athabasca and Liard Rivers.
This might go far to keep the Indians alive in times of scarcity.

67. Nearly all the gold yet found in the north seems to have its origin in a single
range of mountains which runs neary half-way between the true Rocky Mountain
Range and the Pacific Coast Range. Peace River has one source in these mountains,
and gold is found in the sand-bars and banks, down Peace River. None of this gold
passes Slave Lake to enter the Mackenzie, and none of the affluents of the Mackenzie
can easily come from this gold range, because the true Rocky Mountains intervene.
However, both Peace River and the west branch of the Liard do flow through the
Rocky Mountains, and on the latter river there are some traces of gold. The chief gold
mines recently discovered are on the Yukon and its affluents, the Lewis River, Stewart
River, etc. These mines are likely to attract many miners, and a judge will be required
there, and a Custom House officer, etc. The access to the latter region, however, is
from the Pacific Coast, and not from the Mackenzie River.
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Silver. Silver was long since reported of on Peace River, and a mountain
situate eastward from Battle River. It is also reported of on the west branch of the
Liard River.

Copper exists on Copper mine River, west longitude 115; latitude, about the
Arctic Circle.

Iron exists in large quantities at Sulphur Point, on the south side of the Great
Slave Lake; also found at the mouth of Hay River and on Clearwater River, near
Portage La Loche.

Salt is found in large quantities on Salt River, an affluent of Slave River, 60°.
Also overspreading sone miles of country between the sanie Salt River and Lower
Peace River. Also on another Peace River, an affluent of the Mackenzie, latitude 64°,
and near Fort Norman, 65°.

Petroleum is found on the Athabasca River, latitude 57 ; aIso on the west side
of Great Slave Lake, latitude 61, and at Good Hope, on the Arctic Circle. The appear-
ance on the surface is mineral pitch, and it is as such the substance found is used to
pitch boats with ; but there is little doubt but the rock oil would be reached by boring.

Asphaltum. This is considered to be the same substance as that last mentioned, in
a more solidified form.

<G'ypsumt is noticed in the banks of Peace River and on the Yukon.
Alum is abundant on the Upper Yukon.
Precious Stones. The Peace River pebbles are well thought of. Garnets are found

in the neighbourhood of Dease Lake.
Coal is exposed on the Mackenzie River, latitude 65°.
Plumbaqo is not known of.
Lead is reported of on the Buffalo River, on the south side of Great Slave Lake.
68. There does not seem to be much brick clay in Mackenzie River. Pottery or

pipe clay, or fullers' earth is found at Fort Norman, latitude 65°. There are some sandy

bars on the river. Lime-stone is common on Mackenzie River and Great Slave Lake.

Grind-stones are found on Laird River, and granite is reported in somte places.
69. Mica is reported of near Fort Smith, latitude 60°, at the east end of Great

Slave Lake, latitude 63°, and near Fort Norman, latitude 65°.
70. The general breeding-place of the migratory wild fowl is on the Arctic Sea Coast.

The chief kinds that pass Mackenzie River, spring and fall, are swans, cranes, geese,
wavies, various duck and tern. They pass north early in May, and south early in Sep-

tember. At Fort Chipewyan, Athabasca, Resolution, on Great Slave Lake, and Peel
'River, latitude 68°, are the best stations for a goose hunt on the Arctic Coast. A natura-

list would probably collect on the Arctic Coast a great variety of specimens. The young
are hatched early in July.

71. The geese are most numerous, but they are not killed in sufficient numbers for

export, or to form an exclusive article of food even at the time of migration.
72. The geese stop to feed at suitable places especially where there is goose-grass,

They seem to stay longer about the mouth of the Athabasca, near Fort Chipewyan, and
on the sand banks near Peel river, latitude 68°.

73. I suppose they all live on the water plants and sedge, with perhaps gnats and
insects for sauce, and possibly in part shell-fish, but the salt-worts and sea-weeds on the
Arctic Coast are their more likely provisions. I have made no personal observation.

74. This depends on the season, whether early or late. The birds may be first
seen by the 25th April, and the last will be passed by 30th May ; and on their return
they may be looked for in September, early or late, according to the season. The hunter's
success is not such as is likely to attract hunters for pleasure, unless at Fort Chipewyan.

75. The saine, I should think, as at other times, that is goose-grass and sedges.
76. On the Mackenzie River the chief berries are known as raspberries, gooseberries,

strawberries, cranberries (high-bush and low-bush), crowberries, yellowberries, blue-
berries, partridgeberries and bearberries. They are not collected in sufficient quantities
for export, and are gathered with difficulty among the mosquitoes. They suffice, how-
ever, to make a few kegs of jam for use at the Fort. Nothing in the way of provision
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need be thought of in the way of export from Mackenzie River ; as to this, the only
question is import. On Peace River are pears, or Saskatoon berries, and wild cherries.

77. The mineral pitch of the Athabasca River and Great Slave Lake is found very
good for tarring boats, and could be used for all purposes of protecting wood from damp
and perhaps iron from rust. If the communication were improved by a railway to
Athabasca Landing and a tramway across the Grand Rapids on Athabasca River, I
should think it might answer for export. But its value is hardly likely to be more than
6 cents per pound, and at present the transport to Manitoba is about 18 cents per
pound.

78. I think the deposit large and deep, and I make little doubt but that coal oil
would be found by well sinking. For the product is liquid when it exudes, and only
hardens by exposure. I understand that the place has been already professionally ex-
amined by a messenger from Manitoba, and has been pronounced of value, but not so
much as to pay for export.

79. The best road to market is by way of Athabasca Landing and Edmonton.
The railway now proposed to Edmonton should certainly be continued to Athabasca

Landing, and if possible to Clearwater River. There is said to be a good dry level
ridge reaching as far as the latter place and with houses already built at intervals.

80. 1 should think the cost of taking in a boring apparatus for making a bore only
as a test would not be great: but to bore on a working scale would be more expensive.
I think an expert would know from the surface there is oil there ; or the pitch could be
distilled for oil.

81. I an no geologist, but I should think it probable that an eastern spur of the
Great Gold Range strikes the source of the North Saskatchewan. I should think there
was as much gold on Peace River as on the Saskatchewan, but provisions are too dear
to encourage miners to enter.

82. The Indians and Esquimaux of MacKenzie River number nearly 5,000 in the,
east and west 5,000 in the west of the Rocky Mountains on British Ter *tory. The
Southern Indians are known as the Slave or Tenni Nation and the northern as the
Loucheux or Tukuth Nation. r

They do not migrate much, being discouraged from leaving tl> raling
posts. They have not as a whole increased or decreased much during the pa, 20 years,
nor have they been subiect to epidemic diseases since that time. The Slave Indians are
not a healthy race, being of a scrofulous habit, but their health seems improved of late
years, which I attribute partly to the increased use of tea among them. Previously
their diet was exclusively animal, with blood as a beverage, which I think unwholesome.
Increased use of soap among them, both for persons and clothes, would be likely to im-
prove their health. They value this, and it would be appreciated if bestowed by the
Government as a gift. They are supported entirely by hunting and fishing and gifts by
Government of fishhooks, net-twine and ammunition would mitigate the danger of star-
vation. To feed them would encourage idleness, unless in extreme want.

83. The Indians' food in Mackenzie River has been chiefly deer's meat for the last,
20 years, unless in the three seasons now last past, when the reindeer have not visited
the McKenzie River, but their place has been providentially supplied by moose. The
latter are hunted with more difficulty, and some destitution bas been the consequence,
but not to the extent of much loss of life, at present, except in the Athabasca district.
In summer the Indians live a good deal on fish, either on the river bank or at the fish
lakes, but they also hunt the moose and the bears. The MacKenzie River Indians do
not yet cultivate the soil, but at Hay River, on Great Slave Lake, one old Indian chief
has of late years successfully lived on a field of barley and potatoes, with cattle, in con-
nection with a fishery there.

84. Plenty of food usually accompanies plenty of snow (when the moose are easily
killed) or the visit in their winter migrations of numerous bands of reindeer, or the
periodical swarming of rabbits or wild rats, or an unusual abundance of fish and wild
fowl. Scarcity is caused by a reverse condition of things. The moose can seldom be
killed without wind.
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85. The periodical disappearance of the rabbits may be caused partly by their ex-
hausting their more favourite foods when they are exceptionally numerous, but more
probably it is the excessive breeding which excessive numbers presupposes or induces
that kills them. However, naturalists may explain it otherwise if they prefer.

86. There are large arctic hares spoken of as existing in the barren grounds, but
only one species of rabbit is common in Mackenzie River, grey in summer and white in
winter. Some naturalists call it an arctic hare, because it does not burrow, but it seems
to be a true rabbit.

87. All the rabbits are liable to fluctuations of increase and decrease every 8 or 10
years, but not necessarily in the same season in ail parts of the country. Some attribute
the periodical increase in numbers to migration, but I hardly think this, as the rabbits
are poor and dead ones are found when their numbers begin to fail. Similar incréase
and decrease applies to wild cats and martin, and perhaps also to foxes, bears and other
animais, but probably not so much to beaver, though these are said to be also liable to
occasional disease. The moose are more or less numerous in different seasons, but pro-
bably not in regular periods, being highly nervous animals, they are probably driven f rom
one part of the country to another by wolves and perhaps by the hunters. A system-
atic destruction of wolves would be a blessing to the country, but the use of poison
might be dangerous to other animais.

88. The important food animais have been already named, viz.: bears, beaver,
rabbits, wild rats, wild fowl, fish, and for the Esquimaux, whales and seals. The only
one of which it might be useful or profitable to protect, seems to be the beaver, which
with other fur animals might be preserved by a restricted fur-trade. The moose and
reindeer are probably diminishing in numbers, and their absence may have to be sup-
plied, as in Athabasca and Isle à la Grosse, and other districts, by importations of flour
and bacon.

89. There is no encouragement for civilized man to enter Mackenzie River for agri-
culture, an?- any settlements for working minerais would be probably local and not
númerous. The entering of a numerous band of petty fur traders would probably have
an injurinms 4 '- on the Indians, if we may judge from the experience of outside dis-
tricts : -pting them through high prices to dishonesty in trade : 2nd. By intro-
dúeing posibly some illicit drinking : 3rd. If the traders were of reckless or vicious
habits, the imitation of these habits by the Indians.

90. If a mining industry were opened in Mackenzie River, the Indians could be
employed as crews, in any vessels used, in hunting or fishing for those engaged. in the
industry, and in digging or any other manual labour involved in it. This might be
good for the men, but the families might suffer f rom want of food while the men were
taken from the hunts and fishing. To support the Indian families by imported provi-
sions might be too expensive. However, these difficulties would be solved by the neces-
Sities of the case, some being retained for hunters and fishermen, whilst the others were
at work.

Conclusion. It is apprehended that the chief object of these questions is to ascer-
tain if any profitable exports can be made from Mackenzie River or the neighborhood
besides fur. As far as present discoveries extend, the following are the only hopeful
industries. Ist. In Athabasca, the timber trade. 2nd. In Athabasca and Great Slave
Lake, mica works. 3rd. On the Upper Yukon, gold. The Peace River country alone
invites agriculture.

If the inquiry relates to any benefit to be done for the Indians by the Canadian
Government, I should say :-

lst. An Experimental Industrial Farm might be started on the Liard River or
Upper Mackenzie River or both, as well for example as for training Indians in a know-
ledge of cultivation, and for raising vegetable provisions as conducive to health.

2nd. A school or schools might be advantageously opened in connection with such
farms for the instruction of Indian youth.
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3rd. Some supply of fish-hooks, net twine, amunition and flour might be sent to
Mackenzie River by the Government, to be held a reserve, and only to be distributed to
the Indians in case of absolute necessity.

4th. If any medicine is agreed on by the medical faculty as a good remedy for a
scrofulous habit of body, such as that known as chemical food or (Iodide of Iron), it
inight be sent by the Government for use among the Indians.

If the enquiry relates to the general duties of the Government towards the north,
I should say:

lst. A judge should be sent to register claims and keep order at the mines on1 the
Upper Yukon.

2nd. A customs officer should be sent to the same place to abate the contraband
import of liquors or any goods from the American border there.

3rd. On the Mackenzie River, the residence of a single police inspector or other
Government official and an Indian agent, or at least a visit from such might be well to
uphold the majesty of the law, and to accustom the Indians to respect it, and generally
to offer a visible token of the Majesty of the Queen over this wide northern country,
which is nearly as large as British India, and has not been deemed worthy of regard or
occupation by the Government in any way.

4th. A quarterly Government mail would be a boon to the residents. We all pay
taxes for our imports, but what do we have for it ?

Further information night be obtained f rom a tract, which, I think, is lately pub-
lished by the Society for Promoting Christian Knowledge, London, England, entitled:
"A History of Mackenzie River," and as I hope, if life is spared, to be in Canada in the
summer of 1889, I shall be glad then to offer at Ottawa any personal explanation that
may be demanded of me.

W. C. BOMPAS, D. D.
Bisho) of Mackenzie River.

MACKENZIE RIvER, August, 1888.

GovERNMENT HoUSE, WINNIPEG, 10th March, 1890.
SIR,-I herewith enclose you as supplementary information regarding the Upper

Yukon, Peel River and Lower Mackenzie, the copy of answers which I received from
traders and travellers in these regions. Two of the signers of the annexed communica-
tion are British Columbia traders who pursued their adventurous trade from the cariboo
country to the Upper Yukon and thence to Peel River, the most north-western affluent
of the great Mackenzie River.

Their opposition was bought off by the Hudson Bay Company in the spring of 1889,
when they returned to Winnipeg by the Mackenzie, Great Slave, and Athabasca rivers
to near Edmonton, and thence here.

I have the honour to be, sir, your obedient servant,
JOHN SCHULTZ.

The Hon. the Minister of the Interior, Ottawa.

Sioux FALLS, DAKOTA, lst Decemnber, 1889.

SIR,-In accordance with your request, we have looked over the series of interroga-
tions relative to the resources of the Great Mackenzie Basin, and herewith beg leave to
contribute our mite of information pertaining thereto.

Hoping it may be of some little use to the Committee.

We are, sir, your obedient servants,

GEORGE ELMORE,
R. H. ARMSTRONG,
M. P. ELMORE.

DECEMBER 1st, 1889.
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2nd Question.

On account of the extreme frosts during winter months, none of the smaller rivers
in the basin of the Mackenzie are navigable, but during the summer the Mackenzie is
navigable all the season, as are also the Great Slave, Athabasca, Peace and Fraser rivers.

The current varies in the different rivers, the Fraser having the most rapid current,
being about 4!, while the Peace and Great Slave rivers will average not more than 2, and
the Mackenzie 2! miles per hour.

The Mackenzie can be navigated by steamers drawing 5 feet of water, and also, the
Great Slave River from Fort Smith down to Great Slave Lake; but as• the other rivers
are shallow in many places, it would require vessels of less draught, not more than
18 or 20 inches.

For the Mackenzie and Slave rivers from Fort Smith to the Arctic Ocean, a side
wheeler, would be the most suitable vessel, while for the other rivers, a stern wheeler,
would answer best.

No 3.

It seems to us the best way to open up the Mackenzie for traffic would be a line of
steamers from Vancouver to the mouth of the Mackenzie, connecting with steamers on
the Mackenzie plying between the mouth of that river and Fort Smith, there being there
about 20 or 25 miles of river impassable for steamers on account of rapids, which could
be passed by railroad in a distance of from 16 to 20 miles, connecting there with stern
wheelers plying between Fort McMurray and head of Fort Smith rapids.

After leaving Fort McMurray coming south, there are a number of rapids covering
a distance of about 80 miles, impracticable for steamers of any kind ; navigable at pre-
sent only for small boats carrying from 10,000 to 20,000 pounds. In our opinion, it
would be possible to make these rapids navigable for flat bottomed steamers up to the foot
of Grand Rapids, by removing the rocks and blasting out channels; at the Grand Rapid
the difficulties would be greater, and would only be surmounted by a succession of locks,
their being 80 feet or more of fall in a distance of half a mile ; therefore, on account of
these obstructions, in our opinion the better plan would be a railroad from Fort
McMurray to the head of Grand Rapid, connecting there with steamer, which would ply
between the Athabasca landing and that point, thence by rail connecting with Canadian
Pacific Railroad at Calgary, a distance of 300 hundred miles. Again a railroad could be
extended from the Athabasca landing to the Peace River at the junction of Smoky River
by way of Lesser Slave Lake, a distance of not more than 350 miles, connecting there
With steamers that could ply from the head of Fort Smith rapids to this point, a dis-
tance of about 600 miles, with the exception of one obstruction, the falls and rapid close
to Little Red River, impassable for steamers a distance of about 3 miles, thereby making
uninterrupted connection with this one exception, which could be overcome by 3 miles
of railroad, or with a succession of locks.

Ko. 4.
The Athabasca and Great Slave Lakes are navigablefor the steamers that would be

Used for making the foregoing connections.

No. 5.

We have already mentioned steamers suitable for navigating the Mackenzie River,
and, in our opinion, they could descend that river early enough, and ascend it late enough
to permit of about three months fishing at or near the mouth of the river, if such steamers
could be used for fishing purposes ; but as for building whaling or sealing crafts to
descend the Mackenzie, in our opinion, it would not be practicable, as there is a shallow
extending across the Mackenzie about 50 miles above Fort Good Hope, which would not
allow vessels of so great a draught to pass.

18-31 35
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No. 6.

The Athabasca is navigable for vessels drawing 30 inches of water 10 miles above
the mouth of the Clearwater, and steamers of that draught can run that distance. The
nature of the obstructions are a number of rapids already mentioned in reply to question
No 2.

No. 7.

There are no affluents below the Clearwater navigable, and the Clearwater is only
navigable for steamers about 40 or 50 miles. The Athabasca River is navigable for
steamers to its mouth.

No. 8.

The river from Lake Athabasca to the head of Fort Smith rapids is more or less
rocky, but there are no obstructions, and after leaving the foot of the rapids is a splendid
river for steamers all the way to the mouth of the Mackenzie.

No. 9.

We know nothing of the Liard River, except by hearsay.

No. 10.

The Peace River is a fine river for navigation from the Athabasca Lake up as far as
Fort Hudson's Hope, or the Rocky Mountain Cannon, a distance of about 700 hundred
miles. with the one exception, already mentioned in question No. 3-the falls and
rapids near Little Red River. From Hudson's Hope, a distance of about 15 miles,
there are a succession of rapids and falls impassible for any kind of craft, even canoes,
but after leaving this point, the river is navigable for a distance of about 70 miles to the
confluence of the Parsnip and Findlay's branch of the Peace River for small boats carry-
ing from 10,000 to 15,000 pounds, by making portages at several places where there are
rapids difficult to pass with loaded boats. The Findlay's branch flowing from the north
is navigable only for small boats, as is also the Parsnip flowing froi the south, both join-
ing their waters at this point.

Nos. Il and 12.

The Mackenzie River is navigable from Great Slave Lake to the Arctic Ocean for
steamers drawing 5 feet of- water, and has an average current of about 3 miles per
hour. It is fron ý a mile to 21 miles wide.

About 50 miles above Fort Good Hope there is a shallow or reef extending across
the river, and from soundings taken on board the Hudson Bay Company's steamer
"Wrigley " on the 28th of August, 1889, there was only one fathom in the shallowest
place, however, a channel could be cleared out to the depth of 9 or 10 feet at a small
outlay.

No. 13.

Athabasca Lake is a beautiful lake about 100 miles long and 20 wide, navigable for
steamers of any size, abounding with fish of different kinds, white-fish being the most
numerous, pike, pickerel, sucker and trout, some of the latter fish attaining a very large
s1ze.

The shores are generally rocky and barren, with little vegetation, and not at all
suitable for agriculture.

No. 14.

Great Slave Lake, like the Athabasca in some particulars, is different, however, in
many ways, it being much larger for one thing, and more straggling in appearance; the
islands much more numerous and larger than those of the Athabasca Lake. It is suit-
abe for navigation, and steamers with any ordinary draught can ply on it with safety.
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The shores for the most part are rocky, but there are many good harbours ; very little
vegetation, and like the Athabasca, not at all adapted for agriculture. Fish the same as
in the Athabasca Lake with the addition of the 'Inconnu,' or unknown fish, and called
by some the 'Artic Salmon' and like the salmon of the Pacific coast, ascend the river in
summer until stopped by some obstruction which they cannot surmount-the Fort Smith
Rapids being the first and only obstruction on their journey from the sea up to that
point, and above these rapids they have never been found.

Nos. 15, 16, 17 and 18.

There are three steamers now running on the Athabasca and Mackenzie Rivers,
viz :-Stern-wheel steamer "Graham," plying between Fort McMurray and Fort Smith,
screw steamer "Wrigley " plying between Fort Smith and Peel River, and the stern-
wheel steamer "Athabasca," launched at Athabasca landing, 5th July, 1888. This
steamer made several successful trips during the summer f rom the Athabasca landing to
the head of the Grand Rapid, a distance of about 165 miles, also, up the Athabasca
to the confluence of the Little Slave River, a distance of about 70 miles from the landing.

The attempt to ascend the Lesser Slave River was abandoned at that time, the
water being so very low, but it is thought by practical men that the steamer can be taken
up the river and across the lake.

The steamer " Graham " has been running from Lake Athabasca to Fort Smith and
up to Fort McMurrav since the summer of 1885, and doing good service. The steamer
" Wrigley " plys the' waters of the Mackenzie, the Peel River, Great Slave Lake and
Great Slave River up to Fort Smith Rapid, drawing from 5 to 6 feet of water when
loaded, and always doing very satisfactory work.

No. 19. No.

No. 20. Don't know.

No. 21.

The depth of snow that falls in the Mackenzie river district is from 18 inches to 21
feet generally. In the Peace River district the fall of snow is greater, and as for the
Fraser River country, we have often seen from 4 to 6 feet of snow on the level. Last
summer was unusually dry, there being little or no rain in any portion of the Mackenzie
basin, but usually the rain fall is quite sufficient for crops in that portion of country
where crops are grown.

No. 22.

In any part of the Mackenzie basin that we are acquainted with, the frost pene-
trates from 4 to 8 feet, and without doubt in some places even more.

Nos. 23, 214 and 25.

The barren grounds get their name from the fact of their being barren and unpro-
ductive, there being no vegetation, and mostly a rocky and swampy country, destitute of
timnber.

b No. 26.

We know of a certainty of potatoes being grown at Fort Good Hope on the Mac-
kenzie River, and we have eaten new potatoes at Dunvegan on the Peace River on the
15th July, as large as a coffee cup, in fact, barley, potatoes and other vegetables grow
abundantly at Fort Vermilion and Dunvegan on the Peace River.

No. 27.

We have seen good wheat grown at Chipewyan in small quantity. At Vermilion
and Dunvegan, wheat will mature perhaps three years out of five.
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No. 28.

In no part of the Mackenzie Basin have we seen corn mature.

No. 29.

As a rule they plant and sow at Vermillion and Dunvegan from the 15th to the
20th of May. At Athabasca a little later.

No. 30.

There is a species of wild flower that comes in soine parts of the north with the going
of the sriow, but as a rule we count the opening of the spring with the breaking up of
the rivers, which happens from the 5th to the 25th of April, and in some cases later.

Nos. 31 and 32.

From the 25th of August to 25th of September, wheat, barley, oats and potatoes.
Along the Peace and Mackenzie Rivers there are very few gooseberries or strawberries,
but the saskatoon grows very abundantly on some portions of Peace River, and ripens
from the 26th of July to the 5th of August.

No. 33.

As a rule, sufficient rain falls for the crops that are growing. There are exceptions
to this rule. It does not get very warm in June, but July and August are extremely so,
and the mosquitoes are almost intolerable.

No. 34. Yes sometimes.

No. 35. Generally local.

No. 36.

Judging f rom what we have seen in other new countries, should think so.

No. 37.

There is less rain as a rule early in summer than later on.

No. 38.

Beautiful ; in fact the pleasantest part of the year.

Nos. 39 and 40.

There is the upland, short prairie hay, the low land swamp hay and pea vine, all in
abundance.

No. 41. Yes, more or less.

Nos. 42 and 43.

In the portions of the country we are acquainted with, there is loam, clay and sand.

No. 44.
Throughout the Peace River country, there is a large percentage of it fit for pastur-

age, and would be a good stock country were it not for the long winters.

No. 45.

One of the most healthy climates in the world.

No. 46. None that we know of.
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Nos. 47 and 48.

As a rule in all the rivers we have spoken of, ice begins to run from the 1st to the
5th of November, and breaks up in the spring from the 5th to the 25th of April, in
Some cases later.

The lakes are all much later in opening.

Nos. 49 and 50.

In the Peace River country.

No. 51.

At quite a number of places on the Peace River with very good results.

No. 52. We think not.

No. 53.
The Moose and Cariboo are to be found throughout the Athabasca, Peace and

Mackenzie River countries. There are a few wood Buffalo still, ranging about one
hundred miles west of Fort Smith somewhere between there and Buffalo Lake. The
Musk Ox inhabits what is known as the barren lands on the Northern shores of Great
Slave Lake. Elk, there are none that we know of.

No. 54.

The fur-bearing aninals mentioned in this question are not nearly so numerous as
formerly, particularly beaver. Some seasons Lynx are very numerous and other seasons
very scarce. This is accounted for by the abundance or scarcity of Rabbits. Lynx are
caught by snares or traps. The different species of Fox are caught by steel traps.

The other small fur-bearing animals mentioned, are caught by means of wooden and
steel traps. Beaver are both trapped and shot.

No. 00.

The Hudson Bay Company can give the best answer to this question.

Nos. 56 and 57.

The most numerous are the White fish; nearly all the lakes abound with them.
They are caught with nets. The Trout in the large lakes are plentiful, and are taken
sometimes in the white fish nets, but generally by hooks. The Pike, pickerel and ling
or losh are taken by both hooks and nets. The sucker by net, as it does Aot take bait.
The inconnu are taken by net. They come from the sea up the river as far as Fort
Smith. There is also another fish in the Mackenzie,-the Herring, taken in large quan-
tities at Fort Norman. It is a very good fish, resembling the salt water herring. They
have been taken as far up the river as Fort Simpson, but not so plentiful. They are
taken by net.

Nos. 58 and 59.

No. 60.

There is spruce and tamarac. Spruce can be got of fair size, say two feet; Tamarac
flot so large.

No. 61.

It is a well known fact that Salmon ascend the Fraser River from the Pacifie in
great numbers, and continue their course to the very head waters thereof. There are
several rivers emptying into the Fraser from the west, up which the salmon also ascend
(one deriving the name of " Salmon River" from the fact of there being so many of
them found therein.)
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About twenty miles to the west, and three miles to the north of the confluence of
these rivers, is Summit Lake, accessible by land portage of three miles from Salmon
River. The waters of this lake flow to the Arctic, while that of Salmon River flows to
the Pacific.

Now, in our opinion, it would be quite an easy matter to transport the live salmon
f rom the Salmon River across this three mile portage into Summit Lake, and from thence
the spawn would have an uninterrupted journey to the Arctic Ocean, thereby making a
certainty of having the true salmon in the Arctic as well as in the Pacific Ocean. Those
salmon, after attaining the proper age, no doubt would follow the instincts of nature
and ascend the Great Mackenzie up as far as the Fort Smith Rapids ; not being able
to pass these rapids or falls, would naturally spawn and die, it being a well known
fact that the old salmon never return to the sea, the spawn taking their place, and in
like manner visit the sea, pass the allotted time allowed by nature, then ascend the
river and like their predecessors, spawn and die.

At the present time there are a number of canneries at New Westminister, on the
Fraser, for the purpose of canning the salmon, and they are shipped from there to all
points of civilization. There are also several large canning establishments at Astoria,
on the Columbia River, these being the largest probably in the world. They add a
great source of revenue to the country, being a very profitable industry in themselves.

No. 62.
Should the country ever become settled, what timber is to be found there would be

utilized for home consumption, but do not think there is sufficient quantity for export.

Nos. 63, 64 and 65.

To be found in all muskegs in the country. The Indians use it sometimes when
they can get no other tea.

No. 66. Very poor indeed.

No. 67.

Gold is to be found in small quantities on the banks of the Peace River. Sulphur
is to be found on Great Slave Lake and on Smoky River. Salt is to be found in large
quantities on the Salt River, which empties into the Slave River twenty miles below
Fort Smith. Petroleum and Asphaltum are found on the Athabasca River. Gypsum is to
be found on Peace River near Little Red River.

Nos. 68 and 69.

The barron lands might contain mineral but have never been explored, and think
it advisable that Government should make an appropriation for that purpose.

Nos. 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76 and 77.

In our opinion, the natural Pitch of the Athabasca River will become very value-
able, as the country is developed, and ways and means of traffiic is established.

No. 78.

As to the quantity, it would seem from outward appearances to be very great, for
there are large hills of it in many places along the banks of the river, especially in or
near the rapids.

No. 79.

If Petroleum were to be discovered in large quantities, we are of the opinion that
the discovery would be in the immediate vicinity of the Pitch banks, and if traffic were
opened by means of railroad connecting with steamers, as we have already suggested, it
would naturally pass through, or close to, the Pitch or Petroleum country, thereby being
easy of transportation by these means.



Sioux FALLS, DAKOTA, 15th December, 1889.

Hon. Lieut. Governor SCHULTZ, Winnipeg, Manitoba.

DEAR SIR,-We have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter 14th
December. In reply we would say we have no exact knowledge of the depth of water
at any of the sea outlets of any of any of the estuary branches of the Mackenzie, but
would presume, without doubt, there necessarily must be one main branch, and further
do not apprehend there would be any difficulty in finding and navigating this one main
channel with river boats, such as we have already mentioned, viz:-

Side Wheelers. We may say the side wheeler is better adapted for navigation on
the Mackenzie for the reason: In the first place, they require much less depth of water
than a propellor, and as already mentioned in question No. 5, there is a shallow extend-
ing across the Mackenzie about fifty miles above Good Hope.

Secondly.-They are better able to stand a sea with less strain on machinery,
especially steam pipes (which, necessarily, are long between boiler and engine aboard
stern wheeler) and oftentimes during wind a heavy sea is to be encountered on the Mac-
kenzie as well as on Great Slave Lake. Therefore, a side-wheel steamer of substantial
build and powerful machinery, with a capacity of say, seventy or eighty tons, in our
opinion would be the size and style of craft suitable for navigation in-the above-mentioned
waters.

As for kind and tonnage of craft f rom Vancouver, would say the ordinary sea-going
vessel of about five hundrèd tons, with suitable protection in case of an encounter with
ice.

We know very well, by about sixteen years of experience, the time and .cost of get-
ting into and out of the Mackenzie River country. The time, necessarily, would be
about four months, and the probable cost of a boat lead line survey of the different
mouths of the Mackenzie Estuary about $2,500 or $3,000.

We are, sir, your obedient servants,
(Signed) GEORGE ELMORE,

R. H. ARMSTRONG,
M. P. ELMORE.

Answers from R. MacFarlane, Chief Factor Hudson Bay Company, Fort St. James,
Stuart's Lake, N4ew Caledonia District, British Columbia.

SERIEs A.-RELATING TO NAvIGATION AND CoMMUNICATION.

The following answers refer to the principal portion of the Great Mackenzie Basin
embraced within the boundaries of the Hudson Bay Company's Districts of English
River, Athabasca, Peace River and Mackenzie River, while the information thus given
is chiefly derived from personal observation:

2. During a good stage of water, it is believed that a snall steamer would be able
to navigate the entire distance (200 miles) from the southern extremity of Green Lake
to several miles beyond " Bull's House," Rivière La Loche, on the recently used Winni-
peg Transport Supply route to the far north, by way of Carlton and Portage La Loche.
Information in regard to the navigable lakes and rivers of the region under investiga-
tion will appear separately further on.

3. A railway from Edmonton to the Athabasca Landing (90 miles); a narrow gauge
line from Grand Rapid to Fort McMurray, a distance of about 50 or 60 miles, and the
building of a tramway (16 miles) from Smith Landing to Fort Smith, would afford con-
tinuous steam (by rail and boat) communiçation between Montreal and the lower
Mackenzie River during the season of navigation. The employment of dynamite in
effecting a passage over the chutes on Peace River, would open it up to navigation by
steamers for upwards of 700 miles, while some improvements on the stream issuing from
Lesser Slave Lake and the conversion of the existing waggon into a railroad, from the
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end of the latter to Smoky River, would further similarly connect Peace River with the
North-West and old Canada. A central, or better still a northern transcontinental line
of railway to Fort Simpson on the Pacific by the Pine or Peace River Pass, would doubt-
less have an important bearing on the future of the entire region. A railway from
Churchill to Fond du Lac, Athabasca, would, however, afford another and probably
for a part of the year the cheapest and most direct way of transport with Europe.

4. The larger lakes of the aforesaid districts on the line of communication, such as
the La Crosse, Lac Claire, Buffalo, La Loche, Athabasca, Lesser and Great Slave Lakes,
are all well adapted for steam navigation; while those known and supposed to be thus
inaccessible by water, may be mentioned the Great Bear Lake, the Reindeer, Wollaston,
La Biche, Cree, Trout, Simpson, Colville and Petitot, with many others of lesser size.

5. From the published accounts of the Arctic explorations by Hearne, Mackenzie,
Franklin, Richardson, Simpson, Rae, Pullen, McClure, Collinson and Anderson, as well
as from Esquimaux report and a little personal experience, I have been long of the
opinion that five or six weeks is about the average time during which the shores of
Northern Anerica might be annually coasted by properly constructed steamers, say
from Point Burrow to the Mackenzie and from the latter to the estuary of the G'reat
Fish River, not always continuously, but with occasional interruptions by ice. A late
spring and inclement summner, conjoined with strong northerly or easterly winds, would
doubtless adversely affect the navigation, while at the same time, at certain points, mnost
seasons and under favourable conditions, sinaller craft might reckon on having even two
nonths and upwards of sufficiently clear water for sealing and' whaling operations. In
the foregoing connection, however, I would point out that Franklin, in 1820, was
obstructed by ice on his first expedition to the eastward of the Coppermine River, and
again, in 1826, at Return Reef on his way to Point Barrow. In 1837, Simpson could
not get further west by water than Boat Extreme, 30 miles east of that point ; and
although Pullen and Hooper succeeded in taking two of the " Plover's " boats from
Escholtz Bay to Forts Norman and impson, Mackenzie River, in the autumn of 1849,
yet they were unable to get beyond Cape Bathurst, to the eastward of the Mackenzie,
in an attempt they made the following season to cross over to Bank's Land-they
missed seeing H.M.S. " Investigator," commanded by Captain McClure-and the party
again wintered at Fort Simpson, and proceeded to England, in 1851, by the company's
old transport route via Portage La Loche, Norway House and York Factory, Hudson's
Bay. McClure wintered in Prince of Wales Straits and next year reached Mercy Bay,
where he was subsequently (1854) obliged to abandon his ship, and she may possibly be
still there. In 1851 Captain Collinson, in H.M.S. " Enterprise," wintered near the
aforesaid Strait, and the year after at Cambridge Bay. Returning in 1853, he could
not, owing to the ice, get further west that season than Camden Bay. In 1855,
Anderson encountered much ice at Point Ogle, and was unable, with his birch bark
canoes, to cross Simpson's Strait to King William Island, and had to retrace his steps
up Back's Great Fish River. On the other hand, although Dease and Simpson failed
to get beyond Cape Alexander, east of Coronation Gulf, in 1838, yet they not only
managed to make a successful boat voyage to lMontreal and King William's Islands the
following summer, but also to pass their starting point (Fort Confidence, Great Bear
Lake) and get back to winter on the Mackenzie. Thomas Simpson left Fort Simpson
on 1st December, 1839, and reached Fort Garry about the middle of Febrnary, 1840.
Four months later he perished miserably, and the reniains of this able Arctic explorer
have since reposed in an unknown and ,unhonoured grave at St. John's Cemetery,
Winnipeg. In 1851, Dr. Rae was equally fortunate in navigating the same seas, and
penetrated to within 80 miles of the position in the Victoria Strait pack ice, in which
the Franklin ships " Erebus " and " Terror " had been abandoned by their unfortunate
crews in April, 1848. Rae's men also returned, via the Coppermine River and Great
Bear Lake to Big Island, at the head of Mackenzie River, while the doctor himself pro-
ceeded to England by way of Fort Garry and New York.

6. During the navigable season of the years 1884, 1885 and 1886, the steamer
"Grahame " repeatedly ascended and descended (with difficulty in places owing to
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extreme low water) the Clear Water River for 60 miles above its outlet at Fort
McMurray. In August, 1885, she made one trip to the foot of the Mountain Rapid, 8
miles above that post. It has, however, been the opinion of some experienced steamboat
men who have seen them, that certain existing obstructions in the Athabasca River
rapids could be removed, probably at enormous cost, so as to admit of steam navigation
from McMurray to a considerable distance above the mouth of the stream which issues
from Lesser Slave Lake. Last year (1888) the new stern-whaler " Athabasca " experi-
enced no difficulty on any of her trips between Grand Rapid and the aforesaid stream.

7. Since 1884 the Athabasca River has been navigated by the steamer " Grahame"
from Fort Chipewyan to Fort McMurray. If it were necessary, probably one or two of
its principal affluents, Red, Tar and Moose, might be ascended for some distance by a
steam launch.

8. The Athabasca River traverses the western end of Lake Athabasca, but f rom its
outlet there to its confluence with the Peace, some 20 miles below, it is called Rivière
des Roches, after which the united waters are known as the Slave River, to its embou-
chure in Great Slave Lake. Smith Landing, 100 miles from Fort Chipewyan, is the
northern terminus of the - Grahame's " steamboating on Slave River, and she annually
begins operations thereon early in June, and has made one or two trips as late as the
middle of October. Between said Landing and Fort Smith there is a good waggon road
16 miles in length ; the intervening portion of the Slave River, however, is full of rapids
and impassable for a steamer. From Fort Smith to Great Slave Lake and parts beyond,
the propeller " Wrigley " lias been running since 1886. Its principal tributary, Salt
River, is of little account as a navigable stream.

9. During the spring and summer freshets, I believe a stern-wheeler would be
able to navigate the Liard River by its western branch for a short distance above Fort
Liard, and by its eastern, for many miles above Fort Nelson. It has several affluents,
more than one of which (Nahany, &c.), may possibly be navigable for some distance.
I may here remark that as the Athabasca, Peace, Slave, Liard, Mackenzie and certain
other rivers have been recently explored by Dominion Surveyors, I need not therefore
give, details which their report will doubtless convey in a more comprehensive and
reliable form, regarding their depth, velocity, length and general character, etc.

10. The Peace River receives numerous tributaries in its course, the Red, Smoky
and Pine being the chief ; but none of them are navigable, except, perhaps, by light
draught steamers at high water. On the west of the Rocky Mountains, however, the
confluent streams (Parsnip and Findlay) which there form the Peace, are said to be
thus annually adapted for navigation, the former for some fifty, and the latter for over
one hundred miles above the forks. It is also supposed that a passage could be made
at the Chûtes, below Vermilion, which would render the Peace River practicable for
steamers of even larger size than the " Grahame," f rom Hudson's Hope to its outlet, a dis-
tance of fully 750 miles. The "Grahame" bas repeatedly ascended the Peace to the
falls, by way of Quatre Fourches River.

11. Except at the rapids in low water, the Beaver River, I should say, was navi-
gable from Lac LaCrosse for a considerable distance above the stream which connects
it with Green Lake; but although some of the lakes through which the English or
Churchill River flows on its way to Hudson's Bay, are suitable for steam navigation, yet
as the river is much obstructed in many parts between, there is really no very lengthy
or continuous stretch of good water on the route in question.

I 2. The propeller " Wrigley " lias clearly demonstrated that steain navigation in
summer is perfectly feasible for the great distance (1,300 miles) which separates Fort
Smith, on Slave River, from Fort McPherson, on Peel's River. The noble Mackenzie
River is, on its course from Great Slave Lake to the Arctic Ocean, the recipient of the
Waters of numerous affluents, some of them of considerable size, viz: the Liard, Bear
or Franklin, and the Peel. The Franklin is said to be impracticable of ascent by a
Steamer to its source in Great Bear Lake; but the Peel's River is supposed to be navi-
gable for a long way to the southward of Fort McPherson ; and no doubt several of the
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other streanis, such as the Trout, Nahany, Gravoir and Rabbitskin, etc., are, more or
less, passable by small light draught steamers.

13. Lake Athabasca, except at its west end during low water, is deep and navi-
gable for steamers of a large class. The country on the south shore of the lake is, in
many parts, sandy ; and while it is for some distance generally level and fairly well
covered with pitch and scrub pine, spruce, tamarac, birch and willow, etc., there are
some extensive marshy plains. The Wood Carriboo is frequently met with on the
south, but rarely on the north side of the lake. The northern shores are very rocky
and not well timbered. Iron and other minerals, in all probability, exist in that
quarter, and may one day receive due attention. Trout, pike, pickerel, methy and white
fish, etc., also abound throughout the lake ; but I have heard it stated that since the
"Grahame " hegan to ply in the vicinity of the fisheries of the post and missions near
Fort Chipewyan, as well as on Quartre Fourches River, the annual catch of fish has
perceptibly diminished.

14. Great Slave Lake is a much larger body of water than the Athabasca, and is
now annually traversed by the steamer "Wrigly." The surrounding country, except in
the direction of Fond du Lac, is tolerably well timbered, particularly along some of the
rivers (Buffalo and Hay, etc.) which disembogue into the southern end thereof. The
trout and white fish are somewhat larger and of rather better quality than those of Lake
Athabasca. The Inconnu (Samno Mackenzie) abound in this lake, and also in the
Mackenzie, and on the Slave River to the foot of the " rapids of the drowned," one
mile above Fort Smith. Its flesh is much inferior to that of the true salmon ; but
when taken on the Lower Mackenzie and Anderson Rivers, it is firm and rich; but still
less palatable than good whitefish. Coal tar, suitable for boat-building purposes, is
abundant on the north, and sulphur is far from scarce on the south side, of Great Slave
Lake. Other economic minerals may yet be discovered in the vicinity, particularly in
the large bays of Fond du Lac.

15. I have never been to Great Bear Lake ; but I know that excellent trout, white
and other northern fish are to be had in plenty in its waters. The fresh water herring
(Coregonus Lucidus) also abounds. It is similar to that of the Mackenzie and equally
fine. Whilst a resident of Fort Simpson, Mackenzie River District, we received in
March, 1867, a very large and splendid trout weighing, I think, 70 lbs., which had
shortly before been caught in Bear Lake, east of old Fort Franklin. The lake is very
deep and clear, and ice is said to be seldom wholly absent thereon for much more than
two months out of the twelve !

16. A thorough exploration of the Mackenzie Basin would probably determine the
existence of more than one sheet of water, whose area would fully equal that of Lesser
Slave Lake. The Simpson, Petitot and Colville, lying to the north of Great Bear Lake;
the Pio-Nono and Taché on the west side thereof ; and Lac LaMartre to the north-west
of Great Slave Lake, and many others of a lesser size, besides those laid down in maps,
all contain trout, white, jack and other fish. During winter, and also at other periods
of the season, numbers of Indians find subsistence in these waters, as well as on many
of the rivers and streams which, among other fish, also contain lots of Poisson Bleu
(Back's Grayling) of various sizes-and on a few of the former, the Hudson Bay
Company sometimes establish fisheries to supplement the food requirements of their
northern trade posts. Scarcely any of those lakes, however, are accessible by steam,
owing to the obstructions in the rivers which connect several of thein with the great
lines of communication with Southern Canada.

17. During the summer of most seasons, seagoing steamers drawing 6 feet of water
and upwards would be able to navigate the Mackenzie from above its mouth to Great
Slave Lake. It is doubtful, however, if the sandbar shallows of the Delta would admit
of the entrance of craft of that draught ; and a similar difficulty would meet them at
the outlet of Slave River, although once over them, they would probably be able to
reach Fort Smith.

18. The Hudson Bay steamers now employed on the Athabasca River are both
sternwheelers. The " Grahame," which annually runs between Fort McMurray and the
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Smith Landing, Slave River, and on Peace River to the Chûtes, is 131 feet long and
241 feet wide, with 4 feet depth of hold, and a carrying capacity equal to tons.
The " Athabasca," which runs between Grand Rapids and Slave Lake post is feet
in length, feet wide, depth of hold, and of tons. The propeller "Wrigley "
is feet long, 14 feet wide, 7 feet depth of hold, and tons register. She runs
between Fort Smith and the several posts on the Mackenzie River, and to Fort
MePherson, Peel's River, and also Fort Rae, on Great Slave Lake.

19. I know nothing froin personal observation of the West Coast of Hudson's Bay.
I passed through the Straits and Bay in the " Prince of Wales," one of the company's
ships, and landed at York Factory on 18th August, 1852. Some of the passengers,
however, had previously gone ashore and spent an hour or two on the Barren shores of
Hudson Straits and Southampton Island.

20. Under Question 16, I have given a little information regarding the lakes of the
Mackenzie Basin; but those lying betwixt it and the West Coast of Hudson's Bay, to-
gether with the Coppermine, Back and Great Fish Rivers, &c., are more or less described
by Hearne, Franklin, Richardson and Back. On the Rev. Abbé Petitot's niap will also
be found numerous lakes and rivers, many of which I had seen and partly navigated in
summer and walked over in winter, between 1857 and 1866. The course of rivers and
the configuration of lakes appearing thereon, which have been based on Indian report,
are not, however, as accurately laid down as those observed and delineated by this able
and enterprising missionary traveller. As an instance in point, I nay state that the
river which he has kindly named after me, and traced as falling into Liverpool Bay, is,
in niy opinion--who have crossed it repeatedly on my way between Fort Anderson and
Franklin Bay--no other than the Wilnot Horton of Richardson, which discharges itself
into the Arctic Sea on the east side of Cape Bathurst. Richardson states that he found
driftwood piled on the shores at the mouth of the Wilmot Horton river in latitude 70
N. longitude 126° W., which seemed to prove that it flowed through a wooded country.
Now, as we met but one stream flowing to the Polar Ocean between the Anderson
River and Franklin Bay; and, as there are no woods except the few clumps of stunted
spruce referred to in reply 25--to the North, or for a considerable distance to the South
of said crossing, I believe it can be no other than the Wilmot Horton, having its source
to the eastward of the eastern branch of the Anderson River. Extracts from the nar-
rative of my first voyage to the Anderson in 1857 will shortly be published, and to them
I would beg to refer for further information regarding the country between Fort Good
Hope and that river, together with some of its tributaries, &c.

21. I should not feel justified in designating the region under review as rainy,
although the rainfall during some seasons is certainly greater than in others, and a
Similar remark will apply to the snow of winter. The general average depth of the latter
in the Athabasca, Peace and Mackenzie River districts, varies between one and one-half
and soinetimes three feet on the level. I have, however, occasionally in voyaging found
the snow late in the season in some places below, as well as above the indicated figures.

22. The penetration of frost into the ground varies according to the nature of the
soil-the depth of protecting snow in winter, and its exposure to the sun's rays in spring.
Sone moss covered and other sheltered tracts, however, remain to a great extent per-
mnanently frozen at a short depth below the surface. This subject has latterly become
a miatter of deep interest, and it is on occasion of enquiry like the present, that old fur-
traders too late regret the many unused opportunities they have had for acquiring and
recording information whieh often seemed commonplace at the time, but which would
nOW and later prove of much interest to science.

23. I would merely renark under this head that any additional information required
would, perhaps, be more satisfactorily elicited viva voce than by written queries of a
general character.

24. This question would be easier answered by pointing out on a map, the portions
of the country therein referred to.

25. The belt of timber which at Fort Anderson (established 1861 and abandoned
1866) extends for over thirty miles to the eastward, rapidly narrows and becomes a mere
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fringe along the river of that name, and disappears to the northward of the 69th paral-
lel of latitude, is thickly interspersed with sheets of water varying in size fron mere
ponds to small and fair sized lakes, and insignificant streams. Several dry swampy,
mossy and peaty plains were passed before reaching the "Barren Grounds" proper.
The country thence to the height of land between the Anderson and the deep gorge-like
valley, through which the Wilmot Horton river flows, as well as from the crossing at
the latter, to the high plateau which forms the western sea bank of Franklin Bay, con-
sists of vast plains or steppps of a flat and undulating character, diversified by some
small lakes and gently sloping eminences, not dissimilar in appearance to portions of the
North-West prairies, over which I have since travelled. In the former, however, the
ridges occasionally assume a mound-like hilly character from a distance, while one or two
intersecting affluents of the Wilnot Horton, discharge their waters through valleys
along which a few stunted spruce, birch and willow appear at intervals. On the banks
of one of these, near its outlet at the aforesaid " Crossiny," we observed a sheltered
grove of spruce and willows of larger growth, wherein moose and nusk oxen had
frequently browsed. We met nio more spruce, nor any traces of the former animal to
the eastward; and I doubt if ma'ny stragglers range much beyond latitude 690 north.
The greater part of the " Barren Grounds " is every season covered with short grasses,
mosses and small flowering plants, while patches of sedgy and peaty soil occur at longer
or-shorter distances, on which, as well as along the smaller rivulets, river and lake banks,
Labrador tea, crow and a few other berries, dwarf birch and willows, &c., grow. Large
flat spaces also had the early spring honey-combed appearance usually presented by fall
turned over ground; there were few signs of vegetation on these, while some sandy and
many other spots are virtually sterile. Grasses, willows, herries, Labrador tea and one
or two species of sweet-scented flowers were noticed on the shores of the Bay. The
high sea bank in the vicinity of Langton Harbour recedes to some distance, and there is
consequently a large area of rather sloping ground which seened better covered than the
sandy point across, with the remains of the previous season's vegetation--the new had
not yet (end of June) made much progress. Traces of the dark bituminous formation
seen on the Lockhart, Anderson and Ross rivers of the '57 Report, no doubt exist
along the Wilmot Horton River, and the greater part of Franklin Bay, especially to the
north of our camping point. The foregoing " Barrens " are chiefly composed of a peaty,
sandy, clayey and gravelly soil; but stones are rare and rock in situ (limestone) was
encountered but two or three times on the fine of march from the woods to the coast.
The country on the west side of Anderson River below Fort Anderson, is more marshy
in the valley, and so, therefore, more thickly carpeted with grasses, &c., than that of the
east side, where the right bank latterly becomes an entirely denuded chain of high sand-
gravelly peaked hills, having wide ravines more or less declivitous between. A large
tract of marshy flats is said to exist north and south of the Napoleon III channel, as
well as in the vicinity of " Esquimalt Lake." I may remark in passing that quite a lot
of the northern spruce is partially covered with lichens.

26. Barley and potatoes have been grown as far north as Fort Norman in latitude 65°,
and also in Fort Good Hope in ( 6° 16' north. I believe barley and potatoes have also
been raised at old Fort Youcan 66° 30. N. and longitude 145° west; as well as at Fort
Rae, latitude 63° N. and longitude 115° west.

27. At Fort 'Simpson, Mackenzie River, 61° 50' north latitude.
28. The late Mr. William Shaw, of the Hudson's Bay Company, assured me that

Indian cori had ripened on several occasions during his charge of Fort Vermilion, Peace
River, latitude 58° N. ; but it never got beyond the green eating stage at Fort Chipew-
yan in about latitude 59° north.

29. At Fort Simpson, barley sown about the end of May ripens by the 12th and before
the end of August annually. Potatoes are usually put down about the saime time, and
they are taken up before the end of September. A late spring more or less retards the
sowing, as does an unfavourable summer, the growing process up north. At Chipewyan
crops can be put down about a week or ten days earlier, but are not generally reaped
much before those at Simpson.
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30. Some springs are early, others late, as a rule a late fall precedes a late spring
and vice verna, while some have thought they have perceived signs of a cyclic character
in their experience of the northern seasons.

31. Generally from one to two weeks. Vegetation is undoubtedly more rapid in its
progress throughout the Mackenzie Basin than it is in regions further south.

32. Wheat at Chipewyan ripens in about 120 days ; barley, 90 days ; potatoes,
early, 110 days; turnips, gathered after 130 days ; wild strawberries and gooseberries
are ripe in July ; wild raspberries are ripe in August.

33. During the month of June, July and August, fine dry and warm weather
generally prevails more frequently than the reverse-cold and wet. Some months are
occasionally much colder and more rainy than others, in portions of, as well as through-
out the entire region.

34. On the Athabasca and Great Slave Lakes, and on the Peace and Mackenzie
Rivers, as well as in the valleys of the Liard and Clear Water Rivers, several days of
north and north-east gales in June, July and even in August, bring on summer frosts,
which injure growing barley, wheat and potatoes ; nor do crops on islands surrounded by
running water, always escape injury from frost.

35. Summer frosts are occasionaly general, but more frequently local.
36. Settlements are believed to exercise an ameliorating influence on the climate in

their neighborhood.
37. Periodical heavy summer rains are not experienced in the far north, though

we sometimes have one and two, but rarely three, days of almost constant rain in course
of some seasons.

38. September is generally-but not always-a fine weather month, still even at
its worst, a few beautiful days occur. October is usually more or less rainy, and long
before its close it is cold and snowy, according to the situation. Some fine days, how-
ever, are experienced at Chipewyan, on Peace River, and even north of Fort Siimpson
Onl the Mackenzie, in the earlier weeks of October.

39. During very severe cold, trees are often heard to crack with a loud report ; but
whether the longitudinal fractures sometimes observed in trees while being converted
into lumber, had been thus started, instead of being wholly caused by winds, as hitherto
supposed, is more than I can say.

40. In the vicinity of most lakes and streams, as well as in the mnarshy and open
Wood tracts, the wild grasses grow well up north ; but where the soil is sandy or mossy
the growth is very scrubby.

41. The Wild Vetch is met with ; but not abundantly, except on Peace River, in
the Athabasca and Mackenzie River Districts. I do not however, clearly remember
having seen any in the country between Fort Good Hope and the Anderson River.

42. When the winter stock of hay occasionally runs out, scalded willow is eaten by
cattle, but as its continued use makes them dangerously costive, it is not a desirable
article of food. In spring they sometimes browse on the buds and catkins of the willow,
as well as on lichens, and during summer, they, as well as horses seem to enjoy eating the
leaves of willows and other plants.

43. There are large tracts of sand and sandy loam, gravel, clayey and peaty soil, with
rich alluvial islands like that on which Fort Simpson is built, interspersed throughout
the region referred to, which cannot however, be correctly described from a cursory ex-
amination.

44. There is any amount of pasturage, and no doubt immense areas fit for the pro-
duction of the more hardy grains; but I would however, remark in this connection that
whilst travelling over the Canadian Pacific Railway from Quebec to Winnipeg, the
general appearance of many portions of the country along the route, strongly reminded
me of singular tracts traversed otherwise by me in sections, through the great region
Under review.

45. The winter climate of the North and Arctic regions is frequently very rigorous;
but the summers tho' comparatively short, are generally fine and warm, and, as already
stated,'vegetation progresses at a rate unknown in Southern Latitudes. At Fort Ander-
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son 68° north, the summer of 1861 was, on the whole, remarkably warm and favorable,
and also much the finest and driest of the five seasons we spent there. In July 1865
however, the heat on our way back from Franklin Bay was very oppressive, especially the
day before we reached the post. I can truly say that I have but rarely experienced such
great heat, myself and party were fairly prostrated for several hours, while most of them
were unable to respond to the after call to march, and they only rejoined us at our camp
late next morning.

46. A few Grasshoppers have been observed most suminers for inany years in numer-
ous parts of the Athabasca and Mackenzie River; but until the last four or five seasons,
they were not known, or probably were not in sufficient numbers, to attack and injure
growing crops as I understand they have since done, to a certain extent annually at
Providence and Fort Simpson.

47. At Fort Vermilion Peace River, and at Fort Chipewyan Athabasca, the ther-
mometer has, during very severe winters fallen as low as 50°. At Fort Simpson 55°, and
at Good Hope, Mackenzie River, 60° and at Fort Anderson, Anderson River, I knew it to
range for days between 60, and 65°, and on three occasions to descend to even 70° below
zero of Fahrenheit ! January and February are usually the coldest months in the far-
north.

48. Except during the continuance of ice on the water, and after northerly gales in
summer, the larger lakes (Athabasca and Great Slave) doubtless exert some influence in
warding off summer frosts ; but the vegetation in spring on the banks of the larger rivers
at least, (Athabasca, Peace, Slave and Mackenzie) is decidedly earlier advanced than is
the case along, and in the proximity of the most favored (South Western) shores of the
aforesaid lakes. The waters of the Athabasca and Peace Rivers usually break up the
ice at the western end of Lake Athabasca, between the first and middle of May; but the
main ice seldom disappears before the end of June ; and while the same Bay near Fort
Chipewyan, as well as Fond du Lac itself, sets fast before or soon after the beginning of
November annually, yet the intervening body of water is sometimes open for two or even
three weeks later. Great Slave Lake does not freeze up earlier; but it opens later than
the Athabasca, the eastern and northern bays in both cases of course excepted. The
Liard River at Fort Simupson is generally fast by the end of October, and breaks up by
the beginning of May, sometimes a little later, the Mackenzie closes at Simpson between
the tenth and the end of November, and the ice thereon gives way and is broken up by
the disruption of the Liard River. The upper Mackenzie ice comes down about or soon
after the 20th of May. At Fort Good Hope the River freezes up bet ween the end of
October and middle of November, and it breaks up between the middle and the 20th
May, though the ramparts sone ten miles above the Fort are often jammed up and
thus retard the upper ice from passing for a week or ten days later. At Fort Anderson,
I have known the river opposite to and above the post, set fast on two occasions as early
as the tenth of September, and once as late as the tenth of October, whilst the ice usually
disappeared before the end of May, though once as late as the second and tenth of June
respectively.

49. The prevailing winds at Fort Chipewyan are north-east and south-east, one or
two days of the latter or westerly wind, brings on a spell of mild weather, with more or
less of a thaw, and, very rarely through, rain. At Fort Simpson, north-west and south-
east winds prevail during the winter season ; and while the coldest there and elsewhere
are those f rom the north and east a western gale is always followed by a thaw even in
mid-winter.

50. Southerly and westerly, or the so-called " Chinook " winds make themselves more
or less felt over the greater portion of the Mackenzie Basin. Under thier influence, we,
on one occasion, experienced an unprecedented thaw of nearly three days' duration, at
Fort Good Hope, in the month of February, 1855. Comparatively fine and warm
weather is sometimes experienced most winters south, and even to the north, of the
Arctic Circle. But on the other hand, we often have several weeks of protracted cold
weather.
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51. On my way by York boat from Norway House to Mackenzie River, sunner,
1853, I found out by observation ie route and enquiry after my arrival there, that a
number of horned cattle and horses also had been raised, and that fair-sized farms and
gardens had been under cultivation for nany years at the following ludson's Bay
Stations, viz.: At Isle à la Crosse and Forts Chipewyan, Resolution, Vermilion,
Dunvegan, Simpson, Liard, Halkett, Norman and Good Hope. The posts of St. Johns,
Red River, McMurray, Smith, Providence, Wrigley and Nelsoin, had not then been
opened ; but as soon as they were established, gardens were cultivated anid cattle
supplied ; and both subjects have always-but especially since the provision trade began
to fail owing to the migration or scarcity of moose, and the reindeer having also
become irregular in frequenting former fall and winter haunts-received as much
attention as was possible under the former transport system which necessitated the
sumnner employment of all available servants as boatmen. Stock-raising ihas, however,
been fairly successful at Forts Dunvegan, Liard and Chipewyan ; and but for transport
requirements, Smith as well as McMurray might do equally well in this line as beef
providers.

52. During the suninier aid autumn, a limited number of horses and horned cattle
of a hardy race, woukl find adequate pasturage in many parts of the Anderson Barren
Grounds ; but they would all have to be housed for at least six months of the year, and
1 believe great difficulty would be experienceil in securing a sufficiency of provender for
any cmnsiderable nuiber.

53. Car'riboo.-There are two species of Reindeer in the Mackenzie Basin-the
Wood Carriboo which is a permanent resident of the forest and mountains, and the
considerably more nuimerous but smaller barren ground deer, which averagely spends
less than one-half of the year (during winter) in the \voods, and the renaining portion,
on their way to, stay at and return from Arctic Coast, and in the Barren Grounds.
Bands of them, however, frequently remain for weeks on the outer borders of the
voods. Early in February, 1859, I saw about a dozen animals on the Barrens to the
vest of Anderson River, and within 30 miles of Liverpool Bay, while the Esquimaux

assured me that they frequently saw traces of, as well as deer ail seasons and had killed a
few, still closer to the coast. I never observed any earlier than the middle or end of April,
n my subsequent winter visits to that quarter. Both varieties are in prime condition

in the autuimn. After the " rutting " is over the males continue rather lean for several
m1ionths, but the flesh of the females improves until they shed their young the following
Spring. They seldom have more than one fawn at a birth. The Carriboo-eating Indians
annually capture quite a large numnber of reindeer, by means of snares placed at openings
left 011 purpose ailid miles of fencing made in wooded tracts of country, usually
traversed by themi on their spring and autumn migrations. A few male stragglers
generally remain in the outer forest all summer. The skinis of deer which escape attack
by the gadfly are of sone use, but no great value, while the others are scarcely good
enough to convert into habishe or snowshoe netting.

MJusk Ox.-The winter pelt of this animal is valuable, but it is not very numerous
anywhere. During the colder season it usually keeps along the outer edge of the wooded
country ; many, however, sonetimes penetrate thxerein for some thirty or forty miles,
and a few stragglers for a distance of even one hundred miles. They pass the sumimer
in the " Barrens " and on the coast, and although I have occasionally observed a solitary

b y itself, the only lierd of males and females, of various ages, I ever encountered
was one consisting of twenty-two animals, which we met about ten miles to the east-
ward of the Wilmot Horton River on our way back fron the coast in July, 1865. But
1n the autumn of the year, and during the winter, a comparatively large number used to
be met with on the borders of the forest-country to the south-east of Fort Anderson,
while some thirty or forty adult animals were generally killed by the Indians. As the
spring approached, they invariably took their departure for the barren grounds to the
northward. The female usually produces one and sometimes two at a birth.

Wood Bifldo.-They are now very rare, and unless they be legally or otherwise
protected from indiscriminate slaughter, they will soon become extinct. A few animals
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are to be found in parts of the country between Fort McMurray and the Lower Peace
River, and from the latter to the Salt Plains below Fort Smith. The woodland skin is
similar to, but the inner fur is sonewhat finer than of the plain hul'alo. Its flesh is
also excellent eating. We used to receive the meat fresh, of one or two (sometimes
more) animals nost winters during iny residence at (1870 to 1885) Fort Chipewyan.
Occasionally the Indians of Fort McMurray, and more frequently those of Fort Smith,
would kill several animals in course of a season. In the spring of, I think 1879, a
band of twenty buffilo were run lown and slaughtered in deep snow in the vicinity of
Birch Mountain, Lower Athabasca River.

Mloose. -This important food animal is becoming scarce in tracts where twenty
years ago it was very iiunerous, and for which unfortunate circumstance, over hunting
and the resulting consequences, slaughter and migration to other localities are believed
to be chiefly responsible. The dressed skin is valuable for mnaking leather moccasins for
winter use. The female has one and som<etinies two young alnnually in spring. It was
comparatively nunierous both above and below Fort Anderson previous to the establish-
ment of the latter, and niay possibly have becoine so again since its abandonment
upwards of twenty years ago. It is, however, possible that this easily-scared animal
nmay still be sonewhat plentiful in certain sparsely-populated sections of Mackenzie
River. At any rate, on mny way back back from Anderson River in July, 1860, we
came across a veritable preserve of some extent, which lay between the usually hunted
grounds of the Loucheux and Hare Indians of Forts McPherson and Good Hope.
Traces of Moose and Woodland Carriboo, especially the former, were very numerous,
while Black Bears were by no means scarce. Again, for nearly a decade subsequent to
1865, when Fort Nelson (which hai been destroyed by the Indians in 1813) was
re-establislhed near its former site on the eastern branch of the Liard River, Moose were
much more abundant in the adjacent country than they have been ever since.

I/k.-I have never known of any having been seen or shot near the Peace or Hay
Rivers, nor indeed to the north of Forrt McMurray but they are said to be found in the
country to the south of that post.

Wi/d (oat und X1 eep. -Both species have been reported as fairly numerous in spurs
of, as well as in the Rocky Mountains alnmost to the coast. The flesh of the latter is
the nost delicious in the north, and is occasionally brought in by the Nahany Indians
in small quantities, chiefly in a dry state, to the posts which they frequent, viz.
Simpson, Norman, Good Hope and La Pierre's House. The hair covering of the goat
is whitish and of a longer and coarser texture than that of the sheep whose skin greatly
resembles that of the carriboo'; and if the skins of both were converted into leather, it
would probably nearly equal that of the latter in value. One and sometimnes two young
are yearly produced by the full-grown female of both species.

54. Old traders are well aware that the annnal catch of the following fur-bearing
animals, viz. : Fisher, cross, red and silver Foxes, lynx and Martens, is largely affected
by the abundance or scarcity of the rabbit or hare, which generally increase and decrease
in numbers every seven years. There are other species, however, as the Black Bear,
mink, nmusquash, otter and wolverine which ahnost correspondingly beconie numerous
and scarce for a shorter or lInger term, and while the former group undo( ubtedly prey on
the rabbit, we must seek, probably in vain, for satisfactory reasons to account for this
constant or at least very frequent peculiarity in the history of the latter-mentioned
animals. Many Indians assert that martens and lynx (of whom, by the way, not a few
also die off, especially when rabbits are scarce) migrate, as well as most of the rabbits
which are not snared, &c., by Indians or carried off by disease, and, as they are not
uniformly abundant all over the fur-territories, apart fron the fact that they suddenly
appear in localities where they had previously for a season or so been conspicuous by
their absence, there seems to be somne good grounds for the supposition. There are other
circumstances also, such as an unfavourable season for breeding, a scarcity of the
required food, and the destruction by fire of extensive areas of forest, which would of
course, more or less, adversely affect the abundance of these and other species of animals
in certain localities. A very lingering spring, for instance, would compel bears to
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leave their winter " washes " while snow was still on the ground, and thus enable the
Inlians to track and kill more than would otherwise be possible.

Lynx.- This animal is principally captured by snaring ; a few are caught in steel
traps, some are shot and quite a numuber are treed by dogs and secured by shooting. Its
flesh is also an important and much relished article of Indian diet.

Arefic Fox.-It is corninon on the northern coast ; but in seasons when it is most
numerous, a good many are also caught by Indians in steel and wood fall traps in the
bordering wooded sections. When scarce, however, hardly any appear im the latter, and
but comparatively few are secured in the former region, where the Esquimaux take
them chietly in dead fall traps composed entirely of ice blocks. The lue is supposed to
be a variety very rare and far more valuable than the white fox.

]Jack, Silver, Cross and Red Foxes.-These animals also periodically increase and
diminish in numbers; but the finer varieties are by no means very abundant at any time
in the Mackenzie Basin, as a statenient of the yearly catch would prove ; but as a fe,
remnarks in reference to those foxes may possibly be published at an early date, I need
not here repeat them.

Fisher.-Sixty degrees north latitude mnay be safely set down as the northern limit
of this, at onie time, very valuable fur animal, which is, however, far from numerous in
the southern part of the Great Basin ; while the receipt of even one skin at the posts
of Providence, Nelson, Liard and Simpson, is an event of very rare occurrence indeed.
From fifteen to thirty skinîs are traded annually at Fort Resolution, and these all come
from the country to the south of Great Slave Lake.

Wo/erine.-A nost powerful, cunning and destructive animal, and not easily
captured; but a nunber are fortunately taken in wood fall and steel traps, and a few are
also poisoned yearly. He will often break into well-constructed cache. and therefrom
Carry away and conceal at a distance all the meat or fish they may contain, and what
cannot be thus easily disposed of, and even a portion of the foregoing, they will some.
times urinate and otherwise render unfit for human food. They do an immense amount
of damage by destroying martens and other species caught in steel and wood fall traps,
besides breaking down imany hundreds of the latter every hunting season

Otter.-It is more abundant and generally diffused than the two immediately
preceding species; but it is not very numerous in the Mackenzie region. It is usually
caught in steel traps, a few are shot in the water, and now and again the Indians run
down and club an animal on its way over the snow from one sheet of water to another.

Reaver.-If not at all, or but little disturbed, this interesting and valuable animal,
rapidly increases in number. li contirmation of this view, I may mention that several
tracts of country in which the beaver had almost disappeared, in consequence of the
keen opposition whih had for many years existed between the North West and Hudson
Bay Companies, previous to their coalition in 1821, afterwards recovered under the
nursing policy of protection inaugurated by the reorganized fur trading concern. For
the two decades of years which succeeded, each beaver district was annually restricted
to the collection of a certain number of this staple pelt, a course which proved of emiin-
ent service to all concerned. The Indians, thanks to the resulting natural increase,
experienced but little difficulty in securing the required quota of skins; and as their
real wants were then but few, they were no losers by the limit imposed upon them,
especially as they were strongly encouraged to kill and trap all other fur-bearing animals.
It is needless to say that a trade regulated on such wise business principles, led to the best
Possible results. Unfortunately however, the introduction and general use of the silk
hat, gave almost a death blow to the beaver whose average sale price in London for the
following two decades, fell nearly three fourths below the rates which had been realized
for the previous period ! During the decades in question, the Hudson's Bay Company
virtually held a monopoly of the trade of the whole of their chartered and licensed ter-
ritories. The great decline experienced in the value of beaver naturally led the com-

Pany to discourage its capture, in the hope which proved futile that snaller returns
Would augment the demand and enhance prices. In the mneantime, the Marten fortun-
ately for their interests came into fashion, and soon occupied and retained-but for
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little over twenty years, the rank of being the chief staple fur, which had fornierly been
held by the beaver almost uninterruptedly for nearly two centuries. Under the circum-
stances,'the latter animal, of course, continued to flourish in iumber ; but as competi-
tion in the fur trade about this time (1845) appeared at Pembina on the United States
frontier, the hunting of all pelt aninals in that and neighlboring sections received an
impetus which has largely expan(ded anid continued to the present time. In all the pro-
tected districts however, while the utmost attention was given to the trapping of mar-
tens and other fui-s, the Indians were enîcouraged to spare the now unprofitable beaver,
as mtuch as possible, and its annually catch therefore, appreciably declined : but as the
opposition gradually extended its sway east, west and north of Fort Garry, the beaver
was closely huntted, wherever found, while it became impossible to continue limiting its
pursuit in districts where the animal actually swarmed especially after it began to
exhibit a slight tendency to improve in value. Uider these combined influences, the
total quantity of skins received from the whole of their Territories rapidly increased, so
much so inideed, that the Company's Lonidont sales of 1859 (107,196 skins) nearly doubled
those (55,456) of 1853 ! With increasiing opposition and slightly better prices &c.,
the sales of the next seven years (1860 to 1866) averaged 119,319 per annum. Thence
to the transfer of the country to Canada, the quantities thus disposed of for the years
1867, 1868 anîd 1869 respectively, amounted to no less than 172,042, 147,290 and 158,-
119-making a total of 477,451 and an average of 159,150 skins for the three years i

question! For the succeedinîg eight years (1870-7) however, mîarket rates iaviig somte-
what advanced, anl the country having been thrown open to all coners, the London
sales though still remarkably good, declined to 140,047 beaver per annum. J have no
complete statistics of the resuIts of the last eleven years (1878 to 1888 inclusive) ; but
I believe that altho' prices have, on the whole materially improved, the average receipts
of beaver per annum will niot much exceed one hundred thousanid skins, while there is
every reason to fear that future decades are much more likely to exhibit a further con-
tinuous decrease rather than any augmentation iii the general retu-rns of this valuable
fur. Judginig hastily from these premises a stranger would probably conclude that the
Hudsonî Bay Companly was losiiig ground iii Territories--iot so however, their share of
the furs secured by the natives ; is still, as it probaly always will be the " Lions ;" and
their officers are as popular to day, as at anty period in its listory, notwithstanding the
fact, that the Indian is ntow more peculiarly diflicult to manage than formerly. Com-
petitioi is doubtless the life of most branches of business; but it is equally true that if

persisted in it will ultimately prove the death or virtual extinction of the fur trade.
The settlement of the counttry also gradually but surely operates as an importait factor
iii restrictintg the habit of all wild aimials, while I may explain that the advent
of free traders and their presence ni new grouind almost invarialfly has the effect of
giving a very strong impulse to the hunting of all fur-bearing animals in the assailed
quarter, and in a lesser degree also in neighboring grouid -a few years of over antd
indiscriminate huiting at all seasons soon tells adversely, especially oi the poor beaver,
which had previously been to a great exteit preserved under the conîservative and far
reaching policy of the old com nnpany. Largely increased returns result at first front these
extraordinary exertions, and all parties beiefit accordiigly. After a time however, the
scene changes, -for the worse--the beaver gradually, I might say, rapidly diminishes in
numbers ; and, as a matter of fact, this has has hitherto been the invariable conse-
quence of unrestricted tradiing operations iii every attacked fur district in the Ter-
ritories. English River, Athabasca aind Peace River with other districts, have been
abnost ruined thus, and Mackenzie river will shortly follow suit. I doubt if the whole
aggregate beaver catch of the western, northern, southerii a nd Montreal departments in
which the company conduct their trade, will either this or for last year greatly exceed
one half of the combined Hudson Bay aid Lampson Sutntary Sale Lists-say for any
one of the four years of 1867, 1869, 1871 and 1872.

Jfarfen.-As already mentioned under beaver this fine fur-bearing animal was for
many years highly esteemed, and the chief staple skin for export ; but over a dozen
years ago, the fur seal came promptly to the front as the fashionable winter pelt, and
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inarten at once sustained a terrible blow from which it has never since been able to
recover. In fact every subsequent inproveinent, and they have been wonderfully few
aid unimportant, was only a prelude to a still greater decline ; until the average prices
obtained at the London sales of 1888, proved to be the lowest realized during a record
of upwards of two hundred years ? It is very numerous in the Athabasca, Mackenzie
regions somlle season, and it preys on rabbits and lice, &c.

Jlink. The fur of this animal sold remarkably well for the period (some fifteen
years) during which it was ii fashioi and good denanid. It then readily realized prices
at least six fold greater than the obtained average of late years. Although very nunier-
ous in certain parts of the northern and other departments, it is by no neans equally
abun(lant in the ireat Mackeizie Basin. It lives principally on fish.

Ermine.-A generation or so ago, this small pelt was of some value ; but for nany
years it has becoine unprofitable as an article of export -- the prices obtained latterly
being about :3 or 4 cents per skin!

usquas/.-Very numierous some seasons in iarshy tracts, throughout the Dom-
inion ; but as its fur is of comparatively little value, the company have not heretofore
strongly encouraged its capture in the far north, where it is in places quite a>undant
during ml(ost years, although in each decade it is renarkably scarce for two or three sea-
Sons in succession. A great many nusquash are shot ; but the bulk of themn are spear-
ed in their "l washes " on small marsby lakes &c.

/ack Bmr.- This bear is very nuimerous on Peace River ; but is less abundant
along the Athabasca, Slave, Liard and Mackenzie Rivers, and is still more though not
very rare on the Peel, Andetsoni(l and other streams and sections of the Grreat Basin,
while the liglt brown and Cinnainiui varieties thereof are somewhat scarce all over.
The black bear usually produces 2 and 3, and occasionally 4 cubs at a birth ; but the New
Caledonia Indians inforin nie that they have known a few rare cases where the female
has had as many as five ! The young alnost invariably hybernate with thieir mother
for two winters, after which they have to provide accomodation for themselves. She
breeds every third year, while the litter seldom contain more thai one fenale. The
Iidians also state that the finding of a f<etus in the uterus of the mother even when
shot nioniths before the birth period, is alnost unknown in such instances she appears to
abort them iimediately after becoming aware of the approach of danger.

(rizzly Bear. -The grey, whose fur is more or less tipped with silvery white, is
suppîosed to be the northerin representative of the true grizzly of Califoriiia and f'he
soUthieri Rocky Mountains. This bear has frequently two, but very- seldom three
Young ones at a birth, and they also hybernate with their niother for two winters, after
Which they are repulsed aid she associates with a male, and breeds but once in three
years.

Barren Ground -lear (Ursus Arctos, of Richardsou).-This species is stated to
greatly reseible the browin bear of Europe ; and although it is not very comnion, yet it
s soietinies met with in the barrei grounds of the Anîderson and along the shores of
ri'anïklini Bay. It is also said to be an inihabitant of the Rocky Mountain range .of the

Lower Peel and Mackenzie Rivers. We siot a large male in one of the ravines of the
coast bank, Franklin Bay, ani imissed killing 9 or 10 others seen at different tines in
crossing the " Barrens." One and two cubs are usually borne in early spring, and they
are said to continue with the mother until they becone full-grown and set up for them-
Selves.

Polar Bear.-Tliis bear is said to be not very nunerous along the northern coast
and but few skins have been obtained f ron the Esquimaux, while it is the least valuable
of the several species of bear. Although I observed a few white bears on the ice in
Rudson Bay and Straits, I never met a live specinen on ny summer trips to Franklin
Bay, or on the winter journeys to the mouth of Anderson River. The Esquimaux kill
themn by shooting, and occasionally by spearing comme a la bayonette.

55. I have not got the data for giving the amount of shipments of peltries of the
foregoing animals during the last ten years, but I can confidently assert, what is
suSceptible of proof, namely, that they have been considerably below what outsiders

A. 1891



55 Victoria. Appendix (No. 1.) A. 1891

imagine. This is more especially true of the returns of Peace Rivers and Athabasca
Districts, in which, since 1885, opposition has appeared in much greater force than
before ; nor would their united catch, added to the company's, bring the totals for the
three years up to the general average of former outfits. For several years after the
advent of opposition on Peace River, wlen beaver were swarming there, the returnis of
old Athabasca, whiclh took in the wlole of Peace liver to oudson's Hope, rapidly
increased, and then -but not now-always exceeded in bulk and value those of the
more extensive Mackenzie River Districts.

56. For. soile years silseqluent to 1859 ineteorological observations were taken at
several of the northern po.sts, and statements of soie were duly transmiitted to the
Snithsonian Institution at Washington. Fromî the journals kept at the coimipiiv's
stations, weather and otlîer recor ds of interest vould doubtless be gleained, while the
publislied works of General Lefrov and Major Dawsoi contain very valuable iformation
bearî ing on the clinate of the regi11 under consideration.

57. The best aid imost generally diffused fist through out the nuiiii(erous lakes and
rivers of the Mackenzie IasiI, is the Coregonn, ud/-l (whitefisl), and it is quite pleintiful,
especially in the Atliabasca, Great Slave and Great Bear Lakes. In weight in these
waters it ranges between 2 and 4 lIbs., but on sone of the lesser and indeed in several of
the smallest tislh lakes of thie far nortlh, a few are iet witl wlicl attaini to 5, 6 and 7
lbs., and upvards, and their lesh is excellent. Trout of a large size (7 to 50 lbs.)
abouind on the greater ;, but thley are of lesser weight (5 to 25 lbS.) on the smnaller lakes.
Several speckled trout have been caught on the Lower Anderson liver. Jackfislh of
various sizes are plentiful on, most of the lakes- and oniî Clear Lake, which, with Lac
Maniæirawee, are but a continuation of the western end of Lake Athabasca, they oftenl
weigh as much as 20, 25 and 30 lbs. Carp, doré, loche and suckers are present on all
the larger lakes, as well as in most of the snaller sheets of water. Fresh water herring
is abundant in Great Bear Lake, and also in the Lower Mackenzie River, and somne
were obtained by us on the A nderson River. This is also a fish of fine quality and
weighs about 2 lbs. The Loucheux and Haie, Indians catch in nets and dry a large
quanîtity in summer for winiter use. Sone are also thus secured at Fort Norman ; while
a few are caught as high up as Fort Simpson. The best are, however, taken on the
Lower Mackenzie. Back's grayling orl'üon B4u abouids ii mîanly of the streais
falling into the Anderson and iMackenzie, as well as on many others throughout these
regions, where it is frequently met with in various stages of growth, fromn two ouices to
iaturity at 2 ibs. The /Inon nu, as already imentioned, is nunerous in the Mackenzie,

oi Great Slave Lake and on the Slave River to Fort Simiti. It is also plentiful in the
Anderson, which is known to the Intdians as the river of the toothless (Jueoun) fish.
The largest specimen of this fish I ever saw was taken oi Anîderson River within 40
miles of its outlet in Liverpool Bay. I should say it would have weigled about 50 or
60 lbs ; its flesh was white, tirmu and oily. There are n true salmoin in the Anderson
or Mackenzie Rivers, and yet in most of the Aretie streans to the westward of the
latter, and to the eastward of the former, they are said to be very abundanit.

58. The Esquimaux who used to frequent Fort -Anderson succeeded imost seasons
in killing one but seldoni as nany as two large sized Whales, which proved of imnmenvse
value to themn as an article of food. They band together and hunt it, in the inanner
described by Dr. Richardson in his Boat A. S. Expedition. Seals, walruses and water-
fowl are also taken by the Esquimaux in) the way mneitioled ii tlat volume. On mlly
first visit to Franklin Bay on 25th June, 1862, and again about the end of the saime
month ii 1864, we distinctly heard one or two large whales spouting in a lane of open
water which appeared amid the ice-covered sea. We found Langton Harbour alnost
entirely free of ice on each of our summer visits. The daily tides and gales of wind
materially help to break up th.e ice of Langton Harbour and Franklin Bay. The former
is more deeply indented to the eastward than a passing bonat or vessel would be able to
notice. Quite a large number of Seals and a few Walruses were seen basking in the sun
on floating as well as n stationary fields of ice. Althougli a humuan skull and traces of
ancient residences and some weather-beaten rib and other bones of the whale were
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observed at several spots on the shores of the Arcetic Sea, no Esquimaux were iet with
except on the last two of our four (1862, '63, '64 and '65) suunner bird and egg collect-
iig ex p editionis from Fort Andersoii to Fraiklini Bay. Iln the fall of 1863, I requested
a party of Liverpool Bay Esquimaux to meet us the following seison near Langton
ilarbour, with a boat (uniak) aiid two or three caeos (ayaks), iii order to aid us in
gathering speciiens and visiting the opposite point aId several small islands in that

quarter. Teni imen, womlenl aid children appeared accordingly in the end of June, 1864.
On 1st July, 1865, they again, together with four more families fron Cape Bathurst,
Olle of whom I had never previously seen, turnied up in the same place and rendered us
good service. B4 oth parties informed us that most of thelm l had come over by land fron
Harrowly to Franîklin Bay, aid lad thenice coasted the shores of the latter, at first on
iue and latterly h)v water to the apppoinited rewdeZooS.

59. There can11 be nlo doubt that large and small Wliales, hair seals of several species,
wah-uîses, sain and other fish abound in the seas of the Artic coast of the Dominion,
but as I lave Id no personîal kînowIedge of the value <4r mode of operating seai and
Whalinîg industries, I cau only state what I think on the subject. It seems to nie that
the experience which would ibe gained fromn the establshimeît of a thoroughly equipped
wlliniîg stationî near the mouth of Mackenzie river would point out to all concerned the
best Possible measure for the proitable prosecution, and the extenision eastwards of the

coast tisheries in questiol. FOr. som1e time to come, however, the whole, (or at least, the

I)ulk (f their produce, wovuld he to be transported to uuarket by way of Bei'ring's

Straits, as beinig mnuch cheaper thal by the iniland route tia Mackenizie river. Of
course, several whale boats anl one or two small steamers would fori part of the equip-
llelt, while all or most of the required statf of empiogees should winîter at the station

and be occupied iii the capture of seal ulnde ie, and otherwise as might be deemned
necessarv until opei w ater. The services of the Esquimaux mnight also be more or less
Utilized iii conectio itih the aforesaid fisliei'it's.

60. Spruce similar to that used in the building of the steamer " Wrigley " can be

had on Lower Slave, as well as on the Upper Mackenuzie rivers. I opinle it is good
enough for the constr'uctîion of seal and hV1aling Craft.

61. Lanîgtn H1 1[arbo ur with its one or nore land-lockedfiords at the botton of
(Franklin Bay) strikes me as being an excellent locality for future sealinlg an1d whaliig
opIrations in Frain1îî1 Bav. leinideer are n1o doubt fairly nuierous (lurinig the sumnier
Which would ellable the prty to add la

r gely to their requi r ed stock of provisions.

2. Wiiei the demand arises, and the time arrives, for utilizing the timber resources
Of the Mackenizie Basino, n insuperable diffieulties will be found to stand in the way of
mileeting( same. Settlements will piobably by that time have approached and even
advaiced within its southerni boundaies, and the practiul ien of the day will, no

(oubt, avail themnselves of the then existing, anid, where iecessary, create additional
facilities foi' its tiaispoi't to destilnation. Spruce is the prinlcipal product ; but poplar,
biruh anîd taiarac wvill be ale to add their quota to the lumber of the future.

63. Chives or wild onîions grow in, spots along the shingly beaches of the larger
r'ivers, includinig the An'rsoni n Wilot Hortoti, and1(1 whlen boiled in water, or fried
in fat they prove an acceptable addition toi one's fare in regionis wlere vegetables are

Uncultivable. The wild parsniîp is also much relished by the Indians. One or two
Plants are used for dying quills, &c., and there are others probably of an n'omic char-
acter to be met with in the plains and forests of the distait northi.

64. The northern Indians use the bark of the red willow and the scrapings, after
removal of the outer bark, of the poplar, for miediciial applications ; and they frequently
eat the latter, an1d smoke, mixed witl tobacco, similar scrapings of the former. They
also partake of decoctions made from, and masticate parts of, certain roots and plants in
times of sicknless, all of whiuh I think are meitio*ned by Dr. Richardson in his already
quoted "Boat Voyage.

65. The Labrador tea is, I believe, one of the most widely diffused plants in
Canada-it is encountered in the woods and swaips, along river and lake banks, on the
barrern grounds and near the shores of the Arctic Sea. When Chinese tea was imported
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in comparatively small quaiitities in former years, our northern servants had frequent
recourse to the use of the Labrador, as a substitute, and th'ey seemied to enjoy Iot oly the
first strong pungent infusion of the leaves but the second, which tasted much milder. I
myself never cared for either, but I have often partaken with relislh of Tea made fron
the white flowers of the plant, fresh gatlered or dried -a siall addition of Souclhong
improves the latter.

66. For m1y own part, if the foirers of the plant were poperly prepared and
blended with Asiatic tea, I shoulhi have iio objection to a cup for breakfast every
morning, because when I used it thus in former years I always found it to act as an

67. Gold. - Traces of gold have been discovered by passing iners on the Athabasca,
Slave anld Mackenzie Rivers. On the upper waters of the Liard and Peace lowever,
it has 1 believe, been frequenitly fouund in fair paying quantities.

i/er,.-Thei late Mr. Williami Shaw told ie that old Indiais assured him that
somne hlad founid siall nuggets of silver in the vicinhity of the mountains southwest of
Fort Vermillion, wbile he hiimself thouglt there nmiglt be some silver iii the Carrib;o
imountains. [Indians have also fancied they saw traces of silver in the Rock mountains,
southeast of Fort M Ihowever, nerely repeat what I have heard.

Copper. Reported to be in abuidance on the Coppermine river. Nodules of
pyrites of iron and copper are occasionally met with along the river and lake shores in
various parts of Athabasca and Mackenzie river districts.

IronI.- have no doubt that iron even of a superior qiality will Solle day be dis-
covered, probably (in the north side of Lake Athabasca, as well as in nany other parts
of the reg<ion under investigation.

N/phur. On the upper Anderson ; on the south shore of Great Slave Lake ; on
the Clear Water river, and in niany other places, sulphur exists ili greater or lesser
qu antities.

Ned/. It is believed that a mine of first class salt of vast extent is situated between
Sait river and Fort Smith. Salty springs have been founid on Clear Water river, and
also on one of the easteri affluents of the Mackenîzie, not very far froni Fort Wrigley.
Similar springs doubtless exist along the Peace aid Athabasca rivers.

Petro/euni a 1sph// wa. Incalculable deposits of Asphaltuni and Petroleun are
believed to cover nuch gro( und along both sides of the Athabasca river, and the latter
has been found on the upper Peace river, as well as on the north shore of Great Slave
Lake, and at or near Lac la Porte, some 80 or 90 miles northeast of Fort (ood Hope.

(hypsium. Lots at Peace Point and iii the neighborh<ood of R1apid à Bouille, lower
Peace river. I believe it is also found nîear Fort Nornan, Mackenzie river.

Aui.- Traces of Alun have been observed in the face of the bank of the Ross
river, one of the affluents of the Upper Anderson river, also on Lockhart river, its prin-
cipal tributary, and in other parts of the Mackenîzie river district.

Prrcious X/ones. May possibly be preseit there ; but I never came across any.
Some fifty years ago however, smnall quantities of Rock Crystal were exported from the
iMackenzie ; but the business soon ceased, as it did not pay.

Coal and Luiffuit. On the Upper Athabasca and Peace River ; on the Lower Mac-
kenzie ; oi the Onion ; Lockhart and Ross affluents of the Anderson ; as well as on
that river itself, and on the Wilhnot lortoni, Barren Grounîds, stronig indications of the
existence of Coal and Lignite in unknown quantities have been repeatedly noticed.

P>/nm/ly/o-lHas been fourd loose in the vicinity of Fonîd <lu Lac, Athabasca.
Lead.- -I cannot say, I have always however, been a believer in the truth of Sir

John Richardson's long published opinion, that if the Hudson Bay Company had de-
voted as inuch capital, care and attention in developing the muineral resources of their
then territories, as they had bestowed (n the fur-trade, the result would have repaid
then ten-fold better than the latter ever hîad, or could possibly accomplish.

68. Abundance of fine white earth, well adapted for out or inside wall washing,
as well as red earth, are to be found in the neighborhood of Fort Simpson, Norman,
Good Hope, Anderson, and other places in the Mackenzie river district. Blue earth is
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met with near Simpson, and Red ditto below Fort MciMurray, and on the Wilnot Horton
river. Clay suitable for brick-naking is believed to exist along the rivers Athabasca,
Peace, Slave and Mackenzie, and at many other points. Moulding sand is found on
the Athabasca and elsewhere, while good lime-stone abounds in various directions
througiout the entire region. All the grindstones required for local use are obtained
froni beds of sandstone on the Peace, Liard and Mackenzie rivers.

69. There are numerous mineral springs along the larger rivers and elsewhere, somte
of which are doubtless medicinal. I know of one in particular at the foot of a Iill near
the Lower Peace River, on the winter road from Fort Chipewyan to Red River, of
which I drank a pint in the end of March, 1882, whose tlavour strongly reindèd me of
the celebrated inieral waters of the Strathpeffer Spa, Rosshire, Scotland.

70. I wili endeavour to reply to this question by preparing a list of the birds which
have been collected by Hudson Bay otlicers and others, also, which are believed to breed
in the Sub-Arctic, as well as in the polar regions of the great Mackenzie Basin.

71. The wild fowl which are considered of the nost value during the spring and
fall migrations, are the grey and three species of white wavy-and the Canada and
Hutelinîs goose-while the whistling and trumpeter swan-cranes, and the various species
of non-eating fish ducks, are also all welcomied as articles of food.

72. Great nuinbers of geese, wavies and swans &c., stop to feed for sone time in the
spring and autumin in the marshes and shallow waters of the west end of Lake Athabasca,
and also, of its adjoining former extensions, the present lakes Maintassee and Claire, and
on the lower Peace River. Very inany for the saine purpose stay in the narshes near
Port Resolution and Big Island on Great Slave lake, as well as around the Little Lake
below Fort Providence, and quite a crowd reinain in the vicinity of Fort Good Hope in
the spring ; but comnparatively few do so in the autuint. At other points along and
aside of the regular fine of water communication, more or less geese, &c., stop for a short
time to feed on their outward and return migrations coastwise.

73. The food varies according to the locality. Berries, seeds of grasses, succulent
stens and leaves of aquatic plants, the larvaw of and water insects, snall nolluscw, and
Soietines the snall-fry of fish, constitute the diet of these birds.

74. At Fort Chipewyan, the Canada goose is the first spring-food bird to arrive,
and he sonetinies (ocs so early in, but very seldon before the middle or 20th of April,
and occasionally, even when there is little or no water visible. The arrival of Geese in
spring and their departure in fail, however, depends greatly on the seasoir ; but the
Canadas generally appear in great nuinbers by the end of April. The next to follow is
Usually the medium white wavy (Chîen Hyper/oreas), they are present in thousands by
the begenning of May, and after a brief interval, the larger bird (Chen //yper/>oreas
- liUs) is on iand in still greater force. About the samne time, nuinbers of grey wavies
and lutchin's geese are observed flving around, or going north in snall flocks. The
last to arrive is the smallest and least abundant of the white wavies (Cheu Rossii) and
they seldon put in an appearance before the iniddle or 20th of May ; but once started,
they seemn to comte more quickly than the other species whose period of arrival must con-
tinue from two to three weeks. The horned wavy, however, is amnong the first to get
back from the coast. Swans arrive in course of the first and second week in May, they
remain but a short tinte, and when they return in Septemnber, their stay is still shorter.
Cranes turn up in May, and are soinetinies seen going south after the middle of August.
Immense nunhers of ducks appear in May, and thousands renain to breed, as do also
mttany of the Canada geese. The white wavies which arrive at Fort Chipewyan in spring,
1n successive flocks of scores and hundreds, after duly resting and fattening up, take their
departure in a similar manner, on their way to the breeding grounds near, and beyond
the coast, and on the large islands of the Arctic Ocean. As the process is, to a quarter
or lesser extent, going on almost daily for about a imonth, myriads must necessarily thus
arrive and depart northwards over the perhaps exceptionally favoured feeding grounds,
Which are situated in the vicinity of that post and thence to the Grand Miarais on Lower
Peace River. In the autunn they begin to arrive on their return flight going south,
about the end of August, and they are generally all gone by the middle of October, but,
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fully one week earlier, should the weather happen to become cold and severe. As a
iatter of course, considerably more birds stay to feed thain iii spring, while great nuin-

bers are observed flying past. Tn September, when favouring winds bl'ow, thbey are seen
in long converging V shaped lines during the day, and are often heard ail night going
south ia flocks. The grey wavy and the Hutciin's and Canada geese, are likewise,
present in respectable force, and the latter iî usually the last, with somlle ducks, to quit
Lake Athabasca for a warmer climate. Aitho' the brent or black goose breeds in con-
siderable numbers on the coast of Liverpool Bay, yet, 1 iever obtained a speceiiiein of
the bird on Lake Athabasca. Fartier iorth the spring arrivais at the before noted
dhief places, are fron one mr two days at the iearest to a fortnliglt later at the furthest

fron that in this aild other respects, central point Fort Chipewyanl. Comparatively few

geese, swans and duIcks were ever noticed at Fort Anderson on thbeiri at niual migirations

to or fron the coast.
75. The usual suinner and autumnni food of these wiki fvowl after the iatcliung season

is over, is probably nuch the sane as before ; but varied of course, according to the
chaiging locality of the feeding grouinds.

76;. At Chipewyain and the adjacent coinîtry, raspberries, gooseberries, strawberries,
low bulsh (raiberries, eyeberries, blleberries, red and black clirants and other varieti(s,
are more or less abinidant every season. At Fort Siupson tie saie species of herries

are to be fouid, and ili equal abundance. At Good Hope, the blueberry is very plenti-
fui ; but except cratiberries, other kinids are rather scarce, while a few of the foregoing
are altogether abseînt. I have never met the service or saskatooi berrv, which is so very
abundant on the Peace River, particularly in the vicinity of its smoky tributary below

Fort Wrigley. It is, lowever, plentifully met with on the Athabasca and Clear
Water rivers Mn favourable seasons. I dof not think the red curiant extends mclih further

north on the Mackenîzie thian the post of Norman nîear Bear or Frankliin River. At
Fort Ai1dersmn, the lowv bîuslh varieties of the craiberry and biueberry were quite abun-
dant. Eistward to the " barrens," the eyeberry, hearberry, y ,cro and a few

other berries, were more or less plenitiful.
77. I t is certainly the geieral opinion of all wlio have beei in the couitry, that the

natural pitch of the Athabasca river will prove of innuense prospective value.
78. [il order to obtaii an aopoxiately correct idea of the extent of tlhis deposit,

it will be nîecessary to Send competent ex(perts to examine anîd report accordingly.
I thin-k the best way of taking petroleun fron tle Athabasca regilon to the Northi-

West market, would Le by the improved steami aid rail route referred to in mny reply to
question third of the series. Should large surplus quantities, bowever, be discovered
several relative questions may now be asked, as they w ioui tien probably arise. 1 st.
" Will the cost of production and transport of this petroleumî to oller Canada admit of
profitable coiîpetition with national or foreign sources of supply ? 2nd. Would it pay
to thus meet the requiremeits of the Provinîce of British Columbia, either by the pro-
posed route and the Canadian Pacific Railway, or by any other transcontinental line of
the future ? And lastly, " Would it be practicable by way of Behrinîg's Straits ii sui-
mer ; and by the other route ini winter to compete advantageously with foreign countries
in, supplying Alaska, British Columbia and otier Pacific States and nations with petro-
leum froiî the Atlhabasca, or from the Great Slave Lake and Mackenzie River oilfields
of the future ?"

80. I have no idea of the approximate cost of takinîg in machinery and sinking wells
in the mnanier referred to ; but at the saine time, it is probable that a judiciously applied
expenditure in the proposed direction would lead to satisfactory results.

81. There are Geologists of great experience n the governmnent service who, 1 pre-
suie, would be able to answer tihis question after a careful exploratioin of the counïtry.

82. The Dominion census of 1881 will furnislh the desired information regarding
the number of Indians belonging to the diflerent tribes, and the nane of the posts at
which they then resorted throughout the Mackenzie Basin. I fear, however, that a
similar census taken to-morrow would, for the reasons to be stated presently, exhibit no
increase on that of 1881. Influenza andi other epidemic diseases, at intervals, carry off
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large numbers of the northeri lIfliains, and not a few Esquiumaux. Il 1 865-66 scarla-
tina, or an aggravated forin of ineasles, appeared aiong the Indians, which became so
coitagious that not a single native (J dian or Esquimaux) wlio came in contact with an
affected party escaped attack, and very great numbers of both, especially Indians,
perished. The estimate of victiis for Athabasca and Peace River was '300, which I feel
satisfied is far below the mark, and we kiow that fully 1,000 Indians anid over 150
Esquinaux (lied ini Mackenzie River District. This was by fa r the most fatal epidenne ever
experience(d there. It had previously decimated the Crees and Blackfeet of the Saskat-
chewan prairies, besides comimnittinig great ravages in other quarters, as well as in the
neighbouring district of iEnglish River, at Lac La Biche and onil Lesser Slave Lake. I
do lot, however, knîow how iany perished at these poiits. I have also beenî told that
about 200 Inîdians died of mueasles at Lesser Slave Lake and on Peace River during the
winter of 18864S7, while upwards of 100 have silice perishîed by starvatioli in Athabasca
and Mackeizie Hiver. li recent years scrofulous diseases have reduced the Beaver
Indiais of Peace IRkiver to nîearly onîe-half thîeir iuiber soimue tlirty years agO. Syphillis
lias also destroyed a great niumber of the Fort Rae anid Great Bear Lake Infdians,
between 18.50 anl 1875, but tliey appear to have since quite recovered from the eflects
of that disease, which had been originîally conunuicated to fleir wouien by European
seamien ; and they have therefore beel increasineg ii tînuibers for the last two decades.
Consumliptioin has likewise claimîed many victims at Fond du Lac, Athabasca, and iot a
few at the other trade posts ; and coisequently, I believe, that the next census imust
show a decrease, especially as compared witlh the population of 1864. Il a general way
it may be stated thiat the In1dians in questioni pass the suiuer aInd winiter in the local-

ities pertaiiiiiig to the respective tribes, wvhich they finid nost suitable at the tine for
obtaining the imeais of living, as well as for luntinîg anid trappuing peltries, &c., in t>îeir

season.
83. With the view of avoiding too much repetition, I lad better classify the

Inlians of the Athalbasca, Peace and Mackenzie River Districts, under two <hvisions :

Lst, moose eaters, or those who live chielly on the ilesh of moose, beairs and beaver

ai 2n1d, Carriboo enters, whose principal food is tle tlesh of the barren grounîd rein-

deer. To the former class belong all the Fort McMurray Iidiais, as well as those who
live onii the soiutt ani westerin sioires Of Lake Athabasca, the Pence River tribes ; many
of the Slave Hiver, aid all the inihabitants of the Souîtherin Coast of Great Slave Lake
Ilost of the Providence and Simpson Indians ; the whole of the Liard River iatives

the great bulk of the Indiains who reside on the )ahnks of thel Mackeiizie ; together with

Somie of those of Peel's River an)d the Rampîarts ;and te Nahannies and 3/auvais J/onde

of the iiounitaiis. The food supplv of theirst class is, in additionî to the moose, further

auginented as follows, viz.: An occasional Woodland deer or bufllo is secured by the
McMurray, Loweriu Peace and For t Smith Indianîs, wlîose bill of fare is largely varied by

geese and ducks, aid slighitly so by swans aiid grouse. Great numbers of the Indiais

of Fort Chipewyan, Resolution, Rae, Providence, Simpson, (ood Hope, and the other

Peace and Mackenizie Posts, more or less, comue in for a share of geese anid ducks, &c.,

in tlieir season. Fish also formîs a staple, aid indeed vitally important item in the food

supply of both classes, althioughu<î most of the Peace River, many of the Liard, a few of

Providence, and the Nalhaiy Inudians generally, have hitherto devoted little or no
attention to the capture of fish. The last nentioned, hoiwever, annually kill a goodly

nlumber of wild goat and sheep and somie marmots. The cariboo eaters of the second
class liçewise comte in for a fair share of the neat of the mnusk-ox, beaver, bear, with an

(Iceasional wood carriboo, and more or less geese, ducks, ptarimigan, and in certain
localities a few marmots. The entire population, however, are largely benefitted during
the seasons in which rabbits, lynx and musquash abound. For many years hack,

especially silice moose began to decline and the reindeer have been fluctuating in num-

ber, sone of the Athabasca, Peace and Upper Mackenzie River Indians have been

takinig a more general interest than before in the cultivation of the soil, on which they

mnostly raise potatoes, and some have latterly tried barley and wheat. Both classes,

" Moose and Cariboo Eaters," inake use of considerable quantities of berries, fresh and
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dried, birds' eggs, and bireh syrup in their season. The fleslh of the miusquash is con-
sidered a dainty by Indians and Esquimaux. The latter, however, make no syrup; but
although they have fewer varieties of berries, they doubtless gather more eggs than the
former. The food of the Northern Esquimaux consists of the fleshi of the reindeer, seal,
river and sea tish, with that of an occasional whale, walrus, polar bear, musk-ox, moose,
wolf and wolverine, and marmots, rabbits, ptarmigan and waterfowl in their seasonM.
The staple articles of food of the Anderson River Esquimaux are undoubtedly the meat
of the reindeer and the seal. Fron April to Septemliber the former animal is rarely
absent ; and in autumin it is always iii greater or lesser abundanee. The latter ea
generally e liad during winter ; but is most numerous after the ice breaks up in
sumnier. A large numnber of Esquimaux annually ascend the Anderson, on the ice of
course, early in April, to subsist at a point -it mav be soine :30 or 40 miles up stream-
where they had previously secured in early winter, in a strongly constructed cache
formed of iceblocks, the surplus of their autunmn venisoi hulnts. They also spin( out the
stock by killing a deer now and then as may be necessary until the disruption of the ice
enables thei to proceed by water to the several localities where they had been accus-
toied to pass miost of the late spring and early summer weeks in fishîing, hunting and
fowling. li the mueantiie other parties ascend the river on ice to points below and
even beyond the aforesaid ench, while those who had wintered at a distance followed
later. Iîmmediately after the river broke tp, a minuber of Esquimaux huinters wouild
ascend it with their canoes until they observed reindeer, which at that period of the
season consisted of bucks, and were always more frequently discovered on the sloping
sides of its easternl banks, and whein any one succeeded in killing an animal by guni or
bow, lie would drag it to the water and send it drifting down stiemn, hai In-evio usly
inserted an arrow into the tloatingr carcase. J ust before reaching the first encanmnpent
below, soie one on the outloo>k would take a canoe and examine the arrow, and if
found to belong to a hunter thereof, it would be taken ashore, and if otherwise, it would
be allowed to descend to the lodge of its owner. A soinewhat diffierent course would
follow wvhen animals were killed on land close to or below their encamipments; but in
autuini, when the reindeei(r are iumerous at certain well knowi river points and passes,
<ni their way to the wNooded country, a great many are speared by the Esquimaux while
crossing the river, and they are similarly treated and always recognized by some well
knmowni marks on the arrows of the successful hunter. While Fort Anderson vas kept
up, the Esquimaux usually arrived there for purposes of trade in about two or thiree
weeks after the river was open at that place. In seasons when reindeer are very nuner-
oUs in the autumîn, the earriboo-eating Indiais spear and otherwise wantonly (that is,
for more titan tlhey can possibly manage to turn to any useful account) destroy large
numbers of theni while ini the act of rossing snall lakes and streans (il their annual
autumnî migrations fron the coast. As a rule Indians are very improvident ; although
a rather frequent rough experience of privation and starvation in recent years bas been
teaching 0them to be, and I believe they are now, more careful than they were previously.
On the other hand, the Esquimaux are seldoni indeed other than a ecareful, provident
and industrious people.

8-. ie years of comparative plenty are those during which rabbits are in great
abundance; moose not scarce; lynx and other periodical fur-bearing animals numerous in
the different sections of the country occupied by the "Moose-eaters ;" and when the reindeer
are plentiful in fall and winter, and the snow sutiiciently deep,the "Cariboo-eaters" are also
very well circumùstaneed indeed. On the other hand, it mnay be readily imagined that a gen-
eral scarcity or absence of so important a staple as the rabbit, coupled with a like paucity
of noose, reindeer and lynx, particularly if the tisheries should fail at soimepoints, as
they often do, chiefly owing to causes beyond human control, such seasons cannot well be
other than years of comparative scarcity, aye, not unfrequently of much privation and
even starvation in several localities. The peculiar law of nature which periodically causes
the rabbit, &c., to increase, and then to disappear, is really the nost important factor in
the fore going connection. Previous to 1874, moose were very inumerous on the Peace
River fronm Hudson's Hope to its outlet, and also on the lower Athabasca ; but they have
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sincer apidly diminished in iumbers, chiefly owing to overhunting and partly, perhaps, to
migration during the reuarkably ild winter of 1877-78. iln the autumn of 1874
the reindeer also, for the tirst time in many years, failed to make use of their ancient
passes, fron the "Barren Grounds " into the wooded couiitry of Fond <lu Lac, Atha-
basca, nor have they ever sinice done *so in anything like the great numbers in which
they had been previously regularly accustomued to appear. For nearly every winter
since 1874, reindeer have been more or less numerous in the vicinity of York Factory,
where they had virtually been strangers for over thirty years. During the last two
decades, the reiideer have also been very irregular iii their anînual appearaice at all or
iiiost of the Carriboo posts of the Mackenzie and Great Slave Lakes. But they are,
nevertheless, believed to be still very abundanit in the Great Basin. In connection with
years of scarcity, it may be added that in course of the last sixty years isolated cases of
death by starvation have not been unconnon anong the Indians of Athabasca-Mackenzie
Region ; but, although somne instances in which several, and one indeed where very nany,
in(dividuals perished miserably, are known to have occurred during former winters, it is
only of recent years that these very pitiful events have becoie of very frequent recur-
rence. Ou the occasioi referred to-the winter of 1841-2-about 100 men, womeu and
children died of sheer starvation in the neighbourhood of Fort Good Hope. The sum-
mer and autumn fisheries had failed, while rabbits were exceedingly scarce ; and being
River Indians they were backward at first and latterly unable to proceed to the outer
lands, where deer happened to be at a great distance' and not very numerous that season.
After the small stock of post provisions was nearly exhausted, the officers and servants
Vere obliged to retreat to Fort Noriman, leavinmg the interpreter iii charge and he

narrowly escaped dissolution before the "l Carriboo eaters their appearanice six
weeks later with a quantity of half-dried venison. An Orkney man and a Highlander
who were on their way to Fort MePherson with the usual winter packet from "l head-

quarters," having encaiped some 15 miles below Good Hope, at a short distance froi

an Indianï lodge occupied by one very old man and two elderly women-were attacked
while asleep and both were killed by the latter. The wretched party afterwards sub-

sisted in plenty on the remains of the unfortunate men. One of the woumen concerned
in, this sad afIir lived until October, 1865. The Esquimaux, I believe, seldonm suffer in
the saime way, although there is a traditioi among them of a large number having starved
to death many years ago on the coast to the eastward of Cape Bathurst. One and
all of the Northern Indian tribes, however, have contributed their quota of vic-
tims ; but the Wood Crees and the Clipewayanîs of Athabasca, especially the former,
together with the Beaver tribe of Peace River, seei to have been the most heavily
visited of later years. Among the iineteen who, out of a party of twenty-seven
Chipewayanis died for want of food last winter, were three exceptionially able and

fornmerly very successful hunmters (two of whom •were half-breeds). The Half-breed

Harper, referred to in Butler's " Wild North Land," also met a similar fate iu February,

1888, while in company with his Cree Indian wife and relations, on their way to Fort
McMurray for a supply of imiucl-needed food.

85. No cause cau be assigned for the disease wlicl attacks an(d kills off thousands
of rabbits when they have attained the height of their septennial periodical increase.
It affects the head and throat, and is well worthy of medical investigation.

86. There are two species of rabbitt or hare the Lepus A ewricanus and the Lepus

iu, in the Mackenzie Basin. The latter, however, is scarce, and but very few are
ever takeni- it is a barren grouind animal.

87. I never heard that the polar hare had suffered from the epidemnic which plays
havoc among his relatives the rabbits ; and while they think that comparatively few,
if any, of those of the latter which are attacked survive. the Indians assert their belief
that thousands escape co ntagion.

88. I believe I have already mnentioned all the food animals of the Great Basin in
former answers. If at all possible, the hunting of beaver out of season should be put

nl immnediate stop to, while every effort should aiso be made to prevent the Indians

from killing reindeer and other food animals that they cannot make use of. And further,
61
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that some effective steps ought to be taken to prevent the comparatively few renaining
Woodland buffalo fron utter extinction. I would, however, renark that although it is
a very easy thing to make laws on the subject, it will prove a niatter of great difliculty
to enforce thei duly in so remote a region. The officers of the Hudson Bay Company
are always ready to second the views of the Government ; and the resident nissionaries
are also in a position to render similar service ; but I consider that a small police force
is absolutely necessatry in the foregoing connection.

89. Under proper control and minus spirits, the effect of opening up the Mackenzie
Basin to civilization would be somewhat similaïr to British experience in other portions
of the North-West and Canada proper-it would, at the outset at least, benefit some,
unaffect many, and deinoralize others.

90. I know of no reasons to induce the supposition that the labour of inany of the
Indians and Esquimaux of the Mackenzie Basin would prove other than advantageous
to aill concerned. The former are believed to be more amenable to civilization than
their prairie countrymen, while the latter are, on the whole, a more intelligent and
ingenious people than the neighbouring Indians.

Respectfully subnitted,
R. MACFARLANE.

FORT JIAMES, STUART'S LAKE, B.C., 1lth January, 1889.

LIST OF MAMMALS KNOWN AND BELIEVED TO BE NATIVES OF THE
GREAT MACKENZIE BASIN.

UNoULATA.

1. Alce Americanus. Jardine. Moose. -- It is found in the forest country generally as
far north as the 69th degree of latitude. Traces were also met with iii about
longitude 1 26 west.

2. Rangi/r Cari/ou. Linnwus. Woodland Cariboo. -Not numerous in the Athabasca
and Mackenzie River Districts, N. W. Territories of Canada. It is a larger aii-
mal than the Barren Ground Cariboo.

3. RBanq' fr roe/aulicus. Linn. Barren-ground Reindeer.-This valuable food animal
is still very nuinerous at certain seasons throughout the greater part of the
northern portion of the G(rand Basin.

*4. Cervus Caidensiî. Erxleben. Anerican Elk. Biche.--Is rarely met with north
of latitude 45°.

*5. Cariacus Virq/inianus. Bodd. Virginian Deer.- This deer is said to be a resident
in the extrenie south-western portion of the map-detined boundaries of the
Mackenzie Basin.

*6 A2nilocapra Aw/ricanus. Ord. Antilope. Cabri.--This animal is also to be found
on both sides of the Rocky Mounitains and within the aforesaid basin, but not in
great numbers

*7. Mazama fontana. Ord. Rocky Mouitain Goat.-Fairly numerous in the Rockies;
but none are met with in the imouintain spurs on the east side of the Mackenzie
River.

*8. Oeis Miontana. Cuvier. Mountain Sheep. Bigborn.
*9. Oqis Monta n Dal/i. Nelson. I)alls' Mountain Sheep.- This recently determined

variety or new species of sheep is undoubtedly that whieh is met with in the
Rocky Mountains to the westward of the Lower Mackenzie River, while the
true Bighorn exists in the ranges to the southward.

*10. Ovi/>os M/oschatus. Zimmerman. Musk-Ox.--Numerous on the Barren Grounds
during the summer ; and in winter keeps on the edge of and within the most
northern portion of the wooded country.

*11. Bison A mericanus. Gminelin. Woodland Buffialo. Bison.--Very rare now in the
Athabasca District
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CARNIVORA.

*12. Lynx Rufus. Gmelin. Wild Cat.- -It is said to be a native of the south-western
section of the territory under investigation.

* 13. Lynx Canadensis. Geoffroy. Canada Lynx.-As I have already in my " answers
given some information as to this and the other iidigieious fur-bearing animalseIý n
of the Great Basin, I need say no more at present.

*14. Cunis Lupus Ocideu/dix mur. A/bus. Riclardsoi. Wlhite Wolf.
*var. (iUri.,enis. Grey Wolf.
*var, Ater. Black Wolf.

*15. Canis Latrans. Say. Cayoté.-If it does not cross the North Saskatchewan it is
now certainly to be found within the south-western border of the Mackenzie
Basin.

*16. Canis Filis var. -Borealis. Desur. Esquimaux Dog.
*var. Laqiopus. Rich. Hare Indian DoIg.

*17. Vin/pes Fn/vus. 'Fleming. Red Fox.
*var, Deentssatus. Cross Fox.
* r. A rgentatus. Silver Fox.

*Black Fox
ý18. Vulpes Velox. Say. Kit Fox.WAs this animal appears in Dr. Bell's list, I pre-

suine it exists within the so(uthernl boundaries of the region.
*19. Vu/pes Larrms. Linn. White Fox.

* Var. Pu/iinosus. Blue Fox.-Very rare in British Arctic
America , and if it be the saine as the Stone Blue Fox so numerous in the Pri-
bylov and other islands of Alaska, it is surely entitled to specific rank.

*20. (nt/o Lusrts. (Linn.) Sabine. Wolverine. Carcajou.--Extends alnost if not
quite to the shores of the Polar Sea.

*21. /us te/a Pe'n nanti. Erxl. Fisher. -Very rare indeed, if at all present, beyond
latitude 60° north.

*22. Mustel A merican. Turton. Marten.
*23. Petorius Vu/quris. Linn. 'Weasel.-lather scaree in Arctie America.
*24. Jutorius Erineus, Linn. Ernine.-Tolerably numerous all over the Basin.
*25. Putorins Lon îicauda. Bonaparte. Long-tailed Weasel.-This species is also be-

lieved to live within the defined region.
*26. Putorius Vism,. Brisson. Mink.
*27. i'phitis Meph iica, Shaw. Skunk.-Not hitherto found north of latitude 60° and

but very few indeed for a degree or two south.
*28.T idea A me na. Schrieber. Badger. -Rare even in the southern sectionof the

country under review.
*29. Lutra Canad1nsis Turton. Land Otter. -Although met with, it is by no means

" connnon very far north " on the Mackenzie.
*30. Ursus //rrni>i/is. Ord. Grev or Grizzly Bear.
*31. Ursus Artos. Richardson. 'Barren ground bear.-Not uncommon in the barren

grounds of Anderson and Wilmot Horton Rivers, nor on the shores of Franklin
Bay. It is also said to be a resident of the Rocky Mounitains of the Lower
Mackenzie River, B.A.

*32. Urst A mericanus. Pallas. Black Bear.
*var : Brown and Cinnanon.

33. Tlaassarctos Maritimlus. Linn. Polar Bear.--Frequently encountered by Esqui-

maux on the ice, as well as on the shores of the Arctic Sea, but never any dis-
tance inland in the Continent of America.

PINNIPEDIA.

34. Odollaenus Rosmarns. Malmgren. Walrus.-Not scarce in the seas of Northern

North America. The Esquimaux annually kill a number.
35. Phoca Vitulina. Linn. Harbour or Fresh Water Seal.
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36. Phoca Fætida. Fabricius. Ringed Seal.
37. Phoea Groën/andieu. Fahr. Harp Seal.-While 1. Vitalina and Fætida are

both believed to exist in the seas which bound so large a portion of the Mac-
kenzie Basin, it is doubtful if 1. Groën/andica extends quite so far north and east.

38. Erinanhus Barbatus. Fabr. Bearded Seal.
39. Crystophora Cris/ata. • Erxlehen. Hooded Sea].

RODENTIA.

*40. Xoetoma Cinerea. Baird. Bushy-tailed Wood Rat.--This species is said to be a
native of the country watered by the Upper Peace and Liard Rivers. It is also
tolerably numerous thronghout the New Caledonia District, Northeri British
Columbia.

*41. Htesperoma/s Leneo/nas. Rafinesque. Whitefooted or Deer Mouse.
*42. /esperomys Leiuous Sonoriensis. (LeConte.) A/us Leuropis of Richardson.

Undoubted specimens of this, as well as the foregoing I/. Leuopus, were for-
warded to the Snithsonian Institution at Washington, from Forts Simpson,
Liard and Rae, &c., in the Mackenzie River District.

*43. Evo menys Eu/ilus. Pallas. Loig-eared Mouse.-Nunerous throughout the Mac-
kenzie River region and on the shores of the Polar Sea.

*44. Erotomys Ratilas Gapperi. Vigors. Red-backed Mouse.-An undoubted speci-
nien is recorded as having been received from Fort Churchill, Hudson Bay.

*45. Ar'ico/u Ripurius. Ord. Aimerican Meadow Mouse.-Twenty-nine specimens, not
(listinguishable from A rne Riparius, were received by the Snithsonian Institu-
tion from Mackenzie River.

*46. A reio/a Riparias var. Borealis. Richardson. Little Northern Meadow Mouse.
Abundant to and on the Arctic coast.

*47. A rviola Xant/oyuath us. Leach. Cliestnut-cheeked Meadow Mouse.-A similar
remark will apply here.

48. Ariviro/a Xan/hogathus rur. Rielmrdsoni. Aud. and Bach. Large Northern
Meadow Mouse. -I think this form is the nost numerous in the Mackenzie
River region.

*49. Jylodes O/ûnsis. Brants. Tawny Lemming.-Abundant throughout the Arctic
regions, and on the shores of the Northern Ocean.

*50. Cunien/us Torquatus. Pallas. Hudson llay Lennning.-More nuierous thanl JI.
O/n'nsis in tlie saine northeri regions of Canada.

*51. Fi/ser Zi/eshieas. Cuvier. Muskrat or Musquash.
*52. Zapas //udsonias. Cones. .Jumping Mouse.-A few examples have been obtained

fron Liard River, Peace River and Great Slave Lake.
*53. Lepus Are/iras. Leach. Polar Hare.-Not nuinerous in the Barren Grounds, or

on the Arctic coast of the Dominion of Canada.
*54. Lûpus A meriruns. Erxl. Northern varying Hare.
*55. Erû/hizon Dorsa/us. Linn. Canada Porcupine.
*56. Ere/eizon Dorsatus ar. Epî:rantihuas. Brandt. Yellow-haired Porcupine. -Con-

mon on the Peel and Yukon Rivers. E. Dorsa/us is fairly nuinerous in the
niddle and southern sections of the Great Mackenzie Basin.

*57. 'Lagmys Pr'ineûps. Rich. Little Chief Hare.-Found in the vicinity of the Rocky
iMountains as far nortl as latitude 60°

*58. Castor Filber. Linn. Beaver.
*59. Thomomys Tapoides. Ricli. Northern Pocket Gopher.-Interior of west coast

of Hudson Bay to the North Saskatchewan. It is also entered in Dr. Bell's list.
*60. Sriuropteras Vo/re/l/a dsonias. Pallas. Northern Flying Squirrel.-Extends

to the borders of the Arctic circle.
*61. Srinrus iusonuts. Pallas. Red Squirrel.--Abundant throughout the entire'

Woode(l region of the Peace, the Atihabasca and Mackenzie River districts.
*62. Tamius Borea/is. Cones. Northerin Chipmunk.- Supposed to extend to the

Aretie circle.
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63. Tamias Lateralis. Say. Say's Chipmunk.-Mr. Drummond obtained examples
in the Rocky Mountains, latitude 57° north, over sixty years ago. I do not
remember ever seeing any specimens.

*64. Apernophilus Empetra. Pallas. Parry's Spermophile.-Numerous in the Barren
Grounds, and along the banks of all or most of the rivers flowing through the
Arctic regions, and on the shores of the Polar Sea.

*65. Spermophilus Richardsoni. Sabine. Grey Gopher.-Richardson gives its range as
not extending much beyond latitude 551 north, near the Saskatchewan boundary
of the Great Mackenzie Basin.

*66. Spermophilus Tridecemlineatus. Mitchell. Striped Spermophile.-Common at
Carlton House, Saskatchewan, and may therefore extend within the extreme
southern boundary of the aforesaid basin.

67. Spermophilu'< .Franklini. Sabine. Grey-headed Spermophile-This species was
first described fron specimens collected at Fort Enterprize in about latitude 64Q
north.

*68. Arctomys Afonax. Schreiber. Woodchuck. Ground Hog.-It has not been met
with by us in the Arctic regions; but the species is fairly abundant in sections
of the wooded c.ountry furthur south.

*69. Arctoiys Caliyatus. Eschscholtz. Hoary Marmot.-The same remark is equally
applicable to this perhaps more widely distributed Marmot.

INSECTIVORA.

70. Condylura Cristata. Linn. Star Nosed Mole.-South-west coast of Hudson
Bay to the Rocky Mountains.

*71. Sore.xï Forsteri. Richardson. Foster's Shrew.-Abundant throughout the Arctic
regions, to the shores of the Polar Sea.

72. Sorex Belli. Dobson. Bell's Shrew.-York Factory, Hudson Bay and westward.
*73. Sorex Sphaynicola. Cones. Fort Liard, Mackenzie River District.

CHEIROPTERA.

74. Scotophilus Noctivagans. Le Conte. Silvery-haired Bat.-Entered in Dr. Robert
Bell's list.

75. Vespertilio Lacifugus. Lo Conte. Blunt Nosed Bat. Northward as far as Hud-
son Bay, and therefore in all probability, to be met with in the south-eastern
borders of the aforesaid basin.

NOTE.-The several species of Cetacea which indubitably occur in the Hudson Bay
and Polar Seas of the Great Mackenzie Basin, are not included in the above list, while it is
PIobable that a few of the native or resident land manals have also been omitted. Those
Imarked with a star, thus *, are represented in British and American collections made by
Officers of the Hudson Bay Company. I may add that the foregoing classification is based
on Allen and Cones Monographs of North American Rodentia, 1887, and Mr. .J B. Tyrrell's
Catalogue of Mammalia of Canada, 1889. The eminent American Mammalogist (Dr. C.
hart Merriam) has made a few corrections in the list, and would have made more,
especially in reference to Arvicola Riparius, &c., somne of the determinations of which he
cnnot endorse, but for the fact , that the present status of nomenclature of North
American mammals is so badly mixed up, that it would be out of place in a list of this
kind, to attempt any radical reform."

R.MACFARLANE
CUgBEIFRLAND HOUsE, SASKATCHEWAN, 11th Jan., 1891.
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LIST OF BIRDS KNOWN AND BELIEVED TO BREED WITHIN THE MAP-
DEFINED BOUNDARIES OF THE "GREAT MACKENZIE BASIN."

WATER BIRDS.

*2. Colymbus HIolbælli. (Reinhardt.) Holbæll's Grebe.
*3. Colymbus Anritus. Linnoeus. Horned Grebe.
*6. Podilymbus Podiceps. (Linn.) Pied-billed Grebe.
*7. Urinator Imber. (Gunn.) Loon.

8. Urinator Adamnsii. (Gray.) Yellow-billed Loon.
*9.. Urinator Articus. (Linn.) Black throated Loon.

*10. Urinator Pacificus. (Lawr.) Pacifie Loon.
*11. Urinator Lumme. (Gunn.) Red throated Loon.

35. Megalestris Skua. (Brünn.) Skua.
*36. Stercorarius Jomarinus. (Teminm.) Poinarine Jaëger.
*37. Stercorarius Parasiticus. (Linn.) Parasitic Jaëger.
*38. Stercorarius Longicaudus. Vieill. Long tailed Jaëger.

39. Gavia Alba. (Gunn.) Ivory Gull.
40. Rissa Tridactyla. (Linn.) Kittiwake.

*42. Larus Claucus. (Brünn.) Glaucous Gull.
*43. Larus Leucopteris. Faber. Iceland Guli.

44. Larus Glaucescens. Nauin. Glaucous-winged Gull.
*51a. Larus Argentatus Smithsonianus. Cones. American Herring Gull.
*53. Larus Californieus. Lawrence. California Gull.
*54. Larus Delawarensis. Ord. Ring-billed Gull.
*55. Larus Brachyrhynchus. Rich. Short-billed Gull.

59. Larus Franklinii. Sw. and Rich. Franklin's Gull.
*60. Larus P>hiladelphia. (Ord.) Bonaparte's Gull.
*62. Xema Sabinii. (Sabine.) Sabine's Gull.

64. Sterna Ischegrava. Lepech. Caspian Tern.
*71. Sterna Paradisœa. Brünn. Arctic Tern.
*77. Hydrochelidon Nigra Surinamensis. (Gmelin.) Black Tern.

*125. Pelecanus Erythrorhynchos. Gmelin. American White Pelican.
*129. Merganser Amnericanus. (Cassin.) Ainerican Merganser.
*130. Jferganser Serrator. (Linn.) Red breasted Merganser.

131. Lophodytes Cucullatus. (Linn.) Hooded Merganser.
*132. Anas Boschas. Linn. Mallard.
*133. Anas Oscura. Gmel. Black Duck.
*135. Anas Strepera. Linn. Gadwall.
*137. Anas Americana. Gnel. Baldpate.
*139. Anas Carolinensis. Gmel. Green-winged Teal.
*140. Anas Discors (Linn.) Blue-winged Teal.
*142. Spatula Clypeata. (Linn.) Shoveller.
*143. Dafila Acuta. (Linn.) Pintail.
*144. Aix Sponsa. (Linn.) Wood Duck.
*146. Aythya Americana. (Eyt.) Red-head.
*147. Aythya Vallisneria. (Wilson.) Canvas Back.
*148. Aythya Marila Nearetica. Stejn. Anerican Scaup Duck.
*149. Aythya Affinis. (Eyt.) Lesser Scaup Duck.
*150. Aytha Collaris. (Donovan.) Ring-necked Duck.
*151. (laucionetta Clangula Americana. (Bonap.) Ainerican Golden Bye.
*152. Glaucionetta Islandica. (Gmel.) Barrow's Golden Eye.
*153. Charitonetta Albeola. (Linn.) Buffle-head.
*154. Clangula Jlyemalis. (Linn.) Old Squaw.
*155. Iistrionicus Hlistrionicus. (Linn.) Harlequin Duck.
*161. Somateria V. Nigra. Gray. Pacifie Eider.
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*162. Somateria Spectabilis. (Linn.) King Eider.
*163. Oidemaia A mericana. Sw. and Rich. American Scoter.
*164. Oidemia Fusca. (Linn.) Velvet Scoter.
*165. Oidemia Dey/andi. Bonap. White-winged Scoter.
*166. Oidemia Perspicilata. (Linn.) Surf Scoter.
*167. Erismatura Rubida. (Wilson.) Ruddy Duck.
*169. Chen I/yperborea. (Pallas.) Lesser Snow Goose.

170. Chen Rossi. (Baird.) Ross's Goose.
*171a. Anser Albitfrons Gambeli. (Hartlaub.) American White-fronted Goose.
*172. Branta Canadensis. (Linn.) Canada Goose.
*1 7 2a. Branta Canadensi,, ]utchinsii. (Sw. and Rich.) Hutchins's Goose.
*174. Branla Nigricans. (Lawr.) Black Brant.
*180. Olor Columbianus. (Ord.) Whistling Swan.
*181. Olor Buccinator. (Rich.) Trumpeter Swan.
*190. -Botau rus Lentiyinosus. (Montag.) American Bittern.
*204. Grus Amerirana. (Linn.) Whooping Crane.
*205. Urus Canadensis. (Linn.) Little Brown Crane.
*221. Fuira Americana. Giiiel. American Coot.
*222. Crymnophilus 1u/icarius. (Linn.) Red Phalarope.
*223. Pha/aropus Lobatus. (Linn.) Northern Phalarope.
*230. Gallinago Delicator. (Ord.) Wilson's Snipe.
*232. Macrorhampus Sco/opaceus. (Say.) Long-billed Dowitcher.
*233. Jlirropalama IIimantopus. (Bonaporte.) Stilt Sandpiper.
*239. Tringa laculata. Vieill. Pectoral Sandpiper.
*240. Trina Fiusicollis. Vieill. White-rumped Sandpiper.
*241. Tringa Bairdii. (Cones.) Baird's Sandpiper.
*242. Tringa Mfinnti/a. Vieill. Least Sandpiper.

2 4 3a. Tringa Alpina Pacifica. (Cones.) Red-backed Sandpiper.
*246. Ereunetes Pusillus. (Linn.) Semipalmated Sandpiper.
*248. Ca/idris Arenaria. (Linn.) Sanderling.
*249. Linosa Fedo. (Linn.) Marbled Godwit.
*251. Limosa Heimastica. (Linn.) Hudsonian Godwit.
*254. Totanus 11elanoleucus. (Gmelin.) Greater Yellow Legs.
*255. Totanus Flavipes. (Giiiel.) Yellow Legs.
*958. Sympema Semipa/mata. (Gmel.) Willet.
*261. Bartramia Lonqicauda. (Bechst.) Bartramian Sandpiper.
*261. Tryngites 8ubrificollis (Vieill.) Buff-breasted Sandpiper.
*263. Artitis ifacu/aria. (Linn.) Spotted Sandpiper.
*265. Kumenius l/udsonticus. Latham. Hudsonian Curlew.
*266. Numenius Borealis. (Forst.) Esquimaux Curlew.
*270. Charadrius Nquataro/a. (Linnæus.) Black-bellied Plover.
*272. Charadrius Dominicus. Miil. American Goldeh Plover.
*274. Aegialitis Semipalmata. Bonaparte. Semi-palmated Plover.
*283. Arenaria Interpres. (Linn.) Turnstone.

LAND BIRDS.

297b. Dendragapus Obscurus 1Richardsonii. (Sabine.) Richardson's Grouse.
298. Dendrayapus Canadensis. (Linn.) Canada Grouse.
299. Dendraqapus Franklinii. (Dougl.) Franklin's Grouse.

*300b. Bonasa Umnbe//us Unbe//oides. (Dougl.) Grey Ruffled Grouse.
*301. Layopus Layopus. (Linn.) Willow Ptarmigan.
*302. Lagopus Rupestris. (Gmel.) Rock Ptarmigan.
304. Lagopus Leucurus. Swainson. White-tailed Ptarmigan.
308. P>ediocæetes Ph asianel/us. (Linn.) Sharp-tailed Grouse.
309. Pediocætes Phasianells Colunbianus. (Ord.) Columbian Sharp-tailed Grouse.
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*315. Ectopistes Migratorius. (Linn.) Passenger Pigeon.
*331. Cireus Jludsonius. (Linn.) Marsh Hawk.
*332. Accipiter Velox (Wilson.) Sharp-shinned Hawk.
*334. Accipiter Atricapillus. (Wilson.) American Goshawk.

337. Buteo Borealis. (Gmel.) Red-tailed Hawk.
*342. Buteo Swainsoni. Bonap. Swainson's Hawk.
*347a. Archibuteo Lagopus-Sanctijohannis. (Gniel.) American Rough-legged Hawk.
348. Archibuteo Ferrugineus. (Licht.) Ferruginous Rou gh-legged Hawk.

*349. Aquila Chrysaëtos. (Linn.) Golden Eagle.
*352. IHaliætus Leucocephalus. (Linn.) Bald Eagle.
*354. Falco Rusticollis Gyr-Falco. (Linn.) Gyr-Falcon.
*356. Falco Peregrinus Anatum. (Bonap.) Duck Hawk.

356a. Falco Peregrinus Pealei. Ridgway. Peale's Falcon.
*357. Falco Ôolumbarius. Linn. Pigeon Hawk.
*358. Falco Richardsonii. Ridgway. Richardson's Merlin.
*360. Falco Sparverius. Linn. American Sparrow Hawk.
*364. Pandion Haliaëtus Carolinensis. (Gnel.) Ainerican Osprey.
*366. Asio Wilsonianus. (Less.) American Long-eared Owl.
*367. Asio Accipitrinus. (Pall.) Short-eared Owl.
*370. Scotiaptex Cinerea. (Gmel.) Great Grey Owl.
*371. Nyctala Tengmalni Richiardsoni. (Bonap.) Richardson's Owl.
*375b. Rubo Virginianus Arcticus. (Swainson.) Arctic Horned Owl.
*376. Nyctea Nyctea. (Linn.) Snowy Owl.
*377a. Surnia Ulula Caparock. (Müll.) American Hawk Owl.
*390. Ceryle Alcyon. (Linn.) Belted King Fisher.
*393a. Dryobates Villosus Leucomnelas. (Bodd.) Northern Hairy Woodpecker.
*394. Dryobates Pubescens. (Linn.) Downy Woodpecker.
*400. Picoides Arclicus. (Swains.) Arctic Three-toed Woodpecker.
*401. Picoides Americanus. (Brehni.) American Three-toed Woodpecker.
*401a. Picoides Anericanus Alascensis. (Nelson.) Alaskan Three-toed Woodpecker.

401b. Picoides Americanus Dorsalis. (Baird.) Alpine Three-toed Woodpecker.
*402. Sphyrapicus Varius. (Linn.) Yellow-bellied Sapsucker.
*405. Ceophlæus Pileatus. (Linn.) Pileated Woodpecker.
*412. Colaptes Auratus. (Linn.) Flicker.
*420. Chordeiles Virginianus. (Gniel.) Night Hawk.

457. Sayornis Saya. (Bonap.) Say's Phœbe.
459. Contopus 13orealis. (Swains.) Olive-sided Flycatcher,
466. Empidonax Pusillus. - (Swains.) Little Flycatcher.

*467. Empidonax Minimus. (Baird.) Least Flycatcher.
*468., Empidonax Iammondi. (Xantus.) Hanmond's Flycatcher.
*474. Otocoris Alpestris. (Linn.) Horned Lark.

474a. Otocoris Alpestris Leucolæema. (Cones.) Pallid Horned Lark.
475. Pica Pica Hudsonica. (Sabine.) American Magpie.
477. Cyanocitta Cristata. (Linn.) Blue Jay.

*484. Perisoreus Canadensis. (Linn.) Canada Jay.
*484b. Perisoreus Canadensis Fumifrons. Ridgway. Alaskan Jay.
*486a. Corvus Corax Principalis. Ridgway. Northern Raven.
*488. Corvus Americanus. Audubon. American Crow.
*497. Xanthocephalus Xanthiocephal us. (Bonap.) Yellow-headed Blackbird.
*498. Agelaius Phæniceus. (Linn.) Red-winged Blackbird.
*509. Scolecophagus Carolinus. (Müll.) Rusty Blackbird.

514. Cocothtraustes Vespertina. (Cooper.) Evening Grosbeak.
*515. Pinicola Enucleator. (Linn.) Pine Grosbeak.

521. Loxia Curvirostra Minor. (Brehm.) American Crossbill.
522. Loxia Leucoptera. Gmel. White-winged Crossbill.

*527a. Acanthis Hornemanni Exilipes. (Cones.) Hoary Red Poll.
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*528. Acanthis Linaria. (Linn.) Red Poll.
529. Spinus Tristis. (Linn.) American Goldfinch.
533. Spinus Pinus. (Wils.) Pine Siskin.

*534. Plectrophenax Niva/is. (Linn.) Snowflake.
*536. Calcarius Lapponicus. (Linn.) Lapland Longspur.
*537. Ca/carius Pictius. (Swains.) Sniith's Longspur.
*540. Poocætes Uramineus. (Gmel.) Vesper Sparrow.
*54 2a. Amnnodrmus Sandwichensis Savanna. (Wils.) Savanna Spariow.
*542b. Ammodramus Nandwichensis A/audinus. (Bonap.) Western Savanna Sparrow.
*554. Zonotrichia Leucophrys. (Forst.) Wlite-crowiied Sparrow.
*555. Zonotrichlia Intermedia. Ridgw. Interinediate Sparrow.
*558. Zonotrichia A/iicol/is. (Gmel.) White-throated Sparrow.
*559. Sýize//a Monticola. (Gmel.) Tree Sparrow.
* 5 59a. 8 pize/la IJonticola Ochracea. Brewster. Western Tree Sparrow.
*567. dunco J/yema/is. (Linn.) Slate color'd Junco.
*567a. Junco Iyemalis Oregonus. (Townsend.) Oregon Junco.
*581. J/e/ospiza Fa<ciata. (Gmel.) Song Sparrow.
*583. AIe/ospizt Lincolni. (Aud.) Lincoln's Sparrow.
*585. Passere/la Iliaca. (Merr.) Fox Sparrow.

588. Pipi/o Maculatus Arcticus. (Swainson.) Arctic Towhee.
595. Había Ludoviciana. (Linn.) Rose-breasted Grosbeak.

*611. Progne Subis. (Linn.) Purple Martin.
*612. Petrochelidon Lungfrons. (Say.) Cliff Swallow.
*613. Che/idon Erythroyuster. (Bodd.) Barn Swallow.
*614. T/chycineta Bico/or. (Vieill.) Tree Swallow.
*616. Clivico/ Riparia (Linn.) Bank Swallow.
*618. Ampelis urru/us. (Linn.) Boliemian Wraxwing.
*619. Ampe/is Cedrorum. (Vieill.) Cedar Waxwing.
*621. Lanius Borealis. Vieill. Northern Sheike.
*624. Vireo O/ivaceus. (Linn.) Red Eyed Vireo.
*560. Spize/ Socialis. (Wils.) Chipping Sparrow.

561. pize//a Pa//ida. (Swains.) Clay-color'd Sparrow.
627. Vireo i/vas. (Vieill.) Warbling Vireo.

*646. I/e/miint/ophila Celata. (Say.) Orange-crowned Warbler.
*647. l/e/mintthoptila Peregrina. (Wilson.) Tennessee Warbler.
*652. DendroicuA Aestiva. (Gmel.) Yellow Warbler.
*655 Dendroica Coronata. (Linn.) Myrtle Warbler.
*656. Dendroica Anduboni. (Towns.) Audubon's Warbler.
*657. Dendroica JIaculosa. (Gmel.' Magnolia Warbler.*660. Dendroica Castanea. (Wils.) Bay-breasted Warbler.
*661. Dendroica Striata. (Forst.) Black-poll Warbler.
*672. Dendroica Calmarum. (Gmel.) Palm Warbler.
*675. Seinrus Noveboracensis. (Gmel.) Water Thrush.
*685. ylvania Pusilla. (Wilson.) Wilson's Warbler.
*687. SetopItaga Ruticilla. (Linn.) American Redstart.
*697. Anthus Pensilvanicus. (Lath.) Anerican Pipit.

700. Anthus Spragueü. (And.) Sprague's Pipit.
701. Cinclus Mexicanus. Swains. American Dipper.
725. Cistothorus Palustris. (Wilson.) Long-billed Marsh Wren.
728. -Sitta Canadensis. (Linn.) Red-breasted Nuthatch.7 35a. Parus Atricapillus Septentrionalis. (Harris.) Long-tailed Chickadee.

*739. Parus Cinctus Obtectus. (Cab.) Siberian Chickadee.
*740. Parus Jludsonicus. Forster. Hudsonian Chickadee.

749. Regulus Calendula. (Linn.) Ruby-crowned Kinglet.
.. 57. Tur dus Aliciæ. Baird. Gray-cheeked Thrush.

758a. Turdus Ustulatus Swainsonu. (Cabanis.)
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*761. 11'rula MIgratoria. (Linn.) Anierican Robin.
763. 1/esperocich/u Vævia. (Gielin.) Varied Thrush.

*768. Sia1ia Arctica. (Swains.) Mountain Bluebird.

Note. -Although I may have admitted several species of birds into the foregoing
list, which had been collected and observed on the eastern, southern and western
frontiers of the immense region under investigation, yet I have no doubt that examples
of all, or nearly all of tiese, as well as of most of those entered in the sub-joined
list, annually cross the line during the season, and for the purpose of reproduction.
And it is also my belief thiat future explorations will determnne the presence therein,
even at such periods, of not a few specniens of other birds which are now supposed to
breed outside of the limits in question. It is, moreover, probable that fuller informa-
tion would enable nie to make sonie aditions to the numnber of species, thus* miarked
in both lists, whose eggs have been obtained througlh the exertiotis of Hudson Bay
officials. I should have previously stated that the recently revised and abridged check
list of North Anerican birds, according to the canons of Nomenclature of the Ameri-
cati Ornithologists' Union, lias been closely followed in the preccding and succeeding
classifications.

R. MAcFARLANE.

ADDITIONAL LIST OF BIRDS SUPPOSED TO BREED IN THE AFORESAJI)
MACKENZIE BASIN.

WATER DIRDS.

60I. Larus Minutus. Pallas. Little Gull.
61. Rhodostethia Rosea. (MacGil.) Ross's Gull.

* 69. Sterna l'orsteri". ,Nutt. Forster's Tern.
* 70. Sterna Iirundo. Linn. Common Tern.
*160. Somateria Dresseri. Sharpe. American Eider.
*169a. Chen l/yperborea Nivalis. (Forster.) Greater Snow Goose.

1691. Chen Cærulescens. (Linn.) Blue Goose.
172b. Branta Canadensis Occidentalis. (Baird.) White-checked Goose.
173. Branta Bernicla. (Linn.) Brant.
194. Ardla lerodias. Linn. Great Blue Heron.
212. Rallus Virginianus. Linn. Virginia Rail.
225. Recurvirostra Americana. Gmelin. American Avocet.

*231. Macrorliaim pus (Iriseus. (Gmel.) Gowitcher.
234. Tringa Canutus. Linn. Knot.
235. Tringa Maritima. Brünn. Purple Sandpiper.
247. Ereunetes Occidentalis. Lawr. Western Sandpiper.
256. Totanus Solitarius. (Wils.) Solitary Sandpiper.
259. fetaractitis Incanas. (Gmel.) Wandering Tatler.

*264. Nuimenius Lonyirostris. Wilson. Long-billed Carlew.
275. Aegialitis Iliaticula. (Linn.) Ring Plover.

LAND BIRDS.

300. Bonasa Umbel/us. (Linn.) Ruffled Grouse.
333. Accipiter Cooperi. (Bonap.) Cooper's Hawk.
375. Buteo Virginianus Sub-Arcticus. (loy.) Western Horned Owl.
420a. Chordeiles Virginianus 11enryi. (Cassin.) Western Night Hawk.

*428. Trochilus Colubris. Linn. Ruby-throated Humning Bird.
462. Contopus Richardsoni. (Swains.) Western Wood Pewee.
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*486. Corvus Cora.x Sinnatus. (Wagl.) American Raven.
507. Ictierus Galbula. (Linn.) Baltimore Oriole.
510. colerophayns Cyanoceph alus. (Wagler.) Brewers' Black Bird.
538. Calcarus Ornatus. (Towns.) Cliesnut-collared Longspur.

*556. Zontok ickint Unbe/ i. (Nutt.) .Gambels' Sparrow.
584. ifelospiza Georgiana. (Lath.) Swamp Sparrow.
636. Minoti/ta Varia. (Linn.) Black and White Warbler.
645. Helminthophi/u RuJcapilla. (Wils.) Nashville Warbler.
674. Seiurus Aurocapillus. (Linn.) Oven Bird.

R. MAcFARLANE.
CUMBERLAND HouSE, SASKATCHEWAN, 1lth Jalnuary, 1891.
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THE

SENATE OF CANADA
SELECT COMMITTEE

ON

RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS
IN RE

The Bill froll the fouse or oI111110ils (No. 82) intituled "il Act respeetilig the Baie
des chaleurs Railwav copialy,

REP ORT.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

FRIDAY, 11th September, 1891.

The Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom, by
Order of Your Ilonourable House made on Wednesday, the 29th day of July last,
Was referred the Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled: '' An Act re-
gpecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," and who, by Order of Your Honour-
able House made on Thursday, the 6th day of August last, were empowêred to send
for such persons, papers and records as might from timeto time be required by Your
Conmittee for the purpose of affording evidence under oath, as to any matter arising
Out of the examination by Your Committee of the said Bill, beg leave to make their
Seventh Report with regard to the said Bill, as follows:-

The preamble of the Bill sets forth in effect that by an Act of the Legisiature of
the Province of Quebec, passed in 1882, 45 Victoria, Chapter 53, the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company was incorporated for the construction of a railway fron
some point on the Intercolonial Railway in the vicinity of the Restigouche River, or
Connecting with the Intercolonial Railway, to New Carlisle or Paspebiac Bay, with
the right of coutinuing the line to Gaspé basin, and that the Company has, under the
Powers conferred upon it by the said Act and others in amendment thereof, con-
structed and partly completed a considerable portion of its lino of railway from the
Point Of commencement towards Paspebiac, and desires to complote and extend its
fine to Gaspé Basin, and that the Coinpany bas by its petition prayed to become a
railway corporation under and within the jurisdictioi of the Parliament of Canada,
with such amendments to the provisions of the said Acts respecting the Company as
to the Parliament of Canada may seem proper.

The Bill declares the railway to be a work for the general advantage of Canada,
constitutes the Company a body corporate, subject to the Legislative authority of
the Parliament of Canada, with all the rights and powers conferred upon it under
'the Acts of the Province of Quebec, provides fior the continuance of the rights and
obligations of the original Company, and contains a special clause saving the rights

2A-_Aý
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ofcreditors. The provisions of " The Railway Act" are applied to the Company,and
the rights and obligations of the Company are made to apply to the whole extent of the
line, from the Intercolonial Railway at Metapedia to Gaspé Basin, a total distance
of about 180 miles. The time for the completion of the railway to Paspebiac is ex-
tended for two years and to Gaspé Basin for four years from the passing of the Bill.
The Company is empowered to issue bonds to a total amount not exceeding $20,000
per mile of its railway constructed or under contract to be constructed.

The provisions'of the Bill will appear more in detail in the copy thereof hereto
appended.

The promoters of the Bill appeared before Your Committee by their Counsel
Hector Cameron, Esquire, Q.C., and were also represented by M. S. Lonergan,
Esquire, Advocate, of Montreal, one of the directors of the Company.

On behalf of the Company it was alleged that the Company had been
entirely reorganized; that, as reorganized, the Company were in a good financial
position and thoroughly able to carry ont the whole undertaking; that they had
undertaken to complete the railway from Metapedia to Paspebiac, one hundred
miles, by 31st of December, 1892, including the finishing of sixty miles nearly con
structed and the erection of steel bridges; that, in order to proceed to such comple-
tion, they are waiting an interlocutory judgment upon a petition made by them to
the Superior Court of the Province of Quebec for provisional and temporary posses-
sion and use of a portion of the railway, which portion is now in possession of the
curators of the insolvent estate of one Henry Macfarlane, a sub-contractor claiming
to have a lien thereon as security for the payment of the amount which may be due
to him for work done by him; that they have contracted for the doing of a consid-
erable portion of the work this summer, and expect to close all arrangements to that
end at once; that they have subsidies, from the Parliament of Canada and from the
Legislature of the Province of Quebec, which would materially aid in the carrying
out of the undertaking; that all privileged claims for workmen's wages, labour
and supplies, and all privileged debts due to the said Henry Macfarlane are, in pur-
suance of certain Orders in Council of the Province of Quebec, now being paid out
of a certain subsidy of land granted by an Act of the Legislatuie of the Province of
Quebec, which subsidy was converted into money amounting to $280,000, under
authority of another Act of the saine Legislature; that, when the final judgment is
rendered in an action-at-law which the said Henry Macfarlane has brought against
the Company to recover the anount alleged by him to be duo to him by the Com-
pany, and in a counter-action brought by the Company against Macfariane to rescind
the contract with him on the ground of non-performance thereof, which actions
have been joined for the purpose of trial, the amount. if any, adjudged to be due to
Macfarlane will also be paid out of this subsidy of $280,000 ; that the bonds of the
Company are uusold; that the Company desire to have the undertaking declared a
work for the general advantage of Canada and the Company made subject to " The
Railway Act," in order to be freed from past associations of the Railway, and as a
better guarantee for the disposal of their bonds, as well those already issued as those
for the issue of which power is given by the Bill, and for' the carrying out of the
undertaking.

The Ontario Bank and the Eastern Townships Bank, creditors of the
insolvent estate of Henry Macfarlane, a sub-contractor having a privileged
lien upon a certain portion of the Railway of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, and the curators appoi nted to the said estate, appeared before Your Committee
by their Counsel, Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-Law, and asked for an amend-
ment to the eighth clause of the Bill, which clause relates to the powers of the Com-
pany to issue bonds, alleging that without such amendment their rights would be
seriously impaired, inasmuch as there was reason to suspect the good faith of the
Company with respect to their proceedings to obtain provisional possession and use
of the said portion of the railway; that the dealings of the reorganized Company
under the provisions of the Acts ofthe Legislature ofthe Province ofQuebec and the
Orders in Council of the Government of Quebec above referred to, cast suspicions
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upon the intentons of the Company with respect to the privileged and other credi-
tors; that the lien alleged to be claimed by Henry Macfarlane is a bonafide and
existing lien ; that attempts have been made by the Company to oust the legal
representatives of lenr'y Maefarlane from their possession of the said portion of the
railway; and that the unrestricted right to issue bonds would, in consequence of
the priority given to such bonds by " The Railway Act," render worthless the
security afforded by the said lien.

As reported by Your Committee in their fourth report made on Friday the 14th of
August last, on the 6th of August last, during the course of the examination before Your
Committee into this matter, Mr. Barwick stated that he was able to prove, and, if
given an opportunity to do se, would prove, that out of certain moneys amounting
to $280,000. authorized by the Government of the Province of Quebec to be paid to
the Company on account of the subsidies granted by the Legislature of the Province
of Quebec, in consideration of the construction and completion of' the Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway, a sum of money amounting to $175.000 had been improperly retained
and impr'operly applied to purposes other than the construction and completion of
the said railway and having no connection therewith; that the present directors of
the Company linew of and acquiesced in such retention and improper application of
these moneys; that such retention was effected by the intermediation of one Charles
N. Armstrong, the contractor for the building of the railway, who, nominally, re-
ceived the said sum of $175,000, and by the appointment of one Jean Chrysostome
Langelier as a commissioner, for the purpose of settling the privileged claims
and debts due in respect of' the railway, to whom certain letters of credit to
the amount of $175,000 had been issued by the Government of the Province of Que-
hec, apparently foi' that purpose, but in reality to effect the improper retention and
applicatioti of these moneys and their diversion from their proper and legal oJijects.
Mr. Barwick further alleged that the security in respect of the said lien and the
amounts secured thereby, had already been impaired by such retention and improper
application of the said sum, and that it would not be-just or proper to entrust further
Power of issuing bonds to the Company, and especially to the present directors
thereof, without some amendment to the Bill being made for the protection of the
rights of the said estate and of' the said creditors thereof.

The allegations made by Counsel for the Opposants were denied by the pro-
flmoters of the Bill.

Your Committee, being of op inion that the determination of the truth of the
allegations made by Counsel for the Opposants is material, not only to the question
whether the Bill should be amended in order to preserve any rights possessed by
the Opposants, but also to the question whether the Bill as a whole should be passed,
resolved to inquire into the truth of the said allegations, and for that purpose
obtained, bv Order of Your Honourable House, made on Thursday, the 6th August
last, power to send for persons, papers and records, required for the purpose of
affording evidence as t> any matters ar'ising out of the examination of the Bill.

In pursuance of the powers conferred on them by Your Honourable House,
Your Committee have carefully enquired into all mattei's arising out of the Bill, and
have examined a number of witnesses upon oath.

On the 7th of August last, at the commencement of the investigation into the
charges made by Counsel for Opposants, Mr. M. S. Lonergan aforesaid, one of the
directors of the Company, stated on behalf et the promoters that they desired to
Withdiraw the Bill, but Your Committee decided not te recommend that leave be
granted to withdraw the Bill and proceeded to the hearing of evidence, which
decision1 was maintained by Your Honour'able House by a vote taken on Friday the
7th of August last.

The Company and their Counsel thereafter ceased to appear before Your Com-
mYittee to promote the Bill, and formally notified Your Committee that they had so
ceased to appear, as is shown by the letters from the Secretary of the Company

and from Mr. Lonergan, which are printed at page 34 of the Minutes of Proceed-
1ngs, and marked " D " and " E " respectively. 'Before receiving these letters Your
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Commiitee had summoned Messrs. Lonergan and A. M. Thom to give evidence and,
after some delay, they, as well as the President of the Company, Mr. James Cooper,
of Montreal, attended as witnesses. The reasons given by them for having desired
to withdraw the Bill were, 'in substance, that in their opinion the sale of the Com-
pany's bonds would be rendered so difficult by the disclosures in the enquiry then
to be made by Your Committee, as to make it useless for them to proceed with the
undertaking; and that any amendment restricting the bond issuinlg power or
receognizing the priority of Henry Macfarlane's lien would have a similar effect.

The Opposants in reply maintained that to allow the Bill to be withdrawn would
be, in effect, to leave them and other privileged creditors at the mercy of the Com-
pany and liable to be deprived, by such illegal and improper practices as those
alleged by their counsel and herein above mentioned, of the assets, by way of sub-
sidies and otherwise. which should go to the satisfying of any final judgment that
may be rendered in Henry Macfarlane's favour; and further, that in view of the
subsidies granted to the Company by the Parliament of Canada the Bill should be
passed, so as to bring the Company entirely within the legislative jurisdiction of the
Parliament of Canada.

The Honourable François Langelier, Q.C., appeared before Your Committee on
the seventh of August, as Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec, at
the special request of the Honourable Honoré Mercier, Premier of the Province of
Quebec, as appears by the telegram to be found at page 10 of the Minutes of Proceed-
ings, and represented that Government throughout the subsequent proceedings. Mr.
Langelier took no exception to the action of Your Committee until Tuesday, the 11th
August, when. upon Charles N. Armstrong, one of the witnesses under examination,
being questioned with respect to certain Orders in Council made by the Government
of Quebec, Mr. Langelier objected formally on the ground that the Governmenit of
the Province of Quebec is responsible to the Legislature of that PIovince and not to
the Parliament of Canada; and he also objected to any evidence being gone into,
which might have for its object t'o prove anything done officially by the Government
of the Province of Quebec. le further objected to any question intended to investigate
the officiai acts of the Government of the Province of Quebec, and he denied the
jurisdiction of the Senate of Canada and of Your Committee to make any inquiry
into the charges made hy the Counsel for the Opposants.

As the result of the examination made, and of the evidence given before them,
Your Committee find that the following facts have been proved

FINDINGS OF FACTS.

The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company was incorporated in 1882 by the Act
of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, 45 Victoria, Chapter 53.

By this Act the Company was vested with rights to build a railway from sone
point on the Intercolonial Railway in the vieinity of the Restigouche River, or con-
necting with the Intercolonial Railway, and extending to New Cailisle or Paspebiac
Bay, with the right of continuing the line to Gaspé Basin.

This Act also enacted that it should, for all purposes whatsoever, be deemed to be
valid and in full force and effect as to such portion or portions of the railway as should
be commenced within five years and completed within ten years from the passing of
the Act (lst May, 1882).

By another Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec passed in the same
Session, 45 Victoria, Chapter 23, the Lieutenant-Governnor in Council was author-
ized to grant a subsidy of 10,000 acres of land per mile for a railway from Metapedia
station, in the County ofBonaventuire, on the Intercolonial Railway, to Gaspé Basin,
passing by the Port of Paspebiac in the County of Bonaventure, on the Baie des
Chaleurs, provided that the length of such road did not exceed 180 miles.

A subsequent Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec passed in 1886,
49-50 Victoria, Chapter 76, authorized the conversion of the land subsidy granted
by the Act passed in 1882, into a money subsidy by paying 35 cents per acre when
the lands allotted to the Company were sold and paid for.
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By another Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, passed in 1888,51-52 Victoria, Chapter 91, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council was empower'ed to
apply upon the 80 miles extending from the 20th mile to the east of Meitapedia as
far as Paspebiac, the first 35 cents per acre of the subsidy which was converted into a
subsidy in money in respect of the 80 miles of the road from Paspebiac to Gaspé
Basin. This Act provided that, in the event of such application, the second 35
cents of the subsidy for the 80 miles to the east of Metapedia as far as Paspebiac, should
apply upon the 80 miles from Paspebiac to Gaspé; and this Act also provided that
the 35 cents so applied upon the 80 miles between Metapedia and Paspediac should be
payable in the same manner as the first 35 cents to be paid in respect of the said
portion.

In 1883, by the Act 46 Victoria, Chapter 25, a subsidy was granted by the Par-
liament of Canada for the section of the road from Metapedia to Paspebiac, a dis-
tance of 100 miles, not exceeding $3,200 per mile, and not exceeding in the whole
$320,000. The work not having been commenced, and the prospects of its being
confimenced in the near future under the above Act not being considered favourable,
it was determined to undertake the first 20 miles from Metapedia Station as a
Governîmeit work, and for this purpose a sum of $300,000 was voted by Parliament
in 1884, by 47 Victoria, Chapter 8. Tendeis were invited and received, but none of
them coming within the anount of the above appropriation of $300,000, and an
offer having been made by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to build and
operate this 20-mile section, the offer was accepted by an Order in Council dated
18th September, 1885, and a contract was entered into on the 7th November, 1885.
A provisional contract was also made on the saie date for the construction of the
balance of 80 miles. subsidized at $3,200 per mile, if the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on
the first 20 miles were applied to the second 20 miles, making a subsidy on the
second 20 miles of $6,400 per mile. In 1886, by the Act 49 Victoria, Chapter 17,
this doubling up of the subsidy was ratified and the term for conipletion extended
to lst December, 1888.

The road not having been completed on Ist December, 1888, the balance of
Subsidy unpaid ($244,500) lapsed, and was revoted in 1889 by the Act 52 Victoria,
Chapter 3. By this same authority the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on the 30 miles
from the 71st to 100th mile was doubled up on the 30 miles from 41st to 70th mile,
making the subsidy on this section $6,400 per mile, the Company depositing with
the Government bonds of the Company to the value of £83,000, as security toir the
fulfilment by the Company of their undertaking to build the section from the 70th
to the 100th mile without any subsidy from the Parliament of Canada.

The total subsidy granted by the Parliament of Canada was... $620,000
On which has been paid.................... .- ..-------,--- ............. 524,175
Leaving a balance unearned of............................ 95,825

Ail payments have been made upon the report of tbe Chief Engineer of Govern-
ment Railways, after inspection.

On the 9th June, 1886, Charles N. Armstrong entered into a contract with the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to build and equip the railway from Meta-
pedia to Paspediac, for the sum of $20,000 per mile, payable as follows:-$6,400 to
bc paid out of the Dominion subsidies and $13,600 per mile in the first mortgage
bonds of the Company. The'agreement provided that, if the Legislatuie of the
Province of Quebec' authorized the payment of cash in lieu of the lands granted to
the Company, Armstrong should be paid such cash in lieu of an equivalent amount
Of such bonds of the Company, and the amount necessary to make $13,600 per mile'
should be paid in cash or in mortgage bonds as the Company might elect.

On the 8th June, 1888, Henry iMacfarlane entered into a contract with Charles
Armstrong, which was confirmed and ratified by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway

Conpany, whereby Macfarlane agreed to finish the first 40 miles of the railway then
Partially constructed, and to build and complete the next 20 miles of road in
extension of the said 40 miles.
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To secure the payments to be made to Henry Macfarlane the contract with him
provided that the 60 miles of railway, with ail the rolling stock theron, should re-
main in hiý possession and under his control, as security for, and until the fimal pay-
ment of, ail sums of money to which he might be entitled under the agreement.

Henry Macfarlane finished the first 40 milesof the railwayand partially built the
next 20 miles, but left unfinished on the section between the 50th and 60th miles the
ballasting, certain bridges in course of erection, stations, water tanks, etc. The
track on the section between the 1st and the 60th miles was in sufficiently workable
order to permit the running of regular passenger and freight trains.

By Macfarlane's sub-contract he was to receive, for ail labour required to com-
plete the first 40 miles of road, twelve and one-half'per cent. in addition to the actual
cost of the same, and in order to secure such payments a portion of the Provincial
subsidy, amounting to $70,000, was assigned to him.

Macfarlane took over the work when the snow was deep in the cuttings, when
he was unable by examination to judge of the extent of the work to be done, and he
acted upon C. N. Armstrong's statement of the amount of work to be done.

Upon the above 40 miles the work to be donc greatly exceded th. quantity
which it was represented to Macfarlane there was to be done.

Upon the certificates of work done by Macfarlane under his contract, the Coin-
pany obtained payinents of $70,000, part of the Provincial subsidy of $3,500 per mile
in respect of the 80 miles from the 100th to 180th miles, which was applied on the
80 miles from the 20th to the 100th mile. The Company and C. N. Armstrong did
not pay to Macfarlane the amount due him under his sub-contract.

In consequence of the above facts Macfarlane was compelled to suspend pay-
ment, and on the 30th of Nove'mber, 1889, he executed an abandonment of his pro-
perty.

Messrs. Riddell and Watson, of Montreal, are now the curators of Macfarlane's
estate.

A large sum of money is claimed by Macfarlane to be due in respect of his con-
tract. The question of amount is now pending before the Superior Court of the
Province of Quebec, sitting in and for the District of Montreal. The amount due to
Macfarlane is a privileged debt due by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, and
as such is payable out of the subsidy of 800,000 acres of land converted into money,
amounting to $280,000 hereinafter mentioned, the misapplication of which forms the
subject of the charges made by the Counsel for the Opposants.

An Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, passed in 1890, 54 Victoria,
Chapter 37, enacts that " It shall be lawful for the Lieutenant Governor in Council, at
"any time, upon the report of the Railway Committee of the Executive Council, to
"cancel the charter of any railway company incorporated under the laws of this
"Province, when the said conipany has not complied with the terms of its charter
"as to the commencement and completion of its works within the prescribed time,
"or when the said company has become insolvent, or when the company does not,
"or is not able to procoed with the wor-k, or for any other cause which, in the opin-
"ion of the Lieutenant Governor in Council, is sufficient to justify such cancellation."

This Act was introduced in the Legislature of the Province of Quebec with the
avowed intention of annulling the charter of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, and of compelling the shareholders to sell their rights at reasonable prices in
order to enable other persons to construct the road.

Another Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, passed in 1890, 54
Victoria, Chapter 88, authorized the Lieutenant Governor in Council to grant the
following subsidies :-" (1) To contribute to the cost of constructing the bridge to
" be built over the Grand Cascapediac River, on the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, a
"subsidy not exceeding in ail $50,000, upon condition that the said bridge be built
"at the place fixed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council, who may order that
"such bridge be bailt for the passage of vehicles and foot passengers as well as for
" the passage of railways trains, ifhe deems it in the public interest.

viii
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" (2) To aid in completing and equipping the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
" throughout its whole length, for the part not commenced and that not finished,
" about 80 miles, going to or n ear Gaspé Basinî, a subsidy of 10,000 acres of land per

mile, not to exceed in all 800,000 acres.
" Payable to any person or persons, company or companies, establishing that

they are in a position to carry out the said works and to supply the rolling stock
"for the whole road and keep it in good working order, and also upon condition

4 that the balance of the privileged debts due by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
"Company be paid, the whole to the satisfaction of the Lieutenant Governor in

Counci i."
In the month of October, 1890, Mr. Ileaton Armstong, a banker ofLondon, Eng-

land, and Mr. John J. McDonald, contractor, were requested by the Hlonourable Mr.
iMercier to inake an offer to complote the railway from Metapedia to Paspebiac
(100 miles).

In the month of November, 1890, Mr. John J. McDonald made a careful exami-
nation of the road, and subsequently, in an interview with the Honourable Mr.
Mercier, Messrs. Heaton Armstong and John J. McDonald were offered by the
honourable Mr. Mercier a subsidy of $10,000 a mile for the 40 miles of road to
be built from Cascapedia to Paspebiae.

Subsequently, Messrs. Heaton Armstrong and John J. McDonald offered to com-
plete the rond from Metapedia to Cascapedia (1st to 60th mile), and build the road
from Cascapedia to Paspebiac (60th to 100th mile), for a subsidy of $400,000 to be
granted by the Province of Quebec. The road to be bonded for $2,000,000, and the
interest a five per cent. for ten years upon the bonds to bc guaranteed by the Pro-
vince of Quebec, which guarantee was to be secured by a cash deposit with the Gov-
ernment, to be made by Messrs. Ileaton Armstrong and John J. McDonald, ainount-
ing to $840,000.

In the month of December 1890, Mr. John J. McDonald met Mr. Ernest Pacaud,
who acted as intermediary botween him and the Provincial Government, and who,
li view of Mr. McDonald's past experience. was considered by him the best man to
employ as solicitor or agent in any negotiations or business which Mr. McDonald
had as a contractor with the Provincial Government. It was then agreed that Messrs.
Heaton Armstrong and John J. McDonald were to enter upon the contract to com-
plete the road from Metapedia to Paspebiac, were to pay the existing debts on the
Works in full, (the claim of C. N. Armstrong boing stated to be about $20,000), and
were to receive a subsidy of $400,000, payable as follows: $200,000 on the comple-
tion of the 60th to the 80th mile section, and $'00,000 on the completion of the
l»ernaining section te Paspebiac; and a further subsidy of $50,000 foi building the
Cascapedia Bridge.

About the end of the month of January or beginning of February, 1891, an agree-
nment was come to with Mir. L. J. Riopel, thon the Managing Director of the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company, whereby the sum of $175,000 was te be paid into
the Bank of Montreal by Messrs. Heaton Armstrong and John J. McDonald ; the
existing debts on the works were to be satisfied therefrom. and whatever balance
remained was to be paid to Mr. Riopel for the shareholders of the Company.

It was also agreed that Messrs. Ileaton Armstrong and John J. McDonald were
to hind themsolves to operate the road for five years after its completioi.

. Mr. John J. McDonald, in arriving at the probable cost of the road, allowed in
estimate a sum of $50,000, which ho believed hte would be compelled to pay to
Pacaud during the progress of the work, for Mir. Pacaud's assistance with the

Provincial Government.
In the month of Mar-ch, 1891, Mr. John J. McDonald learned that Mr. Angus M.

Thom and others hat an option te undertake, and were likely to enter upon, the
Work Of completing the road, and were to receive therefor a subsidv of $560,000, in
additiont tthe sum of $50,000 for building the Cascapedia Bridge.

About the end of the month of January, 1-91, Mr. Char-les N. Armstrong had
an interview with Mr. Ernest Pacaud, who is described by Mr. Armstrong as being

ix
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the go-between in the dealings of Mr. Armstrong as a contractor with the Provin-
cial Government. At that interview Mr. C. N. Armstrong stated to Mr. Pacaud
that the arrangement with Mr. John J. McDonald appeared to have fallen through,
and asked whether, if any other persons could be found to do the work, the Provin-
cial Government would be prepared to deal with such persons on the same terms as
had been offered to Mr. John J. McDonald. Mr. Armstrong asked Mr. Pacaud on
what terms the latter would obtain a settiement of the mattor, and Mr. Pacaud
stated that he would obtain a settlement for $100,000. It was thereupon agreed
between Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Pacaud that the latter should make the arrange-
ment for Mr. Armstrong and that Mr. Pacaud should be paid therefor $100,000.

On the 13th March, 1891, the lion. Messrs. Mercier, Robidoux, Charles Lan-
gelier and Shehyn, ail members of the Government of the Province of Quebec,
together with Mr. Ernest Pacaud, left Montreal for New York by train. Mr. Arm-
strong went to St. John's, P.Q., by the same train, it having been arranged that Mr.
Pacaud should then interview the above'nentioned members of the Government
and inform Mr. Armstrong, before the train reached St. John's, whether the Govern-
ment would deal with the new svndicate. Mr. Pacaud accompanied the members
of the Provincial Goveriment iin their private car, and at St. John's informed Mr.
Armstrong that no doubt the matter would be arranged satisfactorily as soon as
they knew that the arrangement with Mr. McDonald was off, but that there was
no positive information then from Mr. McDonald on that point.

On the 17th April, 1891, Mr. Angus M. Thom submitted an offer to the Hon.
Pierre Garneau, Commissioner of Public Works and Premier ad interin, which will
be found printed in full in Exhibit No. 13, to go on with the works, complete the
railway, and have it ready for traffic on or before 31st December, 1892 as far' as
Paspebiac, and thence to Gaspé Basin as soon as circnmsta-nees would permit. This
offer contemplated the reorganization of the Company and was conditional upon

payment to the Company, as reorganized, of the various subsidies granted by ther
Legislature of hie Province of Quebec. It provided that the legitimate and privi-
leged claims then existing should be paid by a person appointed by the Government
for that purpose, after they had been approved and certitied by Mr. Thom as repre-
senting the Company; and as a guarantee for the carrying out of the offer a deposit
of $500,000 of bonds was to be matde. This offer was accepted, and, by an Order in
Council, passed <'n the 23rd of April, 1891, which is also to be found printed in full
in Exhibit No. 13, provision was made for carrying into effect the terms of Mr.
Thom's offer, it being made one of the conditions that the subsidy of 800,000 acres of
land granted by the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, 54 Victoria, chapter 88,
section I, sub-section J, should be kept by the Governmentof the Province of Quebec,
and employed by it to pay the actual debts of' the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, and that the said debts and claims, after they had been-approved of and certi-
tied to by Mr. Thom, representing the Company, shotld be paid by a person named
for that purpose by the Government.

On the 28th April, 1891, a statement of estimiates of work done and remaining
unpaid to C. N. Arm4trong in accordance with the terms of his contract with the
Company was certified to by L J. Riopel, Managing Director, and L. A. Robitaille,
Secretary-Treasurer of the Company, showing a total of $298,943.62. No such sum
has been sbown to be due to C. N. Armstrong by the Company.

The amount claimed by Armstrong is not a privileged debt due by the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company and therefore is not payable out of ihe subsidy of
800,000 acres of land converted into money.

By Order in Council dated 23rd April, 1891, Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier,
Assistant Registrar of the Province of Quebec, was named Commissioner to pay the
claims against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company in conformity with the
dispositions of the Order in Council, No. 237 aforesaid.

On the 23rd April, 1891, a letter of credit authorizing La Banque Nationale to
advance the sum of $75,000 to J. Chrysostônie Lan gelier was signed by the Hon. P.
Garneau, in his capacity as representative of the Premier and of the Treasurer of
the Province of Quebec. This letter of credit was payable on the 10th July, 1891.
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On the same day, the 23rd April, 1891, a letter of credit was signed by the Hon.
P. Garneau in his capacity as representative of the Premier and of the Treasurer of
the Province of Quebec, authorizing the Union Bank of Canada to advanco the sum
of $100,000 to .J. Chrysostome Langelier.

Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier, the Comrhissioner named by the Order in Coun-
cil of the 23rd April 1891, was informed by the Hon. Mr. Garneau, Commissioner of
Public Works of the Province of' Quebec, and by Mr. Siméon Lesage, the Deputy
Commissioner of Public Works for the Province of Quebec, that the letters of credit
for $100,000 and $75,000 had been issued as above set forth, and lie was by them
directed to endorse over and pvy the proceeds of such letters of credit to Mr. Charles
N. Armstrong.

Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier made no enquiry as to the amount due by the
Company to Mr. C. N. Armstrong, nor as to whether such debt, if any, was a
privileged debt due by the Company within the meaning of the terms of the Act
granting the subsidy of 800,000 acres of land (54 Victoria, Chapter- 88). He states
that he exercised no discretion with regard to such payment, that he had nothing
to do with the determination of the amount of the payment, but mnade the same in
obedience to the directions of his superior officer, and with the approval and by the
direction of Mi. A. M. Thom, the Secretary Treasurer of the re-organized Company.

Mr. C, N. Armstrong contends that the $175,000, the amount of such letters of
credit, was payable to him and was paid to him, he being entitled thereto out of the
converted subsidy.

The said C. N. Armstrong was not entitled to be paid any amount out of such
Subsidy of $280,000, and the sum of $175,000 was so paid to him only in considera-
tion of his promise to pay and payment to Ernest Pacaud of $100,000 out of the said
8175,000.

On the 29th April, 1891, the letter of credit for $100,000 was offered for discount
to the Union Bank of Canada. The Bank refused to discount this letter of credit,
having learned from Mr. Pacaud the manner in which the proceedýs ther eof were to be
appropr.iated, and believing that such would be a misappropriation.

On the 29th April, 1891, J. C. Langelier, C. N. Armstrong, and Ernest Pacaud
m»et at the office of Ernest Pacaud in the City of Quebee; at this meeting J. C.
Laiigelier drew tive cheques of $20,000 each, which choques the said C. N. Armstrong
then and there endorsed over to Ernest Pacaud and delivered to him in pursuance
Of the above-mentioned arrangement between Armstrong and Pacaud.

On the 29th April 1891 the letter ot credit for $75,000 was endorsed by J. C.
4angelier to the Banque Nationale and was discounted by him with such Bank, and

the sun of $71,750, the proceeds of such discount, was withdrawn from the Bank by
cheques of Mr. J. C. Langelier and was paid to certain former shareholders and
creditors of the old Company for their rights.

On the 6th May, 1891, Ernest Pacaud discounted with La Banque du Peuple his
note for $20,000 endorsed by P. Vallière, due July 18th, 1891, secured by one of the
cheques for $20,000 which were drawn by J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, on the
Union Bank in favour of C. N. Armstrong, payable when the amount of. the letter
of credit for $100,000 should be paid and placed to the credit of J. C. Langelier,
Commissioner, at the Union Bank. .

On the 6th day of May, 1891, Ernest Pacaud, out of the proceeds of such discount,
Paid a note of one A. F. Carrier, endorsed by Ernest Pacaud, foi $150, and a note of
0ole James Carrel for $150 due on the 8th May.

On the 11th of May Ernest Pacaud paid, out of such proceeds, a note of G. M.
Deschene for $150 and a note of J. 1. Tarte for $1,000. On the 16tb of May out of
Sueh proceeds he paid $7,000, on account of the purchase of a house fronting on the
DuIfferin Terrace, Quebec.

On the 15th of May Ernest Pacaud discounted with La 'Banque Nationale his
lote for $20,000 endorsed by P. Vallière, due July 15th, 1891, secured by another of

the five cheques for $20,000 above mentioned, and on that day, out of the proceeds
of sucl discount, paid a note for $5,000, made by himself and endorsed by the lon.
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Messrs. C. A. P. Pelletier, Honoré Mercier, Charles Langelier and François Langelier,
which note fell due on the 18th May.

On the same day, the 15th May, Ernest Pacaud, out of such proceeds, purchased
and remitted to the Hon. Honoré Mercier, in Paris, a Bill of Exchange for 25.500
francs, $5,000.

The three remaining cheques for $20,000 each were held by the Union Bank on
collection, on account of Ernest Pacaud, until the 11th day of July, when they were
paid, and the proceods thoreof placed to his credit.

On that day Ernest Pacaud, out of the proceeds of such three cheques, paid. a
note for $5,600 dated March 10th, and due July 13th, which had been made by himself
and endorsed by the Hon. Honoré Mercier, J. I. Tarte, the Hon. C. A. P. Pelletier,
and the Hon. Charles Langelier.

On the saie day, 11th July, Ernest Pacaud, out of such proceeds, paid a note for
$3,000 made by himself, endorsed by the Hon. Honoré Mercier and others, dated
April 1st, and due August 4th.

On the same day, out of such proceeds, he paid to the Hon. Charles Langelier
$3,000.

On the 10th August Ernest Pacaud withdrew from the Union Bank the sum of
$25,000.

The proceeds of such letters of credit amounting to $175,000 have been applied
as follows:-

Paid to the promoters and creditors of old Company.......... $71,750.00
Paid C. N. Armstrong.................. .................. 111.64
Paid James Cooper......... ......... .................. .2,250.00
Paid lion. Honoré Mercier and E. Pacaud, and in retiring

personal obligations of Hon. Honoré Mercier, Hon. C.
A. P. Pelletier, Hon. Charles Langelier, Hon. François
Langelier, J. I. Tarte, Ernest Pacaud, and others......... 54,700.00

Bank discount .............. .................. ......... 1,435.76
There has been drawn from the Banks, in addition, by

choques of Ernest Pacaud...................................... 44,752.60

$175,000.00
It was stated before Your Committee that the notes, signed by Ernest Pacaud

and endorsed by the Hon. Honoré Mercier, the Hon. C. A. P. Pelletier, the Hon.
Charles Langelier and others, were discounted with a view to form -a fund towards
contesting sone of the last Federal elections in the Province of' Quebec and produe-
ing counter contestations; but the evidence proves that a note of $5.000 was dis-
couinted by the same parties at La Banque du Peuple, Quebec, on the 28th February,
1891, and Mr. Webb, the cashier of the Union Banik of Canada, Quebec, states that
another note of $5.000 was discounted on the same date, five days before the said
elections.

It is not possible to trace how such sum of $44,752.60 was divided, as the
choques representing such sum were withdrawn from the Banks by Ernest Pacaud
on the 6th, 7th, and 8th August, 1891, after Your Committee had begun their inves-
tigation and after Ernest Paeaud had become aware that a summons had been issued
by Your Committee requiring him to appear before them and give evidence in this
matter.

On the 12th of October, 1889, $54,000, part of the subsidy voted to the Railway
by the Parliament of Canada, became due and payable. This sum was due to the
Ontario Bank, having been assigned to the Bank to secure advances made to Macfar-
lane to enable him to proceed with his work of construction. There were thon
.wages due to Maefarlane's men, to the amount of $13,000, for work on the first sixty
miles of the Railway; and this sum of $54,000 was paid to the Ontario Bank upon
the Bank undertaking to see the above wages paid.

There was also then due and payable a sum of $28,545 as part of the subsidy
voted by the Legislature of the Province of Quebec. This sum was also due to the
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Ontario Bank, having been assigned to that Bank to secure advances made to Mac-
farlane to enable him to proceed with his work of construction.

On the 23rd of October, 1889, the Hon. Charles Langelier, in his capacity of
Commissioner named by letters patent issued by the Government of the Province
of Quebec, began taking evidence with a view to fixing the amount due to Macfar-
lane's workmen.

On the 28th November, 1889, J. Chrysostome Langelier began paying such work-
men, and, between that date and the 31st of October, 1890, expended the whole
balance of such Provincial subsidy due to the Bank, amounting to $28,545.

The wages due to Macfarlane's workm3n have been paid in full, and the Ontario
Bank have fully complied with their undertaking to that effect.

On Tuesday the 25th day of August last, Walter Barwick, Esquire, Counsel for
the Opposants, declared his case closed. Upon the 27th of August last the Hon.
François Langelier, Q.C., Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec,
declared his case closed and was asked by the Chairman of Your Committee whether
he desired to call and examine any witnesses, and declared that he did not.

Upon the above facts and upon the evidence, oral ançi written, produced in sup-
port of them, Your Committee find that out of the said sum of $280,000 the Company
was illcgally deprived of the sum of $175,000 which was appropriated and disposed
of as above stated, and that the assets of the Company applicable to the payment of
its debts and the completion of the railway, have been improperly and illegally
diminished to the extent of the said sum of $175,000.

Your Committee further report as follows:
. On the 25th August last, during the course of the enquiry by Your Committee
into the matters above reported upon, Jean Chrysostome Langelier, a witness then
under examination, produced a document purporting to be an affidavit sworn to by
one George A. Taylor, of Brockville, before the said Jean Chrysostome Langelier,
Justice of the Peace, at Quebec, on the twenty-seventh day of January, 1891, which
document was subsequently filed, as Exhibit No. 68.

The Honourable François Langelier, Q.C., Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec, thereupon made the following statements, in substance:-

That out of certain subsidies granted to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
Pany by the Parliament of Canada, the sirm of $118,000 had been embezzled by the
said Company, of which the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, then and now a Senator
Of Canada, was President at the time of such embezzlement; that criminal proceed-
ings had been threatened against the Company; that the Company had been obliged
to repay the said sum under such threat of criminal proceedings; that his said state-
rment as to the embezzlement of the said sum was borne out by statutory declaration,
nfamely by the document above mentioned; and that the charge of embezzlement so
made by him was made from information he had that, if the said George Taylor and
Other persons mentioned by the said the Honourable François Langelier were sum-
Imoned by Your Committee as witnesses, it would be proved by thein that the sum
of & 118,000 out of the subsidies so granted had been so embezzled.

On the 27th August, the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, Senator, appeared
before Your Committee and replied to the statements herein above mentioned as
having been made by the Honourable François Langelier, Counsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec, and stated that at the previous mee ing of Your
Conmittee the Hlonourable François Langelier had preferred a charge of embezzle-
ment against him and his associates acting as directors of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company, and requested Your Committee to institute a searching investi.
gation into the said charges and to afford every facility for such investigation to the
lonourable François Langelier. The Honourable Théodore Robitai lle also expressed
a desire that the said investigation should extend to ail the doings of the Company
since its inception, stating that he was prepared to stand by the consequences.

The Honourable François Langelier, Counsel for the Government of the Province
of Quebec, thereupon stated that he was prepared to prove the said charges made
by h im.
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As it appeared from the statements made before Your Coinmittee that the sum
of $118,000, in respect of which the said charges were made, was a portion of certain
subsidies voted by the Parliament of Canada in aid of the construction of the first
20 miles of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and that such embezzlement or misap-
propriation of the said sum would have been a direct violation of the conditions upon
which thesaid sibsidies were granted, YourCommittee thereupon resolved to enquire
into the said charges.

ýSuch witnesses were summoned and attended before Your Committee, aid suci
other evidence was adduced as was desired by the Hlonourable François Langelier
in support of the said charges made by him.

On the 28th day of August, during the course of the enquiry by Your Com-
mittee, the Honourable François Langelier, Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec, again stated that he would prove the charges he had made
against the former directors of the company, of whom the Honourable Théodore
Robitaille was one, and that the money alleged to have been so embezzled had been
restored only under a threat of criminal proceedings.

The only documentary evidence in support of the said charges produced by the
Honourable François Langelier is the document above referred to, Exhibit No. 68,
which is not a statutory declaration lawfully made, but, on the contrary, a document
sworn to and executed in contravention of the " Act respecting Extra-judicial Oaths,"
and the only oral testimony adduced in support of the said charges is that of the
said George A. Taylor and of George B. Burland.

Neither th'e said document, nor the evidence of the said Taylor and Burland bear
out the said charges or afford any foundation for the same. On the contrary, the
said document is simply a statement as to the disposal made of certain moneys de-
posited as security for the payment of work to be done by the firm of sub-contractors
of which the said Taylor was a member upon the first 20 miles of the railway. And
as appears by the evidence given upon oath by the said Taylor, the said work was
duly paid for to the full satisfaction of the said firm out of the subsidies.

Thie said Taylor further testified that neither ho nor the firm of which he was a
member had ever had any idea of making such charges, that the use to which the
said document had been put was an unfair and false use thereof, and that such use
thereof was entirely without his knowledge or consent.

After the examination of the said Taylor, the Honourable François Langelier,
Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec, stated that he meant, not a
embezzlement in the sense of the criminal law, but a misapplication, that he had
used the word in the charges made by him as equivalent Io the French expression
"détournement de fonds " or " misapplication," and that he withdrew the word
"embezzlement."

The Hlonourable François Langelier, Counsel for the Goverument of the Prov-
inee of Quebec, made no attempt to produce before Your Committee any proof in
support of the charge made by hin that under the threat of* criminal proceedings
being instituted, the Honourable Théodore Robitaille and his associates as directors
of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company had restored the amount which by the
said charge it was alleged they had embezzled. It was proved however by the
evidence oi the witness Taylor, who was summoned at the instance of the Houur-
able François Langelier, given under cross-examination by Counsel for the Honour-
able Theodore Robitaille, that the said charge was totally unfounded.

The further evidence given before Your Committee by the witnesses examined
on behalf of the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, also showed that the said charges and
each of them were unfounded in fact.

Your Committee find that the 8 118,000, which formed the subject of the charges
made by the Honourable François Langelier, were fully and honourably accounted
for throagh Messrs. Burland and Murray Smith, the trustees appointed to disburse
the same.

On Tuesday the first of September instant, the Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec declared that he had no further charges to make and that the
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charges made by him were made against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company
and in no respect against the said Honourable Théodore Robitaille personally,
but. upon being asked if ho wished to withdraw the same in view of the evidence
given with respect theroto, ho, the said Counsel for the Government of the Pro-
vince of Quebec, declared that he persisted therein. He further stated that every
facility had been afforded him by Your Committee to make proot in support of the
said charges made by him and that he desired to adduce no further evidence in
support thoreof.

On Monday the third of September instant, the Chairman of Your Committee
enquired whether any member of the Committee or any other person present desired
any additional witnesses to be summoned to give evidence in the matter of this Bill,
and, no response being made to such enquiry, the investigation was declared to be
closed.

Your Committee further report that, in obedience to the order made by Your
Honourable House on Friday, the 7th August last, Charles N. Armstrong, of the
City of Montreal, contractor, has appeared and given evidence before Your Com-
mittee; that in obedience to the order made by Your Honourable House on Friday,
the 14th August last, the said Charles N. Armstrong has answered the questions put
to him, his refusal to answer which was on the last mentioned date reported by
Your Committee in their Fourth Report to Your Ilonourable House; and that the
said Charles N. Armstrong has been by Your Committee discharged fron further
attendance befo-re them.

Your Committee again report that certain witnesses for whose appearance to
give Evidence before Your Committee, summonses were issued, namely:-

Ernest Pacaud, of the city of Quebec, editor of I,'Electeur newspaper;
The Honourable Pierre Garneau, of the city of Quebec, Commissioner of Public

Works of the Province of Quebec ;
Gustave Grenier, of the City of Quebec, Clerk of the Executive Council of the

Province of Quebec;
Philippe Vallière, of the city of Quebec, furniture manufacturer; and
Siméon Lesage, of the city of Quebec, Assistant Commissioner of Public Works

of the Province of Quebec,
have failed to appear before Your Committee in obedience to such summonses.

As reported at greater length in the Sixth Report made by Your Committee on
Thursday the 3rd September instant, Ernest Pacaud, upon being summoned at his
own request, left Canada immediately and went vid New York to France; the
HUonourable Pierre Garneau has declined to appear, giving as his reasons, firstly his
being in il-health and subsequently that his colleagues in the Government of the
Province of Quebec are of opinion that ho and they are responsible only to the
Legislature of the Province of Quebec; Gustave Grenier left Quebec upon being
informed by telegramn from Your Committee of the tsue of a summons for his
appearance, and could, therefore, iot be served with a second summons; Philippe
V allière has made no excuse for his non-appearance; and Siméon Lesage has intormed
îour Committee that he had received instructions from the members of the Quebec
Government not to appear.

Your Committee in reporting the continued default of the abovo mentioned
Witiesses to appear before them, assert the right of your Committee to issue sum-
Monses to the maid witnesses, and repeat the opinion expressed in the said Sixth
Report that it is the undoubted right of the Senate to compel the appearance of
the said witiesses before your Committee.

With respect to the said Bill Your Committee beg leave further to report as fol-
lows:--

On Wednesday the 9th September instant, the Honourable Mr. Ogilvie, a mem-
ber cf the Committee, stated to Your Comnittee on behalf of the promoters of the
Bill, that the promoters no longer desire to withdraw the Bill, but, on the contrar-y,
desire to proceed therewith.
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Your Committee recommend that the amendments be made to the Bill, which
are set foith in the Schedule " A" annexed to this Report.

The said amendments weie pioposed by the opposants and have been agreed to
by the promoters of the said Bill, and are recommended by Your Committee as being,
in the opinion of Your Committee, of a character to ensure the carrying out of the
undertaking of the Company, to protect the rights of the opposants, and as being
required by the public interest in view of the large sums of money granted to the Baie
(les Chaleurs Railway Company by the Parliament et Canada as subsidies in further-
ance of the'r undertaking.

Yoir Committee submit herewith the minutes of their proceedings in the matter
of this Bill, the evidence of the witnesses examined upon oath before them, and ail
documents and vouchers produced before Your Committee.

Ail which is respecfully submitted.
A. VIDAL,

Chairman.

SCHEDULE A.

Proposed Amendnents to the Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled " An
Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company."

Page 1, line 40.-After "3" insert " Except as otherwise provided by thls
Act."

Page 2, line 1.-After " privileges " insert " and be subject to the same obliga-
tions and liabilities."

Page 2, Une 5.-Leave out from " Canada " to the end of clause Three.
Page 2, line 12.-After "5" insert " Except as otherwise provided by this Act."
Page 2, Une 14.-Leave out froi " Company " to the end of clause Five.
Page 2, line 16.-After clause Five insert clause " A."

" Clause A."

"Whereas the Company have admitted that by a certain contract made on the
"eighth day of June, A.D. 1888, by ono Charles N. Armstrong with one Henry Mac-
"farlane, for the construction, equipment and completion of certain portions of the
"railway of the Company, which contract was duly confirmed and ratified by the
"Company on the fourteenth day of June, A.D. 1888, and for the fulfilment of which
"the Company thereby obligated themselves jointly and severally with the said Charles
"N. Armstrong, a possessory lien (droit de rétention) was constituted upon the said
"portions, and upon ail rolling stock and appurtenances of the said portions, as
"seeurity foi the rights of the said Henry Macfarlane under the said contract, and
"have aiso admitted that, under the said lien, the said Henry Maefailane and the
"Curators of his insolvent estate were and are entitled to the possession of the said
"portions of the railway, and ail rolling stock and appurtenances of the said por-
"tions, until discharge of all claims by him or the said Curators in respect thereof,
"and whereas the Company and the said Charles N. Armstrong, of the one part, in
"consideration of the relinquishment of such possession, and the said Macfarlane
"and the Curators of bis insolvent estate, of the other part, in consideration of such
"admissions and of the provisions herein made for the further security of their
"rights', have agreed together and asked that by this Act such admissions shall be
"ldeclared and the foilowing provisions of this section be made:

"The company shall, for the purpose of their undertaking, have full possession,
"occupation, and enjoyment of ail such portions of the railway and the rolling and
"other stock and moveable plant used in the working thereof, as are subject to or
"affected by the said lien; and, as furtMer secuiity for the preservation of' the rights
"now possessed by, or which may hereafter be possessed by the said Henry Mac-
"farlane or his legal representatives in virtue of such contract, and for payment by
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"the Company and the said Charles N. Armstrong, or either of them, for all work
"done and rolling stock, materials and supplies furnished by the said Henry Mac-
"farlane or his legal representatives, upon or in respect of the said portions of the
"railway, he and they are hereby declared to have had, since the eighth day of June,
"A.D. 1888, and shall have a first preferential claim and charge upon that part of
"the railway of the Company, extending from its junction with the Intercolonial
"IRailway at or near Metapedia to the Cascapedia River, and upon all lands, works,
"buildings, materials, rolling stock, and other property, moveable or immoveable, to
"the said part of the railway, at the date of the passing of this Act, appurtenant or
" belonging.

" 2. The said claim and charge has had and shall have priority over all mort-
"gages, hypothecs, charges and encumbrancos whatsoever, created by the Company,
"before or after the passing of this Act, for any purpose whatsoever, upon the said
"part of the railway, or upon the said lands, works, buildings, materials, rolling
"stock or other property, moveable or immoveable, to the said part appurtenant; and
"no registration in any manner whatsoever shall be necessary in order to preserve
"such priority.

" 3. If the Company deposit a sum of not less than one hundred and eighty
4thousand dollars in any chartered bank in Canada, to the joint credit of the ien-

eral Manager of the Ontario Bank and of the President of the Company and their
respective successors in office, in trust, as security for and to be applied towards

4the payment of any sum, which may, by any final judgment, agreement or arbitra-
"tion between the said Henry Macfarlane or his legal representatives, and the Com-
" pany or the said Charles N. Armstrong, be found to be due to the said Henry Mac-

farlane or his legal representatives in virtue of the said contract, or for work done,
"or rolling stock, materials or supplies furnished by the said Henry Macfarlane or

his legal representatives, then, and so soon as such deposit has been made, the
said claim, charge and lien shall cease to exist.

"4. The Company shall, within ten days of making such deposit, fyle with the
"Minister of Railways and Canais a deposit receipt or other sufficient certificate of
"such deposit, and shall give notice of such fyling by advertisement in the ' Canada
" Gazette.'"

Page 2, line 30.-After " Act " insert "and of this Act."
Page 2, line 41.-A fter " board " i'nsert clause " B."

" Clause B."
"Notwithstanding the provisions of the next preceding section, the Governor

4in Council may appoint two persons to be directors of the Company in addition to
"the number already authorized by the Act of Incorporation and by this Act; such
"directors shall not require to be qualified by the holding of any shares, and shall
"have all the rights, powers and authority conferred upon directors of the Com
'pany by " The Railway Act," or by this Act.

" 2. If the Governor in Council exercises the power of appointing two direc
"tors, tive directors shall constitute a quorum."
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An Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company.

W IIEREAS by an Act of the Legislature of the Province
of Quebec passed in the forty-fifth year of Her Majesty's

reign, chapter fifty-three, the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, hereinafter called the Company, was incorporated, with
all the powers, rights and privileges in the said Act mentioned,
for the construction of a railway from some point on the Inter-
colonial Railway in the vicinity of the Restigouche River, or
connecting with the said Intercolonial Railway, and extending
to New Carlisle or Paspebiac Bay, with the right of continuing
the line to Gaspé Basin; and whereas the said Act was amended
by an Act passed in the session of the same Legislature held
in the forty-ninth and fiftieth years of Her Majesty's reign,
chapter eighty; and whereas the Company has, under the
powers conferred upon it by the said Acts, constructed and
completed in part a considerable portion of its line of railway
from the point of commencement on the Intercolonial Railway
towards Paspebiac, and desires to complete and extend its line
to Gaspé Basin ; and whereas the Company has, by its petition,
prayed to become a railway corporation under and within the
jurisdiction of the Parliament of Canada, with such amend-
ments to the provisions of the said Acts respecting the Coin-
pany as to the Parliament of Canada seem proper, and it is
expedient to grant the prayer of the said petition : Therefore
Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate
and House of Commons of Canada, enacts as follows:-

1. The Baie des Chaleurs Raihvay is hereby declared to be
a work for the general advantage of Canada.

2. From and after the passing of this Act, the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company shall be and is hereby declared to
be a body corporate subject to the legislative authority of the
Parliament of Canada, with all and every the powers, rights,
immunities, privileges, franchises and authorities from time to
time conferred upon the said Company under and by virtue of
the above recited Acts of the Legislature of the Province of
Quebec, and each of them, as set out in the schedule to this Act,
in as full and ample a manner in all respects as though the
several provisions of the said Acts of the Legislature of the
Province of Quebec were incorporated into and re-enacted by
this Act.

3. The Company shall in all transactions and matters
occupy a like position, and shall in all respects stand in a like
light and condition, and shall in all things and to the fullest
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extent have and possess the same rights, powers and privileges
as the said railway company incorporated under the said above
recited Acts of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec
before the said railway was declared to be a work for the
general advantage of Canada, excepting in so far as its powers
may be affected by the provisions of this Act.

4. The provisions of " The Railway Act" shall apply to the
Company in the same manner as if the Company had been
originally incorporated by the Parliament of Canada, and shall
be read and construed herewith in the same manner as though
forming part hereof and expressly incorporated herein.

5. Nothing herein contained shall alter, diminish or preju-
dice in any manner or form the rights, powers or privileges of
any creditor of the Company, or of any person or corporation
having any claim or lien of any nature or sort against the Com-
pany or undertaking.

6. Tho rights, powers, privileges and obligations of the Com-
pany respecting the construction of its line shall apply to the
extent in mileage from the junction with the Intercolonial
Railway at Metapedia to Gaspe Basin, a total distance of about
one hundred and eighty miles.

7. The time for the completion of the railway to Paspebiac
is hereby extended for two years, and to Gaspé Basin for four
years from the passing of this Act; and if the railway is not
then completed and in operation, then the powers granted for
such construction shall cease and be null and void as respects so
much of the railway as then remains uncompleted.

S. The Company may make and issue, in the manner
provided by and subject to the provisions of " The Railway
Act," bonds not exceeding in the whole' twenty thousand
dollars per mile of its railway, constructed or under contract to
be constructed, and may secure such bonds in the manner pro-
vided by " The RailwayiAct ; " Provided that the total amount
of the bonds issued, or to be issued, shall not in any case exceed
the said sum.

9. General meetings and special general meetings of the
shareholders of the Company may be held, from time to time,
at the head office of the Company at Montreal.

10. The Board of Directors of the Company shall not exceed
nine members, the increase beyond seven to be determined by
a resolution of the said board.
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SCIEDULE.
STATUTES OF THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.

Year and Chapter. Title of Act.

45 Vie., cap. 53................. An Act to incorprate the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way Company.

49-50 Vic., cap. 80.............. An Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Cornpany.
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1891.

THE SENATE

SELECT CC

OF CANADA.

)MMITTEE

RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

In Re THE BILL FROM THE HOUSE OF COMMONS (No. 82) INTITULED: "A N ACT

RESPECTING THE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY."

ORDER OF REFERENCE.

EXTRACT FROM THE MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE
OF CANADA, WEDNESDAY, 29TH JULY, 1891.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (82) intituled: " An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was read a second time.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable Mr.
]ROS, it was

Ordered, That the said Bill be referred to the Committee on Railways, Telegraphs
and Harbours.

Attest,

EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN,
Clerk of the Senate.
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EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SELECT
COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE ON RAILWAYS,

TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

TuE SENATE,
COrMMrT RooM No. 8,

TUESDAY, 4th August, 1891.
Pursuant to adjourninent and notice, the Committee met this day at half-past ten

o'clock in the forenoon.

PRESENT :

The Honourable Messieurs Vidal, Chairman,
Allan,
Almnon,
Bellerose,
Boucherville, (le,
Boulton,
Cleiow,
Girard,
Kaulbach,
McCallum1,
McClelan,

MeDonald (Cape Breton), Perley,
McInnes (British Columbia),Power,
McKay, Robitaille,
McMillan, Read (Quinté),
Macdonald (Victoria, B.C.), Smith,
MacInnes (Burlington), Stevens,
Montgomery, Snowball,
Miller, Tassé,
O'Donohoe, Scott.-30.
Ogilvie,

The Bill froin the House of Commons (No. 82), " An Act respecting
Chaleurs Railway Company," was considered.

On clause 1,
Hector Cameron, Esq., Q.C., heard on behalf of the proioters.

The Honourable Theodore Robitaille, Senator, was heard in personal explanation
touching his connection with the said company.

The Honourable Mr. Tassé, Senator, submitted to the Comnittee a certain letter
addressed by Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier, of Quebec, to L'Etendard newspaper, of
Quebec, as published in the said newspaper in the issue thereof dated 5th June, 1891.

Mr. Charles N. Armstrong, contractor, of the City of Montreal, was called, and was
examined by the Honourable Mr. Tassé as to the contents of said letter.

Walter Barwick, Esq., Barrister-at-law, was heard to oppose the Bill on behalf of
the Ontario Bank, the Eastern Townships Bank and the curators of the insolvent
estate of Henry MacFarlane, a sub-contractor for the construction of the said railway,
and to ask that some amendment be made to the eighth clause thereof, relating to the
powers of the Company to issue bonds, in order to prevent the impairment of the rights
of the said opposants.

On motion of the Honourable Mir. Miller, the further consideration of the said Bill
was postponed until Thursday next.

Attest,

J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the 'Senate,

Clerk of Committees.
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EXTRACT FROM THE MINUTES OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE
SENATE ON RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

THuRsDAY, 6th August, 1891.
Pursuant to notice and adjournmnent, the Coinunittee mut this day at half-past ten

o'clock iii the forenooii.
PRESENT:

The Honourable Messieurs Vidal, Chairman,
Allan, McDonald (Cape Breton), Perley,
Almon, MeInnes (British Columbia), Power,
DeBoucherville, McKay, Robitaille,
Boulton, McKindsey, Read, (Quinte),
Clenow, McMillan, Smith,
Drummond, Macdonald (Victoria, B.C.), Stevens,
Girard, MacInnes (Burlington), Snowball,
Kaulbach, Miller, Tassé.-29.
McCallum, O'Donohoe,
McClelan, Ogilvie,

The Bill fron the House of Connons (No. 82), " An Act respecting the Baie (les
Chaleurs Railway Company, " was further considered.

Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-law, further heard of Counsel for the
opposants, and states that he is able to prove and will prove that out of certain noneys
am1ounting to $280,000, authorized to be paid to the Company on account of the sub-
sidies granted by the Province of Quebec in consideration of the construction, completion
and operation of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, a sum of money amiounting to $175,000
has-been improperly retained and improperly applied to purposes other than the con-
struction, completion .or operation of the said railway, and having no connection there-
with ; that such retention and inproper application of these moneys was known to and
acquiesced in by the present directors of the Company ; that such retention was effected
by thc internediation of one Charles N. Armstrong, a Contractor for building a certain
Portion of the railway who nominally received the said suin of $175,000 ; that the
security in respect of the said lien and the amuount secured thereby has already been

fimpaired by such retention and improper application of the said sum ; and that it would
not be just or proper to entrust further power of issuing bonds to the Company, and
especially to the present directors thereof, without sonie express provision for the pro-
tection of the rights of the said Estate and the said creditors thereof.

These statements are denied by the promoters of the Bill and by their Counsel.
The Honourable Mr. Miller moved that further consideration of the said Bill be

Postponed until to-morrow, the 7th instant, and that such witnesses as nay be named
by the pronoters and by the opposants of said Bill be summoned to attend on that day
to give evidence as to any matters within their knowledge relating to the said Bill
that a report be made to the Senate recommending that this Committee be empowered
tO send for persons, papers and records relating to any question arising ont of the ex-
aIination into the said inatter ; and further, that the Conmittee be authorized to em-
PlOy a short-hand writer.

M. S. Lonergan, Esquire, of Montreal, Barrister-at-law, a director of the said con-
Pany, and Hector Cameron, Esquire, Q.C., were heard on behalf of the promoters.

-And the question being put on the motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, it was
Re8olved, accordingly.
The Conmittee then adjourned until to-morrow, the 7th inst., at ten o'clock in the

forenoon.
Attest, J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Lawe Clerk of the Senate,
Clerk of Committees.
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EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE OF
CANADA, THURSDAY, 6TH AUGUST, 1891.

The Honourable Mr. Vidal, from the Comnittee on Railways, Telegraphs and
Harbours, to whon was referred the Bill (82) intituled: "An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," reported as follows :-

THE SENATE,
COM.MITTEE ROOM No. 8,

TiTuRSDAY, 6th August, 1891.

The Select Comnnittee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom was referred
the Bill fron the House of Commons intituled : " An Act respecting the Baie (les
Chaleurs Railway Conpany," have, in obedience to the Order of Reference of Wednes-
diay, the twenty-ninth day of July last, examined the said Bill and now beg leave to
report with respect thereto as follows:

1. That your Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers and records
required for the purpose of affording evidence as to any matter arising out of the exami-
nation of the said Bill.

2. That for the purpose of such examination your Comnittee be authorized to em-
ploy a short-hand writer.

All of which is respectfully subnitted.
A. VIDAL,

Chairman.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Vidal, seconded by the Honourable Mir. Ogil-vie,
it was

Ordered, That the said Report be adopted.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Ahnon,
it was

Ordered, That the Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours be and
are hereby empowered to send for such persons, papers and records, as may fron time to
tine be required by the said Conmittee for the purpose of affording evidence under oath
as to any matter arising out of the exanination by the said Committee of the Bill fromt
the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled : " An Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company ;" and that the said Comnittee be and are hereby authorized to em-
ploy a short-hand writer for the purposes of said examination.

Attest,

EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN,

Clerk of the Senate.
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EXTRACT FROM THE MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE SELECT
COMMITTEE ON RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARCOURS.

Pursuant to
the forenoon.

Allani,

Bellerose,
Boucherville, (le
Boulton,
Carling,
Cleiow,
Girard,
Kaulbach,
McCallum,

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooMI No. 8,

FaIDAY, 7th August, 1891.
adjournment and notice, the Comnmittee met this day at ten o'clock in

PRESENT :

The Honourable Messieurs Vidal, Chairman,
McClelan, Ogilvie,
McDonald (Cape Breton), Perley,
MeInnes (British Columbia), Power,
McKay, Robitaille,
McKindsey, Read (Quinté),
McMillan, Scott,
Macdonald (Victoria, B.C.), Smith,
MacInnes (Burlington), Stevens,
Miller, Snowball,
O'Donohoe, Tassé.-31.

The Bill fron the House of Commons (No. 82), " An Act respecting the Baie (les
Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

Mr. M. S. Lonergan, one of the directors of the said conipany, was heard on behalf
of the promoters and stated that they desired to withdraw the said Bill.

It was moved by the Honourable Mr. Ogilvie,
That the Committee report recommending that leave be given to withdraw the said

lI amendment thereto, it was mnoved by the Honourable Mr. Miller,
That Mr. Cockburn, M.P., be heard on behalf of the opposants.

In further anendment thereto, it was moved by the Honourable Mr. Tassé,
That the Committee proceed at once to the hearing of the evidence.

Mr. Cockburn, M.P., was heard on behalf of the Ontario Bank.

By leave of the Committee, the amendment of the Honourable Mr. Tassé was with-
drawn.

And the question being put on the motion of the Honourable Mr. Ogilvie, the Com-
flittee divided, and the naines being called for, they were taken down as follow -

YEAS:
The Honourable Messieurs

Allan, McClelan, McInnes (Victoria, B. C. ),Scott,
Bellerose McDonald (Cape Breton), Power, Vidal.--9.
Girard,

NAYS:

The Honourable Messieurs
Alnon
Boucherville, de,
Boulton
Carling,'
Clenow,

Kaulbach,
McCallum,
McKay,
McKindsey,
MeMillan,

Macdonald (B.C.),
MacInnes

(Burlington),
Miller,

Robitaille,
Read (Quinté),
Smith,
Tassé.-17.

So it was resolved in the negative.
xxvii
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On motion of the Honourable Mr. Tassé, it was
Reso/ved, That the Committee do now proceed to take evidence.

Mir. Barwick, of Counsel for the opposants, produces and fyles Exhibit No. 1, being
a written statenient as to the position and resources of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company.

Mr. M. S. Lonergan states that the said Exhibit No. 1 is in his handwriting.

The Chairman submits the following telegran:-

(Teleqp-am.)
" August 7th, 1891.

"Froi Quehec.
"To Hon. F. LANGELIER, M.P.,

"Chambre des Communes,
" Ottawa.

"Veuillez réprésenter mon gouvernement dansl'enquêteau Senatre Baie des Chaleurs,
qui doit commencer parait-il ce matin.

"(Signé) HONORÉ MERCIER."

The Hon. François Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec.

Charles N. Armstrong is called but does not appear.

Peter Dunn, house-keeper of the Senate, is duly sworn by the Chairnan, and is
examined on oath.

Exhibit No. 2, a letter froin the Law Clerk of the Senate to Charles N. Armstrong,
dated 6th August, 1891, is produced and fyled.

Charles N. Armstrong is again called and does not appear.

Counsel for the opposants applies to the Committee to have Charles N. A.rmstrong
required to appear.

Hon. Mr. Miller moved:-
That the non-appearance of Charles N. Armstrong in compliance with the request

contained in the said letter, be reported to the Senate with the recommendation that an
Order of the Senate do issue to require his attendance on Monday next before this Coin-
mlttee, to give evidence and to produce such documents as may be specified by Mr.
Barwick.

Resolved aLccordlingly.

The Comnnittee then adjourned until Monday next, the 10th of August instant, at
ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest,
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Lawv Clerk of the Senate,
Clerk of Committees.
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EXTRACT FROM THE MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE
OF CANADA, FRIDAY, 7TH AUGUST, 1891.

The Honourable Mr. Vidal, froni the Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Har-
bours, to whom was referred the Bill (82) intituled : "An Act respecting the. Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company," presented their Second Report, as follows:

THE SENA'TE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

FRIDAY, 7th August, 1891.
The Select Comittee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom was re-

ferred Bill (No. 82) from the House of Commons, intituled : " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," beg leave to make their Second Report with
regard to said Bill, as follows:

By Order of your Commitfee, made on Thursday, the 6th of August instant, Charles
N. Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, then present in the
City of Ottawa, was, by order of your Connittee, by letter signed by the clerk of the
said Committee, requested to attend before your Committee to-day, Friday, the 7th
instant, at ten o'clock in the forernoon ; that, as appeared by the evidence adduced on
oath before your Conmittee, the said letter was delivered to the said C. N. Armstrong,
personally on Thursday, the 6th instant, but notwithstanding such request, the said C.
N. Armstrong failed so to appear before your Committee ; that your Committee
are informed that the evidence to be given by the said C. N. Armstrong is inaterial to
the determination of certain matters arising out of the exanination by your Committee
of the said Bill.

Your Comnittee, therefore, reconnend that an order of the Senate do issue to the
saiid C. N. Armstrong, to attend before your Conmittee on Monday, the 10th day of
August instant, at ten o'clock in the forenoon, to give evidence as to the said Bill, and
to produce with hin all papers and documents in his possession relating to the alleged
retention of a certain sum of money paid or payable to the said Railway Company as a
subsidy voted by the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, and in particular the fol-
lowing documents, to wit :

All letters and copies of letters, all books, documents and papers containing any
entry or nemorandum relating to the passage of any and all Orders in Council passed
by the Governnent of the Province of Quebec., together with copies of all or any such
Orders in Council in any way dealing with or relating to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Conpany and the charter of such railway company, and the formation of a new company
to build such railway and the acquirement of the stock of such railway company ; and
the subsidies and the application of the proceeds of subsidies granted to such railway
colnpany or any aid for the completion of such railway, and for the paynent of privileged
claims due or at any timne due by the said comnpany or in respect of the said railway or
the contractors or sub-contractors for the construction thereon; and especially all letters
aUnd copies of letters, documents and copies of documents, sent to or received from or
exhibited by one Ernest Pacaud relative to such Orders in Council and to the necessity
for the passage of the same, and the application of the proceeds of such subsidies or any
Portion thereof ; and all letters, books, documents and writings relating to the payment
of debts of anyone out of the proceeds of such subsidies, directly or indirectly.

All which is respectfully submitted.
A. VIDAL,

chairmnanl.

The Honourable Mr. Tassé moved, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Montplaisir,
That the said Report be now adopted.

The Honourable Mr. Bellerose, in amendment, moved, seconded by the Honourable
Mr. Wark,
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That the said Report be not now adopted, but that it be referred back to the said
Committee with instruction to report their proceedings fully on the said Bill.

The question of concurrence beiig put thereon, the House divided, and the infmes
being called for, they were taken down, as follow

CONTENTS

The Honourable Messieurs

Arniand, McClelan, Pelletier, Scott,
Bellero >se, Mclnnîes Power, Vidal,
Grant, (Victoria, B.C.), Reesor, Wark. -11.

NON-CONTENTS:

The Honourable Messieurs

Abbo)tt, Flint, Macdonald Montgonery,
Boldue, Girard, (Victoria, B.C.), Montplaisir,
Boucherville, de, Glasier, Macdonald (P.E.I.), Poirier,
Boulton1, Howl1an, MacInnes Prowse,
Carling, McCalluim, (Burlington), Read (Quinté),
Clenow, McKay, Merner Smuith,
DeBlo>is, McKindsey, Miller, Tassé. -27.
Dever,

So it was resolved in the negative.

The question being then put on the main motion, the saie was, on a division,
resol ve(i in the affirmative.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Tassé, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Mont-
plaisir, it was

Resolved, That an Order of the Senate do issue to the said C. N. Armstrong, of the
City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, contractor, to attend before the Select
Conmittee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours on Monday the 10th day of August
instant, at ten o'clock in the forenoon, to give evidence as to the said Bill and to produce
with him all papers and documents in his possession relating to the alleged retention of
a certain sum of noney paid or payable to the said railway company as a subsidy voted
by the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, and in particular the following documents,
to wit:

All letters and copies of letters, all books, documents and papers containing any
entry or memorandum relating to the passage of any and all Orders iii Council passed
by the Governmnent of the Province of Quebec, together with copies of all or any such
Orders in Council in any way dealing with or relating to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company and the charter of such railway company, and the formation of a new company
to build such railway and the acquirement of the stock of such railway company ; and
the subsidies and the application of the proceeds of subsidies granted to such railway
company or any aid for the completion of such railway, and for the payment of privi-
leged clains due or at any tinie due by the said company, or in respect of the said rail-
way, or the contractors or sub-contractors for the construction thereof ; and especially
all letters and copies of letters, documents and copies of documents sent to or received
from or exhibited by one Ernest Pacaud relative to such Orders in Council and to the
necessity for the passage of the saine, and the application of the proceeds of such sub-
sidies or anîy portion thereof ; and all letters, books, documents and writings relating
to the payment of debts of anyone out of the proceeds of such subsidies, directly or
indirectly, and

Ordered accordingly.

Attest, EDOUAlÙD J. LANGEVIN,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE ON RAILWAYS
AND HARBOURS.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE ROoM No. 8,
MONDAY, 10th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee mot this day at 10 o'clock
in the forenoon.

PRESENT:

Messsieurs Vidal, Chairman.
Allani. MeClelan, Miller,
Alnion, McDonald (C.B.), Perley,
Boulton, McIniies (B.C.), Power,
Cleinow, MacKay, Read (Quinté),
DeBoucherville, Mcindsey.ith,
Girard, MMiSnowbal,
Kaulbach, Macdonald (B.C.),

MeMiller,

The Bill from the Blouse of Commons (No. 82) "lAn Ac t respecti ng the Baie des
Chaleurs lRailway Comipany," is furiher read and considered.

The petitioners do not appear either persoîially or by counsol.
Walter Barwick, Esquire, Bati4er-at-law, appears ot' Counsol for the opposants.
The lion. Fvançois Langeliev, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the C-overuminerit of

the Province of Quebec.
The Chairiman laid befbre the Committee the fo]lowing letters and telegranis

sent and receiveu:

THàE SENATE, OITÂWA, 7Lth Alg11-t, 1891.
To the IlonourabPe PIERRE GARNEAU,

Commissioner of Publie WolPkso
QRuebee.

A sumnmons has been sent to-day for you. to appear before the Sonate iRailway
Con,énittee at tell o'cloek, MXondav mýorning. next. Documents you are required to
produo ai-e mentioned theroiS.

(Signed) A. VIDAL,
Chahruan Senate Railway Conittee.

The pbove tlogrm was sent on Fiday, th Augut, at 8.45 p.m., and a ele-
Wra in the sarie words ut the Ban ti -t

TErn.st Pacaud, L'Elecieur, Quebee.'
incerk othe Executive Council, Quebe.

Angus Thon, No. 2 Ovodaie Avenue, ontreal.

C
THE SENATE, OTTAWA, 70th August, 1891.

To the Honouiable
Tho Speaker of the Sonate.

,SÎR,-I havo the honour to state that in obedience to your instiructions, viz.,
tijat 1 should pvoceed Io .Montreal, either in person or by my deputy with n view of

on 'v l'-#le C. N. Armstvong o>f that cit 'y a sumnions to appnear at teln o*'clock on the
Anolning of the beeh ins., before the Select Committee of the Senate on Rilways,

C mee atn lrock, to give evidence in the matter of the Baie des Chaleurs
Iiucarey Company, t appointed Mr. D. 0'Leary my deputy for that purposo, who
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proceeded to Montreal at the earliest opportunity, and upon his return he reported
to me that notwithstanding his earnest efforts to discover the whereabouts of the
said Armstrong, he was unable to find him, and for that reason the said summons
has not been sorved.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant,

R. EDWARD KIMBER,
Gentleman Usher of the Black Rod.

THE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY CoMPANY.

" MONTREAL, 8th August, 1891.
SIR,-I am directed by the Board of this company to inform you that they have

decided to take no part in the proceedings pending before your Committee in con-
nection with their Bill.

"In view of the circumstances of the case and their application to withdraw
owing to the expense and loss of time which this enquiry would involve them in,
they do rot feel justified in appearing by Counsel or unnecessarily prolonging the
investigation.

"iI have the honour to be, Sir,
" Your obedient servant.

A. M. THOM,
Secretary- Treasurer.

Hon. A. VIDAL,
Chairman Senate Railway Committee,

Ottawa.

E

MONTREAL, 8th August, 1891.
MY DEAR SIR.-Wheni Mr. Barwick stated his intention of examining me for

the prosecution I then desired to say that I had made arrangements to leave town
next week, and in consequence to request the Committee to examine me then, but
was prevented from doing so by the Hionourable Mr. Miller. It being uncertain how
long my examination may be deferred and my company having decided to take no
part in this proceeding, I have come to the conclusion to follow my original inten-
tion, and go to the seaside; but will have pleasure in returning to suit the conven-
ience of the Committee, upon receiving reasonable notice. My address wili be " Old
Orchard House, Maine." I regret that in my quality of locum tenens of the party
put upon trial, I was not permitted to make this explanation in your presence and
Save any further trouble.

Thanking you for your perseonal courtesy in connection with this matter.
I am, yours very truly,

M. S. LONERGAN.
The Honourable A. VIDAL,

Chairman, the Senate,
Ottawa.
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(From Quebec, Que.) QUEBEC, 8th August, 1891.

To Hon. Mr. VIDAL,
Chairman, Senate.

Cannot be in Ottawa Monday morning, as list of documents announced in
Your telegram of yesterday has not been received.

GUSTAVE GRENIER.
G

(From Inch Arran.) DALHOUSIE, N.S., 9th August, 1891.

To Senatoi VIDAL,
Chairman Railway Committee.

Will appear before your Committee on Wednesday morning.
C. N. ARMSTRONG.

H
AUGUST lOth, 1891.

(Prom Pointe au Pic, Que.)
To Hion. A. VIDAL,

Chairman, Senate.
Telegram transmitted from Quebec informs me summons sent requesting me to

appear before Committee Wednesday morning. Summons not received here. How-
ever, my state of health does not allow me to go to Ottawa at present. Will send
doct o r 's certificate if required.

P. GARNEAU.

•I

Prom Montreal, Que., 10th August, 1891.

To Hon. A. VIIAL.
Message for Mr. Thom received; he is out of town, but -will be here Tuesday.

E. J. SIMPSON.

COUNSEL for the opposants moves that an order of the Committee do issue to the
i flowing witnesses to attend upon the days respectively mentioned opposite the
larne of each witness and to remain in attendance rom day to day until discharged,rlarnely:

Ernest Pacaud, of the City of Quebec, editor of L'Electeur newspaper--Wed-
nesday, the 12th August instant.

Gustave Grenier, Clerk of the Executive Council of the Province of Quebec.
ednesday 12th August instant.

Angus Thom, of the City of Montreal, Secretary of the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
Way Company.-Wednesday, the 12th August instant.

M. S. Lonergan, of the City of Montreal, Advocate, Director of the Baie des Cha-
eurs Railway Company-Wednesday, the 12th August instant.

d A. Gaboury, of the City of Quebec, President of La Banque Nationale-Thurs-
the 13th August instant.

th P. Lafrance, of the City of Quebec, Cashier of La Banque Nationale-Thursdaye13th August instant.
XXXii
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E. E. Webb, of the City of Quebec, Manager of the Union Bank of Canada
-Thursday, the 13th August instant.

P. B. Dumoulin, of the City of Quebec, Manager of La Banque du Peuple
-Thursday, tbe 13th August instant.

J. Chrysostome Langelier, of the City of Quebec, Advocate and Deputy Regis-
trai-Thursday, the 13th August instant.

H. T. Machin; of the City of Quebec, Assistant Treasurer of the Province of
Quebec-Thursday, the 13th August instant.

The Honourable Pierre Garnpau, of the City of Quebec, Commissioner of Public
Works of the province of Quebee-Friday, the 14th August instant.

A. P. Bradley, of the City of Ottawa, Secretary of the Department of Railways
Canals-Thursday, the 13th instant.

On motion of the Hon. Mr. PoWER it was
Resolved, That any oider which Counsel may require to be inserted in the sum-

inonses for the said witnesses may bc made by the Clerk of this Committee.
Ordered, That the said witnesses be also communicated with by telegirams, in-

forming then that their presence is required before the Committee, and that the
said telegirams bc repeated by the telegraph com pany.

Ordered, That a telegram be sent to Mr. Charles N. Armstrong, at the Inch
Arran Hotel, Dalhousie, New Brunswick, informing him that the Committee will
meet on Wednesday next at 10 a.m., and that he is required to be present, and that
the said telegram be repeated by the telegraph company.

On motion of the lon. Mr. MILLER it was
Resolved, That the Clerk of Committees be empowered to send messengers of

the Senate, or such other proper persons as he may select to serve the summonses
on witnesses to appear before the Committee.

On motion of the Hon. Mr. MILLER,
Ordered, That the Clerk of the Senate do furnish the necessary funds from time

to time for the expenses of such person or persons as may be appointed by the Clerk
of Committees to serve summonses upon witnesses required to attend and give
evidence before the Committee in the matter of the Bill intituled: " An Act respect-
ing the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Conmpany."

On motion of the Hon. Mr. Miller the Committee adjourned until to-morrow
the 11th instant, at 10 o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest,
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate and Clerk of Committees.

MINUTES OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE ON RAIL-
WAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
TUESDAY, 11th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Committee met this day at 10 o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messieurs Mr. Vidai, Chairman, Almon, Bellerose,
deBoucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Kaulbach, McCallum, McKay, McKindsoy, Mc-
Millan, Macdonald (B.C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Montgomery, Miller, O'Donohoe,
Ogilvie, Perley, Read (Quinté), Stevens, Snowball, Tassé.-23.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further read and considered.
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The Chairman laid before the Committee the following ,telegrams sent and
received:-

THE SENATE,
OTTAWA, 10th August, 1891.

By order of the Senate Railway Committee made to-day, you are required to
attend before them on Thursday morning the thirteenth instant at ten o'clock, to testify
in the matter of the Baie des Chale irs Railway Company's Bill, and to attend till
discharged. Documents you are required to produce are mentioned in summons.

A. VIDAL,
Chairman of the Senate Railway Committee.

Copies of the above sent to:-
E. E. Webb, Manager of the Union Bank, Quebec.
A. Gaboury, Manager of La Banque Nationale, Quebec.
P. Lafrance, Cashier of La Banque Nationale, Quebec.
P. B. Dumoulin, Manager of La Banque du Peuple. Quebec.

J 2

Copy addressed to each of the following persons (see below):-

THE SENATE,
OTTAWA, 10th August, 1891.

By order of the Senate Railway Committee made to-day, you are required to
attend before them on Wednesday Ïnorning the twelfth instant at ten o'clock, to
testify in the matter of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company's Bill, and to attend
till discharged. Documents you are required to produce are mentioned in summons.

A. VIDAL,
Chairman of the Senate JRailway Comnittee.

Copies of the above sent to:-
Ernest Pacaud, L'Electeur, Quebec, 1.15 p.m., 10th Aug., 1891.
Gustave Grenier, Clerk of the Executive Council, Quebec, 1.15 p.m., 10th Aug.,

1891.
Angus Thom, No. 2, Overdale Avenue, Montreal, 1.15 p.m., 10th Aug., 1891.
M. S. Lonergan, Advocate, New York Life Building, Montreal; and also to Old

Orchard House, Orchard Beach, Maine, 1.15 p.m., 10th Aug., 1891.
And to -Webb, Gaboury, Lafrance and Dumoulin for Thursday, 13th.

J 3

THE SENATE,

To the Honourable P. GARNEAU, OTTAWA, 10th August, 1891.

Point au Pic, Murray Bay, P.Q.
Your telegram was received and laid before the Senate Railway Committee. By

order of the Committee made to-day, you are to appear before them on Friday
orning at ten o'clock, and to attend till discharged. Documents you are required

to produce are mentioned in summons.
A. VIDAL.

Chairman Senate Railway Committee.
xxxv
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J 4
loti) August, 1891.

From MONTREAL, QUE.,
To MGR., Ottawa.

Yours to-day C. N. Armstrong, signed Vidal, delivered at Armstrong's office,
2 p.m., and signed for by L. Armstrong ; sec reply just sent.

MONTREAL, QUE., 10.

K

From MONTREAL, QUE.,
10th August, 1891.

To A. VIDAL,
Chairman of the Senate Railway Committee.

C. N. Armstrong out of town. Will be in Ottawa Wednesday morning without
fil.

LOUIS ARMSTRONG.

L
From QUEBEC, QUE.,

10th August,
To Hon. Mr. VIDAL,

Chairman, Ry., Com., Ottawa.
Mr. Pacaud had left town when message was received.

L'ELECTEUR.

M

To Ottawa. 
10th August, 1891.

Yours date, Lonergan, signed Vidal, is undelivered, Lonergan is at Old Orchard
Beach, Me.
To Montréal, file on.

N
To OTTAWA,

10th August, 1891.
Yours date, Webb, Lafranceand Dumoulin, signed Vidal, all delivered personally.

Time 9.45, 10.05 and 9.25 p.m. respectively.
Quebec 10.

To OTTAWA,
10th August, 1891.

Yours date, Thom, signed Vidal, undelivered. Angus Thom at Valois.
Montreal 10.

O

From Quebec August 10th, 1891.

To HON. A. VIDAL, Senator.
lHon. P. Garneau is at Murray Bay your letter requesting him to appear as

witness delivered only this morning, will forward it to him by to-day's mail. U
S. LESAGE.
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The further consideration of the said bill was postponed until to-morrow.
The Bill from the House of'Commons (No. 120) "An Act respecting the Salisbury

and Harvey Railway Company " was further read and considered.
Claused 3 amended.
Remaining clauses adopted.
Resolved, to report the said bill as anended.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow, Wednesday the 12th instant, at ten
oclock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate and Clerk of Committees.

MINUTES OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE ON RAILWAYS,
TELEGRAPIS ANI) HARBOURS.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE ROOM No 8,
WEDNESDAY, 12th August, 1891.

. Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Committee met this day, at 10 o'clock
i the forenoon.

Present, the Honourable Messrs. Vidai (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
de Boucherville, Boulton, Carling, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McClelan,
McDonald (C.B.) MeInnes (B.C.), McKay, McKi ndsey, McMillan, Macdonald (B.C.),
MacInnes (Burlzngton), Montgomery, Miller, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power,
Price, Robitaille, Smith, Siowball, Stevens, Tassé-31.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82), intituled "An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further read and considered.

WALTER BARWICK, Barrister at Law, appears of counsel for the opposants.
The Honourable FRANÇOIs LANGELIER appears of counsel for the Govern ment of

the Province of Quebec.
The CHAIRMAN laid before the Committee the following telegrams:-

P
From Quebec August 12th, 1891.

To A. VIDAL,
Chairman of the Senate Railway Committee, Ottawa.

Have your telegram tenth am ready to comply with request but have not
received summons mentioning dQcuments required.

E. WEBB.
Cashier Union Bank of Canada.

Q
From Quebec August 11th, 1891.

To HoN. A. VIDAI., Chairman the Senate Railway Committee.
I have not yet received summons you refer to in your telegram of yesterday

and cannot be in Ottawa to-morrow morning not knowing what documents I have
to produce.

P. B. DUMOULIN,
Manager.
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R
From Quebec August 11th, 1891.

To HoN. A. VIDAL, Chairman Senate.
Telegram received President and Cashier cannot possibly attend at same time

please say whom you want first-answer. . LÂFRANCE,

Cashier.

s
THE SENATE, OTTAWA, 11th August, 1891.

To P. LAFRANCE, Cashier La Banque Nationale, Quebec.
Your telegram .received, Mr. Gaboury is wanted first on Thursday morning.

He had better bring a clerk with him to explain entries in Books. You will remain
subjeet to summons until notified when to come.

A. VIDAL,
SChairman Senate Railway Committee.

On motion of the Honourable MR. TAss2, it was
Resolved, That a report be made to the Senate recommending that the minutes

of proceedings and the evidence taken before this Committee be printed from day to
day for the use of Senators and members of Parliament, and that sufficient copies
for such use, not exceeding five hundred thereof, be printed daily.

Ordered, That all the witnesses except Charles N. Armstrong <o withdraw from
the Committee Room.

CHARLEs N. ARMSTRONG, of the City of Mon treal, in the Province of Quebec, con-
tractor, is duly sworn and examined, and his evidence taken down by the shorthand
writers.

During the examination of Charles N. Armstrong he is asked the following
questions by Counsel for the Opposants, and makes answer thereto as follows:-

"Question. Do you remember an Order in Council forfeiting the charter of the
"Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company under that Act?

Answer. No, sir.
"Question. Have you any copies of these Orders in Council ?
"Answer. No.
"Question. Have you seen them 9

Answer. No, sir.
"Question. Have you heard how many Orders in Council ?
To which Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec objects on the

ground that the Government of the Province of Quebec is responsible to the Legis-
lature of that Province only, and not to the Parliament of Canada. He also objects
to any evidence being gone into which may have for its object to prove anything
done officially by the Government of the Province of Quebec.

The CHAIRMAN rules that in the matter at issue between the parties before the
Committee as to a railway bill, Counsel for the Opposants is entitled to obtain
information as to the relations between the contractor, the sub-contractor and the
railway company, and that the questions as such may be properly asked.

Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec objects not to that par-
ticular question alone. but to any question trying to investigate the official acts of
the Government of the Province of Qu.ebec.

During the examination of the said Charles N. Armstrong certain papers and
documents were produced and fyled, and were marked as Exhibits Nos. 3, 4, 5 and
6 respectively.
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The said Charles N. Armstrong refuses to answer several questions put to him
by Counsel for Opposants, and persists in his refusal to answer.

On motion of the Hon. Mr. Miller the Committee adjourned until to-morrow,
Thursday, the 13th August, at 10 o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest. J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate,

Clerk of Committee.

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE OF
CANADA.

OTTAWA, Wednesday, 12th August, 1891.
The Honorable Mr. Vidal, from the Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and

H1arbours, to whom was referred the Bill (82) intituled: " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," presented their Third Report, as follows:-

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE ROOM No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 12th August, 1891.
The Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom, by order

of your H9norable House made on Wednesday, the twenty-ninth day of July last, was
referred the Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled " An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," and who, by order of your Honourable
aouse made on Thursday, the sixth day of August instant, were empowered to send
for such persons, papers and records as may from time to time be required by the
said Committee for the purpose of affording evidence under oath, as to any matter
arising out of the examination by the said Committee on the said Bill, beg leave to
mnake their Third Report with regard to the said Bill, as follows -

Your Committee recommend that the Minutes of their proceedings and the
Evidence taken on oath before them be printed from day to day for the use of
Senators and Members of the House of Commons, and that a sufficient number of
Copies thereof not to exceed five hundred be furnished daily for such use.

All which is respectfully submitted. A. VIAL,

Chairman.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Vidal, seconded by the Honourable Mr.
iMacInnes (Burlington), it was

Ordered, That the said Report be adopted.

MINUTES OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE ON RAILWA YS,
TELEGRAPIS AND HARBOURS.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No 8.

THURSDAY, 13th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Committee met this day at ten o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present: The Hon. Messrs. Vidal, (Chairman), Abbott, Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
Boulton, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McClelan, McDonald (C.B.), McInnes (B.C.),
McKay McKindsey. MeMillan, MacDonald (B.C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller,
Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith,
Snowball, Tassé.-30.

xxxix

54 Victoria. .Appendix (No. 2.A.) A 1891



WALTER BARwicK, Esq., Barrister at Law, appears of Counsel for tho Opposants.
The Hon. FRANÇoIs LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Government of'

the Province of Quebec.
The Chairman lays before the Committee the following telegram received by

him -
Telegram.

The Great North Western Telegraph Company of Canada.
No. 116.

HON. A. VIDAL,
Chairman Senate.

From Old Orchard House, Me :-
Telegram just received. Summons specifying documents will not reach me in

time for first train must then stop in Montreal for those papers and it will be thus
impossible to appear before Committee this week-can appear with papers Monday
morning will follow your instructions.

M. S. LONERGAN.

Ordered, that a telogram be sent to Mr. Lonergan instructing him to attend on
Monday and informing him that the list of documents reqired to be produced by
him will be sent to his office in Montreal to-day.

A. P. BRADLEY Esq., of the city of Ottawa, secretary of the Department of Rail-
ways and Canais, is duly sworn and examined upon oath.

During the examination of the said witness certain documents are produced and
filed as Exhibits No. 7, No. 8, No. 9, No. 10, No. 11, and No. 12.

- DANIEL O'LEARY, of the city of Ottawa, inspector of Dominion Police, is duly
sworn and examined.

WILLIAM JACKSON, of the city of Ottawa, constable of the Dominion Police, is
duly sworn and examined.

AUGUsTE GABOURY, of the city of Queboc, president of La Banque Nationale, is
duly sworn and examined.

During the evidence of said witness certain documents and papers were pro,
duced and filed and marked as Exhibits No. 13, No. 14, No. 15, No. 15a, No. 15b
No. 15c, No. 15d, No. 15e, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, and No. 21.

On motion of the HONOURABLE MR. OGILVIE, it was
Resolved, That after evidence is taken it shall be read over to the witness and he

shall have an opportunity of correcting it, and it shall be considered sufficient with-
out necessity for the evidence being signed by the witness.

JAcqUEs EMILE HUoT,, of the city of Quebec, accountant of La Banque Nationale,
is duly sworn and examined.

Ordered, That Mr. Jacques Emile Huot be discharged from further atteindance
before this committee.

E. E. WEBB, of the city of Quebec, manager of the Union Bank of Canada,
and P. B. DUMOULIN of the city of Quebec, manager of La Banque du Peuple, are
called as witnesses, but do not appear.

Ordered, That the evidence shall be read ovor to the witnesses in presence of the
chairman.

CHARLES N. ARMSTaONG, of the city of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, is
further exaiined upon oath.

The said C. N. ARMSTRONG persists in his refusal to answer the questions put to
him by counsel for the Opposants, which he yesterday refused to answer.

Ordered, That tbe said C. N. Armstrong remain in attendance upon the com-
mittee.

Ordered, That the said C. N. Armstrong be recalled.
xl
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The said C. N. Armstrong is recalled.
Ordered, That the said C. N. Armstrong do answer the above mentioned

questions.
The witness persists in his refusal to answer, on the ground that the questions

asked relate to his own private affairs, into which the Committee have no right to
examine.

On motion of HONOURABLE MR. MILLER, it was
Resolved, That the Committee is of opinion that Mr. Armstrong should answer

all the questions put to him yesterday and to-day, which he has refused to answer,
and that his refusal should be reported to the Senate.

On motion of the HONOURABLE MR. MILLER, it was
Resolved, That the Chairman prepare a draft of a report to be made to the

Senate with respect to the refusal of C. N. Armstrong to aniswer the questions put
to him yesterday and to-day, and submit the same to the Committee at its next
meeting.

Counselfor the Opposants desires that the failure of the Hon. Pierre Garneau
to appear before the Committee be reported to the Senate.

On motion of HONOURABLE MR. TAssÉ, it was
Resolved, on division, that an officer be despatched at once with a summons for

HONOURABLE MR. GARNEAU, to be served personally.
Mr. Carroll, M.P., is heard to deny certain statements alleged by him to be in

newspaper reports of yesterday's procedings of the Committee and offers to submit
himself to examination under oath.

Ordered, That summons be issued for .such witnesses as may be named in a list
to be submitted by counsel for the Opposants.

The Committee then adjourned until to-morrow, Friday the 14th inst., at 10
o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON.

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of the Comnittee.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RoOM No. 8,
Friday, 14th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at ton o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messrs. Vidal (Chairmnt); Abbott, Almon, Bellerose,
De Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, Macdonald (B.C.),
MelInnes (B.C.), McKay, McKindsey, McMillan, McDonald (C.B.), MacInnes

Burlington), Montgomery, Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power,
2bitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith, Snowball and Tassé.-28.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled " An Ac't respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company " was further considered.

WALTER BARwICK, Esquire, barrister at law, appears of Counsel for the
Opposants.

The Honourable FRANçnIS LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec.

-Resolved,-That the stenographers shall be sworn before taking down the
ovidence of witnesses.
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'The Chairman reads the following telegrams sent anl received:-
Telegram.
THE SENATE, OTTAWA, .1th August, 1891.

To M. S. LONERGAN,
Old Orchard House,

Orchard Beach, Maine.
New York Life Building, 11 Place d'Armes, Montreal.

In reply to yours of yesterday I am instructed to ir.form you to attend on
Monday next. The list of documents required has been sent to-day, addressed to you
at your office in Montreal, with instructions to keep it till your arrival.

A. VIDAL,
Chairman Senate Railway Committee.

Telegram.

To the Postmaster, THE SENATE, OTTAWA, 13th Auguet, 1891.

Pointe au Pic, Murray Bay, P.Q.
Has Honouiable Mr. Garneau received letter posted and regístered at the Senate,

Ottawa, on 11th August. If so, please send by registered letter a certified copy of
his receipt for it. Telegraph your reply at once.

A. VIDAL,
Chairman Senate Railway Committee.

X.
Telegram.

August 13th, 1891.
To A. VIDAL, Chairman, The Senate, from Pointe au Pic, Que.

Hon. Garneau a signé et retiré une lettre aujourd'hui venant d'Ottawa passant
par-Québec.

H-UBERT WARREN,
Maître de poste.

Y.

Telegran.
13th August, 1891.

Hon. A. VIDAL, Senate Railway Committee, from Pointe au Pie, Que.
Since sending my first telegram I am informed my colleagues are of opinion we

are responsible to the Legislature only, therefore I respectfully decline to appear.
P. G.

Z.
Telegran.

THE SENATE,

To D. O'LEARY, Inspector of Dominion Police. OTTAWA, 13th August, 1891.

Passenger on C. P. R. train Montreal to Quebec.
Passenger on G. T. R. train Montreal to Quebec.
Passenger on Steamer from Quebec to Murray Bay.
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Do not serve any summons on Honourable Mr. Garneau either at Quebec or
Pointe au Pic. Leave your man to serve the other summonses in Quebec. Return
yourself as soon as possible. Wire me when you get this, when you will get back.
You are wanted here to-morrow noon if possible.

A. VIDAL,
Chairman Senate Railway Committee.

A 1.
14th August, 1891.

lon. A. VIDAL, Chairman. From Richmond, Que.
Your message received, will be there to-day at noon.

D. O'LEARY.

Counsel for :he Government of the Province of Quebec reads a letter received
by him from the Honourable Pierre Garneau, and enclosing a medical certificate,
also, a tolegram received by said Counsel from the Honourable Mr. Garneau on the
13th of August instant.

Translation.

Copy of the telegram which I received yesterday, the 13th instant.
H-on. A. VIDAL,

Chairman Senate Railway Committee,
Ottawa.

Since sending my first telegram I am informed my colleagues are of opinion we
are responsible to the Legislature only therefore I respectfully decline to appear.

P. GARNEAU,
Com. Public Works, P. Q.

MEDICAL CERTIFICATE.

Translation.

The HoN. p. GARNEA&U, QUEBEC, 10th August, 1891.

Minister of Public Works.
HON. SIR,-Your son has just told me that you are obliged to go to Ottawa on

business. Being your doctor I believe it my duty to tell you that I cannot advise
this journey for you at this period of the year ; for you know that the two last
tiles you were there, you returned ill ; you will therefore allow me in this season
Of excessive heat to tell you that I am of opinion that you would do better to remain
at Murray Bay, if you do not wish to risk your health.

I remain, with respect, Honourable, Sir,
Your most obedient,

The HONOURABLE P. GARNEAU, (Sgd.) A. C. BHAMEL, M.D.L.

Murray Bay.

CHARLEs N. ARMSTRONG, of the City ofMontreal, Province of Quebec, contrac-
tor, is called andis informed that if hedesires tosay anything further as to his rafusal
to answer the questions which he yesterday refused to answer, he will now be afforded
an Opportunity of doing so.

The witness states that he has nothing further to say.
The Chairman submits a draft report to be presented to the Senate in the matter

Of the said Charles N. Armstrong's refusal to answer.
xliii
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On motion of Hon. Mr. Miller, it was,
Resolved, That the said dratt be adopted and presented as the report of this

Committee.
A. J. McGURN, shorthand writer, is duly sworn to take down and transeribe ihe

evidence given by witnesses.
PHILIPPE B. DUMOULIN, of the City of Quebec in the Province of Quebec,

manager of La Banque du Peuple, is duly sworn and examined.
In the course of the examination of this witness certain papers and documents

are produced and fyled and are marked as Exhibits Nos. 22, 23. 24, 25, 26, 27, res-
pectively.

The witness states that he has not brought with him certain books of La Banque
du Peuple which by his summons he was required to produce.

The HoNoURABLE MR. MILLER moved :-That the witness be ordered to
produce the Reg isters, Deposit Registers and Note Diaries of La Banque du Peuple
as soon as possible.

After discussion the said motion is withdrawn by leave of the Committee, on the
undertaking by the witness that Counsel for the Opposants, his book-keeper, and
Mr. Cockburn, M. P., shal have free access to the Books of La Banque du Peuple
and be furnished with certified copies of al] such extracts therein as he may desire to
have.

A. C. CAMPBELL, shorthand writer, is duly sworn to take down and transcribe
the evidence given by witnesses.

Mr. J. B. DUMOULIN is permitted te return home, and is ordered to be in
attendance when required.

ELLIOTT E. WEBB, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, cashier of
the Union Bank of Canada, is duly sworn and examined.

During the examination of this witness certain papers and documents are pro-
duced and fyled, and are marked as Exhibits 28a, 28b, 28c, 28d and 28e, 29, 30, 31,
32, 33, 34, 35.

The witness being asked a certain question about the reasons why the Union
Bank of Canada declined to discount certain letters cf credit, asks whether he is
required to disclose information about the dealings of the bank with its customers
and submits himself to the order of the Committee.

Ordered, That the witness shall answer the question.

The Committee then adjourned until eight o'clock this evening.
Attested. J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate and Clerk of Committees.

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE
OF CANADA, FRIDAY, 14TH AUGUST, 1891.

The Honourable Mr. Vidal, froin the Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and
Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (82) intituled: " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," presented their Fourth Report, as follows:-

THE SENATE,
CoMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

FRIDAY, 14th August, 1891.
The Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom, by

Order of your Honourable House made on Wednesday, the 29th day of July last, was
xliv
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referred the Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled: " An Act respect-
ing the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," and who, by Order of your Honour-
able House macle on Thursday, the 6th day of August instant, were empowered to
send for such persons, papers and records as may from time to time be required by
your Committee for the purpose of affording evidence under oath, as to any matter
arising out of the examination by your Committee of the said Bill, beg leave to make
their Foutrth Report with regard to the said Bill, as follows:-

That the Ontario Bank and the Eastern Townships Bank, as creditors of the
insolvent Estate of Henry Macfarlane, a Contractor having a privileged lien upon
the railway of the said Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, and the Curators
appointed to the said Estate, have appeared before your Committee by their Counsel,
Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-law, and have opposed the passage of the
said Bill withoutsome amendment to the eighth clause thereof, relating to the powers
of the Company to issue bonds, in order to prevent the impairment of their rights.

That in the course of the examination by your Committee into this matter the
said Counsel stated that he was able toprove and would prove that out of certain
noneys amounting to $280,000, authorized to be paid to the Company on account of
the subsidies granted by the Province of Quebec in consideration of the construction,
completioi and operation of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, a sum of money amount-
Ing to $175,000 had been improporly retained and improperly applied to purposes
other than the construction, completion or operation of the said railway, and having
no connection therewith ; that such retention and improper application of these
Inoneys was known to and acquiesced in by the present directors of the Company;
that such retention was effected by the intermediation of one Chartles N. Armstrong,
a Contractor for building a certain portion of the railway who nominally received
the said sum of $175,000; that the security in respect of the said lien and the amount
secured thereby hasalready been impaired bysuch retention and improper application
Of the said sum; and that it would not be just or proper to entrust further power of
issuing bonds to the Company, and especially to the present directors thereof, with-
Out some express provision for the protection of the rights of the said Estate and the
said creditors thereof. These charges were denied by the promoters of the Bill and
by their Counsel.

That your Committee being of opinion that the determination of the truth of
these statements made by Counsel for the opposants is material, not only to the ques-
tion whether the eighth clause of the Bill should be amended in order to preserve
the rights of the said Estate and of the creditors thereof, but also to the question
Whether other clauses of the Bill should be adopted, especially the first-class thereof,
which declares the Baie des Chaleurs Railway to be a work for the goneral advantage
Of Canada, have inquired and are inquiring further into the truth of the said state-
Ments.

In the course of the inquiry now pending the aforesaid Charles N. Armstrong,
Of the City of Montreal, Contractor, appeared as witness before your Comimnittee,
aind was examined upon oath.

During his examination on the 12th of August instant, the witness was repeat-
edly asked to explain details of the payment of certain sums of money which were,
as he stated, paid to him at Quebec by cheques to the total amount of $175,000, in
settlement of his account against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Campany, and to
explain what disposition he had made of the said cheques or of the proceeds thereof.
These questions he declined to answer, alleging as his reasons that the questions are
regarding matters which he considers have no bearing upon the subject of inquiry,
and that the Committee have no right to inquire into what disposition he has made
Of his own money.

The witness was further examined upon oath beforeyour'Committee on the 13th
August instant, and stated that he persisted in bis refusal to answer the qustions
put to hiin upon the prceeding day, giving as his reasons that he was notin any way
Obhiged to give Your Committee information relating to bis own personal affairs. And
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being thereupon ordered by your Committee to answer, ho persisted further in his
refusal.

The testimony of the witness will appear more in detail by the Exhibits hereto
annexed, "A " and -' B," being the Minutes of the Proceedings of your Comnittee
and the short-hand writer's notes of the evidence.

Your Committee being of the opinion that the questions should be answered,
report the refusai of the said Charles N. Armstrong to compiy with the Order of
your Committee in these particulars, and request the action of the Sonate thereori.

All which is respectfully submitted.
A. VIDAL,

Chairman.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Vidal, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Mac-

Innes (Burlington), it was
Ordered, That the said Report be adopted.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, seconded by the Hlonourable Mr. Read

(Quinté), it was
Ordered, That Charles N. Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, Contractor. the

witness named in the Fourth Report of the Select Committee on Railways, Toe-
graphs and Harbours, do attend at the Bar of the Senate forthwith.

Then, C. N. Arnstrong being conducted to the Bar, His Honour the Speaker
said: "The Sonate has decided that you do appear at the Bar of this House and
answer the questions which were put to you beforo the Committee. A remark has
been made that after this docision you might be willing to answer those questions
before the Committee, instead of at the Bar of the House. Have you anything to
say or answer to give ? "

Mr. ARMSTRONG.-" I an still of the same opinion that I should not be called
upon to answer questions relating to matters of a personal nature; but after the re-
solution which has just been passed in this House, I will no longer refuse to answer
the questions. I am prepared to answer them before the Committee, or here as the
House may desire."

Then, on motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, seconded by the Honourable
Mr. Read (Quinté), it was

Ordered, That the said C. N. Armstrong be allowed to withdraw.

Then the said C. N. Armstrong withdrew.

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE
SENATE ON RAILWAYS TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

FRIDAY, 14th August 1891, 8 p.m.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met again this day at 8

o'clock in the evening.
Present, the Honourable Messieurs:
Vidal, Chairman, Almon, DeBoucherville. Carling, Girard, Kaulbach, Mc-

Callum, McClelan, McDonald (C.B.), MeInnes (B.C.), McKay, McKindsey, MeMillan,
Macdonald (B C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Perley, Power, Read, Smith,
Snowball, Tassé.-22.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-law, appears of Counsel for the op-
posants.

The Petitioners do not appear either in person or by Counsel.
The Chairman reads the following letter received by him from the Honourable

François Langelier, Q. C., Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec, en-
xlvi
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closing a copy of a telegram received by him from the Honourable Mr. Pierre Gar-
neau:

HoUSE OF C0MMONS,

lonourable Mr. VIDAL, l.4th August, 1891.

Chairman Railway Committee Senate.
DEAR SIR,-L enclose a telegram I have just (2.15 P.M.) received from the

Honorable P. Garneau. As you may see, he is too unwell to come up. My telegram
to which ho replies was to this effect: Unless you are unable to do so through ill-
ness, I believe you should come. When here if any question is put to you to elicit
information obtained in your official capacity you may then object and decline to
answe r.

Yours respectfully,
F. LANGELIER.

P.S.-I would have communicated the telegram to the Committee myself, but
am compelled to leave for Quehec where I am called for an Election case fixed for
to-morrow.

(Sgd) F. L.

THE G-REAT NoRTH-WESTERN TELEGRAPH COMPANY OF CANADA.
(Telegram).
To Hon. F. LANGELIER, M. P. 189

From Point au Pic, Que., 14th August.
Not well enough to think of going to Ottawa.

(Sgd). P. GARNEAU.

E. E. Webb, of the City of Quebec, Manager of the Union Bank of Canada, is
further examined upon oath.

On a division it was
Ordered, That Counsel for the Opposants, Mr. King, ofthe Ontario Bank, Mont-

real, and Mr. Cockburn, M.P., be allowed to inspect the books of the Quebec office
of the Union Bank of Canada, so far as the accounts and transactions referred to in
the evidence of Mr. E. Webb are concerned.

The witness is permitted to go to Quebec and is ordered to attend when
required.

Charles N. Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, contractor, is called and is fuir-
ther examined upon oath.

The Chairman informs the Committee that he is obliged to leave for Sarnia
this evening on urgent business.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, the Honourable Mr. Read (Quinté) is
elected to be Chairman of the Committee until the return of the Hlonourable Mr. Vidal.

The Honourable Mr. Read (Quinté) takes the chair.
Charles N. Armstrong is ordered to remain in attendance until discharged.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, the Committee then adjourned until

Tuesday, the 18th instant. at 10.30 in the forenoon.
Attest,

(Sgd). J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate,

Clerk of Connittees.
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THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

TUESDAY. 18th August, 1891.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at half past

ton o'clock in the forenoon.

Present, the Honourable Mssrs. Read (Quinté) (Acting-Chairman), Allan, AImon,
Bellerose, DeBoucherville, Carling, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McClelan,
McDonald (Cape Breton), MeInies (Britsh Columbia), McKay, McKindsey, Mc-
Millan, Macdonald (British Columbia), MacInnes (Burlington), Montgomery, Miller,
Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Poley, Power, Robitaille, Smith, Stevens, Snowball,
Tassé.

Further consideration of the Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82): " An
Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was postponed until next
meeting of the Committee.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 136): " An Act to incorporate the
Inverness and Victoria Railway and Mining Company," was read and considered.

Hector Caineron, Esquire, Q.C., is heard of Counsel for the promoters.
The Honourable Mr. Miller, seconded by the Honourable Mr. McDonald (C.B.),

moved,
That the Chairman be instructed to report that this Committee find the preamble

of the said Bill has not been proven, on the ground that the passage of the Bill
would not be in the public interest, and would be an interference with the rights 4 f
the Inverness and Richmond Railway Company.

The Committee divided thereon as follows:-
YEAs-The HOnourable Messrs. Allan, Carling, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, Mc-

Donald (Cape Breton), McKindsey, MeMillan, Macdonald (British Columbia), Mac-
Innes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, Ogilvie, Perley, Read (Quinté). Smith-16.

NAYs-The Honourable Messrs. Almon, Bellerose, McCallum, McClelan, Mc-
Innes (British Columbia), Montgomery, O'Donohoe, Power, Robitaille, Stevens,
Snowball-12.

So it passed in the affirmative, and was
Resolved accordingly.
The witnesses present in the matter of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company's

Bill were ordered to remain in attendance until discharged.

The Committee thon adjourned until to-morrow, Wednesday, 19th August, at
10 o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON, -
Law Clerk of the )Senate, Clerk of Committees.
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THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 19th August, 1891.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at ten o'clock

in the forenoon.
Present, the Honourable Messrs. Vidal (Chairman), Abbott, Allan, Almon,

Bellerose, deBoucherville, Boulton, Carling, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum
-McDonald (Cape Breton), MeInnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindscy, McMil-
'an, M acdonald (British Columbia), MacInnes (Burlington), Montgomery, Miller,
Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith,
Sutherl and, Snowball, Tassé.-32.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Read (Quinté), it was,
Resolved, That the meeting of the Committee be held in Room "J."
The Committee accordingly removed to Room " J."
The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) entitled: " An Act respecting the

Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.
Walter Barwick, Esq., Barrister-at-Law appears of Counsel for the Opposants.
The Hlonourable F. C. Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Government

of the Province of Quebec.
E. E. Webb, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, Manager of the

'Union Bank of Canada, is recalled and further examined upon oath.
During the re-examination of this witness certain documents and papers were

produced and filed, and were marked as Exhibits Nos. 36, 37, 38, respectively.
P. B. Dumoulin, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, Manager of

La Banque du Peuple, is recalled and further examined upon oath.
During the re-examination of this witness a certain document is produced and

filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 39.
Pierre George Lafrance, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec

Cashier of La Banque Nationale, being duly sworn, is examined upon oath.
During the examination of this witness certain documents are produced and

filed, and· marked as Exhibits Nos. 40 and 41. respectively.
P. B. Dumoulin, of the City of Quebec. in the Province of Quebec, Manager of

La Banque du Peuple, is re-called and further examined upon oath.
During the re-examination of this witness a certain document is produced and

filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 42.
E. E. Webb, of the City of Quebec in the Province of Quebec, Manager of the

'Union Bank of Canada, is re-called and further examined upon oath.
During the re-examination of this witness a certain document is produced and

filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 43.
Pierre George Lafrance, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, is re,

called and further examined upon oath.
During the re-examination of this witness a certain document is produced and

filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 44.
On application of Counsel fori the Opposants, it was-
Ordered, That the witness, P. B. Dumoulin, Manager of La Banque du Peuple, do

produce all papers and documents in his possession relating in any way to the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company, or to the subject of the present investigation by
this Committee.

The Committee then adjourned till to-morrow, Thursday, the 20th August,
instant, at ten o'clock in the forenoon, the meeting«to be held in Room No. 8.

Attest J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees
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THE SENATE,
CoMMITTEE RooM No. 8,

THURSDAY, 20th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at ten o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present the Ilonourable Messrs. Vidal (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
deBoucherville, Boulton, Carling, Clemow, Girard. Kaulbach, McCallum, McClelan,
McDonald (Cape Breton), Meinnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindsey,
McMillan, Macdonald (British Columbia), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy,
O'Donohoe, Ogilvie. Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith, Stevens,
Sutherland, Snowball, Tassé.-32.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled: " An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

Walter Barwick, Esq., Barrister-at.Law, appears of Counsel for the Opposants-

The Honourable François Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec. It was,

Ordered, That a telegram be sent to Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier, a witness
summoned to appear on Wednesday, the twenty-sixth instant. requesting him say
whether he will appear on Tuesday, the twenty-tifth instant.

Philippe B. Dumoulin, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec,
Manager of La Banque du Peuple, is r-called and further examined upon oath.

Louis Cyrille Marcoux, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of' Quebec,
Secretary-Treasuirer of La Caisse d'Economie de Notre-Dame (le Québec, being duly
sworn is examined upon oath.

During the examination of this witness certain documents and papers are pro-
duced and fyled, and marked as Exhibits Nos. 45, 46, 47, 48 and 49 respectively.

Ordered, That Messrs. P. B. Dumoulin and L. C. Maircoux be dischaiged from
further attendance before the Committee.

John J. Macdonald, of Rivière du Loup (en bas), in the Province of Quebec,
Contractor, being duly sworn, is examined upon oath.

Ordered, That the witness, John J. Macdonald, be discharged from attendance
on the Committee.

P. G. Lafrance, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, Cashier of La
Banque Nationale, is recalled and further examined upon oath.

During the examination of this witness certain documents and papers are pro-
duced and fyled, and are marked as Exhibits Nos. 50, 50a, 50b, 50c, 50d, 50e, 50f,
50g, 50h, 50i, 50j, 50k, 501, 50m, 50n, 50o, 50p, 50q, 50r, 50s, 50t, respectively.

Auguste Edge, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, Advocate,
Private Secretary to Mr. Ernest Pacaud, of the said city, being duly sworn, is
examined upon oath.

During the examination of this witness a certain document is produced and
fyled, and is marked as Exhibit No. 51.

Ordered, That the witnesses, P. G. Lafrance and Auguste Edge, be discharged
from attendance on the Committee.

The Committee then adjourned till to-morrow, Friday, the 21st August instant,
at ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest,
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.
1
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THE SENATE, CoMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
FRIDAY, 21st August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at ten o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present: The Hon. Messrs. Vidal (Chairman), Almon, Bellerose, deBoucherville,
Boulton, Carling, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McInnes (British Columbia)
McKay, McKindsey, McMillan, Macdonald (British Columbia), MacInnes (Burling ton),
Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith,
Stevens, Tassé.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82), intituled " An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

Walter Barwick, Esquire. Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the
Opposants.

The Honourable François Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Govern-
Ment of the Province of Quebec.

Counsel for the Opposants produces certain extracts froin public documents of
the Province of Quebec, which are filed and marked as Exhibits Nos. 56, 57, 58, 59,
60 and 61, respectively.

A. L. Light, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, Civil Engineer
being duly sworn, is examined upon oath.

Charles N. Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec
contractor, is recalled and further examined upon oath.

Ordered, That the original document filed as Exhibit No. 5 be returned to Mr.
C. N. Armstrong, a true copy thereof to be retained by the Law Clerk.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, the Committee then adjourned till
Tuesday, the 25th of August instant, at half past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTION,

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
. TUESDAY, 25th August, 1891.

Pursuant te adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at half-past
ton o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Hon. Messrs. Vidal (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,de Boucherville. Boulton, Clemow, Girard, Kanulbach, McCallum, McClelan, Mc-
I)onald, (Cape Breton), Mclnnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindsey, MeMillan,
Macdonald (British Columbia), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe,
Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith, Sutherland, Snowball and
Tassé.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) intituled " An Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Petitioners do not appear.

2A-Dh

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-law, appears of Counsel for the
Opposants.

The Honjurable François Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec.

Jean Chrysostome Langelier, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec,
Advocate, Deputy-Registrar of the Province of Quebec, being duly sworn, is examined
upon oath.

The witness declares that lie wishes to give his evidence in the French language

J. O. Marceau, of the City of Ottawa, is duly sworn to interpret the evidence
given in French.

During the examination of this witness, certain documents are produced and
fyled, and are marked as Exhibits Nos. 62, 63, 63a and 64 respectively.

During the cross-examination of this witness by Counsel for the Government of
the Province of Quebec, a certain document is produced, purporting to be an
affidavit by George A. Taylor, of Brockville, sworn to before J. C. Langelier, Justice
of the Peace, at Quebec, the twenty-seventh day of January, A.D. 1891.

Counsel for the Opposants objects on the ground that the document is not
evidence of its contents, and that the said Taylor should be produced as a witness.

Counsel for the (-ovornment of the Province of Quebec makes the following
statements :-

That out of certain subsidies granted directly to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company by the Parliament of Canada the sum of $118,000 bas been embezzled by
the said Company, of which the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, thon and now
a Sonator of Canada, was President at the time of such embezzlement; that criminal
proceedings had been threatened against the Company; that the Company have been
obliged to pay the said sum under such threat of criminal proceedings; that the said
statement as to the embezzlement of the said sum is borne ont by statutory evidence,
namely,by the document above mentioned; and that the charge so made by hiin is made
from information ho has that, if the said George Taylor and other persons mentioned
by the said Counsel are summoned by the Committee, it will be proved by thom
that the sum of $118,000 out of the subsidies so granted has been so embezzled.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Bellerose, it was
Resolved, That the document be recoived as an indication of evidence to be given

by George A. Taylor, the person purporting to have made the affidavit.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Mclnnes (B.C.), it was
Resolved, That George A. Taylor, of Brockville, be summoned to give evidence

before this Committee.
Counsel for the opposants submits certain statements prepared by him to show

the transactions as to the letters of credit and promissory notes referred to in the
evidence, and the same are fyled and marked as Exhibits 65a, 65b, 65c, 65d, 65e
respectively.

George Ralph R. Cockbu.rn, of the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario, a
Member of the IHouse of Commons of Canada, one of the directors of the Ontario
Bank, is, at his own request, duly sworn and is heard to make a statement upon oath.

Counsel for the opposants declares his case closed.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. McInnes (B. C.) it was,
Resolved, that the Honourable C. A. P. Pelletier, Senator, be requested to attend

at the next meeting of this Committee, to explain the references made to his name in
the evidence already given.
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Ordered, that Jean Chrysostome Langelier be discharged from further attend-
ance upon the Committee.

At the request of Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec, it is,
Resolved, that George Ralph R. Cockburn, the witness above mentioned, be

requested to be in attendance at the next meeting of this Comnittee.

The Committee then adjourned until Thursday the twenty-seventh of August
instant, at half-past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest. J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE ROOM No. 8,
TRURSDAY, 27th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at half-past 10
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The 1onourable Messers. Vidal, Chairman; Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
De Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Drummond, Giraid, Kaulbach, McCallum, Mc-
Clelan, McDonald (Cape Breton), McInnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindsey,
McMillan, Macdonald (B.C.), MacInes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe,
Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, IRead (Quinté), Smith, Tassé, Vidal.

The Bill froin the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Petitioners do not appear either in person or by Counsel.

WALTER BARWICK, Esquire, Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the Oppos-
ants.

The Hon. F. C. LANGELIER, Q. C., appears of Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec.

The examination upon oath of George R. R. Cockburn, Esquire, M. P., Director
of the Ontario Bank, is continued.

During the examination of this witness certain documents are produced and
filed, and marked as Exhibits Nos. 66 and 67, respectively.

Counsel for the Opposants is heard to address the Committee on their behalf.
The Honourable THÉODORE RoBITAILLE, Senator, makes the following state-

ment to the Committee:-" At the last meeting of this Committee, the Honourable
Prançois Langelier, a gentleman of high standing, who occupies the high position
of Professor in Law in Laval University, and who has the honour to occupy
a seat in the House of Commons of Canada, who was a member of the Govern-
ment of Quebec when I was Lieutenant-Governor, has feit it his duty to prefer
a charge of embezzlement against me and my associates, acting as directors
Of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company. 1 asked you to institute a searching
investigation into the charge, and I am here to-day to repeat the request that
you shall investigate the inatter and probe it to the very bottom, nay, I desire
that you should extend your investigation into all the doings of the company since
its inception, and that every facility should be afforded and extended to the accuser.
Should you, in the course of your investigations, find out any wrong-doing on the
Part of the railway company I am prepared to stand by the consequences, but if not,
and should the investigation prove that everything is right, as I know it is, I would
ask that I should be reinstated in the position I occupied before the public before
the chaige was made, namely, a position of trust and honour. esteem, respect and
eo0d-will among my fellow-mer. Now, Honourable Gentlemen, I will ask that

r. Barwick be permitted to act as my counsel for the present."
liii
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JEAN CHRYSOSTOME LANGELIER, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec,
advocate, Deputy Registrar of the Province of Quebec, is re-called and fither
examiied uponl oath.

Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec asked whether hc desires
to summon anv further witnesses, and declares that he does not.

Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec declares his case closed,
and is heard to address the Committee on the evidence adduced relating to the charges
made by Counsel for the Opposants.

Counsel for the Government of the Provinîce of Quebec states that ho is pre-
pared to prove the allegations made by him and herein above mentioned,

The Committee decided to hear evidence as to the matter of the said allegations
to-morrow.

The Ilonourable C. A. P. PELLETIER, Senator, being duly swoîn, is exumined
upon oath touching certain promissory notes referred to in the evidence alieady
given as having been made by Ernest Pacaud and endorsed by the said Ilonourable
C. A. P. Pelletier.

The Committee then adjourned until to-morrow, Friday, the 28th August instant,
at half-past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate and Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, CoMîMITTEE Room No. 8,
FRIDAY, 28th August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Committee met this day at hlif-past
ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honouirable Messrs. Vidal (Chairnan), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
(le Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Drummond, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, Mc-
Clelan, McDonald (Cape Breton), McInnes (British Columbia), Mciay, McKindsey,
McMillan, Macdonald (B.C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, Ogilvie,
Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Smith, Stevens, Sutherland, Tassé.-30.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 162) " An Act to correct a elerical
error in the Act fifty-third Victoria, chapter eighty-one, intituled, 'An Act respect-
ing the Great North- West Central Riailway,'" was read and considered, and it was

Resolved, To report the said Bill without any amendment.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Hon. François Langelier, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Goveriment
of the Province of Quebec.

Walter Barwick, Esq., Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the Hon.
Theodore Robitaille, Senator, formerly President of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company.

Mr. Barwick states that ho desires to correct a statement made by hin in his
argument before the Committee yesterday, respecting an alleged diserepancy be-
tween Exhibit No. 5, as produced by C. N. Armstrong, and Exhibit No. 63, as pro-
duced by J. C. Langelier, and to withdraw the statement in so far as it reflects upon
the credibility of Mr. Armstrong.

Ordered, That the portion of Mr. Barwick's address which contains the said
statement be not printed.
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On motion of the Honourable Mr. Tassé, it was
Ordered, That the Mr. Siméon Lesage, Deputy Minister of Public Works of the

Province of Quebec, be summoned t attend and give evidence on Tuesday next.

At the request of Counsel for the Goveriment of the Province of Quebec, it was,
Ordered, That Messrs. M. S. Lonergan, Angus Thom and James Cooper, witnesses

already summoned, do attend, in obedience to their summonses, at the next meeting
of this Committee, and that this order be communicated to them by telegram.

The Committee then proceeded to the investigation of the charges made by the
lon. François Langelier, Counsel for the Governinent of the Province of Quebec,

against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.

George A. Taylor, of the Town of Brockville, in the Province of Ontario, con-
tractor, being duly sworn was examined upon oath.

During the Examination of this witness, certain documents and papers were
produced and, filed and marked as Exhibits Nos. 68, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77,
78, 79, 80, 81 and 82.

The Hon. Mr. Miller moved,
That the Committee adjourn tintit Tuesday next the lst September at ten o'clock

in the forenoon.

In amendment thereto the Hon. Mr. Clemow noved that the Committee adjourn
until eight o'clock this (Friday) eveninîg.

The motion and amendment were withdrawn by leave of the Committee.

George B. Burland, of the City of Ottawa, President and Manager of the British
Anerican Bank Note Company, vas duly sworn and examined upon oath.

Then, on motion of the lon. Mr. Miller, the Committee adjourned until Monday
next the 31st August instant, at eight o'clock in the evening.

Attest. J. G. AYLWIN CREIGIHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate,

Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE ROOM No. 8,
MONDAY, 31st August, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at eight o'clock
in the evening.

Present : The Honourable Messieurs Vidal (Chairman), Bellerose, de Boucher-
ville, Boulton, Carling, Clemow, Kaulbach, McCallum, McLelan, McDonald (Cape
Breton), MeInnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindsey, MeMillan, Macdonald
(B.C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille,
Read (Quinté), Smith, Stevens, Tassé.-26.

The Bill from the House of Commons, (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company," was fuither considered.

The Honourable FRANÇoIS LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the
Government of the Province of Quebec.

WALTER BARWICK, Esquire, Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the Honour-
able TiiÉoDoRE ROBITAILLE, Senator.

GEoRGE A. TAYLOR, of the Town of Brockville, in the Province of Ontario, Con-
traetoi, is further examined upon oath.
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During the examination of this witness a certain document is produced and
filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 83.

Ordered, That George A. Taylor be discharged from attendance before the Com-
mittee.

Counsel for the Honourable Mr. RoBITAILLE prOduces and files as Exhibit
No 84 the shorthand writer's notes of the statements made by the Counsel for the
Government of the Province of Quebec on Tuesday, 25th August, in reforence to the
embezzlement or misapplication of certain sums of money by the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company and by the then Secretary of the Company, Mr. L. A. Riopel.

Counset for the Government of the Province of Quebec declares that by the
term " embezzlement " he meant not an embezzlement in the sense of the criminal
law, but a misapplication. And he withdraws the word " embezzlemeit."

HENRY MACFARLANE, of the Town of Sherbrooke, in the Province of Quebec,
Contractor, is duly sworn and examined upon oath.

ANGUs M. THOM, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, Secretary
of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, is duly sworii and examined upon oath.

Ordered, That Angus M. Thom be discharged from attendance before the Com-
mi ttee.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. MILLER, the Committee adjourtied until to-
morrow, Tuesday, lst September, at half past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. A. CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE Room No. 8,
TUESDAY, lst September, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Committee met this day at half-past
ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messieurs Vidal (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Belle-
rose, deBoucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Drummond, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum,
McDonald (C.B.), McInnes (B.C.), McKay, McKindsey, McMillan, Macdonald (B.C.),
MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, O'Danohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robi-
taille, Read (Quinté), Stevens, Sutherland, Tassé.-19.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Hon. FRANqOIs LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Government of
the Province of Quebec.

WALTER BARWICK, Esq., Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the Hon.
Théodore Robitaille, Senator.

HENRY MACFARLANE, of the Town of Brockville, in the Province of Ontario, con-
tractor, is further examined upon oath.

During the examination of this witness a certain document is produced and
filed, and marked as Exhibit No. 85.

Ordered, That Henry 1(acfarlane be discharged from attendance before the Com-
mittee.

JAMES COOPER, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, merchant,
President of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, is duly sworn and examinled
upon oath.
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Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec declares that he has no
further witnesses to produce.

Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec, declares that he has no
further charges to make, and that the charges made by him were made against the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company and in no respect against the Honourable
Théodore Robitaille personally.

CIARLEs N. ARMSTRONG, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec,
contractor, is recalled and is further .examined upon oath.

During the examination of this witness certain documents are produced and
filed, and marked as Exhibits Nos. 86, 87 and 88, respectively.

Counsel for the Honourable Théodore Robitaille declares he has no further
witnesses to produce.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Power it was
Ordered, That Robert H. McGreevy, of the City of Quebec, contractor, presently

of the City of Ottawa, be summoned to give evidence before the Committee to-morrow
at half-past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Ordered, That James Cooper be discharged from attendance before the Com-
nittee.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Miller, the Committee adjourned till to-
morrow, the 2nd September, at half-past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
WEDNESDAY, 2nd September, 1891.

Present: The Ionourable Messrs. Vidal (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
de Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McDonald (Cape
'Breton), Mclnnes (B.C.), McKay, McKindscy, MeMillan, Macdonald (B.C.), MacInnes
(Birlington),-Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read
(Quinté), Stevens, Tassé.-26.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Honourable F. LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of Counsel for the Government of
the Province of Quebec.

WALTER BARwiCK, Esquire, Barrister-at-Law,appears of Counsel for theHonour-
able Théodore Robitaille, Senator.

The Chairman informs the Committee that, in obedienco to the order of the
Committee made yesterday, the lst of September instant, a summons had yesterday
been issued for the attendance of Mr. Robert McGreevy, of Quebec, contractor,
before the Committeo this day, and that every effort had been made to serve the
Summons, but that Mr. McGreevy cannot be found in Ottawa, and consequently that
the summons had not been served.

CH1ARLEs N. ARMSTRONG, of the City of Montreal, contractor, is recalled and
further examined upon oath.

During lhe examination of this witness certain documents and papers are pro-
duced and fyled and marked as Exhibits Nos. 89a, 89b, 89c, 90, 91a, 91b, 91c, 91d, 92
and 93.

lvii
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DANIEL O'LEARY, of the City of Ottawa, Inspector of Dominion Police, is
recalled and further examined upon oath.

1M. S. LoNERGAN, of the City of Montreal, advocate, a director of the Baie (les
Chaleurs Railway Company, is duly sworn and examined upon oath.

Ordered, That Mr. M. S. Lonergan be discharged froin attendance before the
Committee.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Tassé, it was
Resolved, To report to the Senate recommending that a Message be sent to the

House of' Commons, requesting that House to grant leave to the Honourable François
Langelier, member of the Ilouse of Commons for the Electoral District of Quebec
Centre, to attend and give evidence before this Committee as to the matters now
being enquired into.

On motion of tho Honourable Mr. Tassé, it was
Resolved, To report to the Senate the names of the witnesses who have been

summoned and have failed to appear before the Committee.
A draft of a report to that effect was submitted and read.
The Honourable Mr. Miller moved that the said draft be adopted and presented

to the Senate as the Report of this Comnittee.

After discussion it was
Resolved, That the said (Iraft be further considered to-morrow.

The Committee then adjourned until to-morrow, the 3rd of September instant,
at half past ten o'clock in the forenoon.

Attest.

J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE Room No. 8,
THURSDAY, 3rd September, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Committee met this day at half-past 10
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messieurs Vidal (Chairman) Allan, Almon, Bellerose
deBoucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McDonald (Cape
Breton), MeInnes (British Columbia), McKay, McKindsey, McMillan, Macdonald
(British Columbia), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie,
Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read (Quinté), Tassé.-26.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company," was further considered.

The Honourable FRANÇoIs LANGELIER, Q.C., appears of cou nsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec.

WALTER BARWICK, Esq., Barrister-at-Law, appears of counsel for the Hlonour-
able Theodore Robitaille, Senator.

L. P. GODIN, constable in the Dominion Police, was duly sworn and exanined
upon oath.

The Honourable Mr. Tassé states that in moving yesterday for the issue of a
summons to Mr. Siméon Lesage, Assistant Commissioner of Public Works of the
Province of Quebec, his object was to prove by the evidence of Mr. Lesage certain
circumstances connected with the payment of the sum of $100,000, the improper
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retention and mis.application of' which has formed one of the subjects of enquiry by
the Committee; and further states that, his object having been attained by the evi-
dence given by other witnesses, ho has now no special reason for insisting upon the
attendance of Mr. Lesage.

The promoters and the opposants of the Bill and Counsel for the Government of
the Province of Quebec respectively state that they do not require Mr. Lesage's
appearanco as a witness.

' The draft of a Report to bo made to the Sonate rospecting the non-attendance of
certain persons summoned as witnesses is again read and considered.

Resolved, On a division, that a Report in accordance with the said draft be pre-
sented as the Report of the Coinmittee.

On the motion of the Honourable Mr. rassé, certain portions of the ovidence
given by the Honourable C. A. P. Pelletier, Senator, are read, also Exhibit No. 41;
also a telegram from Walter Barwick, Esq., Counsel for the Hlonourable Théodore
Robitaille, Senator, to Mr. E. Webb, Manager of the Union Bank, Quebec, and a
telegram received in reply thereto from Mr. Webb.

The Honourable Mr. Tassé states that in view of this evidence ho does not
require the evidence of the Honourable François Langelier; and it is

Resolved, That the Report ordered yesterday to ho made to The Sonate, recom-
mending that a Messago be sent to the House of Commonsrequesting that Hoise to
grant leave to the Ilonourable F,'rançois Langelier, member of the House of Com-
mons for the Electoral District of Quebec Centre, to appear and give evidence before
this Committee, be not presented.

Ordered, That the two telegrams above mentioned, sent and received by Walter
Barwick, Esq., Counsel for the [Honourable Théodore Robitaille, be filed as Exhibits
Nos. 94 and 95, respectively.

The Chairman enquires whether any member of the Committee or any other
person present desires any additional witnesses to be summoned to give evidence in
the matter of this Bill, and no response being made to such enquiry the investiga-
tion is declared to be closed.

Ordered, that all witnesses in attendance be diseharged.
Mr. C. N. ARMSTRONG is heard to address the Committee on his own behalf.
Mr. C. N. ARMSTRONG produces a certain document, and it is
Ordered, That the same be filed as Exhibit No. 96, and be printed for informa-

tion only, and with the note that Mr. Armstrong has not been cross-examined upon
its contents.

Counsel for the Government of the Province of Quebec is heard to address the
Committee on the charges made by him.

Counsel for the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, Senator, is heard to address
the Committee on his behalf.

Counsel for the Governmont of the Province of'Quebec is heard in reply.
Ordered, That the ovidence be printed and laid before the Committee as speedily

as possible.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Tassé, it was
Resolved, To report to The Senate, recommending that the ChiefFrench Trans-

lator be authorized to employ a sufficient number of competent persons to ensure
the speedy translation into French of the proceedings of and evidence given before
the Committee, and that the remuneration to be allowed for such translation be one
dollar ($1) per printed page, and twenty-five cents (25 ets.) additional for proof-
r'eading.

The Committee then adjourned to the call of the Chairmen.
Attest. J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Coinmittees.
lix
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EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE OF
CANADA, THURSDAY 3RD SEPTEIBER, 1892.

The Honourable .Mr. Vidal, from the Conmittee on Railways, Telegraphs and
Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (82) intituled: " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," presented their Fifth Report, as follows:-

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooiM No. 8,

THURSDAY, 3rd September, 1891.
The Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom, by order

of your Honourable House, was referred the Bill intituled: "An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," beg leave to make their Fifth Report with
respect thereto, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that the Chief French Translator be authorized to
employ a sufficient number of competent persons to secure the speedy translation of
the proceedings of Your Committee and the evidence taken by them in their enquiry
into certain matters arising out of the said Bill.

Your Committee recommend that one dollar per printed page be paid for such
translation and an additional twenty-five cents for the correction of proofs.

All which is respectfully submitted.
A. VIRAL,

Chaernian.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Vidal, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Mac-

Innes (Burlington), it was
Ordered, That the said Report be adopted.

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE
OF CANADA, FRIDAY 4TH SEPTEMBER, 1891.

The ionourable Mr. Vidal, fron the Comnittoe on Railways, Telographs and
Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (82) intituled : " An Act respecting the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," presented their Sixth Report, as follows :-

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room, No. 8,

THuRSDAY, 3rd September, 1891.
The Select Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom, by

Order of Your Honourable House made on Wednesday, the 29th day of July last,
was referred the Bill intituled: " An Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company," and who, by Order of Your Hlonourable House made on Thursday, the
6th day of August instant, were empowered to send for such persons, papers and
records as may from time to time be required by Your Committee for the purpose
ofaffording evidence under oath, as to any matter arising out of the examination
by Your Committee of the said Bill, beg leave to make their Sixth Report with
respect thereto, as follows:-

On Friday ,the 7th August last the Chairman of Your Committee received a
telegram signed by Mr. Ernest Pacaud, of L'Electeur newspaper, Quebec, stating
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that Mr. Pacaud was informed ho would probably be required as a witness before
your Committee, and requesting that in such case lie might be summoned before
Tuesday, the 11th Augubt, as he proposed leaving on that day for a month's lolidays.

On Friday the 7th August last Your Committee caused a summons to be sent
by rogistered letter to Mr. Ernest Pacaud, ut the City of Quebec, requiring hini to
appear before them on Monday, the 10th August, mentioning therein the documents
he was required to pioduce with him, and Mr. Pacaud was notified by telegram on
the same day of the issue and purport of the summons. As appears by a telegram
reccived from the Postmaster of Quebec, the registered letter above referred to was
delivered to the duly authorized agent of Mr. Pacaud on Monday, the 10th August.
As Mr. Pacaud did not appear on Monday, the 10th August, Your Committee, on
that day, issued another summons for his appearance on Wednesday, the 12th
August, of the issue and purport of which summons Mr. Pacaud was also, on Monday,
the 10th August, advised by tlegram. Your Committoe received on Monday, the
10th August, a telegran from the office of Mr. Pacaud's newspaper informing theni
that Mr. Pacaud had left town when the message was received. According to the
evidonce of Mr. Daniel O'Leary, Inspector of Dominion Police, the officer charged with
the service of the summons issued on the 10th August, Mr. Pacaud left Quebec for New
York early on the morning of Tuesday, the 11th August. so that the sunimons could
fnot be served upon him. According to the evidence of Mr. Auguste Edge, Mr.
Pacaud's private secretary, Mr. Pacaud was aware of the issue of the summons of
the 7th August, and on the 10th August went to New York, and there took passage
for France by a steamer which sailed on the 15th August.

On the 7th August last Your Committee caused to be sent to the Hon. Pierre
Garneau, Commissioner of Public Works of the Province of Quebec, by registered
letter, addressed to Quebec, a summons to appear before Your Committee on the 10th
August, and notified the Hon. Mr. Garneau by telegram of the issue and purport
of the said summons. The Hon. Mr. Garneau did not appear on the 10th August, on
which day Your Committee received from Mr. S. Lesage, Deputy Commissioner of
Public Works, a telegram informing them that the Hon. Mr. Garneau was at Murray
iBay, and that the letter requesting him to appear as a witness had been delivered
only on that day, but would be forwardod to the Hon. Mr. Garneau by that day's
mail. On the same day, the 10th August, Your Committee also received a telegram
from the Hon. Mr. Garneau, dated from Pointe au Pic on the Lower St. Lawrence,
informing them that the summons had not been received there by him, that his state
of health did nçt allow him to go to Ottawa, and that he would send a Doctor's
certificate if required. These telegrams, marked " H " and " O " respectively, will
be foind printed on pages 33 and 16 of the Minutes of Proceedings. Thereupon
another summons was issued requiring the lon. Mr. Garneau to appeau on Friday,
the 14th August, which summone was sent to Pointe au Ric by registered letter on
Tuesday, 11th August, and he was notified of the issue and purport thereof by
telegram. As appears by the telegrams to and from the Postnaster
ut Pointe au Pie, printed on page 42 of the e Minutes of Proceedings. the
lon. Mr. Garneau received this summons, and, in reply thereto, on the 13th
August sent a telegram to Your Committee as follows:-"Since sending my
first telegram 1 an informed my colleagues are of opinion we are respon-
sible- to the Legislature only, thorefore I respectfully decline to appear." Your
Committee, having for greater certainty sent an officer to serve the Hon. Mr. Garneau
Personally with a summons, had in the meantime received the Ron. Mr. Garnean's
first telegram, saying that his health did not allow,him to go to Ottawa, and had
thereupon instructed the officer not to serve this summons. The Hon. Mr. Garneau
did not appear on the 14th August, on which day Counsel for the Government of the
Province of Quebec laid before Your Committee the telegram and medical certificate
Which are printed on page 43 of the Minutes of Proceedings, the said telegram being
el copy of the one above cited, and the medical certificate being to the effect that his
Doctor was of opinion that the Hon. Mr. Garneau would do botter to remain at
Murray Bay if ho did not wish to risk his hoalth. On the 14th of August the
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Chairman of Your Committee received the letter from the Counsel for the Govern-
ment of the Province of Quebec and also the telegram therein mentioned, which are
printed at page 47 of the Minutes of Proceedings of your Committee.

The Honourable Mr. Garneau has not appeared before Your Committee, notwith-
standing the summonses issued.

On the 7th August last a summons was sent by registered letter to Gustave
Grenier, Esq., Clerk of the Executive Council, Quebec, to appear before Your Con-
mittee on the 10th August, and a telegram was aiso sent to Mr. Grenier on the 7th
August advising him of the issue and purport of such summons. On the 8th August
Your Cornmittee received the telegram from Mr. Grenier which is printed at page
33 of the Minutes of their Proceedings. Mr. Grenier having failed to appear, another
summons was issued on the 10th August requiring him to appear on the 12tli August,
and a telegram was also sent to Mr. Grenier on the 10th August advising him of the
issue and purport of this summons, but, as appears by the evidence of Mr. Daniel
O'Leary, ln'spector of Dominion Police, the officer charged with the service thereof,
Mr. Grenier had left Quebec, and could not be served.

On the 13th August last, by order of Your Committee, a summons was issued
to Philippe Vallière, Furniture Manufacturer, Quebec, requiring bis appearance
before your Cominittee on Friday, the 18th August. As appears by the evidence of
L. P. Godin, Constable of the Dominion Police, the offleer charged with the service
of this summons, the same was duly served upon Mr. Vallière, but Mr. Vallière has
failed to appear before Your Committee in obedience thereto.

The promoters and opposants of the Bill and the Counsel for the Government
of the Province of Quebec having stated to Your Committee that the attendance of
certain of the above-mentioned witnesses, namely, of the Honourable Pierre Garneau
and Messrs. Gustave Grenier tnd Philippe Vallière, is not required by any of them,
Your Committee report the above facts for the information of Your lonourable
Hlouse and for such further action as it may be pleased to take thereupon.

On the 28th day of Augnst last, by order of Your Committee, a summons was
issued to Mr. Siméon Lesage, of the City of Quebec, Deputy Commissioner of Public
Works of the Province of Quebec, requiring him to appear and give evidence before
Your Coinmittee on Monday, the 31st of August last. As appears by the evidence of
Mr. 1)aniel O'Leary, Inspector of Dominion Police. the officer charged with the ser-
vice of the said summons, the same was duly served upon Mr. Lesage on Saturday,
the 29th of August last. Upon the 31st day of August last the Chairman of Your
Comrnittee received the fellowing telegrain:-

"MONTREAL, 31st August, 1891.
"To Honourable A. VrDAL,

"Chairman Committee of Railways,
" Senate, Ottawa.

"I received instructions from the members of the Quebec Government not to
appear before the Sonate Committee.

(Signed) "S. LESAGE.
"Assistant Commissioner of Public 'Works, P.Q."

Mr. Lesage has not appeared befôre Your Committee in obedience to the
sunmmons.

The lonourable Mu. Tassé,.Senator, on whose motion the Order for the issue of
the said summons to Mr. Siméon Lesage was made, has stated to Your Committee
that bis object was to prove by the evidence of Mr. Lesage certain circumstances
connected with the payment of the sum of $100,000, the improper retention and
misapplication of which has formed one of the subjects of inquiry by Your
Committee, and bas further stated that, his object having been attained by the
evidence given by other witnesses, he bas now no special reason for insisting upon
the attendance of Mr. Lesage.
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In view of the above statements made by the Ilonourable Mr. Tassé, and that the
promoters and opposants of the Bill and Counsel for the Government of the Province
of Quebec have aiso stated that Mr. Lesage's ovidence is not required by theni. the
only other object Your Conmittee had in requiring bis appearance would have been
to afford him an opportunity to explain his action in respect of the payment of the
said sum of $100,000.

While Your Committee are of opinion that their Order should have been obeyed
by Mr. Lesage, and that it is the undoubted right of the Senate to compel bis
appearance before Your Committee, they, nevertheless, in view of the facts that
Mr. Lesage appears to have acted under the order of his superiors, and that the
evidence which ho was summoned to give bas been obtained from other sources.
refrain from recommending that any conpulsory process be taken to compel his
attendance or to punish bis contempt, but report the above facts for the information
of Your Honourable House and such action as may hy it be deemed tit.

Your Committee submit herewith copies of the Minutes of their Proceedings and
of the evidence which are referred to in this Report.

All which is respectfully submitted.
A. VIDAL,

Chairman.

On motion of the lonourable Mr. Vidal, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Mont-
gomery, it was

Ordered, That the said Report be taken into consideration by the louse on
Monday next.

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SENATE OF
CANADA.

TUESDAY, 8th September, 1891.
The Order of the Day being read for the consideration of the Sixth Report of

the Select Committee to whon was referred the Bill (82) intituled " An Act re-
SPecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company,"

The Ilonourable Mr. Vidal moved, seconded by the Ilonourable Mr. Gowan,
That the said Report be adopted.
The question of concurrence boing put thereon, the same was, on a division,

reolved in the affirmative, and
Ordered accordingly.

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE
SENATE ON RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

TnE SENATE, COMMITTEE Roo No. 8,
WEDNESDAY, 9th September, 1891.

Pursuant to adjourniment and notice the Committee met this day at half-past ten
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messieurs Vidal, (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Belle-
rose, de Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, .Dickey, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum. Mc-
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Clelan, McInnes (B. C.), McKay, McMillan, Macdonald (B. C.), MacInnes (Burling-
ton), Montgomery, Miller, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, Perley, Power, Robitaille, Read
(Quinté), Stevens, Sutherland, Tassé.-28.

The Bill from the flouse of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company " was further considered.

The Honourable Mr. Ogilvie, on behalf of the promoters of the Bill, states to
the Committee that the promoters no longer desire to withdraw the Bill, but on the
contrary desire to proceed therewith.

The Honourable Mr. Bellerose movea that the Bill be not further proceeded
with.

Resolved in the negative.
A draft of a proposed report on the Bill and on the matters arising out of the

examination thereof was submitted by the Chairman.

On motion of the Honouirable Mr. Power,

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow. Thursday, the 10th September, at
10 oclock in the forenoon.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,

Lav Clerk of the Senate Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
THURSDAY, lOth Septomber, 1891.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Comnittee met this day at ten o'clock
in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Messieurs Vidal, (Chairnan), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
de Boucherville, Boulton, Clemow, Dickey, Girard, Kaulbach, McCallum, McClelan,
McDonald (Cape Breton), MeInnes (B.C.), McKay, McKindsey, McMillan, Macdonald
(B.C.), MacInnes (Burlington), Miller, Murphy, Ogilvie, Power, Road (Quinté),
Stevens, Sutherland, Tassé.-27.

The Bill from the House of Commons (No. 82) " An Act respecting the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company " was further considered.

Walter Barwick, Esquire, Barrister-at-Law, appears of Counsel for the opposants

Ordered, That the original of any Exhibit produced in this matteri may be
returned to the person who produced the same, if he so requests.

Counsel for the opposants submits certain proposed amendments to the Bill and
states that the promoters and opposants have agreed thereto.

The Honourable Mr. Ogilvie, on behalf of the promoters, states that they have
agreed to the said amendments.

The said amendments were then read and adopted, and it was
Resolved, to report, recommending that the said amendments be made to the

Bill.

(See Schedule A to Report of Committee.)
Strangers are ordered to withdraw. The Committee deliberate with closed

doors.
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The draft of a proposed Report subiitted yesterday by the Chairman was then
considered.

The llonou rble Mr. Pow ei moved,
That tle paragratph on page 7, lbegeinning "' I n the monîth fi J Decemb1)er, 1890,

MNIr. John .1. MCI)onald met Mr. Ernlest Pacaud, wivho aed as im ediary between
im and the Provincial Government, k.,'" be amended by striking out "inter-

mediary " antd su bst ituting " agei m."

Resolved in the negtive.

The Hloionoutitible Mr. Power moved,
That after the words "l Provinieial Government " on page 7 at line 49, Ihe follow-

ing paragraph be added:
In the end of Januarv or begini ing of February, 1891, the niegotiations

betweenu Mr. McDonald anmd Mr. Riopel were broken oft."

And the question being put, the Committee divided, and the nm:es being called
for voe taken down as fiollows:-

YEAs-The lloniourtable M essr. AlUlait, Bellerose, de13ou1herville, Boultoui,
M udnnes (British Columbia), Macdonald (British Colum bia), P3ower. Vidal-8.

NAYs-The lonourable Messrm. Clemow, Girard, INuilbach, MeCilum, MieKay,
McKl'iinîdsey, McMilha, Maclrnnes (urlington), Miller, Murphy, Ogilvie, Sutherland,
Tassé-13.

So it was Resolved in the negative.

The Hlonourable Mr. Power moved,
That the paragra ph oi page 8, readiig as oiIllows:-" The amouint due to Armn-

strong is not a privileged debt due by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway CompMaîy and
t herefore is not payable out of the subsiny oi 800,000 leres of 1.1(l overted into
muoiey," be struck ouit.

On a diviSiOnI, it was
Resolved in the liegative.

'lie said draft was further coisidered and was amenIded. The finalconsidera-
tion thereof was postpoied until the next meetmg of the Conunittee.

The Committee then adjourned until to morrow, Friday, the 11Ith September
inîstanit, at half-past ton o'clock in the forenoon.

Atest, J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate, Clerk of Committees.

TuE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8.
FRIDAY, 11th September, 1891.

Pursuanit to adjourinment and notice the Comm ittee met this day at half past
ten o'clockl in the foreiiooin.

Pi esenît : Te lmionirable Messieurs Vidal (Chairman), Allan, Almon, Bellerose,
de Bouelierville, Bouilton, Clemow, Dickey, Kaulhach, McCalluin, McDonald (Cape
RB eton), Melnnes (B. C.), McKav, McMillai, Macdonald (B. C.), Mael mies (Bur-
lington, Montgomery, Miller, Murphy, O'Donohoe, Ogilvie, 8,evens, Suthe:land,
Tassé.-24.

The Bill from the HIouse ofiCommons (No. 82) initituled :" Ai Act respecting
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," was fuarther considered.

The draft of a proposed report subritted by the Chairman was further consid-
cred,

The Honorable Mr. Tassé moved,
lxv
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That the said draft, as anmonded by the Comminttee, be adoptod and prosented
as the 'Report of this Committee.

And the question being put thereon, the Commnitteo divided, and the names
being called for, were taken dowi as follows :-

YEAs: The Ilonourable Messieurs Allan, Alinon, de Boucherville, Boulton,
Clemow, Dickey, Kaulbach, MeCallum, McDonald (Cape Breton), McKay, MeMillan,
Macdonald (B. C.), Maciniies (Burlington), Monitgomery, Miller, Murphy, Ogilvio,
Sutherland, Tassé, Vidal-20.

NAys : The Ilonourable Messieurs Bellerose, McInnes (13. C.), Stevens-3.
So it was,
Resolved in the affirmative.
The Committee adjourned sine die.

Attest.
J. G. AYLWIN (JREIGlTON,

Law Clerk of the Senate and Clerk of (Oommittees.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE,

FRIDAY, 7th August, 1891.

The Committee met at 10 a.m. ; Honourable Mr. VIDAL in the Chair.

Mr. BARWICK, of Counsel for opposants.-J only desire to ask one thing, Mr. Chair-
man, that I be permitted to conduct this case as I deem proper. I have my list of
witnesses here and iny statement, and I beg to proceed in my own way and to call the
witnesses in the order I desire. The first piece of evidence that I put in is a memo-
randum written by Mr. Lonergan to the Government and dated ilth June, 1891. It
is in Mr. Lonergan's handwriting and shows the position of this railway and the appli-
cability in June of this year of the $280,000 of which I have spoken.

Hon. Mr. POWER.-Is that statement in Mr. Lonergan's handwriting?
Mr. BARWICK.-I believe so. It is in your handwriting, is it not, Mr. Lonergan?
Mr. LONERAN.-Let the investigation proceed in legal forin.
Hon. Mr. MILLER.-This investigation does not proceed on strictly legal lines.
Mr. LoNERG.AN.-It is in my handwriting.
Mr. BARWICK.-This document, which as Mr. Lonergan admits is in hi handwrit-

ing, shows the financial position of the road, and the ability of the company to huild
the road in June of this year. The concluding paragraph of this memorandum which I
would put in as Exhibit 1, is as follows:-

"Quebec Subsidy Act of last session devotes 800,000 acres to paymient of its labour
claims, etc. , This has been converted at 35 cents, equalling $280,000. At present all
claims in these counties for labour and all privileged debts of Estate MacFarlane are
heing paid out of this. When judgnent in suit of MacFarlane is rendered it will be
Paid out of this also, and should there be a balance it will be accounted for to us at
completion of 100 miles."

I would call as my first witness, Charles N. Armstrong.
Hon. Mr. MILLER.-Has he beei sumoned?
Mr. BARWICK.-H1e has ; the Clerk has a copy, and the inessenger is here to prove

the service.
Copy of the summaons was then rend. (Exhibit No. 2.)
Hon. Mr. PowER.-I wish to call attention to the fact, that the summons is in-

formal. It calls upon Mr. Armstrong to come and testify with reference to the " said
bill," but no particular Bill is nmentioned. Of course inasnuch as the Conmittee does
not go by the legal rules, perhaps that does not matter.

Hon. Mr. MILLER.-It is for the Committee to say whether they have suflicient
ground to resort to compulsory process to bring Mr. Armstrong here.

PETER IDUNN called and sWorn.

By Mfr. Barwick :
Q. I understand that you are Chief Messenger in the Senate ?--A. Yes.
Q. Did you deliver a summons, of which this is a copy, to Mr. C. N. Armstrong

Yesterdayu -A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where?-A. In Sir Hector Langevin's house.
Q. At what timne ?-A. Between one and two o'clock.
Q. Did you explain what it was to him ?-A. I read it to hiim.
Q. What did he say ?-A. He said : " You are very smart in serving me."
Mr. BARWICK.--I beg that Mr. Armstrong be called in due form.
The Chairman called Charles N. Armstrong, but the person called did not respond

2A--1



Hon. Mr. SCOTT put inl a telegrani which was written in French, and which was
translated by the Clerk as follows:-

Hon. F. LANGELIER, M.P.,
flouse of Comnons, Ottawa.

"Please represent my Governmnent in the enquiry in the Senate, in the matter of
the Baie des Chaleurs, which it appears is to begin this morning.

(Signed) "HONORÉ MERCIER."

Mr. BARICK.-I an not prepared to go on until I have Mr. Armstrong here ; he
is my first witness.

Hon. Mr. PowE.-If there is no evidence on behalf of the prosecution, we might
hear what the managing director of the conipany has to say.

The CJIAIRMAN.-AS I understand it, the Committee accorded to Mr. Barwick the
privilege of conducting his case in his own way.

Mr. BARWICK.-,Mr. Lonergan is on the list of witnesses I have handed in. He
will have an opportunity of giving his evidence at a future time. The only other thing
I have to ask, is that compulsory process issue to compel the attendance of Mr. Armi-
strong. Mr. Ernest Pacaud intimates that he is leaving Quebec next Tuesday for a
month. He is on ny list of witnesses, and is requested to produce a number of docu-
nents-important documents. It is essential that I have Mr. Pacaud here, and I
desire that intimation be given him that he is required.

Hon. 31r. MILLER.--.Iid you subpena him 1
Mr. BARwICK.-His naine has been handed to the Iaw Clerk, with the list of

documents I desire hiimî to produce. I wish to secure his atteiidance hefore he leaves the
Province.

Hon. Mr. KAULBACH.-Why did you not apply for a suimiions yesterday ?
Mr. BARWICK.---I only completedI my list of documents late in the evening. The

list of witnesses has been handed to the Clerk and the documents are being prepared in
forim with a view to save time in case the Committee make the necessary order this
morning.

Hon. Mr. MILLER. -I move that Charles N. Armistrong's disobedience of the sui-
mons be reported to the Senate, and the authority of the Senate be asked to compel his
attendance before this Committee.

Hon. Mr. PowER.-With a mention that the suminons is infornial

The resolution was carried.

Conmittee adjourned until Monday, 10th instant, at ten o'clock.

THE SENATE F CANADA.

THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON RAILWAYs, TELEGRAPIIS AND HARBOURS.

Minutes of evidence in ie the Bill intituled " An Act respecting the Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway Company " (No. 82).

On this twelfth day of August, in the year of Our Lord one thousand eiglit hundred
and ninety-one, personally carne and appeared Charles N. Arnstrong, of the City of
Montreal, in the District of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, contractor, who being
duly sworn and exanined, deposed as follows :-

By Mr. Walter Barwick, Cunsel for the Opywàant.-

Q. You have been for a long time connected with the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
have you not ?--A. I have been a contractor from 1866 until a few months ago.

Q. This company was incorporated in 1882, was it not ?-A. I think so.
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Q. Subsequently in 1886 it got power to pay part of the contract price in bonds of
the railway ?-A. I think they had that power when they made the contract.

Q. When they made the contract with you ?-A. Yes. I don't know when they
got that power.

Q. Had the agreements with the Dominion Government been made before you
itade the contract with the railway 7-A. Yes. I think so.

Q. The agreements were made in 1885, I think 7-A. Yes.
Q. These governed the Dominion subsidies? -- A. Yes, sir.
Q. When did you make your contract with the railway 7-A. I think it was on the

8th of June.
Q. On the 9th of June, 1886, was it not ?-A. Perhaps.
Q. For how many miles? -A. For 100 miles.
Q. Fron, where to where ?-A. From Metepedia to Paspebiac.
Q. That road has never been built yet 7-Sixty miles were built with the exception

of a few small works.
Q. Not absolutely built ?-A. It was sufficiently built to be run over regularly.
Q. But not built within the meaning of the terms of the contract 7-A. Not

exactly within the meaning of the contract with the company. The contract
with the Government called for wooden bridges, whereas under my agreement with
the company we were to put in steel bridges. There were temporary wooden bridges
put up, but these were to be replaced hy steel bridges.

Q. In making the agreements with the view to the earning of the Quebec Govern-
ient subsidy the road was divided into ten-mile sections, was it not ?-A. There were
n( agreements with the Quebec Government, but simply the Act. The first twenty
miles was a special contract.

Q. But the remainder was divided into ten-mile sections with respect to this subsidy?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. How were you to be paid under your contract 7-A. I was to receive the whole
of the subsidies and the balance of the contract price in bonds.

Q. Bonds of the railway ?-A. Yes.
Q. You were to receive your cash payments out of the subsidies7-A. I was to re-

ceive the subsidies themselves.
Q. You were to receive 85 per cent. of the subsidies as the contract progressed 7-

A. I have the contract in my pocket, and if you will allow me I will refer to it.
Q. (Referring to a paper taken by the witness from his pocket.) What is this

Paper 7-A. I don't think that is any of your business.
Q. I don't want to look at it; I only ask you what it is7-A. I don't think I an

hound to tell you. I brought it here to produce it, and I will produce It when it is
Wanted.

TuE CoUNsEL.- -J desire, Mr. Chairman, that the witness be directed to say what
that paper is.

THE CHIAIRMAN.-What is that paper?
The WITNEss.-I have no objection to tell the Chairman ; it is the statement of

my claim against the company, certified by then, upon which my settlement was made.
THE CoUNsEL.-I desire to put in this contract.
THE WITNEss.-I have not given that in; you have asked me with regard to the

contract, and J want to refer to it. It is not my property.
Q. Is this a copy of the contract ?-A. I want to see if it is certified. It is not a

certified copy. I believe it, however, to be a true copy. (Exhibit No. 3.)
Q. You made your agreement with Mr. MacFarlane in 1888 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The 8th of June, 1888. Have you got that agreement ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Where is it 7-A. It is in court being used in connection with the case.
Q. That contract with Mr. MacFarlane was confirmed by the railway, was it not 7

A. I believe so.
Q. Is that apparently a copy of the contract with 1Mr. MacFarlane (Exhibit 4)?-

A. Yes.
3
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Q. And attached to it is the resolution of the railway directing the execution of a
document for its confirmation by the president?--A. Yes. That is a resolution authot
izing the signature of the contract between the company and me. This appears to be a
copy of the contract.

Q. At the end of it is the ratification signed by Theodore Robitaille, President of
the company 7-A. Then President of the company.

Q. Under this contract Mr. MacFarlane was to build 60 miles of the road ?-A.
No, 20 miles.

Q. And to complete 40 ?-A. To complete the work to be done on 40 miles.
Q. That is, to complete the first 40 and build the third 20 7-A. To build from

miles 40 to 60.
Q. That is what I mean-the third 20. He was to be paid 5 per cent. advance on

the cost of material and bank interest which he was compelled to pay in securing
advances ? Is that right ?-A. I believe that is so.

Q. He was to get 12½ per cent. on the expenditure for labour ?-A. That would
apply for labour and material not provided for in schedule of prices.

Q. The schedule is attached to this agreement?--A. Yes, and for everything not
mentioned in the schedule he was to be paid a commission.

Q. But I mentioned the correct figures ?-A. You have the agreement there-from
meiory, I'believe those are the correct figures.

Q. To secure the paymuent of amounts due to him he had an assignment of the sub-
sidies 7-A. They were not assigned to him,

Q. He was to secure the payment of certain subsidies ?-A. By the transfer of the
subsidies in trust.

Q. Do you remember the figures ?-A. I think $260,000.
Q. Sixty-two thousand transferred out of the Dominion subsidies for the first

40 miles ?-A. I an not sure of that, but the total amount I think was $260,000.
Hon. Mr. PoWER.-If these things were in the contract the contract itself should

be put in as evidence. We want the best evidence.
The COUNSEL.--They are all in the contract, but I an examining an unwilling

witness and testing his memory.

The W1TNEss.-I objeet, Mr. Chairman, to being called an unwilling witness. I an
willing to tell everything the Committee has a right to ask ; but when a matter occurred
five or six years ago I think I have a right to refer to the (ocuments. Anyone might
make a mistake about a matter that took place so long ago.

Q. Is this the clause with regard to the paymnent of the subsidy-read it please ?-
A. (reading) "And for securing the said payment so to be made by said contractor to
said sub-contractor, the said contractor hereby agrees to execute a notarial transfer of
the subsidies granted by the Government of Canada towards the construction of said
railway and applicable to said sixty miles of railway amounting to sixty-two thousand dol-
lars upon the first forty miles, also the sum of one hundred and twenty-eight thousand
dollars applicable to the twenty miles of new road in extension of the forty miles, that
is to say, forty to sixty, and also the sum of seventy thousand dollars granted by the
Quebec Government on said twenty miles of new road and furnished to said sub-conm
tractor all necessary power and authority to obtain said subsidies, which subsidies
shall be paid in trust into some chartered bank to be naied by the said sub-
contractor, and paid out to him as the work progresses and as the saine shall have been
earned f rom the Government, and upon the completion of said work and of this contract,
whatever balance nay remain of said subsidies, after paying said sub-contractor in full,
shall be paid over to said company."

Q. So that there was the $62,000, and $128,000 and $70,000, making in all $260,-
000, the amount you mentioned. Now, you remember of course the difficulties that
arose with M r. MacFarlane through his failure to go on with the contract ?-A. Yes.

Q. That resulted in his making an assignment to a curator in Quebec ?-A. In
Montreal.
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Q. That was in November, 1889 ?-A. About that time ; I don't remember the
exact date ; I think it was December, 1889.

Q. It was Novenber, 1889.-A. May be, my impression is December.
Q. Now, do you remeiber the Act introduced at the last session of Parliament

providing for the cancellation of the charter of a railway by Order in Council 7-A. I
do.

Q. Were you in Quebec at the time 7-A. I was in Quebec several times during
the session.

Hon. Mr. MILLAR.-YOU speak of the Legislature of Quebec?
THIE COUNsEL.--Yes; I may say that the Act is&Chapter 37 of the Statutes of 1890.
Q. You were busying yourself opposing the passing of the Act ?-A. Excuse me

I was not.
Q. You didn't take any interest in the question of the passing of the Act ?-A. I

took an interest because I was interested in companies that have charters or interested
in charters which would be affected by the Act.

Q. Did you endeavour to influence the Legislature, by laying your views before
thein, against the passing of the Act ?-A. I do not remember laying my views
before them.

Q. Did you lay your views before individual members ?-A. I don't remember, I
may have spoken to them.

Q. Did you prepare and distribute a memorandum stating your views against it ?
-A. I d) not reienber.

Q. If anyone should say that you did, would you deny it ?-A. I think I didn't
do it.

Q. The Act passed, then representations were made to the Dominion Government re-
questing the disallowance of the Act. Did you ever hear that before ?-A. I have
heard that representations were made ; I have read it in the papers, and have been
told so.

Q. By whom 7--A. By Mr. Robitaille, when he was pushing matters on belalf of
the company.

Q. Were you connected with it at that time 7-A. As contractor, I never had any
other connection.

Q. You understood f rom Mr. Robitaille that the Departient of Justice had decided
that that Act should not be disallowed ?-A. I never heard that.

Q. Did you ever hear that the Department of Justice had given an opinion that it
Was ieedless to disallow that Act because the Baie (les Chaleurs Railway was already a
Dominion work under the ternis of the Dominion Railway Act 7-A. I never heard that.

Hon. Mr. PoWER objected to this as hearsay evidence.
The CHIAIRMAN ruled that there was no objection to the question.
Q. Do you remember an Order in Council forfeiting the charter of the Baie des

Chaleurs Railway Company under that Act ?-A. No, Sir.
Q. Have you any copies of these Orders in Council ?-A. No.
Q. Have you seen them ?-No, sir.
Q. Have you heard how nany charters were cancelled ?
COUNSEL FOJ THE GOVERNMENT OF THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.-I beg to object to that

question. I take this position : The Quebec Government is responsible to the Legislature
Of Quebec, and not to what J may call a foreign Legislature. The Legislature of Quebec is
independent of the Federal Parliament, as the Federal Parliament is independent of the
Local Legislature, and I object to any evidence being gone into which may have for its
object to prove anything done officially by the Government of the Province of Quebec.

The CHAIRMAN.-I understand that Mr. Barwick is not going into an investigation
of what the Quebec Government has done. In the matter at issue between the parties
before the Comnittee as to a railway Bill, he is entitled to obtain information as to the
relations between the contractor, sub-contractor and the railway, and I think the ques-
tions are such as can le properly asked.
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THE COUNSEL FOR THE GOVERNMENT OF THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.-My objection is
not to that particular question alone, but to any question trying to investigate the official
acts of the Government of the Province of Quebec.

Q. You were never informed of these terms ?-A. I never knew such an Order in
Council was passed.

Q. Have you heard it now 7-A. No; I have not heard it now.
Q. Never heard it up to this time '-A. No; and don't hear it now.
Q. No one has told you that an Order in Council has been passed forfeiting the

charter of that company 7-A. No, Sir.
Q. Do you remember an Act of.the same session of the Legislature granting a sub-

sidy to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway 7-A. J think there was no subsidy granted under
that Act. It was a subsidy granted for the building of a bridge on the Baie des Chaleurs
over the Grand Cascapediac.

Q. A subsidy of $50,000 7-A. Yes.
Q. But there was also a subsidy to assist iii building and equipping the Baie (les

Chaleurs Railway ?-A. And paying the privileged debts-yes.
Q. That was a subsidy of 800,000 acres of land ?-A. Yes.
Q. Orders in Council subsequently were passed providing how these privileged

claims were to be paid, were they not 7-A. I have not seen those Orders in Council.
Q. But were they passed ?-A. I have seen it stated that they were passed. I have

not seen the Orders in Council. I think they must have been passed, because payments
have been made.

Q. Payments have been made under the Orders in Council passed in pursuance of
this Act whereby claims are to be paid on the approval of Angus Thom ?-A. I under-
stood that no claim could be paid without the approval of Mr. Thom, or a judgment
being obtained, or an arbitration. If Mr. Thom refused to certify the claimant had a
right to arbitration.

Q. Who is Mr. Thom ?-A. He is the present secretary of the company.
Q. That is of the new company 7-A. It is the sane company ; it has been re-

organized.
Q. Do you remember what day Parliament opened-the 29th of April, was it not ?

-A. J don't remember.
Q. Were you in Quebec the day before the opening of Parlianent ?-A. J think I

was.
Q. At the St. Louis Hotel ?-A. I have no doubt I was there. J usually stay at

the St. Louis.
Q. Do you remember the number of your room ; was it 68 ?-A. I don't renemuber.
Q. Do you remember who occupied the next, number 66 7-A. J don't know if it

was the next room, and don't know who occupied it.
Q. Did Senator Robitaille ?-A. I don't think I ever occupied the next rooni to

Senator Robitaille.
Q. How close was Mr. Robitaille's room to yours ?-A. J go to Quebec so often

and have had so many different rooms-
Q. But this was rather an important occasion 7-A. It had no importance in con-

nection with the number of the room I occupied.
Q. Did you go to Quebec to complete the transfer of Mr. Robitaille's stock ?-A. I

saw him in connection with that when I was in Quebec.
Q. That was on the day before he left for the Dominion Parliament ?-A. I think

I had seen him before that too, but I think the last day I saw him was on the day you
mention.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Robitaille's christian name 7-A. Theodore.
Q. He is the president of the old company ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember anyone else being in the hotel on the same day ?--A. There

were a good many people in the Hotel whom I knew.
Q. Do you remember anyone in particular 7-A. Mr. Thom was in the hotel at that

time.
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Q. Angus Thom 7-A. Yes.
Q. The secretary of the new conpany ?-A. He was not secretary then.
Q. When did he come to Quebec in order to have that meeting ?-A. I think he

had been there, probably, a week or ten days before. He had been there several days
before I went down.

,Q. Did you occupy the saine room with Mr. Thoin ?-A. I think I came back to
Montreal and then went back to Quebec and had a different room.

Q. When you came back, did you and Mr. Thoin occupy adjoining roomns 7-A. I
don't remember.

Q. Mr. Thom went with you to complete the transfer of the stock held by Mr.
Robitaille ?-A. We went together on that occasion.

Q. That was on the day I mentioned, was it not 7-A. I am not sure.
Q. Was it not on the day before Mr. Robitaille left to attend this Session of Par-

liament, that you met there ?-A. My impression is, that it was on the last day of Mr.
Robitaille's stay there that Mr. Thom and I saw hin together.

Q In his room ?-A. Yes.
Q. About the transfer of stock 7-A. Yes.
Q. He had the transfer of a stock, had he not 7-A. You mean the transfer blank-

yes; I believe so.
Q. You two went there to get it ?-A. I don't know whether I went there to get

it; I went there with Mr. Thom.
Q. You brought it away ?-A. I have no recollection of that.
Q. Are you sure 7-A. It is possible we did so.
Q. If Mr. Robitaille says you did, you would not deny it ?-A. No; nor anything

else that Mr. Robitaille says.
Q. Who carried the cheque for $24,000 to that room, you or Mr. Thom ? It was

Mr. Thom ?-A. I think it must have been Mr. Thom.
Q. Angus Thom ?-A. Angus Thom.
Q. That cheque was marked good ?- A. That I don't know
Q. Yes, you do.-A. Excuse nie.
Q. It was accepted by the bank -- A I am not aware that it was.
Q. If Mr. Robitaille says it was, will you deny it?-A. No; I will believe aiy.

thing that he says.
Q. Including that ?--A. Yes
Q. Do you remember what bank it was on 7-A. I think La Banque Nationale.
Q. Arid v hose cheque was it 7--A. J. C. Langelier's.
Q. That is Mr. Chrysostome Langelier ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the cheque was taken there by Mr. Thom, $24,000 was it not.- A. Yes,$24,000.
Q. That was on the 28th of April 7--A. I think so ; I ar not sure of the date.
Q. It was not to be cashed until the 1 st of May 7-A. That I could not say.
Q. Think now.-A. I don't remember that.
Q. If Mr. Robitaille says that was the arrangement, will you deny it -A. As I

said before, I will deny nothing that he says. My impression is that if it was an ac-
cepted cheque it was liable to be cashed at any moment.

Q. The $24,000 being paid to Mr. Robitaille was part of $75,000 to be paid to the
old company-the old stockholders 7-A. Yes ; paid to the shareholders.

Q. The shareholders being Mr. Robitaille, whon J have mentioned, his brother,
what was his name ?-A. L. A. Robitaille.

Q. Mr. Riopel-that is all, I think ?-A. There were several other shareholders.
Q. 'lihe shareholders were to get $75,000 7-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Robitaille was to get $24,000 7-A. That was a matter between the share-

holders.
Q. The cheque that that was taken to Mr. Robitaille was for his share 7-Yes.
Q. That cheque was payable to the order of Charles N. Armstrong 7-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In the room y ou endorsed it 7-A. I did endorse it, but I don't remember where.
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Q. And handed it to Mr. Robitaille 7-A. I don't renember whether J handed it
to him ; probably if I endorsed it in the room I would hand it over there.

Q. And Mr. Robitaille handed back the traisfer of stock ?-A. That was probably
the way it was done.

Q. And you took it away with you 7-A. I don't rembenber. If Mr. Thom was
there I think it more likely lie took it away.

Q. Mr. Thon didn't take it away ?-A. I am under the impression that lie did.
Q. What did you do with it after you brought it away -A. I would hand it to

Mr. Thom.
Q. Do you renember the incident that makes you think that you brought it away

and handed it to Mr. Thom next day ?-A. I do not remember.
Q. You do not remember the day you handed it to Mr. Thom 7-A. My impression

is he got it there himself. It would inake but little difference whether he got it there
or whether he got it next morning.

Q. You left the hotel next morning 7-A. I think I left before Mr. Thom did. I
think Mr. Thom was to leave that day, but by a later train; I left by the early train.

Q. Mr. Robitaille was to leave next day for Parliament?-A. I am not sure.
Q. You two had gone there to complete that arrangement with Mr. Robitaille 7-

A. I went down to complete my arrangement with the company. I did not go down
for the purpose of the transfer.

Q. How did you hear of the $34,000 cheque 7-A. I say I was there, but I did not
go down for that purpose.

Q. But you met in that room to complete the arrangement and to endorse the
cheque 7-A. I do not remember whether we met for that purpose, and I may have
endorsed the cheque before I went into the room.

Q. That cheque was part of the $75,000 which the old shareholders were to get,
and part of the $175,000 that you were to get ?-A. Which I had got.

Q. So that $75,000 of that $175,000 went to the old shareholders 7 -A, No, sir
Q. What do you mean 7-A. I mean what J say.
Q. Did the $24,000 go?--A. The $24,000 was simply a loan from me to Mr. Thom.
Q. To be paid to Mr. Robitaille ?-A. Yes; to be paid to Mr. Robitaille, but to

Ie later.
Q. Has it ever been returned 7-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When7--A. Within a few days; part of it the nlext day.
Q. In cash ?-A. Yes, and in payments on my account and at my request.
Q. Did he pay accounts for you ?-A. Yes.
Q. How much cash did you get next day 7-A. Next day, or perhaps it was the

saie day, I do not remember the exact date. I was handed some three or four thousand
dollars in cash, and as I was leaving Mr. Thom paid several acceptances of mine due in
Quebec.

Q. We will deal with the cash first. You got three or four thousand dollars in
cash 7-A. I think so.

Q. Who paid the hotel bills-Mr. Thom ?-A. J dont reniember; J left in a hurry
to catch the 1.15 train, and I may have left him to pay the hotel bills ; J think possibly
I did. We have often travelled together and sometimes he paid the hotel bills for me;
sonetimes J paid theni for hini.

Q. Being connected with the same business, that is the way you arranged 7-A. It
is not for that.

Q. Where did you get that three or four thousand dollars 7-A. From Mr. Thom.
Q. Where was it paid to you ?-A. It might have been paid to nie at the hotel ; I

am not sure of that. These things appear to me to be trivial.
Q. Did the receiving of $24,000.seenm to you a trifle 7-A. No; but it was a trifle

if it was paid in Room 66 or Room 68.
Q. But it was no trifle your being paid $24,000 7-A. No; J (o not think that; I

did not say that.
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Q. Did the getting of three or four thousand dollars next day appear a trifle ?-A.
It was a trifle when it was paid.

Q. Was it paid in a hotel?-A. I am under the impression it was.
Q. In whose room ?-A. I cannot say.
Q. Was it in your rooi n-A. I cannot say.
Q. Used you to ieet in Mr. Thomn's roonh or in your own ?-A. Sometimues in one,

sometimes in the other.
Q. It was in one of these rooms you got the money from Mr. Thom?-A. I an not

Sure.
Q. Did you get it in a cheque ?-A. I think J got some cheques fron him, but I

do not remember whether they are in payment of the loan or not.
Q. Would it be in )ills 7-A. Lt would be in bills if it was not in a cheque.
Q. Lt was not in gold ?-A. No.
Q. What did you do with the money ?-A. That I decline to state :I don't think

it makes any difference to the Committee what I did with my own money.
Q. What did you do with it? Look atme, if you please, Mr. Armstrong !-A. L an

lot here at your coninand ; I will look where I please.
Q. Look at me, if you please ?-A. I an not afraid to look at you.
Q. You got the cash : did you deposit it iii a hank ?-A. I may have deposited a

portion of it.
Q. In what bank 7-A. Perhaps I telegraphed some of that money to Montreal.
Q. To whom ?-A. To my office.
Q. You went to the telegraph office and paid the money there 7-A. No, I asked

the bank to telegraph it to my order.
Q. La Banque Nationale?-A. L an not sure, sonetines L transferred money

through the Banque Nationale, somnetimes through La Banque du Peuple, and sonetines
through the Merchants.

Q. Lt was one of these three? -A. I think those are the only three L have used
for that purpose. L amri not sure.

Q. Do you know any other bank that you used to transfer money from Quebec to
Montreal? -A. L think L used the Union Bank.

Q. Lt was none of these ?--A. L don't think there is any other bank by which L
could have done it, except it was the Bank of Montreal.

Q. How much did you transfer 7-A. I don't recollect.
Q. A large suin ?--A. L don't recollect ; L don't think it was a very large sumn.
Q. A hundred dollars ?-A. More than that.
Q. A thousand dollars ?-A. Lt might have been a thousand.
Q. Or a larger sum ?-A. Well, yes, perhaps even larger.
Q. I do not want to run up the gamut to learn the amount, but tell nie as near as

you can ?-A. L would have no objection to telling if i knew ; L have no object in
hiding the amount.

Q. Was it two thousand do you reneml)er 7--A. I do not think so.
Q. To whose credit was it transferred T-A. Lt may have been to ny credit, or it

m11ay have been to my book-keeper.
Q. What is your book-keeper's naine -A. Mr. Watson.
Q. In Montreal ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did you do with the rest of the money that you did not transfer ?-A.

I used it for my own purpose.
Q. What purposes ? Anything in connection with the railway ?-A. Lt may have

been in conhection with the railway.
Q. Were any amounts paid in connection with the Baie (les Chaleurs Railway ?-A.

I do not remember if L paid any amounts in Quebec in connection with the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway or not. L had only a short time to catch my train. I don't remember
whether L paid anything in connection with the Baie des Chaleurs.

Q. What did you do with the endorsed cheques for $56,000 that were left 1-A.
What $56,000 ?
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Q. The difference between $24,000 and the $75,000; you got cheques for that, did
you ?-A. I got cheques for $7 1,750 J think.

Q. In Quebec ?-A. In Quebec.
Q. li that sane roon ?--A. No; I did not get the cheques in that room.
Q. You got the $24,000 in that roomu and endorsed it uver? -A. No.
Q. Are you sure of that 7-A. I never said I did.
Q. The question was whether you endorsed it ; you said you endorsed the cheque in

Mir. Robitaille's roomi 7-A. No ; I did not.
Q. Where did you get the $71,750 ?-A 1 got the .vhole at the same time in the

office of the Banque Nationale.
Q. You went to the bank with Mr. Angus Thon ?--A With Mr. Langelier and

Angus Thon.
Q. Is that Mr. Chrysostome Langelier ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who carried the cheques to the bank 7-A I do not think they were carried

there ; 1 think they were made out there.
Q. Drawn by Mr. Chrysostome Langelier there ?-A. I think the cheque s were

drawn by the manager of the bank.
Q. And signed by Chryostome Langelier ?-A. Yes.
Q. In the batik parloi (-A. i the mhanager's office.
Q. And handed to you ?--A. Yes.
Q. You got the $71,750 that day ?-A. Yes.
Q. The next day-or was it the sane day-you handed o'er $24,00 to Mr.

Robitaille 7-A. It may have been the same day or the next day.
Q. How nany cheques were tiere ?-A I think there were three cheques.
Q. Twenty-four thousand dollars was one -A. I think they were for $24,000,

$16,000 and $31,750.
Q. What did you do with the $16,000 cheque ?- A. I do not think I an bound

to account for what I have been doing with my own money.
Q. 1 think so? -A. I think not.
Q. Did you hand it to some person, or deposit it in the batik ?-A. I don't think I

ai bound to answer that.
Q. We won't pry into your private affairs -- A. I think that is my private affair.
Q. You decline to say whether you handed it to a mai or deposited it in a bank 7--

A. Yes ; J think you are going a little too far iito niatters that concer'n only myself.
Q. You decline to answer ?-A. Yes.
Q. Why ?-A. Because J do not thiik you have any right to go into my personal

affairs.

Q. Did you give it to Mr. Robitaille's brother 7-A. I give you the sane answer.
Q. Did you give the $31,750 to the sane man to w.hon you gave the $16,000 ?--

A. That is only coming around it another way ; I decline to answer.
Q. You won't answer that at all 7-A. No.
Q. Because that is your private business --A. Yes.
Q. Did you deposit it in sonie bank ?-A. You need not ask mie any questions ; you

will not catch nie.
Q. This was part of the $75,000 which was to go to the shareholders ?-A. It was

part of the $175,000 which J received for work done on that road, and which was my
own property.

Q. But $24,000 went to one shareholder ?-A. I loaned that money to Mr. Thom.
Q. Did you loan the other cheques to hini ?--A. No.
Q. To whom did you loan them ?-A. J decline to answer.
Q. You endorsed then in blank ?--A. No ; J did not.
Q. They were payable to you, and you endorsed them generally ?-A. J wrote my

naine on the back of themi.
Q. And loaned them to sonebody ? -A. I did not say that.
Q. Did you hand them to anybody ?-A. I must have handed theni to somebody

I have not got then now.
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Q. How long did you have them in your hand, or in your pocket?--A. That I
decline to answer.

Q. These cheques were brought to you and endorsed by you and then taken away
from you without your holding them at all ; is not that so 7--A. You seem to know
more about it than I do.

Q. I thi»k I do.-A. Then perhaps you had better be witness instead of counsel.
Q. I know all about it, and J am going to prove these facts.-A. I have no objection

to your proving anything.
Q. But you are unwilling to prove it. You object to my proving it through you.

-- A. I object to your asking me questions regarding matters which I corsider have
nothing to do with this inquiry.

Q. We will confine ourselves to this question. J may be able to prove by others
these facts, though J cannot by you. If anyone tells that story, wlll you deny it 1
A. J don't think anyone will tell it.

Q. If anyone makes that statement, will you deny it ?-A. It will depend upon
vho says it.

Q. Now, Mr. Armstrong we have got your story as far as it will go, with regard to
the three cheques making up this $71,750. There was then a balance of $3,250 ; was
that paid by cheque 7-A. No.

Q. Is it still due?-A. It is still due to mie.
Q. And the money is now in La Banque Nationale, I presume to the credit of

Mr. Chrysostome Langelier ?-A. J think if it had been lying to his credit he would
have paid it.

Q. Was that $71,7 50 the proceeds of a letter of credit discounted by La Banque
Nationale ?-A. I do not know. Of course I had nothing to do with any letter of
credit, except that I understood that there was a letter of credit.

Q. A letter of credit of the Quebec Government ?-A. I do not know whose it was.
I understood that a letter of credit was being discounted for the purpose of paying me.

Q. Chrysostome Langelier told you that 7-A. It must have been lie, I don't know
of anybody else who would tell me.

Q. The $71,750 was the proceeds of that discount ?-A. I understood the bank kept
$3,250 for guarantee of the interest upon the letter, but the interest would not neces-
sarily amount to that.

Q. Chrysostome Langelier told you that?-A. I think the bank manager said that
in my presence.

Q. Did Chrysostome Langelier and you and Mr. Thom go down there, carrying the
letter of credit 7-A. Three people could not very well carry a letter of credit.

Q. Is that your deliberate answer ?-A. That is my answer.
Q. Who took the letter of credit there ?--A. I did not.
Q. It was taken there that day 7-A. I believe it was.
Q.- Did Chrysostome Langelier go into the bank parlour and arrange the discount,

leaving you outside ?-A. I think we were in the next room for a while.
Q. He went first into the manager's office and arranged the discount ?- A. J don't

know just what he went in there for.
Q. Did he tell you ?--A. He did not.
Q. Did you understand he was going in to make the arrangement to get the dis-

count 7-A. J understood he was going in to get the cheques.
Q. Then he came out with the cheques 7-A. We were called in and the cheques

Were written in my presence.
Q. And you endorsed then over there 7-A. J do not know whether I endorsed

them there or not.
Q. Where else would you endorse them7-A. There were dozens of other places.
Q. And you handed them over the same day ?-A. I do not think so.
Q. Did you hand them over before you left Quebec ?-A. Yes.
Q. You were to leave on the one o'clock train the next day, and before that time

these three cheques had left your possession ?-A. Yes.
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Q. On the day you got theni or the next day ?-A. I have just said that I do not
remember whether they left my possession on that day or the next day.

Q. How long had you the three cheques in your possession; just long enougli to
endorse them ?-A. No, sir, you are Wrong.

Q. How long had you the one for $16,000; as long as you had the one for $24,-
000 -- A. Either one of the two remained in my possession until the next day.

Q. You did ndt keep thein long ?-A. No, I wanted the money.
Q. That was $75,000 of the $100,000 of the letter of credit 1-A. That was $75,-

000 of the $175,000 paid to me. -
Q. Now, $100,000 was paid to you somewhat in the sane way ?-A. It was paid

to me by cheques by Mr. Langelier.
Q. Five cheques of $20,000 each, there were ?-A. You appear to know.
Q. But you do not know ?-A. I do not propose to tell you.
Q. Would you deny that ?--A. I did not deny that.
Q. Have you told anyone that since this Bill was before the Senate Conmittee ?-

A. I think not.
Q. What bank were they on 7-A. I believe the Union Bank.
Q. Sure of that ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You did not notice what bank they were on, when you endorsed them 1-A. I

saw the cheques.
Q. Answer that question.-A. Yes, I think they were on the Union Bank, but I

am not positive.
Q. You did not keep them long enough to find out ?--A. Yes, I had them long

enough; that would not take long.
Q. But you did not find out ?--A. My impression is they were on the Union Bank.
Q. But you have found out they were on La Banque du Peuple -- A. I have not.

I have heard it said hy you they were on La Banque du Peuple.
Q. Do you believe it?--A. I do not believe all you have said.
Q. Do you believe that much ?-A. I do not.
Q. Did you give these cheques, some to one and some to another, or did you give

thein all to the sane man --A. That I will not tell.
Q. Did you give them to a man or deposit them in a bank ?-A. That I decline to

say.
Q. Did you give then to the sane man to whom you gave these, one for $16,000

and the other for $31,750 7-A. You will save yourself a good deal of trouble by not
asking such questions.

Q. It is no trouble to me. You siniply kept these cheques long enough to endorse
theni ?-A. I have not told you how long I kept thei.

Q. Now, 1 am going to put a series of questions which you nay be willing to answer
or may not. Were these the proceeds of a letter of credit 1-A. I do not know.

Q. Did you ever hear ?-A. No, sir.
Q. They were Chrysostome Langelier's chelues?--A. Yes.
Q. Payable to Charles N. Armstrong A. Yes.
Q. Endorsed by Charles N. Armstrong l-A. Of course; that was necessary.
Q. Payable to anyone?-A. Payable to me.
Q. Endorsed payable to anyone, J mean ? -A. No.
Q. Endorsed generally ?-A. Yes; but they would be payable to me.
Q. If they were endorsed generally, that would make then payable to anybody 7-

A. What I mean is that with cheques of large amounts like these, the bank would re-
quire identification before paying them.

Q. The man who got these cheques would have cashed theni ?-A. Well, J think
the cheques were given, and I think the man who got them probably did cash themn.

Q. Were they narked good at the time ?-A. No.
Q. They were marked the sane as the cheque for $24,000 ?-A. I don't think that

was mnarked.
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Q. You do not know whether these five cheques were marked or not 7-A. They
were not nmarked.

Q. You are positive about that 7-A. I an positive.
Q. When were they dated 7-A. I am not sure.
Q. On the 28th of April?-A. I think so.
Q. Where did you get them, in Montreal or Quebec ?-A. Quebec.
Q. At the sane time you were down there on the 28th of April?-A. I think some

days after that.
Q. How many days7-A. I can't reneiber; not nany days.
Q. Did you go back to Montreal ?-Yes ; 1 left for Montreal by the one o'clock train.
Q. Then you went back to Quebec to get the other tive cheques 7-A. I went to

get the balance of my money.
Q. That is the $100,000 ?-A. There was $103,250.
Q. Angus Thbm went with you -A. I an not sure that he went.
Q. He may have gone with you 7-A. I don't remember.
Q. Or he met you there ?-A. We were there at the saine tine.
Q. And the sane arrangement was adopted in handing over the five cleques for

$20,000 each which you have described ?-A. No, sir ; there was a difference. Mr. Thoni
was not there.

Q. Had he gone back to Montreal? -A. I ain not sure.
Q. Who was there ?-A. Nobody was there.
Q. Nobody there when you handed over cheques far these large amounts ?-A.

Nobody there when I got them, and nobody when I disposed of them.
Q. Did you receive them by post, or find them on the floor 7--A. I stated that I

received thei from Mr. Langelier.
Q. Did you hand them over at the saine interview 7-A. I never handed thei over

to Mr. Langelier. I have just told you there was nobody there.
Q. How long after you endorsed thein, was it that you handed them back ?-A. I

did not say I handed them back.
Q. Did you hand them back ?-A. I decline to answer.
Q. Did you tell anyone that you handed these cheques to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I did

not.
Q. Will you deny that you did If Senator Robitaille says that, will you deny it ?

-A. Anything that Senator Robitaille says I will believe.
Q. You came on the train here with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. No.
Q. Did you see him yesterday 7-A. I did not.
Q. Do you know where he is!-A. I do not
Q. You have not leard lie had gone to France?-A. I have heard that lie is in

England.
Q. Gone to France by way of England 7-A. I don't know.
Q. You decline to tell me where this $100,000 which you received on your second

Visit has gone 7-A. Yes.
Q. Will you deny that it went to Mr. Pacatud ?-A. I will not deny it or assert or

tell you anything about it.
Q. Now, Mr. Armstrong, we come to another subject. Under this Subsidy Act of

the Quebec Legislature of 1890 a subsidy of 800,000 acres was granted which was con-
verted into $280,000, payable to any person or persons who were in a position to carry
Out the said work, that is, to build and equip the Baie (les Chaleurs. You understand
What I mean ?-A. Yes.

Q. The $175,000 paid to you was part of that $280,000 7-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You decline to tell me whether the $100,000, part of the $280,000 granted

under this Act was given to Mr. Pacaud or not 7-A. I decline to say. I received
$ 175,000 for good consideration ; I had given over double that amount, and once it be-
cane imy property it is nobody's business what I did with it.

Q. Nobody's business whether you paid it to Mr. Pacaud or not 7-A. No; nor
Whether I paid it to you.
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Q. Did you ineet John J. Macdonald ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was negotiating with the Goverament for the building of this road, was he

not7-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And with Mr. Pacaud 7-A. Yes; I was told so.
Q. Were you told by John J. Macdonald 7-A. I think probably he did tell me;

we had several conversations.
Q. He told you about the bargain Mr. Pacaud wanted to make with hini 7-A. No.
Q. Whom did you learn that from 7-A. I don't think J ever learned it.
Q. You know that Mr. Pacaud wanted to make a bargain ?-A. I know they were

negotiating.
Q. And John J. said that Pacaud wanted too much 7-A. I was under the impres

sion that he had made his arrangements.
Q. And you learned what the arrangement was ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did not John J. tell you ?-A. No.
Q. How did you find it out ?-A. I have not found it out.
Q. You knew there was an arrangement ?-A. I was under that impression.
Q. An arrangement to pay Pacaud some noney 7-A. I did not know what the

amount was.
Q. You went to Pacaud yourself ?-A. Yes.
Q. And told Pacaud that you knew there was an arrangement with John J.-A.

No, sir.
Q. What did you tell him ?-A. I did not tell him anything of that kind.
Q. What did you tell him 7-A. Simply asked whether he was willing to work for

me or other parties in a position to take up the subsidy and do the work.
Q. That is under the Subsidy Act. You asked him if he was willing to carry out

with any company the arrangement he had with John J. ?-A. I asked if the Govern-
ment was willing.

Q. You told him that if the Government were willing you would get a new set of
men and make it all right with them ?-A. No, -sir,

Q. Was that about the substance of it 7-A. No.
Q. What did you say about the new syndicate ?-A. I asked if the Government

were ready to deal with the new syndicate, as the arrangements with Mr. Macdonald and
Mr. Cameron were not going through.

Q. And you told hiimx you knew what the arrangements were 7-A. No.
Q. The arrangements I refer to were as between the company and himself 7-A. I

ani talking about the arrangements between Mr. Macdonald's syndicate and him. I told
Mr. Pacaud no such a thing as you state, and J never said I said so.

Q. If anyone said that would you deny it ?-A. I would deny it.
Q. Even if Senator Robitaille said it 7-A. Yes. Because he would be under a

mistake if he said that.
Q. You have talked with somebody over the little arrangement with Mr. Pacaud

since this Bill came before the committee 7-A. Several people attempted to get inform-
ation fromt nie.

Q. Several people who, you think, have given you away ?-A. I don't know that
anyone has given me away.

Q. Where were you last Sunday week ?--A. I was in Sorel.
Q. And travelled up to Ottawa on Sunday ?--A. No, sir; I did not.
Q. When did you come ?-A. On the Sault train on Monday.
Q. Do you remember whom you travelled with 7-A. There were quite a number of

people I knew on the train.
Q. Were you in the dining-car ?-A. Yes ; part of the time with Mr. Tassé.
Q. And you told him all about it ?-A. No; I refused to tell him all about it.
Q. Now where did this interview with Mr. Pacaud take place 7-A. It was not much

of an interview ; it only lasted a minute or two.
Q. Where was it ?-A. In the St. Louis Hotel.
Q. On the 28th of April 7-A. Long before that.
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Q. Was he living there?-A. No; but he often comes in and out.
Q. Did you go up stairs, or was the interview in the public hall?-A. It was iii

the public hall.
Q. Who else was there ?-A. We two sat together.
Q. For a few minutes ?-A. 1 don't think we were half a minute.
Q. Did vou come to an.ur.derstanding ?-A. I asked if he thought the Govern-

ment would be willing to treat with other parties, as the arrangonents with Mac-
donald and Cameron were not going through.

Q. Did lie tell you that they were ?-A. He said he thought they were.
Q. When did he tell you they were ?-A. Probably ton days after that; perhaps

more-two weeks after.
Q. Did you go back to Montreal ?-A. Yes.
Q. You then went down to Quebec to see him ?-A. I think the next tima I

saw him was in Montreal.
Q. Did he come up to sec you ?-A. He came up on 6ther business.
Q. And told you they were ready to make t he arrangements ?-A. No; not then.
Q. They were a little conpany ?-A. I think ihey were not completely off their

arrangement with Macdonald and Cameron.
Q. They were not off with the old-how soon were they off after your arrange-

ment in the St. Louis Hotel?-A. There was no arrangement.
Q. After the conversation ?-A. Two or three weei<s.
Q. When did he tell you they were off?-A. Some time about the middle of

March.
Q. Did ho come to Montroal to tell you that ?-A. No; he happened to be in

Montreal, and I went to see him.
Q. Where?-A. In the Windsor Hotel.
Q. Did you sit in the rotunda, or in a room ?-A. I think we talked in the

rotunda.
Q. That was in March or April ?-A. In March; but I do not know the exact date

. Q. What did ho tell you ?-A. He had not had an answer from Macdonald about

Q. That is as to how John J. was to pay him ?-A. As to whether they would
carry out the arrangement.

Q. Did not he tell you ho did not know how much John J. would pay him ?-A.
No; there was no reference to that.

Q. When did you learn from Mr. Pacaud that the arrangement was off with
the John J. Macdonald sytndicate? In Montreal ?-A. No ; by telegram.

Q. Where is the telegram ?-A. I have not got it.
Q. Did you destroy it ?-A. I do not know.
Q. What did he do ?-A. The telegram was from New York, and he said if we

Wished to sec the members of' the Government in connection with the arrangement
for the construction of the line to corne with one of the members of the syndicate to
New York.

Q. To see him ?-A. To sec the members of the Government who were there.
Q. And him ?-A. He did not say so.
Q. He was there?-A. Yes.
Q. And stayed there ?-A. Yes.
Q. What members of the Government were in New York ?-A. I saw two or

three of the members when I was there.
Q. Whoni did you sec ?-A. Mr. Robidoux and Mr. Charles Langelier.
Q. And Mr. Garneau ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Any others ?-A. I think those were the only two there when I got there.
Q. These two and Mr. Pacaud were in New York ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. At what hotel ?-A. At the Brunswick.
Q. Were thev ail staying at the same hotel?-A. I net them ail there.
Q. Was Mr. Pacaud staying there ?-A. I am not sure.
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Q. Was Mr. Langelier or Mr. Robidoux staying there?-A. I met them ut that
hotel.

Q. In whose room ?-A. In no room-that is to say, in the public room down
stairs.

Q. Off the main hall ?-A. No; in the public hall there is a door opening off
the street.

Q. Were you four or five the only ones in the roorn?-A. No; there may have
been a dozen or fifty.

Q. What members of the syndicate went with you ?-A. Mi. Thom.
Q. Mr. Angus Thom ?-A. Yes. -
Q. Did you sec Mr. Pacaud before you saw Mr. Robidoux and Mr. Langelier ?--

A. I am not sure whether some of them were not there together; at all events they
wero there at that time.

Q. That is Mr. Robidoux and you and Mr. Pacaud and Mr. Thom and Mr.
Langelier met together at once?-A. I cannot recollect.

Q. You saw Mr. Paeaud first ?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you before you got down to business ?-A. What

do you mean by getting down to business.
Q. When you found that the arrangement with the old company was off ?-A.

I do not remember.
Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you ?-A. I don't think it is necessary to tell.
Q. Is that the time you came to the arrangement with regard to his getting

$100,000 ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Will you deny it ?-A. I will neither deny nor state anîything.
Q. You will not deny that in the Brunswick hotel, in New York, you came to

the arrangement to pay Mr. Pacaud $100,000 as a condition of being approved as the
company to handle the subsidy ?-A. I do deny any such thing as that.

Q. I mado that question a little too long. Did you discuss $100,000 with Mr.
Pacaud then ?-A. No.

Q. Did you discuss giving anything to him ?-A. No.
Q. What did you talk about ?-A. The proposed arrangement with the iew

syndicate for taking hold of the construction of the line.
Q. And you learned that the J. J. Macdonald syndicate was off ?-A. No.
Q It was not off then ?-A. No.
Q. When did it go off ?-A. Some days after that.
Q. Did you learn that in New York ?-A. No; I said I got a telegram from

New York.
Q. You had learned it was off when you were in Montreal?-A. No; J learned

it was not off. It was after my return fiom New York.
Q. You made your propositions to Pacaud, Robidoux and Langelier in New

York ?-A. They were made by Mr. Thom on behalf of the proposed syndicate.
Q. You had your private conver>ation with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I never said so.
Q. At that conversation [ suppose you won't tell me whether you agreed to give

him the $100,000 or not?-A. No.
Q. You will not deny that it was at that conversation you made the arrange-

ment to give him the $100,000 ?-A. I do not deny it. I say nothing about it.
Q. Then you came back to Montreal?--A. Yes, sir.
Q. Without making any arrangement?-A. Without closing anything.
Q. The only thing pretty well understood between Mr. Pacaud and you was

your arrangement with him?-A. I have not said so.
Q. You will not deny it?-A. I will say nothing about it.
Q. The one thing elear was that Mr. Pacaud had to be arranged with ?-A. I

have not said that.
Q. And you will not deny it?-A. I will not sav anything about it.
Q. Who paid you expenses going down ?-A. Mr. Cooper advaniced the money

for the expenses.
Q. For both ?-A. I do not know about Mr. Thom-1 know he advanced for mine.
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Q. Who is Mr. Cooper ?-A. President of the Company.
Q. What is his Christian name ?-A. James.
Q. He advanced the money for expenses ?-A. He advanced me 850 as I was

going down on their behalf.
Q Are you in the employment of this company ?-A. No.
Q. You have no connection with them now ?-A. I never had except as con-

tractor.
Q. Never told anybody you had ?-A. No.
Q. Never told anybody you were in the employment of the Company now ?-

A. No.
Q. Then you came back to Montreal. When did you see Mr. Pacaud again ?-

A. I think it was some weeks after that.
Q. Had you heard from him in the meantime ?-A. I had a telegram from him.
Q. Where was it sent from ?-A. New York.
Q. He remained in iNew York all this time ?-A. I do not know that.
Q. He stayed with Mr. Robidoux and Mr. Langelier ?-A. I do not know, but I

think not. I believe they went off inspecting Lunatic asylums, or something of that
kind.

Q. Re remained in New York until their return, or did he go with them ?-A.
I do not know.

Q. Yoti got another telegrai from Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. I suppose it is in Montreal ?-A. i don't think I kept it.
Q. What did it say ?-A. It had been understood in New York that unless they

heard or closed something with Macdonald and Cameron with in a certain time-
within a few days-they would be prepared to close with the new syndicate. I
think his telegram was sent at the end of the time fixed, and announced the fact
that they heard nothing from Montreal, and were open todeal with the new syndicate.

Q. It was addressed to you at Montreal ?-Yes.
Q. Then you and Mr. Thom went down again ?-A. No.
Q. Moment down ?-A. Nobody.
Q. When did you meet with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. A short time after ho had

returned.
Q. How did you leain ho was about to return ?-A. I don't remember.
Q. You learned he was back in Quebec and went down to see him ?-A. I saw

him i n Montreal.
Q. On his way to Quebec ?-A. Yes, ho came home before the Ministers.
Q. He was a little more anxious perhaps ?--A. He was not on the commission.
Q. He came to your office ?-A. Well 1 don't know that he has ever been in

my office, I think is more likely that I went to him at the Windsor.
Q. Did ho sont for you ?.-A. I do not recollect.
Q. Did you get a letter or message asking you to come to the Windsor ?-A. I

do not know.'
Q. But you went to the Windsor ?-A. I am not sure that I met him at the

Windsor.
Q. Where did you meet him ?-A. My impression is that I met him at the

Windsor.
Q. In the rotunda or in some private roon ?-A. I think I met him in a private

room
Q. Did he tell you that the arrangement was off with the John J. Macdonald

sYndicate and that ho was prepared to make an arrangement with the new syndicate ?
'A. He said the Government was prepared to negotiate with the new syndicate.

Q. You arranged with Mr. Pacaud what he was to get ?-A. I will not deny or
acknowledge that.

Q. Have you ever told anybody that at that interview you arranged with Mr.
acaud what ho was to get ?-A. No.

Q. That is one of the things you did not tell ; have you told anything that took
Place with regard to that transaction ?-A. I suppose i have.

17
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Q. Did you go to Quebec with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. No.
Q. Did he go alone?-A. I did not go with him.
Q. How long after you met in the St. Louis Hotel, was the order of the Lieute-

nant-Governor passed, inaking the arrangements with the new syndicate ?-A. About
six weeks, I think.

Q. How lorng after the meeting took place between you and Mr. Pacaud in the
Windsor lotel?-A. My impression is that meeting took place a few days after the
one in New York.

Q. You knew after the meeting in the Windsor, that the Order in Council was
to be passed ?-A. No.

Q. You expected it to be passed ?-A. I cannot say I expected it to ho passed.
Q. When did you know it would be passed ?--A. Not until it was passed.
Q. There was a good deal of delay in issuing the order, was there not ?-

A. There were several difficulties arose in discussing the details, I believe.
Q. low did you put your proposal before the Quebec Government ?-A. I hnd

not any proposal to make.
Q. Woll, the new syndicate ?-A. I understood that Mr. Thom wrote a letter to

the Government.
Q. Placing their proposal before the Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. When was that application made ?-A. A few days before the Order in

Council was passed.
Q. So that there was only about ten days delay between the application being

before the Lieutenant-Governor in Council and the passing of the Order ?-A. I
think it was only two or three or four days.

Q. The application was presented to the Quebec Legislature by Mr. Thom ?-
A. Not to the Legisiature.

Q. I mean to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council ?-A. By Mr. Thom on behalf
of the syndicate.

Q. You went to Quebec at the time that application was before the Lieutenant
Governor in Council ?-A. I was not in Quebec at that time.

Q. Was Mr. Thom there ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did he write the application in Quebee ?-A. Yes.
Q. And gave it to whom ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did you get a copy of it ?-A. I had a copy but there were several altera-

tions in it and I did not keep it.
Q. Who made the alterations ?-A. They were made by Mr. Thon.
Q. Did you submit the application to Mr. Pacatiud ?-A. I did not; I had noth-

ing to do with it.
Q. Did he see it before it was made ?-A. Not to my ki)owledge.
Q. Where were you staying together. At the St. Louis ?-A. I was not stay-

ing with Mr. Pacaud.
Q. Did you soe Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Several times.
Q. Did you talk about the application ?-A. Yes.
Q. And about the one hundred thousand dollars ?-A. I did not say that.
Q. You will not deny that?-A. I will not say anything about it.
Q. Mr. Mercier was then in England or on the Continent?-A. On the Conti-

nent I think.
Q. And Mr. Garneau was acting Premier ?-A. I believe so.
Q. There was some difficulty about the order going through, was there not ?-

A. I do not know what you call a difficulty.
Q. Some delay ?-A. It took sometime to settle all the details.
Q. Mr. Pacaud explained the reasons for the delay?-A. I don't think he did

he did not explain them to me.
Q. lie told you he had to go to Garneau ?-A. Who told you that?
Q. lie told you that; did lie not ?-A. No, sir.
Q. He did not tell you of an interview with Mr. Garneau ?-A. I know he did

have an interview because I saw hirn go into Mr. Garneau's office.
18
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Q. Was that the day before the Order was passed ?-A. That I cannot say.
Q. Or was that the second day before ?-A. It was during the time I was there;

it imay have been three days before.
Q. Did he take a list of debts when he went into the office ?-A. What debts ?Q. I do not know what debts ?-A. I do not either.
Q. Did he take a list with him ?-A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. He showed you a list ?-A. A list of what ?
Q. No. Showed you a list of liabilities ?-A. No.
Q. Debts ?-A. No.
Q. What did ho show you ?-A. He did not show me anything.
Q. You did not see a list of liabilities or debts or I O U's or " bons" as you

call them, to be paid out of the $75,000 ?-A. No.
Q. Did you tell Senator Robitaille that he did ?-A. No.
Q. If he says you did say so, will you deny it ?-A. I don't think ho will say so.Q. Are you prepared on oath to deny it if Senator Robitaille states it ?-A. Yes.
Q. You saw a list of $57,000 of debts that Mr. Pacaud had ?-A. No, sir.
Q. And you never told Senator Robitaille that either?-A. No, sir.Q. Did you see any list of figures amounting to $57,000 in Mr. Pacaud's posses-

sion ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You are prepared to deny that ?-A. Straight.
Q. That is one thing you are solid upon ?-A. I am solid upon a good many

things.
Q. Pacaud told you that ho went to Mr. Garneau's house and insisted that the

Order in Council must be passed, did he not ?-A. No, sir.
Q. He never told yon that ?-A. No, sir.
Q. If Senator Robitaille says that you told him that, will you deny that?-A.

Yes.
Q. Because I can tell you ho is going to say that ?-A. He may say so if ho

chooses, if ho does so it will be because ho thinks it.is truc.
Q. You will bolieve him ?-A. I will believe that ho thinks what ho says istruc.
Q. Mr. Pacanud showed you a list which ho had submitted to Mr. Garneau ?-A.

Is that all your question ?
Q. Yes ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did ho show you a paper he submitted to Mr. Garneau ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did he tell you he had shown a paper to Mr. Garneau?--A. No, sir.
Q. If Sonator Robitaille says you said exactly the opposite ?-A. I don't think

he wil ay so.
Q. I ean tell you that he will ?-A. Welil.
Q. On oath he will say that?-A. He may, but I do not think so.
Q. I tell you he intends to say that ?-A. I will wait until ho says it before

I express an opinion.
Q. Then if he does say it you won't deny it?-A. If he doesI will take it that

he has nisunderstood something that I may have told him.
Q. Will you say ho is swearing to what is not true ?-A. No, I will not say that.

I will say he has misunderstood something that I said.
Q. Did you tell that to Senator Tassé?-A. No, sir.
Q. Not the day you were travelling in the dining car?-A. No, sir.
Q. And if Mr. Tassé says you did, what will you say ?-A. I will say he is mis-

taken.
Q. Will you deny it ?-A. I have already denied it.
Q. Will you deny it if ho says it under oath ?-A. Certainly, I am not going to

change what I have said, I am on my oath now.
Q. La Banque du Peuple retired some paper they held out of the proceeds

of $100,000 ?--A. I am not aware of that.
Q. You never heard that ?-A. I never heard it.
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Q. I am going to read to you my notes to teli you what Mr. Robitaille, I belie
will state?-A. I had rather Mr. Robitailie would say it himself.

Q. If Senator Robitaille says I know that there was delay in the passing of the
Order in Council through some outside interference with Mr. Garneau ; will you
deny that ?-A. I am not aware of any interference.

Q. Answer the question ?-A. That is an answer to your question.
Q. If Senator Robitaille says that; will you deny it ?-A. No, I will not deny it.
Q. If ho says you told him so, will you deny it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Will you deny that you knew of the delay?-A. I knew there was sone

delay.
Q. Did you tell Senator Robitaille there was some delay ?-A. Yes, I daresay

I told him that at the time.
Q. What day of the month is this ?-A. The 12th, I think I am not very sure

I have been knocking around so much.
Q. Do you remember Tuesday oflast week ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was the first day you were befrie the Committee ?-A. I was here

several times before. That is the first day questions were put to me.
Q. Did you see Senator Robitaille here that day?-A. I saw him both before

and after the Committee meeting.
Q. Wheie ?- A. In his room.
Q. Where is that?-A. Downstairs.
Q. You went to his room?-A. Yes.
Q. And told him about this?-A. I don't remember.
Q. Have you talked to him since ?-A. Yes; on Thursday last week.
Q. Did you talk about the matter?-A. Yes, we have often talked about it.
Q. Did you tell him then or any other time that when there was delay in passing

the Order in Council, Mr. Pacaud told you he went to Mr. Garneau and threatened to
telegraph for Mr. Mercier ?-A. I do not know that I told hin that i but it was
stated in the papers.

Q. Mr. Pacaud told you so ?-A. I don't know that ho told me.
Q. Did you learn it from Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did you tell Senator Robitaille that ?-A. I do not know.
Q. You are not prepared to say you did not tell him that ?-A. I am not prepared

to say it.
Q. And that Pacaud said Mercier could be out in a week, and Garneau knew

what would follow ?-A. No.
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud tell you that?-A. No.
Q. If Senator Robitaille says you said that, will you deny it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And Garneau begged Pacaud for God's sake not to do that, and promised to

pass the Order in Council-is that right ?-A. Is that a question-I did not know
you put it in the shape of'a question ?

Q. Is that not right?-A. No; I (o not think it is.
Q. You are not quite sure?-A. Thore was some conversation as to what

appeared in the papers.
Q. But did you,tell him that?-A. No.
Q. Or anything like that ?-A. Something like that that appeared in the papers.
Q. Did you say that Pacaud said that to you ?-A. No.
Q. If Senator Robitaille says you said that-and I say ho will say it-will you

deny it?-A. I will deny that I used those words.
Q. Will you deny that that was the substance of the conversation ?-A. That is

another matter; we were talking of what appeared in the newspapers.
Q. And you gave Senator Robitaille to understand that you got this from Mr.

Pacaud ?-A. I do not think I did.
Q. You will not deny it?-A. I do not think I put it in that way. There was a

good deal passed between Senator Robitaille and myself that I considered confiden-
tial, and perhaps I was careless in the words I used.
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Q. Now Mr. Pacaud told you there was a little delay in the matter ?-A. I do
not know that he told me anything ut ail about delay. I know it took some days to
complete the matter.

Q. Mr. Pacaud went to Mr. Garneau's bouse ?-A. That I do not know.
Q. Now I am going to tell you again what you have said within the last few

days, Mr. Armstrong, this is what you gave as the report of your conversation and
interviews with Mr. Pacaud :-Then Mr. Pacaud went to Mr. Garneau's bouse and
produced to Garneau a list of Mercier's debts amounting to $57,000 which had to be
met and insisted that the order in Council nust be passed. Garneau gave in and the
order in Council was passed. Pacaud told that to you and showed you the list of
$57,000 of debts. You saw that list and on the list you saw the names of Tarte and
Carroll. Did I get that name right. He is the member for Kamouraska, is he
not ?-A. I am not sure.

Q. That is wh.at you told Senator Robitaille in bis room in this building on the
4th of this month.-A. I arn under the impression that part of what you say, was
told by Senator Robitaille in his room to me.-

Q. How inuch did you tell Senator Robitaille ?-A. There was a general conver-
sation about the matter and Senator Robitaille seemed to know a great deal more
about it than I did.

Q. You said:-Did you ever hear of anything so imprudent as showing me that
list. That is about right ?-A. I do not remember that.

Q. That is pretty close to it, is it not ?-A. I do not remember to be able to say
how close it is.

Q. And it was an infernally imprudent thing ?-A. It would have been, if it had
been done.

Q. It was an imprudent thing ?-A. I say it was an imprudent thing.
Q. And you saw the list ?-A. I did not say so. I do not know what list you

refer to.
Q. Yes, you do. Do you mean to tell me you do not know what list I refer to ?

-A. You have questioned me about a list of debts, I.O.U.'s, &c., but you cannot
catch me.

Q. You could help me in this matter ?-A. Perhaps I could if I wished.
Q. Did you see the list which Mr. Pacaud took to Mr. Garneau's house and

showed to him ?-A. I do not know of any list whatever that Mr. Garneau took to
Mr. Pacaud's house.

Q. I have told you what Senator Robitaille is to say. Will you deny that if he
said it?-A. I do not know what he is going to say.

Q. You have beard what I tel] you, Senator Robitaille will say, you said in his
room. If ho says so, will you deny it?-A. Part of it 1 think he told me instead of
me telling him.

Q. What part ?-A. It is pretty hard to divide it. He told me be had heard
that Mercier had received $57,000 or $58,000 out of the $100,000 paid to Pacaud.
le asked me if I knew anything about it. I said I did not know. He spoke about a

suma of $17,000. I said I had once heard Mr Pacaud say there was $57,000 yet to
pay, but as to his going with the list to Mr. Garneau's bouse, or anything of that
kind, I k-now nothing about it.

Q. And if Senator Robitaille says you did explain about that list and told him
about it and said you saw it, you are prepared to deny that under oath ?-A. Yes.

Q. How did you come to mention Mr. Tarte's name?-A. If you will allow me
I will make an explanation. What I did say was that Mr. Pacaud had told me there
was $57,000 he had to pay. He had a memorandum in his hand; I do not know
What the total of the memorandum was. He did not show it to me, I saw the
name of Tarte on the memorandum.

Q. And the other name ?-A. The name you have mentioned, Carroll, I do not
know that I saw the naine.

Q. What, there names did you see ?-A. I do not remember noticing any other.
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Q. That was $57,000 to be paid out of the $100,000 ?-A. It was about $58,000
that Mr. Pacaud said he had to pay.

Q. And which he was going to pay out of the $100,000 ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did he show you the necessity of getting an Order in Couneil in order to pay

these debts ?-A. No I don't think there was any necessity to explain it.
Q. Did you talk French or English with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Sometimes one sone-

times the other.
Q. He knows English, and can give his evidence in that language if he comes

here ?-A. Yes.
Q. But he is not likely to come ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Have you not heard that he is gone ?-A. I have been told that here but I do

not know it.
Q. What kind of a piece of paper was it that Pacaud held in his hand ?-A. Like

a sheet of note paper.
Q. In whose handwriting was it ?-A. I do not know.
Q. How was it headed ?-A. I do not know.
Q. There were a lot of names on it ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was the list you meant when you told Mr. Robitaille that it was a very

imprudent thing to show it to you?-A. I do not remember saying that. If I said
it, it would have refèrence to that.

Q. Where was the imprudence in Pacaud showing you the list ?-A. If it was
as you stated, I think it was a very imprudent thing to show it to anybody.

Q. Did you think it imprudent as the time ?-A. Yes just as much as now.
Q. You told Senator Tassé so ?-A. I did not see Senator Tatssé at that time.
Q. But you told Senator Tassé ?-A. No.
Q. You told Senator Robitaille so ?-A. I may have said so to Senator

Robitaille.
Q. To that effect ?-A. I may have donc so; I have no recollection of doing so.
Q. Did you speak again of the $100,000 that Mr. Pacaud was to get when he

showed you the list ?-A. To Pacaud ?-no.
Q. The question about the gI00,000 had been agreed to before that ?-A. I did

not say so.
Q. You will not deny that the arrengement had been cone to before that?-A.

I did not say.
Q. But you will not deny it ?-A. No, I will not deny it.
Q. Immediately after that list was shown to you the Order in Council was

passed ?-A. The list really was not shown to me.
Q. Immediately after you saw the list the Order was passed ?-A. I did not sec

the list.
Q. After you saw the piece of paper the Order was passed ?-A. I do not know

but the Order in Council had been passed before that; I think it had.
Q. No, the Order was passed the next day, was it not?-A. I think the Order

had been passed at that time.
Q. That is. the Order in Council was passed immediately after Pacaud wen-t to

Garneau's house with the list ?-A. I did not know he went to Garneau's house with
the list.

Q. Immediately after, he went to Garneau ?-A. I do not know.
Q. You told Senator Robitaille so ?-A. No, I did not.
Q. He is prepared to swear that you said so ?-A. Let him swear.
Q. You will not deny it ?-A. Yes; I will deny it, that I told him that.
Q. Have you got the summors in your pocket that was served on you?-A. I

have it in my hand.
Q. I mean the summons served on you in Ottawa ?-A. No, I left it in Montreal.
Q. Where did you go ?-A. Home.
Q. To Montreal ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you go from there ?-A. To the Inch Arran Hotel, Dalhousie,

where my family is.
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Q. When were you summrnoned ?-A. About 1.30 p.m. on Thursday oflastweek.
Q. Was that the day you gave the explanation with regard to the $175,000 ?-

A. It was on Tuesday, two days before that, that I gave the explanation.
Q. After you gave the explanation, you went out of the room ?-A. I was in

and out of the room several times.
Q. You were sent for to come back ?-A. I was called away in the first place by

a letter handed te me at the door, and I went out. I was told by Senator Guevremont
that somebody was asking for me and I came back.

Q. Thinking that it was the other bill ?-A. I did not think so.
Q. Did you tell it to Senator Robitaille as a joke ?-A. I said I did not know

vhat I was called for. The next bill was coming on immediately, and I wanted to
be here for it.

Q. You did not want to be here for the Baie des Chaleurs bill ?-A. I have no
interest in it.

Q. You did not want to be asked further questions ?-A. I was prepared to
answer any questions the Committee have a right to put to me.

Q. You were served next day with the summons ?-A. It was two days after.
I was here ail morning on Thursday.

Q. It was on Thursday you were summoned ?-A. Yes.
Q. You understood what it was for ?-A. Yes.
Q. You showed it to Mr. Lonergan?-A. Yes, just as I was leaving. I hap-

pened to meet him.
Q. Did he tell you he thought you had better go ?-A. I had made up my mind

to go. Mr. Lonorgan told me he thought it likely the thing would be put off for
several days.

Q. You went off by the Canadian Pacific Railway Train at 4.40 that afternoon,
Xr Lonergan knowing you were going ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you come back ?-A. No.
Q. Did he come back ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Have you seen him since ?-A. No.
Q. Where did you stay in Montreal?-A. At iy own house.
Q. Where did you go the next morning ?-A. The first place I think was to the

Bank of Montreal.
Q. Whom did you see there ?-A. I went to see Mr. William Owens, of Lachute.
Q. Was it on a matter relating to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. No, the

St. Andrews and Lachute.
Q. Then you went to Dalhousie ?-A. Yes; I heard nothing from here and

thought I was not wanted.
Q. Did yo sec Mr. Thom ?-A. No.
Q. Did you see Mr. Cooper ?-A. No.
Q. Whon did you tell in Montreal that yo were served with this sumons ?-,

A. I rnay have told several people; I do not remember anyone in particular.
Q. What is this document ?-A. That is a telegram that was sent to me in

Montreal and forwarded to me.
Q. It was signed by the Chairman and was forwarded to you ?-A. It was

h.anded to me in Montreal last night on my way through, I got it at the station.
B. You had learned at Inch Arran of the telegraph being sent ?-A. When I

got to Inch Arran on Saturday night, there was nothing for me from this Com-
Imittee. On Sunday afternoon I got the Montreal Gazette and I saw what had taken
Place here on Friday. I at once telegraphed that I would be here on Wednesday
miorning and I took the first train that would bring me here. On Monday afternoon
I got the telegram at Inch Arran, much the saine as the one I got at Montreal.

Q. You have here the statement of account between yourself and the company?
-A. Yes (statement produced).

Q. This shows the amount due you at this time, to have been $298,443.62 ?-A.
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Q. And you received in discharge of this, three cheques of J. C. Langelier.
which you have mentioned ?-A. Yes.

Statement filed as Exhibit 5.
Q. And this Exhibit is a certificate of the amount which is due you from the

company ?-A. There is the amount that was cortified to, but the amount was really
831,000 more, because I gave the company credit for the whole Dominion subsidy
which [ had not received. Really my claim is $31,000 more than the $298,443.62.

Q. Here is a statement of amounts received on this account. Whose handwrit-
ing is this ?-A. That is my own.

Q. We have struck the date about right; it was dated 28th April ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is the day these cheques were endorsed over by you in the way we

have described?-A. On that day I received $71,000 as I have stated.
Q. What about the $100,000 ?-A. I signed that before I got the amouint.
Q. Who made you sign; Chrysostome Langelier ?--A. Yes.
Q. Ho insisted on your signing that?-A. He had to have a voucher before

paying the money.
Q. Who suggested this arrangement whereby you were to give this receipt for

$175,000, but were nover handed the money ?-A. There was no such arrangement
and I did hand in the money.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud know you were going te sign a receipt like that ?-A. I do
not know whether he did or not; ho knew I was to receive $175,000.

Q. 875,000 of which was to go to the old company ?-A. No.
Q. But that amount did go te him ?-A. No.
Q. $75,000 in cheques went?-A. No.
Q. At least $24,000 went to the old company ?-A. As I have already explained

that money I loaned to Mr. Thom.
Q. How much more ?-A. None of it went to the old company. Every dollar

of that $75,000 belongs to me, and was for paying my personal obligations.
Q. And one of these was to pay $75,000 to the old company ?-A. No.
Q. Did the $24,000 belong to you, that you gave to Mr. Robitaille ?-A. It was

a loan.
Q. You endorsed the choques over to him?-A. No.
Q. You endorsed it and ho got it?-A. L loaned it to Mr. Thom.
Q. Did you loan money to Thom to pay the rest of the shareholders ?-A. I do

not think I need to tell that.
Q. You draw the line again ?-A. Yes.
Q. You got large subsidies from the Quebec Government ?-A. $350,000.
Q. What you got of the proceeds of the 10,000 acres a mile, converted ?-A.

Yes.
Q. That would make $140,000, would it not, on the first forty miles?-A. Yes.
Q. Of which you assigned $70,000 to Macfarlane ?-A. I do not remember the

amount.
Q. Did you assign $70,000 of the Quebec subsidy, to the Ontario Bank, by Mr.

Macfarlane's direction ?-A. I think so.
Q. The $70,000 you assigned to the Ontario Bank, were on the first twenty

miles, was it not?-A. On the portion he was to construct from the fortieth to the
sixtioth mile.

Q. You kept the whole subsidy on the forty miles which you had constructed?
-A. The whole of the Quebec subsidy?

Q. Yes.-A. I think they had all been paid previously.
Q. Mr. Macfarlane got nothing of them ?-A. No.Q. That was $140,000 on the forty miles ?-A. Yes.
Q. Thon you handled that yourself?-A. Either myself or other sub-contractors

whom i had at work.
Q. How many times did you get payments on account of the Baie des Chaleurs

subsidy ?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. Did you give any statements ?-A. No.
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Q. Do you keep books ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you keep books such as a mai who had no knowledge of book keeping

could understand ?-A. One who had a knowledge of book-keeping could understan
thein, better than one who had not.

Q. Could you tell what amount of subsidy you got from the Quebec Govern-
ment if you had your books ?-A. I could get a memorandum to that effect.

Q. Where are your books ?-A. Some at my house and some at my office.
Q. Where in your house ?-A. In several places. I think there are two desks

and I may have some in each. I think the bulk of them would be li my office.
Q. Where is your office ? On St. James street ?-A. Yes, 204.
Q. Is Mr. Thom in the same building ?-A. No.
Q. Is Mr. Cooper ?-A. No.
Q. low far are they away ?-A. On the other side of the street.
Q. If you went to these receptacles you speak of and took out your papers and

books, you could tell how many you have received on account of Quebec subsidies ?
-A. I think so.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud act for you in connection with the Baie des Chaleurs
Subsidy also ?-A. Well I employed Mr. Pacaud in regard to some of the payments
previous to this one.

Q. Some of the earlie, subsidies ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was his tariff on the earliest subsidies ?-A. I do not thiik that is a

thing for you to enquire into.
Q. I am coming down to a sore spot ?-A. I have not been summoned here to

speak of anything of that kind. I am summoned to give information with regard to
a certain bill. This telegram tells me to appear and testify with regard to the Baie
des Chaleurs Company's bill.

Telegram sent by the clerk summoning the witness on 10th August, 1891, filed
Exhibit 6.

Q. You did not employ Mr. Pacaud with regard to the first payment of the
Quebec subsidy, did you ?-A. The first payment, no I think not.

Q. You got that cleared ?-A. I think there were some payments before I
employed Mr. Pacaud. I am not sure, but if there were I got them without com

lission.
Q. You did not get the others without commission ?-A. That I say nothing

about.
Q. You were obliged to pay Mr. Pacaud a commission on account of every

payment of the Quebec subsidy you got, after employing him ?-A. I decline to
answer that.

Q. Will you deny it ?-A. I will say nothing about it.
Q. If your books and memoranda were here, would they show the amounts of

commission was paid ?-A. No, sir, they will show nothing of any transactions with
Mr. Pacaud.

Q. You have made no entry of the commission you paid ?-A. I have never
said I paid commission.

Q. Answer the question ?-A. There are no entries in my books of transactions
with Mr. Pacaud.

Q. Did you keep a record of the commissions paid Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Mr.
Paeaud does not work for nothing. He has not that reputation.

Q. And was he paid by salary or by commission ?-A. I decline to state what
MY arrangements with Mr. Pacaud were.

Q. Were the payments on account of Quebec subsidies paid to you by cheques ?
-A. The most of them were not paid to me at all. The sub-contractors who worked

for me had the subsidies transferred to their banks.
Q. What banks ?-A. A. They were held at diffèrent banks at different times.
Q. The manager or cashier of the bank, whoever he might be, held power of

attorney to receive the subsidies ?-A. In Quebec the usuat course is a notarial
transfer signified by the Government.
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Q. They are recognized ?-A. Yes.
Q. What do they pay Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I (o not know anything about that

business.
Q. lie did not work for them for nothing?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did he work for them ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did you pay Mr. Pacaud by cheque or bills ? You kept as little trace of the

transactions as you could ?-A. I did not bother my head about it, one way or the
other.

Q. Did you keep the stubs of cheque books?-A. As a rule I have done so.
Q. You might have destroyed some ?-A. I do not think I ever destroyed a stub.

But 1 might not have filled upstubs.
Q. You did not fill up the stubs of cheques you gave to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I did

not say I gave them to him lately.
Q. Did you ever give the cheques to him ?-A. I don't know.
Q. You paid him in bills ?-A. I have not said so.
Q. But everybody understands that you paid him?-A. They may understand

what they like.
Q. You paid Mr. Pacaud in cash ?-A. I have not said so.
Q. Did you pay him in bills ?-A. I will not say that I paid him.
Q. The way you used to do was to draw a cheque payable to Charles N. Arm-

strong or bearer and you would get the cash and pay to him ?-A. 1 have not said
so.

Q. Was that about it ?-A. I will tell you nothing about it.
Q. That is pretty close to the bull's eye ?-A. Thou art so near and yet so far.
Q. How fat am I?-A. You will know when you get there.
Q. But you will not let me get there, if you Can help it ?-A. I will not tell you

anything. I consider you have no right to know.
Q. On what banks were theso cheques ?-A. I have not said I paid him in

choques.
Q. Did you give him money ?-A. I did not say so.
Q. What did you give him?-A. I have not said I gave him anything.
Q. You never paid his bills?-A. I do not know.
Q. What banks wère these cheques drawn on. What bank do you do business

with ?-A. I have done business with half a dozen banks.
Q. Not in Montreal?-A I have done business with at least four or five in

Montreal.
Q. Yo did not do it through the Ontario bank. That is a grit bank ?--A. Is

it. I was not aware of it. You have a pretty good Conservative connected with it.
You would hardly call this gentleman (Mr. Cockburn) M.P., agrit. 1 never enquire
into the politics of the people I do business with.

Q. What banks do you deposit your moneys with ?-A. I have done business
with the Ontario, the Toronto, the People's bank, the Banque Nationale. I have
had accounts with these four banks, also with the Molson's Bank at Sorel and the
Union Bank at Quebec.

Q. Used you to go down to Quebec and draw the subsidies ?-A. Sometimes I
did when I had anything to draw myself and sometimes to forward payments to
the sub-contractors.

Q. Mr. Pacaud generally used to be on hand when you went down there ?-A.
I don't think he ever was present when I drew a dollar of subsidy.

Q. But he generally used to be about Quebec ?-A. He lives there.
Q. Used you to pay him the commission in advance ?-A. I have not said so

and I refuse to say so.
Q. You will not deny it ?-A. I will not say anything about it.
Q. Now Mr. Pacaud used sometimes to get his commissions a little before they

were due, did he not ?-A. I say nothing about that.
Q. He was always anxious to get his commission ?-A. I do not know.
Q. You will not deny it?-A. I cannot deny it; I don't know anything about it.
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Q. He used to get his commission sometimes out of the subsidies before they
were payable ?-A. I will not say anything about that.

Q. You will not deny it ?-A. I think I could deny that.
Q. Why not deny the last question ?-A. That is my business.
Q. You thought I was going too far, but the chairman has not thought so. I

shall probably have to ask the Committee that you be dir-ected to answer ?-A.
Anything I think I should not tell I will not tell before the Committee.

Q. Or the Senate? The matter may be appealed to the Senate. I suppose you
Wvill say you need legal advice?-A. I have not taken any, and I do not need any.

Q. You know what course to take ?-A. I will do the best I can.
COUNsEL-I ask, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Armstrong be directed to produce his

documents to-morrow at 10 o'clock.
THE WITNEss-[ could not possibly have them here at 10 o'clock. I could have

them here at 1 o'clock, by going down this afternoon.

The Committee adjourned until 10 o'clock to-morrow morning.

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE Roobi No. 8,
THURSDAY, 13th August, 1891.

The Committee met at 10 o'clock. TuE HoNoURABLE MR. VIDAL in the Chair.
A. P. BRADLEY, of the City of Ottawa, Secretary of the Department of Railways

and Canals, being duly sworn, testifies as follows:-

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:

Q. What is your occupation, Mr. Bradley ?-A. I,hold the position ofSecretary
of the Department of Railways and Canals.

Q. You have been requested to produce certain documents?-A. I have them.
Uere is a certified copy of the contract with the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company
tol' the first twenty miles of a railway from Matapedia eastward to Paspebiac, dated
7th November, 1885 (Exhibit No. 7). Also a copy of a contract with the same
company, of the same date, for the construction of eighty miles beyond the first
twenty miles (Exhibit No. 8). I produce also a certified copy of an agreement with
the same company, dated the 2nd June, 1888, subject to the approval of Parliament,
Which I believe was afterwards obtained, with reference to the doubling up of the
subsidy on the first thirty miles of the road, in consideration of the company deposit-
11ng with the Government, bonds to the amount of eighty-three thousand pounds, and
a1 s0 on condition that they would not ask for any further subsidy in connection
With the. last thirty miles of the road (Exhibit No. 9).

Q. Have you any memo. of the deposit of these bonds ?-A. I have not. These-
bonds I believe are deposited with the Finance Department.

Q. They were reeeived in your Departnent, I believe ?-A. I am not sure about
that. I think you had better get that information from the Finance Department.

Q. They hold a letter from your Department transmitting the bonds, do they
flot ?-A. I cannot remember that.

Q. Will you be kind enough to send us the letter transmitting the bonds from
Your Department to the Railway Department?-Yes.

WITNEss-Here is a statement (Exhibit No. 10) of the history of the Depart-
'ental connection with the history of the road.

Q. Who made this statement ?-A. Myself, with Mr. Schreiber's assistance. I
Will read the statement. "In 1883, by 46 Victoria, chapter 25, a subsidy was granted
for the section of a road from Metapedia to Paspebiac, a distance of one hundred
tiles, not exceeding $3,200 per mile, and not exceeding in the whole $320,000.
The work not having been commenced, and the prospects of it being commenced in

27

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

the near future under the above Act, not being considered favourable, it was deter
mined to undertake the first twenty miles out from Metapedia Station as a Govern-
ment work and for this purpose a sum of $300,000 was voted by Parliament, by 47
Victoria, chapter 8. Tenders were invited and received but none of thein coming
within the amount of the above appropriation of $300,000, and an offer had only been
made by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway to build and operate this twenty mile section
for the $300,000 the offer was accepted by Order in Council 18th September 1885,
and contract was enter'ed into on 7th November, 1885. Also a contract of same date
was made fer the construction of' the balance of eigthy miles, subsidized at $3,200
per mile, provided the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on the first twenty miles, be applied
to ihe second twenty miles making a subsidy on the second twenty miles $6,400 per
mile. By the 49 Victor'ia, chapter 17, this doubling up of the subsidy was ratitied
and the teri for completion extended to 1st December, 1888.

" The road not having been completed on 1st December, 1888, the balance of
subsidy unpaid (8244,500) lapsed and was re-voted by the 49th Victoria, chapter
17. By this same authority the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on the thirty miles from
the 71st to 100th mile, was doubled up on the thirty miles from the 41st to the 70th
mile, making the subsidy on this section $6,400 per mile, the company depositing
with the Government bonds of the conpany to the value of £83,000 as security for
the fulfilment by the company of their undertaking to build the section from the
70th to the 100th mile without Federal subsidy.

"The total subsidy granted is... ............. ................. $620,000
"Of which has been paid................................ ........ 524,175
"Leaving a balance unearned of............................... 95,825

"All payments are made upon the report of the Chief Engineer of Government
Railways, after inspection.
Department of Railways and Canals,

"I12th AUousT, 1891."

Q. What is the next document ?-A. Memo showing several paynents made on-
account of the two sections, totaling $524,175 (Exhibit No. 11). Also memo
showing that $200 yet remains unearned and unpaid on the first twenty miles, and
895,625 on the balance up to the 70th mile.

Q. Js any portion of the subsidy earned not yet paid ?-A., No.
Q. I thought a portion of the subsidy was held back to secure the erection of

iron bridges instead of wood ?-A. Not that I am aware of.
Q. Perhaps you will be kind enough to enquire into that ?-A Yes; but I do

not think so.

By Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. You cannot tell, I suppose, whether those sums were all paid to the Com-
pany or to other persons ?-A. All I can tell is that when we make an application
for payment we make application in favour of the Company. I do not kinow what
powers of attorney may be held by the Finance Department. We make application
in favour of the Company-any company.

DANIEL O'LEARY, Inspector of Dominion Police, in the City of Ottawa, Province
ofOntario, being duly sworn, was examined-

By Mr. Barwick :

Q. You were sent to Quebec by the Gentleman Usher of the Black Rod to serve
certain summons ?-A. Yes. I was instructed to serve Mr. Ernest Pacaud, Mr.
Grenier, Mr. Lafrance and Mr. Gaboury.

Q. Did you serve Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I did not ; I could not find him.
Q. Tell the committee the efforts yon made to find him.-A. I went to his office

and saw his secretary, Auguste Edge. He said Mr. Pacaud had left on his holidays.
28
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I asked hin where. He said he could not inform me where; he said he went to
iNew York-I won't say New York, ho added, because ho has gone to the States. I
told him he was not telling the truth. I thought he knew where he was. Then the
secretary went into another room and came back and said Mr. Pacaud had left for
Europe.

By HMon. Mr. Miller:

Q. What day was that ?-A. Tuesday. I subsequently found out that the day
before he had bought two tickets for France by the Grand Trunk and Hudson River
Railways to New York, and by the steamer "Turenne" which sailed on the 15th.

THE CiAIRMAN.-Tuesday the 11th was the day you were there ?-A. Yes ; I
subsequently found out he had left on Tuesday morning for New York by the 11.15
a.n. train.

Q. Is that before you were at his office or after ?-A. It was just about the same-
time as I was at his office.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. Where did he buy his ticket ?-A. At the Grand Trunk.

By Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. On Monday ?-A, Yes, on Monday.

MR. BARwIck.-On Monday the 10th ?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. Does the witness say it was on Monday he tried to serve the summons?"
WITNESS.-It was on Tuesday the Ilth.

By Mfr. Barwick:
Q.-You tried on Tuesday to serve him and learned at the same tirne that he

had bought tickets for France ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is that all the enquiry you made about Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. McMillan:

Q. When does the boat leave New York?-A. On the 15th August, Saturday
next.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. fs that about all your story?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you serve the other witness ?-A. I served Messrs. Lafrance and Gaboury,

1 r. Lafrance at the Banque Nationale. I had one other summons for Mr. Grenier.
I was informed at his house that he was in St. John's, Que bec. On Monday, they had
received'the message from the Committee requesting his attendance. They had for-
Warded it te St. John's, and expected him back orn Monday night, but when he did
11ot return they thought he might have gone on to Ottawa.

Q. Who told you that ?-A. His step-brother, in his house. His step-brother's
lame is Mr. Généreux.

Q. That is your full report ?-A. Yes.

WILLIAM J. JACKSON, in the City of Ottawa, being duly sworn, was examined-

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. You were directed by Black Red to proceed to Montreal and serve certain
Witness?-A. Yes, Mr. Thom and Mr. Lonergan.



AUGUSTIN GABOURY, who, being duly sworn, was examined-

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. You are the President of the Banque Nationale and live in Quebec ?-
A. Yes.

Q. Your bank was requested to discount two letters of credit issued by the Go-
vernment of Quebec, vas it not ?-A. Yes, for $75,000.

Q. Were you not requested to discount $100,000 ?-A. We were requested sub-
sequently.

Q. On what date were you requested to discount the $75,000 letter of credit?-
A. It was discounted on the 29th of April, 1891. We must have been requested on
the day previous. I think that the cashier of the Union Bank came to our bank and
proposed this. lis name was Mr. Webb.

Q. Tell us the conversation between Mr. Webb and yourself on the 28th of April.
First, who came with him ?-A. He was alone.

Q. Now tell us the conversation ?-A. As well as I can remember ho said ho
was offered a discount of two letters of credit, one for $75,000 and another for $100,-
000, and ho asked us if we would cash the $75,000 one. that ho wouid do the other.
After some inquiry and consultation among the directors and our lawyers, we dis-
counted on the 29th the letter of credit for $75,000.

Q. Have you the Order in Council that was submitted to you ?-A. 1 have, here
it is (Exhibit No. 13).

Q. Who brought this to you ?-A. It was sent by the department the day after
the discount was made. I may say that before the discount the Cashier and Mr. C.
M. Hamel, the lawyer of the Bank, were requested to go up to the departnent of Mr.
Machin, assistant treasurer, and there we saw the Order in Council and we requested
a copy of it which was sent next day.

Q. (By HON. MR. POWER) Is that copy certified ?
MR. BARwIcK-It is certified.
Q. You saw the original ?-A. Not myself.
Q. This is a copy certified to ypu by Mr. Grenier. Be good enough to translate

these first few lines ?-A. " The Honourable the Commissioner of Public Works in
his report dated 2Oth April, 1891, represents that ho have received a letter from Mr.
Angus M. Thom, dated 17th April instant, which reads as follow:

To Honourable P. GARNEAU, IlQUEBEC, l7th April, 1891.

" Commissioner of Public Works, and Premier ad interim.
SIR,-We arc in a position to secure the transfer of the Charter of the Baie des

Chaleurs Railway if the following proposition is accepted by the Government, the
company under the management of a new board of directors will be prepared to go
on with the works, complote the road and have it ready for traffic on or before the
.31st December, 1892, from Metapedia to Paspebiac and thence to Gaspé Basin as
soon as circumstances will permit.

" For the carrying out of the present proposition, it is understood that the Go-
vernment shall pay the Company ;

" 1. The balance of the subsidy granted by the Statutes of Quebec, 45 Victoria,
chap. 23, and its amendments, and 51-52 Victoria, chap. 91, sec. 12, anmounting to
$260,000, to be payable as earned.

"2. The subsidy of $50,000 gianted by the Statute of last Session, 54 Victoria,
chap. 88, sec. 1, sub-section 1, to be payable as soon as a bridge over the Grand
Cascapedia is finished and accepted by the Government.

" 3. To comply with the intention of the law, the subsidies of 800,000 acres of
land granted by the statutes of last Session, 54 Victoria, chap. 88, sec. 1, sub-
section J, shall be converted and the proceeds thereof shall be used by the Govern-
ment to pay the legitimate and privileged claims, in accordance with the above Act,
now existing against the road or against the Company, and if any surplus should
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exist after the payment by the Government of all claims now existing against the
said road as aforesaid, such surplus, if any, shall go to the new company in final
settlement,.

" The said debts and claims, after they shall have been approved and certified by
Mr. Thom, representing the Company, shall be paid by a person appointed by the
Government, for that purpose, and failing such approbation and such certificate by
Mr. Tbom, they shall be paid upon a judgment or Arbitrators' report in favor of
any payment. When the Commissioner appointed by the Government shall accept a
claim and Mr. Thom refuses his certificate and approbation ; thon, and in eac case,
the claimant has an absolute right to an arbitration, and the decision of the arbitrators
shall then state that the costs incurred shall be paid by the party against whom the
decision is given. If Mr. Thom fails to appoint an arbitrator after fifteen days'
notice to do so, the Commissioner nay then pay the claim and his action shall be
binding en all parties.

"As a guarantee that they will go on with the works, build., complete and run
the road, the company will deposit with the Government, bonds of the actual
emission to the amount of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) which shall be
exchanged for an equal amount of bonds of another issue of same ainount and value
in case the company would deem proper to cancel the present issue and replace with
others or other satisfactory security in lieu thereof, it being distinctly understood
that the company will be handed back the bonds or other security so deposited on
the complotion and equipment of the road to Paspebiae.

" The Board of Dfirectors of the com pany under the new organization, shall be
composed as follows:-James Cooper, of Montreal; J. P. Dawes, of Lachine; Alex-
ander Ewing, of Montreal; James Williambon, of Montreal; Angus M. Thom, of
Montreal; and two other persons to be named by the Government.

" On sixty miles of the said road comprised between Metapedia and theGrand river
'Cascapedia, the company will resume the works as soon as they can take possession
of that section, and on the forty miles ending at Paspebiac, surveys will be com-
menced as soon as the present proposition is accepted and the work will proceed
with the utmost diligence."

(An Order in Council of which the above letter forms part, being in French, was
translated to the Committee by the clerk, as follows):

" Copy of the report of a Committee of the Honourable the Executive Couneil
dated 21st April, 1891, approved by the Lieutenant Governor on the 23rd April,
1891.
"iNo. 237.

"Concerning the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.
"The Hlonourablethe Commissionerof Publie Worksin a report dated 20th April

instant, (1891), sets forth that ho has received a letter from Mr. Angus N. Thom, of
date the 17th April instant, reading as follows:

(Hiere follows the letter given above).
" And upon the said A. M. Thom, and the persons in the naie of whom he acts

and whom he represents obtaining a transtr of the charter of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway, and seeing that the persons mentioned in the propositions above cited have
the necessary means to carry out the enterprise, as required by the Statute of last
Session, 54 Vict., ch. ý8 sec. 1, sub-sec. J, and seeing that it is in the interests of the
Province to accept it, the Hlonourable Commissioner of Public Works recominends
that the said proposition ho accepted as follows, that is to say:-

1. To re-organize the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.
"2. To construct and put in operation on or before the 3 ist December, 1892, the

One hundred miles of the said railway comprised between Metapedia and Paspebiac,
and the remainder as far as Gaspé Basin as soon as circumstances will permit.

" 3. To continue the works on the sixty miles comprised between Metapedia and
the river Grand Cascapedia, as soon as the company shall be able to take possession
of this part of the road, that is to say as soon as the claims which are not contested
shall have been paid; which shall be done at the diligence of the Government,
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between now and the 10th May next, at the latest, but without recourse against the
Government in default of such diligence to commence the explorations upon the
foity miles between the river Grand Cascapedia and Paspebiac as soon as the propo-
sition shall be accepted and push the same on with the utmost dispatch.

" 4. That the first Board of Directors of the said comnpany shall be coiposed of
the following persons: James Cooper, of Montreal ; J. P. Dawes, of Lachine ;
Alexander Ewing, of Montreal ; Angus M. Thom, of Montieal; James Williamson,
of Montreal, and of two persons named by the Government.

" 5. To deposit as a guarantee in the hands of the Government five hundred
thousand dollars of debentures or bonds of the company of the present issue or any
other satisfactory guarantee with the privilege of exchanging the said debentures or
bonds for an equal amount of debentures or bonds of any other issue, not to exceed
however the actual issue and of the saine value in case it shahl be judged expedient
to withdraw the present issue; which debentures or bonds or other guarantees shall
be returned by the Government to the company as soon as the road shall have been
finished to Paspébiac..

ON CoNDITION-
1. That the balance, to wit $260,000, of the subsidies granted to the said railway

by 45 Vict., ch. 23 and its arnendments and 51-52 Vict., Ch. 91 sec. 12 shall be paid
to the company in proportion as the same shall have been earnod according to law;

" 2. That the subsidy $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars) granted by Statute 54,
Vic. ch. 88 sec. 1, sub.section 1, shal be paid to the conpany as soon as the bridge
over the river Grand Cascapedia shall have been constructed and accepted by the
Lieutenant Governor in Coutncil upon a report of the Governinent Engineer.

" 3. That the Government binds itself to pay the company with the subsidy of
800,000 acres of land granted by the Statute 54 Vic., ch. 88, section 1, sub-section J,
converted into money, which subsidy shall be kept by the Government and employed
by it to pay the actual debts of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway; and the surplus if
any shall be, after the payment of all claims actually existing against the company,
kept by the Government, which shall render an account thereof to the company in
final settiement;

"'That the said debts and claims, after they shall have been approved of and
certified by Mr. A. M. Thom, representing the company, shall be paid by a person
named for that purpose by the Goveriment; and in defilt of such appiobation and
certificate they shall be paid upon a judgnent or report of arbitrators in favour of
any claimant. In the case of the Commissioner named by the Government accepting
a claim, and of the said Mr. Thom refusing his certificate, then and in each case the
claimant shall have an absolute right to an arbitration and the award of the arbitra-
tors shall then declare that costs, shall be at the charge of the party who shall fail ;
and in default of' the said Thom to name an arbitrator after fifteen days' notice so to
do, the Commissioner may pay the claim for alil purposes whatsoever of law, and
his action shall bind all the parties."

"Certified,
"(Signed) GUSTAVE GRENIER,

" Clerk of the Executive Council."

Q. You were handed at the same time as the copy of the Order in Council the
document which I now show you (Exhibit No. 14).-A. I think at the same time.

Q. And this is also a copy of an Order in Council dated 23rd April, 1891,
approved by the Lieutenant Governor an(d authorizes J. C. Langelier to puy the
debts of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, in conformity with the further directions of
the Order in Council of the 17th April, 1891 ?-A. Yes.

Q. The day before you got those documents you discounted the letter of credit ?
-A. I think it was the day before.

Q. What was the amount of the proceeds ?-A. 874,111.64.
Q. You produce here an extract from your books ? (Exhibit No. 15.)-A. Yes,

certified by our cashier.
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Q. And the proceeds of that discount went tothe credit of "Mr. J. C. Langelier,
commissaire" ?-A. Yes.

Q. Against that $74,000 were drawn certain cheques which you produce here?
-- A. Yem. (Exhibit No. 15a.)

Q. The first cheque is dated the 28th of April, 1891, drawn by " J. C. Langelier,
commissaire," payable to C. N. Armstrong or order, endorsed " payable to Angus
Mcl. Thom or order, C. N. Armstrong " and endorsed by Thom, again?-A. Yes.

Q. That was accepted by your bank, payable on the lst May ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is although the c'heque was accepted on the 28th of April, it was not to

be payable till the 1st of May ?-A. Yes.
Q. I see it is so written on the cheque ?-A. Yes.
Q. Iow did that cheque reach you to be paid on the lst of May ? You marked

it on the 28th of April and, of course, charged it on that day in this account ?-
A. Yes.

Q. But from whose hands did it come after the lst of May ?-A. I cannot
recollect; but according to the endorsation it ought to have been handed in by Mr.
Thom, who is the last endorser. I think the amount was deposited to the credit of
his account-either deposited or taken out in cash. The clerk, perhaps, can explain
that.

Q. Here is another choque dated on the same day for $24,000, drawn by the
same person, J. C. Langelier, payable to C. N. Armstrong or order, endorsed C. N.
Armstrong ?-A. Yes; but with a different endorsation. (Exhibit No. 15 b.)

Q. This cheque bears the general endorsement " C. N. Armstrong " and " M.
-Robitaille, M.D."?-A. That is a special endorsation and came to me from-the
Caisse d'Economie.

Q. The third cheque is dated the same day, drawn by the same person, made
Dayable to C. N. Armstrong or order, for the sum of $16,000, endorsed "Pay to
bearer, C. N. Armstrong " ?-Yes. (Exhibit No. 15 c.)

Q. Do you know who " bearer " was ?-A. It went through the Bank of Mont-
real, at Quebec, and came in due course with the Bank of Montreal deposits.

Q. So the Bank of Montreal ought to be able to tell us who deposited that, if it
were de Posited ?-A. Yes, it may have been cashed across the counter..

Q. The fourtth cheque is dated April the 29th for $111.64, drawn by J. C. Lange-
lier, Commissaire, payable to C. N. Armstrong or order, endorsed C. N. Armstrong,
and was not charged until the 1st May ?-A. Yes; it was deposited in the office of
the Banque Nationale, Montreal, and came to us with our collections. This was to
pay a note of Armstrong's that was due there. There is a pencil mark by the cashier
Of the Banque Nationale that it takes up Armstrong's notes to Doyet which we
held, and is marked " paid $55. " I suppose Armstrong got the balance. I would
infer that. (Exhibit No. 15 d).

Q. The fifth note is for $2,250, drawn by J. C. Langelier, payable to James
Cooper, and endorsed by James Cooper, and is dated 13th July. That drew out the
whole balance and was charged on that day, and appears to have been deposited in
the Bank of Toronto at Montreal ?-A. Yes; it came to us in the ordinary course
With the other collections.

Q. What other papers have you ?-A. I have a slip which is a copy of the
discount. (Exhibit No. 15 e.)

Mr. BARwICK-Well, we need not mind that because the information is in the
account already fyled.

WITNEss-Here are the details of the letter of credit which the bank discounted.
The lette r was retuned on being paid ; and this is a memo, showing how it was signed
and for what amount.

Q. Was the memo. made at the time ?-A. No; it was made yesterday, before
I left, by the cashier. The letter of credit was signed by Mr. Garneau, in his quality
of acting Premier and as Treasurer of the Province, authorizing the Banque
Nationale to advance the proceeds to J. C. Langelier, and was dated 28th of April,
1891, the letter of credit bearing interest at the rate of 5 per cent. from the 1st of
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June until the 10th July, which was the due date of the letter. That made the letter
of credit $75,400.68, and the discount taken otY by the bank 8 per cent.

A letter fron Mr. Machin, dated 30th April, enclosing these in Orders in Council
-was fyled as Exhibit No. 17.

Q. What is this document (Document produced) ?-A. That is a copy of the
resolution of the Board of Directors, on the 30th April, at which meeting the loan
was sanctioned.

Q, You made the loan without the authority of the Board, and on the 30th you
called the Board together and they approved the loan ?-A. Yes.

Document fvled as Exhibit No. 18.
Q. What others have you ?-A. I have nothing else in connection with that.
Q What are these other papers?-A. These are in connection with another

discount from Mr. Pacaud.
Q. That is on Mr. Pacaud's account ?-A. Yes.
Q. What connection bas this account with any of the matters we have been

speaking of up to the present time?-A. It has no connection with this $75,000, but
it has some connection with the other letter of credit of $100,000 which the Union
Bank held. On the 15th May, our Bank was requested to discount a note signed by
Mr. Pacaud and Mi. Philippe Vallière, with a letter from the Union Bank guaran-
teeing the payment of the $20,000 on their being paid their $100,000.

Q. And have you the letter of the Union Bank ?-A. No, it was given up when
the amount was paid.

Q. To whom-to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I could not say-to the Union Bank, I think.
Q. You discounted on the 15th May a note for Mr. Pacaud endorsed by Mr.

Valière ?-A. I could not say whether Mr. Valière was pr-omissor or endorser.
Q. He was generally liable upon the note ?-A. He was promissor, I believe.
Q. And you diseounted the note for $20,00t), the proceeds being $19,732.60 ?-A.

Yes.
Q. This was accompanied by a letter from the Union Bank that, when their

letter of credit for $100,000-which had previously been offered to you .... ?-A. Yes.
Q. When that letter was paid, the cheque will be paid?-A. Yes.
Q. Is there any information as to the debit side of the account which you wouild

like to give us and which would cast light upon these questions ?-A. There is
nothing inportant that I see.

Q. Except that you were paid in full?-A. That has ail been withdrawn, and
the cheques given up at the request of Mr. Pacaud by this letter (letter produced).

Q. This letter says: " The cashier of La Banque Nationale will be good enough
to band ail my cheques to the bearer, Mir. August Edge." It is dated Quebec, 7th
August, 1891. That is just the other day ?-A. Yes.

Q. That covers $19,732.60 of cheques ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Mr. August Edge received them ?-A. Yes.
Document fyled as Exhibit No. 20.
Q. Is this the j eceipt (Document produced) ?-A. Yes.
Q. Will you translate it please ?-A. ' Received froin La Banque Nationale

twenty-four cheques, Quebec, 7th August, 1891." The cheques are drawn by Mr.
Pacaud on the Banque Nationale. The guarantee I have spoken of from the Union
Bank was a check signed by Mr. Langelier, in the capacity of Commissioner, upon
the Union Bank for $20,000. This will explain it.

Q. Perhaps you will be good enough to read it in English ?-A. I will translate
it as well as I can ;

" A cheque for $20,000, drawn by J. C. Langelier, Commissioner. on the Union
Bank in favour of P. Vallière, accompanied by a Jetter of the cashier of the same
bank,addressed P. Vallière, stating that the Union Bank will pay this cheque as soon
as the letter of credit in favour of J. C. Langelier, signed by the Hon. P. Garneau,
dated 28th April, will be paid to the said bank (Union) has been left with La
Banque Nationale to meet the note of $20,000."
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I believe that the cheque of $20,000 was to the order of Charles N. Armstrong
and endorsed by him and Mr. Vallière. That is a note made by Mr. Lafrance.

Q. That is endorsed by Mir. Pacaud ?-A. No; by Mi. Armstrong and Mr. Val-
lière (document filed as Exhibit 21).

Q. i hardly understand this. Was the transaction this ; what was offered to
you was a choque of Mr. Langolier ?-A. No, sir. What was offered to the bank
vas a note signed by Mr. Vallière and endorsed by Mr. Pacaud and guaranteed by a

choque of Mr. Langelier on the Union Bank for the amount of the note.
Q. By the choque of J. C. Langelier, Commissioner ?-A. Yes.

By the lHon. Mr. Miller :
Q. Endorsed by anyone ?-A. The cheque was in favour of Mr. Vallière and

Inust have been endorsed by him.
Q. Anyone else ?-A. The cashier says the cheque was endorsed by Mr. Arm-

strong and Mr. Vallière.
By Counsel for Opposants:

Q. Did the Union Bank continue to hold that cheque ?-A. No ; La Banque
Nationale.

Q. I mean La Banque Nationale. They held it until the note vas paid. They
held the choque guaranteeing the proceeds until the letter of credit was paid ?-
A. Yes; until the amount was paid.

Q. The choque sent to you was a choque on the Union Bank ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What else have you in connection with this transaction ?-A. Nothing else,

except the telegrams sumnoning me here and my su.bpena.
Q. Have you ever seen Mr. Pacaud in connection with these transactions your-

self ?-A. I have seen him at the bank on two or three oècasions. I do not recollect
if I saw him in connection with the discount of the letter of credit for $75,000. I
think I saw him on the 29th. I think he came to the bank, but I an not positive.

Q. Do you remember what passed between you with regard to these discounts?
-A. I do not recollect anything in particular. He would see the cashier before he
would see ie.

Q. What is the Cashier's name ?-A. Pierre Lafrance.
Q. Who is to come here and give his evidence as soon as you return, you could

not be both absent together ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you see Mr. Pacaud with regard to the other letter of credit ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where ?-A. li the office of La Banque Nationale.
Q. Toli us what took place ?-A. Between the 29th April and the 16th May,

Mr. Pacaud and Mir. Charles Langelier came into the Bank and asked us to discount
the other letter of credit, the letter of $100,000; and after submitting the matter to
our directors it was not done.

Q. Is that all that took place between you and Mr. Pacaud with regard to the
Other letter of credit-the one for $100,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. Who is J. C. Langelier-Charles Langelier ?-A. J. C. and Charles are not
the same man.

Q. Who is Charles Langelier ?-A. lie is one of the Ministers of the Local
Government.

Q. Was it he who came vith Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes.
Q. How long did they romain with you ?-A. A few minutes only.
Q. You refused at once ?-A. No, we did not. We took their proposition and

called a meeting of the board next morning, and at that meeting they refusedthe
pplication for the discount.

Q. Was the application made in writing ?-A. No ; it was made verbally by
Mr. Pacaud and Mr. Langelier to myself and the Cashier.

Q. Have you seen Mr. Pacaud since that and discussed with him the question of
these discounts ?-A. No, I have not seen him.

Q. ou have not seen him about the return of those cheques ?-A. No.
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Q. You have not seen him on the subject of his going to France ?-A. No.
Q. Have I given you an opportunity to give all the explanations you have to

give to the committee ?-A. I think so. I do not know of anything else that I can
tell you.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. Have you spoken of a discount of $20,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was it made at Mr. Pacaud's request ?-A. For his account? Yes: on the

l5th May.
Q. At whose request was the discount made ?--A. I think it was at the request

of Mr. Pacaud. The a plication was not made to myself. It was made to the cashier,
Mr. Lafrance, who wi2I be able to explain better than I can.

JACQUEs EMMANIJEL HUOT, of the City of Montreal, being duly sworn, was
examinied by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants.

Q. You are Accountant of' La Banque Nationale ?-A. Yes.
Q. Youi have heard the evidence of your Pi'esident, Mi. Gaboury ?-A. Yes.
Q. Has he given a correct statement of the transactions, as far as you know ?-

A. Yes; so far as I know it is a correct statement.
Q. Did you see Mr. Pacaud in this connection ?-A. I saw him at the bank.
Q. Had you any conversatton with him ?-A. No, sir.
Q. So fat' as your President has given the transaction, from the banking point of

view, you confirm it?-A. Yes; I do.

CHARLEs N. ARuSTRONG was recalled and examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel
for Opposants.

Q. You and I had agood deal ofsparring yesterday, Mr. Armstrong, and perhaps
there was no very great necessity for it. Have you read the Hon. Mr. Abbott's
speech in the House on the subject of your returning here, and the confidence he
expressed that you would say what w as correct ?-A. I have read a speech of the
Hon. Mr. Abbott. I do not know that he says exactly what you state, but he spoke
to the effect that I am not the man to run away-and I agree with him.

Q. You have returned, of course, and have given evidence ?-A. I got here as
soon as I could ; I came back by the first train.

Q. You understand the object of this Committee in desiring to secure the infor'-
mation that was asked of you ?-A. I have been of opinion that the Committee desired
information fiom me that I was not in any way obliged to give them-information
relating to personal matters.

Q. Are you no more desirous of giving that information to day than you were
yesterday ?-A. Not a bit.

Q. If I repeat the question I put yesterday, you intend still to refuse to answer ?-
A. I will give the same answer as yesterday.

Q. That is, notwithstanding any expressed opinion of this cimmittee, you still
intend to persist in your refusal ?-A. Yes.

The CoUNSEL.-t desire, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Armstrong should remain in
attendance tntil he is discharged.

Bon. Mr. MILLER moved, That the witness be directed to answer the question
put to him.-Carried.

Exanination continued by MIr. Barwick:
Q. You have heard the form of motion, and have been directed to answer the

question. Do you still decline ?-A. I do.
Hon. Mr. MILLER moved, That the Committee is of opinion that Mr. Armstrong

should answer ait the questions put to hii yesterday, and that his refusai should be
rT>orted to the Senate.
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Q. I understand that the questions you refused to answer are as to the disposal
of the $100,000 ?-A. As to the disposal of' the $175,000.

Q. You refuse to give the Committee any information as to the disposal of the
$175,O00 ?-A. Anything more than I gave yesterday.

Q. You refused to say how much you paid to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I refuse to say
whether I paid him anything.

Q. You refuse to give information as to whether you paid Mr. Pacaud anythin'
-A. Yes.

Q. You refuse to givo us any information as to whether or not there was an
arrangement between you and Mr. Pacaud, under which certain debts were to ho
paid out of the subsidy ?-A. I do. I think I stated yesterday that there was no
arrangement as to the payment of any debts.

Q. You refuse to give us any information as to the arrangement for the pay-
Ient of any sums out of the $175,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. You have refused to give us any information as to the Orders in Council and
your kiowledge of their passage ?-A. I think I answered fully on that question, as
far as I know.

Committee adjourned until to-morrow at/lO o'clock a.m.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE ROom, No. 8, 14th August, 1891.

The Committee met at 10 o'clock; lion. Mr. VIDAL in the chair.

The Chairman announced that he had received a letter from the Postmaster at
Murray Bay, intimating that the letter containing the summons for the Honourable
Mr. Garnieau had been delivered to Mr. Garneau, and that he had last night sent a
telegram to Inspector O'Leary, who was ontrusted with the service of a new sum-
mons, recalling him to Ottawa.

As to the attendance of the Honourable Mr. Garneau, Mr. F. Langelier, Counsel
for the Quebec Government, made a statement to the effect that ho had received a
letter from Mr. Garneau, transmitting a doctor's certificate which was produced and
read, which will be found in the minutes. Ho also stated that ho had received the
following telegram, which was a copy of one addressed to the Chairman:-" Since
sending you the first telegram I am inforrned that my colleagues are of the opinion
that we are responsible to the Legislature only. Therefore I respectfullydecline to
appear."

Mr. LANGELIER said : I knew the position Mr. Garneau would take here, and
I may say that I advised him to take that position, but I thought that he would come
before the Committee and I advised him to come, unless he was absolutoly prohibited
by the state of his health, and be examined, as there might be something in reference
to his private affairs as to which ho could give evidence. I telegraphed him last
night to come if he could, considering the state of his health, and when here if any
question was put to him, which in his opinion and mine, considering the position we
take, was improper thon he could take objection, but the'objection could not be
taken before the question was put. I have given the same advice to the Hon. David
Ross, President of the Executive Council of Quebcc. le wrote me yestorday morning
that he and his colleagues had taken that position. I wrote him in the same way as
I did Mr. Garneau, that ho should come up unless prevented by illness, and when
here he would deal with every question as it came up.

H1on. Mr. TAssÉ-Have you advised the Local Government with reference to
the appearance of Mr. Garneau or the appearance of any other Minister here ?

Mr. LANGELIER-1 stated the advice I gave to Mr. Garneau and Mr. Ross.
lion. Mr. TAssÉ-Then your advice has not been followed?
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Mr. LANGELIER-This letter from Mr. Garneau must have left Murray Bay two
or three days ago. I telegraphed Mr. Garneau yesterday and wrote Mr. Ross only
yesterday morning.

lion. Mr. PowER asked that Mr. Armstrong should be given another oppor-
tunity to say that he would answer the questions which he had refused to answer,
and as to which theywere about to adopt a report to the Ilouse.

THE CHAIRAN-Mr. C. N. Armstrong, have you anything to say to the Com-
mittee before this draft report is read? You now have an opportunity with reference
to your refusal to answer.

MR. C. N. ARMSTRONG-I have nothing more to say than I said yesterday. I
still decline.

PHILIPPE B. DUMOULIN, being called, vas duly sworn.

Examined by Mr. Barwick:

Q. You live in Quebec?-A. Yes; I am the Manager of the Banque du Peuple.
Q. Let me see the receipts for Mr. Pacaud's cheques, given up to the 6th of

August ?-A. Here is a certified copy (Exhibit No. 22).
Q. Let me see the receipt for the letter you received from the Banque Nationale

accompanying the cheque of Mr. J. C. Langelier for $20,000 ?-A. I got no letter
from the Banque Nationale.

Q. You returned that cheque to the Banque Nationale ?-A. No; the cheque was
drawn on the Union Bank. I got no receipt; I hold the letter for the Union Bank.
I returned that. I got no receipt for that letter.

Q. Did you get a receipt for that cheque of $20,000 ?-A. No; they paid the
cheque.

Q. You received a cheque for $20,000 about the 15th May, from the Union Bank ?
-A. It was on the 6th May.

Q. Was that sent to you to secure any advance for anyone ?-A. The eheque
was not sent to me.

Q. It reached you; it came within the walls of the Bank ; to secure an advance
made by your Bank ?-A. No.

Q. To secure what ?-A. Not to secure anything for the Bank.
Q. To secure something for some man ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was the man's name, Pacaud ?-A. No ; Phillippe Vallière. le lives

in Quebec. I made an advance to him on the day you mention for $20,000.
Q. And placed the proceeds to Mr. Vallière's credit ?-A. No.
Q. To Mr. Pacaud's credit ?-A. Ye.
Q. Have you your book of'accounts here ?-A. Yes; a copy of the ledger relat-

ing to Mr. Pacaud (Exhibit No. 23).
Q. On the 6th of May Mr. Pacaud secured a loan from your bank of $19,720 ?-

A. Yes; on receipt of the $20,000 note froin Mr. Vallière, endorsed by Mr. Pacaud.
Q. By anybody else ?-A. No.
Q. Where is the note ?-A. It went back to Mr. Vallière when paid.
Q. Exhibit No. 23 is the account crediting to Mr. Pacaud $19,720. On the

credit side, and the debit side shows cheques drawn against it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the last cheque was drawn on the 3rd of June?--A. Yes.
Q. Then there was a balance to his credit of $360.58?-A. Yes.
Q. Which is still in your bank ?-A. Well, there is something left; I do not

know exactly how much. Mr. Pacaud made some transactions since.
Q. Any sterling drafts to go to Franco with ?-A. No.
Q. These cheques were all entered up ?-A. On the 6th of August.
Q. Where is the original receipt for them?--A. In the bank.
Q. Mr. Pacaud came and got them himself?-A. I did not see Mr. Pacaud. I

asked for the cheques two days ago. I was told he had got them and gave a receipt
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for them. He got them from Mr. Gagnon, who is the cheque clerk in the bank.
He (Mr. Gagnon) is in Quebec now. I believe he is the one who gave them. He is
the proper clerk for that purpose.

Q. Mr. Pacaud came and got the cheque himself ?-A. I believe so.
Q. And the receipt for the cheques (Exhibit No. 22) is only a copy of the

original, and the original boars Mr. Pacaud's own signature ?-A. Yes.
Q. When you made that discount, yon received a cheque upon the Union Bank

for $20,000, payable to C. N. Armstrong?-A. Yes.
Q. Drawn by J. C. Langolier, Commissioner?-A. Yes.
Q. And you received the Order in Council?-A. No.
Q. Dii you receive any advice as to the letter of credit ?-A. No.
Q. What did you hear about the letter of credit, ont of the proceeds of which

that $20,000 choque was to be paid ?-A. I got a letter from the Union Bank stating
that they had a collection, and that the cheque would be paid whei the letter would
be cashed by the Government.

Q. That letter was returned to the Union Bank?-A. Yes.
Q. And the cheque for $20,000 was presented to your bank?-A. Yes, on the

10th of July; that was the day it was to be paid. Then I returned the letter.
Q. You held this cheque and the letter of the Union Bank securing your bank

for the advance ?-A. No; I advanced the money on the strength of Mr. Vallière's
name, and he gave me this value to secure himself.

Q. Then you held a choque for $20,000, and the letter from the Union Bank?-.
A. Addressed to Mi. Vallière.

Q. You held them for Mr. Vallière ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then you presented the $20,000 choque on the Union Bank and got it paid,

and presented it to Mr. Pacaud?-A. No; we paid the note with it.
Q. On the 6th of May, the same day, I sce three entries in this account, a debit

to the anount of $5,000, a debit to the amount of $1,000, and a debit of $2,150.
This first $5,000 retired a note ?-A. I cannot say that.

Q. Are you sure?-A. I am perfectly sure.
Q. Did yo get that cheque from Mr. Pacaud ?-A. No; I never saw the

cheque.
Q. Who got it from him?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did you inquire ?-A. No.
Q. This $5,000 choque was drawn by Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes.
Q. Yo do not know whether it was paid across the couiiter?-A. No.
Q. You are subpoenaed here to produce your discount registers ?-A. I have an

extriact from the book (Exhibit No. 24.)
Q. This is not sufficient; you have an extract dealing only with that note ?-A.

Well, I do not know anything else than this note, regarding the matter.
do You were subpætnaed to produce the discount registers ?-A. But I cannot

do it.
Q. You were subpenaed to bring your ledgers, deposit registers, supplementary

cash books, bill and note registers. Are these the proper titles ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you have not brought them ?-A. No.
Q. Can you tell me what notes matured in your bank on the 6th of May?-A. I

cannot say that without the book.
Q. Can you tell me who is the maker of the note or notes which that $5,000

paid ?-A. That is not a choque ; that is a note.
Q. I understand that is a choque, and apparently cashed across the counter.

Can you tell me who was the maker of the note or notes in your bank which that
$5,000 paid ?-A. I did not say that was going to pay a note.

Q. Thon you cannot teli me ?-A. No even with the books I cannot say.
Q. But you can tell me what note for $5,000 was retired on that date ?-A. Yes

but I could not tell if this choque applied to that note.
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Q. No; but we could link the circumstances together, and you could tell me if
you had a note falling due on that day or a short period afterwards, which was
retired on that day ?-A. Yes; I could tell if we had a note due to retire on that day.

Q. Or any two or three notes amounting to $5,000 ?-A. I could tell the notes
we had on that day; that is all.

Q. Have you brought the book containing the entry of which this exhibit No.
24 is an extract?-A. No; because I do not believe you have any right to make me
put before the Committee all the books of the bank.

Q. Will you let me see the books if I go to Quebec ?-A. Certainly.
Q. I want the deposit ledger, and also the discount ledger ?-A. Well; you

cannot have it. It would close the bank.
Q. You have a discount ledger ?-A. Yes.
Q. That will give me a good deal of the information I want ?-A. I do not know.
Q. I want the discount ledger and the deposit ledger ? Those two books will

contain all the record of dealings with notes with your customers?-A. The note
diary besides.

Q. Now, if I had it, is that all ?-A. Yes; and the current account ledger.
Q. The account of Mr. Pacaud and all accounts with your customers are in these

books?-A. Yes.
Q. The other books of the bank contain simply entries of totals ?-A. Well,

accessories.
The CHAIRMAN-The motion before the Committee is, that the witness be

required to produce these books.
WITNEss-We have to make copies of all books before sending them.

By the Hon. Mr. Ogilvie:

Q. It will take a month to do that?-A. Two months, perhaps.
Mr. BARwICK-1 will go to Quebec and endeavour to assist the bank and indicate

the extracts he should have here by Tuesday, and if it is absolutely necessary
to have any particular book here I shall have that liberty. It is distinctly under-
stood that I shall have the fullest access to the books of the bank.

The CHiAIRMAN-That, I presume, you have no objection to, Mr. Dumoulin ?-
A. No, sir.

The CHAIRMAN-Mr. Barwick's request meets with the approval of the witness,
as I understand it.

Mr. BARWIK-And that I shall have Mr. Cockburn and my book-keeper with
me ?-A. Make your choice.

Q. What other papers have you ?-A. You have them all.
Q. You brought no other papers with you ?-A. Not relating to that matter.
Q. What other papers have you with you?
Hon. Mr. PowER objected to the question.

Yes.Q. Have you handed some papers to your counsel, since you came here ?-A.

Q. Since you came to Ottawa, you have handed some papers to your counsel,
Mr. Langelier ?-A. Yes.

Q. And-Mr. Langelier has them here ?-A. No.
Q. When did you give them to him ?-A. I showed them to him yesterday, here

in this building.
Q. Where are they now ?-A. I have them here in my pocket.
Q. Take them out of your pocket ?-A. I have no objection.
WITNEss here produced some papers.
Q. There are two documents here ?-A. You want to look at them ?
Mr. BARwICK-I wait to see whether I should look at them.
Q. What are these ?-A. It is an extract ftom the diary of the notes of the

bank (Exhibit No. 25.)
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Q. What have we here ?-A. It is a letter from myself to oar cashier on bank
business.

Q. Relating to this entry ?-A. No.
Q. To what ?-A. To the discount and the notes of Mr. Vallière of $20,000. Also

an extract of the same letter. (Extract marked Exhibit No. 26, and full letter
Exhibit No. 27.)

The letter being in French, was translated by the Clerk, as follows:-

BANQUE DU PEUPLE,

J. S. BoUSQUET, Esq. QUEBEC, 6th May, 1891.

DEAR Sia,-Mr. Phillippe Vallière, one of' our wealthy clients, has discounted
here to-day his note for $20,000, to the order of Ernest Pacaud. Mr. Vallière has a
guarantee from the Government which he has sent to me, ani which I wili collect
m1-yself on the 10th of July. The proceeds of this discount are to be applied by. Mr.
Pacaud to neet various liabilities spread out from now to the 3rd of June, amongst
which, there is $5,000 payable to ourselves, so that we shall disburse 815,000 only.
The only inconvenience that 1 saw in this transaction was the want offunds in which
I am. I at first refused for that reason, but the Honourable Charles Langelier, who
accomnpanied Mr. Vallière, has p-omised me a doposit of $50,000 upon the proceeds
of the loan, and this over and abovu the ainount which you oxpect to have yourself.
Under these circumstances, I believe that I should make the transaction.

Yours, very truly,
(Sgd.) P. D. DUMOULIN.

Q. Now this letter states the transaction through your cashier?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who is your superior officer ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And this is the report made in the ordinary course of business ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And the report of the transaction was that the proceeds of the discount of

the twenty thousand dollars note mentioned in Exhibit No. 23 was to be applied by
Mi. Pacaud to retiring certain notes from-to-day-that is, from the 6th May to the
3 'd June?-A. Yes.

Q. Well, then, these documents which came out ofyour left hand pocket (Exhibit
25) are the " certain notes "?-A. I do not know when I received the summons-

Q. Please read the heading in print and then translate it for me-the heading
On Exhibit 25.

(Headirig read in French.)
Q. Translate it, please ?-A. Extract of the note diary of La Banque du Peuple

from 6th May to 3rd June, 1891.
Q. That corresponds with this report (Exhibit 27) ?-A. I cannot say, because

When I wrote this letter I took for granted the statement made to nie by Mr. Pacaud,
and did not examine the books, but when you sent me the summons I began resear-
ches, and I only found these noted in the ledger from the 6th May to the 3rd June.

Q. Amounting to $1,700 ?-A. That is ail the notes for whieh 1 could not trace
any payment.

Q. And which might have been paid out of the proceeds of the twenty thousand
dollars discount ?-A. Yes ; and might not.

Q. This is Mr. Pacaud's name at the top of the second column of Exhibit 25,
and at the top of this account (Exhibit 26) it is the samo name, is it not?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, in this Exhibit 25, in the tirst column, are the promissor's names ?-
A. Yes.

Q. What is the French word ?-A. Promissoire.
Q. In the second co'umn are the names of the endorsers ?-A. Yes.
Q. The next coluimn gives the face of the note ?-A. Yes.

Q. The next gives the due date, and the last column the date when paid ?-A.

Q. Now, Exhibit 23, debit side, shows the cheques dravn ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, there are four notes maturing between 6th May and 3rd June, as
shown in this extract, Exhibit 25. One for four hundred dollars, the first?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. That was due on the 6th May ?-A. Yes ; and paid on the sane day.
Q. The saine day this discount for $20,000 was made ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. On the same day a choque for $5,000 was drawn, as shown by Exhibit 23 ?-

Yes, sir.
Q. Who is the maker of this note for 8400 ?-A. A. F. Carrier.
Q. Who is the endorser ?-A. Ernest Pacaud.
Q. Who is A. F. Carrier ?-A. He is one of our barristers in Quebec, and a

member of our Local Legislatuîre.

By Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. What is his Christian name?-A. Achille.
By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for the Opposants

Q. The next note was due on the 8th May and was paid on the 6th May ?-A.
Yes.

Q. Two days before it was due ?-A. Yes.
Q. That note is for $150. Who is the maker ?-A. James Carrel.
Q. Ard the endorser ?-A. Ernest Pacaud.
Q. Who is James Carrel ?-A. He is dead now. lie used to be the ecitor of

The Daily Telegrah.
Q. The third note was (lue on the 31st May ?-A. Yes.
Q. And was paid on the 11th May ?-Yes.
Q. Twenty days before it was due?--A. Yes.
Q. The niext, note is for $150 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who is the maker ?-A. J. G. M. Deschenes.
Q. And the enidorser?-A. Ernest Pacaud.
Q. Who is Mr. De-chenes ?-A. T cannot tell from this entry. I could identify

the man if I had his signatui e. We have two or three customers named Deschenes.
Q. Two or three J. i. M Desehenes ?-No; several of the Deschenes bear the

saie name-Mainville. There is a merchant in Quebec of that naine.

By the Honourable Mfr. Ogilvie:

Q. Is that Mr. Descheneti of Temiscouata ?-A. Thero is one in Temiscouata.
There is a member of the House whose name is Mainville, too.

Q. You do not know if this is the meinber for L'Islet?-A. No; I do not kniow.
By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :

Q. On the 11th May this note of Mr. Desclienes was retired ?-Yes.
Q. Turn to Ernest Pacaud's account, Exhibit 23, and tell me if you see a charge

of $150 on the 11th ?-A. I do.
Q. Would you put these two entries together and draw any conclusion fron

them?-A. No.
Q. Yould not think that $150 note had been retired with the $150 cheque ?-A.

It may be, and it may not be.
Q. Now, the next entry is probably the most interesting one ?-A. I do not

know.
Q. This is the fourth and last note, and is for $1,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. It is due on the 3rd June, paid on the 11th May ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is a considerable time before it was duo. Now turn to this Exhibit

23, Ernest Pacaud's deposit account, which shows the procéeds of the $20,000 dis-
count. Do you sec the first entry on the 1lth May, a cheque for $1,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, would you put that entr-y ot the $1,000 in the deposit account opposite
the entry which we have in Exhibit 25 and draw any conclusion from that?-A. I
cannot do that.
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Q. You would not think that $1,000 cheque had retired that note, would you ?-
A. It may be that.

Q. You see Mr. Pacaud was the endorser ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the promisor ?-A. J. I. Tarte.
Q. Who is he ?-A. He is the member for Montmorency.
Q. In the Dominion House ?-Yes. sir.
Q. Who are the endorsers ?-A. Mr. Pacaud and Mr. Langelier.
Q. What Langelier ?-A. Mr. François Langelier.
Q. Your counsel here ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, we have got the whole entr-y. Do you not think that that$1,000 choque

retired that $1,000 note ?-A. It may be. [ never saw the choques. The clerk. look
after that.

Q. But it looks like it, does it not ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Have you got any more paperus in the right hand pocket ?-A. No.
Q. These aie all the papers you have with you ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you any in your room ?-A. No. These are all the papers I brought

up.
Q. You submitted this last batch of papers which we have 4een examining you

upon, and which came out of your left hand pocket to Mr. Langelier ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did ho advise you that you were not bound to produce them ?-A. He

thought they did not relate to the letterus of credit.
Q. And you were not bound to produce them ?-A. I took his advice.
Q. You brought these documents-the ones we have been speaking of-up to

Ottawa in obedience to your subpæna ?-A. Yes. I could not see Mr. Laigelier in
Quebec and I wanted to see him here.

Q. You sought his advice with your subpena and your documents ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you meet him ?-A. In the Parlianent Buildings.
Q. And you submitted the subpena and the documents to him ?-A. Ves.
Q. Mr. Langelier separated the documents, showing you vhat vou were bound

to produce under the subpena and what ha thought you were not bound to produce?
-A. Yes.

Q. And these that he thought you were not bound to produce ho put into an
envelope ?-A. I did that myself.

Q. Where did you get the envelope ?-A. In the bank, in Quebec.
Q. You put them back into the bank envelope ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the others you put in a handy receptaele ?-A. In a special pocket.
Q. Now, Mr. Dumoulin, you went ail through the books of the bank in aceord-

ance with your subpæna ?-A. To the best of my knowledge.
Q. Who assisted you ?-A. The accountant.
Q. Who is he ?-A. Mr. Labadie.
Q. What is his christian name ?-A. F. Auguste.
Q. And he is in Quebec now ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And is not going away, is he ?-A. No, sir.
Q. And will come here in obedience to direction if lie is telegraphed for ?-A.

Yes.
Q. He certified the document, did he ?-A. Yes.
Q. You knew that we wcre after, I suppose, when you ead the subpcena ?-A.

Yes.
Q. Knowing what we were after, you turned up that letter of yours, which we

filed to-day ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then made the extract ?-A. I could not consult MUr. Langelier until I had

come to Ottawa.
Q. And having done so, I ask you if there are any other accunts which refer to

these matters that we have been talking of besides the ones you have shown ?-A.
io; I had nothing to hide.



Q. Except what Mr. Langelier advised you ?-A. Thore was nothing to hide,
but he thought that some of these papers did not relate to the subpena. It was a
matter relating to a note discounted, and the subpæna spoke of letters of credit.

Q. But both of you thought differently when you searched for the documents ?
-A. I had not seen my solicitor; he was not in Quebec, and I could not consult him
as to the documents I should bring.

The COuNsEL-I do not desire to proceed with the examination of Mr. Dumoulin
further, but I should desire that Mr. Dumoilin remain in attendance to give me an
opportunity of examining the books.

By the lon. François Langelier, Counsel for the Government of the Province of
Quebec :

Q. Did I come for you yesterday, or did you come to see me ?--A. I went to
see you; I searched for you.

Q. I am the regular solicitor for the bank at Quebec, and you wanted to con-
sult me on this matter?-A. Yes; it was my duty to do so.

Q. Did I advise you to conceal anything which [ thought had any reterence to
this matter ?-A. No.

Q. What advice did I give you ?-A. You read the subpoena and told me that
you thought it referred only to the letter of credit.

Q. Did I tell you to hide, or try to hide, anything concerning the matter before
the Committee ?-A. No.

Q. What are the particular documents I told you I believed had no reference to
this matter ? Are they not the two letters and the extract you produced ?-A- Yes.

Q. And the statement of account I asked you to bring ?-A. Yes.
Q. And to produce everything in case they might be asked for ?-A. Yes.
Q. You filed on my advice that statement of the notes discounted-four-I think?

-A. Yos.
Q. Will you state what you know as to the note upon which my name appears

as en to:-ser? I do not know whether you have any knowledge of the facts in rela-
tion to it, but tell what you recollect ?-A. The note was prosented for discount
before the niame of Mr. Langelier was upon it, the names of Tarte and Pacaud only
appearing. Not being authorized to make a discount on the name of Mr. Tarte I
retused to discount the note, and I was asked if I would accept the name of Mr.
Langelier as endorser; I said yes. It was re-presented to nie afterwards with his
name, and I discounted it.

By Mfr. ?arwick, Counsel for Opposants:

Q. Had you any interviews with Mr. Pacaud before you made this discount ?-
A. Yes, sir.

Q. You simply had the interview you have spoken of concerning the twenty
thousand dollar discourit ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had only one interview with him ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What did he tell you. Tell us the conversation, as nearly as you can recol-

lect ?-A. I was presented the note for discount by Mr. Vallière and Mr. Pacaud; I
said I would discount Mr. Vallière's name, because ho was a customer, and I was
authorized to discount for him. So I discounted the note, and Mr. Vallière told me
he had security, and he gave me the security, and I was told it would be paid on or
about the 10th of July.

Q. That security was Mr. Chrysostôme Langelier's cheque ?-A. Yes. And to
present the choque on that day and it would be paid by the Union Bank, and to apply
the proceeds to the $20,000.

Q. Mr. Vallière is a wealthy man ?-A. Yes. He is our customer.
Q. Did you ever speak to Mr. Pacaud about that note afterwards ?-A. I do not

recollect.
Q. Have you seen Mr. Pacaud within the last two weeks ?-A. Yes; I have.
Q. Where ?-A. He came into the bank for business.
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Q. Have you had any conversation with Mr. Pacaud within the last th: ee weeks
on the subject of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. No.

Q. Has ho spoken to you about any of these matters ?-A. No.
Q. He did not speak to you about getting these cheques returned from the

bank ?-A. No; I did not see him when he came for the cheques. He saw the clerk.
Q. Were there any other names on these four notes than the ones showii here?

-A. Not according to the diary.
Q. But there might have been some other names ?-A. Not unless the clerk

who kept the r-cord made an error.
Q. Did he make an error in this case.-A. I do not know; he had no order to

make an error.
Q. Who was the clerk who made the entry ?-A. There are a couple of juniors,

I could not say who made it.
Q. If necessary, you will send the junior who made the entry ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, this letter (Exhibit 26) is the extract from Exihibit 27. Would you be

kind enough to read the extract which you omitted from No. 26. Read it in English,
please ?-A. " The inconvenience I saw in inaking this transaction was the stiniigency
of funds in which 1 am. I at first refused for this reason, but the Hon. Charles
Langelier, who accompanied Mr. Vallière, promises me a deposit of $50,000 upon the
proceeds of the loan. and this, besides the amount that you expect to receive your-
self. Under the circumstances, I decided to make the transaction."

Q. Now, why did you, in making that extract, omit from Exhibit 26 the extract
you have just read from Exhibit 27 ?-A. Because i spoke of the stringency of funds
in which the bank was; 1 thought that was only the private business of the bank.

Q. Now, this second paragraph of the letter says that the proceeds of this
discount-that is, the discount of the Vallière note for $20,000-is to be applied by
Mr. Pacaud to meet sundry notes maturing from to-day to the 31st of June, among
which there is $5,000 payable to ourselves. Now, Exhibit 25 shows that vou have
disbursed sundry notes maturing from the 6th of May to the 3rd of June, payable to
yourselves, amounting to how niuch ?-A. To $1,700.

Q. So, that there is $3,300 still to be accounted for ?-A. Yes, sir. But, as I
said, when I wrote my letter I did not refer to my book; I took what Mr. Pacaud had
said ; ho mentioned $5,000. In searching with the accountant we found only what
we have produced.

Q. Can you give us any information as to how the $3,300 was made up ?-A. I
cannot ; I took what ho said for granted, and wrote what I did in the letter ; 1 did
not look into the books until two or three days ago, just befoie leaving for Ottawa.

Q. Who can tell us how the $3,300 is made up ?-A. Nobody can tell you.
Q. Wtio in the bank knows these transactions ?-A. The accountant.
Q. And he could tell us probably whose notes were comprised in this $3,300 ?-

A. No ; because he don't find any trace of such note.
Q. But a man might know something outside of his bank books ?-A. There is

nothing at all but what appears in our books.
Q. Your bank is different from others, that is so ?-A. When we discount a note

it always passes through our books.
Q. You made a formal report to your manager that you were going to retire

Out of that $20,000 ?-A. I did not mean to say retire. I meant to say that Mr.
Pacaud said ho would pay the notes, and that they were about $5,000. I had nothing
to retire myself.

Q. i used your own word. You said in your report to your superior officer that
the discount was to be used thus : Mr. Pacaud was to apply to proceeds to these
sundry notes matuiing from to-day to the 3rd June ?-A. That was Mr. Pacaud's
statement.

Q. Among which you say " there is $5,000 payable to ourselves, so that we shall
disburse only $15,000" ?-A. I stated that.

Q. And did you only disburse $15,000 ?-A. Well, not aceoiding to what I see
now.
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Q. What information can you give this Committee to account for the $3,300 ?-
A. No information whatever ; I know nothing about it and there is no trace of it in
our books.

Q. Will1 you be good enough to look at your books again, so as to find, if possible,
an explanation of it ?-A. I wili look with the accountant.

Q. If you get any information you are willing to return ?-A. Yes.
Q. Wiat is your title ?-A. Manager.
Q. Local manager at Quebec ?-A. Yes.
Q. And this report is to your general manager in Montreal ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have found out that the notes did not amount to so much as you thought ?

-A. 1 thought that what Mr. Pacaud had to pay was a trifle;I made thestatements,
but I thought it not material if we had $5,000 or $2,000 or $3,000 ; it had nothing to
do with the merits of the discount.

Q. Were there any other notes besides the notes we have, mentioned in Exhibit
25, retired with cheques drawn on that account shown in Exhibit 23 ?-A. I did not
see them in our book.

Q. I an talking of other banks ?-A. I do not know.
Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you about retiring cheques in other banks ?-A.

He did not speak to me about what he had to pay in other banks.
Q. What did he tell you about his requiring so large a sum as $20,000 ?-A. I

did not ask him that. I discounted it on the strength of Mr. Vallière's name.
Q. Hlad you made a discount for Mr. Pacaud before ?-A. Yes.
Q. I believe you did not discount the letter of etedit ?-A. No.
Q. You have made other discounts for Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes.
Q. Letters of credit ?-A. No.
Q. Did you ever discount'a note of Mr. Pacaud secured by a Government letter

of credit ?-A. No.
Q. At any time ?-A. I made some discounts for Mr. Pacaud, altogetheroutside

of this affair.
Q. Were they secured by Government letters of credit ?-A. Yes; relating to

other matters and for very small amounts.
Q. How much ?-A. Sometimes it would be $300, sometimes $200. I may have

di.scounted five or six of those for somebody else than Pacaud but they had Mir.
Pacaud's name on their notes ; they were given sometimes for books sold to the
Government or something that way.

Q. Suins given for services rendered to the Government ?-A. Yes ; small
amourits, and Mr. Pacaud would endorse the notes, and the party would give me the
letter ot' credit as security.

Q Would you give the money to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. No.
Q. Or put it to his credit ?-A. No ; I gave it to the parties who gave me their

notes endorsed by Mr. Pacaud and secured by the letters of credit.
Q. Did you ever discount anything for Mr. Pacaud secured by letters of credit ?

-A. I do not believe I did. He has been dealing with the bank for five or six years,
and I cannot remember the details of all transactions.

By the lon. Mfr. Tassé :
Q. You state in your letter oftthe 16th May last, addressed to Mr. Bosquet Mana-

ger, that you had in the first place refused to discount the $20,000 note ?-A. Yes.
Q. But Mr. Langelier promised to deposit $50,000 out of a part of the loan ?-

A. Yes.
Q. Was that deposit ever made ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Which loan was it ?-A. I thought it was the ten million loan.
Q. That Mr. Mercier was trying to procure from France ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :
Q. Charles Langelier is a member of the Government, is lie ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And he accompanied Mr. Pacaud when he came to get this discount ?-A.
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Q. And these two together saw you ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who opened the conversation-Langelier or Pacaud ?-A. I think it was Mr.

Pacaud who spoke.
Q. I do not want to ask too many questions. Tell us, please, what took place and

what part Mr. Langelier took ?-A. le did not take a great part, I think; he made
me a promise of the deposit of $50,000. I asked him for that.

Q. If you put this transaction through ?-A. No; I decided to advance the
money, but I told him we were short of money, and as they were going to receive a
large amount because they were making a loan, I would expect to have a deposit
made in my branch of at least $50,000, and upon that he gave me the promise to
make deposit. That decided mesltogether to make the advance, but I believe it was
not my principal reason; I would have made the loan on account of Mr. Vallièro
being one of our customers.

Q. When Mr. Langelier gave you the promise, on your asking him, that the
Government wculd deposit $50,000, you decided to let the loan go through ?-A.
That was one of the reasons; but I declare I would have discounted the note all the
same, Mr. Vallière being one of our customers. But I was glad to be able to announce
to our cashier that we were going to receive such a deposit. I was workinîg ili a
business way.

By the Hon. 3fr. Tassé:

Q. For how long was that deposit to last ?-A. Nothing was said about that. 1
was going to try to keep it as long as 1 possibly could, but nothing was said.

Q. For how long did you expect that deposit, to be kept ?-A. For some time.
Q. For how long ?-A. For three or six months, or for a year or two possibly.

By Mfr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :
Q. There is no necessity for me going to Quebec now ?-A. I do not believe

there is.

ELLIOTT E. WEBB, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, who being
duly sworn and examined by Mr. Walter Barwick, Counsel for Opposants, testified as
follows:-

Q. Are you the cashier of the Union Bank ?-A. Of the Union Bank of Canada
-Yes.

Q. You were requested to diseount a letter of credit for $100,000, were you not ?
-A. Yes.

Q. You would not discount it ?-A. No.
Q. You at first determined to discount it ?-A. If it was found satisfactory on

further investigation.
Q. You changed your mind with regard to the discount ?-A. i subnitted it to

the Board and it was decided to decline it.
Q. Mr. Pacaud offered you too much ?-A. It was considered that it was not a

legitinate transaction for the bank to enter upon.
Q. The conclusion you came to in regard to the legitimacy of the transaction

Was based upon what Mr. Pacaud told you ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now there were five twenty thousand dollar cheques drawn by you ?-A.

Q. Let me see them, please ?-(Cheques produced.)
Q. We have had the history of the Banque Nationale and the choque on the

bank refered to. This is the Banque du Peuple cheque?-A. Yes.
Q. These are ail twenty thousand dollars cheques?-A. Yes.
Q. They are ail dated 29th of April ?-A. Yes.
Q. These tive eheques are for $20,000 each, and are signed by J. C. Langelior,

Srmms ron payable t? the order et Chares N. Arms-Aon. and endorsed C. N.
nn
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Q. This is the choque Mr. Dumoulin has been given the history of ?-A. Yes.
( Cheque filed, marked 28A.)

Q The next choque is endorsed C. N. Armstrong, and P. Vallière-that is the
Banque Nationale choque (28B) ?-A. Yes.

Q. The next (28C) is endorsed C. N. Armstrong only ?-A. Yes.
Q. And was paid at maturity by you ?-A. Yes.
Q. When was it paid ?-A. On the 9th or 10th of July.
Q. It appears to have been paid on the 10th ; that was the day the ietter of

credit matured ?-A. Yes.
Q. The letter of credit for $100,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. The next cheque (28D) is endorsed C. N. Armstroig?-A. Yes.
Q. The next (28E) is endorsed C. N. Armstrong ?-A. Yes.
Q. The last two cheques (Exhibits 28D, 28E) bear these red ink words-July

10th 1891 ?-A. They were placed on collection in our bank, and the due date was
fixed July the 10th, on aceount of the letter of credit maturing that day.

Q. Was the third cheque placed in your bank (Exhibit 28C) ? Was that placed
in your banik for collection ?-A. Yes.

Q. Why was that not marked in the same way as the other two exhibits
(28D, 28E) ?-A. The only way I can account for that is, that one of them was
brought in subsequently to the others, and probably that was omitted.

Q. Now, have you the letter of credit with you ?-A. No, sir.
Q. That was delivered up to the Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you a reeeipt for it ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Will you describe the Jetter ofcredit, or as much about the letter of credit

as you can ?-A. It was a letter of credit signed by P. Garneau, acting Premier, and
undertaking to pay on or befoie the 10th July $100,000. I think it was out of the
subsidy voted for the Baie des Chaleurs Railway bearing interest until it was paid.
From the 1st of June, I believe. I think that was the substance ofit.

Q. Was the Order in Council brought to you?-A. It was sent to me-yes.
Q. By whom ?-A. By the Assistant Treasurer.
Q. What is his name ?-A. Mac.hin.
Q. Exhibit No. 29 is a letter dated 29th April. 1891, from yourself to H. T.

Machin, Assistant Treasurer of the Province of Quebec ?-A. Yes
Q. Exhibit No. 30 is a letter from yourself to Mr. Machin, dated 30th April,

1891, enclosing copies of Orders in Council ?-A. Yes.
Q. The Orders in Council authorized your bank to advance $100,000?-A. As I

remember it, the first order was made authorizing our bank to advance the $175,000,
which was af'terwards divided into two orders, one authorizing us to advance $100,000
and the other authorizing the Banque Nationale to advance $75,000.

Q. Then the first Order in Coutcil named your bank to advanced the whole
$175,000 ?-A. I only speak from memory, but I believe that was the way it was.

Q. And the name of your bank was not inserted in the second order ?-A. Pro-
bably not.

Q. Exhibit No. 31 is dated 9th May, 1891, and is a letter written by yourself to
Mir. P. Vallière?-A. Yes.

Q. Exhibit No. 32 is a letter dated 16th May, 1891, from yourself to Mr. J. S.
Bousquet ?-A. Yes.

Q. Who is Mr. Bou-,quet ?-A. Cashier of' the Banque du Peuple, Montreal.
Q. Now. the choque reforred to in that letter is the Exhibit No. 28c?-A. Yes.
Q. The cheque referred to in the Exhibit 31 is Exhibit No. 28a ?-A. Yes.
Q. Exhibit No. 33 is a letter dated 16th of May, 1891, to Mr. J. C. Langelier

from yourself advising him that you hold a letter froin Mr. Garneau dated the 28th
April ?-A. Yes.

Q. The letter from Mr. Garneau you speak of in the last few exhibits is a letter
of credit ?-A. Yes ; a letter of credit.

Q. These are accounts you have brought, Exhibit No. 34?-A. Yes.
48
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Q. First is the account froni your ledger, with Mr. J. C. Langelier, Commis-
sioner ?-A. Yes.

Q. And i suppose that is a transcript of his deposit ledger account ?-A. Yes.
Q. You credit him with $100,000 and the interest ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the interest apparently remains to the credit of Mr. Langelier to-day ?-

A. Yes.
Q. He has not drawn it since ?-A. I could not say-not up to the time I left.
Q. The other account is Mr. Ernest Pacaud's (Exhi bit No. 35) ?-A. Yes.
Q. And these are the cheques?-A. These are the cheques vhich he lias not

taken out. Up to a certain time he had taken out the chequeS.
Q. Draw a blie Une when they stop ?
WITNESS did so.
Q. There are ten cheques above the blie line as follows:-

July 11th ............................................................... $ 500
do do ................. ..... ...................................... 25,000
do do ...... ... .............................................. ..... 3,000
do do ...... ........ ..................................... ......... 8,000
do do ..................... .............. .. ....... ............... 5,000
do 14th .......................................................... .... 29
do 17th ...... .............................................. ........ 25
(o 21st ....................... .................... 7,000
do 22nd ............................................. . . ............ 5,000
do 24th ............................... ............................... 3,000

A. Yes.

Q. The cheques below the line are as follows:-

A ug. 10th ...................................................... ....... $ 1,500
do do .... .......................................................... 1,000
do do ...... ........................................................ 50
(10 do ................. ......... ............................. 500
do do ............................................................... 500
do do .............................. ................................ 1,000
do 11th. ............. .. ............................................ 210
do 12th............. ........... .......... ........................... 280

A. Yes.
Q. The $1,000 cheque of the 10th of August has not yet been presented and

stands to Mr. Pacaud's credit ?--A. Yes.
Q. There was a balance to his credit on the 10th of July of $60,000?--A. Yes.
Q. Are these three cheques which are marked Exhibit No. 28?-A. Yes.
Q. Correct me if I state wrongly. On the 19th of July you received a letter of

credit for $100,000 ?-A. We held it on collection.

Q. On the 9th of July you got a letter of credit for $100,000, which you had
agr-eed to discount before, but as to which you changed your minds, and you held
that letter of credit on collection ?-A. We agreed to discount it, if it proved
satisfactory.

Q. You seriously entertained it?-A. Yes.
Q. Having seriously entertained it, and declined to discount it, you agreed to

hold that letter of credit on collection?-A. Yes.
Q. You charged against that collection tive cheques of $20,000 oach ?-A. Yes.
Q. Drawn by Mr. Langelier ?-A. Commissioner.
Q. Marked to be-payable on the 10th of July?-A. Yes.
Q. The date that letter of credit was payable?-A. Yes.
Q. So, althougli those cheques were charged on that day and marked on that day

the cash could not be drawn until the 10th of July from your bank ?-A. We did not
undertake to pay the cheques until this letter of credit was paid on the 10th of July
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The cheques were not marked until the 10th of' July. They were left with the
bank on collection to be charged when the letter of credit was paid.

Q. On the 10th of July, Mr. Wehb, you placed to the credit of Mr. Pacaud,
860,000-three of those eheques (Exhibit 28) ?-A. Yes; endoised by Mir. Arm-
strong and leit on collection by Mr. Pacaud.

Q. And when col'ected MIr. Pacaud drew the money?-A. Afterwards.
Q. Now, tell the Comnimittee in your own language the history of the offer to

you, of the $100,000-letter of credit, the refusal, the arrangement between you and
the Banque du Peuple, where they were to take one and you the other, and your
subsequent reconsideration of your position ? Tell us the whole story ?-- A. Mr.
Pacaud came to me at the baiik and asked if we would entertain the dibcount of the
letter of credit for $175,000.

Q. When was that ?-A. About the end of April. We had several conversations
about the letter ofciedit, and I told him we would entertain it, and the matter was
finally divided. I spoke to Mr. Gaboury, of the Banque Nationale, and they had
decided to take a portion of the letter if satisfactory. The letter was finally divided
into two, $100,000 discountod at the Union Bank and $75,000 at the Banque Natio-
ne. After the letters were issued, and the inatter submitted to our Board, it was

decided that we should not make the advances. It was considered not exaetly a
legitimate banking transaction. I advised Mr. Pacaud of this. And Mr. Langelier,
Commissioner, brought the letter of credit to me, prior to our declining it, asked ne
to discount it, and place it to his credit as Commissioner. I told bim I would sub-
mit it to the Board. Afterwards Mr. Pacaud brought in those five cheques amounting
to $100,000 (Exhibit No. 28), and I advised him that the bank had decided not to
discount the letter of credit, and that 1 therefore could not cash his cheque. These
are the five cheques he b)rought in (Exhibit No. 28).

Q. When was that ?-A. Probably in the early part of May.
Q. Were they endorsed by Armstrong when lie brought them in ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were they brought to you or taken to the counter to be cashed ?-A. They

were brought to me. They may have been presented at the counter first, but. I was
not aware of it.

Q. Proceed with the conveisation with Mr. Pacaud, when he had those five
cheques ?--A. le afterwards asked me if I would discount one or two of the cheques
and offered me Mr. Vallière's endorsement. I declined doing it, as the bank did not
wish to go into the transaction, and he next asked me if I would give a letter under-
taking to pay those cheques on the 10th of Jily. I said no; I would undertake to

pay them as soon as the amount paid by the Government was placed to the credit
of the Commissioner.

Q. And you gave those two letters you produce?-A. Yes.
Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you, to make you change your mind about dis.

couniting the $100,000 letter of credit ?-A. I do not renember the conversation
exactly.

Q. Well, give the substance of it ?-A. Well, the fact of these cheques going to
bis credit had a great deal to do with our declining it.

Q. That is three of those cheques marked Exhibit No. 28 ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did he tell you about those cheques going to his credit ?
WITNEs.-I wish to know if I am obliged to give all information about a pri-

vate customer-I wish to know from the Chairmanî. We do not wish to withhold
any information ; but it is the duty of the. bank to protect one ot its customers as
far as possible, and possibly because how the cheques given out were paid eventually
I cannot say. I cannot connect it with this transaction, and therefore I do not know
whether I should go into particulars as to one of the customers of the bank. If I
am ordered to do so I am ready to do so; but at the same time- the duty of the bank
is to protect a customer's private account.

The CHAIRMAN.-Inî my judgment the question is a proper one, and I direct that
it thould be answered. I understand that is the pleasure of the Committee.

The witness was ordered to answer, and continued as follows:-The main
reason for declining was that we had doubts about the money being properly applied
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for the purposes indicated in the Order in Council. and Mr. Pacaud mentioned, I
believe, that a certain amount of this money was to become bis private property. I
do not exactly remember the amount. That was the main reason in deelining the
letter of cred i t.

Q. Say that again ?-A. Mr. Pacaud told me that a certain amount of this was
to go to him, piivately, and the bank thought in that case the money was not being
applied as directed by Order in Council, and they preferred not to enter into the
transaction.

By the Hon. Mr. MfcMillan :
Q. Did he say how much ?-A. About $50,000.
Q. Mr. Pacaud was to have $50,000 ?-A. About that amount.

By 1«r. Barwick:
Q. And where was the balance to go ?-A. A portion of the balance was required

to take up paper- which was discounted at the diffèrent banks in Quebec. [ think
some was at the Union Bank-I no not know that ho mentioned the names of the
banks. I think he referrm'ed to the Banque Nationale and tho People's Bank at the
time.

Q. le was to retire certain paper in your bank out of that ?-A. I believe so
that is a >ortioni of the balance. I do not know where it was all to go to.

Q. 1ou learnted all that from Mi. Pacaud ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did he show you a statement of liabilities or notes which ho was to meet out

<)fthat other' $50,000 ?-A. He may have pencilled out a statement in my office, but
I do not think ho put any names. I do not remember; but simply showed what
anount he would require after the discount of this $100,000.

Q. Ilow much did he require imnediately to net this paper ?-A. I cannotsay.
Q. A considerable sum ?-A. I presurme it was the two choques afterwards dis-

counted by other banks, of $20,000 each.
Q. What was the amount of paper iii your bank, which he was going to take up

Out of the proceeds ?-A. I had not the statement of it at the tinme.
Q. Have you the statement now ?-A. No.
Q. Have you anything that will show you the amount ?-A. No.
Q. Whose paper was it ?-A. I could not say. His naine was on it all as pro-

inissory endorser.
Q. le was to get $50,000 in cash himself and a reduction of'this paper, which

was in your bank, out of the other $50,000 ?-A. That is as near as I can remember.
Q. He was to have $50,000 clear for himself ?-A. About that.
Q. Who wer'e the other parties on his paper besides Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I think

the Honourable Charles Langelier was on some of it.
Q. Who is Charles Langelier' ?-A. le is a Minister of the Quebec Government.

I could not say how much he was on foi', without referring to the books.
Q. But you could tell us from the books ?-A. I could tell the amount of paper

he had, but I have no means of tracing it directly to this payment, any more than
Mr. Pacaud's conversation with me.

Q. Was anyone else on the paper ?-A. I think Mr. Morciei was on some of it.
Mr. Mercier is the Premier of Quebec. I could not say foi' how much.

Q. A considerable amount ?-A. I could not give any idea of the amount with-
Out referring to the books.

Q. Who else was thoi'e on this paper ?-A. I think Mr. L. P. Pelletier's iame
Was on some of the paper. Mr. Pelletier, I think, is a member of the Quebec Logis-
lature. I think his initials aie L. P., but I would not be positive.

Q. You do not mean Senator Pelletier ?-A. No.
Q. Who else was on the paper ?-A. I do not remember' anyone else at present.
Q. The amount of those notes would be about $20,000 when they were retired

with you ?-A. No; I think it would hardly amount to that; I could not speak pos
tively.
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Q. What book would show the amount of paper you underistood Mr. Paîcaud was
to retire if you discounted the letter of credit ?-A. The diary of'the bills discounted.

Q. Can you have that diary here to-morrow ?-A. I could have an extract from
it here to-morrow afternoon.

Q. Now, Mr. Webb, we want to know the names of the gentlemen who were
upon the paper which was to be retired by Ernest Pacaud, and I presume that
paper was retired by one of these choques, shown in Exhibit No. 35 ?-A. Well
there is a difficulty in connecting it with those cheques; some choques have been
surrendered; I could tell the paper he referred to at the time, but I could not trace
the payments to these choques. I could give you the dates of the payments, by
which you may draw inferences from the dates on the choques, but I could not do
nearer than that.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud hand you these cheques on the 11th of July, shown in
Exhibit 35 ?-A. I do not know whether they came from him or from other banks.

Q. When did Mr. Pacaud get these ton choques above the blue line in Exhibit
35 ?-A. I could not say exactly-shortly before leaving for New York. He was in
the office getting his cheques at the time, and simply said he had corne in for his
cheques.

Q. Can you tix the day of the week ?-A. I think it would be before Monday,
the lth of August inst.; I eau tell by the receipt. I have not the receipt with me.

Q. lad this investigation bcgun when he was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you and ho speak together about it ?-A. He said ho was coming up to

Ottawa to give his evidence, and afterwards sailing for Europe. ,
Q. Did he tell you that ho wanted these choques for this investigation ?-A. No;

he morely remarked that ho was getting his -Iheques.
Q. Is it necessary for you to go to Quebec yourself for those other answers?

You had better ?-A. Yes. I could give you a certified statement if it would make
it unnecessary for me to corne up again. The only evidence J can give is from the
books.

By the Hon. Mr. Tawsé:

Q. You have mentioned Mr. Mercier's name in connection with some paper.
Can you give the amount ?-A. I do not remember; I can ascertain.

Hon. Mr. TAssÉ.-I would like the same information with reference to the
Hon. Charles Langelier.

The Committee then adjourned until 8 o'clock p.m.

SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
FRIDAY, 14th August, 8 p.m., 1891.

ELLIOTT E. WEBB recalied and further examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for
Opposants.

Q. I asked you to-day with regard to the choque for $20,000. On looking over
the papers I see that Exhibit No. 32 is addressed to Mr. Bosquet, cashier of La
Banque du Peuple, Montreal. That letter does not refer to the cheque which was
handed to La Banque du Peuple, in Quebec. Does it ?-A. No; I handed it to Mr.
Pacaud. His idea was to get it discounted in La Banque du Peuple, in Montreal.

Q. Mr. Pacaud asked you for this letter, as ho wanted one of the choques dis-
counted in La Banque du Peuple, in Montreal ?-A. Yes.

Q. So that you did not give us to-day the copy of the letter handed to La Banque
du Peuple, in Quebec ?-A. I think the copy filed is the one handed to La Banque du
Peuple, but there is no copy of the one handed to La Banque Nationale.

Q. You will give us that ?-A. I have not a copy of that letter. but it is exactly
similar; it was copied from the one handed to La Banique du Peuple.
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Q. This letter (Exluibit 32) was the letter accompanying another cheque for
$20,000 ?-A. One of the five cheques which he wished to get discounted in La
Banque du Peuple, in Montreal.

Q. Now, will you be kind enough to tell how you came to hand this letter to
Mr. Pacaud ?-A. He asked me for the letter to enable him to get the cheque dis-
counted in La Banque du Peuple, at Montreal, and I gave him that letter,.

Q. About the l6th May ?-A. Yes.
Q. And gave him the cheque ?-A. Well, he had the cheque, I think, at this

time.
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud speak to you again, and tell you the result of his trip to

Montreal to try and get another cheque for $20,000 discounted ?-A. T think not; I
do not remember any conversation afterwards in reference to that at all.

Q. He was not successful in getting that discount fron La Banque du Peuple, in
Montreal ?-A. No.

Q. I suppose you had done considerable discounting business with Mr. Pacaud
during the last year ?-A. Yes.

Q. Up in the hundreds of thousands ?-A. No; we did not discount so much.
Q. About how much do you think, during the last year ?-A. I could not say.
Q. A considerable amount ?-A. Yes; a large amount.
Q. And the proceeds of these discounts-to what account would they be ere-

dited ?-A. To Mr. Pacaud's account
Q. Then does this account that you gave us to-day, taken fron your deposit

ledger, comprise extracts only ?-A. That comprises the whole. from the date of the
acceptance of these cheques.

Q. From the time $60,000 was placed at his credit.- -A. Yes.
Q. The $60,000 being part of the $100,000 ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. What was that date ?-A. About the 10th July.

By Mr. Barwick, Counel for Opposants:
Q. If we were to look at that account, a copy of which you brought us to-day,

we will see the extent of the discount for the previous year ?-A. Yes.
Q. Ifl go to Quebec on Monday I can see it, and point out the extract for you

to produce on Wednesday in the Committee ? Could you do that?-A. If you wish
to go into the account further than as relating to this $100,000.

Q. I want to go into the account back to the lst of May, 189) ?-A. I vould
lot like to do that unless the Committee ordered it. I desire to avoid bringing the

book and submitting it to contidential examination here.

By the Chairman;
Q. How would you connect it with the enquiry now ?
The COUNsEL.-I could not tell until I saw the entries. I suppose Mr. Webb

could tell in a quarter of an hour what these entries refer to?
The WITNEss.-I do not see how it is possible, the entries prior to the discount

Can refèr to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.
The COUNsEL.-(To Witness.) You would do whatever the Committee directs

you?
The WITNEs.-Yes.
The COUNsEL.-Mr. Chairman, I desire to call your attention to a series of dates

before I began the examination of Mr. Armstrong. On the 23rd of April the Order
in Council was passed which has been mentioned. On the same day the Order in
Council was passed naming Mr. Chrysostome Langelier as Commissioner. On the 28th
of April the letter of credit for $100,000 (Exhi bit 31) was issued. On the same day
the letter of credit for $75,000 (Exhibit 16) was issued. On the saine day there was
a meeting at the St. Louis Hotel, when the cheque for $24.000 was handed to Mr.
*lRobitaille. On the 28th of' April there were three cheques drawn on La Banque
Nationale (Exhibits 15a, 15b, 15c) for $31,750, $24,000 and $16,000. We have the
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history of the $24,000 cheque from Mr. Armstrong. On the 29th of April the letter
of credit for $75,000 was discounted by La Banque Nationale. On the 29th of April
tive cheques, each for $20,000, were drawn on the Union Bank by J. C. Langelier,
Commissaire (Exhibit 28a to 28e). The first of these (Exhibit 28a) was the
cheque which went to La Banque du Peuble, in Quebec. The second of these (Exhibit
28b) was the cheque which went to La Banque Nationale. The other three cheques
(Exhibit 28-'). 28d, 28e,) were held on collection from Mr. Pacaud, and when paid
were placed to bis credit at the Union Ban k. One of these cheques, being the one
marked No. 5, was the one which Pacaud took to Montreal to La Banque du Peuple
there, with this letter (Exhibit 31), and tried to have discounted there, but failed.
On the 30th of April the Order in Council (Exhibit No. 17) were forwarded to La
Banque Nationale by the Assistant Treasurer of the Province of Quebec. Mr. Machin,
in a letter from him. On the 30th of April a letter was written by the same
gentleman, the Assistant Treasurer of the Province of Quebec, enclosing the Orders
in Council to the Union Bank to Mr. Valliere, who, it will be renemberedendorsed
the note to La Banque du Peuple, agreeing to pay the $20,000 cheque of J. C.
Langelier, Commissaire. endorsed by C. N. Armstronz and Vallière, when the letter
of eredit was paid and the proceeds placed to Ur. Langelier's credit. On the 6th of'
May, Mi. Dumoulin, of La Banque du Peuple, reported to his cashier the $20,000
discount in a letter; we have the full letter and extract (Exhibits 26 and 27). On
the 6th of' May, Mr. Carrier's note for $400, due on that day, was retired in La
Banque (lu Peuple. On the 6th May, Carrol's note for $150, due on the 8th of May,
was retired in La Banque du Peuple. On the6th Mav Mr. Deschene's note for $150,
not due until the 31st May, was retired in La Banque du Peuple. On the 1lth of
May, the Langelier note for $1,000, which was not due until the 3rd of June, was
retired in La Banque du Peuple. On the 15th of May the $20,000 note was dis-
counted by La Banque Nationale. - On the 16th May, (we have not that letter here)
a letter was written by the Union Bank to La Banque Nationale similar to the letter
to La Banque du Peuple. On the 16th May the letter of the cashier of the Union
Bank to La Banque du Peuple of Montreal was written (Exhibit 32); that is the
letter which we have spoken of this evening, and which Mir. Pacaud took to Montreal
with the hope of diseounting. On the 16th May the Union Bank wrote to J. C.
Langelier, Commissioner, that the bank held the $100,000 letter of' credit. and pointing
out that they held that letter of cr'edit on collection (Exhibit 33). On the 9th of
July the letter of credit for $100,000 was paid. On the 10th of July the three cheques
which were held for collection (Exhibits 28c, 28d, 28e,) were paid. On the 10th of
July the $75,000 letter of credit was paid. On the lth of July the letter of credit
for $100,000 matured. On the 11th July the two cheques (Exhibits 28a, 28b), each
for $20,000, were paid. Of these cheques, one was held by La Banque Nationale
and the other by La Banque du Peuple, and they were paid by the Union Bank.

ELLIOTT WEBB recalled and examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants.
Q. Does the Quebec Government deposit Dominion subsidies in your bank ?-

A. No.
Q. In what bank do they deposit?-A. In the Bank of Montreal.
Q. The Bank of' Montreal, at Quebec ?-A. I think so.
q. Do you know on what day the Dominion subsidies become due ?-A.

Generally on the lst Januar-y and the lst July.
Q. How were you paid that $100,000 ?-A. A portion of it was a cheque on

the Bank of Montreal, and I think the balance a cheque on our-selves.
Q. Hlow much on the Bank of Montreal ?-A. I do not know; I could get the

amount by referring to the books.
Q. Was it a considerable amount ?-A. Large amount,-yes.
Q. That came out of the Dominion subsidy ?-A. I could not say.
Q. Did it apparently corne out of the Dominion subsidy ?--A. 1 could not say

at alil.
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Q. Was anything said in connection with the Dominion subsidy which was
falling due on the lst July to indicate that it had anything to (1o with the date on
which the letter of credit was made payable ?-A. Yes; in asking Mr. Machin why
he made the letter payable on the 10th July, instead of earlier in the month, he said
that the Dominion subsidy was not always paid on a certain day, and sometimes it
vas the third, fourth or fifth of July, and he wanted to have time to receive it before

the letter of credit would mature.
Q So that Pacaud's $60,000 appare.ntly came out of the Dominion sibsidy ?-

A. I can only say that the Assistant Treasurer wished to make the letter payable
on the 10th of July, so that he would have the Dominion subsidy in, before he would
get the letter of credit matured.

Q. What did Pacaud say about the Dominion Government subsidy ?--A. I don't
think he said anything about it.

Q. Did any of the other gentlemen who came to see you speak of the Dominion
Government subsidy ?-A Not that I remember.

Q. Are you sure it was the Bank of Montreal at Quebec that paid you that
amount on the letter of credit !-A. As far I remember, the greater portion, or pro-
bably about $70,000 or $80,000, was on the bank of Montr-eal, and the balance on our-
selves. J would not be positive.

Q. Did the Bank of Montreal pay that $75,000 or $80,000 by draft on their head
office ?-A. I could not say that. The cheque was issued by the Treasurer of the
Province on the Bank of Montreal, Quebec, in our favour.

Q. The cheque was signed by Mr. Machin ?-A. Yes, I believe so.
Q. Did you sec Mr. Machin about this cheque ?-A. No.
Q. Did he say anything more about Dominion subsidy after you got the cheque

from him ?-A. No.
Q. How did the cheque reach you ?-A. I telephonod him and asked him if

I would send up the letter of credit. That was on the 9th of July. the day befbre it
matured, and he said to send it up, and he thought the cheque would be issued to-
morrow. That was the 10th.

Q. By whom ?-A. By the provincial treasurer of his assistant. The cheque
was sent down by his messenger and to the batik and the letter of credit surrendered.

Q. Now the difference between $75,000 or whatever the sum was that was re-
ceived from the Bank of Montreal, was held in your own bank ?-A. I think so.

Q. Whe. e did that money come from-what fund was that ?-A. I could not
say. They very often have a current deposit account with us, there was no special
funud.

Q. You could tell us by the books, I suppose ?-A. I could tell what batik the
cheque was upon that formed this deposit creating the balance at their credit.

Q. Explain that more fully?-A. In making a deposit with us they would pro-
bably give us a cheque on some other bank-probably the Bank of Montreal, as it
did the greater portion of their businiess. The accounst had been running for some
time with us and cheques had been drawn against it every day or two. It was a
balance at their credit, and, owing us, I believe they diew a choque on ourselves for
part of the amount and gave us the cheque oF the Bank of Montreal to make up the
amount of the $100,000.

Q. Now I fully understand it, do J, Mr. Webb-that this letter of credit was
drawn payable on such a day-what day ?-A. On or before the 10th of July.

Q. Having regard to the fact that the Dominion Government would have placed
the Provincial Government in funds by that day with which the Provincial Govern-
ment could retire their letter of credit ?-A. That is as J understand it.

The COUNSEL-I desire permission from the Chairman authorizing me to ex-
amine this account showing what the witness has just said as fully as I desire.

The CHAIRMAN-I think you are right. I will give the direction that questions
asked on that point shall be answered.

The CounsEL-I desire also that Mr. Cockburn and an expert book-keeper ac-
ceptable to Mr. Webb shall join with me in making these searches. I would name
as the accountant Mr. King, Manager of the Ontario Bank, Montreal.
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The CHIAIRMAN-Is that acceptable to the witines.s ?
The WITNEss-I would rather the investigation should not take place, but I re-

cognize the authority of the Committee.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum-1 understand that this witness is not willing
to do anything, but that he is ready to obcy the orders of the Committee. Is that
the case ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :

Q. Do you reinember the date of the Dominion elections? The 5th of March is
it not ?-A. I presume it was about that day.

Q. Was there any discount granted by your bank to Mr. Pacaud about, that
time ?-A. I presume several discounts went through about that time.

Q. To what amount in round figures-100,000 ?-A. No; not nearly that aniount.
Q. How much, fifty or sixty thousand ?-A. No; not in discounts.
Q. Did lie get any large advances from the bank ?-A. I think not.
Q. Were any advances made to anyone for which Mr. Pacaud was responsible

in any way ?-A. i don't think there were any for large amounts. I know of nothing
but some discounts he nay have got about that time but not for very large amounts.

CHARLEs N. ARMSTRONG, recalled and further exaniined by Mr. Barwick, counsel
for opposants.

Q. I asked you the other day if you remembered a document which had been
distributed in the Quebec Legislature, during last session. Do you remember my
asking you ?-A. You arked me whether I had circulated a document with reference
to a bill proposed for the cancelling of railway charters.

Q. Is this the document I was referring to ? (document produced.)-I do not
know what document you refer to, but this does not seem to have anything to do
with that. It is called the reply of The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to the
Report of the Special Commissioner, Mr. Chrysostome Langelier.

Q. And protesting aigainst the passing of the legislation which was introltuced
at that session ?-A. I do not know. I had nothing to do with the document.

Q. Now, Mr. Armstrong, we will go down to New York. You told us the other
day that you had left Mr. Pacaud in New York ?-A. Yes.

Q. Where was the meeting ?-A. In the Brunswick Hotel.
Q. Who were there ?-A. Mr. Charles Langelier, Mr. Robidoux, Mr. Thom and

myself.
Q. Anyone else ?-A. There may have been one other of the local ministers, but

I do not remember.
Q. Mr. Mercier ?-A. No, he was on his way to Europe.
Q. Who was the other minister ?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. But there was another one ?-A. Mr. Boyer was to have been there, but ho

had left the evening before.
Q. Mr. Mercier had gone to England ?-A. To England and France.
Q. How long had he gone before that meeting ?--A. A day or two before.
Q. Were you in New York when Mr. Mercier was there ?--A. No sir.
Q. You came in response to a telegram afterwards ?-A. Yes, I was only there

one day.
Q. How did you learn that the arrangement with John J. Macdonald had fallen

through ?-A. I was to be a party to that arrangement, and when I met Mr. Macdo-
nald and Mr. Cameron, with Mr. Robitaille, in Quebec, as I supposed to close the
arrangement, they could not agree and the thing fell through.

Q. They did not agree on the ainount the old cornpany was to get ?-A. Yes.
Q. They only desired to give the old company $50,000 out of the $280,000, but

the old company wanted $75,000 ?-A. I knew nothing about the terms of the



arrangement, between the old company and the others except in a general way. I
Was not interested in the amount they were to receive.

Q. But that was what the difference was over ?-A. I believe it was eventually
a matter of $25,000 between Mr. Robitaille and Mr. Riopel, as representing the com-
pany. and Mr. McDonald and Mr. Cameron.

Q. Then that arrangement fell through ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where was that meeting ?-A. In the St. Louis Hotel.
Q. Was Mr. Pacaud there ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Was he in Quebec ?-A. I dont know, I think he was.
Q. What was the date of that meeting ?-A. I think probably it would be about

the end of January, possibly the tirst week in February. I rather think in January.
Q. That was shortly after the Quebec Legislature had closed ?-A. I am not sure

when the legislature elosed; it would be about the same time probably.
Q. How long after that meeting did you go to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. It may have

been the sane day or the day after. Very shortly after.
Q. When you found the arrangement was off you went to Pacaud ?-A. Hie

happened to come into the hotel and I spoke to him them-I did not go after him.
Q. Be kind enough to tell us the conversation ?-A. As 1 told you before it was

very short. I told him that the matter seemed to have fallen through with Mc-
Donald & Cameron and it was a pity to leave everything in that state, and I asked
further, if others were found to take up the work and do the work would the Govern-
ment be prepared to deal with them on the same terms as they would have done with
Messrs. Macdonald & Cameron. His answer was that ho had no doubt that if they
Were responsible people able to carry out the undertaking successfully the Govern-
ment would deal with them.

Q. Is that all ?-A. Practically all, I do not know of anything more.
Q. Be kind enough to tell us the history of your arrangement with Mir. Pacaud ?

-A. Well the arrangement was very simple as [ told you. I have always said in my
evidence that we had two or three interviews. I do not know at what particular
interviews we tinally agi-ced as to bis share of the money, but I asked him on what
terms he would obtain a settlement of the matter, and lie told me he would do it for
$100O,00.

Q. What was this interview ?-A. I have said, I am not sure which interview
it was. It may have been In Quebec or in Montreal. I incline to think in Montreal.
I don't think there was anything said in Quebec as to the payment. But I am not
sure.

Q. To whom did you repoit Mr. Pacaud's Vrice ?-A. To no person.
Q. Then you souglit to get up a new syndicate ?-A. Yes.
Q. What else occurred between you and Mr. Pacaud before you were summoned

to New York ?-A. As i have said, I had one or two interviews with him and he
Could not give me any definite answer until he knew the other person had really
given up the idea of going on with the matter. Finally, as Mr. Mercier was leaving
for Europe, and as most of the Ministers were going to absent themselves, it was
lecessary to oreto some decision in the matter. He told me then that unless Mir.
Macdonald would decide within a very few days as to what he would do in the matter
they would consider their arrangement off anid would go on with the new syndicate.

- Q. Within how soon afterwards did you learn that it was off and that the
arrangement was going through ?-A. A few days-three or four days.

Q. That was just before Mr. Mercier was going to England ?-A. No; after he
had left.

Q. Did you learn in New York ?-A. No; after my retui-n from New York.
Q. IU Montreal or Quebec ?-You don't remember that ?-A. I believe I

explained before that I got the telegram from New York, from Mr. Pacaud, that
they were now prepared to close with a new syndicate.

Q. How long was that before you went down ?-A. It was after I went down. I
left Mi. Pacaud in New York and came back to Montréal.

Q. Whom had he to arrange the matter with ?-A. I know nothing about that.
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Q. You left him to make the arrangements ?-A. That was his part of the
business.

Q. Your part was to sec that ho got $100,000 ?-A. My part was to give him
8100,000 out of what I got.

Q. You met Mr. Pacaud just before the Order in Council was passed-the
Order in Council we were speaking of when you were being examined?-A. I met
him several times.

Q. And I suppose your company put in a formal application to be approved as
the company to build the road ?-A. I had nothing to do with that.

Q. Mr. Thom did that ?-A. He represented the syndicate.
Q. le put in an application ?-A. Yes; you read it here.
Q. We read it from the Order in Council ?-A. You rend a copy of the applica-

tion, which formed the basis of the Order in Council.
Q. You knew of the application being put in ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You knew there was a delay in passing it?-A. I don't think it was delay

about passing the Order in Council. I think the delay was principally after tho
Order in Council, in providing the money.

Q. The Order in Council was dated the 23rd of April, and the money was not
provided until the 29th ?-A. The Order, I believe, was passed on the 21st, and
signed by the Giovernor on the 23rd.

Q. The report to the Governor was made on the 21st, and approved on the
23rd, and the money was not forthcoming until the 29th ?-A. The 28th, I think.

Q. You will remember it was the 29th ?-A. I believe it was after bank hours,
late on the 28th.

Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you about his efforts to have this matter put
through and the money made forthcoming?-A. There was little said to him about
bis efforts in putting the inatter through. J know he was running about with
reference to the letter of ciedit, but I did not bother my head about that.

Q. He was running forward and backward to Garneau ?-A. Not that I know
of. I think he was running about among the banks more.

Q. Did not he describe to yoi bis visits and interviews with Garneau ?-A. No.
Q. As to the name of Mr. Carrell. When we were speaking of that we got hold

of the wrong Carrell?-A. I told you I did not know anything about Carrell.
Q. You remember Mr. Tarte's name being there ?-A. That is the only name

I remem ber.
Q. And you described this piece of paper that Mr. Pacaud had in his hand ?-A.

I described it as a sheet of ordinaryize note paper.
Q. Now, tell us what was said about this list ?-A. There was a good deal of

impatience on the part of both Mr. Thom and myself at being kept so long in Que-
bec after the Order in Council was past. Mr. Pacaud also seemed to be impatient
about it, and on one occasion, while talking to us, he said it was too bad to keep us
waiting, and ho said it was vory awkward to him, too, as ho had large sums to meet.
He ha:1the sheet of paper in his hand. I think he said the amount was $58,000,
and he said: " See here, these things I have to pay," and he showed me the sheet,
there were about a dozen names on it. I did not notice it particularly, but [ saw
Mr. Tarte's name; it was a short name and seemed to stand by itself. I happened
to notice that, but there were quite a number of other names-I suppose a dozen of
them.

Q. What other names did you notice ?-A. I do not remember. I paid very
little attention ; it was done in a moment.

Q. How did be connect Mr. Mercier's name with the list ?-A. He did not con-
nect it with the list in any way.

Q. Did any one ?-A. Not to my knowledge, except what has been said here.
Q. Did ho mention Garneau's name ?-A. He mentioned no names. He simply

said : It is too bad to be kept waiting when I have all these to pay. He held out the
list for a second before me, but he did not show it to me to look at attentively.

Q. Did you have any conversatio.n with him after that ?-A. Not on that subject.
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Q. Did he tell you anything about retiring these debts ?-A. le never said any-
thing to me at any time about having any special sum for any person, nor did he
mention any person's iame.

Q. The only information you got was from that list ?-A. That was a mere
glance.

Q. You remember putting your name on these five cheques (cheques produced)?
-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now these cheques (Exhibits 28a, 28b, 28c, 28d, 28e) are cheques for $20,000
each ?-A. Yes.

Q. Dated the 29th April ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And marked payable the 10th of July ?--A. I noticed the 10th of July

marked on them.
Q. They are all drawn by J. C. Langelier, commissaire, the gentleman named in

the Oider in Council ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And are payable to C. N. Armstrong or order ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. These five cheques make $100,000 of the subsidies ?-A. Of the sum I

received.
Q. Ont of the $2E0,000 ?-A. Out of the $175,000.
Q. Which was part of the $280,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where were these cheques drawn ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Did I describe correctly the other day where you came to endorse them ?-

A. I do not ciow how you described that. I told you I received them from Mr.
Langelier. I endorsed them in Mr. Pacaud's office, in Quebee.

Q. Where is the office ?-A. The office of L'Electeur, on Mountain Hill.
Q. In the private sanctum of the editor ?-A. Yes ; " the holy of holies."
Q. Who took the cheques there ?-A. I went into the private office with Mr.

Pacaud and endorsed them there.
Q. And handed therm to him ?-A. In that room-yes.
Q. This is the first time yon have seen them since ?-A. I saw thom this

miorning.
Q. But you had not seen them since until then ?-A. No, sir.
Q. That was the $100,000 you paid as your part of the bartgain ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, we will go to La Banque Nationale. This is the $24.000 cheque

(Exhibit 15b) which you spoke of iii your evidence the other day ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is a cheque drawn by Mr. Langelier, commissioner and deputy regis-

trar of the province ?-A. I think so.
Q. The Commissioner named in the Order in Council ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is a cheque for $24,000 payable to C. N. Armstrong, and not payable to

La Banque Nationale until the first of May ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. It is endorsed C. N. Armstrong ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is the cheque you gave to Mr. Robitaille ?-A. Yes, sir. I am not sure

I handed it to him or whether Mr. Thom did.
Q. That is the cheque you and Mr. Thom took to Mr. Robitaille's room ?-A.

I think we went together. I have already explained that.
Q. Yo went there with the cheque for $24,000 to get the transfer of this stock

and got it ?-A. EitherI or Mr. Thoni got it.
Q. And brought it away ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you know who brought the transfer away ?-A. No, I do niot remember

anyniore than I did yesterday.
Q. That $24,000 was part of the subsidy of $280,000 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And that was part of the $75,000 which had to come out of the subsidy in

order to give to the old directors ?-A. No, sir.
Q. The old shareholders ?-A. I have denied that it was intended for them or

paid to them. I loaned that cheque to Mr. Thom.
Q. Did you loan a cheque (Exhibit 15a) for $31,750 to Mr. Thom aiso ?--A.

Yes. At least a portion of it. He got the cheque cashed and paid certain amounts
for me.
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Q. How much did lie pay ?-A. le has been paying ever since.
Q. Have you any memorandum showing the amounts ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you it hore ?--A. No ; it is in Montreal.
Q. How much does he owe you still on that cheque ?-A. I have not charged

that cheque specially, I have charged the whole amount and given credit against it.
They have probably $25,000 or $30,000 to pay to me.

Q. On that ?-A. On the whole transaction.
Q. So he owes you $24,000 on this cheque (Exhibit 15b) and part of this

$31,750 ?-A. I say there is that amount on the whole transaction of $71,750.
Q. Then the other cheque for $16,000 (Exhibit 15c), you loaned that to Mr.

Thom too ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who asked you to loan the money to him ?-A. Perhaps I had botter explain

the whole transaction.
Q. One question. This 316,000 went to Mr. Rliopel, did it not ?-A. It probably

was paid to Mr. Riopel by Mr. Thom, but not directly by me. In order to close the
matter with the Quebec Government on behalf of the syndicate, Mr. Thom was
obliged to show that the majority of the stock of the company was held by the syn-
dicate and that they had complete control of the charter and property of the coi-
pany. To save delay by Mr. Thom having to roturn to Montreal and get money
there, I suggested that the money I had could be used for that purpose, and they
could refund it. It was part of the arrangement with the syndicate that certain obli-
gations which I had in connection with the railway should be paid out of the
$175,000 which I was receiving, I had told thom that these obligations amounted to
something like $25,000 and to satisfy them that the obligations would be paid I sug-
gested that the money should be placed in their hands for the purpose and thatthey
should pay them directly thomselves, and as they had no means ofknowing whether
that was the correct amount I had no objection to putting a much larger sun in
their hands, temporarily, until they were satisfied that my obligations on the Une
were paid. That accounts for my placing in the hands of Mr. Thom this amount of
money. Out of the moneys which he held in that manner he began to pay at once
different claims besides given me sums of money from time to time, as I required
it. There has been no final settlement because some of the claims are not paid.
Some are disputed and not quite sottled, but I want to say here in the most distinct
manner, that cvery dollar of that $75,000 has either been paid directly to me on my
account or will be paid to me and belongs absolutely and exclusively to me. Not
one dollar of it has been paid or is to be paid either to the old or to the new share-
holde:s of the company, it is mine absolutely.

Q. About how much balance is due now ?-A. Speaking roughly, $25,000 or
330,000. I may say I had given some orders upon the company-transfers-which
are not paid yet, which are not quite ascertained and which may diminish that
amount. Though it will be paid on my account it will not be paid actually to me.

Q. You provided the $75,000, to pay it to the old shareholders ?-A. No.
Q. You loaned the $75,000 ?-A. Excuse me, the only amounts paid to the old

shareholders at that time were $40,000, the balance $35,000 was provided by the
new shareholders themselves. I have had nothing at all to do with that.

Q. You provided $40,000 ?-A. $40,000 of the amount placed in my hands by
Mr. Thom went towards the payment of the old shareholders.

Q. Where did the balance go ?-A. Well, sums were paid on my account and a
balance is still due me.

Q. Where will you find a complete record of your position with Mr. Thom ?-
A. I think there are no books. Mr. Thom could give that.

Q. Can you give it ?-A. I could get the amounts given on my account.
Q. Where would you go to get the infoemation ?-A. I have a statement of the

amount I receivd-I have a memo.
Q. Where is that ?-A. In Montreal. I can get it.
Q. The last of these cheques, Exhibit 15e for $2.250 is drawn in favor of James

Cooper by J. C. Langelier ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Why was it drawn in favor of Cooper ?-A. I (o not know, I have nothing
to do with drawing that cheque, but at that time I received the $71,750 I author-
ized Mr. Langelier to pay the balance when he had it, to Mr. Thom on behalfof the
syndicate. The cheque is dated the 13th of July, and by that time Mr. Cooper
having become President of the company and head of the syndicate Mr. Langelier
seems to havepaid him the $2,250.

Q. Did you direct him to pay that ?-A. I gave him a direction at the time he
paid me $71.750. I told him in the Banque Nationale, that I expected to have the
cheques for the $75,000, and hiad already signed the receipt for the full amount, and
I think Mr. Langelier expected to get the full amount also from the bank. When
the manager held back the $3,250, Mr. Langelier was unable to pay me the full
amount.

Q. Previous to that you had signed a receipt in full of your claim and went to
the bank with Mr. Langelier and Thom, expecting to get $75,000 from Mr. Lange-
lier ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the bank prcferred holding back a sum sufficient to cover -the interest ?
-A. There was more as I explained yesterday than the amount of the interest.
The Manager seemed to be doubtful whether the letter of credit would be paid at its
due date and on that account thought we would have to wait longer. That was the
explanation he gave, at all events.

Q. Why did you pay Mr. Pacaud $100,000 ?-A. Well on the principle that half
a loat is better than no bread.

By the Hon. Mr. MicCallum:

Q. You did not get half itself ?-A. I got a little less than one-half.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. Who was to repay you the $100,000 ?-A. I said good-bye to it when I gave
it.

Q. You were clean out of that amount ?-A. Well, more than that. I should have
received more than $175,000. That was a compromise.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. What do you mean by saying that half a loaf is better than no bread ?-A.

Well, I could not get the full amount due. I had been trying for over a year, and
the prospects were getting worse, and I thought I would get what I could, what I
Was going to get out of it. That is the way I looked at it.

By Mr. Barwick.:
Q. Why did you pay Mr. Pacaud $100,000 ?-A. In order to get a settlement so

that I could get anything at all out of the noneys I invested in these works, I was
obligedi to treat with Mr. Pacaud.

By the Hon. 3r. Miller:

Q. Why were you obliged to treat with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Well, he seemed to be
the best person to deal·with down there.

Q. It was as representing the Government ?-A. No.

By Mfr. Barwick:

Q. As representing whom ?-A. As representing me.

By the Ron. Mr. Tassé:
Q. With whom?-A. Well, his dealings were with the Government, of course.

I do nlot think it is fair to say he represented the Government.

By the Hon. 3fr. MfcMfillan:

Q. He was a go-between ?-A. Well, that is the best way to put it, perhaps.
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By Mr. Barwick :

Q. He was the man who had influence ?-A. Well, I do not know that it was
entirely a question of influence.

Q. Was h not the accredited intermediary between you and the Governnent ?
-A. No, sir, I had nothing to do with the Government.

Q. Where was this money to come from ?-A. Well of course the Government
got it from the vote of the Legislature.

Q. Was he acting as agent ?-A. My claim was against the company, not against
the Government. The company was not in a position to settle my claim.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. That was the old company ?-A. It was the old company at the time. The
G.overiment retused practically to have anything to do with the company, and had
for a long time, and the conpany was in the position of being tinable to go on with
its work and .unable to pay me. The matter was going on in that way for nearly a
year, the company saying it was impossible to do anything, so I thought it was the
best plan to seek out and get somebody who could go on with the work. I was
approached then by the Managing Director and asked if I would agree to a compro-
mise on ny claim, so that they could offer the enterprise to somebody else.

By the lon. Mr. Power :

Q. Who was the Managing Director ?-A. Mr. Riopel. I then agreed to accept
$75,O00, $50,O00 in cash, and $25,000 in claims, already referred to, which they would
pay. That seemed satisfactory to Mr. Riopel, and on that basis be commenced
negotiations with Macdonald & Cameron, though I was not then aware with whom.
These negotiations finally fell through, Ao I undertook to get other partiesto take it.
It was practically to carry out the same arrangement as propoposed through Mac-
donald & Cameron. I thought ot Mr. Cooper-at that time in Europe-knowinmg that
lie was well up in railway matters and had the necessary capital. On his return I
immediately laid it before him. Before that I laid it before Mr. Thom, Mr. Cooper's
confidential man. It was explained to Mr. Cooper, and he thought the matter looked
satisfactory, and I then went on with the arrangements.

By the lion. Mr. Power :

Q. When you say you explained the arrangements that could be made, did you
say anything to Mr. Cooper about paying $100,000 ?-A. The question of $100,000
had not come up then at all. The land subsidy had been voted, and I was satisfied
that satisfactory arrangements could be made.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. How came you to go to Mr. Pacaud as an internediary ?-A. I knew that he
had been acting as an intermediary between Mesirs Macdonald & Cameron and the
Governîment, and my intention was to carry out the same arrytngement.

By the Hion. 1r. McCallum:

Q. Through the same channel ?-A. Through the same channel.

By Mr. Barwick :

Q. The Government were threatening to fo~rfeit the charter ?-A. They had
actually passed a Bill aimed specially at that company. The whole matter was in a
very bad shape to go on with-in fact, impossible.

Q. Your Bill passed was an amendment to the General Railway Act, giving the
Local Government power to forfeit the charter by Order in Council ?-A. I think it
was a special Bill.
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Q. But it took power to forfeit the Baie des Chaleurs charter by order in Coun-
cil ?-A. It took power to cancel any charter granted hy the Local Legislature, by
giving 15 days notice in the Gazette.

Q. And was well understood to be aimed at the Baie des Chaleurs Railway?-
A. Mr. Mercier gave as an instance-the Baie (les Chaleurs and the Montreal and
Sorel Railway:.

By the Ron. Mr. Tassé:

Q. That law still exists ?-A. Yes; I may say, as I understood it at the time,
that the main object of the old Company applying for a charter here was to put
themselves out of the influence of the Local Legislature, so that they could not
have the charter taken away at a moment's notice.

Q. And outside the influence of Mr. Pacaud ?-A, Well, Mr. Pacaud had no
special influence in conneetion with legislation.

Q. Had you used Mr. Pacaud as an intermediary before with the Local Govern-
ment ?-A. Well, hardly as an intermediary. le had looked after the payment of
some suibsidies foi me in connection with the samo road.

Q. HIow much had you to pay him out of those subsidies ?-A. An ordinary
commission, amounting to 2½- per cent. probably.

Q. On how much did you pay Mr. Pacaud 2ý per cent. ?-A. I do not remem ber
the exact aniount. I dare say the commissions paid amounted probably to $15,000,
stretched over two or three years time.

By the Hon. Mfr. Tassé:

Q. That is before the $100,000 was paid ?-A. I had nothing to do with the
$100,000.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. So Mii-. Pacaud has cost you $115,C00 ?-A. Well, if you lilke to put it that
'way.

Q. That is abouti it ?-A. That is about it.
Q. Have you uot any subsidies as to any other road besides the Baie des Cha-

leurs Railway ?-A. I have been interested in one or two other lines-the Great
Eastern Railway.

Q. The Monti-eal and Sorel Railway ?-A. I had no pei-sonal interest in that
further than being a shareholder. I was not the contractor. It received one sub-
sidy of $112,500.

Q. What did Mr. Pacaud get out of that?-A. le had nothing to do with that.
Q. Had any other road with which you were connected a right to subsidies out

of which M-. Pacaud got anything ?-A. No, J think not.
Q. Do you know anything of Mr. Pacaud getting commissions out of any other

subsidies besides what you menuioned ?-A. Nothing but hearsay.
Q. What subsidies is he supposed to have got commissions out of ?-A. I would

lot like to say anything about mere hearsay.

The Committee adjourned.
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SENATE COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
WEDNESDAY, 19th August, 1891.

Hon. Mr. TAss.-Before we proceed with the evidence I think it is but fair to
a gentleman who was referred to in the evidence the other day by a bank manager,
that 1 should read the following telegram, published in the Montreal Star of
Saturday

ST. THoMAS STATION, Que., 15th August.

I see in your paper of last night that your reporter wiresi from Ottawa that it
was stated that some of my notes were redeemed with 13aie des Chaleurs money.
Thi.' is positively untrue. Will you please publish this denial ? The statement,
if made before the Committee, is erroneous, and I an prepared to go before the
Committee and deny on oath that such is the case.

L. P. PELLETIER.

ELLIOTT E. WEi3BB reculled and further examined by Mr. Barwiek, counsel 'or
Opposants.

Q. You have already been sworn ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In your evidence when you were here last you spoke of a Mr. Pelletier, and

I understand that you have found that you were mistaken ?-A. I think that the
Comtrittee will remember that at that time I could not give the initiais of the Mr.
Pelletier I named, whose name I said was on this paper but I thought it was L. P.
Pelletier. I stated at the tine that I could not say positively without referring to
the books. I have since referred to the books and I find that the name is that of
Mr. C. A. P. Pelletier, and I would like to correct my evidence to that extent.

THE CoUNSEL.-I desire to call your attention, Mr. Chairman, to a series of
dates before I go on with the evidence. On the 23rd of April the Order in Council
printed at page 34 of the printed minutes, a copy of which has been put in, marked
Exhibit " 13 " was passed. Oni the 29th of April the two letters of credit for $100,000
and $75,000 were issued. On the 29th of April the $75,000 letter of'credit was
discounted by La Banque Nationale. On the 29th of' April, the next day, the five
cheques for $20,000 each were signed, Exhibit " 28A," one of choques for $20,004
having been delivered to La Banque du Peuple and the second (" 28B ") having
been to La Banque Nationale. The others ("280," "28D," "28E ") were held by the
Union Bank on collection for Mr. Pacaud. On the 6th of May the note of Mr.
Pacaud, endorsed by Mr. Vallière, was discounted by La Banque du Peuple, and
accompanying that note on the 6th May was one of these $20,000 cheques (" 26A").
On the 15th of May a Pacaud note was disconted by La Banque Nationale, and
accompanying it was one of these twenty thousand dollars choques ("28D").
On the 10th of July the letters of credit were paid. On the 6th of August there was
the statment for the first time in the Committee of what the opposants of the bill
desired to prove (See page 7 of the evidence). On the 6th of August Mr. Pacaud
got his choques from La Banque du Peuple. On the 7th of August he got his
choques from La Banque Nationale.

Q. Can yougive me the date when Mr. Pacaud got his choques from your bank.
the Union Bank ?-A. The early part of August ; I could not give you the exact
date.

Q. This is a copy of the receipt ?-A. Yes.
Document filed, Exhibit " 36."
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Q. Then Mr. Pacaud acknowledges the receipt of 93 cheques fron February
1891?-A. To July 1891.

Q. And 26 savings departments cheques from February 1890 to June 1891 ?-
A. Yes; signed Ernest Pacaud.

Q. So he had two accounts in your bank ?--A. Yes.
Q. One was the deposit ledger accouiit?-A. And the other the savings account.
Q. Ihe account we have here (Exhibit "35)." Is that a copy of tho deposit ledger

account ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you a copy of his savings bank account ?-A. i have it fron the date

of the discount.
Document produced and filed, Exhibit "37.".
Q. Exhibit " 35 " is the deposit ledger account beginning the 6th Jnly, which had

8 1,559 to his credit. On the 10th July ho deposited these three, twenty thousand
dollar eheqnes-three of the five-that is sixty thousand dollars he deposited. On
the next day aceording to this accouint (Exhibit " 35 ") ho withdrew $25,000. Whore
did he deposit that?-A. In the savings department.

Q. This is the acceount of his savings. He deposited in the savings bank account
$25,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. That was by withdrawal fron his deposit ledger account ?-A. Yes.
Q. le has withdrawn this $25,000 ?-A. Withdrawn it on the 10th of August.
Q. WVhat day of the week was the 10th of Augut-Monday of last week was it

not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now take Exhibit "35," this is Mr-. Pacaud's deposit ledger account ?-A.

Yes.
Q. To which he had credited the $60,000. The first entry on the debit side

showing a cheque withdrawn by Mr. Pacaud is as follows: July 1lth, cheque $500?-
A. Yes.

Q. What was that? Can yon tell me ?-A. No.
Q. You are unable to say; but it was apparently cash withdrawn ?-A. Appar-

ently.
Q. The next entry is $25,000. That is the $25,000 choque we have spoken of

deposited to the savings bank account ?-A. Yes.
Q. The next entry is a three thousand dollar choque, the next eight thousand

cheque, and the next five thousand eheque ?-A. Yes.
Q. On the first of May, 1891,you liad a note falling due in your bank which vas

retired by Mr. Pacaud, had you not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the maker of that note ?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. And who were the endorsers ?-A. Hon. Mr. Mercier, lon. F. Langelier,

lion. Charles Langelier and Senator C. A. P. Pelletier-85,000.
Q. On what date was that retired ?-A. On May lst.
Q. What is the date of the note ?-A. I have only the due date.
Q. This acecount which I hold ini my hands is also a portion of Mr. Pacaud's

ledger account, inicluding what we have in Exhibit " 35" ?-A. Yes.
Document filed Exhibit 38.
Q. So that in Exhibit "38 " we have all the information that is in Exhibit "35,"

but going back to a previous date ?-A. To a previous date.
Q. How was that note made by Mr. Pacaud and endorsed by the lon. Mr.

Mercier and the other gentlemen, retired ?-A. It was charged to Mr. Pacaud's
accoint.

Q. The first of May ?-A. Yes.
Q On the 13th July you had another note falling due in the bank, hadyou not?

-A. Ye-.
Q. The ainount of it was $5.000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the maker of that note?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. Who were the endorsers ?-A. The hon. Mi. Mercier, J. I. Tarte, Hon. C.

A. P. Pelletier and Hon. Charles Langelier.
Q. That is J. I. Tarte, M.P., C. A. P. Pelletier, Senator, and the Hon. Mr

Langelier, Piovincial Secretary ?-A. Yes.



54 Victona. Appendix (No. 2A.)

Q. What is the date of' that note ?-A. I have only the due date ; it was due on
the 13th July.

Q. Now that note fell due three days after the letters of credit were paid ?
-A. Yes.

Q. And how was that note paid ?-A. So far as it can be traced in the books of
the bank without the cheques it was paid by cheque of Mr. Pacaud's of the 11th
July for $5,000.

Q. That is, paid by cheque of Mr. Pacaud on his deposit ledger account ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the entry of the $5,000 is shown in Exhibit "38 "?--A. Yes.
Q. Here it is in the account (Exhibit "38 ") $5,000 ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé ;
Q. The note was paid before it was due ?-A. Two days before it matured.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:

Q. On what date ?-A. 1lth of July.
Q. The day after the letters of credit were paid ?-A. Yes.
Q, On the 14th of August you had a note for e3,000 maturing in your bank,

had you not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the maker of that note?-A. Mr. Pacand.
Q. And who were the endorsers ?-A. iHonourable Mr. Mercier and others.
Q. Can you tell me who the others were?-A. No; there is no mention in the

books of the bank. It is only entered in that way. Endorsers, Mr. Mercier and
others.

Q. Have you made enquiries anongst your staff to aseertain who these others
were ?-A. I have had the books examined and I cannot furnish any more inform-
ation.

Q. Now, that note fell due on the 4th of August ?-A. Yes.
Q. When was it retired ?-A. On the 11th of July.
Q. That is 24 days before it matured ?-A. Yes.
Q. And retired the day after the letters of credit were paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. Could you say how that was retired, sir ?-A. Apparently by cheque of Mr.

Pacaud's.
Q. Upon his deposit ledger aceount (Exhibit "38")?-A. Yes.
Q. And is that the entry I see in this account, $3,000, on July 11?-A. Yes.
Q. That is, a $3,000 cheque was drawn to take up this note 24 days before it

matured and on the day after Mr. Pacaud got bis $60,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And deposited his $60,000 to the credit of his deposit ledger account?-A.

Yes.
Q. On the 18th of May you had another note maturing in your bank ?-A. Yes.
Q. The amount of it ?-A. $5,000.
Q. Who was the maker ?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. And who were the endorsers ?-A. Honourable Mr. Mercier and others.
Q. Can you give me any more information as to who the others were than you

gave me in regard to the other endorsers of the note last mentioned?-A. No.
Q. That matuied on the 18th of May. When was it paid ?-A. On the 9th of

May.
Q. And how was it paid ?-A. By cheque on Mr. Pacaud's savings account.
Q. Have you a copy of the savings bank account here ?-A. Not up to that

-date.
Q. On the 14th of May you had another note maturing, had you not ?-A. Yes.
Q. For how much ?-A. $400.
Q. Who was the maker ?-A. J. I. Tarte.
Q. Is that Mr. J. I Tarte, M.P. ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the endorser ?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. When was that retired ?-A. On the 14th of May.
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Q. How ?-A. As far as I can ascertain by cash; I cannot say positively.
Q. You cannot say whether it was by cash or by cheque ?-A. Yes.
Q. These are the different notes, which wo find on searching your books, were

retired out of these moneys ?-A. Yes; as far as I have been able to trace them
through the bank books without the cheques.

Q. Which he got just before he left for Euiope ?-A. Yes.
Q. How many days before he left for Europe was it that lie got his cheques ?-

A. I cannot say ; a few days.
Q. Do you mean two or three days ?-A. Two or three days.
Q. The hundied thousand dollar letter of credit was offered to you for discount,

when ?-A. About the end of' April or the first of May.
Q. And offered by whom, Mr. Webb ?-A. Tho letter of credit was brought by

Mr. J. C. Langelier, Commissioner.
Q. And who else ?-A. He was the only person who brought the letter.
Q. Who came with him to the bank?-A. Nobody.
Q. And had he an interview with you on the subject of the discount ?-A. He

merely asked me to place it to his credit as Commissioner.
Q. Then you referred it to your board ?-A. I told him I would refer it to the

board. and if satisfactory, would place it to his credit.
Q. How long after that day did the transaction appear to you unsatisfactory ?-

A. Very shortly afterwat;ds.
Q. A few days ?-A. It may have been the next day.
Q. Will you be kind enough to tell me from whom you gainod the information

upon which you based the opinion that the transaction was not a satisfactory one
A. Frim Mr. Pacaud.

Q. W here had you the interview with Mr. Pacanud ?-A. In the bank.
Q. In the Union Bank?-A. In the Union Bank.
Q. Will you be kind enough to tell me what Mr. Pacaud said to you ?-A. He

said ho wished to have this letter discounted.
Q. Was that the first time you had seen Mr. Pacaud in connection with this

letter of credit ?-A. He may have been in before.
Q. That is the first conversation you recollect with Mr. Pacaud on the subject

of the letter of credit ? A. Yes.
Q. Now go on please ?-A. He brought in these five choques amounting to one

hundred thousand dollars and I advised him......well there may have been some
negotiations first as to the letter of credit. He brought in the cheques and I advised
him that I would have to subnit the matter and ho said he wished these choques to
be placed to his credit. I believe he wished to use a portion of them and to place
the balance to his credit.

Q. What portion did he say ho wished to use ?-A. I think ho asked for $20,000
or perhaps $40,000.

Q. To go to his private credit ?-A. To go to his account-yes.
Q. His deposit ledger or his savings account?-A. His deposit ledger account.
Q. That is Ernest Pacaud's private ledger account ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was the figure ho wanted to go to the credit of that account ?-A. I

think he asked for one or two of these cheques at that time.
Q. What else did ho say about it ?-A. He said ho would place the balance to

his credit with the bank if we discounted the letter of credit.
Q. That is ho would place to the credit of his deposit ledger account-his own

private account-the balance ?-A. The balance.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. Not his savings account?-A. Well, I think if I remember correctly he
wanted to place it on deposit receipt, to remain at his private credit for a time.

Q. That is the balance ?-A. Yes.
Q. Of $60,O00 ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Forty thousand to go to the credit of bis account ?-A. As I remember it,
yes.

Q. And what he proposed was that he would leave the balance on deposit
receipt ?-A. I think it was deposit receipt ho mentioned.

Q. Until after the letters of credit had been paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is a deposit receipt payable to Ernest Pacaud in his private capacity ?

-A. Yes.
Q. Was therc anything else said by Mr. Pacaud which you laid before your

Board in the consideration of refusing this transaction ?-A. He also mentioned that
he had some paper to retire from this amount ho required to use at once-this
$40,000, which was going to bis private ledger account.

Q. What did he say about that paper ?-He said that a portion of the paper
he would retire was in our bank, and I think a portion in other banks. I cannot
give the amount in our bank; he nay have mentioned it at the time. It was a
pencilled memorandum ho showed at the time of the conversation.

Q. About the size of half a sheet of note paper ?-A. It may have beein ; I
think so.

HON. Ma. POwER objected to the manner of asking questions, but the objection
was not sustained.

Q. Describe the meno ?-A. As far as I can remenmber, it was a small piece of
paper with pencilling on it giving the anounts he would pay, but I have not a clear
enough recollection of the paper to describe it fully.

Q. The size I have given, about half a sheet of note paper, is right, is it ?-A. It
was a small piece of paper.

Q. What was entered on that piece of paper ?-A. The several amounts of notes
which Mr. Pacaud was to retire. I do not renember the total arnount. I could not
give within a few thousands how much it was.

Q. You would not say $50,000 or $100,000 ?-I do not think it was as large as
$103,000.

Q. As large as $50,000?-A. I do not think so.
Q. In the neighbourhood of that, or in the neighbourhood of what?-A. I could

not speak positively.
Q. On that memo, was entered the paper vhich you thon held which was to be

retired ?-A. I presume so.
Q. And also the paper which was in the two other banks ?-A. That is as I

remember it. I think he mentioned the name of the Banque Nationale and the
Banque du Peuple; I do not remember the number of the pieces of paper to be
retired in these banks.

Q. Have you given nie all the description of that paper that you cai ?-A. Yes.
Q. Iow soon after this explanation from Mr. Pacaud had you another interview

with him ?-A. I presume it was the day after.
Q. What passed then ?-A. I cannot speak definitely as to the dates of the

interview, but as I remember, I advised him that we would not discount the letter of
credit.

Q. Was anyone with him?-A. No, I think not; he came again to me on the
same subject. It may have been the next day; he came in with Mr. Vallière. He
negotiated a discount of his note endorsed by Mr. Vallière for $20,000, by one of
these $20,000 choques, one of these five choques.

Q. What was your answer to that proposition ?-A. The bank declined having
anything to do with the transaction.

Q. The bank would not touch the transaction at ail ?-A. No.
Q. What were the circumstances which induced you to refuse the discouiit, other

than what you have told us ?-A. I know of no other.
Q. laving told Mr. Pacaud that you would not have anything to do with this

transaction at ail, was any other proposal made to your bank ?-A. Yes, he asked
me to give him a letter to Mr. Vallière, in the way of guaranteeing the loan, and I
told him we could not do that, but I would give him a letter undertaking to pay the

68

A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

cheques as soon as the letter of credit was paid and the amount placed to the crodit
of Mr. J. C. Langelier, as Commissioner.

Q. And you gave this letter in the way you described before?-A. Yes.
Q. What was the proposal made to you in regard to a series of entries to be

made in your books ?-A. Simply that he should have a portion of this money on
deposit until the letter of credit was paid, as I have already said.

Q. Was there any proposal made in regard to a series of entries to be made in
your books which would not have been true entries ?-A. Well, we considered the
discounting of the letter of credit without paying out the proceeds of the letter was
iiot exactlv a correct transaction.

MR. BARwICK-I Will repeat my question again.
Q. Was there any proposal made in regard to a series of entries to be made in

your books which would not have been truc entries ?-A. The proposition was to
discount the letter of credit and place it to the credit of J. C. Langelier, Commis-
sioner, to charge these cheques against it

Q. What cheques ?-A. These five $20,000 choques against il.
Q. As if they had been paid ?-A. As if they had been paid, and place a portion

of it to Mr. Pacaud's credit.
Q. Which he could draw at once ?-A. Yes. And the balance to remain on

deposit to be withdrawn after the letter of credit had been paid.
Q. That is Mr. Pacaud wanted you to give him $40,000 immediately and go

through the form of giving him the balance, whereas in fact he would not have got
the balance until that balance had been paid when the letter of credit was cashed ?-
A. He would not have drawn the balance.

Q. And to that proposition your bank would not lend itself?-A. No.
Q. That is why you refused the transaction ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who got the money for the four notes made by Mr. Pacaud and endorsed in

the way you have described, when they where discounted ?-A. So far as I remember
the proceeds went to Mr. Pacaud's deposit ledger credit.

Q. At what date ?-A. I am only speaking from memory.
Q. The proceeds of the discount went to Mr. Pacaud's credit account-is that a

fact ?-A. Yes.
Q. To whose credit did the proceeds of the Tarte note go, I mean the $400 note ?

-A. I could not say fron memory, but I presume it went to Mr. Pacaud's credit.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. With respect to that letter of credit, supposing it was perfectly good and

valid and you were sure of being paid, was not that equivalent to a deposit of money ?
-A. It was equivalent to a promissory note.

Q. Supposing the maker of the note vas good and the note was sure to be paid
would you consider that a dishonest transaction ?-A. We considered from what Mr.
Pacaud told us that we thought the money was not going to be applied as authorized
by the Order-in-Council.

Q. That is the reason you gave in your prcvious evidence; but I wish to elicit
if there -was anything wrong-anything dis honest in the proposition to cash the
letter of credit ?-A. Not at all in discounting the letter of credit.

By fr. Barwick :
Q. If it came to your knowledge that the money was being appropriated for the

purpose named in the Order-in-Council, you would have discounted it ?-A. Yes.
Q. But seeing that it was not, you refused ?-A. Yes.
Q. These are the five cheques (Exhibits 28-A, B, C, D and E) which were

brought to you before you learned this interesting story from Mr. Pacaud ?-A.
Yes. They were brought by Mr. Pacaud, endorsed by Mr. Armstrong, ready to be
cashed.

By Mr. F. Langelier Counsel for the Quebec Government
Q. I understand you to say that you are aware that not a cent of the proceeds
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of these notes went to the credit of the endorsers ?-A. I believe not. The whole of
it went to Mr. Pacaud's credit.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud apply to you when he got those notes ?-A. He applied to
me for the discount.

Q. Is it not a fact that those notes were discounted in order to raise money to
make deposits-did he not tell you that ?-A. I do not remember if he said that.
He kept an ordinary account and from time to time brought in notes.

Q. He simply wanted you to discount notes and place the proceeds to his credit?
A. I think so as I remember.

Mr. P. B. DUMOULIN, who had already been sworn, was re-called and examined by
Mr. Barwick:

Q. You have been already sworn ?-A. Yes.
Q. The 6th of May was the date of the diseount of the $20,000 note, secured by

ne cheque in your bank (Banque du Peuple) which has been produced and marked
28 A ?-A. Yes.

Q. On that day Mr. Pacaud drew three cheques against his account ?-A. Yes,
$5,000; $1,000, and $2,150-$8,150 in all.

Q. Those cheques are shown in your account, exhibit 23 ?-A. Yes.
Q. On the 8th of May, the Banque Nationale made a large deposit in yonr bank ?

-A.. Yes, this is a copy of the deposit slip (Exhibit 39).
Q. This deposit slip shows what the Banque Nationale sent in to you in the

ordinary course of business on the 8th of May ?-A. Yes.
Q. And there was a large amount deposited in your own currency ?-A. Yes,

$10,585 to the credit of the Banque Nationale.

PIERRE (;EoROE LAFRANCE, Cashier of the Banque Nationale in the city of Quebec,
Province ofQuebec, being sworn was examined by Mr. Barwick.

Q. As cashier of the Banque Nationale at Quebec, all important transactions
come under yourI knowledge ?-A. Yes.

Q. You have heard Mr. Dumoulin's evidence and this is the original deposit slip
made in your bank by the Banque du Peuple on the 8th of May ?-A. Yes.

Q. Now vou deposited-that is your bank deposited in the Banque du Peuple
$10,585 of the currency of the Banque du Peuple ?-A. Yes, that is so. I do not
know who made the deposit. I cannot swear positively that the note shown in this
slip (Exhibit 40) for 85,000 was paid, but I think it was paid by the Banque du
Peuple currency.

Q. And this slip is the credit slip in your bank ?-A. Yes, it was a past due note.
Q. Whose note ?-A. It was signed by Mr. Ernest Pacaud, endorsed by the Hon.

H. Mercier, Hon. François Langelier and Hon. Charles Langelier, and by the Hon.
C. A. P. Pelletier. The note is for $5,00 dated the 28 February for 2 months. This
is a copy of the note, and of the notarial protest.

Q. When was that note due ?-A. First of May.
Q. And was paid ?-A. On the 6th of May.
Q. And had been, protested ?-A. Had been protested.
Q. And this document shows that the usual form was gone through as provided

by the statute, and that due notice had been given to the parties ?-A. Yes.
Notarial protest filed, Exhibit 41.
Q. Had you an interview with Mr. Pacaud on the subject of this $5,000 which

was retired, when it was retired ?-A. I saw Mr. Pacaud.
Q. In your bank ?-A. in our bank.
Q. Tell the Committee what took place between you.-A. He just asked for the

note, and said he was sorry it had been protested; that he had overlooked the day it
was due.
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Q. Is that all ho said ?-A. He said he was ready to pay it.
Q. Did ho pay it in your office?-A. No, at the teller's desk.
Q. With, as far. as you recollect, Banque du Peuple notes ?-A. As far as I

recollect.
Q. Do you remember how many notes there were. Were they large denomina-

tions?-A. Large bills.
Q. Now look at the deposit slip (Exhibit 39) again.-A. We do not say in a

deposit slip what kind of bills are in the deposit.
Q. Have you anything to show ?-A. No.
Q. How large were they?-A. I believe they were hundred dollar bills.
Q. Fifty hundred dollar bills?-A. They must have been that.

ELLIOTT E. WEBB recalled and further examined by Mr. Barwick, counsel for
the Opposants.

Q. On the 10th of July the letters of credit were paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. On the 11th of July *hat cash was withdrawn in any largo sum from your

bank by Mr. Pacaud ?-A. By the books of the bank it appears that $8,000 was
withdrawn in one choque.

Q. And apparently that much cash was drawn out of the bank ?-A. Apparently
so.

Q. The entries shewing the $8,000 in cash withdrawn are entered in Exhibit
35?-A. Yes.

Q. And is the entry following the entry of $3,000, which retired the $5,000
note we have spoken of', and preceding the entry of the $5,000 cheque, which retired
the $5,000 note spoken of ?-A. Yes.

P. B. DUMOULIN recalled and further examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for
Opposants.

Q. On 11th of Jtily (which, as I point out to the Committee, is the day the
$8,000 in cash was withdrawn from the Union Bank), the deposit of $3,000 was
made in your Bank ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this is the deposit slip?-A. Yes.
Q. Whome handwriting is that deposit slip in ?-A. I cannot say, I am sure.
Deposit slip filed, Exhibit 42.
Q. To whose credit was the $3,000 deposited ?-A. To the credit of Hon. Charles

Langelier.
Q. IsthatlHon. CharlesLangelie's handwriting? Doyou know his handwriting?

-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you believe that to be his handwriting ?-A. It is not as his usual

handwriting, but it is something like it.
Q. It is written in pencil?-A. Yes.
Q. And as if in a hurry ?-A. Yes.
Q. You believe it to be his handwriting ?-A. It is something like it.
Q. Do you believe it to be his handwriting ?-A. Yes.
Q. This deposit slip shows that on the 1lth of July he dep9sited ten one

hundred dollar bills and four five hundred dollar bills?-A. Yes.
Q. That is $3,000 to his own credit?-A. Yes.
Q. He was the depositor ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you know what bank bills these were deposited in ?-A. I do not know.

ELLIOTT E. WEBB recalled and further examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for
Opposants.

Q. Have you the deposit slip of La Banque du Peuple, of 12th July?-A. The
12th of July was Sunday.
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Q. On the 13th of July ?-A. Yes.
Q. How many one-hundred-dollar bills came in from La Banque du Peuple, with

their deposit on the morning of the 13th of July?-A. Thirteen.
Q. Was that an unusual deposit?-A. No; I cannot say it was very unusual.
Q. Did thirteen one-hundred-dollar bills of your issue come in their deposit the

next day ?-A. On the 13th of July.
Q. Next banking day ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did your bank issue five-hundred-dollar bills ?-A. No.
Q. The five hundred-dollar bills are Dominion legal tender ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which La Banque du Peuple would prefer to keep ?-A. Certainly.
Q. This is the deposit slip which I hold in ny hand, and it shows that there

were thirteen one-hundred-dollar bills?-A. Yes.
Deposit slip filed, Exhibit 43.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. With respect to that amount of $8,000 which was drawn out on the 8th July

from your bank; if you were informed that Mr. Pacaud had used that rnoney to pay
for a house which ho bought, would you be iii a position to contradiet it ?-A. No.

Mr. P. LAFRANcE recalled and further examined by Mr. Barwick, counsel for
opposants.

The CoUNsEL.-I am going to a new question now, and do not purpose offering
further evidence with regard to the $3,000 transaction, and can only say that by the
evidence I have hoped to make out a prina facie case. It is impossible for me to
establish it further.

Q. Now, Mr. Lafrance, on the 15th of May, a $20,000 note of Mr. Pacaud's was
discounted, secured by one of the five cheques?-A. Yes.

Q. Discounted by your bank ?-A. Yes.
Q. This is a copy (Exhibit 19) of the account to which that $20,000, the pro-

ceeds of the discount of $20,000 was ci edited ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. On the 15th of May, a cheque was charged to that account-two cheques of

$5,000 each were charged to that account ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What note had you falling due that day for which paynent was made by one

of these cheques ?-A. There was no note due that day of that amount, there was a
note of that amount paid though.

Q. Whose note?-A. There was a note of $5,000 signed by E. Pacaud due the
18 h May, which was paid on that day.

Q. And therefore paid three days before it natured ?-A, Yes.
Q. Who were the endorsers of that note ?-A. As it appears in our discount

book it was endorsed by C. A. P. Pelletier, Honoré Mercier, Charles Langelier and
others.

Q. Who were the others?-A. It is not mentioned in our books.
Q. Can you tell me ?-A. I cannot positively say.
Q. Tell the Committee to the best of your recollection ?-A. I believe that the

name of François Langelier was on that note.
Q. To the best of your recollection was anybody else's name there ?-A. I do

not remember any other.
Q. What was the date of that note ?-A. That note was dated the 15th of April

-one month-due the 18th of May.
Q. Was that note a renewal?-A. I do not believe it was.
Q. Who retired that note; who came to you to retire that note ?-A. Mr.

Pacaud paid that note on the 15th.
Q. Had he conversation with vou with regard to retiring that note ?-A. Il

discounting the $20,000 note he said he would pay that ilote.

54 Victoria. AppendiX (NO. 2A.) A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

Q. Ie promised to take up this five thousand note ?-A. Which he did.
Q. And he took it out of the proceeds of his discount ?-A. By cheque.
Q. Which cheque was returned to Mr. Pacaui, as appears by the receipt handed

in by Mr. Gaboury ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did Mir. Pacaud tell you with regard to this transaction when he dis-

,counted the twenty thousand note secured by the twenty thousand cheque-what
was the conversation between you ?-A. I don't know of much conversation outside
of asking for the discount of it.

Q. Where was Mr. Mercier on the 15th of May?-A. In Europe.
Q. In France ?-A. I believe so.
Q. On the 15th ot May, the day when that note for $20,000 was discounted for

Mr. Pacaud secured by that cheque for $20,000, Mr. Mercier was in France ?-A. He
was in Europe.

Q. Taking Exhibit 19 again, which is the account of Mr. Pacaud with La Banque
Nationale, there are two entries of cheques of $5,000 each; which we have just been
speaking of, the first or second of these entries ?-A. I cannot tell.

Q. This paper, Exhibit 44, explains the other $5,000 ?-A. Explains one of the
five thousands.

Q. Explains one of five thousand dollars cheques mentioned in Exhibit 19 ?-
A. Yes.

Q. This document is a requisition for a bill of exchange on Paris ?-A. In favour
of Mr. Mercier-yes.

Q. For the sum of $5,000 ?-A. For the sun of 25,500 francs, the value of $5,000.
Q. At the current rate of exchange ?-A. Yes.
Q. And this $5,000 was part of the $20,000, proceeds of the discount which was

part of the $60,000 Mr. Webb has spoken of to-day ?-Yes, I believe so.
Q. Which was part of the $280,000 we have spoken of? -A. It was part of the

$100,000. I could not say if it was part of the $280,00.
Q. It was part of the one hundred thonsand letter of credit ?-A. Yes.
THE COUNSEL: Which, as I say, was part of the $280,000 which was paid out of

the Dominion subsidy.
Q. Now. the applicant for that bill of exchange was Earnest Pacaud ?-A. He

was the applicant for it.
Q. This signed by E. Pacaud per P. L. Who is that ?-A. Myself. I made the

requisition for him, and put his name.
Q. At his request ?-A. At his request, of course.
Q. Where was this interesting document drawn up, and who were present ?-

A. This was signed in my office.
Q. Was Mr. Pacaud prescrit ?-A. I do not know whether he was present, but

it was asked for by hin. I made out the draft at his request, and this is the memo-
randuma of the requisition.

Q. For what Mr. Pacaud wanted and which requisition you sent to your ?-
A. Teller.

Q. A nd what did the teller do ?-A. le had the draft of 25,500 francs made out
according to the requisition, and gave it to Mr. Pacaud on payment of $5,000.

Q. Who was the draft made payable to ?-A. To Honoré Mercier in Paris.

By the Hon. 11r. Tassé :
Q. On what date was this ?-A. The 15th ofiMay, 1891.

The Committee then adjourned until 10 o'clock a.m. to-morrow.
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THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE ROOMr, August 20th, 1891.

The Committee met at 10 o'clock, Hon Mr. VIDAL in the Chair.

Hon. MIr. O'DONoIIoE desired to ask Mr. Barwick to what subsidy he referred
in his closing remarks of yesterday ?

Mr. BARwIcK-I referred to the Dominion subsidy of $479,626.40 which was

paid by the Dominion Treasury to the Quebec Treasury on the 2nd of-July, 1891-
that is what I meant the $5,000 sent to Mr. Mercier came out of.

Mr. DUMOULIN was re-called, and examined by Mr. Barwick.

Q. On the 6th of May, there was the discount of the $20,000 note in your bank
secured by one of these five cheques signed by Mr. J. C. Langelier ?-A. Yes.

Q. On the 16th May, as appears from your books, Mr. Pacaud drew fron the
proceeds of that account a cheque for $7,000 ?-A. Yes.

Louis CYRILLE MARCOUX, who being duly sworn, vas examined:

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. What is your position ?-I am Secýretary-Treasurer of "La Caisse d'Econ-

omie de Notre Dame," Quebec.
Q. Show me the entries of a deposit of $7,000 cheque of the Banque du Peuple

which Mr. Dumoulin has just spoken of, and say to whose credit it was deposited ?
A. It was deposited with another cheque of $1,000, making $8,000 to the credit
of Mr. L. P. Sirois, notary.

Q. Exhibit 45, which I now show you, is a certified copy of an extract from the
cash-book and ledger of Mr. Sirois' account in the Caisse d'Economie ?-A. Yes.

Q. That shows a crodit of $8,000 to Mr. Sirois on the 16th May, 1891?-A. Yes.
Q. Now show me the deposit slip ?-A. Here is the original and a certified copy.

(Certified copy put in as Exhibit 46).
Q. This is a true copy ?-A. Yes. Certified on the 19th August, 1891.
Q. What cheque was that $7,000 cheque shown on Exhibit No. 46 ?-A. It

seems to be a cheque drawn on the Banque du Peuple. This deposit slip. Exhibit 47,
shows that La Caisse d'Economie deposited the ch eque in the Banque Nationale, who
are the bankers of the Caisse d'Economie, and on that slip (Exhibit 47) is shown
the $7,000 cheque which was credited to Mr. Sirois, as shown on Exhibit 45; 1 under-
stand it is that cheque, because we have not received any other cheque of that
amount.

Q. So it is apparent that this is the cheque ?-A. Yes.

Mr. DUMOULIN re-called:
Q. What is this document that I now show you ?-A. It is a deposit of the

Banque Nationale made with us on the 18th of May (Exhibit 48). The 17th was a
Sunday. The $7,000 cheque is the one the last witness spoke of.

Q. And this deposit slip (Exhibit 47) shows that you received back the cheque
for $7,000 which you had marked on the 16th of May ?-A. It looks to be the same
cheque.

Q. It is apparent that it is, is it not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Pacaud's cheque ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you received that back in the ordinary course of business on the 18th

of May ?-A. Yes.
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Mr. MARCOUX re-Called:
Q. This is another document which you promised this morning for the 6rst

time ?-A. Yes. It is a cheque for $8,000 drawn by A. P. Sirois on the 26th of
May, 1891, on this account (Exhibit 45) to draw the sum of $8,000. that was
deposited on the 15th of May.

Q. That is to draw the proceeds of the $7,000 cheque and the $1,000 cheque,
which made up the $8,000, credit to Mr. Sirois on the 16th of May as drawn in
Exhibit 45?-A. Yes. It is a choque drawn on La Caisse d'Economie, payable to
Dame Mary Jane D. Fry. It was aceepted by La Caisse d'Economie on the 26th of
May and paid on the 30th of May. The entries in the cash-book and ledger account
are shown on Exhibit No. 35.

Q. Who is Dame Fry ?-A. I do not know her.
Q. Can you give us any information as to who she is ?-A. Well, we were speak-

ing of it before 1 left, and the clerk said that she was proprietor of the house Mr.
Pacaud bought on Dufferin Terrace, but this I am not sure of-1 was told.

Q. So this is the $8,000 paid on Mr. Pacaud's house ?-A. I suppose. I was told
she was the proprietor of the house.

Mr. BARwICK-And in this $8,000 is the $7,000 which came out of the $20,O00
discounted, which $20,000 came out of the $100M,00 letter of credit, which letter of
credit was paid with the capitation subsidy paid to the Quebec Government by the
Dominion. Mr. Chairman-This concludes the evidence of tracing money in those
three bank. I arm not able, and the banks are unable to trace any more of the
noney, but I have traced-I can put in a statement subsequently-845,000, which I

do not hesitate to say is part of the $57,000 ou that little memorandum and I am
unable to trace more. The balance cannot be traced through the three banks whose
books have been examined. The managers of the banks having every regard to their
Own customers have assisted us in every way they could, and I desire that they be
discharged.

Hon. Mr. TAsst-You have asceortained that Mr. Pacaud's cheques have been
Withdrawn fron the banks ?

Mr. BARwIK-In the three banks all his cheques are withdrawn and the
receipts for them have been put in. They were withdrawn from the Banque du
Peuple on the 6th of August, from the Banque Nationale on the 7th, and Mr. Webb
18 unable to say on what day Mr. Pacaud took the eheque from the Union Bank, but
thinks it was the 7th. The Union Bank receipt bears no date.

JOHN J. MACDONALD, of Rivière du Loup, in the Province of Quebec, Con-
tractor, who, being duly sworn, was examined, and deposed as follows

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :
Q. You are a contractor of a great many year's experience ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You were asked, I understand, to go over the Baie des Chaleurs road ?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. When was that ?-A. Some time last October.
Q. That is October, 1890 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Will you be kind enlough to tell us by whom you were asked and what took

place ?-A. I was asked by Mr. Heaton Armstrong, banker, of London, England,
who was here at the time. I met him in Quebec. le told me that Mr. Mercier had
asked him to take hold of the scheme, that is the Baie des Chaleurs, and he said if
I Was satisfied with tho work and would take hold of it-and if Mr. Cameron was
satisfied with the legal portions of it-he was prepared to take hold of it.

. Q. Is that Mr. Hector Cameron ?-A. Yes, sir. We discussed the matter with
hm, and I went to examine the work with that object in view.

Q. Did you go over the work ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Describe how you went over the work, and what you did, and when that

was ?-A. I went down to Paspébiac and drove over the lino. I went in to see ali
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the water crossings, and took a hand-car at the end of the sixtieth mile and came to
Métapedia.

Q. You came through the sixty miles ?-A. Yes.
Q. And examined the whole road carefully ?-A. Yes; as carefully as I wa's

able.
Q. Ilad you your engineer with you ?-A. Yes, sir ; and Mr. Malcolm, a prac-

tical contractor, was with me also.
Q. What was your engineor's naine ?-A. Mr. McCarthy.
Q. Why wore they taken with you ?-A. As practical mon, to examine the

work and enable me to make as close an estimate as possible.
Q. To whom did you report the result ?-A. Well, I did not report it to any

person. I made up the estimate for my own information and consulted Mr. Cameron
on it. I think Mr. Riopel was the first person I spoke to about it-no, I went to
New York with Mi. Armstrong and Mr. Cameron, and while there we met Mr.
Mercier. I asked Mr. Cameron to meet Mr. Mercier with me, so that after he left
tbere would be no misunderstanding as to the terms he was prepared to give us;
then I returned to Montreal.

Q. That was after you met Mr. Mercier with Mr. Armstrong ?-A. That I think
was in October ; it was all within a fIw days.

Q. Was it in New York ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where were they staying ?-A. I forget the name of the hotel ; we were at

the Brunswick.
Q. Was it the Albemarle ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was Mr. Armstrong, the banker ?--A. Yes.
Q. Not Mr. Armstrong the contractor ?-A. No, sir.
Q. So that you and Mr. Heaton Armstrong went to New York in October ?-

A. With Mr. Cameron-yes.
Q. And met Mr. Mercier at the Albemarle Hotel ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You went so that there might be no misunderstanding as to the offer ?-A.

As to the offer Mr. Mercier made to Mr. Armstrong, I wanted to understand it
before Mr. Armstrong left for England.

Q. Who was there at the Albemarle : Any other member of the Quebec Gov-
ernment ?-A. Not that I am aware of; that is all I met.

Q. Was the proposition put before Mr. Mercier ?-A. Yes, sir ; by Mr. Heaton
Armstrong.

Q. In your presence ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Where is Mr. Heaton Armstrong now ?-A. I think he is in Austria at

present.
Q. He is a London banker ?-A. Yes.
Q. A man of considerable means ?-A. I believe so.
Q. A man who commands large amounts of money ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, will you be kind enough to tell the Committee as clearly as you can

what the offer of Mr. Mercier was ?-A. Mr. Mercier was anxious that Mr. Arm-
strong should tako hold of the scheme, and offered him $10,000 a mile for the 40
miles that was to be built, and Mr. Armstrong was to take the bonds of the road.

Q. That is $400,000 he offered ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. I want you to explain to me all that you can give us of the conversation or

substance of the conversation with Mr. Mercier ?-A. I do not remember particu-
.arly discussing the bonds. The principal thing with Mr. Mercier was to understand
about the $10,000 a mile for the 40 miles to be built.

Q. That was the 40 miles which began at the 60th mile ?-A. Yes ; at the Cas-
capedia.

Q. Was anything else discussed between you then ?-A. No.
Q. How was that to be paid, that $400,000 ?-A. It was not arranged ; nothing

was said as to how it was to be paid that I can remember at present. Some time
after that, it was discussed.
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Q. Am I right in concluding that all that took place with Mr. Mercier on that
occasion was to make it clear to him that you were prepared to build the road for
$400,000 of'subsidy ?-A. There was a subsidy coming from the Dominion Govern-
ment ; that was an extra subsidy.

Q. As far as Mr. Mercier's Government was ceoncerned at that time, you were
prepared to build the road for $400,000 ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is $400,000 subsidy of the Province of Quebec ?-A. Yes, $400,000 sub-
sidy froin Quebee on that 40 miles.

Q. You to take whatsubsidies were payable by the Dominion Government ?-
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that offer to include the building of the bridge across the Cascapedia ?-
A. I do not think that was discussed then. Afterwards it was discussed, and $50,000
Was to be paid for that bridge. That was extra.

Q. Was that discussed with Mr». Mercier ?-A. I dont think it was at that time.
Q. Was it ultimately ?-A. It may have been discussed with him at another

interview I had with Mr. Cameron and others atQuebec. I am not prepared to say
at present.

Q. What amount was Mr. Armstrong, the English banker, to furnish ?-A. The
Interest oi the bonds was to bu giaranteed for ton years at 5 per cent.

Q. By Mr. Mercier's Government-by the Province of Quebec?-A. Yes.
Q. What was to be the amount of the bonds ?-A. Twenty thousand a mile on

100 miles.
Q. How many would that inako ?-A. Two millions-at 5 per cent.
Q. The interest for ten years ?-A. Figuring it out, 1 allowed it to be 42 per

cent.-not quite that ; I called it that in figuring it.
Q. What do you mean by that ?-A. We allowed that it would be $840,000 that

Mr. Heaton Armstiong would have to pay to the Quebec Government.
Q. lie was to deposit $840,000 cash with the QuebecGovernment?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. At the head of whose Government Mr. Mercier was, and that was to secure

the guarantee of the bond ?-A. The guarantee of the interest for ton years.
Q. Now, will you be kind enough to tell us the arrangement that was proposed

between you and the Government as to how th 3 $400,000 was to be paid ?-A. I met
Mr. Pacaud in Quebec after that, who bas acted for me as Agent in any business I
had in Quebec.

Q. Business with the Government ?-A. It was.
Q. Acted as your agent ?-A. Yes; in business with the Government.
Q. Not in anything else ?-A. No; only with the Government.
Q. A necessary intermediary ?-A. I had him as agent.
Q. Was he a necessary agent?-A. I considered him so.
Q. Go on about Mr. Pacaud ?-A. He advised me that we could not get any of

the 6400,000 until the 100 miles was completed. I thoughtthese ternis were too severe
and I proposed that they pay us $200,000 when twenty miles was finished-that is
from the sixtieth to the eightieth miles, and the other $200,000 when the last twenty
niles was finished-the eightieth to the hundredth-or when they were satisfied that
We would finish the work.

Q. When was that, Mr. Macdonald ?-A. .1 think, speaking from memory, that
itnust have been some time in December.

Q. December, 1890 ?-A. I think somewhere about that.
Q. What was the result of the proposal to Mr. Pacaud that the payments were

to be made in that way ?-A. I understood that was acceptable.
Q. To whom ?--A. To the Government.
Q. Who informed you?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. So that Mr. Pacaud went from you to the Government ?-A. I presume so.
Q. And returned from the Government, and informed you that your offer was

accepted ?-A. I assumed it was.
Q. Was that the way you presumed it was ?-A. Yes, sir.

77

54 Victoria. A. 1891



54 Victoiia. Appendix (No. 2A.) A. 1891

Q. You had to do more in the money line than deposit $840,000 with the Gov-
ernment ?-A. We had to pay the debts on the works in fuli, and the other debts,
whatever was left, would be divided amongst them. I may say that before I went
down to examine the work I called upon Charley Armstrong at his office in Montreal.

Q. Is that Mr. C. N. Arrmstrong ?-A. Yes. He showed nie the plans and pro-
files and gave me all the information, and Mr. Leduc, the Chief Engineer, was there,
and they gave me the profiles and a copy of the quantities. I had rny engineer there
before I went to examine the work.

Q. So Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Leduc, his engineer, or rather the engineer of
the Baie des Chaleurs road, gave you the information they possessed in order that
you might come to a proper conclusion in examining the road with your engineer
and your practical contractor ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were saying a few moments ago that you were to pay all the debts due
on the road ?-A. I was not to pay; they were to be paid.

Q. They were to be paid ?-A. That was the condition the Gover nment insisted
upon.

Q. Who informed you of that condition ?-A. I think the Subsidy Act provid-
ing the 800,000 acres of land involved that.

Q. The Subsidy Act made it plain that the company which was to have the
benefit of the 800.000 acres of subsidy was, as a condition precedent, to pay al! the
debts of the road ?-A. On the line of the road, in the County of Bonaventure.

Q. And how was it arranged you were to pay that ?-A. After going over the
work, and making the estimates of what I thought the thing was worth, 1 met Mr.
Riopel and Mr. Cameron

Q. You say what the thing was worth ?-A. I mean what the work was worth.
By the Honourable Mr. Miller :

Q. You mean the work done ?-A. Yes; and the work to be done.
By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :

Q. What the work had cost ?-A. I was not interested in what the work done
had cost, but in the work to be done.

Q. You were anxious to ascertain what amount of debts you would have to
pay ?-.A. I made all the enquiries I could to obtain that information, and I got a
statement from one of the Departnents in Quebec of the claims for labour.

Q. By whom was that given you ?-A. By one of the officers of the Department.
I do not know his naine.

Q. What Departnent ?-A. I could not say. I think Mr. Pacaud told me where
I would get it, and I went up and got it.

Q. Was it ready for you when you went up ?-A. No; but they had the claims
there; they had been filed.

Q. You examined the statements in the Depantment, which Department you
are unable to name ?-A. No.

Q. What were these claims ?-A. Some of theni were Mr. Macfarlane's claims.
and some Mr. Armstrong's claims for work done between the sixtieth and the
seventieth mile.

Q. Do you reinember what the amount of the Armstrong claim was ?-A. I
think he allowed it would take about $20,000-of course, I am not sure.

Q. On that section of the road, between the sixtieth and the seventieth miles ?
-A. That is about what it was, as far as I remember.

Q. Did you find any other claim from Mr. C. N. Armstrong, the contractor ?-
A. I think there were some claims for right of way-nothing in particular. It was
principally for labour against Macfarlane where he had been working.

Q. The claims were principally claims against Macfarlane ?-A. That is what I
understood-for labour.

Q. You were enabled thus to come to a conclusion as to the amount of debts
you would have to pay ?-A. I made up my mind what I was prepared to pay the
company to get an assignment from them of everything they had.
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Q. And what vas it you were prepared to do ?-A. I first offered Mr. Riopel
$150,O00, the money to be paid into the Bank of Montreal until the debts were ail
paid; and if anything was left. Mr. Riopel should have it. I declined to become res-
ponsible for the debts; I proposed to pay the money into the Bank of Montreal.

Q. You declined with Mr. Riopet to become responsible for the debts, but offered
to pay $150,000 in cash to the Bank of Montreal out of which the- debts whatever
they might be, would be paid, and whatever balance remained after the debts were
paid Mi. Riopel would have ?-A. Yes; I afterwar-d increased that offer to $175,000
because Mr. Riopel would not agreo to $150,000.

Q. Was that offer of $175,000 accepted by Mr. Riopel ?-A. I thought so. I
think it was some time in January; perhaps it was February-towards the end of
January or' the beginning cf February. [ supposed ho had accepted my offer, and I
wired for Mr. Hector Cameron, who was in Toronto or Ottawa, to come down to
Quebec, that I had arranged with Mr. Riopel, and tha-t J wanted him to have the
agreement made out, and I also wished the Hon. George Irvine as solicitor in Que-
bec, to assist Mi. Cameron in looking into the matter. When Mr. Canieron arrived
in Quebec I saw Mir. Irvine, and made an ap ointment at his office to arrange the
agreement. Mr. Camneron and myself met Mr. Riopel with Mr. Charles N. Arm-
strong, in my room in the St. Louis Hotel. Mir. Riopel then said he had not agreed
to the arrangement he insisted on getting aný interest in the contract and wanted
me to assume all the debts without knowing what they were. I refused to go in and
the thing broke off at that.

Q. So you refused to give Mr. Riopel any interest in the contraet and refused
to become responsible for any uncertain quantity of debts ?-A. Yes; I wanted to get
rid of' the whole company. It was just a few days before that I thought I had con-
Cluded an arrangement with Mr. Riopel, and I sent for Mr. Cameron to conclude the
arrangement. Mr. Cameron was my solicitor and also the solicitor for Mr. Heaton-
Armstrong, and I desired to bring Mr. Irvine in as being acquainted with the laws
of Quebec in order to see that everything was right.

Q. Where was that understanding come to with Mr. Riopel ?-A. In his own
house. I was to pay 6175,000 in cash into the Bank of Montreal. .

Q. Were you in a position at that time to pay $175,000 in cash ?--A. Not my-
self, but I was by Mr. Heaton-Armstrong, by the arrangement ho was to make before
ho left New York. Mr. Heaton-Armstr'ong at that time was prepared, and had the
ability to put $175,000 in har'd cash. In making this agreement with Mr. Riopel 1
said that everything would be doue subject to the approval of Mr. Armstrong in
Englaind.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. In whose name was the $175,000 to be paid into the bank ?-A. I do not
know that I had got that far; it was to be arranged by Mr. Cameron. After seeing
Mr. Riopel I saw Mr. Macfarlane. In the meantime, Mr. Cameron had seen the
Manager of the Ontario Bank. I was in Ottawa to see as to the position of the bonds
deposited with the Government and, so I tried to get ail these different interests
settled, and I then proposed to send the agreement over to Mr-. Armstrong in Eng-
land, to see if ho was satisfied, when ho would be prepared Io pay the money.

Q. You had seon Mr. Macfarlane and made complete enquiries into his claim and
discussed it with Mr. Riopel ?-A. Yes.

Q. What did Mr. Riopel say about the Macfarlane claim ?-A. He admitted to
ine they owed something to Mr. Macfarlane, and they were prepared to allow

$75,000.
Q. He admitted there was something due, and was willing to allow Macfarlane

$75,000 in payment of his claim?-A. Yes. I told Macfarlane so at the time.
Q. That was to be paid out of' the $175,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Macfarlane was to get, with Mr. Riopel's consent, $75,000 out of the

$175,000 ?-A. It was to go towards paying his debts. Al Macfarlane asked, in his
79

54 Victoria. A. 1891



54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.)

conversation with me, was to get a discharge. He did not want anything for him-
self; he wanted his creditors to be paid.

Q. That was the only anxiety Macfarlane showed-he wanted his creditors to be
paid ?-A. That is all.

Q. He wanted nothing for himself?-A. No.
Q. What was your estimate of the cost of the road-I want you to speak lirst

of the first 60 miles?-A. My estimate was considerably higher than the estimates
made before. I estiinated it between $60,000 and $70,000 to finish the first 60 miles.
In the first estimate I made there was a bridge-I forget the name---over a stream
called Escuminac. There was a 60-foot span bridge there-an iron giider-and the
abutment was carried away, and 1 allowed it would take a span of from 125 to 130
feet. To make the opening larger I estimated to raise the embankment along the
Nouvelle River, where the water had washed over the spring before, a couple of
feet, and some more openings put in to carry away the flood in the spring. I also
estimated along Carleton Point, wherie there is some crib-work, to do further work
there where some of the embankment was carried away. I aiso estimated for a
telegraph line and for a large portion of fencing which was broken and for rolling
stock of this 60 miles. From the report 1 got (J did not see it all) I did not consider
the rolling stock up to the standaid required, and a good deal would be required to
be spent on that.

Q. You estimated that, at $60,000 or $70,000 ?-A. Yes. That first 60 miles is
from Metapedia to Cascapedia.

Q. Now, the next 40 miles extended from Cascapedia to Paspebiac ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was that estimated by you to cost ?-A. Speaking from nemory, in-

cluding the money I was paying and ail expenses connected with it, I think at about
$18,000 per mile. There were some very heavy superstructures, and some very
heavy trestle work not on the first 60 miles.

Q. That $18,000 a mile covers the completion of the road up to the standard of
the contract; but what about running the road ?-A. I figured the running of the
road for the first five years we would lose money on it. We undertook to run it.

Q. You realJy and truly intended to run it after it was built?-A. Yes; we ex-
pected to get some industries, some mills along the line, as there were reports of a
good deal of timber along that line, and there were other things leading us to hope
that after a few years we would make a traffic.

Q. And the estimates you give us covers ail that?-A. 1 do not know that the
estimate of $18,000 a mile covered the running of the ioad. I put the earth at 25
cents ; Leduc had put it at 20 cents. We were not positive about the quantities, because
there were no cross-sections in the work, but were just taken firom the pi ofiles ofthe
centre of line of the road, which would not give a correct idea, and I added 10 per
cent to Leduc's quantities. Of course, no measurements were made.

Q. I thought I understood you to say that this estinate of youirs covered pos-
sible loss in running the road ?-A. Weli, I took snow fonces and other things.

Q. Did it cover anything else ?-A. Well, I thought I would have to pay some
other things, which perhaps need not be discussed here.

Q. I think we will have to ask you vhat it did cover ?-A. Well, I put into mny
estimate of $175,000 the sum of $50,000, likely to be paid to Mr. Pacaud during the
progress of the work.

Q. $50,000 as the subsidies became due, I suppose ?-A. Well, I would be always
wanting favours with the Government, just as they turned up; as the work pro-
gressed, I might require to get some subsidies paid before the time called for by the
contract.

Q. You do not mean any favour to which you were not honestly entitled ?-
A. No.

By the Honourable Mr. Tassé:

Q. What Government do you refer to?-A. The Mercier Government.
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Q. That is, you might require some favours of finances to the contractors, which
are quite usual, out of this Government subsidy of $400,000 ?-A. Not usual ; they
are very strict, generally.

Q. Did you think that Mr. Pacaud, if he got something, might secure you the
payment of subsidies which were legitimately due to you ?-A. I do not doubt that
what I had in view was to have him assist me at any time I required assistance.

Q. And that is what you calculated ?-A. That is what 1 put in my estimate.
Q. To go to the recognized intermediary between the Provincial Governnent

of Quebec and yourself ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Why did you come to that conclusion with regard to Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Well,

he was acting for me as agent, and if he did anything for me I was prepared to pay
him for it.

Q. Why did you expect to pay that ?-A. I am not prepared to say here.

By the lion. 3fr. -Iiller :

Q. Was it from past experience ?-A. I do not care to go into my past experi-
ence ; it is not here under discussion.

By Mfr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants
Q. I do not wish to press you further, except to ask one question. We are deal-

ing with the $280,000 subsidy here ; was it from past experience that you expected
to pay that ?-A. I suppose it was really that.

Q. That was the only reason, was it not ?-A. That is all, sir-yes.
Q. What profit did you estimate on that road after paying Mr. Pacaud and

building the road ?-A. Weil, my figures showed from $80,000 to $100,000 profit on
the whole transaction.

Q. That is to the contractor ?-A. Yes-myself, and whoever else would be
associated with me.

Q. Legitimate profit on the work you did ?-A. Yes. sir.
Q. Now you think the negotiations with Mr. Riopel broke up early in Febru-

ary ?-A. I think so-I think it was in February.
Q. As you have described ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When did Mr. Angus Thom appear on the scene ?-A. Mr. Thom met me in

Quebec early in the negotiations and ofeèred me his services to assist in doing any-
thing he could to bring about the arrangement. I showed him my figures and dis-
cussed matters with him freely, perhaps a little too freely, as Ilhad confidence in him,
and I believed ho had a good deal of influence with Charley Armstrong, the con-
tractoi.

Q. Mr. Charles N. Armstrong ?-A. Yes. sir. And in March, when I was leav-
ing for England, I learned that ho had an option from Mr. Riopel, and was lhkely to
go iito the work.

Q. After having scen ail your figures ?-A. I do not say he saw them all, but I
gave him a great deal of information. I do not say that it was upon the information
he got from me that he went into the thing. I immediately called upon Mr. Thom
and asked if such was the case. I did a good deal of business with this house-Mr.
Cooper-used to be Cooper & Fairman. He said he understood I was out of it, and if
I was not lie would withdraw ; and ho said if Mr. Cooper should get the work he
Would have to associate hinself with some practical man, and asked what I thought
about going into it with him. I asked if Charley Armstrong was into the work with
them, and said I would not go into partnership with him, and I would not go into
any ring, but if Mr. Cooper was alone I would go in. He told me the offer he had
was 8560,000.

Q. From whom ?-A. From the Quebec Government. I said : As you are getting
$160,000 more than I am getting, if you can bring it about I have no objection to
going in with you.
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Q. That is with Mr. Cooper?-A. Yes. I left for New York and met Mr.
Cameron, and told him the arrangements I had made in Montreal with Mr. Thom,
and wished him to return to Montreal and look after the negotiations while I was
.away, and as soon as they weie in shape Io lot me know and I would see Mr. Heaton-
Armstrong, of London, with reference to the bond.

Q. Did Mr. Thoi tel] youi what ho vas getting for the Cascapedia Bridge ?-A.
There was the $50,000; J looked upon that as an outside matter.

Q. So that Mr. Thon's or Mi. Cooper's syndicate was to get $610,000.-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Whereas you were getting $450,000 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. They were getting $160,000 more than you?-A. Yes, sir.

By the -Honourable Mr. Miller:

Q. That mucli more than you offered to do the work for ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mfr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:

Q. Do you remember anything else that you told Mr. Thom at that time ?-A.
I do not remember anything at that time. Mr. Cameron wrote over to Mr. Heaton-
Armstrong that the deal was closed with Mr. Cooper, and iequired me over as soon
as possible if I wished to go into it. I spoke to Mi. Armstrong with reference to
the bonds ; if going in with Mr. Cooper he was prepared to take thom as I had
arranged before. He said when everything was right to send it to him and he
would look into it, and if right, would go into it.

Q. Is that all the conversation with Mr. Thom at that time, that you remember?
-A. That is all I remember.

Q. When did you learn of the passage of the Order in Council?-A. Atter I
returnied in May.

Q. Do you remember the date of the Order in Counicil?-A. No.
Q. Do you remember what month?-A. No; I saw the Order in Council, or

rather a copy of it; Mr. Thom, showed it to me.
Q. Was that discussed between you?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Be kind enough to tell us what was said about the Order in Council ?-A.

I was discussing things generally with Mr. Thom, and I think Mr. Camei on was
with me at the time. I think I allowed that in that Order in Council they were
getting even more thani $560,000. Thore was $280,000 of the old subsidy which had
not been used besides these 800,000 acres of land: that is the way I understood.

By the Honourable Mr. Miller:
Q. Local subsidy ?-A. The old subsidy. I undorstood it was doubled up, so

that there was $7,000 a mile still due on the 40 miles to be huilt from the sixtieth
to the hundreth mile, which would leave $280,000; besides I understood there was
800,000 acres of land.

Q. That is $280,000 due on the uncompleted subsidy ?-A. Yes. And this
800,000 acies of land was changed into a cash subsidy of 35 cents an acre, which
would be $280,000; and as to tne other 35 cents, I think it makes some reference to
how it should be paid.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:

Q. That is the deferred subsidy ?-A. Yes ; I forgot the particulars about it.
Q. What do you mean by lapping over the old subsidy ?-A. The road got a

subsidy of $2,500 a mile through to Gaspé, and during the progress of the work,
under C. N. Armstrong, he had got the subsidy for the 80 miles from Paspebiac to
Gaspé applied to the other 80 miles, that is-froin the hundredth to twentieth mile.

By the Hlonourable Mr. Miller:

Q. Making $7,000 a mile ?-A. Yes, sir.
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By M1r. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants.

Q. What lapping over of the subsidies .was Mr. Cooper's syndicate to get that
you were not to get ?-A. They got, as I understood it, $560,000. That included
the old subsidy of $280,000, but by the Order in Council I think they were getting
$280,000 more than that by the deferred subsidy, but I am not clear upon that.
The Order in Council explains it.

Q. Apart from your understanding of the Order in Council, did you arrive ut
this understanding from Mr. Thom ?-A. I thinlc that Mr». Thom expects it in that
'vay too. But I am not•clear enough on that to give an opinion.

Q. Was the question of profit discussed between you and Mr. Thom-the profit
his syndicate was to make ?-A. He expected to make $300,000.

Q. That is $200,000 more than you ?-A. I told him I could not figure it up
that way.

By the Chairnian:
Q. You did not think there was that profit in it ?-A. No.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposant:
Q. Was the question of running the road discussed between you ?-A. He

thought he had acted very smart in getting the Order in Council so that ho was not
Cronpelled to run the road, and ho said he would not run it if it did not pay him;
he would take good care Mr. Cooper did not*lose money on it.

Q. Mr. Thom said he would take good care that Mr. Cooper would not lose
money, and he thought himself very snart in getting the Order in Council passed
without a provision compelling him to run the road ?-A. I told him 1 did not think
it was necessary; if he issued his bonds he would have to run the i oad.

Q. Angus Thom said if the road did not pay they need not run it ?-A. le said
they were not obliged to runî it.

Q. Did Angus Thom say anything about what it was to cost Mr. Cooper to build
the road ?-A. Yes, he was discussiig it ; I think ho allowed ho could do it for about
815,000.

Q. That is $15,000 a mile ?-A. Yes.
Q. Whence would the money be derived-who was to advance the money?-

A. le was getting the subsidy, and the proceeds from the bonds whon ho would sell
them.

Q. And Mr. Cooper was to lose no money ?-A. No; not if he sells his bonds.
Q. Did he say anything about advaincing the money to build the road ?-A. He

said he would not allow him to put any money into the road.
Q. So Mr. Cooper was to put no money into the road ?-A. Well, practically

Ilothiig.
Q. lie was to lose no money, and was to get the subsidy, but not to run the

Troad if it did not pay ?-A. He might have to put up a small sum-twenty or
tWenty-five thousand of his own-but to handle the thing properly ho should have a
capital or a lino of credit for a couple or three hundred thousand dollars, and ho
was not going to do it.

Q. Did Angus Thom discuss Mr. C. N. Armstrong's claim with you ?-A. Well
I Was rather astonished at the way they had got along, and the way they had
got extra subsidies, and he said the way they fixed it, ho was to pay Armstrong
$100,000 for his contract, but ho said " It is all gone in boodle." That was the very
expression he used.

Q. Mr. Angus Thom was Secretary Treasurer for this road and Mr. Cooper's
rePreesetative ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did Mr. Thom tell you anything else ?-A. He told me ho still had an
ilterest-it was not in writing-an interest in the contract with Cooper.

Q. I would like you to tell me everything you recollect of what Mr. Thom
told you about the settlement of Mr. C. N. Armstrong's claim against the road?-A.
le said he had a right to pay in that way. He gave me to understand he had writ-
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ten asking what Mr. C. N. Armstrong would take foi his claim, and I understood it
to be $50,000. In discussing it with Mr. Thom in Quebec, when he was, as I sup-
posed. assisting me in getting it-I am not positive if it was Mr. Thoin-he told me
that C. N. Arnstrong would take $30,000 for his claim, and I said I thought there
was nothing due cither him or Mr. Riopel froni what I had seen of the work. I con-
sidered the subsidies paid were sufficient to do the work that had been done and more
than do it: that is niy judgment, and the judgment of the parties who went over the
road with me.

Q. You mean the subsidies which had been paid ?-A. Yes that is what we
thought.

Q. Who are those parties?-A. William McCarthy, a civil engineer of large
experience and Thomas Malcolm, a contractor of large experience.

By the Hon. M[r. Snowball:
Q. How much subsidy had beent paid on that road ?-A. I think somewhere in

the vicinity of $15,000 a mile, speaking from memory.
Q. Do you know that the Dominion Government paid $6,200 a mile ?-A. They

paid more than that. They paid $15,000 a mile on the tirst 20 miles. I think the
whole thing amounts to about $15,000 a mile.

By the Hon. 3fr. OGilvie:
Q. And you consider that would pay for all the work done on the road ?-A.

Yes; and more in my judgment.

By 3fr. Barwick:
Q. Speaking from your experience what had that road cost ?-A. Well, takiig

one mile with the other, it should not have cost more than $12,000 or $13,000 a mile,
cash. That is what I thought at the time I went over it.

By the Chairman:
Q. That does not include-rolling stock ?-A. Well the rolling stock was a very

poor quality; I think there was one new engine. I estimated what the rolling stock
was worth, but I am not prepar-ed to say now. I would be afraid to say.

By lion. Mr. 3hiller:
Q. Is that included in the estimate of the cost of $12,000 or $13,000 ?-A. Well

in making it up roughly, I would not say I made an accurate estimate. I allowed it
would take about $60,000 to finish the road.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. I am going to ask another question, Mr. Macdonald. Is there anything else

vou desire to state to the Committee in explanation of what you have said now?-
A. I do not remember anything more. I an not here with a desire to state any-
thing.

MR. BARWICK-1 propose, Mr. Chairman, to ask his opinion on the Armstrong
statement, which is Exhibit 5, in relation to his own knowledge. This statement
first shows a series of certificates apparently granted by Mr. Light, who will be
called. There are seven certificates for each of the seven sections of the road. The
sections are as follows:-Letter AE is the first 20 miles, F is the third 10, G. the
next 10, H the next 10, J the next 10, K the next 10, and LMN the next 30,
making altogether 100 miles. The total of this statement is $1,235,297. Below that
are certain other items, which, added to the $1,235,297, make the amount of work
apparently done by Mr. Armstrong $1,260,635.52; then follow the credits which are
deducted from that last mentioned sum, as follows; Dominion subsidy, $556,000;
provincial subsidy, $350,000, or total of $906,000, the difference showing a balance
due Mr. Armstrong of $355,635.52. Deducted from that are £21,500 sterling bonds,
and also deducted are three items indicated on this document not yet ascertained as
it appears. The balance apparent due to Mr. Armstrong is $298,943.62. Then
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follows a certificate of the amount which Mr. Armstrong claimed was due to him.
This is not signed by the president of the road, Senator Robitaille, but by L. A.
Robitaille, Secretary Treasurer, and L. J. Riopel, who signed as Managing Director.
This document is drawn to certify thlat this amount was due to Mr. Armstrong, and
originally read as follows:-

" We certify that this amountof $298,000 is due to Mr. Armstrong, in accordance
with the terms of his contract with the company."

(Signed) L. J. RIOPEL,
L. A. ROBITAILLE.

QUEBEC, 22 April, 1891.
The word "due " was stricken ont; they could not stand that, and in the same

handwritting, Mr. Riopel's, there is a star, to guide us to what ho wrote in, and the
'vords ho wrote in place of the word " due " were as follows: " is a correct state-
ment of estimates of work done and remaining unpaid." This insertion is initialed
by Mr. Riopel and Mr. L. A. Robitaille, so that the certificate now reads as follows -

-'We eertify this amount of $298,000 is a correct statement of estimates of work
donc and remaining unpaid to Mï-. Armstrong in aceordance with the terms of his
contract with the company."

Then follows Mr. Armstrong's certificate, written and signed on the 28th of
April, at Quebec, as follows:

I Received from J. C. Langelier, Deputy Provincial Registrar, the sum of
$175,00, in full settlement of this amount.

" (Signed) C. N. ARMSTRONG."

Q. Now, Mr. Macdonald,look at the amount of Mr. Light's certi ficate--what are
Stated to be Mr. Light's certificates-and give the Committeeyour opinion upon them ?
-A. I could not give an opinion upon these; this is the first time I have seen them.
There are no quantities but just a total amount. It is impossible for me to give an
opinion upon that.

Q. Can you give the Conmittee an opinion as to that being the cost of the road?
-A. If I was to go into the figures I could. 1 arn satisfied from what I understand
these to be that it is far in excess of the cost of the road.

Q. Wlat do you understand these figures to be in this document (Exhibit 5) ?
-A. I understand them to be the quantities of' the sub-coiitractors, moneyed out to
make up for the bonds lie was to get. I understood that the price for earth work
is doubled.

By the lon. M3fr. 3cCallum:

Q, Who told you that ?-A. I was asked to give an opinion, and I cannot give a
definite opinion just on looking at it.

By fr. Barwick, Counsel for OFFosants:-

Q. Mr. Light is bore to explain that, and ho will explain it himself. I under-
stand this document to be a series of certificates of what was due for work done ?-
A. You would suppose that, but to look at this statement it is only a bulk sum of
each-

Q. Supposing that is so, what is your opinion as to these figures representing
the cost of the road ?-A. I understand this is for work done on the sixty miles. The
first six series of certificates shows here only $10,000 for the sixtieth to the
seventieth mile.

Q. These show apparently the cost of the work on the first sixty miles ?-A.Yes.
Q. Ton thousand dollars was apparently the cost of the work on the next forty

Miles. Did you know about the last forty miles-did you see that work ?-A. I sent
ly engineer; ho went over that ton miles to make an estiniate.

Q. First give us your opinion as to the cost of the first sixty miles ?-A. That
Would be over $20,000 a mile; it never cost that.
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Q. What was the report of your engineer as to the last forty miles ?-A. I think
they claim to have spent thirty or forty thousand dollars on that, and my crigineer
reported that he thought pretty near that amount of work had been done on it. Of
course, I do not carry these figures in my head; I had an estimate at the time, and
could give a more definite answer if I had the figures. He reported to me that he
thought the work reported to be donc was done.

By the lon. Mr. Miller :
Q. What was your estimate of the cost per mile of the unfinished portion ?-A.

About $18,000, as far as I remember now.
By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. The date of that paper is the 22nd April ?
The CouNcin-Yes, sir; that is the date of it. The date of Mr. C. N. Armstrong's

receipt is the 28th of April.
The Hon. Mr. TAssÉ-That was the date of the Order in Council ?
The COUNCIL-The Order in Council was passed on the 23rd of April. The 28th

of April was the day the two letters of ciredit were issued.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:
Q. One more question, Mr. Macdonald; the $906,000 is $15,000 a mile, is it not ?-

A. It is $6,000 over.
Q. The $906,000, as received here, would be $6,000 ove.r $15,000 a mile ?-A.

According to these figures.

By the Hon. Mr. McMillan:
Q. The witness did not explain why the arrangements were broken off after he

had seen Mr. Thom. Why did you not go on with Mr. Cooper ?-A. They were not
prepared to come in with an interest; they wanted me to pay $150,000 andtake the
whole thing over.

By the Hon. Mr. Snowball:

Q. Did you think the estimates put in your hands showing $15,000 a mile would
be an excessive estimate on the first 60 miles ?-A. Yes.

Q. Your idea, as I understand it, was that $12,000 or $13,000 would be ample in
the state the rolling stock was in ?-A.. Yes.

Q. That includes the first 20 miles ?-A. That is the average right through.
Q. You know, no doubt, that the Dominion Government paid $300,000 as their

portion of that subsidy for the first 20 miles ?--Yes, sir.
Q. That is $15,000 a mile ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That $300,000 distributed over the first 60 miles makes $5,000 a mile. Then

then Dominion Government paid $6,400 a mile for 60 miles. They doubled the first
twenty on the next twenty, and doubled back on the last forty on to the other, so
between these sums the )ominion Government paid 811,400 a mile of their subsidies
on these 60 miles, and the Local Government paid $7,000 a mile, that is a total of
$17,700 a mile on this road. And in addition there is a sum of money on the last
40 miles for which the Dominion Government took bonds ?-A. They lapped over
from the seventieth to the hundretdh mile, and took bonds, I believe, as a guarantee
that the road would be built.

Q. And paid that subsidy ?-A. I believe so.

By the Hon. Mr. Robitaille :
Q. Mr. Macdonald said it was in October last he came down to visit the road ?-

A. No ; I said it was in October I came to see Mr. Armstrong.
Q. Do you remember what month it was you came to see the road ?-A. I think

it was in November some time; I have not got my book here to tell ; it was a short
time before the snow.
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Q. Do you remember the day of the week it was you lf t New Carlisle?-A.
No; I saw you before I left,

Q. You came on Wednesday and left on Thursday ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember how far you got that day?-A. I think I stayed at

Robinson's.
Q. That is thirty miles. Do you renember what sort of weather it was?-A.

It was raining very heavy.
Q. And cold ?-A. Yes.
Q. Bad weather altogether ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When wats it you reached the sixtieth mile to go into your hand-ar ? You

slept at Jimmy Robinson's on Thursdv night?-A. At Robinson's; I think I
started the engineer to go over the seventieth to the sixtieth mile, and I dr-ove with
.Robinson. We drove to Maria.

Q. Tnat was Friday morning ?-A. Yes, sir. And I came back over the road
on the hand-car to the end of the track, and got a man to take me across the river,
and exanined the bridges and the work there, and took dinner at Robinson's, T think
that was his name-a brother of the hotel.keeper, and we waited there for McCarthy.

Q. Whon did you reach Metapedia, the end of the line ?-A. 1 think Saturday
night about eiglit o'clock.

Q. In tho meantime, you and your engineers examined sixty miles of road on a
hand-car. and that is all your knowledge about it ?-A. I went over all the crossings
and saw the general features of the country.

By the Hon. Mr. Power ;
Q. In your negotiations with Mr. Mercier, with respect to your taking over this

work and completing it, you and he came to the terms that he offered. Were they
satisfactory to you-the $400,000 which Mr. Armstrong, of London. proposed-did
you and the Quebec Government have any difference-was this proposed undertak-
ing of yours broken off on account of anydifforence with the Government of Quebec ?
-A. No. It was broken off because Mr. Riopel did not agree that ho had arranged
witl ne for $175,000, and insisted on getting botter terms, and I would not give it
to hin.

Q. You offered to pay $175,000 to get rid of the old corporators ?-A. That vas
the intention, and the money to go to pay the debts.

Q. In addition to getting control of the stock of the road, this $175,000 was to
pay ail claims on the road ?-A. That was what I proposed it should go for; the
claims on the road lad to be paid in full.

Q. You spoke of Armstrong's claim and McFarlane's claim. Did you include tho
money they owed to people who worked for thom ?-A. I had nothing to do with
Armstrong's claim, any more than that Riopel told me he had wvritten, offering for
$50,000 to sign over and stop out.

Q. I want to get at what this $175,000 covered. Supposing you discovered that
McFarlane and the workmen on that road wero entitled to $60,000>, under your
agreement, would yon have paid that $60,000 to McFarlane befbre the workmen
wer e paid, or would von see the w'orkmen paid ?-A. I would not pay anything to
Armstrong myself. Riopel vas satisfied it should go towards paying thom iii full.

Q. Does that include the statement ?-A. Yes; the statement ef McFarhme's, I
saw, was for about $22,000. That was the statement given to me from the depart-
ment at Quebcc. I do not rememn ber the naine of the official who gave it to me.

Q. This $175,000 included what was dute, including wages ot workmen employed
by MeFMlane ?--A. Yes.

Q. And you thought Riopel accepted. when ho afterwards insisted on getting an
interest in the contract?-A. Well, ho always insisted on getting an inter:est in the
contrtact, but i would not consent to it.

Q. Well, how did you come then to think you had cloed with him?-A. Welil,
I thought that we had closed with him for $175,000, but hl afterwards contended,
when we met at the hotel, that lie had not agreed.
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Q. You say Mr. Riopel admitted that there was something due Mr. MeFariane,
and agreed that $175,000 should be paid ?-A. le said he vas willing to have
$75,000 allowed.

Q. Did that pay the debts, including the workmen ?-A. Yes.
Q. You told us about what the first sixty miles would cost to complete, $60,000

or $70,000. What do you think would be a fair estimate of the value of that sixty
miles of road in the condition in which it stood when you examined it ?-A. I
ihought in going over it about $13,000 a mile, speaking from my experience in doing
similfiar worik; it wvas a rough estimate.

Q. That would be $780,000 you think the property was worth ?-A. I think so.
Q. I mean in the condition in which it was ?-A. I think the actual cost of the

work could be done for that.
Q. Did you think you were driving a bard bargain in wanting to get for

$175,000 a property worth $780,000 ?-A. In making a bargain 1 geierally try to
make the best I can. It is for the dealing with me to do the same.

Q. Was that not a keen bargain ? I arn asking as to the value of the road, and
it appears you wanted to get a property worth $780,000 for $175,000 ?-A. No; I
was not.

Hon. Mr. OGILVIE-Mr. Power wants to know the value in cost ?-A. I told
him the actual eost of the work, but I do not eonsider the question is put in a proper
way.

Q. t vas suggested that Mr. Pacaud was a recognized internediary between
you and the Quebec Government. Were you instructed by any mieiber of the
Quiebec Governinent to deal vith him ?-A. I have no right to say that. So fElr as
the Governnent is concerned, I do not see that, and do not wish to leave that
impression. He was my agent; I never said le was an intermediary. L looked
upon him as my agent; he acted as my agent.

Q. Did any member ot the Quebee Government ever give you to understand
that Mr. Pacaud was an agent of the Government, or represented then in these
transactions ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. MIlfcCaltum:
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud give you to understand that le was the agent of the Govern-

ment ?-A. I had Mr. Pacaud, because I eonsidered him the best ian I could have.
Q. Why ?-A. Because in any business I had le generally succeeded in getting

a settlement for me. I aoted fron my past experience.
By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. lad you not sone arrangement with Mr. Riopel by which you had an option
on the taking over of this work for some time ?-A. No; 1 Lad tirst arraiged
what I would pay him. If we had arranged on the $175,000 basis 1 would have got
the option to see if I could arrange with the other interests ; it was very eom-
plicated.

Q. Well, in Januaiy or February you and Mr. Riopel ditfered, and the thing
was off ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you give up ail expectation of getting this work ?-A. No; 1 still
thought I could perhaps get a hold of it, and 1 think I wired Mr. Paeaud to that
effect. I thought that after a whilq Mr. Riopel might corne to time.

Q. Was there any reason, after you broke off with Mr. Riopel in Jannary or
February, why he could not bargain with somebody else, with whom he could make
a better bargain ?-A. He had a perfect right to do it.

Q. You say in March you heard Mr. Thom Lad an option on it. Was thero any
reason why he should not have made a bargain ?-A. I was surprised to lear of
Thom, because I did not suppose ho was a man in that line of business, and as le
appeared to be very friendly with me, I was surprised to hear that le was
negotiatin g.

Q. Have you any reason to believe that he interfered before your bargain was
off?-A. I have no doubts about that, but I an not prepared to say.
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Q. Upon what did you base your doubts?-A. I am not prepared to say, par-
ticularly.

Q. Have you any reason to give for supposing in the end of January or the
beginning of February, beforo you broke off with Éiopel, that Thom contemplated
taking over this work ?-A. No; I have not the slightest reason.

Q. And you say there is no reason why ho should not have gone into it after
you had broken off?-A. He had a right to do it if ho wished.

Q. Why did you go to England a short time afterwards if you thought it likely
to make an arrangement ?-A. Mr. Cameron vas my solicitor and also acting for
M. Hleaton-Armstrong, and I told him of the conversation I had with Thom, and
asked him to return to Montreal as soon as he could, and if any arrangement was
come to he was to notify me and 1 would return.

Q. When did that conversation take place you spoke of?-A. It was in May I
got back from England.

Q. Bef'ore the middle of May ?-A. I think so.
Q. You say Thom expected to make $300,000. Did you think ho was going to

make that?-A. I did not.
Q. Thom is not a man with as rnuch experience in railway building as you are?

-A. I an not aware that ho is.
Q, You say that Thom said they allowed Armstrong $100,000, and that it had

aIll gone in boodle ? Did he say anything more than that about it ?-A. Those are
just the words he used.

Q. This conversation was in May, sone ti me after the money was paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. You said nothing was due to Mr. .Riopel or Mr. Arnstrong ?-A. I said

nothing was due to them because of the subsidies they got.
Q. You are aware that $24,000 was paid to Senator Robitaille ?-A. I have seen

it by the reports of the Committee here.
Q. Did you think that was due him ?-A. I do not know what it is for. I con-

sidered, wvhether Robitaille got his money out of it or not, that the $15,000 a mile
was ample for the work done.

Q. You ilready estimated that the road was worth a good deal in its then con-
dition, ad the people naturally expected to get something ?-A. Certainly.

Q. Wlhat share did you want in this contract when you came back and found
that Mr. Cooper and his associates had got hold of this contract? What proportion
did you otfer ?-A. I understood that Mr. Cooper was the only party, and that tle
other mon had just stock enough to qualify 10 per cent. paid up of $500, and that
probably Dawes would take an interest with Cooper, and I then said if Dawes took
an interest I would take a third, but before I went to England I said if Cooper got
it I would get an equal interest. They wanted to give me the whole contract if I
gave then $150,000, and Cooper said he would settle with Armstrong, and I declined.

Q. You were to get the whole thing for $150,000, and in addition to that Thom
or Cooper was to settie with Armstrong ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller
Q. The amount of $175,000, out of which the accounts of the old companýy were

to be paid was to be paid into the bank ?-A. The money I offered I pr'oposed to pay
iOto the bank.

Q. Had it any relation to the $175,000 out of the letter of credit ?-A. No ; I
vas getting no noney until I had earned it; the present conpany got it before they
had earned it.

By the HMon. fr. MfcMillan:
Q. Did Mir. Thom or Mr. Cooper send engineers over the road ?-A. I could not

Say.
Q. You never heard that they did ?-A. No.
Q. Are you of opinion it was your figures they based their calculations upon ?-

A. I could not say that. Mr. Thom, I have no doubt, got information from Mr.
Armstroig. lie was over the road, and they had all the profiles.
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By the Hon. Mr. fcCallumn:

Q. I think you stated that you took Mr. Pacaud as your agent to act with the
Quebec Government, and that he was the best man you could take ?-A. Yes.

Q. How did you think that ?-A. He was generally considered the best man,
and I like to get the best man when I employ an agent or- solicitor.

Q. Why did you think he was the best man ?-A. Because hie suited niy purpose
best.

Q. That is parrying the question. What purpose ?-A. An1y negotiation or
business I had with the (iovernmnwut.

By the Hon. fr. Miller:
Q. You thought that from past experience ?-A. That is about it.

By the Hion. 3fr. McCallun :
Q. What past experience have you had ?--A. I an-i not going into any past

experienee. I decline to answer anything in connection with my past experience
with the Quebec Government.

Q. I think I have a right to ask what that past experience was. Was he
always successful?-A. It was nothing in connection with this enquiry.

Q. He was not successful in this matter ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Therefore you did not pay him any commission ?-A. Not a cent.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. You were to give $175,000, I believe, to Mr. Riopel ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was the nanaging direct or of the old company. Of this $75,000 was to

go to pay Mr. MeFarlane and his creditors ?--A. lie said he was willing to allow
$75,000, but in making ny offer I did not stipulate that.

Q. Then $50,000 was to go to Mr. Arnstr-ong, wlho was the original contractor ?
-A. He never would give me a statement of the arrangements between him and
Mr. Armiistrong; they were to settle that between thomselves.

Q. It was not to go to the old coinpauy ?-A. Not iitil ail the debts were paid.
Q. But $50,000 was to go to Mr. Armstrong or his creditors, aud $50,000 to

Pacaud ?-A. No.
Q. I thought you said your estimate-A. in my estimate-yes. But thatwas

not to corne ont of the $175,000.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. When the new subsidy of 800,000 acres was voted last fall did you understand

that the old subsidy had disappeared ?-A. No, sir; I was in the House when that
was voted, and I did not suppose the 800,000 acres would apply to the 40 miles. I
think the wording of the Act is very vague. J thought that of the $280,000 there
would be enough taken out to make the $10,000, and the $50,000 for the bridge. I
was not aware there was a cparate subsidy.

Q. Did you understand the subsidy was voted for a syndieate to do the work ?
-A. Yes; it was to get up a new company.

Q. Were you negotiating at that time ?-A. Yes, sir.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. When you said you knew that Mr. Pacaud was the best inn to employ fron
past experience, had lie acted as your intermediary with the Quebec Government ?-
A. le had acted as my agent.

Q. Between you and the Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. And that is what:you meant by past experience ?-A. Yes.
The lon. Mr. 0'DioNoioE :-Mr. Chairman, Mr. Armstrong desires to put a few

questions to the witness.
Agreed to. '

54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.) .A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

By Mr. C. N. Arnstrong:
Q. A question has been brought in as if to make evidence in a case now pending

between Mr. McFarlane's estate and myself?-A. That is not so, as far as J am
concerned.

Q. You said, Mr. Macdonald, that you met Mr. Mercier in New York with
Mr. Heaton-Armstong ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. After he had asked Mr. leaton-Armstrong to take hold of the Baie dos Cha-
leurs Railway ?-A. Mr. Mercier met him cither in Montreal or Quebec, as I
understood hirn.

Q. At the interview wero.you were pi-osent, it was after ho had spoken to
Mr. Armstrong, and the object of the interview was to come to some arrangement ?
-A. The object of the interview was that I wished while Mr. Hoaton-Arnstrong
was in the country to meet Mr. Mercier, so that after he left there would be no
misunderistanding betweon myself and Mr. Cameron and the Quebec Governrnent as
to what Mr. Ieatoi-Armnstrong told me was told him-that is, $10,000 a mile for
the 40 miles.

Q. I want to know by what authority ho was dealing with another person's
property ?-A. I cannot say.

Q. Did ho not give you any answer on that point ?-A. He did not speak
of it.

Q. How did he propose to deliver the property ?-A. le did not come to that
point. If he was prepared to pass an Aet to giv tlis $10,000 a mile I would lot
take it without settling witi Mr. Riopel, and that was my object in doaling with Mr.
Riopel, and yourself, and Mr. MeFarlane and the Ontario Bank, and ail the parties
interested.

Q. Did Mr. Mercier then or at any other interview agce to have a Bill passed
by which the charter of the company would be taken away ?-A. Mr. Mercier never
agreed to that, as far as I am concerned.

• Q. Did he with Mr. Avrnstrong ?-A. I do not think ho did; I an not prepared
to say.

Q. Then, of course, it was ail supposition as to whether Mr. Mercier would be
able to deliver this property ?-A. If lie did not deliver it we would not go on.
There would be no money spont on either side.

Q. You were proceeding upon the supposition that the amount of subsidy due
or payable upon the construction of the line should be increased to $10,000 instead
of $7,000. At that timo was Mr. Mercier and his Government favourably inclined
towards the railway coml)ipafny ?-A. Of myself J do not know; from outside reports
I should sav he was not.

Q. You wero three days altogether in examining that hundred miles of railway ?
-Yes, about three days.

Q. In your opinion, the last 40 miles of the road were worth $18,000 a mile to
Construct ?-A. Yes.

Q. That was on a cash basis ?-A. Yes.
Q. If half the amount vas payable in bonds, how much per mile would you do

it for ?-A. I am not prepared to say ; I did not figure on that.
Q. What did vou consider the bonds were worth ?-A. Mr. Heaton-Armstrong

was to take them at 75.
Q. Less 42 ?-A. About that.
Q. That would ]eave 33 per cent. net. At $10,000 per mile that would be worth

about $3,300 a mile ?-A. Whatever it figures out to.
Q. if you had been paid $9,000 in cash how much in bonds would you ask

in addition to that ?-A 1 was getting the bonds for the whole road.
Q. But you were being paid $18,000 a mile cash ?-A. For the 40 miles.
Q. But you say the first 60 miles was worth only $12,000 or $13,000 a mile ?-

A. That was in the condition it was thon in.
Q. Would the 60 miles cost !ess than the others?-A. As a whole, it would.
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By the Ron. Mr. Miller:

Q. Would the amount of money you would realize on the [onds and which you
would otherwise receive be more than $12,000 or $13,000 a mile ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. C. N Armstrong :
Q. The bonds would realize $6,600 a mile, that is $20,000 of bonds of 33 per

cent.? And it is on that basis you calculated there was a profit of $80,000 or
$100,000?-A. I am speaking from memory; I have not the figures with me, and
I am not going to be exact as to the amount it cost.

Q. Did you see ail the rolling stock ?-A. No; I saw some of it. The rolling
stock was reported to me.

Q. Who reported it to you?-A. The man who was in charge at Metapedia;
1 asked him about it particularly.

Q. Did he tell you there were new passenger cars, first and second-class, also
baggage, mail and express ?-A. There was only one new engine furnished by
M.cParlane. There were a lot of old cars lying along the enbankment near Carleton.
I understood there was a lot of cars you could not keep on the track.

Q. Then you did not allow nuch for rolling stock?-A. I did not allow a great
deal for it. I allowed what I thought it was worth.

Q. I suppose you were not aware that there vas $75,000 or $100,000 worth of
rolling stock ?-A. I did not .see it; I got a statement of the estimate made by Mr.
Light, and I think ho allowed $60,000 for rolling stock.

Q. That was all you knew about it ?-A. I stated I had not seen it all, but I
made my estimate from the information I got.

Q. In regard to the $175,000 you offered to Riopel. was it not stated that you
were to settle the claini of the Ontario Bank against the MclFarlane estate out of
that ?-A. Yes; 'hat was for the whole thing ; I think the Ontario Bank ofeéred to
take 50 cents on the dollar.

Q. Ai e you sure it vas not 30 cents ?-A. No; I think we, representing Riopel
-we did not offer it ourselves-offered 30 cents.

Q. Do you remember telling me on a certain occasion in the Windsor Ilote], in
presence of Mr. Camerou, that you could settie for 30 cents?-A. I could not say
so myself, because I had no interview with hini, but Mr Cameron had seen him.
My recollection was that ho offered 50 cents.

Q. How much did you calculate, after paying these debts, would be left for Mr.
Riopel out of that $175.000 ?-A. I thought perhaps $30,000 by paying ail outside
claims. McFarlane's claim and yours, by the statement I got from the Department
of the Governneit, vas somewhere about $42,000. 1 an not clear enough to say
positively.

Q. But you refused to take the responsibility of any of those claims at all ?-
A. Yes.

Q. So, if Mr. Riopel accepted your proposal it is quite possible he would not
have had enough noney to pay the caims ?--A. That is ail I was prepared to give.

Q. That is your opinion ?-A. Well, I thinl from the enquiries I made from
the Ontario Bank and the Eastern Townships Bank, and some other claims ho would
have moine money left.

Q. By compromising the cliaim of the Ontario Bank ?-A. Except the debts
estimated for labour, I think all else would have to be compromised.

Q. Did not Mr. Riopel offer to accept $200,000, provided you agreed to settle
the caims out of that ?-A. No; but I have reason to believe he would afterwards
have taken $200,000; when I offered him $175,000 ho said ho did not agree to that,
and the thing broke off. He wanted me afterwards to assume the responsibility of
paying the debts.

Q. You spoke of an interview where I was present. Did Riopel not offer to you,
if you would pay the debts, without paying me anything at ail, that ho was willing
to take a half interest in the enterprise. You dlaim that the profit would be only $80,000
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or $100,000, and that there would be considerable risk ?-A. I will not say he did
not say so, but I declined tohave him in the arrangement, because the arrangement
withi Mr. leaton-Armstrong' was that they must all get out.

Q. At the' end of that interview, did you not forcibly say you, would kave
nothing more to do with the thing ?-A. We had sone sharp words.

Q. Did you not say you would be damned if you had anything to (o with the
concern ?-A. I may have said so.

By Mr. Thom :
Q. When did I state to you I had spent ail that money in boodle, or that it had

been spent in boodie ?-A. In your own office in Montreal.
Q. What time ?-A. In May, after I returned from England; I cannot give the

exact date.
Q. After this contract was closed ?-A. Yes ; I think so.
Q. Who was present ?-A. I am not sure whether Mr. Cameron was present,

but he may have been present; if he was not, thon nobody else was present.
Q. When you returned from England was I in Montreal ?-A. I do not know;

I am not prepared to say ; you may have been in Quebec.
Q. Is it not a thet the first time you met me in my office in Montreal that Mr.

Cooper and Mr. Cameron were present, and I showed you a copy of the Order in
Council ?-A. I do not remember Cooper being present.

Q. Was he in the next office ?-A. I do not think he was. Hie came in after-
ward.. I was sitting in Mr. Cooper's office with Mr. Armstrong ; I think I left the
room and went into your office.

Q. Is it not a fact the first time you met me in my office in Montreal that you
and Mr. Cameron went into this niatter very fully with me, atter I showed you the
Order in Council, that you and Mr. Caneron knew I was going to Quebec that night,
and delayed me until 8.30, in order to get an expression of opinion from me as to
what 1 would take to let you in ?-A., That was some time atetrwards.

Q. I am talking about the tirst time ?-A. That was not the time you left for
Quebec.

Mr. LAFRANCE recalled.
Mr. BARICK-Mr. Chairman, I desire to cali your attention to an Exhibit (No.

15), which shows the proceeds of the discount of the $75,000 letter of credit by the
Banque Nationale ; the proceeds amounted to $74,111.64. Against the proceeds are
debited the $24,000 cheque which was paid to Senator Robitaille, the $16,000 cheque
paid to Mr. Thom, to Mr. Riopel, the $2,250 choque paid to Mr. Cooper, and now I
am proceeding to deal with the balance-31,750, with the exceptionof a smallsum
of $111.64. This $31,750 cheque is referred to in Mr. Armstrong's evidence, and
I call Mr. Lafrance to prove what became of the $31,750.

Q. This is a cheque (Exhibit 15A) of J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, for $31,750,
endorsed " pay to A. Mclntyre Thorn or order, C. N. Armstrong." And that was de-
posited in your bank ?-A. That was deposited in our bank.

Q. Let us see a copy of the account. (Document pioduced.) This is a copy of
the account of $31,750 from your ledger ?-A. Yes.

Q. Showing that on the 29th April, the date of the discount of the $75,000 letter
of credit, there was deposited .to Mr. Thom's credit in your bank $31,750 ?-A. Yes,
sir..

Q. This choque (Exhibit 15A) ?-A. Yes.
Account filed (Exhibit 50).
Q. These are the cheques (cheques produced) which were drawn against it ?-

A. Yes.
Q. How many cheques are there ?-A. Twenty.
Cheques filed, Exhibits 50 A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q, R,

S, T.
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. The Hon. Mr. TAsst-Mr. Thom objects to the production of the choques beyond
the $75,000.

Objection overruled.
fThe COUNEL-I have no desire to pry into Mr. Thom's private affairs; I am

ready to meet him ut any time to go over these cheques and find out which relate to
these matters and which do not. t will refer to nothing that relates to Mr. Thom's
private business.

Q. These choques relate solely to the $31,750. This closed the account of
$31,750 ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did they open it and close it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Had Mr. Thom any other account at the bank besides this one ?-A. Yes ; ho

had one after that.
Q. But never one prior to that ?-A. No.

By the Hon. MUr. Tassé :
Q. Was it a continuation of the same account ?-A. The deposits were made to

the same account, but had iot reference to the $31,750.

AUGUSTE EDGE. of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec. Advocate,
who, being duly sworn, was examined and deposed as follows:-

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :
Q. Where do you live ?-A. In Quebec; I am an advocate there.
Q. You were ut one time Private Secretary, were you not ?-A. Yes.
Q. To whom ?-A. To Colonel Rhodes, Minister of Agriculture; and subsequently

I became Secretary to Mr. Pacaud.
Q. Mr. Ernest Pacaud.-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Are you still his Secr etary ?-A. I am, sir.
Q. Where is your office ?-A. In Quebec, at L'Electeur office.
Q. You are on the staff of L'Electeur ?-A. No, sir; I am employed by Mr.

Pacaud as Private Secretary.
Q. Did you ever sec that document before (Exhibit 20) ?-A. I did; that is my

signature.
Q. What is this document?-A. I suppose it was an authorization given to me

to draw the cheques at La Banque Nationale, but I did not know, and do not know
yet the nature of the cheques I drew.

Q. You knew nothing about the nature of the cheques?-A. No; they were
given to me by Mr. Lafrance, and the letter was sealed.

Q. Who gave you this order for the cheques ?-A. Oh, Mr. Pacaud.
Q. In the office of L'Electeur?-A. I do not recollect well; I think so, but I can

not say.
Q. What did Mr. Pacaud say to you ?-A. He said to go to the bank and draw

the choques that were to be given to me by the Cashier. He did not specify at all
what were the choques that were to be given to me, but to ask for the choques, be-
cause 1 suppose ho had proviously seen the Cashier.

Q. And you went to the bank and got the cheques-and what did you with
them ?-A. I took them to Mr. Pacaud.

Q. Where are they now ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Mr. Pacuud has not told you ?-A. No.
Q. Where is Mr. Pacaud now ?-A. He sailed for Europe on Saturday last. Of

course, I did not seo him go aboard, but ho left for New York to sail for Europe.
Q. On what day did ho leave Quebec ?-A. On Monday afternoon last; I think

it was the 10th.
Q. Did ho return to Quebec after ho left ?-A. No, sir ; not to my knowledge.

I am sure ho did not return.
Q. Did ho leave Quebec on Monday last to come to Ottawa ?-A. No, sir.
Q. And turned back ?-A. No, ho left Quebec on Monday by the Quebec Central

for New York.
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Q. With any intention of coming to Ottawa ?-A. He left on Sunday for Ottawa.
Q. And where did he go on Sunday ?-A. On board the train he was told that

as the summons specified documents he had botter corne down and wait for the
summons.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. How does he know these facts ?

By Mr. Barwick, Counselfor Opposants.

Q. Who told you that ?-A. Mr. Pacaud. On the Friday before Mr. Paeaud told
me that he was leaving on Saturday for Murray Bay, tojoin his family, and to oescort
his wife to Murray Bay, and lie told me to spend the whole day at his office, and
wait for that order. I did so. On Sunday morning he came back from Murray
Bay. and the first question he put to me was if I had seen the sulmmons. My answer
was no. When ho saw that, he left for Ottawa on Sunday, but he returned, as I
explained a moment ago. On Monday till the afternoon I had not seen the sum-
mons. On Monday in the afternoon we had not seen the summons, neither the
detective, and Mr. Pacaud left for New York, as it was understood by a telegram he
had sent to the Committeo that he would leavo that day Ior his bolidays. He was
asking, if I remember well, to be summoned on Monday. We had no summons on
Monday, and the detective came only to Quebec on Tuesday.

Q. Did you go to the train on Sunday with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. He went to the
Canadian Pacific Railway train and bought a ticket at the ticket office. I do not
know for what place the ticket was bought; there was a gentleman with him.

By the Hon. Mr. Snowball:

Q. Did he tell you he was going to Ottawa ?-A. Certainly.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller :

Q. Did he tell you when he would leave New York for Europe ?-A. I was told
the same week ; it was on the French line; I think by the steamer " La Turrenne."

By M1r. Barwick:

Q. lere is his name on the sailing list of that steamer-Mr. and Mrs. E. Pacaud
on the 15th of August, that is the gentleman to whom you are Private Secettary?-
A. Yes.

Q. Ho sailed from New York to Havre on the 15th of August; that is apparent
from this list?-A. It appears to be so.

Q. What did he tell you on Monday about having seen Mr. Mercier on Sunday ?
-A. He did not speak to me about that.

Q. Did he tell you lie had seen Mr. Mercier on Sunday ?-A. I do not remember.
Q. Are you sure ?-A. He may have pronounced the name of Mr. Mercier, but

I do not remembor. I would like to continue in French.

Witnes then continued his evidence in the French lnguage, which was
translated by the Clerk of the Committee,

Q. Who told you that \Ur. Mercier and Mr. Pacaud met on Sunday ?-A. I never
said ho had met him.

Q. Did anyone tell you that Mr. Mercier aid Mr. Pacaud met on that Sunday ?
-A. I do not know anything about it.

Q. You quite understand the question ?-A. I do not know whether Mr. Pacaud,
in taking the afternoon train, met Mr. Mercier; lie might have met him at Ste.Anne
or he might not. The train Mr. Pacaud took passed Ste. Anne; except that I do not
know whether the Sunday train stopped at Ste. Anne or not.
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By the Hfon. AIr. Tassé :
Q. Have you communicated with Mr. Pacaud since he left for New York ?-

A. No.
Q. This is Mr. Pacaud's newspaper, L'Electeur, which I hand you. In it there

is a letter fron Ernest Pacaud in answer to a letter from Mr. Mercier ?-A. I think so.
Q. Read the letter ?
Witness read the letter in French, and it was translated by the Clerk of the Com-

mittee as follows :
To the Journalists of the Province of Quebec.

"I ask my confrères to be good enough to take communication ofthe invitation
which has been given them by the Hon. Mr. Mercier, Prime Minister of the Province.
In order to prevent all misunderstanding I believe that it is preferable that no
special invitations should be given, and I beg my confrères to be content with the
letter of Mr. Mercier. Every paper which is desirous of being represented under
these circumstances is requested to inform me thereof between now and this day
week, giving the names and the surnames and rosidences of the journalists. As may
be scen byMr. Mercier's letter, this information is indispensable for the preliminary
arrangement lor the reception. The Honorable Mr. Mercier's invitation is given
to all, without distinction of party, nationality or religion, and in consequence in a
large and generous spirit. I hope my confrères will appreciate Mr. Mercier's
thoughtfulness and will accept his invitation.-(Sgd.) ERNEST PACAUD.

Q. You see that Mr. Pacaud's letter appears in L'Electeur on the 8th of August?
-A. Yes.

Q. You see that Mr. Pacaud's invitation is given to journalists to be answered
between thon and the week after ?-A. Yes.

Q. Consequently, the invitation would be answerable up to the 16th ?
Objection was here taken to the questions, and they were not followed up.

By the Hon. Mr. 2iclnnes :

Q. Was Mfr. Pacaud aware that he was required before this Committee to state
what disposition he made of' the $100,000 which it is alleged he received ?-A. I
never sav any document or saw that.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud on Saturday or Sunday before leaving Quebec for Ottawa,
give you any idea of the evidence he would give before this Committee ?-A. No.

By the Hon. fr. Tassé:

Q. You drew Mr. Pacaud's cheques from La Banque Nationale ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you go to any other bank to get Mr. Pacaud's cheques ?-A. To the

Banque du Peuple and the Union Bank.

By 3r. Barwick:
Q. What is the date you got the cheques froni the Union Bank ?-I do not

remermber. I think it was on the same day I got the other cheques.
Q. Ilere is a document, Exhibit 51. That is Mir. Pacaud's signature ?-A. I think

s0.
Q. That is a cheque payable to Henry Harris for $280 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Henry Harris is the agent of the French line at Quebec ?-A. I do not know;

I think Mr. Stocking is the agent for the French line.
Q. Is R. M. Stocking agent for the French line at Quebec ?-A. Yes.

The Committee then adjourned.
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THE SENATE COMMITTEE IRoom No. 8,
FRIDAY, 21st August, 1891.

Mr. BARWICK :-Mr. Chairman, I have the statement of the notes send in by Mr.
Webb of the Union Bank, giving the dates of the notes. This statement shews that
the note for $5,000 which was paid on the 11th July was due on the 13th July, was
a four months note, dated 10th March, and was made by Ernest Pacaud and endorsed
by the Hon. Mr. Mercier, Mr. Tarte, Senator C. A. P. Pelletier, and the Hon. Charles
Langelier. The note of $3,000 which was paid on the 11th July was due 4th August,
a four months note, dated lst April, made by Mr. Pacaud and endorsed by Mr.
Mercier and others. The second note of $5,000 wbich was paid on 9th May, due
18th May, one month after date the 15th April, made by Mr. Pacaud, and endorsed
by the Hon. Mr. Mercier and others. The note for $400 was due 14th May, was a
twenty day note, was dated 21mt April, maker Mr. Tarte, endorser Mr. Pacaud.
(Document filed, exhibit 52.) I have here the next exhibit, which refers to a deposit
of bonds with the Dominion Government, which was referred to in Mr. Bradley's
evidence, and in a short memorandum giving the history of the road. The last clause
of that memorandum reads:-

"The road not having been completed on lst December, 1888, the balance of
subsidy unpaid ($244,500) lapsed and was re-voted by the 49 Victoria, Chapter 17,
by this same authority the subsidy of $3.200 per mile on the thirty miles from the
seventy-first to the hundredth was doubled up on the thirty miles from the forty
first to the seventieth mile, making the subsidy on this section $6,400 per mile. The
company depositing with the Government bonds of the company to the value of
£83,000 sterling as security for the fulfilment by the company of their undertaking
to build the section from the seventieth to the one hundredth mile without Federal
subsidy."

This letter is addressed by A. P. Bradley, Secretary of the Department of Rail-
ways and Canals, and is addressed to J. M. Courtney, Deputy Minister of Finance.

"SIR,-I am instructed to enclose to you for safe keeping 83 bonds dated the
2nd January last of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company Nos. 0001 to 0083 for
£500 sterling each, with 50 coupons attached for £12 10s. payable on 2nd July
and 2nd January in each year from 2nd July, 1889, to 2nd January, 1914. These
bonds have been received in conformity with the provision of the Railway Subsidy
Act of last Session, being equal in amount, and over the sum of $200,000 as security
for the completion of thirty miles of that company's line from 70th to 100th mile."

(Document filed, Exhibit 53).
I put in next Exhibit 54. This is dated 14th June, 1888, and is a transfer from

the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to the Manager of the Ontario Bank at
Montreal, and the intervention of Charles N. Armstrong, and this document transfers
certain Provincial subsidies.

THE CHAIRMAN-DOes it mention the amount?
MR. BARwICK-It transfers to the manager of the Ontario Bank in Montreal in

trust $75,000 payable by the Province of Quebec on completion of the fifth and sixth
sections of ten miles each-miles 40 to 60 on account and in view of the land subsidy
granted to the said company by and in virtue of the Act of the Legislature of the
Province of Quebec, 45 Victoria, chap. 23, the said sum so payable as aforesaid and
hereby transferred being equivalent to thirty-five cents per acre upon two hundred
thousand acres of lpnd, being the subsidy upon the fifth and sixth sections of the
hne of the said company. That comprises the twenty miles which Mr. McFarlane
was to build. (Document filed, Exhibit 54.)

Exhibit 55 is dated the 14th June, 1888, and is a signification from Mr. Arm-
Strong from the Provincial Treasurer of Quebec, mentioned in Exhibit 54. Docu-
ment filed Exhibit 55.)

97
2A-7

54 Victoria. AppendiX (NO. 2A.) A. 1891



The next Exhibit I put in is a letter from Mr. Machin, the Assistant Treasurer of
the Province of Quebec, dated 13th December, 1889, and in explanation of this I
desire to refer to the Sessional Papers of 1890, Volume 23[. Sessional Paper No. 7,
page 62, points out how $29,046, part of the $70,000 transferred to the Ontario Bank,
was retained by the Quebec Government and how it was applied notwithstanding
the transfer Io the Ontario Bank. Page 120 also deals with that, and this letter is
the Government's explanation of what the bank has always claimed was a misappro-
priation of the subsidy, and I may say that in spite of every effort, we have never
got any relief on iliat point.

The Hon. Mr. POwER-lis this matter now in litigation ?
Mir. BARwiic-It cannot go into litigation without the fiat of the Lieutenant-

Governor of' Quebec, which fiat we cannot obtain.
(Document filed Exhibit 56.)
The last Exhibits I propose to put in are extracts from the officiai reports of the

Province of' Quebec, and extracts from the Statutes which affect the question before us,
an extracts from the Hon. Mr. Mercier's speech delivered in the House on the intro-
duction of this Bill. With the permission of the Committee I would like to arrange
these in proper order, and put the proper hcadings on them, as thly have only come
into my hands now.

(Documents filed Exhibits 57, 58, 59, 60, 61.)

ALEXANDER LUDERs LIGHT, Civil Engineer, of the City of Quebec, in the Pro-
vince of Quebec, being duly sworn was examined by Mr. Barwick, Counsel for the
Opposants:-

Q. You aie a Civil Engineer of great experience and occupied an official
position ?-A. For many years I was Government Engineer for the Province of
Quebec.

Q. As such had you anything to do with this Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. I
had all to do with it. I was Chief Engineer of the Company, and with the consent
of the Government I was Engineer of the Quebec Government as well.

Q. This road was divided into 10-mile sections ?-A. Lt was.
Q. And the sections were divided as you see them in Exhibit No. 5 ?-A. They

were.
Q. A E being one section of 10 miles, and so on, and K, L, M. N, how many?-

A. That was other miscellaneous work; that went to work done between the 60th
and 100th miles.

Q. Who was the contractor?-A. C. N. Armstrong.
Q. Are you acquainted with the particulars of his contract?-A. I never saw it,

I understood it was a bond contract. He was to be paid in bonds at the rate of
$20,000 a mile.

Q. le was not to get it in cash?-A. Well, I did not understand that.
Q. Who were the sub-contractors for the first 20 miles ?-A. Messrs. O'Br'ien,

Macdonald, Taylor & Rogers.
Q. Did they complete their work as sub-contractors ?-A. They completed it as

far as they were permitted, but Mr. Armstrong made an arrangement with them to
relinquish thoir work, when he was not in very good finances-a mutual arrange-
ment was made that they should relinquish, which they did.

Q. Who were the contractors for the part of the road between the 20th and 30th
miles, section "G "?-A. A Nova Scotia firm, a man named McGr'egor, I think. I
think he completed his work very well. He did not ballast it, but he did a good
doal.

Q. Was there any sub-contractor fron the 30th to the 40th mile, before Mr.
McFar'lane went there ?-A. There was no sub-contractor; Mr. Armstrong himself'
I understood did a certain amount of work, not much, some grading and clearing.

Q. How much?-A. Oh, probably 50,000 cubic yards of earth work, more or
less. I saw ail these estimates and my recollection is that the work was about 50,000
cubic yards.
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Q. What happened to his workmen, so far as their pay was concerned with
respect to that work ?-A. I ierely know generally; the men struck on account of
non-payment of wages; I merely know there was a great row; they were not paid.

Q. When was that ?-A. I think in the spring of 1888 or the winter of 1887-88.
Q. When did Mr. MacFarlane go in ?-A. In the spring of 1888.
Q. And what was the position of those workmen's wages when Mr. MacFarlane

came in ?--A. I believe they were still unpaid.
Q. How were they settled ?-A. I understood-it is mere hearsay-Mr. MaceFar-

lane went and paid them. The first thing to do was to pay them or they would not
allow them on the work.

Q. Who finished O'Brien's work on the first 20 miles ?-Mr. MacFarlane; it is
not yet finished; well I should say the 20 miles was finished; MacFarlane did it.

Q. The second 20 miles was finished before MacFarlarie went there ?-A. No,
Mr. MacFarlane finished that; it was in a very unfinished state.

Q. Mr. MacFarlane's contract covered what besides ?-A. lie was to finish froi
the lst to the 40th mile; it is not yet finished and completed from the 40th to the
60th mile.

Q. What work had been done from the 40th to the 60th mile when ho went
in ?-A. Nothing that I can renember.

Q. Who did the track-laying on the road ?-A. The first 20 miles was laid I
think by O'Brien, and the other gentlemen who were sub-contractors, or a greater
portion at any rate.

Q. What other work did Armstrong do upon the line of road besides what you
have mentioned ?-A. Aftor the failure of MacFarlane or after he had closed down,
about that time, he began work between the 60th and 70th mile grading and clear-
ing principally.

Q. What amount of work did ho do on that section ?-A. I should imagine of
actual value about $20,000 worth of work and furnishing material. He furnished
timber for the Cascapedia Bridge; I should say about $20,000 worth of work actually
done and supplies furnished on that portion.

Q. Who paid thom?-A. I do not know. I know the men struck there again.
Q. How were the mon who struck thon paid ?-A. By hearsay I understand that

Mr. J. C. Langelier was appointed Commissioner by the Quebec Government, and I
think ho went and paid off all thoso liabilities; ho went down to pay ff those
liabilities and I understand ho paid them.

Q. When was that ?-A. In the autumn of 1889, I think.
Q. Who was the enginoer of the Baie des Chaleurs Company ?-A. I was and

also of the Quebec Government.
Q. What position did Mr. Leduc occupy ?-A. le was Mr. Armstrong's engi-

neer; his name is, I believe, Mr. Denis Leduc: ho is a civil engineer.
Q. What were Mr. Leduc's duties as engineer for Armstrong ?-A. lie took

particular charge of the work and made the surveys and set out the work and
generally made the measurements for the estimates; he took acting charge for Mr.
Armstrong.

Q. Had ho any duty in connection with the preparation of the estimates ?-A.
He made the measurements and probably all the estimates showing what work had
been done and showed the cost of the work.

Q. Were those astimates the basis of the payment of the subsidies?-A. The
estimates -made by Mr. Leduc were the estimates for the sub-contractors. He made
two sets of estimates......

Q. Not too fast please. Who made the estimates which governed the payment
of the subsidies ?-A. Mr. Leduc.

Q. These are the estimates of which we have been speaking ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did these come to you in the ordinary course of your duty ?-A. Always.
Q. What was your duty ?-A. To carefully check the quantities of everythin.

and the prices, to see that they were properly moneyed out... . that they were
correct estimate. That I always did very carefully.
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Q. And you certified these ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was done with them?-A. One copy was for myself and one I suppose

went to his employer.
Q. What became of your copy?-A. I have them yet.
Q. How did they reach the Government ?-A. I had nothing to do with giving

them to the Government. I made reports to the Government.
Q. On your estimates?-A. Yes ; telling them how much work was done.
Q. To what Department ?-A. The Minister of Railways.
Q. Who was the Minister of Railways ?-A. Mr. Garneau.
Q. You mean Commissioner of Railways, that is the proper title I think ?-Yes

Commissioner of Railways.
Q. These estimates you have been speaking of show truly the amount of work

done and the cost of it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And were sent in as a truthful statement in order that the Government

might be nided in paying the subsides due and granted by the Provincial legis-
lature ?-A. These estimates did not go to the Government. I made my own special
report.

Q. I mean these reports based upon the estimates ?-A. I made my own report
independent of the estiniate.

By the Hon. M'r. 1ller:

Q. Your reports were based upon the estimates were they not ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Barwick (Counsel for Opposants):
Q. And embodied the results of the estimates ?-A. Yes.
Q. And on your reports which were truthful reports and intended to be so, the

Government paid the subsidies ?-A. Yes.
Q. I place in your hand exhibit 5 which is a statement of account between the

Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company and Mr. Armstrong with a certificate of balance
coming to Mr Arnstrong in accordance with the terms of his contract. At the top
of the exhibit are a series of figures apparently based upon certificates of A. L.
Light; that is yourself?-A. Yes.

Q. And this document originally concluded, you will see, by certifying that
$298.943.62 was due to Mr. Armstrong in accordance with the terms of the contract
with the Company. You notice the word " due " is struck out?-A. Yes.

Q. You heard the explanation that that word was struck out by Mr. Riopel
and that he wrote instead these words: Is a correct statement of estimate of work
done and remaining unpaid ?-A. Yes.

Q. This document is dated 22nd April, 1891 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, will you be kind enough to give the Committee your opinion upon

these figures and any explanation the Committee ought to have of them.?-A. May
I explain them in my own words?

Q. Certainly.-A. 1 have already stated that two sets of certificates were made
out, the certificate that I had, to do with it as chief engineer of the Company was
the certificate between them and their contractor, Mr. C. N. Armstrong who, was to
be paid in bonds at the rate of $20,000 a mile. This exhibit that is here shown, as near
as I can remember,represents the certificates that were given by me to the Company
and of which Mr. Armstrong got a copy. They are correct and I think probably
they are the only certificates that the President of the Company, who has said they
were correct, had any cognisance of. They would go directly to him and I have
spoken to himn about them several times. There was another set of certificates as I
have already stated that were between the contractor Mr. C. N. Armstrong and his
sub-contractors. They give the same quantities, exactly the same quantities, but
they give much lower prices than the prices to him, tho value of the work as done
by these sub-contractors and in accordance with the prices in their sub-contract.
These certificates I also have. They are at much lower prices than the others
because they were to be paid in cash got from the subsidies and thèrefore you can
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hardly judge without both sets of these certificates before you. You see there is
only one set here and the others you have not. I have then and Mir. Leduc has
them: there is quite a difference between these two certificates. The one represents
bonds at $20,000 per mile the other represents the value of the work at fair prices
by the sub-contractor.

Q. How much more are the certificates shown in exhibit 5 in gross amount than the
amount of the certificates showing the work done and the actual cost ?-A. I will have
to give merely my impressions. These things could he had exactly if the Committee
of the Senate chose to send for them. Their prices for actual work in the contrac-
tors, certificates to these sub-contracts I should say were from forty to fifty per cent
lywer than the others. I will give two instances that I remember. The earth
work in the certificates here shown was put in at the rate of 40 cents a yard.
Remember the quantities were the same in both certificates I think in the sub-
contractors certificates it was something like 25 cents a yarl. That would made a
difference of about fifty per cent. The price of rock in these certificates was $2.25
cents per yard; in the sub-contractors' estimates, if I remember right it was about
$1.25. That difference was carried all through the actual work. In the materials
furnished, there was not that difference because they were easily bought.

Q. So, Mr. Light, when you took these certificates sent into the Government,
upon which the subsidies were to be paid, and proceeded to make up the second set
of certificates shown in exhibit 5, you hoisted all the prices to make a total of

20,000 a mile?-A. That was for the company, I did not do that for the Govern-
ment.

Q. That is the certificates on Exhibit 5 ?-A. Yes.
Q. These are company's certificates ?-A. Yes.
Q. And for the purposes ofthe company in order to show $20,000 a mile which

they had contracted to pay Mr. Aimstrong, you raised the prices from the Govern-
ment's estimate proportionately ?-A. Yes.

Q. So that $1,235,297.55 is the result of the raising of the certificates ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the actual cost of the work was about fifly per cent. less than that ?-

A. That should be investigated by the Committee, they can get the exact figures?
Q. How much above ?-A. About forty or fifty per cent. more or less.
Q. The certificates will show?-A. The certificateswill show exactly.
Q. I know the reason but will you be kind enough to explain to the Committee

why you did not bring the cortificates with you?-A. I got my notice to come here
at half-past eleven in the day, and to bc here next day to do so I had to leave in an
hour and a half. I could not get the papers that were required in an hour and a
half. I gave up my bouse a year and a half ago, and all my papers had been stowed
in different boxes, papers referring to these and other matters.

Q. You had not time to bring the papers? You hastened to obey the summons
of the Committee ?-A. Yes.

Q. Do these certificates (the second set of certificates shown here) pretend to
«show that the amounts therein given represent the cost of the work ?-A. No they
represent more than the cost of the work a good deal.

Q. What would any one on looking at them take these certificates to mean ?-
A. It is headed fairly and properly: This certificate is meant to represent the bond
price of $20,000, it is a pertectly fair transaction.

Q. It is stated to represent $20,000 a mile in bonds.-A. Yes; if these bonds
represent fifty cents on the dollar, Mr. Armstrong's price would be $10,000 a mile;
if they brought par it would be $20,000 a mile.

Q. So these certificates were intended to govern the dealings between the
Company and Mr. Armstrong; and any practical man who looked at them would
know these certificates were not the amount giving the cost of the work ?-A. Well
if he had been over the work and knew about it as I did, or as Mr. Leduc did.

Q. Well looking at these certificates the results of which we see in Exhibit 5,
is there anything there to induce a man looking at them to believe they represented
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the cost of the work ?-A. I should certainly think there is-the cost of the work
in bonds, I mean.

Q. I want to find out whethor on the face of them they were honest certifi-
cates ?-A. Oh perfectly honest between the company and the contractor ; their
arrangement was to pay him $20,000 a mile -and these certificates represented that.

Q. There is no value fixed on the bonds ?-A. No.

By Hon. Mr. Miller :
Q. Would it represent the facts correctly if that statement was to be met by a

cash subsidy ?-A. I never saw the contract between Armstrong and the company.
Q. What I mean to say is, if the company expected to get in payment of these

estimates cash out of the subsidies, would these estimates then be correct?-A. They
would give too much by about 40 per cent or 50 per cent.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. The amount Mr. Armstrong was to get from the eompany depended on the

price the bonds brought ?-A. That was my understanding.
Q. And that was your understanding in making up these certificates ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you hear J. J. Macdonald's evidence with regard to the work ?-A. I

did.
Q. Do you agree with him ?-A. The matter can be so easily ascertained it is

not fair to ask me. These things aie very doubtful ; in the matter of the cost of
the work, you can find it out easily by sending for the certificates ; it would be a
more guess on my part.

Q. But your guess is valuable, I want to know what you think of Mr. Macdo-
nald's figures given yesterday as the cost of the work donc and the cost of the work
to be done ?-A. As to his estimate of the cost of the work to be done, I agr'ee with
it exactly ; the other I would rather not say anything about. It can be ascertained
by sending for these certificates and for Mr. Leduc who made them. He could easi-
]y be had and I am willing to come here and work upon the cost of the road.

Q. What about the character of the work done, that cannot bc ascertained by
papers ?-A. I heard Mr. Macdonald, I would not say I disagreed with him, but
even ho is at a loss without quantities.

Q. Would you undertake to contradict his statement ?-A. No, ho is a man of
great experience and judgment, but ho is not an expert, although ho had an expert
with him, and then he only took a day and a balf to go over the work.

Q. Have you known of a similar case where payments were to be made solely
in bonds ?-A. I do not thiik I have ; there is no reason it should not be so.

Q. There is nothing improper about it ?-A. There is nothing to prevent it, no
reason why a man should not take his risk and sell his bonds.

By the Chairman:
Q. With reference to the report which you make to the Government, which I

presume mentions the quantities or what was payable out of the subsidies, that I
presume was based upon the lower estimate of cash or the higher estimate payable
in bonds ?-A. I always made my own independent reports which I think the Govern-
ment had perfect confidence in. They knew what they have to pay, so much a mile;
I would make full report upon the work done without giving any special quantity,
and telling them the work was, say between the 20th and the 30th mile, completed
in a proper and workmanlike manner, and that it was safe to open for traffic.

Q. Had that anything to do with the price ?-A. No. Nothing to do with either
of those figures in exhibit No. 5. If they wanted explanations I went before Mr.
Garneau and explained them to him.

By the Hon. Mr. Bolton:

Q. It has been stated here that the subsidies amounted to about $15,000 a mile.
Were the certificates you gave value for these $15,000 ?-A. They did not give any
figures, the Government were perfectly able to judge for themselves, both Federal
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and Local; they knew how much they were to give and they gave no more; and
when the road was completed, in 10 miles sections, they paid the same thing, no
matter how costly the work was.

By the Bon. Mr. McInnis (B. C.)

Q. How much did the subsidies amount in these different 10 mile sections ?-
A. I could hardly tell you ; the Dominion paid so much and the local Government
so much; I had nothing to do with it ; I do not know about the subsidies except
generally as you would yourself. [t was not my special business.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. Do you remember an interview in Ottawa, a couple of years ago, when the

subject of building the whole 100 miles was discussed with Mr. MacFarlane ?-A. I
was called here specially in the winter of 1888-89. The interview was held in the
Tower Rooin of the House of Commons, Mr. Armstrong, Mr. Riopel, Mr. MaeFarlane
and myself were present. • Mr. Riopel was managing director of the road.

Q. Be kind enough to tell us what you were called together for and what took
place ?-A. As I understand it, I was called to witness a contract or hear it read, at
any rate, between the company and Mr. MacFarlane in which Mr. MacFarlane w as to
build the lance of the 40 miles between the 60th and the 100th miles of the road.
This contract was prepared I understood by Mr. MacFarlane and Mr. Armstrong, and
Mr. Armstrong was a consenting party to it; in faet I believe he was anxious to
have it executed. The contract was read, over clause by clause to him and MacFarlane
and to those assembled. I suppose 1 might give my opinion as an expert upon that
contract. It was a perfectly satisfactory contract, satisfactory to MacFarlane and
satisfactory to Armstrong and perfectly satisfactory to me, certainly.

Q. As ropresenting the company ?-A. I was the engineer of the company. It
was not satisfactory to Mr. Riopel. There was a clause in it that the sub contractor,
MacFarlane was to own the road until lie was paid and satisfied. Mr. Riopel entirely
objected to ihat clause and would not execute the contract unless it -was struck out.
MacFarlane would not strike it out. le thought he had a right to protect himself.
I thought the same, and I think Mr. Armstrong, who seemed to be perfectly fair,
thought likewise. Mr. Riopel would have none of it and broke up the arrangement.
I thought it fair and just. I asked him where would he get a contrator to take
money from the bank and build a road and hand it over to him unpaid. I went down
immediately afterwards to the Senate and gave the President of the road my opinion
about it. I thought it perfectly fair and just. I had nothing more to do with it. I
thought it was a most serious mistake not to carry it out and I told the President so.
I said to him, if the contract is carried out, you will get the road completed and you
will probably hold the county, and if it is not completed you will lose the whole thing.
I thought it was a fatal error and think so still.

Q. Do you know anything of Mr. MacFarlane's ability at that time to carry out
his contract and build the road ?-A. Merely by hearsay. I was told that the Ontario
Bank was pre pared to furnish Mr. MacFarlane with all the money he required, that
there were su bsidies due, and I thought it was a capital arrangement for the company.
That was mierely what Mr. MacFarlane told me. Ido not know myself personally. I
had not seen the Ontario Bank.

Q. I forgot to ask you one other question with regard to exhibit 5. What in
your opinion was the value of the work done by Armstrong himself ?-A. I should
think the work done by Armstrong-he may have furnished materials, I do not know
of-but the actual work done with pick and shovel was worth I should say altogeher
$40,000.

Q. Not $1,235,297 ?-A. It may have been between $40,000 and $50,000, outside
of supplies he fnrnished, rails and cars. I do not know he furnished them, but if so
that would add to the amount, but of earth, rock, grubbing, fencing work, $40,4J00 to
$50,000 would be the actual work done by Armstrong personally. He did work
between the 60th and 70th miles and between the 30th and 40th miles. Those two
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places lie began work upon, and in each case the men struck for wages and other
people paid them-I do not know the whole, but the bulk of it.

Mr. BARICK-And I say to the committee that it appears, from the papers put
in, that the Quebec Government paid almost all of it.

WITNESS-[ understood that Mr. J. C. Langelier paid the whole thing very
handsomely and very properly.

By the Chairman;
Q. Can you give the Committee any information as to the payment of a subsidy

of $140,000 after Mr. MacFarlane failed ?-A. I can give no information further than
what appears in the letter from Mr. Riopel. In reply to a letter of Mr. MacFarlane's,
which was published in the Gazette, 1890, I think, in which he went into a full state-
ment of his claims and how lie had been treated on that road, which letter I read.
In a short time afterwards it was replied to by Mr. Riopel, as managing director of
the road, and, if my memory does not fail me, Mi. Riopel therein stated that Mr.
MacFarlane not having finished his contract. I took Lhe balance of the subsidies and
paid them to Mr. Armstrong, as I ought to do. I think those were the words. I do
not know the exact quantity of these subsidies. It is a matter I have nothing to do
with. But it is in the papers and these subsidies can be found out.

Q. What was your recollection of the figures ?-A. I think it was $14),000. It
was in the Gazette and can be had.

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:
Q. What wvas the date; what month ?-A. I could not give you that. I may

say I was very much struck at the time, because I thought if that $140,000 had been
paid to Mr. MacFarlane ho would not have failed and he would have finished the
contract. I could not see why it was given to Mr. Armstrong, who had done so
little work. That is what struck me as an honest man and an outsider. I was very
much struck with it.

Q. What were the actual circumstances which stopped Mr. Macfarlane in his
work?-A. In the first place, on the 40 miles ho undertook to furnish, there was
twice, I should say speaking generally, twice as much work to do as had been repre-
sented to him there was to do. There was a certain price put in each contract to cover
this quantity of work, and if there was twice as much work to do there was only
half the money in the subsidy to finish it. He did finish the work as far as lie was
able, perfectly regardless of how much he got. Therefore, that would be a trouble.
Again, ho was unable to finish the contract because he was not given his bridges.
The bridges given to him to be put in turned out to be too small, and after a certain
freshet that occurred in October, 1888, all the existing bridges were condemned by
myself as being too small. I took Mr. Riopel up to them and showed him it was
vain to attempt to put these bridges in. One of these had already gone down at
Escuminac.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:

Q. The openings were too small?-A. Yes.
By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :

Q. Mr. Macfarlane was to finish the work on the first 40 miles and was to be
paid a percentage on the cost ?-A. Yes.

Q. What was the percentage ?-A. 12 per cent. on labour.
Q. What on material?-5 per cent., I think, on the things he had to buy. We

could easily buy them; simply give an order and have them delivered.
Q. What was the amount of subsidies he got ?-A. I do not know.
Q. It was $70,000 as it appears here ?-A. I think so.
Q. So that he had to do double the amount of work on that section that was

represented, and then, instead of receiving double, he only got $70,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember a strike that took place on Mr. Armstrong's section ?-A.

I do.
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Q. That is the section from..... ?-A. The sixtieth to the seventieth mile.
Q. When did that occur?--A. I think in the autumn of 1888.
Q. Before Mr. MacFarlane stopped or after ?-A. I think about the same time.

iEach one claimed that his failure was due to the other, MacFarlane said Armstrono-
failed and my men struck, and Armstrong said that MacFarlane's men struck ani
rny men strulck; each one accused the other. I cannot tell the worth of it.

Q. How long did that wash out keep back Mr. MarFarlane's work ?-A. It
occurred in October, 1888, and it must have kept him back very materially.

Q. Mr. MacFarlane tells me five months?-A. It kept him back a long time.
le had to rebridge it. I said: "' Why do not ycu go in and put in a larger bridge."
Ie said he could not get any order for a larger bridge. He put in temporary
trestie work and it took him a long time to put it in.

Q. Mr. MacFarlane says ho was detained five months ?-A. I do not know, but
it detained him materially.

Q. Was there any delay in his gel ting the order to put in the long spans ?-A.
There was a great delay. He did not get his order to put in the long spans until
two monts after his contract had aetually expired.

Q. I think at the end of 1888. A. He did not get orders to put in the longer
span until March 1889.

Q. The wash out was in October, 1888?-A. Yes; I would say on my own
account that I took Mr. Riopel there to show him this washed out bridge, and I
showed him another one that was entirely too small, and told him they were all too
small and I should condemn the whole of them, and if my condemnation as engineer
Of the company was not enough-and ho did not seem to think much of that-I
would bring the Local Government to bear. They were entirely too small, and I
Would not approve of them. Mr. Armstrong came to me and said that there was
such a difference of opinion between him and me, or botween his engineer and me,
would I consent to another engineer being brought in whose opinion could be
taken. I said : Yes, if ho docs not want a job, if ho is not looking for my place. They
suggested Mr. Marcus Smith, of the Department here. I said yes at once, ho is a
first rate man. I accepted him at once. But the Department would not let him
come away; they did not wish to mix the Federal Government up with the Local
in any way. They then proposed another man, Mr. John C. Bailey, of Toronto. I
did not know anything about him myself. I had never worked with him. But I
had always heard him spoken of as a good engineer and an honest man. I said that
is enough; fetch him on. He came on in the winter and wanted me to go over the
road with him. I said : No, I have made my report; there is the work, go over it
and see it. He went over the work at the end of February, I think, and made a
Most careful examination of everything, and asked the engineer who went with him
what did Mr. Light say to put in here, and when ho was told ho said: " Did Mr.
Light say that. Ho is a man of experience, but if ho had not said that I would have
gone higher." He went through the whole of the works, and not only substantiated
overything I said, but would have gone higher. But his report did not come into
the hands of the Company until March, three months after the work had been taken
away fron Mr. Macfarlane.

Q. You met Senator Robitaille throughout these transactions a great deal ?-
A. A great deal. I found hini, I may say, a most honest man, and most anxious
that the work should be properly and faithfully and honestly carried ont. I went
to him in everything; if there was a difficulty with the othor men I would go at
Once to Senator -Robitaille.

Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE-Will the Committee permit Mr. Armstrong to put a few
questions to the witness for me.

This being agreed to, witness was examined by Mr. Armstrong.
Q. You say you have never seen the contract be ween the company and myself?

- I never did. It was not brought to my knowledge.
Q. Still you say the price of the contract was to be paid entirely in bonds ?-A.

I said I understood it was to be.
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Q. At all events that the estimates made by my engineer and submitted to you
was on the basis of bonds entirely ?-A. One set.

Q. Was there more than one set ?-A. There were two sets of estimates submitted
by your engineer. There was one set for the sub-contractor and the other for your-
self, I believe.

Q. What had you to do with my estimates ?-A. They were brought to me te
certify and approve of them. I think the sub-contractors felt more comfortable if I
approved of those estimates.

Q. That referred to the quantities ?-A. Yes, the prices I had nothing to do
with.

Q. The quantities furnished my engineers were exactly the same as furnished
my contrictors ?-A. I think so.

Mr. ARMsTRONo-In the evidence bere is a statement of the manner of payments
as follows:

" During the construction of the line from the end of the first 40 miles to the
terminus of Paspebiac, the contractor shall bo paid in cash 60 per cent of the monthly
estimates of the company's engineer; and upon the completion of each section of 10
miles, and as soon as the subsidies from the Governments of Canada and Quebec,
shall have been reeeived for the said 10-mile section, the contractor shall receive out
of the said subsidies the balance of his contract price for the said section, less 15 per
cent to be retained as guarantee until the completion of the line to Paspebiac. Al
the said payments shall be made in a proportion of cash and debentures of the com-
pany as will be necessary to establish the paymient of the whole of the price of his
contract in the proportion of six thousand four hundred dollars in cash, and thirteen
thousand six hundred dollars in debentures of the company for each mile, the same
as provided by clause 3 of this contract. The remaining 15 per cent. together with
the 15 per cent previously retained of the first forty miles, shall be paid to the con-
tractor upon the completion of the lino to Paspebiau, to the satisfaction of the engi-
neer of the conpany, and in accordance with the terms of this contract; but only
after delivery by the said engileer to the said contractor of a certificate of acceptance
of the said railway, in working order and in every respect completed under the
terms and conditions of this contract, and after deducting all sums which may then
be payable by the said contractor to the said company, for damages or reimburse-
ments under some or any of the stipulations of this centr-act." You will sec by that
it was not entirely a bond payment.

Mr. BARwICK-Mr. Chairman, he has left out a clause on the previous page.
Mr. ARMSTRONG.-I will read i-"The present contract has been made and

entered into by the said contractors for and in consideration of the sum of twenty thou-
sand dollars per mile, payable as follows: the sum of six thousand four hundtred dollars
per mile, to be paid to the said contractor, by a transfer to him, of the subsidies payable
to the company by the Dominion Government, and also for and in consideration of
the further sum of thirteen thousand six hundred dollars per mile, to be paid to him
by the tran4er and delivery to him of first mortgage bonds of the said railway com-
pany, payable in twenty-five years, bearing interest at the rate of 5 per cent. per
annum, said bonds forming a portion of a first issue of fifteen thousand dollars per
mile, whieh said first issue shall be secured by a first lien and mortgage on the land
grant of the company and on the railway of the company and all its appurtenances
and belongings."

Q. You are satisfied by that contract I was entitled to a certain amount of cash ?
-A. I would seem so. I wonder it was never shown to me.

Q. With regard to the contract price of $20,000 a mile, are you not aware that
an estimate was made between the company and myself of the probable costofeach
section of that line ?-A. I am not aware of that, it is quite possible, I would not
say it was not.

Q. And that each ten mile-section, a certain valuation was to be put upon it ?-
A. I think it quite probable.
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Q. And that the estimates referred to here were based upon those estimates
made as to the cost of each section ?-A. I do not know.

Q. Well, as engineer you were responsible ?-A. They were held what they
vere for, to cover $20,000 a mile in bonds; the estimates will show that.

Q. Do you consider $20,000 a mile payable in the manner provided was too
large a price to pay for that work ?-A. I do not think it was, payable in bonds. I
do not think the bonds will sell for 75 cents on the dollar.

Q. You will allow there was considerable risk ?-A. Yes, there was.
Q. You say there was a strike of my men on the 4th section in the spring of 1888 ?

What do you call spring ?-A. I went there in the wintei. A good deal ofthe work
Was done. It may have been in the spring or the fall, I cannot be quite sure. It
Was some time in the autumn or winter. I know there was a strike and a very
serious one, but the hour and minute I cannot tell.

Q. Would you be surprised to know that it occurred in July ?-A. It may have.

By the Hon. 3r. McCallum :
Q. There was a strike sometime ?-A. It occurred.

By Mr. Armstrong :
Q. When did Mr. MacFarlane commence his work ?-A. He signed his contract

in June, it would be some time in July, 1888, I think.
Q. About the time of the strike ?-A. I do not know. I understood him to say

that he went to rescue you out of the tower where the mon had you and were
threatening to kilt you, and they would not let you go without paying and ho paid
them.

Q. Did lie not tell you that I furnished the money ?-A. I do not know. He
told me he paid them and that personal violence was threatened to you.

Q. Where you in Quebec during the trial of the case where it was proved on
oath that theso were the facts ?-A. I did not attend the trial all the time, juîst long
enough to give my own evidence, what you state may have been proved, but I do
lot know anything about it.

Q. In regard to these estimates nentioned here, have they anythiig to do with
the payments of subsidies by the Quebec Government ?-A. Nothing, as J already
explained, I made my report entirely independent of the estimates.

Q. Did you ever give the Government an idea of the cost upon which they paid
the subsidies ?-A. I do not know.

Q. Had you to report the value of the work remaining to be done ?-A. Yes,
I did that.

Q. By your reports on these sixty miles you considered the work finished as far
as the Government was concerned ?-A. No, between the 50th and 60th miles one,
Was laid too low, and I recommended the Government to keep back five ort six thousand
dollars.

Q. With the exception of that you considered the subsidies earned ?-A. With
the exception of the bridges; they are not in yet.

Q. Did you except that in your report to the Government ?-A. Whatever I
r'eported is to be seen.

Q. Are you aware that they paid the whole of the subsidy on that section ?-A.
I am not. They never consulted me about their payments.

Q. Attention has been called to the change of the word " due." Do you know
anything of that?-A. I know nothing about it.

Q. How does the cost of the work to be done on the first 40 miles compare with
the work to be done on the last 40 miles ?-A. I should think the work on the last
40 miles, merely from passing over it once, was considerably heavier. It has two
heavy bridges, one over the Bonaventure, with a span of 100 feet, and thore were
three or four bridges over the Cascapedia, between the 60th and 70th miles.

Q. With the exception of the bridges how does the earthwork and the rock-
Work compare ?-A. I should say a little the heaviest between the 60th and 100th
miles. You pass Black Cape, yon remember, and that is heaviest work.
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Q. And as an engineer of the Government you are prepared to say that the
work on the last 40 miles is considerably heavier than on the first 40 miles ?-A. I
am not prepared to say. I would prefer to see the profiles her'e, it is capable of
proof. If the papers were brought here they would all speak for themselves.

Q. You consider the work on the last 40 miles heavier than on the first 40 miles ?
How do you come to think that ?-A. Merely from passing over it once, profile in
hand.

Q. Are you sure that there are not a number of steel bridges on the first 40
miles ?-A. Not so large; there are a great many ; generally smal1.

Q. What- difference is there between the cost of the bridges on the first 40 and
the last 40 miles ?-A. I would not be prepared to say without the papers, it would
be vain.

Q. You believe Mr. Macdonald's estimate of cost of the last 40 miles is about
correct?-A. I cannot tell.

Q. But you said so ?-A. No ; I have a great opinion of Mr. Macdonald.
Q. You have already stated that his estimate of $18,000 a mile was a fair

estirnate ?-A. I have not seen his figures and I value hiR opinion, but I should wvant
more than that before I took a contract; I should want actual figures and quantities.

Q. You stated that Bailey's report was made in March, 1889, three months after
MacFarlane's failure?-A. Two or three months afterwards I understood it.

Q. Would you be surprised to know it was made six or eight months before his
failure ?-A. Perhaps se. But it was two or three months after he stopped work.

Q. You say Mr. MacFarlane was detained some five months by that washout ?-
A. I did not say so; I said ho said so.

Q. Counsel stated that he was delayed on account of the trestle work-how
long was that bridge ?-A. The bridge was 60 feet, the trestle was about 150 f eet.

Q. Would that detain a man five months?-A. He will tell you.
Q. Well. how long would it take you tc put in a trestle of that length at that

point ?-A. Not five months.
Q. Five or six days ?-A. He would have to get his material.
Q. If he bas the right thing, could lie not do it in five or six days ?-A. I do not

think so. He would perhaps have to get material.
Q. You referred to the Quebec subsidy for $240,000 which MacFarlane should

have got. By the terms of MacFarlane's contract, which is in the printed evidence,
ho was to receive, " and also the surm of seventy thousand dollars, granted by the
Quebec Governiment on said-20 miles of new road." That is what he was to receive,
yet you think, as an honest man. that he should have got $240,000 more than that?
-A. Well the first 40 miles had so much more quantity on it than is in his contract;
I saw his contract.

Q. Well, here is his contract. Tell me what there was in it to lead you to that
opinion ?-A. There was a certain price mentioned.

Q. But we are talkiiig about quantity. You say it took double quantity than
what is represented in that contract?-A. There are certain sums; I think quantities
are not given.

Q. On what ground do you say there was more than double?-A. I asked him
why he had made a co)tract to do so much work when so little had been shown to
him to be done. le told me he was taking over the work when the snow was 10
feet deep, and had no means of judging, and that Mr. Armstrong took him over the
work, and that he took Armstrong's word for the amount of work to be done,and ho
thought it was about half what there was.

Q. Is there generally 10 feet of snow there about the 15th of May ?-A. There
is in the cuttings.

Q. Along the line of road ?-A. No ; but in the cuttings,where the work would
be, it would be there until June.

Q. Along the line of road, have you ever seen 10 feet of snow on the 15th of
May ?-A. No; not on the part finished where it would be open to the sun, but it
was in the cuttings where the work had to be done.
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Q. Are you prepar-ed to say that there is or was one inch of snow ?-A. I am
not prepared to say.

Q. Did he tell you he went over the line when there was 10 feet of snow ?-A.

Q. Would you be surprised to learn that he had gone over on it on the 15th of
May when there was no snow ?-A. There would be snow in the cuttings ; the snow
Stays there very long.

Q. You also stated that Mr. MacFarlane was detained in his work because the
bridges were not supplied to him. Are you not aware that by his contract he was
to su pply the bridges ?-A. le had to supply a certain size.

Q. Does the contract say he was to supply only a certain size ?-A. We worked
Upon the profiles, and any contractor would imagine they were the bridges he had
to put in.

Q. You say a certain size of bridges were mentioned in the profile ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. MacFarlane furnish the bridges in the profile ?-A. I do not know.
Q. For certain streams ho did not furnish any bridges at all ?-A. I do not

know.
Q. As Inspecting Engineer you ought to know ?-A. I do not think he furnished

ary bridges, unless at Escuminac.
Q. Is it necessary for you to refer to his contract to be satisfied that it was his

business to furnish the bridges ?-A. I do not know that it is. I should say if the-
bridges wei-e marked on the profile only half the size that was required, and he was
forbidden to put them in he, would have a claim for larger bridges.

Q. The contract reads that, the said sub-contractor will at his own cost provide
ail and every kind of labour, machinery and other plant, materials, articles and
things whatsoever necessary for the due execution and completion ot all and every
the following works on the Baid des Chaleurs Railway, which railway said con-
tractor is now under contract to build, that is to say :

" 1. The said sub-contractor shah complete and finish the 10 miles of the said
l'ailway now partially constructed and built, and shall provide rolling stock addi-
tional to that already on said work to the amount and expense specified in the
schedule of rolling stock hereunto annexed.

" 2. The sub-contractor shall build 20 miles of new road in extension of said 40
miles, the whole to be built and completed in accordance with the said contractor's
cOntract with the company, and under the direction of the said company's chief
"1gineer, and in accordance with the plans and specifica tions refèrred to in said
contract, which contract and specifications are herein referred to as furnishing the
cI'iterion by which said work is to be executed, and the sarneshallalso be completed
tO the satisfaction of the Dominion Government engineer.

" 3. The said works shall be completed by the first day of January one thousand
eight hundred and eighty-nine. " Has Mr. MacFarlane in your opinion carried out
these terms? las he completed that contraet?-No answei'.

The Hon. Mr. KAULBACH-Wher'e were the plans and specifications.
Mr. ARMSTRNG-They were all duly completed and signed by Mr. Light.
Q. My question was whether Mr. MacFarlane had carried out his side of the

cOnltract?-A. My impression was that ho did everything a man could do to carry
Out the contract. Where the bridges were too small and were ordered off of the
foundations he could not go on. The bridges were too small; I would not bave them
1o;he hlad to take his men otf and stopi I do not see how he could have finished
he work.

Q. As a matter of fact, le did not finish it?-A. I forbid him to finish it.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. I understand the plans and specifications showed smaller bridges than they
shOuld have shown ?-A. They were shown upon the profiles and some of the plans
prepared by Mr. Leduc.
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Q. These are the plans ho was working on ?-A. Yes. Mr. MacFarlane wanted
to go on and finish the work. I forbid him.

By the Ion. Mr. Boulton :
Q. Did that condemnation of' the bridges appear in your report ?-A. I never

made a report upon it, but I said if they did not stop-1 told Mr. Armstrong's agent,
Mr. Ferguson Armstrong, that if they did not stop immediately I would resign my
position as Chief Engineer and go to the Government o. the Province of Quebec and
report that these bridges were unsound.

Q. You stated that you condemned ail the bridges on the lino as being too
small ?-A. Not ail; I think every one between the Escuminac and the sixtieth mile.

Q. You stated that you condemned them al]. Has any bridge outside of the
one bridge at Escuminac proved unsound ? Has thore been any damage done to any
bridge outside of that one ? The bridges to the west of Escuminac have stood ?-A.
They are ail small, none I think exceeding 60 feet, but cast of the Escuminac to the
sixtieth mile, or to the Cascapedia, the seventieth mile, they were all more or less
too small.

Q. lias there a single one been condemned ?-A. They have not been built west
of the Esciuminac. It was built and it fell down.

Q. Do you mean east or west?-A. East.
Q. There is the River Nouvelle east ?-A. That is east.
* . And the Maria Brook and Green's Brook ?-A. They are east.
2. Have the abutments of these bridges not been put in ?-A. They have been

put in since the smaller ones have been condemned. The Maria Brook was enlarged
about from 40 to 50 feet, and Green's Brook from 30 to 60 feet.

Q. As a matter of fact, have the bridges, with the exception of the Escuminac,
proved too small, or bas any damage been done ?-A. The Nouvelle Bridge is proving
too small ; the Government Engineer bas gone to the Government and represented
that the eastern abutment should be pulled out and 25 feet more added ; the iron
work is not yet finished. The water flowed clean over the top of the abutment.
. Q. Are you prepared to swear that ?-A. Yes; I have seen it.

Q. You have seen the waters flowing over the top ?-A. I have seen the logs
Iying on the top of the abutments when I went in November, and I saw three large
holes in the embankment. When I first saw the Escuminac Bridge and the Nouvelle
I said what they should ho, but he would never put them in as I told him. I wanted
150 feet at the Nouvelle, and after a great deal of trouble we cut it down to 100, and
it is now 125.

Q. You say the contractor never put in the bridges as you told him. Have you
ever been authorized by the company, or have you taken upon yourself to give the
contractor an order to put in any special size of bridge ?-A. Many times I spoke to
the Managinig Director, and told him I found great difficulty with all the bridges.
le wvanted to put them in too small, and I took him to the Escuminac after it was

washed away, and to the Nouvelle, and said: " Here is corroboration of what I told

you-these things are too small." This was the Managing Director ; I did not go to
r. Armstrong.

Q. You said you gave the contractor instructions to put in larger bridges ?-A.
No; 1 gave it to the Maniaging Director; I told him that these must be increased.

The Hon. Mr. BOULTON-Did you receive ail the subsidies that were payable
in connection with this railway from the eompany, in accordance with the contract ?

Mr. ARMSTRONG-1 received the subsidies, or they were paid upon my order.
Most of them wore transferred to banks or to sub-contractors, and were paid over;
they were paid to my credit, either directly to me or on my order to parties, and the
statement here gives credit for the full amount of the subsidy.

The Hon. Mr. BoULToN-The company did not retain any of these subsidies ?
Mr. ARMSTRONO-NOt a dollar.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. Mr. Light, you said you were the Government engineer. At what time were

you appointed ?-A. In 1874.
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Q. Who was Premier of Quebec then ?-A. I think Mr. DeBoucherville was.
Q. When did you cease to be Government engineer ?-A. Some years ago, when

Mr. Starnes was Commissioner of Railways ; I think Mr. Joly was leader of the
Government.

Q. That would be in 1878 ?-A. No, it was about six years ago. Mr. Starnes
represented to me that all the large works were completed, and they were paying
ie a large salary, and suggested that I should give up the position and they would
employ me when requi red, and pay me English fees, and allow me to work for other
People. He thought I would have such a large private practice that it would be
Ilore to my advantage.

HoN. MR. POwER-I did not imply that 3Mr. Light had been dismissed ?
WITNEsS-No; I am employed to the present day. Whenever they wish me

to do a certain work thev send for me and pay me my English fees.
Q. You stated that Mr. Macdonald's estimate of the cost of the work to be done

was about correct. That was $18,000 a mile. Mr. Macdonald stated that he thought
the work which had been done was not worth more than $12,000 or $13,000 a mile.
What do you think about that ?-A. I would rather that the certificates of what it
really cost would be brought forward.

Q. Do you think $12,000 or $13,000 too little ?-A. I should say $13,000 or
$14,000 but that is a mere guess.

By Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Is that cash or bonds ?-A. Cash.
Q. The $18,000 you understood represented cash ?-A. Yes.

By Hion. Mr. Power :

Q. You said this contract which you saw in the Tower Room was, you thought,
Perfectly fair and satisfactory ?-A. I thought so, I merely heard it read once, I
never saw it since.

Q. And they could have executed it except for Mr. Riopel ?-A. Yes.
Q. And your opinion as an engineer, understanding the work to be done there,

Was that if Mr. MacFarlane was allowed to go on under that contract he could have
Completed the work ?-A. I understood the Ontario Bank would have furnished
him all the money he required, and that ho would have completed it. Mr. Riopel
was the only one who objected.

Q. ie was the managing director ?-A. Yei. Mr. Armstroiig was there, and
wvas perfectly fiiir and anxious it should be executed, so fhr as I could judgo .fron his
InIannuer.

Q. You said that MacFarlane told you that when lie came to do the work he
found it about twice as much work on the first 40 miles as had been represented to
hin ?-A. Tho actual work-not furnishing materials or rolling stock, but actual
w'ork, was considerably more thán he anticipated.

Q. Do you think it a prudent thing, you have large experience with railway
builders, for Mr. MacFarlano to accept statements as to work to be done without
informing himself ?-A. He told me that he had inspected the work, but that there
'vas 10 feet of snow in the cuttings, and ho took the statements of Armstrong. He
asumed it to be perfectly true, and accepted Mr. Armstrong's statement in good
faith.

Q. Were you a witness in Quebec in the suit of MacFarlane against Armstrong
and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company ?-A. I was.

Q. Have you been paid your witness fees ?-A. No; I never asked for them.
Q. Who did you understand was to furnish the money to pay the witness fees ?

A. I hardly know. I was called by a Mr. François Langelier, I think. I never asked
iium who was to pay the fees.

Q. And did not find out ?-A. I never asked him. I hope to be paid some day.
Ihave no doubt Mr. Armstrong will pay me.
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Mr. CHARLEs N. ARmSTRONG recalled and examined:

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. In the evidence already given you describe handing over those five cheques

to Mr. Pacaud. Do you remember the date ?-A. I do not remember the absolute
date. I am under the impression that it was two or three days after the settlement,
that is, on the 28th of April, but I see the cheques are dated the 29th, and it is pos-
sible it was on that day. My memory is that it was a day or two later, but prob-
ably it was on the 29th.

Q. With whom did you go to Mr. Pacaud's office ?-To the best of my memory
I went alone.

Q. Had you the cheques with you when you went there ?-A. No.
Q. Were the cheques endorsed ?-A. I endorsed the cheques when I was there.
Q. Did you have an appointment ?-A. I do not think so.
Q. What purpose did you go there for ?-A. Ido not know thatI had any special

purpose. I often dropped in to see him.
Q. Did you go for the purpose of endorsing the cheques ?-A. No; for my impres-

sion was that the $100,000 would be arranged among themselves, and I was surprised
when I was asked to çndorse the cheques.

Q. You understood that Mr. J. C. Langelier would pay the money direct to Mr.
Pacaud ?-A. They haiid a lottor of crodit, and I thought they would ar-range it among
themselves; I understood the money would be paid direct.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. You did not expect to bandle any part of it ?-A. No; I knew I was to get

no part of it; it was merely to transfer the money.
Q. Well, Mr. J. C. Langelier undertstood that the $100,000 was going to Mr.

Pacaud ?-A. I do not know that.
By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. When you say " among themselves," what (o you mean ? That Mr. Pacaud
would get the money himself, or that it would be among themselves ?-A. No; I
said I did not expect to endorse any of the cheques.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. You expected it would be manraged among themselves ?-A. I thought Ernest

Pacaud had the letter of credit himself; I heard them talk about it.
Q. Who ?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. Who else ?-A. Well, in Mr. Thom's presence.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. How do you ieconcile what you said previously in regard to the'6$uO,000,

that it was your own money to do with as you pleased, with what you say now, that
you had nothing to do with the paying of it ?-A. I said I was not troubling myself
about the manner of'paying it; I received $175,000.

Q. But you did not get $175,000 ?-A. As a matter of fact I did ; they gave me
cheques and I handed them over.

Q. Where did you find those cheques ?-A. I have already explained that.

By _3r. Barwick:
Q. When you got to the office, who were there ?-A. Mr. J. C. Langelier and

Mr. Pacaud were together when I went there. That was in the outer office.
Q. Not the holy of holies, as you termed it the other day ?-A. No; the outside

office.
Q. Mr. J. C. Langelier and Mr. Pacaud were together. Had they the cheques

there ?-A. Mr. J. C. Langelier had them.
Q. What did Mr. J. C. Langelier say to you when you went in ?-A. I do not

know. He handed me the cheques and said. "Il Here is the $100.000; " and Mr.
Pacaud then made me a sign to go into the back room.
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Q. Show me the sign he made?-A. I did not carry the sign away with me. It
might bave been a beckoning with his finger or with his head, but at all events I
understood it was to go into the inner room.

Q. You had been there before ?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Langelier handed you the choques and Mr. Pacaud gave you the sign

and you walked into the inner office with Mr. Pacaud, you carrying the cheques in
your hands?-A. I do not know; I am under the impression that I did.

Q. Did Mr. Pacaud receive those cheques from Mr. Langelier's hand, or did
you ?-A. I did. I am positive on that point. I went in to the other room, endorsed
the five cheques and handed them to Mr. Pacaud in the inner room.

Q. Mr. J. C. Langelier remaining in the outer room all the time ?-A. It was
not very long.

Q. And did you sign the recei pt for $175,000 in Mr. Pacaud's office ?-A. No; I
signed it on the 28th in Mr. Langelier's office.

Q. Did Mr. Langelier understand the $100,000 was to go to Mr. Pacaud ?-A.
Not to my knowledge.

Q. That was one of the things he did not ask you about?-A. There were a
great many things he did not ask me about.

Q. Do you remember the 13th March last?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You were in Montreal ?-A. Yes.
Q. At tho Windsor Ilotel ?-A. No ; I was at my house.
Q. But you were at the Windsor Ilotel in the evening ?-A. No ; not to -rv

knowledge.
Q. Were you at the Windsor Hotel on the 12th ?-A. On the evening of the

12th.
Q. You met Mr. Mercier there ?-A. No; I did not.
Q. Mr. Mercier was in the hotel?-A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Was ho in the city?-A. I believe ho was.
Q. And Mr. Shehyn was there, the Provincial Treasurer ?-A. My impression is

the whole Government were there, because it was the next morning Mr. Mercier
Went to New York to take the steamer.

Q. Mr. Robidoux was there ?-A. I cannot tell who was there on the evening
Of the 12th, but I am aware they all went down on the official car.

Q. That was next morning ?-A. Yes.
Q. You went as far as St. Johns ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That is, on the morning of the 13th the members of the Provincial Govern-

Ment started on the morning train for New York ?-Yes, sir.
Q. They went into the official car ?-A. There were two carloads, the official

car and the or-dinary Pullman.
Q. And Mr. Robidoux was there ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In the official car ?-A. I did not go into the official car.
Q. You stayed in the front car ?-A. It was not my car.
Q. Mr. Pacaud went forwards ainid backwards between you ?-A. H1e went from

One car to the other.
Q. In the back car was Mr. Robidoux, you understand ?-A. I understood that

all the Ministers were there. I think the whole Cabinet were there, but I did not
go into the car, so I cannot say.

Q. Who did you say were in the back car-was Mr. Robidoux ?-A. I had
seen hin on the platform.

Q. So you think lie was there. What position does ho occupy in the Govern-
Ment ?-A. I think he is Attorney-General.

Q. Mr. Shehyi was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. What position does he occupy ?-A. Provincial Treasurer.
Q. Charles Langelier was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. What position does he occupy ?-A. Provincial Secretary.
Q. And Mr. Mercier was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. The Premier of the Province ?-A. Yes.
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Q. And Mr. Pacauaî ?-A. He was there.
Q. \Vas he travelling in the official car with the Members of the Goverrnent?

-A. Well, he was in the ordinary Pullinan when I got in.
Q. And you travelled in the ordinary Pullman ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And the Members of the Government were in the official car behind ?-A.

Yes, Sir.
Q. Low far is St. John's from Montreal ?-A. About twenty-seven miles.
Q. And you got on boar-d that Pullman car intending to get off at St. John's ?-

A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Pacaud understood that ?-A. I got on the train for the purpose of

seeing Mr-. Pacaud.
Q. That was arranged the evoning previous ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. About eight o'clock ?-A. I do not remember the hour.
Q. It was was pretty early in the evening, was it not ?-A. I think they arrived

at half past eight.
Q. Where did they come from ?-A. Fron Quebec.
Q. They got in on the Quebec train which gets to Montreal about eight o'clock ?

-A. Who do you mean ?
Q. I mean the Membors of the Provincial Government ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Who did come in ?-A. Mr. Pacaud.
Q. When did the Members of the Provincial Government arrive ?-A. They

may have arrived the night before; they were in Montreal that day; they may
have been there a couple of* days.

Q. You went to the Windsor Hotel ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who asked you to go-Mr. Pacaud ?-A. No; I went because I wanted to

sec Mr. Pacaîud.
Q. Mr. Pacaud the political agent of Mr. Mercier's party ? That is what he is,

is it not?-A. 1 went to se him as my agent.
Q. Is lie the recognized agent of Mr. Mercier's paErty ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Have you heard that ?-A. I have heard lots of things.
O. Have you heard that?-A. I do not know that I have hoard he is a political

agent.
Q. He is the roeognized treasurer of the election funds?-A. I think I have

heard it said that ho was treasurer of the election fund of the district of Quebec. I
never had anything to do with that.

Q. That is his well recognized position in Quebec?-A. I do not know, I said I
have heard it.

Q. You have heard it as being his well recognized position; is it public opinion,
sir ?--A. Yes.

Q. It is public opinion all over the Province that ho handles the election funds
for Mi. Mercier's party ?-A. For the Liberal party.

Q. Now, Mr. Armstrong, you met Mr. Mercier at the Windsor Hotel ?-A. No,
I did not meet Mr. Mercier.

Q. Did you send any messages to him?-A. No, I did not know that he was
there-do not know it now. ihat ho was there.

Q. On the night of the'12th ?-A. No.
Q. How did you meet on the train ?-A. I met Mr. Pacaud.
Q. I am talking about Mr. Mercier ?-A. Well, I say I met Mr. Pacaud.
Q. Who asked you to go there ?-A. I do not know whether he asked me or

whether I proposed it, I wanted some information from him.
Q. What information did you desire?-A. I wanted to know whether' the

Government was prepared to deal with a new syndicate for the construction of the•
line.

Q. Did you see Mr. Mercier on that day?-A. No, sir, I did not.
Q. Did you see him before ho left Montreal ?-A. No.
Q. Did you go on the train to get Mr. Mercier's answer ?-A. I went on the train

to get Mr. Paeaud's answer.
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Q. To what ?-A. As to whethor they would deal with a new syndicate.
Q. What did you mean by " the " ?-A. The Government.
Q. And Mr. Pacaud-how was he to get the answer ?-A. He went in as I sup-

posed
Q. How was he to get it?-A. By seeing the mombers of the Government.
Q. On board the train ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tell the Committee what took place on that train ?-A. There vas very little

took place so far as I was conceried, because it was a very short run from Montreal
to St. Johns. He went into the private car, where I understood the Ministers were,
aind only came out just as we reached St. Johns, so I only saw him half a minute
While the train stopped, and it stops a very short time at St. Johns. He told me no
doubt the matter would be arranged satisfactorily as soon as they knew that Mr.
Macdonald and Mr. Cameron were off. They had not yet any positive information
from them on that point.

By the lHon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. That is the Government?-A. Yes.

By the HIon. Mr..MUiller :
Q. Mr. Pacaud brought that message to you frorm the Government?-A. That

was the answer he gave to my enquiry.
Q. As the answer of the Government?-A. Yes.
Q. He had been with them all the time from Montreal ?-A. It is a short run-

only half an hour, and he did not go in at once.
Q. You recognized him as the agent of the Government ?-A. He was my agent

acting with the Government.
Q. In your negotiations with the Government who represented the Government

if Mr. Pacaud did not?-A. I can not tel]. I do not know whom he negotiated
with. He represented me and went to the Government, to whatever member would
be the proper one to see. I understood the most of them were there, and it was
fully discussed by the members of the Government.

Q. Could he act for you if he had not communicated with the Government?-A.
le certainly had communication with them, as I have just told you.

By the lion. Mr. Boulton:
Q. You said he acted as an intermediary?-A. No, I think not.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. Go-betweenx was the word, I think?-A. I think go-between is the correct

Word to use.
Q. That describes the capacity ho acted in ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you arrange with Mr. Pacaud that he was to have $100,000 at that

tine?-A. No, I did not arrange that thon.
Q. When did you arrange that ho was to have $100,000 ?-A. I am not quite

positive. I think I have already stated that I did not know whether it was in
Montroal on his return from New York, or in Quebec at a little later date. At all
events it was some days after that.

Q. Can you not give it closer than that? It was an important matter, giving
him $100,,O00 ?-A. It was an important matter. I had several interviews with
him. but I could not say at which one the arrangement was made. I realized from
the first that an amount would have to be paid. It was not fixed at this interview;
that 1 am positive of.

Q. It took some negotiation ?-A. When the amount was fixed I agreed to it;
it was done in two minutes.

By the Chairman:
Q. You understood a payment was absolutely necessary in order to get your

payment at all ?-A. In order to get anything at that time. I did not abandon my
rights but I thought they were in great danger.
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By Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. In Exhibit 5 you sign a receipt in full, in full consideration of receiving

$175,000. Did you consider that that claim of yours was a just and bona fide claim,
and tell why you agreed to accept $175,000 ?-A. My claim was a perfectly bona
fide one, but that would explain also the alteration of the word " due " in the contract.
A large percentage of the contract price was to be retained until the completion of
the work. The managing director of the new Company, though quite willing to
acknowledge I had a claim to this amount of money was not willing to admit that
I had the amount due at that particular date, and, therefore, changed it to read "in
accordance with the terns of the contract." My contract with the Company vas
for an average price of $20,000 a mile. Of that. $9,900 would be received in cash;
$6,400 from the Dominion Government and $3,500 from the Local Government,
leaving about one-balfof the contract price payable in bonds, unless a further sum
vas received from the subsidies in cash, which I would also be entitled to receive in

cash. At that time it was the intention of the Quebec Government to make a
compromise and it was understood that 20 or 25 cents an acre for the 800,000 acres
granted would be paid iii lieu of 35 cents. In that case I would have two or three
thousand more in cash. Instead of that that the Quebec Government, later on,
doubled up the subsidies on the 80 miles not under contract, increasing it to $7,000
a mile, making $13,400 a mile on the average on the 100 miles, which I would be
entitled to receive in cash, leaving $6,800 in bonds. Mr. Light has explained that
my )ices were considerably higher than those of the sub-contractors. Well, nobody
could tale a contraet unless they had higher prices than the sub-contractors prices.
Besicles I had other expenses, such as engineering and right of way and things of
that kind, which all had to come out of any price between the sub-contractor and
my own. The only object in putting on prices, say 40 cents for earth work was to
arrive at a fair basis of what I should be paid, and my engineers and Mr. Light
acting for the Company decided the valuation to be put on each class of work. It
did not affect the payment of the $20,000 a mile, but simply the portion payable on
each ten mile section, so every dollar represented on this certificate I was entitled
to get, either in cash or the remainder in bonds, and I inay say I have received
$51,000 in bonds, credited there the same as cash. I hold these bonds yet. I do
not know what I will ever get for them.

Q. Why did you compromise a claim of' $298,000 for $175,000?-A. Part of
this $298,000 would only be payable when the 100 miles of the road would be
completed to Paspebiac, and in the condition of affairs existing then with the
Quebec Government it was a problem whe',her the road would ever be finished. At
the time I was pressed for money, in fact I was being sued, and it was fur better for
me to take the smaller sum, puy my debts, and be free of it than to go on as I had
been for soine years.

Q. Under this arrangement with the new syndicate $75,000 was to go to the old
corporators, if 1 may call them so. The new syndicate were acquiring the stock of
the old corporators?-A. That was a matter between the new and the old share-
holders, and had nothing to do with the arrangement with Mir. Pacaud.

Q. I know that but I want information as to the transaction between the old
and the new corporators. What did the new corporators get for this $75,000 ?-A.
They got the stock of the old corporators which gave them control of the old
company. It brought all the assets and liabilities.

Q. What were the assets of the company ?-A. They were bonds and the unpaid
subsidies of the road.

Q. Then for this $75,000, the new Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company got the
road and the stock of the old corporators, whatever it might be worth and the right
to get unpaid subsidies ?-A. Yes.

Q. As to the agreement between the old and the new company, when $280,000
the commuted value of the land, was set apart to be paid to anyone who built the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway, the clainis of the labourers were to be paid out of that
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sum?-A. The Act says all privileged claims. The understanding that I had was
all claims along the lino of railway, no matter whether they were labourers or store.
keeper or what, they were ail to be paid.

Q. Did you understand your claim was a privileged claim?-A. Certainly,
because they could not get possession of the road without settling with me. •

Q. After these claims were paid there was a balance of about $40,000 remain-
ing ?-A. That is problematical, but if there was a balance it was to be paid to the
new shareholders.

Q. So the less the new shareholders paid to you the more they would have for
themselves ?-A. Certainly, every dollar paid me came out of the pockets of the new
Company.

Q. So far as you wore concerned, did any of the new stockholders in the Baie
des Chaleurs Company know anything of your dealings with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. They
knew I was dealing with Mr. Pacaud, but they knew nothing of the $100,000 transac-
tion ?

Q. Did they know that you were to pay Mr. Pacaud $ 100,000 out of this money?
-A. No they did not.

Q. You stated in your former ovidence that you hiad no agrooment with the
Quiebe Government with respect to a subsidy ?-A. It is not usual, they go by the
Act. There is no formal contract as with the Government here.

Q. When did you last see Mr. Pacaud ?-A. I saw him on Saturday morning
the 8th of August. I saw him at Point Levis.

Q. Did ho say anything to you about his coming bore and giving evidence ?-
A. He said he was corning up next day to give his evidence here Monday morning.

Q. The Company îeceived subsidies from other sources bosides the Quebec
(overnment?-A. It roceived from the Dominion and municipalities?

Q. Do you know anything of the last payment made by the Dominion Govern-
ment on account of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. I know something of most
of them.

Q. The last payment, do you know to whom it was made?-A. The last pay-
'lent appears to be one made on 21st of October, 1889, $52,475.

Q. Now will you tell the Committeo had you anything to do with having that
payment made?- A. I was asked by the Manager of the Ontario Bank in Montreal
to interest myself in getting the payment made to the Bank. There was some hitch
about the thing, anl lie asked me to corne up to Otawa and sec about it.

Q. Well, what did you do when you came up to Ottawa, on behalf ofthe Ontario
bank?-A. I called upon the Minister of Railways thon, the late hon. Sir John A.
Macedonald, and found that representations lad been made to the Government that
the men on the lino had not been paid, and the Government was requested to with-
hold paymont of the subsidy until they were satisfied that these mon were paid.

Q. What took place thon ?-A. I told him that I had been informed that the
Quebec Government had withheld a certain amount with vhich they intended to
Pay the mon at once, if they had not actually commonced to pay. I told him that I
understood from Mr. MeFarlaie that the amount of wages due by him was only
$13,000, and, as the Quebec Government had $28,000 in their hands for the purpose
Of paying the men it seemed to me there would be no reason why the Dominion
Government should aiso hold back $52,000. He askod me whether I had information
Of my own satisfying me that ihere was only $13,000 due. I told him I knew nothing
about it, that I knew nothing about Mr. MeFarlane's business, but that he had told
mne. The Grovernment decided to make payment. I suggested that they might pay
it to the Bank, if the Bank would guarantee to see the men paid. Of course the
Ontario Bank would ho good for it if they gave such an undertaking. Sir John
Macdonald seemed to think that was a reasonable proposition, and agreed to pay
the money to the Ontario Bank, provided they bound thomselves to see the men paid.
I understand that was done. I have seen the letter of the Ontario Bank by which
they bound themselves to pay these men.
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Q. Did the Ontario Bank pay these men ?-A. They did not, not a dollar. It
turned out afterwards ihat instead of Mr. MacFarlane owing $13,000 he owed over
$40,000 and when the Quebec Government had finished ptying 8'28,000 they had,
there was still a large amount due to the men. The Company called the attention
of the Dominion Government to that fact, and asked that the Ontario Bank should
be forced to carry out their agreement and pay these men.

By the Ion. 3r. Xqcdonald: (B. C.)
Q. What was due to the Ontario Bank by Mr. MJacFarlane ?-A. I (o not know

anything about the amount due.

By the lion. Mr. Power:
Q. I don't think you have made it quite clear just why your Company broke

off with Messrs. Macdonald and Cameron-how the negotiations came to an
end ?-A. The proposition that Messrs. Macdonald and Cameron made would not
have guaranteed a single cent either to the Company or to myseif. They would
have got the whole assets ofthe Company, lock, stock, and barrel, and not paid a
cent for it.

By the Hon. M1r. JcCallum:
Q. There was nothing for you and Pacaud ?-A. There was something for

Pacaud that was provided for by Mr. Macdonald as he stated.
Q. Only $40,000. He got $100,000, out of you ?-A. I do not know the arrang-

ment, but he said he had put $50,000, aside for Mr. Pacaud.

By the Hon. 11fr. Power:

Q. Now what amount of cash did the old corporators pay into this Company ?
-A. I do not know, I have nothing to do with the Company in any official capa-
city.

Q. As a matter of fact in ypur agreement with the old Company were you not
to receive or did you not receive a certain proportion of the stock ?-A. I was to
receive upon the completion of my contract one half of the stock of the Company.

Q. You do not know thon anything of the internal arrangements of the old
Company ?-A. No, I have had nothing to do with them.

.By the Ron. Mr. Smith.:

Q. I scarcely understand this yet. Your claim was $300,000 ?-A. Roughly,
yes.

Q. You got cash $75,000 ?-A. I got $175,000.
Q. You got actual cash $75,000 ?-A. I was paid in cheques, and I got cheques

for $175,000.
Q. But to get 875,000, you handed over another $100,000. Is not that the case?

Where is the other $125,000, making up your full claim, gone to ?-A. My arrange-
ment was in the nature of a compromise.

Q. Who got the benefit of that $125.,000, that you gave away for the sake of
getting the $75,000 ?-A. The Company certainly got the benefit of that.

By the Hon. Mr. Almon :
Q. In the conversation you had with Mr. Pacaud did he understand what would

be the nature of your evidence hore ?-A. I asked him what the nature of his evi-
dence would be. I may say that after refusing to comply with the demand of the
Committee that I should answer-feeling that in honour I should not-I telegraph-
ed ffr. Pacaud to meet me at Point Levis on the arrival of the train. He did meet
me. I asked him what ho intended to do, and what evidence ho intended to give,
or what line of conduct ho intended to pursue. He said: I will go on Monday and
tell the Committee that I got 6100,000 from you, and it is none of their business
what I did with it. He enquired in what manner he could reach Ottawa on Monday
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morning, because there was no regular train through. I said that by leaving
Montreal in the evening and talcing the through train for Smith's Falls he could
get here on Monday morning.

Q. He understood that you were going to refuse to answer the question of the
Committee, that it was private ltsiness of your own ?-A. Not at all, ho understood
that I had refused up to that time to answer anything.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum :
Q. And ho was going to do the same ?-A. Only as to the application of the

money, but ho was going to acknowledge that ho had received $100,000. I said that
will make it fair for me to speak. I waited for him to appear, and as ho did not
appear I still refused to speak, and only did so when I was forced to.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller :
Q. Then you wish the Committee to undorstand, that $75,000 which you got the

use and control of represented the amount you received in consideration of that
account of nearly $300,000 ?-A. That is all I personally benefited by it.

By the Hon. .3r. Kaulbach :

Q. But I understand you say, that whatevor you got for your claim, the present
company asking for a charter here would have so much less ?-A. Yes, because they
received the residue of $280,000. As a matter of fact, the sum is $560,000, because
the 800,000 acres of land, was at 70 cents an acre.

Q. Thon the new company would lose this $100,000,-it is less assets for that
amouit, is it not ?-A. Well, it is less assets to the Company.

Q. When you actually intended only getting $75,000 ?-A. I intended to get all
I could ; that is alil did get.

Q. In that outer office where Mr. Langelier and Mr. Pacaud were present, did
you take those notes into the inner office yourself ?-A. I believe so.

Q. You would not swear positively ?-A. No.
Q. Were they not laid down with a pen beside them, and did you do anything

more than put your namo on the back, now come ?-A. I laid them on the desk in
order to endorse my name.

Q. Did Mr. Paeaid lay them on the desk ?-A. No, I think not.
Q. In the inner office when these cheques were put down on the desk by Mr.

Pacaud, did you put your name on them thon ?-A. I have not said they were put
down on the desk by Mr. Pacaud.

Q. Were they ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Did you pick thom up after you endorsed them ?-A. I really cannot say

whether ho or I picked thom up.
Q. You swore a littie while ago that you handed them to him after you endorsed

them ?--A. I still say so, but whether I handed each cheque to him or ho picked
them up, 1 did not notice.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. You told us the other day you endorsed these cheques in the holy of holies ?

-A. I made use of that expression.
Q. Now you appear to be a sensible and intelligent man and I think you know

more about this question than you tell us. You say you had a good and valid claim
for $298,000 and you want the Committee to believe, and we are bound to believe
you, you are on your oath, that yon only got $75,000 in settlement of that claim-
you wait us to believe that ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you gave Mr. Pacaud $100,000 in order to get $75,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. You did not know what he was going to do with that ?-A. No.
Q. He never told you ?-A. No.
Q. You said they could not get possession of the road without they settled with

you. What did you mean ?-A. Nobody eould.
Q. Yon had possession of the road ?-A. Yes.
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Q. And had a good and valid claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. And as a sensible man you gave that away in order to get $75,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is the Quebec Government responsible?-A. If the Quebec Government had

owed me my money I would not have taken a cent less, but my company was not in
a position to pay me a dollar, not in a position to et a cent for 15 or 1,8 months. I
was being pushed by my creditors, who actually made a demand of assignment, and
the chances are three months from that I would not have had $1, and would have
been in the street, and I think I was quite justitied in taking $75,000.

Q. You said Mr. Pacaud was your agent, not to go to the company for settlement,
but to the Quebec Government ?-A. Yes; because the Quebec Government had voted
$280,000 for the express purpose of paying the claims on that road and allowing
construction to go on.

Q. Then you ought to be able to get the valid claim?-A. Well, there was
$280,000 voted, and my claim was $298,000, and there were other claims, and it had
to be divided between us.

Q. In order to get your share you paid Pacaud $100,000 and left the others to
provide for themselves ?-A. It was understood there was enough left then to pay
them what was due.

Q. Then the amount must have increased by your giving $100,000 to Pacaud,
If it was too little in the first place, after Mr. Pacaud getting that out of it it was
$100,000 less?-A. What I got was a little over half my claim.

Q. You said there were so inany claims against the road ?--A. And I said the
remainder was considered sufficient to settie these claims.

By Hon. Mr. Miller :

Q. You, in concert with Mr. Pacaud, agreed that the remainder, after tie $ 100,000
had been taken out, should be distributed among the other creditors. Where would
that $100,000 have gone if Mr. Pacaud had not got it?-A. If I lad not been obliged
to give it to Mr. Pacaud I would have got it.

Q. If you had only got $75,000, which you were willing to take, what would have
becoine of the $100,000 ?-A. It would have remained with the fund to pay the
debts, and the balance remaining would have gone to the new -ceompany.

By Hon. Mr. McInnes (B.C.) ;

Q. The difference between your claim and what you consented to accept was
$ 122,000. Who got the benefit of that $122,000 ?-A. Te Baie des Chaleurs Railway
would get the benefit of that.

Q. The old or the new company ?-A. It is all one company ; the new share-
holders aire in possession now.

Q. Did this take place after the new company was formed and took possession ?
-A. About the sanie time. The annual meeting of the shareholders took place on
the 6th of May, when the new directors were elected.

Q. So the new company will get the benefit of that $122,000 ?-A. Yes; it is fair
to say it is not all cash; it represents that amount in bonds.

By the Hon. Mr. Clemow:

Q. You say $40,000 was due to the men, and $28,000 was paid, leaving a balance
of $12,000. Is that still due the men ?-A. I am not sure of the amount that was
due; I iinderstood it was $40,000. It remained unpaid until a short time ago, when
it was paid out of the $280,000.

Q. You said $28,000 was paid ?-A. That was paid at the time.
Q. That leaves $12,000 due ?-A. It left a balance of more than $12,000, because

more than $40,000 was due. It has been paid either in whole or in part out of the
t280,000. I do not know how much has been paid down there, but I understood tho
whole of the labourers bad been paid.
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By the Hon. 3r. Kaulbach:

Q. I think Mr. Macdonald stated a sum of money that you would take in full of
your claim ?-A. I think it was about a year ago, in August of last year, that the
old company wished to make a compromise with me in order to be enabled to treat
with other parties. I did not know then who they were, but it turned out they were
Messrs. Macdonald and Cameron. I agreed to accept the sum of $75,000, that is
$50,000 and $25,000, which they would pay of claims in connection with the rond.
It was equal to $75,000. In April they were negotiating with the new syndicate; in
the meantime the additional $280,000 had been voted. It had not been voted at the
time the proposai was made or I would not have made it so low.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Did you not make another offer ?-A. Near the end of the negotiations with
Messrs. Macdonald and Cameron, when Mr. Riopel found they were squeezing him
so hard, he asked me if I would not make a further concession. I said I would not
tell him what I would do until he had a positive offer, but I gave him to understand
that I would take less.

By the Hon. 1Mr. Boulton:

Q. Did I understand the Provincial Legisiature passed an Act authorizing the
Government to abolish the charter of the Company ?-A. They passed an Act autho-
rizing the Lieutenant Governor in Council to abolish ail charter1 ; but Mr. Mercier, in
introducing the Bill, mentioned especially the Baie des Chaleurs and the Montreal
and Sorel as instances where it should be put into force.

Q. So that the ProvincialLegislature had it in their powo to abolish the whole
of your claim by abolishing the charter ?-A. My impression was that they could
iot. The Act was very defective, I thought.

Q. But the intentions was to work out the claims-to wipe out the old company
and put it out of their power Io have anything more to do with the Railway ? That was
the intention expressed in the Legislaturo while the Bill was being disculssed. Iad
that great influence with you in inducing you to accept $75,000 ?-A. It had not as
mnuch influence with me as you might think. I did not take much stock in that Act;
I did not think it could be put in force.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (B.C.):

Q. When was that Act passed ?-A. In the last session of the Local Legislatu1
last December.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. When you paid the money to Mr. Pacaud did ho tell you what eu propuosu
to do with it ?-A. He never at any time gave me any idea, except once, as I lia,
Stated, when he said he had a lot of things to pay.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach :

Q. A lot of people-a lot of notes ?-A. A lot of things, he said; nle never mieri-
tioned notes. He did not say whether they were notes or debts. He had the ieio-
'randum, but ho did not show it to me, or mention what it was he had to pay.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :
Q. Do you know anything of the disposition he proposed to make of the money ?

-- A. I did not know anything; I might have had my suspicions.

By the Hon. 3fr. MIcCall1un:
Q. But you did not pay the money; you only endorsed the cheques ?-A. The

endorsation of a cheque to a person is a payment of money.
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Mr. BARwICK-1 have nothing more to ask Mr. Armstrong, but I desire to say
one thing. We have endeavoured to confine our evidence solely to the facts relating
to the $280,000. As to the evidence introduced with regard to the conduct of the
Ontario Bank, I am prepared to offer an explanation. I gave the undertaking
that has been referred to; I'gave it to the lon. Minister of Railways and Canals at
that time. That undertaking has been carried out to the satisfaction of the Minister,
and the men have been paid ; and if you desire any further explanation; I ask an
opportunity to give it. It has nothing, however, to do with this case.

The lon Mr. POwER-It has mach to (o with this case. The Ontario Bank
are opposing this Bill, and asking certain changes ; it is only reasonable that they
should come here with clean hands.

Mr. BARWICK-I am willing to leave it to the Comrnittee. We made the
arrangement to see that the mon wee paid, and we carried it out within a week,
and here aie the papers to show it. I have the receipts here.

The Hon. Mr. PowER-The condition, as stated, was that you were to pay the
labourers.

Mr. BARwIcK-It was not. The arrangement was to see that the wages werc-
paid, and we saw that they were paid within a week.

The Committee adjourned till 10.30 a.m. on Tuesday.
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CO31ITTEE Rooir,
TUEsDAY, August 25th, 1S91.

The Committee met at 10.30, Hon. Mr. VIDAL in the Chair.

JOHN CHRYSOSTOMFE LANGELIER, pf the city ofQuebec, in the Province ofQuebec,
Deputy Provincial Registrar, being duly sworn, was exanined by Mr. Barwice
Counsel for the Opposants:-

Q. lere is a letter addressed to the Manager of the Ontario Bank-is that your
signature attached to it ?-A. It is my signature.

Mr. BARwICK then read the letter as follows

"C. HOLLAND, Esq., ' QUEBEC, 27th June, 1890.

"Manager of the Ontario Bank, Toronto.
"Si,-Agreeably to your request I beg to givo the following intormation:

"st. By Order in Council, 25th November last, I was appointed special officer
to pay in discharge (f the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company or its representatives
the privileged claims against the 60 miles of that road covered by the contraet of
Henry MacFarlane, out of the $28,546 of subsidy remaining due by the.Government of
Quebec for that part of the railway.

"2nd. That balance of subsidy was by the Government placed to my credit, and
out of that sum I have paid ail privileged claims sworn to by the Commissioner and
acknowledged by Henry MacFarlane or the other sub-contractors which were pre-
sented to me for payment comprising aill proved and admitted claims for wages.

"3rd. Ail proved claims for wages have been paid, except for the amount of
$2,150.07, which amount will be paid as soon as all necessary formalities are fulfilled.

"Yours very humbly,
(Sgd.) " J. C. LAN(GELIER."

Q. Have you that Order in Council of the 25th November last with you ?-A. No.
Q. Where is it?-A. I suppose ir is at the office of the Exçeutive Council at

Quebec; I have it not.
Q. What balance have you in your hands of the $28,546 mentioned in this

lotter ?-A. Not a single sou.
Q. Did you expend it all ?-A. It has all been paid to the workmen, to certain

boarding house keepers and to certain people who have fuinished planks for the i oad.
There is an official list which contains ail the names and details, which I can give.
It is the official report which was submitted to the Legislature at its last session; it
is a public document, and is open to all the world.

Q. You were named Commissioner by the Order in Council of the 23rd April,
1891, were you not?-A. Not commissioner by the Order in Couneil. [ was named
to rnake the payments, but I do not remember that the Order in Council named me
as Commissioner; I believe that the word " Commissioner " is not in the Order in
Council.

Q. I believe you are mistaken, as is seen by reference to the last paragraph of
the Order in Council, which refers to J. C. Langelier as Commissioner ?-A. I know
that at the beginning I believe the word " Commissioner " had been left to one side;
I have not seen the Order in Council since, and I was under the impression that it
was not there.

Q. You were named as the person, no matter what the title was, to pay the
debts against the road ?-A. Yes; the privileged debts.
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Q Any ordinary debts and claims ?-A. The Order in Council speaks of privi
leged debts. •

Q. Which had been standing for a very long time ?-A. Yes; some of thein,
believe, are due for two years.

Q. Two Jetters of credit were issued to you by the Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. The first lettei of credit was for $175,000 ?-A. I do not know what Mr

Barwick means by the expression "letter of credit." I had nothing to do but simply
to go to the bank and endorse this consent to the bank.

Q. Did you sec the first letter of credit for $175,000 issued to the Union Bank?
-A. No; never.

Q. Later you saw one for $100,000 to the Union Bank and another for $75,000
to the Banque Nationale ? -A. Yes.

Q. You went to the Union Bank and found a $100,000 letter of credit there ?-
A. Yes.

At this point Mr. Marceau was sworn as an interpreter, the witness testifying
in French.

Q. Do you remember the date you went to the Union Bank ?-A. All 1 can say
it was about the end of April.

Q. On the day you signed the five cheques?-A. No; it was another day.
Q. The day before ?-A. No; it was after the letter of credit for $100,000 at the

Union Bank.
Q. And you signed the cheques the day after that ?-A. No; I think the cheques

were signed lefore I had any knowledge of the letter of credit on the Union Bank.
Q. You signed the cheques before the letter of' credit was discountel by the

Union Bank?-:-A. I had no knowledge whatever of the discounting of that letter by
the Union Bank. I have nothing to do with that whatever.

Q. Who arranged that ?-A. I was informed by the Departnient that there
would be a letter for $100,000 on the Union Bank, and that such an arnount would
be put to my credit.

Q. Who told you that ?-A. Mr. Lesage and Mr. Machin.
Q. The Assistant Treasurer ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the other gentleman ?-A. The Deputy Minister of Public Works, from

whom I received my orders.
Q. These are the five cheques you signed (Exhibit 28A, 28B, 28C, 28D and

28E) ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you signed these cheques without knowing whether there was $100,000

to your credit in the bank or not ?-A. All I had was the authority from the Depart-
ment telling me there was $100,000 to niy credit in the banlk.

By the Chairman;
Q. Was that letter of credit drawn in vour favour or in favour of the bank ?-

A. I do not know anything about it. I was asked by the Cashier, Mr. Webb, to
endorse it. Ie said iiothing could be done with the letter; that it must be endorsed.

By 1r. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:
Q. Exhibit No. 16 shows that the letter of' credit authorises the bank to advance

the money to Mr. Langelier ?-A. I did not see the letter of credit; I only endorsed
it when it was presented by Mr. Webb.

Q. Where did you endorse the seventy-five thousand dollar letter of ciedit ?-A.
At the office of La Banque Nationale.

Q. Who had it there ?-A. Mr. Lafrance himself presented it to me.Q. Do you remember getting a ltter from Mr. Webb, showing that he held that
one hundreàl thousand dollar letter of credit for you on collection ?-A. Yes; it was
about the middle of May that I received the letter, because I had gone out to make
payments in Bonaventure County.

Q. You knew when you got it that Mr. Webb would not discount the letter of
credit ?-A. No; I did not. I positively awear to that.
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Q. This is the letter (Exhibit 33) ?--A. Yes ; I think so; as a matter of fact, I
did not pay any attention to it, and had nothing to do with it.

Q. About the middle of May you got a letter from Mr. Webb, telling you that
he held a lettdr of credit for collection on your account ?-A. Yes.

Q. That was sone time after you had handed those cheques over to somebody
else ?-A. Yes. These cheques were made bearing the correct date.

Q. Where is your office ?-A. Room 148, in the Parliament Buildings, third
story.

Q. Where is Mr. Pacaud's office ?-A. In Lower Town .
Q. In the office of the newspaper ?-A. Of L'Electeur-I think so ; that is

where I have seen him every tiine.
Q. You saw these cheques in Mr. Pacaud's office in Lower Town ?-A. I signed

them there ; I wrote them and signed them at the denand of Mr. Armstrong.
Q. Mr. Pacaud was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you ?-A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Armstrong?-A. Mr. Armstrong had asked me to go to Mr.

Paeaud's office to pay him that amount of $100,000. It was at the demand of Mr.
Armstrong that I went there to niake these cheques.

Q. You went there and wrote those cheques ?-A. No; they wore not the first
that were written. At first Mr. Armstrong asked me to iako a cheque for
$100,000. I did so.

Q. Answer my question, if you please. You went there and wrote these
cheques ?-A. No.

Q. Did you write these choques in the office of Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Yes; after
having made one for $100,000, which he asked me to destroy.

Q. Answer my question, please ; you are too anxious to explain. You wrote
these five cheques in Mr. Pacaud's offlce?-A. I wrote these five cheques at the
demand of Mr. Armstrong in order to replace a cheque of $100,000 which had been
iade in his favour.

Q. Where did you sign them ?--A. On Mr. Pacaud's own desk.
Q. Mr. Armstiong endorsed them on that desk ?-A. I do not know; I remitted

them to Mr. Armstrong and left.
Q. That is, you handed them to him ?-A. They were on the desk and Mr. Arm-

strong took them and I went away.
Q. Did you sec Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Pacaud go into.the inner ioom with

these cheques ?-A. No; not with these cheques. At first, I made a cheque for one
hundred thousand dollars; thon they went into the private room together. Then
they came back, and Mr. Armstrong asked me to make five cheques of twenty
thousand dollars each instead.

Q. Which you did ?-A. Yes.
Q. What became of' the one hundred thousand dollars cheque?-Â. I tore it up

lnyself at once.
Q. You tore it up beforo you drew these other choques ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Then, Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Pacaud vent into the room again with these

cheques?-A. I do not know ; I had the reeeipt of Mr. Armstrong and I went away
right away.

Q. Whero did you sign the cheques that were drawn against the $75,000 ?-A.
At the office of the La Banque Nationale; I have said that before.

four.Q. Do you remember how many choques there weie ?-A. I think there were

-Q. Here they are referred to in Exhibit 15. Give us the amounts ?-A. I cannot
rernember the amourit.

Q. Look at the Exhibit?-A. I will look as you please, but I know nothing
about it.

Q. There were three on the 28th of April ?-A. Yes.
Q. You signed these in the office of La Banque Nationale ?-Yes.
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Q. One was for $31,750, one for $24,000 and one for $16,000 ?-A. Here is how
it occurred : Mr. Armstrong came down and divided the amount according to what
they needed. They fixed the amount of the choques as they wanted them and asked
me to sign them. They had arranged that with Mr. Lafrance, the Cashier of the
bank, who himself wrote the ebeques.

Q. You >igned cheques in the La Banque Nationale for $74,111.64 ?-A. Yes,
but not at that tine. At that date it was $71,000 and something.

Q. Afterwards you signed a cheque for $111.64 on the first of May?-A. Yes.
Q. And one for $'2250 on the first of July ?-A. Yes; there was a certain amount

kept for the interest and then the $2,250 was kept by the banlk in case the letter of
credit should not be paid on the day it was due.

Q. You ehecked out the $111.64 as the balance of what the bank was willing to
advance at once ?-A. Yes, it was Mr. Lafrance made all the calculations and he
agreed with Mr. Thon. and Mr. Armstrong about ail these details. •

Q. When you were there ?-A. Yes, it was before me. They went there the
evening before and the arrangement was carried out the next morning. I am not
suie, as I had no more interert in it. I had Mr. Armstrong's receipts in my hands,
an(l I did not care about the rest, and they agreed about the details as they wished.

Q. And Mr. Lafrance kept back $2,250 to cover interest in case the letter of
credit was not paid ?-A. Yes.

Q. So those cheques we have mentioned are the whole of the proceeds of the
discount which had gone to your credit ?-A. Yes.

Q. What day was Armstrong's receipt signed ?-A. Here is a copy of it. I had
already a receipt from Armstrong, which is attached, but for more precaution I had
a receipt written on the claim itseif (Exhibit " 63.")

The receipt rcads as follows :-

" I, Charles N. Armstrong, contractor for the construction of the Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway, do hereby grant a full and complete discharge and quittance to the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Comipany, of all and every claim of whatsoever nature,
and kind, which I have or may have against the said company, and I further agree
to cancel and annul and I do hereby cancel and annul the contract and agreement
entered into with the said Company on the 9th day of June, 1886, for the construc-
tion of the said railway.

I hereby authorize the said comipany to take possession of the works on the
said railway and all material provided for the construction of the line together with
all the rolling stock placed on the line in furtherance of provisions ofsaid contract,
9th June, 1886.

" And I further transfer, assigii and make over to said company all and every
claim which I have or nay have against Henry Macfarlane or the insolvont estate of
Henry Maefarlane & Son, and the said eompany is hereby authorized to use my naine
in enforcing or collecting such claim.

"Signed at Quebec, this 28th day of April 1891.

(Sgd.) "C. N. AIRMST.RONG."

Q. On what day did you get this receipt ?-A. On the date it bears, it had been
made by Armstrong himself a day or two before.

Q. Aid before you gave him the cheques you took the receiptwhich isendorsed
on Exhibit " 5 " ?-A. Yes.

Q. Have you deait with the balance of the $280,000 yet ?-A. Not completely.
I have paid only tli anounts which were clear and admitted by thenselves. There
is a certain amount due the fishermîen on the northern coast of Labrador, and when
they come down they will be examined. It sometimes occur that someof them have
sold their claims but I neveri settle with these purchasers unless there is proof that
the parties selling their claim have been paid. There are two or three parties who
have bought some of the claims.

Q. What balance have you on hand ?-A. Between $8,000 and $10,000.
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Q Then did you get the whole of the $280,000 ?-A. No, I did not get that at

Q. How much did yon get ?-A. I had $1,500, $15,000 and $25,000.
Q. You had one $175,000 first, and then $41,500 ?-A. Yes, iL came at different

dates. As soon as I wanted money to make the payments, I asked for that amount
at the public departments, who put that amount ut my (isl)o-al, upon the report I
Made. as to what had been done.

Q. So you have had $216,500 ?-A. About that, I cannot say positively. I have
never made a calculation.

Q. When did you draw the $1,500 ?-A. It vas sent to me about the 13th or the
14th of May in Montreal. There were many clainis to be paid there-Mitchell, J. F.
Armstrong, and Leduc, and probably another.

Q. Who sent you the $1,500 ?-A. It was the Publie Works Department.
Q. Was it part of the $280,000 ?-A. Yes, part of the last subsidy.
Q. When did you get the $15,000 ?-A. I do not know, if the Committee wants

it, I can telegraph for it.
Q. Did you get it after the 1st of July ?-A. It was before, because I began

payments on the 13th of May 1891.
Q. Was there a letter or credit issued for the $15,000 ?-A. No, it was an ordi-

nary cheque of the Treasury Department which was renitted to the Public Works
Department, endorsed by Mr. Lesage at my order.

Q. When did you get the $25,000 cheque ?-A. IL was about the end of May.
Q. That was an ordinary tieasury cheque too ?-A. Yes.
Q. So the letter o credit issued for $175,000, because the Treasury had not the

Tnoney on hand to pay ?-A. I do not know anything about it. I had nothing to do
wvith it.

Q. Have you ever dealt with letters of credit with the Government before ?-A.
xever.

Q. Very unusual to see such 4hings, is it not ?-A. I do not know anything about
it, and I never had anything fbr myseif or my Department before.

Q. How long have you been in the employ of the Government ?-A. Three
Years.

Q. Have you been commissioner for the Government to handle Government
funds before ?-A. Yes 1 paid $48,000 like that for the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.

Q. That is, you paid men working on the first 60 miles who struck, out of the
old subsidy ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you paid those men directly ?-A. Yes; as I said before some of thom
who wanted money at once had transferred their claims to other persons, many of
them to some priests, but I always understood that they were paid before I repaid
the money.

Q. The priests advanced the money and you repaid the priests ?-A. Yes.

By the Bon. Mr. Tassé :

Q. Were the priests the only persons ?-A. No. There were others, chiefly
_lerchants from Campbellton--John P. Mowat, A. G. Adams & Co., and some others.
I think I have paid $1,600 to Mr. IMcAlister as attorney for therse people.

Q. Then you paid the workmen who struck on the section between the 60th and
7th mile ?-A. Yes.

Q. That is where Armstrong was working ?-A. Yes.
Q. So you have been commissioner and handed funds to pay sueh claims as

these three times ?-A. Yes, this is the third time.
Q. These are the only times ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you been the only one employed in that capacity ?-A. He had an

account with Joseph Michaud. I do not know in what capacity, but I think Mr.
Vallière has paid some on the Vaudreuil road; I do not know personally.
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Q. Before your appointment, do you know of anyone employed by the Quebec
Government to settle claims ?-A. No; there was probably Mr. Noyes, but I cannot
swear positively.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. Whero did you discount the $75,000 letter of credit ?-A. It was not I who

discounted it at all. I had nothing to do with it.
Q. Look at that account, the proceeds of the discount went to your credit ?-A.

Yes, but it was not I who arranged for the discount.
Q. The proceeds, $74,111.64, went to your crodit ?-A. Yes.
Q. And that letter of credit, instead of producing $75,000 for the creditors of

the road, only produced $74,111.64 ?-A. I do not know exactly, there was a discouni,
to be taken off.

Q. Was La Banque Nationale a privileged creditor of the road ?-A. I said it
had nothing to do with it.

Q. Why did you pay the Bank tha t large sum of discount ?-A. Simply because,
like ail other-s, they would not advance money for nothing. I made it with tho
consent of Mi. Thom and Mr. Armstrong after it had been agreed.

Q. In order that they might have the money ?-A. Yes.
Q. Why did the Government issue letters of credit, instead of waiting until

they got the money from the Dominion Government to pay this $175,000?--A. I
(o not know anything about that; probably Mr. Machin will be able tp tell about
that.

Q. You have no knowledge why the Government took this extraordinary and
unusual course of issuing letters of credit ?--A. No, I had nothing to do with it,
and did not know anything about it.

By the Hion. Mr. Girard:
Q. You spoke of privileged debts paid by you, were those privileged debts,-

bwivileged debts under the law, or under the instructions of the Government?-A.
nder the common law. I had instructions to guide me from the office of the

Attorney General, teliing me what had to be paid.

By 11r. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants:
Q. Did the Attorney General's Department tell you to pay this $175,000 ?-A.

No; it was the Public Works Department.
Q. By letter ?-A. Not by letter ; in virtue of the Order in Council.
Q. Who told you to pay the $175,000 ?-A. It was Mr. Lesage, Deputy Con-

missioner of' Publie Works.
Q. Did Mr. Armstrong sign the receipt before ho got the choques or at the

same time ho got the cheques ?-A. I have told you before he signed it one or two
days before he received the cheques.

Q. This is the receipt endorted on this account (document roforred to) ?-A.
What I have produced.

By the Chairman:
Q. Was Mr. Armstrong's claim one of the privileged claims ?-A. After what

had been told to me I did not bother about whether it was a privileged claim or not.
I had instruction- to pay him and I paid him.

Q. Who gave the instructions ?-A. It was Mr. Lesage, Deputy Minister of
Publie Works, who told me to pay it. He was my chief, and I took my orders from
him.

By 1fr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :

Q. You did not care whethor it was privileged or not, because you had the ins-
tructions of yoýîr chiet?-A. In the other claims I exorcised my own discretion, but
in this I received the order, and I had nothing to say to it but to submit.
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By the Hon. JIr. Girard:

Q. I want to know how that amount of $75,000 went out of your hands. It
was first put to your credit at the Bank, and I want to know how it was paid outt?
-- It was paid out by the cheques mentioned in the exhibit shewn to me by Mr.
Barwick,, at the demaid of Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Thom. I had my roceipt, ani
I had not to bother about the details; they had to agree between themselves.

By Hon. François Langelier, Counsel for the Government of the Province of
Quebec :

Q. What was the modus operandi you generally followed for the payment of the
claims presented against the road from the last subsidy of $280,000 ?-A. Mr. Stan-
ton, one of the ex-employees of Mr. MacFarlane put into my hands a statement of
the balance due by MacFarlane and Company. I can exhibit that here if it is needed.
I asked ail these dotails trom Mr. Riddell, who is one of the curators of the insolvent
estate ot' MacFarlane and Co. He said it was noue of his business, and- the first time
ho refused entirely to submit a list of the croditors for io:s than $100. I iisisted
and said that if through this want of information there was something paid that was
not due by the estate it would not be our fault. After having spoken about that
nearly the whole forenoon Mr. Riddell told me " May be I will send you a list of
the creditors above 8100." I asked him to give me a list of the creditors belo.w $100,
and he told me I had nothing to do with it, and if I wanted it to go to the Court
louse in New Carlisle, Bonaventure County-it was deposited there. And a few

days after ho sent me a list of the creditors ranging above $100 but under $100. I
never got it. For these claims there was an inquiry made in 1889. Then ail these
claims were put in and sworn to. I could not pay any of them unless they were
approved and certified by Mr. Thom. But in order to despatch the business Mr.
'lhom has permitted me to pay ail the small privileged amounts which are perfectly
incontrovertible, reserving the right to examine and decide upon those of a larger
amount.

Q. Then if I understand you well, the moment that a claim was presented to you
you submitted it to Mr. Tbom to see if ho would approve it ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the moment it was approved you paid it ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is the position of Mr. Thom towards the road ?-A. He is actually the

Secretary Treasurer of the new company.
Q. Had he any authority from the re-organized company to see to the payment

of the claims ?-A. Yes, certainly.
Q. And in virtue of the Order in Couneil there is nobody but Mr. Thom who

can certify and approve thoso claims ?-A. No.
Q. Do you know in what manner the claim of $175,000 which you have paid to

Mr. Armstrong was settled ?-A. Yes. Mr. Armstrong presented me a claim that I
have just produced. I submitted it to Mi'. Thom. Mr. Thom answered me by a
letter which 1 have not got here, but which I shall produce hereafter, that I could
pay to the amount of $175,000, and he approved and certified for that amount.

Q. It was that claim which was made for $288,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then Mr. Thom did not consent to pay the whole of that claim ?-A. No.
Q. Has he ever told you why he had fixed the amount $175,000 the amount ho

consented to pay ?-A. No, he never told me a word about it.
Q. So if I understand you well, you had nothing to do whatever with the doter-

ilination of the amount to be paid to Armstrong, or whether any amount should be
paid to him ?-A. No, never.

Q. So that what you have done about Armstrong's claim is what you have done
about all other claims ?-A. Yes, certainly.

Q. Mr. Webb, who was heard here as a witiess, has stated that you had gone to
the Union Bank and asked for a discounting of a letter of credit for $100,000. Is
that true or not ?-A. No, it is not true; it is absolutely false.
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Q. Have you had any transactions with Mr. Webb about the discount about the
payment of that sum of $100,000?-A. Never, when I went down the first time to
endorse that letter of credit ut the Union Bank, I did not even know Mr. Webb by
sight.

Q. How were you brought to go to the Union Bank to endorse that letter ?-
A. I received instructions from the Department to go to the Union Bank, that there
would probably be there a letter of credit and I would probably have to endorse il
or something like that.

Q. You speak of the Public Works Department ?-A. Ytes.
Q. It is from the Public Works Department you have received your instructions

as to the amounts to be paid, and as to the legil question you received instructions
from the Attorney General's Departnent ?-A. I rceived all my instructions from
the Public Works Department, but as to the question between privileged and unpri-
vileged claims, I submitted it to the Publie Works Department, which referred it to
the Attorney General's Department. I have no other authority than the Public
Works Department in every thing I do.

Q. It bas boon insinuated here that you played an active part and that you had
some interest in the settlement of Armstrong's claim, is it true or not?-A. It is
absolutely false, and whoever stated that is a liar and calumniator. I swear positively
that neither directly nor indirectly, near or fàr, had I anything to do with the
settlement of that affair.

Q. Have you tuken more interest in the settlement of that claim than in the
settlement of anv other claim ?-A. Less than in the others, because I did not know
Mi. Armstrong, had never seen him befor-o, whereas for the claims in the county of
Bonaventure, I knew mostly ail the claimants.

Q. You are well acquainted with the history of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway;
every summer you reside in Bonaventure county ?-A. Yes, since 6 or 7 years.

Q. You know that since a few years, there have been considerable difficulties about
that road, and that the works were stopped several times ?-A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what induced the Local Government to pay the workmen out
of the local subsidy the first time ?-A. It was because the (-overniment thought if
they paid the money to the company or the contractor, the money might have been
mnisapplied from its proper purpose as it was belore.

Q. It has been stated by one of the witnesses, Mr. Armstrong that the Ontario
Bank had received $52,000 conditional upon a promise to pay the claims. Has the
Bank of Ontario paid a cent of that sum ?-A. No, never.

Q. Ithas been declared here that the Bank of Ontario had receipts for the pay-
ments it had made ?-A. It is absolutely false; the bank lias not paid a single cent
of these -,lains.

YesQ. So if the Ontario Bank has received this $52,000 the bank has kept it ?-A.

Q. To the detriment of the other creditors ?-A. Yes.
Q. You said a moment ago about the difficulties in the construction of that road,

do you know anything of those misapplications of subsidies which you spoke of ?-A.
Certainly, I have myself a sworn declaration from one of the contractors; Geo. A.
Taylor of Brockville, stating that the company had received $118,000 which it kept.

MR. BARWICK objected to this going in as evidence, and the objection was
sustained.

By the Hon. François Langelier, Counselfor the Government of the Provin:e
of Quebec.

Q. You stated that you had paid the privileged claims against the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company ?-A. Yes.

Q. How much have you ?aid outside of the claim of Mr. Armstrong?-A. Out
of the subsidy of $280,000 ? T es. I must have paid about $30,000. I shall produce
the regular statement to the Committee.

130

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Q. Were there, amongst these claims, any amounts due by MuFarlane & Co.?-
A. Yes, there were mnany.

Q. Can you say approximately the amount due by MacFarlane ?-A. I cannot
say at once, but I shall produce the statement, name by name, of what was due and
what was paid on accouut of MacFarlane as contractor.

Q. But you could not say without referring to that doeument what was the
amount paid for Mr. MaeFarline ?-A. No, because I have an accountant Vho keeps
that specially, and the moment I have seen the reccipts I shall be able to say. I have
the receipts here, and1c I shall make the litst.

Q. Do you know if it is more or less than one half that lias been paid for MacFar-
lane ?-A. It is at least ome half, it is mostly on the sixty miles.

Q. All these amounts that you have paid are for the insolvent estate of Mr.
MacFarlane ?-Yes.

Q. And for the benefit of his creditors at large ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. Do you know what Mr. Armstrong did with the $100,000 you paid him ?-

A. Not at all.
Q. Did Mr. Paeaud or Mr. Armstrong or anybody else inforn you as to what

was to be done with the $100,M00 ?-A. I never heard about the $100,000, except
wvhat I saw in the papers. I had nothing to do with it. I saw a statement in
L'Etendard before the month of May which was the tirst I heard of a wrong appli-
cation of this money by Mr. Armstrong. L'Etendard gave no particulars and
merely said there was something wrong on the road. I wrote L'Etendard to the
effect that they were perfoetly wrong, and they answered tlat there was some
Suspicion.

Q. That was in the latter part of May ?-A. I think so. Because I left about
the 13th or 14th of May to go down to make these payments, and when there I saw
fow papers.

Q. You said you went to Mr. Pacaud's office at Mr. Armstrong's request ? You
had n1o previous engagement with Mr. Armstrong or Mr. Pacaud, hid you?-
A. Not at all. I never had a word with Mr. Pacaud about it.

Q. Do you remember anything about those claims of MaeFarlane's which it has
been allegod the Ontario Batik undertook to pay ?-A. Yes.

Q. You say you paid those as commisioner?-A. Yes, we paid everything paid
on that r'ailw'ay since 1889.

Q. Do you remember about what time you paid those claimis of MacFarlane's ?-
A. If i understand right, it was only lately I was informed that the Bank of Ontario
has received $52,000 from the Ottawa G'overnment, but in the month of June, 1890,
after the local elections, Sir William lowland, President and Mr. C. Hlland, Mana-
ger of the Ontario Bank, came down to Quebec, to ask Mr. Mercier for a certificate
stating that so much had been paid or was to bo paid, in discharge of wages due on
the raiilway. Mr. Mercier referred them to me. I asked them why they wanted
this statement. Sir William Howland said it was simply to avoid a law-suit. He
said : We are obliged to pay wages, and if we can say that they are paid, they cannot
a.sk then to be paid over again. I gave thom the statement.

Q. Can you remember how much remained to be paid out of the $28,000 balance
Of subsidy for the first 60 miles?-A. $2,000 or $3,000; I think.

Q. What was the amount of claims to be paid thon ?-A. Over $25,000, including
the right of way and damages.

Q. Any claims against MacFarlane?-A. That is against MacFarlane.
Q. When this $52,000 was paid over by the Dominion Government to the

Ontairio Bank-in 1890, was it ?-A. I do not iznow.
Q. At any rate when Sir William Howland came down to Quebec you had left

Out of the $28,000 set aside to pay these claims, $2,000 or $3,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And there were claims amounting to over $25,000 not paid ?-A. Yes, the

right of way, for wages and for material supplied by farmers.
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Q. When Sir William Howland went to Quebec, if it was stated that thon all
these claims were not provided for, would that be correct ? When Sir William How-
land went to Quebec, it is stated that the Ontario Bank liad provided for the payment
of all these preferential claims against the MacFarlane estate ?-No answer.

Q. That is in 1889, at that time only $3,000 were left out of the Quebec morey
to pay to these labourers?-A. In October, 1889, there was $28,545 provided by the
Government to pay all these things, and out of that in November, 1889, I paid myself
over $22,000 of those claims against MaeFarlane & Co.

Q. And there remained how much due ?-A. As far as I can judge about
$25,000 or $30,000; I will get the exact list.

Q. MacFarlane's men have been paid ?--A. Yes, about.
Q. When were the last paid ?-A. If the Committee will allow me, I will give

the position, how it stood. Mr. MacFarlane, by his contract with the company, and
Mr. Armstrong had a transfer of certain subsidies payable by the Government of
Quebec. Some of these subsidies were paid, but in the summer of 1889 there w'ere
some troubles, and of course the Ontario Bank refused to continue to advance the
MacFarlane money which they had pledged themselves to do by letter which I have
seen. There were complaints and a strike took place. The Quebec Government
sent out a commissioner to enquire into the causes of the strike. The commissioner
went through and took the declarations of the parties who had claims against the
company. There remained for these sixty miles of road out of the subsidy of the
Que bec Government, $28,545. The Goveinment said instead of paying that for the
Company we will keep it and pay the workmen ourselves direct, so that we may be
sure they are paid. So there was no more subsidy for the sixty miles, so we could
go no more than to that extent. I paid that money in the falt of 1889, and in the
winter and spring and I suppose up to June, 1890. There were lots of other claims.
In order to secure the payment of these claims, the Government of Quebec, at the
last Session, passed a law granting $280,000 in order to piovide the funds to settle
the balance of these claims on Section K too.

Q. And the wages, &c., that had been paid by the Quebec Government were the
only claims that could be paid by the Ontario Bank out of the Federal subsidies, so
that what the Bank pretends to have paid was really paid by the Government of
Quebec ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. And I understand that some of that which the Bank in 1889 promised to pay
was paid by you within the last few weeks ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. When did Mr. Armstrong request you to meet him at the office of Mr. Pacaud ?
-A. At La Banque Nationale.

Q. When ?-A. On the day I signed those cheques. The cheques give the date.
Mr. Armistiong was there, and ho asked me to go Io Mr. Pacaud's office, that ho
waited to get his $100,000. I made a cheque for $100,000. Then I was leaving

Hon. Mr. KAULBACH.-That is all.

By the Chairman:

Q. You knew that Mr. Pacaud got $100,000 ofîthese five cheques ?-A. No, sir,
I gave it to Mr. Armstiong, I knew nothing about it alter that.

By the lHon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. You have referred to a letter published by you in L'Etendard in the begin-
ning of May. What was the amount specified by you in the letter as having been
paid in settlement of the claim ?-A. I do not think I specified an amount.

Q. I think you did ?-A. I may ; I do not remember.
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Q. I think you said $200,000 had been paid by you ?-A. Nearly that; I do
not think I specified the amount.

Q. I have produced the letter here ?-A. The letter will speak for itself.
Q. You have referred to the claims of 1888-89, a moment ago I asked you if

any other officer had been appointed by the Local Government to settle these claims.
Did you say yes or no ?-A. Do you mean by settlement paying or investigating
them ? If you mean paying them, there was no one but myseif appointed.

Q. Was not your brother, the Hon. Charles Langelier appointed by the Govern-
ment to investigate these claims ?-A. Yes.

Q. Do you know of any reports he made to the Government ?-A. I think
there were two, first a preliminary report, and then a final. The first report was for
this :-There were many claims. and the people were starving, and the Government
eould not do anything without having a report and a preliminary report was made
in order to put the Government in a position to help them.

Q. Cari you tell me the amounts mentioned in these reports ?-A. No, I do not
remember, but I can show you if you wish.

Q. When did you commence your labour in that connection ?-A. At the end
of November, 1889.

Q. You were paying last year also ?-A. Yes. Last year it was on Section K;
there were $20,000 to pay exclusively on that section.

Q. What you have paid this year was in conneetion with the $280,000 ?-A.
Yes.

Q. Do you know if the claim of Mr. Armstrong was investigated by your
brother also ?-A. No. I knew Mr. Armstrong had given his deposition before my
brother.

Q. Did you know if it was investigated by other persons ?-A. No, I did not
know anything about that.

Q. So you paid before knowing if the claim had been investigated ?-A. I had
nothing to do with that ; 1 had the order froi the Department to pay it, and I paid
it. The only parties who could control the claims of Mr. Armstrong were the Com-
pany, and I have the signatures of the Managing Director and the Seèretary
'Treasurer.

Q. Do you know the mode employed for the payment of money for the right of
way in the County of Bonaventure ?-A. No, I do not.

Q. Have you paid that money yourself for the right of way ?-A. Very little.
Q. By whom was it paid ?-A. In the greatest part by Mr. Riopel; but I give

this as heresay, as I was not there at all. I say it upon the deposition ofiMr. Riopel,
Who, in the case in the Superior Court, swears that he had received $10,000 from
Mr. MacFarlane, to pay for the right of way. I shall produce a copy of that depo-
sition.

Q. What is the date of the payment to Mr. Riopel for the right of way ?-A. I
do not know.

Q. What was the time of year ?-A. It was in 1886, at the tine the railway was
under construction. I do not know personally that he paid, but I base my state-
ient upon his own declaration, whereby he says lie received $10,000 from MacFar-

lane, in order to buy the right of way, and out of that he only paid part, and bas
the balance to account for.

By Hon. M2r. Robitaille:

Q. Was it not that up to that date he had only used a certain amount of it ?-
A. The deposition speaks for itself.

By Hon. Mr. Tassé;

Q. What amount is remaining unpaid for the right of way ?-A. On the sixty
miles ? It depends. I think Mr. Riopel had secured liberty to grant the right of
Way, especially on the first part; they now pretend they did not get it, but I could
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never see the deeds given to Mr. Riopel. I never saw them. Mr. MacFarlane has
sent a man on the 60 miles to inquire from house to house who was paid and who
was not, and I have a list of who was paid and who was not, which I will produce.

Q. Did you endorse the paper, the letter of credit to the Union Bank for the
$100,000, without seeing it?-A. Certainly, because it was sent by the Departinent;
I saw the paper, but I did not read it.

By Hon. Mr. Power :

Q. If in the winter of 1890 you had finished paying ont that $28,000, would
you have paid more of MacFaiane's men if you had had more money ?-A. Certainly,
but the subsidy was exhausied and required a new vote from the louse to pay the
balance.

GEORGE R. R. COCKBURN, of the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario,
Member of Parliament, Director of the Ontario Bank, who, being duly sworn, deposed
af follows:-

I am here, Mr. Chairman, to answer any questions with reference to this matter.
Any statement I have to make is of the briefest character. I appear here, not as a
meiber of the Liberal-Conservative paity, but simply as a Director of the Ontario
Bank, and I may state that in dealing with this Bill which is before this Ilonour-
able body I was advised by the President of the Ontario Bank, Sir W. P. low-
land, and by the Manager, Mr. C. Holland, to put myself in communication
with their trusted Adviser, Mr. François Langelier, who, they said, had taken
their case up to the time they had got this judgment from Mr. Justice
Pagnuelo, with reference to handing over the road to the new company or
the newly organized company. When I came down to Ottawa and saw that
this Bill was being brought up before the loiuse of Commons, I sent a copy
of the .Bill to the President of' the bank, and also to the Manager, and I took
occasion on Friday evening to go up to Toronto to communicate further. I got
then the whole of the transactions that had taken place between the Bank President
and the Vice-President and Directors and Mr. François Langelier. I asked how he
happened to have been appointed to this delicate duty, inasmuch as we had other
counsel in Montreal to look after our inierests, and I was told that Mr. Mercier had
told the President and the Manager of the bank in this meeting that Mr. Mercier has
referred to in Quebee, that it would be to the advantage of the bank not to have any
dealings with Mr. Macdonald, the contractor, and Mr. Cameron, but to leave it all to
,him and make no sacrifice of the bank's interest. That he would see them paid every
farthing, and he advised the Manager and the President to take, as their counsel, Mr.
Langelier, in whom Mr'. Garneau had the greatest confidence, and they did take him
and make him, to all intents and purposes, their counsel, and when I came here I
was told to put myself in communication with him. The night before this Bill was
brought up I telegraphed for our Manager, Mr. R. M. King, oftMontreal, to come
down here. lis train was late, and it was nearly 12 o'clock before I could sec him,
but so greatly did I value the advice of Mr. Langelier that at the hour of midnight
we went together to his house, and we there had a consultation with him in the par-
lotir of his own bouse. He strongly warned me against raking up this matter of
$280,000. It was not, he stated, in the interests of the bank; for all interests we had
better let this Bill go through, and have, perhaps, some little clause put in which I
afterwards showed him, but his warning was against touching this question of $280,-
000. The Bill came up in the Railway Committee, and I opposed it there, and1 had
an amendment drawn up, which as a layman, I believe was not a very good legal
document, but still it was accepted by the other side. Mr. Langelier, I tbink, was Ut
that Committee. The matter was then referred back to the Hlouse of Commons, to
come up in Committee of the Whole, and for third reading. And while it was there
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I opposed it, and got the Bill remitted back to the Railway Committee, and
there I proposed an amendment, and asked Mr. Langelier as ouir counseL
to be there. A meeting of the Railway Committee was being held in a roomi
larger than this, and the Committee on the Tarte-Langevin matter was sitting
in the adjoining room with a door between us and them. The Railway Committee;
started to work on this Bill. I sent in a memorandum to our Counsel, Mr. Langelier,.
asking him to come and help us-to say a few words in French to the large audience-
which was there; I got no response. I sent in a second time, and stood at the door
within twolve feet of him, and sent a memorandum, which fortunately I have kept.
I will read it; it is addressed to Mr. Langelier, and says: " Pray do corne; the Baie
des Chaleurs Bill is under consideration." I told the messenger to insist upon an
answer, and this is Mr. Langelier's answer, written on the same paper, and returned
to me : " Cannot leave, as we have a most important question under discussion." I
listened to that important question that was under discussion. There was a good
deal of nierriment and enjoynent in the Commnittee, but I did not see anything so,
very important; but the Counsel in whon we were plaeing ail our contidence could
not come in to help us as other members were doing at the time, to aid us in explain-
ing the Bill. This is the paper with my signature and his signature, or his initiais.
When I found he was unable to come I thought lie could not have deeply at heart
the interests of the Bank, and began to reconsider the value of the advice he gave
me to be sure not to touch this matter, of $280.000, and that put me on the track ; I
thought there was something behind it, and I proceeded with the investigation, and
as soon as I had found, as I thought, sufficient ovidence to justify me in the course I
have taken, I telegraphed up to the Ontario Bank requesting them to send Mr. Bar-
wick. Mr. Barwick came, but neither the Ontario Bank nor Mr. Barwick hinsef
knew at the time why I had telegraphed him. He came down here, and he has been
here since. By our united efforts, more particularly, I may say, by the efforts ofour
eminent and trusted.Counsel, we have been able to make these revelations and ex-
planations to this honourable Committee in justification of our demands, that,
inasmuch as the fund that was deposited there to pay Mr. Macfarlane, and the just
clainis of the Ontario Bank, had been perverted to other purposes, we should be
entitled to ask ihis honourable Committee to grant us some protection or some relief
before it allowed this Bill to pass. We are here, 1 an here at any rate, as a Director
of the Ontario Bank, simply to request that the $280,000 that had been perverted
and appropriated by men who vere sworn to defend the inter'ests and honour of this
country bo put back in suchi a position that the poor contractor, who has been
miserably swindled out of his moncy, should have some chance at least of knowing
where to find it.

The ioN. MR. PowER: Is this evidence?
The WITNEsS: I am stating why I am hore. The other question has been brought

up with reference to the earlier action of the Company. With that I have nothing
to (o and desire to have nothing to do. i am simply here representing a commercial
institution-the Ontario Bank-a Grit institution with a Grit board and a Grit
President, a Grit Vice-President and a Grit Solicitor-and I wish all Grits were like
hin. I am simply representing their interest, and you yourselves may judge
approxinatetly how foul must be the nest we have struck when a bcdy of men whose
political leanings actually drift to the Reform side should feel constrained to appear
before you and denand protection at the hands of the highest court in the realm.
They have been driven to it. I do not say there has been the same feeling of relue-
tance on my part, but while i am standing alone I am standing up for the true
interests of the bank, and these interests have been put clearly and squarely before
you and I do not desire, representing the Ontario Bank, that we should be drawn
aside fron a plain course by starting another question of the earlier history of the
Baie des Chaleur Railway, with which I have nothing to do. That early history
May reveal facts discreditable to the Reform party or to the Liberal.Conservative
party. I am here representing no party except a matter of money, if you wish,
and ask you to calmly review the evidence placed before you so ably by Mr. Barwick,
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and say if on full consideration of all the evidence we have not the right to ask you
to protect us against similar frauds being practised against us in th- future. There
was a sum of money, $280,000, placed there to meet the very elains we have
supported. We have not much chance now to-get it. A good part of it is now on
the other side of the ocean, but I ask you in view of the evidenoe to give us that
protection, as a commercial corporation, even if we have Grit proelivities-to which
as British subjects we are entitled.

By the Hon. Mr. O'Donohoe:
Q. You speak of the Senate causing this $280,000 to be placed back-can the

Senate do that?-A. I think the Senate may be in a position to do so. I hope so.
1 am no lawyer. I am a simple layman, and if the Senate and this Committee are
in a position to replace that amount or some equivalent sum back and give the
bank and other parties interested a chance I shall be delighted. If the Senate is not
in a position to do so, I regret it.

Q. How was the retainer of the bank communicated to Mr. Langelier, as
counsel ?-A. I know not. I simply state that for months and months Mr. François
Langlier has been in communication with the Ontario Bank, and its officers, and
has advised them, and I was instructed by the President and Manager to put myself
in communication with Mr. François Langelier as a man who had been strongly
recommended to them by Mr. Mercier, as understanding the whole question and ho
was working with Mr. Mercier and would be able to help us all the more and the
Bank, like a commercial corporation, took the man they thought was best, If they
had known of Mr. Pacaud they might have taken him.

The Committee thon adjonrned until Thursday morning.
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COMMITTEE RooM,
THURSDAY, 27th, August 1891.

The Committee met at 10:30, Honourable Mr. VIDAL in the Chair.

Mr. G. R. R. COCKBURN, M. P., re-called, was examined by THE HoN. FRANÇoIS
LANGELIER, Counsel for the Quebec Government.

Q. You stated the other day that Mr. Mercier, Prime Minister of the Province
of Quebec, had advised Sir William Howland, President of the Ontario Bank, to
retain my service---

Mr. CocKBURN-And Mr. Holland, the Manager.
Q. Were you present there? --A. Where?
Q. When they were with Mr. Mercier ?-A. No ; I was not.
Q. How could you swear what took place between them. Is that the way you

have been swearing all the time, the other day ?-A. No.
Mr. LANGELIER-I do iot know why it has been attempted, Mr. Chairman, to

throw aspersions on my professional character. It is quite unprofessional, as every-
one must know. As to my character as a member of the Bar of Quebec, I leave it
to those who have been practising with me for the last 25 years, and who have raised
me to the highest position as Batonnier of the Bar of Quebec, and I have been a
member of the Counsel of the Bar, and under these circumstances I can leave my
reputation to my colleagues of the Bar of Quebec.

By the Hon. Mr. McMillan :

Q. Did you not consult Mr. Langelier as Solicitor for the Ontario Bank ?-
A. Mr. King, Manager of the Ontario tank in Montreal and myself consulted hini
and made an appointment with him for a further consultation with him next morning,
which we held in the hall or lobby of the House of Commons, and the paper I read
yesterday showed the confidential relations existing between Mr. Langelier alid the
bank which I represent.

Q. He gave you advice ?-A. He gave me advice.
Mr. LANGELIER-I haVe beon and still am the attorney of Mr. MacFarlane in his

claim against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and Armstrong, and after he failed I
went on with the case as attorney for the curators, and I am no more the solicitor of
the Ontario Bank than for any of the other creditors.

WITNEs-I can only say, in reply to the suggestion thrown out by Mr. Lange-
lier, probably I was misled in the matter; that I hold in my hand a statement by the
Curator that he paid from the funds of the Bank of Ontario a sum of $300 to Mr.
Langelier on the 26th of March last.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :
Q. The curator of the MacFarlane estate ?-A. Yes; and yet Mr. Langelier was

perfectly innocent of the fact that he was acting for the bank and that he consulted
With Mr. Barwick, the bank solicitor in Ontario, in the bank parlor in Montreal, at
Which the Manager was also prèsent. I do not know the intricacies of the etiquette
of law, but as a layman, I know that he accepted $300 fron the bank and wrote for
the money too, and I th:nk I was entitled to consider that he was the adviser of the
bank. especially when I werit to him and spoke to him as such, and made arrangments
With him about the conduet of the case in protecting the batik in this Bill.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. What was the amount paid ?-A. $300.
Q. What date ?-A. On the 26th of March $244.31 of it was paid by the Ontario

Bank and the other bank, the Eastern Townships Bank, paid the difference. We paid
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three-quarters and the other bank one-quarter. The money came from us, and there
vas no other source from which it could come, and Mr. Langelier took care to get

that money.
Q. And you were the backers of MacFarlane ?-A. A bank does not wish to

figure in a lawsuit, and we were the people behind the MacFarlane estate.
By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:

Q. And furnishing the noney ?-A. Furnishing the money, and it being known
that the money came from us.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. In regard to the question Mr. Francois Langelier asked Mr. J. C. Langelier,

and extracted the answer that the Ontario Bank had in fact broken its pledge to the
Dominion Government and paid nothing to the workmen-can you give us an ex-
planation ?-A. Finding there was a general misunderstanding I looked it up, and
found the following facts: that on June 14th, 1888, the Quebec subsidy of $70,000 on
the section of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, between the 40th and the 60th miles, was
assigned to the Ontario Bank, and you will find the document itself in Exhibit No. 54,
showing an assignment to the Ontario Bank of the Quebec subsidy of 870,000 on that
section. Then in Exhibit No. 55 it will be seen that notice was given to the Assistant
Provincial Treasurer, signifying the transfer of that sum. On the 12th October,
1889, there was a letter from the Ontario Bank to the Minister of' Railways and
Canals, undertaking that if the $54,000 subsidy duo the Ontario Bank was paid to
the bank, the bank would itndertake on its part to see paid the wages due to the men
under employment by MacFarlane for work on the first 60 miles; the amount due of
wageswe stated to be, or understoodfrom McFarlane, to be$13,000. I amconversant
with this, because I recollect myself accompanying the Manager of the Ontario
Bank here to the Department. This is the letter of the Ontario Bank (Exhibit 64).

OTTAWA, 12th October, 1889.
"To the Hon. Minister of Railways and Canalis

" SIR,-The Ontario Bank understand that therc are wages dues to MacFarlane's
men for work done for the first 60 mile-section of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
amounting to $13,000. There is payable to the Railway Company $54,000, part of
the Dominion subsidy; the Ontario Bank is entitled to receive this $54,000 per Mr.
Noël, Manager of the Quebec Bank, Ottawa, who is attorney for the Railway Com-
pany to receive this subsidy for the Ontario Bank. If the Government pay over
this $54,000 fortwith to Mr. Noël to be paid to the Ontario Bank, the bank under-
takes to see the above wages to the men paid.

"A. SIMPSON.
" Manager."

That is our local manager. I recollect accompanying him at that time. This
vas on October 12th. On the same day the balance due to the Ontario Bank on the

Quebec subsidy on the above $70,000 amounted to $28,545. Now, the Hon. Charles
Langelier, who was appointed a Commissioner by letters patent of the Province of
Quebec, began on October 23rd, or one or two days afterwards, taking evidence with
a view of detormining the amount of money due to MacFarlane's workmen. Then
about six weeks afterwards, November 28, 1889, the same year, Mr. J. C. Langelier
began paying the claims which had been ascertained by Charles Langelier, the Com-
missioner, and by October 31st, 1890, or ten months later, Mr. MacFarlane's workmen
had been paid, and Mr. Chrisostôme Langelier had expended the whole $28,545, and
here is the statement of Mr. J. C. Langelier to that affect which I put in. (Docu-
ment filed as Exhibit 66.)

By the Hfon. M. Power:
Q. Is this statement in his handwriting ?-A. It is signed by himself; he is now

preparing a statement showing his disposition or the disposition made by him of the
$280,000 paid by him or the part of it that was paid by him, and that not one cent
is due this day to the workmen of Mr. MaceFarlane, the sub-contractor.
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By the Hon. Mr. Bolton:
Q. The $70,000 was due to the Ontario Bank. It had been assigned by MacFar-

lane to the Ontario Bank for the advances made to him ?-A. That $28,545 is part
of the $70,000 and this is the money that was lying in Qnebec, and we undertook,
you understand, that if the Dominion Government would release to us or give us
this subsidy which was due of $54,000

By the Chairman:
Q. From the Dominion ?-A. From the Dominion-we would undertake to see

Mr. MacFarlane's workmen paid. The said : We cannot pay you as long as there are
any claims. but as the amount is small, some $13,000, if you will give us assurances
that you will sec these debts paid we will pay over the subsidyi and they paid it
over and the Quebec Governiment took the $28,545, the balance of the subsidy lying
in their hands.

Q. And due to you ?-A. Our money; it is due to Mr. MacFarlane and his work-
men, but we undertook to sec the wages due the workmen and amounting to
$13,000, paid; but apparently other claims have b€en paid, as the whole amount,
$28,545, had been used. But I wish to give the Committee the assurance which you
got from Mr. Langelier himself, that there is not one cent due from the MacFarlane
estate to the workmen of the Baie des Chaleurs Cailway.

By the lion. Mr. Boulton :
Q. I wish to make it plain that that $28,000 was the Ontario Bank's money ?-

A. 'It was part of the $70,000 assigned by Mr. Macfarlane.
Q. And it was that that went to pay the wages ?-A. Certainly.
Q. And went to relieve you of your obligation ?-A. The Quebec Government

paid, it and this relieved us of our task to sec the men paid.

By the Hon. -[r. Miller;
Q. There is nothing wrong on the part of the Bank of Ontario appropriating-

that subsidy after the debts were paid-these debts ofMr. MacFarlane ?-A. No; it
was simply an undertaking that we would sec then paid. The accounts show that
the men have been paid every cent, and we produce them to you he're this day.

Q. I asked that, because I understood it was insinuated that you had received
money and had appropriated it.-A. That was the insinuation, and it is that inusinu-
ation that I wish to dispel. Or, rather, it was a direct charge which has been made
outside of this Committee.

By the Ron. Mfr. Tassé
Q. You say that the money due the labourers in Quebec had been paid ?-A.»

Ail the workmen's wages.
Q. That is ail the bank undertook to sec paid ?

By the Hon. Mr. Murphy : •

Q. To the extent of $13,000 ?-A. That is all they undertook.

By the Hon. _3r. Power :
Q. Were you present wben Mr. ChrysostOme Langelier testified ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember the character ofhis testimony ?-A. lis French testimony

or his English testimony?
Q. Inasmuch as 1 understood that you could understand the French perfectly, I

do not see that it makes a difference ?-A. The testimonies are a little different some-
times. One testimony intended for one set of people, and another for another set.

Q. Of course, if you do not choose to answer the question you need not. Did
you understand his testimony ?-A. I can gencrally understand a man in French;
I understood what lie said.

Q. Did you understand hini to say that it was only within a couple of months
that he had paid the last of the wages to Mr. MacFarlane's men ?-A. I think this is
it here (referring to a document)-October 31st, 1890.
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Q. I am not asking, to bis statement made since, but as to his statement made
on oath as that it was only within a few months that he had paid the last of the
amounts due to Mr. MacFarlane's men ?-A. I do not kn>w.

Q. Now, Mr. Cockburn, your undertaking was dated October, 1889?-A. October
the 12th-yes.

Q. That is twoand a-half years before these labourers were paid? (The Hon. Mr.
MILLER-A year and a-half.)-A. Apparently. Thirteen months, nearly fourteen
months.

Q. If Mr. Langelier stated that it was only within the last couple of months ho
paid the last of these claims be stated what was incorrect?-A. No; be may have
meant that a dollar or two may have been paid to some man up in Labrador or some-
where where ho could not be got at sooner, but he had virtually paid all claims by
the 31st October, 1890.

Q. That was a year after you had got the $52,000 from the Dominion Governt
ment ?-A. That is about a year. Of course, it was left with the Quebec Governmen-
to pay. The Ontario Bank wasgood for $13,000 anyway.

By the Chairman :
Q. At what date did the Quebec Government make the payment out of which

the debts were to be paid ?-A. I have not the date ; it is in the document there.

By the Hon. 3fr. Power:

Q. Mr. Barwick was speaking in your behalf and in your presence thé other
day, and ho stated that he had the receipt at that Lime to show that the labourers
were paid in pursuance of the undertaking of the bank. Well, now, Mr. Cockburn
in the evidence, if you have it there, it might be more convenient for you to look at
it, page 102 of the exhibits. You will find a copy of the letter from the Assistant
Treasurer of Quebec in reference to the Quebec subsidy. I am not speaking of the
Dominion subsidy, but of the Quebec siibsidy. This is the letter : "I have the honour
to acknowledge yours of the 3rd instant protesting against the balance of the sub-
sidies granted by the Province of Quebec in aid of the construction of the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway, by the Acts of Quebec, 45 Vie., ch. 23, sec. 1, paragraph (b), and
49-50 Vic., ch. 76, applicable to the fifth and sixth section of ten miles each of the
said railway being a)plied by the Governnent to the payment of the claims for work
done and materiali s furnished for the construction of the said railway, on the ground
that the subsidies bad been regularly transferred to the bank, which had in good
faith advanced the full amount of the same ùpon the receiving the transfer thereof,
the transfer having been regularly signified on the Governnent ?-A. Yes; that is
.all right.

Q. I understood you to claim credit for having paid the money, whereas your
bank had protested against its being paid ?-A. Pardon me; I may draw your atten-
tion to the fact that tho letter said we would see the wages of the men paid, but we
distinctly protested against paying them for material, work done, &c., with the
balance of $15,000.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. And as a matter of fact, this $28,000 was paid for work done. That is what

labour is supposed to be done ?-A. And material, we objected to saying for material.
We were responsible for the wages due the men to the extent of $13,000, and they took
$28,000. You would protest, too, if you agreed to pay a man $13,000, and your book-
keeper paid him $28,000.

Q. Then your contention is that your undertaking was not to pay the wages of
the men, but to pay $13,000 ?-A. The letter speaks for itself.

Q. The letter is not very clear in its meaning?-A. Show me what is pot clear,
and I may be able to enlighten you on it.

The letter reads: " The Ontario Bank understands there are wages due McFar-
lane's men for work on the first sixty miles on the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
amounting to $13,000? "-A. Yes; and agreed to pay that, but not the $28,000.
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Q. The Ontario Bank understood there were wages due amounting to ?-A.
"Amounting to--."

Q. If the Government pays over this $54,000 for them to Mr. iNoël, the bank
undeitakes to see the above wages paid ?-A. " The above wages."

Q. Doos that mean that you undertake to see the wages due to MacFarlane's men
paid, or simply to the extent of $13,000 ?-A. There is no ambiguity in that letter.
We had the memo. fron MacFarlane that this amount was due and this amount, 813,-
000, was shown to the Goveinmeit, and we said, we will pay the wages of the men,
but we object to being mulet in $28,000, for, we do not know, what purpose.

Q. When did you first become aware that this sum of $100,000 had been paid
by Armstrong to Pacaud ?-A. It is really a little difficult to tell. I suspected there
was something wrong by the way I was treated by the gentlemen I supposed was
in our confidence and our counsel, and to tell you the truth I went fishing round. I
was on a fishing expedition.

Q. I will put the question in another form. ere you aware before this Bill
finally passed the IIouse of Commons of this $100,000 transaction ?-A. Not as a
fact. It takes some time for a man to realize that $100,000 has been stolen. I
thought it was a smaller sum. It grew more important as I made my inquiries, and
I was finally told that the whole $280,000 had been stolen, aid I thought there were
honourable men, and refused to believe it.

Q. Aie you prepared to swear, that before this Bill passed the other Committee
in the House of Commons that you did not know all about this $100,000 ?-A. I did
not ; i do not know about it yet.

Q. Iad you not a reasonable ground to suspect, before this Bill passed the
Railway Committee in the other Hlouse, that this $100,000 had been improperly paid
by Armstrong to Pacaud ?-A. I had no definite clear information. I was. simply
going on the general feeling which prevaited of the corruption of the Quebec Govern-
ment; I was basing it on that.

Q. You must surely have been aware of it ?-A. I was not aware definitely that
the money had gone into Pacaud's pocket.

Q. Had you not information beflore this Bill passed the House of Commons
that this sum or some large amount had been paid to Pacaud ?-A. No; I think the
Senate adjourned for twelve or fourteen days, and it was during that time I was on
the track.

Q. And you were quite innocent of it till then ?-A. No; I suspected them all
along.

Hon. Mr. TAss-May I know from Mr. Langelier in what capacity he appears
before us-as the representative of the Quebec Government, or as the attorney for
the Union Bank ?

Mr. LANGELIER-I an not the attorney for the Union Bank; I am for the
Banque du Peuple, but I do not appear in that capacity here. I appear for the Que-
bec Government.

Mr. BARWICK put in a letter dated the 24th April, 1891, written by Mr. A. M.
Thom, addressed to Mr. J. C. Langelier, of Quebec, refusing to certify a certain
account for more than $175,000. (Exhibit 67.)

With the permission of the Committee, the Ontario Bank will withdraw, after
making the statement I now desire to make.

The CHAIRMAN-I would ask the question of Mr. Langelier as represent-
ing other parties. Do you wish these gentlemen brought here, who have neglected to
cone before the Committee, by process?

Mr. LANGELIER-I have nothing to do with it, but i an surprised at some wit-
nesses who have been called, and have attended, and whose evidence was represented
as vely important, have not been asked to tcstify, namely, Mr. Thom and Mr. Loner-
gan, who are supposed to know more than anybody elise of the transactions between
the Company and the Government.

Mr. BARWICK then addressed the Committee, as follows:-
Mr. Chairman and Honourable Gentlemen of the Committee,-This Company

Wvas incorporated by Statute of the Province of Quebec passed in 1882, and the fea-
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ture of that Act which I desire to draw your attention to is that the Act received
its assent on the 21st of May, 1882, and enacted that the Act should for all purposes
be deemed valid for such portion or portions of the railway commenced within tive
years trom the lst of May, 1882, and completed within ten years, so that the time
for enteriug on the construction of any new portions of' the railway has now passed
and the time for completing the road expires on the lst of May, 1892. There were
two agreements with the Crown, represented by the Minister of Railways, which are
printed as Exhibits 52 and 55, one agreement providing for the completion of the
the first 20 miles by the Ist of July, 1888, and the other providing for the
completion of the section from the 20th to the 100th mile by the lst of
May, 1887. This Bill now before the Committee principally sought an exten-
sion of the time for the completion of the railway. By section 7 of the Bill
it is provided as follows: ' The time for the completion of the railway to Paspebiac
is hereby extended for two years and to Gaspé Basin for four vears from the passing
of this Act." The Premier Mr. Abbott's aid was sought when the Bill was brought be-
fore Parliament, and the statement in Exhi bit 1, from the directors, was laid before Mr.
Abbott to show the ability of the company t comuplete the road. That memo.
sets forth that the directors of' the re.organized comaanv held $267,500 of stock; that
$26,750 had been paid up on that stock although, as the evidence shows, those
directors never paid a cent for that stock; that the company were able to finish the
first 60 miles for $50,000; that they had applicable for that a Federal subsidy of
$31,00 ; and applicable to complete the balance of hie road $260,000, the balance of
the Quebec subsidy; $64,000 Dominion subsidy $50,000 for the building of the
Cascapedia bridge, and the subsidy of $280,000 which that memo. represented
to the Premier in the clearest terrms as still in existence and applicable to the pay-
ment of' the debts of the i oad, of which debts MacFarlane's was one.

The HoN. CIAIRMAN-At what date was that statement submitted to Mr.
Abbott ?

Mr. BAJtwicK-June, 1891. Mr. MacFarlane was the contractor to whom
it was claimed by the promoters of the Bill there vas nothing due although
it appears plainly by the evidence adduced before this Committee that durjinr
the negotiations which resuited in the re-organization of' the company the
directors who re-organized the company wcre prepared to allow $75,000 for Mr.
MacFailane's claim. Mr. MaceFariatie had contracted to finish the first 40 miles and
to build the next 20 miles. The $75,000 earned on the 20 miles he vas to build, w1as
not paid him; $114,000 of other subsidies were not paid him; the work on the first
40 miles, as appears f rom McDonald's evidence, cost double the amount it was repre-
sented to cost by Armstrong in the first instance. The payment lie received for
that road was just half what ho ought to get, $70,000, so MacFarlane when he sus-
pended payment was out exactly $259,000. I have been asked more than once why
Mr. MacFarlane did not finish the road. How many contractors could stand a loss
of $269,000 and not suspend. Mr. MacFarlane's conduct, I say, was the one bright
spot in this investigation. He was the only man who was to get nothing. Ilisposition
in the negotiations which resulted in the re-organization of the company was this: I
want nothing; whatever comes to me must go to my creditors; they inust be paid in
full, and the only terms I exact is that they must discharge me. Now it is the
MacFarlane estate and his creditors who oppose this Bill, not the .Bank of Ontario
alone. The Ontario Bank and the Eastern Townships Bank assumed the expense of
opposing this Bill, because the statement.submitted to the Premier of this Dominion
was not true; the item of $280,000 represented there as existing and appli-
cable to the payment of the debt in which the Opposants of the Bill were interested
had been expended. They took that position when they came before the Committee.
In passing, I may point out another statement in the Bill entirely incorrect«: '' The
bonds of the company are yet unsold." That may be truc in terms, but now it turns
out that this company bas issued $1,000,000 of bonds, which are a charge upon the
road. On the 7th of August we appeared before this Committee and made the alle-
gation printed on page 79 of the exhibits. On the 14th of August, when the allega-
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tion was spread upon the minutes of this Committee, the promoters of the Bill, two
of the most prominent directors, Messrs. Lonergan and Thom, attempted to with-
draw the Bill, and attempt to withdraw it now, and boast that the Senate is power-
less, and that if they withdraw the Bill it cannot be f'orced upon them, and that we
who have stirred up what they choose to call a scandal cannot gain anything by our
efforts here. The Legislature of Quebec, in 1890, the second session, took power to
cancel the charter of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, and took power to
incorporate by Order in Council a company which would go on with the road. That
Act does not in express ternis say it is applicable to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
but it was aimed at the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and was introduced with the
avowed intention of cancelling the charter of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway and
foreing the then shareholders of the road to sell out to people approved by Mr.
Mercier's Gover'nment. I beg to read a few extracts from Mr. Mercier's speeches,
and another ext.ract which I have here and propose to put in to-day. On page 121
I find Mr. Mercier's remarks on the introduction of that legislation to which I have
just called the attention ,f the Comnittee. . A debate took place upon the railway
law of the Province, and upon this clause taking power to cancel the charter of any
railway company, Mr. Mercier replied to the objections to the Bill as follows:-

"Mr. Speaker, what is happening at the present lime ? Take the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway.

" This company bas asked to have its subsidies doubled up. It had been granted
a subsidy of 10,000 acres.per mile for 180 miles, which makes 1,800,000 acres. The
Federal Government had granted it $3,200 per mile for 180 miles.

" Both Governments have doubled up the subsidies. That is, the company,
after having received all the subsidies, intended by the authorities foi' the railway,
arrests the whole progress of that country, refuses to pay legitimate debts, refuses
to pay for the lands over which the rond passes, to pay for the crossings which
were made last winter by the poor farmers, and to pay for the provisions bought in
the shops.

" This company is there, and when we say to other persons: - 'Go on and try
to buy out the rights of the preseit shareholders in order to proceed,' the share-
holders ask exorbitant prices. They do not want to do anything but make money
at the expenso of the public. We ask to have the power of annulling this charter
in the public interest.

"If we obtain this power, what will be the result ? The shareholders will sell
their rights at reasonable prices, and other persons vill be able to construct the road.

" Take some other cases. You have the Montreal and Sorel Railway Company,
to which we have given $112,000 to pay certain claims and to finish the road. The
clainis have been paid, but the company has refused to finish the road. And since
that time the company not only refuses to obey us, but it does not even answer the
letters which we wvrite to it.

" Do you believe that is just ? Why not annul this charter and permit respon-
sible people to finish this road, which will give an outlet to the rich population of
the Counties of Verchères and Chambly ? The public interest demands it. Private
interests object to it. I might cite other cases, but I content myself with these two,
Which seem to be the most exhor'bitant."

The other paragraph is the following, a part of which is given in Exhibit No. 61,
and the remainder of which is a continuation of that speech.

" At the present moment, notwithstanding that we have paid more than $50,000,
and $28,000 of the money remaining due to the company, and $20,000 that the
House had authorized us to pay, there still remain more than $50,000 of privileged
debts. It has been explained to you. Sixty miles of the one hundred have been
partially built, 40 miles from the Cascapediac to Gaspé Basin, of which not one
inch of the road has been built. From Cascapediac going backwards you have nearly
60 miles of road partially built, but there is not a bridge upon it. When the River
Cascapediac is reached a bridge will be required, costing $150,000. There is nothing
done there either. At certain seasons of the year, in the spring and autumn, it is
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physically impossible to cross it. Nevertheless, it is the great channel for commu-
nication for Gaspesia. All who wish to ascend and take the cars at Campbellton
must pass there. I declare to those who are doing me the honour to listen to me, I
say to the members of the Legislature of this country who have intelligence and who
ought to have feeling, you have a people there who aie depending upon you.

" When itwas a matter of succouring the inhabitants of the Lake St. John region
we did not hesitate; we doubled the subsidy, because we saw that, it was impossible
for the company to complete the iron road which was to carry hither the products
of that fine region and at the same time assure the prosperity of that locality. What
we did for Lake St. John we beg you to do for the Baie des Chaleurs.

" When the railway in question shall have reached Campbellton it will be in con-
junction with the Intercolonial; it will almost have reached Quebec; and you will
carry to Quebec a fresh abundance of natural products of rich quality and suited to
assist the prosperity of the Province. And on the other hand, you will give to the
people of Gaspesia a fortune in the way of profits in the sales and purchases which
you will effect, and through that country you will complete the great net work of
railways which it is necessary to perfect on that side. When you have done all this
you will not have done all. You have on the other side, on the south side, crossing
the immense and rich counties of Lévis, you have there on the frontier side immense
rich and fertile lands. You will be obliged to construct a railway there. It will be
the true short line. Instead of passing over a fbreign territory, to carry our popu-
lation to the capital and to the metropolis, you will keep to your own soil. You will
bring the riches of these lands to your own doors, you will encourage intelligent
people, who only ask an opportunity to extract something from the fertility of the
soil which God has given to them, and then, when you shall have perfected all theso
great works within the five years for which time and honourable trust has been con-
fided to us we shall be able perhaps then to take our ease and say to those who shall
came after us :-" Go on with our work ; we have given you the Lake St. John
region; we have given you the Baie des Chaleurs region ; we have given you these
immense countries in the south; our task is done. Do yours and develop the riches
of the Province of Quebec." (Loud applaise).

At that very time Mr. Heaton Armstrong and Mr. J. J. Macdonald's offer was
before Mr. Mercier. Their offer was to build that road, to run the road for five years
for $450,000, payable $200,000 when the section from 60th to 80th mile was completed
and $200,000 when the section from the 80th to the 100th was completed, and $50,-
000 when the Cascapedia bridge was completed. They were to put $175,000 in hard
cash in the Bank of Montreal, out of which these debts, (including that $75,000 to
which the promoters of the bill were willing to pay Mr. MacFarlane,) were to be
paid and they were to deposit in hard cash to secure the guarantee of bonds for ten
years' $840,000. That offer was before Mi. Mercier when ho made these remarks,
and at the time he introduced that resolution.

The old company was forced out. We know how they were forced out and the
Order in Council was passed, and by that Order in Council passed on the 23rd of April
with the offer of Mr. Macdonald still before them to build that road, $450,000 was
granted the promoters of this Bill, the cash subsidy of $280,000, a deferred subsidy of
$280,000, and a subsidy of $50,000 for the Cascapedia bridge, and the old subsidy is
still standing by virtue of the Acts previously passed of $260,000,so that this Company
stand to day entitled to subsidies of $87 0,000 which they are to receive for the build-
ing of that road which Mr. Macdonald was prepared to build for $450,000.

The Hon. Mr. McCALLUM-And of that he had to pay $50,000 in commission.
Mr. BARwicK-And of that amount he had to pay $50,000 to the chosen inter-

mediary between the contractors and the Government of the Province of Quebec.
An Honourable GENTLEMAN-What did ho offer ?
Mr. BARwIcK-To build the road for $400,000, with $50,000 for the bridge, to

run it for five years, to put up $175,000 in hard cash in the Bank of Montreal, to pay
the debts, and deposit with the Government $840,000 to secure the guarantee of the
interest of the bonds for ton years. These contractors get $560,000 of subsidy half
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cash, half deferred, $50,000 for the bridge and $260,000 of old subsidy, and they are
not obliged to run the road an hour, and do not intend to run it for an hour if it does
not pay.

The Hon. Mr. PowER-Ifyou will excume me, were not these subsidies available
for the new company under the legislation of the Province of Quebec which had
been comp loted before Mr. Macdonald fell out with Mr. Robitaille.

Mr. IARwIcK-Yes; Mr. Macdonald's offer was refused in three months after the
legislation was passed. What I said was, that Mr. Macdonald's offer was before the
Premier of Quebec at the time he made the speeches, at the time he introduced that
legislation, and for three months afterwards; and with that offer in his hand and
with Mr. Macdonald prepared to build that road and make a profit of $100,000 out
of it, and pay Mr. Mercier's man, Pacaud, $50,000, Mr. Mercier refused that offer, and
gives this new company 8870,000 of which bis man takes $100,000.

The Hon. Mr. O'DoNoHoE-Mr. Macdonald, said he was his agent, but he did
not say he was the agent of Mr. Mercier.

Mr. BAnwRc.-Mr. J. C. Langelier was appointed a Commissioner to deal with
the $280,000, and his first act after his appointment, immediately after bis appoint-
ment, was to deal with that 8175,000 applicable to Mr. MacFarlane's claim. Mr.
MacFarlane's claim was payable out of the $175,000 under the terms of the Subsidy
Act as admitted and stated by the memorandum submitted by this cornpany to the
Premier of the Dominion. $100,000 of the 8175,000 goes to Mr. Pacaud.
Now, who is Mr. Pacaud ? The go-between between the contractors and the Prov-
incial Government; the treasurer of Mr. Mercier's political fund, and the man who
had to be employed when Mr. Armstrong went to the Provincial Governmnent, and
who accompanied the Provincial Government on the celebrated trip to St. Johns,
when Mr. Armstrong's offer was accepted, provided Mr. Mercier could break with
Mr. Macdonald. On that celebrated trip to St. Johns Mr. Macdonald's offer to build
the road for $450,000 was still before Mr. Mercier. It was discussed in that car.
Mr. Pacaud went from Montreal to St. Johns, 27 miles, in company with Mir. Mercier
and Mr. Armstrong. Mi. C. N. Armstrong was waiting anxiously in the front car
for the result of the offer. Comes back with the offer, the offer being that as sooni as Mr.
Mercier had broken with Joh n J. Macdonald, Armstrongs offer would be accepted. The
Commissioner's duty, Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier's duty, was to deal with the
$175,000 covering Mr. MacFiarlane's claim, in accordance with the disposition of the
Subsidy Act. Mr. A. M. Thom's du.ty was to approv.e and certify the claims. Now,
what was approved ? Mr. C. N. Armstrong produces before this Committee the state-
ment vihich vs printed among the exhibits, originally drawn to certify that 8298,943
was due to him oy the company. The company could not even stand that; Mr.
Riopel and Mr. L. A. Robataille could not stand that, and apparently they struck out
the word " due " and inserted the words "is a correct statement of estimates of
work done and remaining unpaid."

Mr. J. C. Langelier, whose duty it was to inquire into that claim, tells us plainly
that he made no inqui ry, he took no responsibility regarding it, never inquired into
il. lie received his directions from Mr. Lesage, his superior officer, and if Mr.
Chrysostome Langelier was here-I see he is at the door-he would tell us bat Mr.
Garneai was in the room and took part in the instructions,and gave him instructions
to pay over $175,000 to C. N. Armstrong without a word of inquiry. Notwithstand-
ing the duty catst upon Mr. J. C. Langelier and the duty cast upon Mr. Garneau and
Mr. Lesage, instructions weregiven Mr. Langelier to taxe $175,000, and pay itstraight
to Armstrong without any enquiry, and Mr. J. C. Langelier tells us honestly enough
"1 had nothing to do with that claim. I do not know whether it was a good claim
or not. I obeyed the orders of my superior officers, lot them take the responsi-
bility." He did not er.dorse over the letter of credit to Mr. Armstrong, but he goes
and discounts it at the Banque Nationale and paid to the Bank $888.36 discount out
of the Quebec moneys. Was 8888.36 discount a preferred claim within the meaning
of that subsidy Act ? Then Mr. Langelier walked to Mr. Pacaud's office at the foot
of the Citadel Hili and gave Ai mstrong who was there a $100,000 cheque, which did
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not suit Mr. Pacaud's purpose and then Mr. J. C. Langelier tore up the $100.000
cheque and gave him tive choques for $20,000 each, and loft them, and Pacaud got
his $100,000. Now, when Pacaud got that $100,000, I say he acted as a robber and
took that $100.000 in pursuance of a bargain made between Armstrong and himself,
that if he could get the Provincial Government to cancel Macdonald's contract and
give it to him Pacaud should have $100,000, and Armstrong carricd out his part of
the bargain like a mari and Pacaud carried out his. I say with that result and look-
ing at the statute and public documents I have put in and the speeches and the
whole transaction, I ask the Committee to find if necessary that the whole transaction
beginning with the legislation of the Province was stamped with the stamp of fraud.

The remedy sought by the MacFarlane estate before this Committee is a fair
remedy. We sought to settle our claim, have sought offers of settlement which will
enable this Bill to be passed with full protection to our interest. Yesterday Mr.
Cockburn and myself representing the banks met the directors of the road, and our
offer to them was this : Submit our claim to arbitration, name one arbitrator, we
will nîame another, and let the Dominion of Canada iame a third. Refer the whole
question to those arbitrators. Take your Bill in any shape you like, with the appro-
val of the Committee, which will enable you to flout your bonds, and give us any
kind of security that the claim ascertained by the arbitrators to be due will be paid.
These gentlemen laughed ut such an offer. I will leave it to the Committee to say
if anything fairer could be offered, and this shows us the treatnent we are likely to
receive if,aftier being obliged to expose this scandal,these creditors are left to the mercy
of Mr. Mercier's Government in the Province of Quebec. We are quite willing to
admit, and the public interest demands, that this road has got to be built and the
opposants of the Bill do not desire to interfere with that. They recognize that the road
must go on, but we beg the Commiltee that some supervision may be exercised over
that company in the handling of that road and the moneys hereafter, and that some
supervision bo devised by this Committee to see that no more money is stolen
from the creditors of this company. The road to be built must pass out ofthe hands
of the contractor, who has possession of the road preserved to him now in the most
solemn manner by the judgment of a court of Quebee. The MacFarlane estate has a
lien on this road and a perfect one. Now, if theCommittee will establish this lien to
prevent this road being bonded and further prevent MacFarlane being robbed further,
wC will go out of possession. Complete the road, but protect us against further
bonding of that road and against further robbery. We have been charged with
making this a political scandai. We have made it a matter of business. We have
been charged with making this a matter of blackmail. I do not answer that. I leave
it in the hands of the Committee, if there is any foundation for such a charge.
We have confined our evidence strictly to the $280,000. Our allegations are here in
black and white. I have proved eve.y word of my allegation and 1 stop and call
no more witnesses, becauso I have proved my case up to the hilt. Why should I
put my clients to further expense by calling witnesses and going on with a case
which may last another for:night. Hnd we chosen to make it a political scandal we
could have estublished that this theft is only a part of a systein of robbery which
would shock every honest thinking man in Canada.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :

Q. Is there a lawsuit now pending in one of the courts at Quebec on this very
subject between MeFarlane and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Companiy ?-A.
Certainly.

Q. Suppose you get judgment, does that not protect your interests ?-A. We
are advised by the highest counsel in the Province of Quebec that our interests are
not protected by that clause.

Q. Have you any amendment to submit to the Committee ?-A. I have given
my contention to the Committee and if it is desired to put that in the shape of an
amendment I will do it this afternoon.
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By the Hon. Mr. Tass:

Q. I have read some time ago in several papers that you had received very
serious threats from an emissary of the Mercier G-overnment if you pressed this
investigation. Is that correct ?-A. I would rather not answer any questions in regard
to that, because I think ny answers would be misunderstood. "No," would be my
answer to that question. I beg that I should not be asked. I have had interviews
with counsel, but I am not at l berty to say what passed on the occasion of any inter-
view or interviews with any counsel.

Q. To the question have you not recoived any threats your answer would be
"no " ?-A. That would be my answer. The only threat 1 really had which was
serious was trom Mr. François Langelier, who has been threatening the Ontario
Bank, Mr. Cockburn and myself, with actions for libel, if we dared to go on in the
way we have been going on.

Mr. LANGELIER-Thiat is not correct. I said that yonî had made insinuations
against my brother and that if you dared to charge him with such things anywhere
that ou could be sued, an action would be taken.

M1.BARWJcK-Mr. Chairman, to avoid taking up the time of the Committee to
show how the money was expended, that part of my argument is put in print. The
summary of it is at the end. I have traced the whole of the $175,000 with the
exception of $44,752. I have traced $71,750 to the old company, to Armstrong,
$111.64; to Mr. Cooper, $2,250; to Mr. Pacaud and the Honourable 11. Mercier, and
in payment of personal obligationsof Mr. Mercier, Honourable Charles Langelier, the
Honourable Mr. Pelletier, Honourable François Langelier, Mr. J. I. Tarte, and Ernest
Paeaud and others, 854,700; bank discount, 81,435.76; balance not accounted for,
cheques having been withdiawn from the bank by Ernest Pacaud, $44,652.60; total,
8175,000.

The Hon. Mr. MILLER.-You put that statement in before, did you not ?
Mr. BARwICK.-I put it in with reference to the Exhibits, so that any person

who desires to see that the figures aie correct, can refer to the Exhibits.
Hon. Mr. ROBITATLLE.-At the last meeting of this Committee, the Honourable

François Langelier, a gentleman of high standing, who occupies a high position of
Protessor in Law in Laval University, and who has the honour to occupy a seat in
the House of Commons of Canada, who was a member of the Government of Quebec
when I was Lieutenant-Governor, has felt it bis duty to prefer a charge of embezzle-
ment against me and my associates, acting as directors of the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way Company. I asked you to institute a searching investigation into the charge, and
I am here to-day to repeat the request that you shall investigate the matter and
probe it to the very bottom, nay, I desire that you should extend your investigation
into all the doings of the company since its inception, and that every facility should
be afforded and extended to the accuser. Should you, in the course of your investi-
gations, find out any \vrong-doing on the part of the railway company 1 am prepared
to stand by the consequences, but if not, and should the investigation prove that every-
thing is right, as I know it is, I would ask that I should be reinstatod in the position
I occupied before the public before the charge was made, namely, a position of trust
and nonour, esteem, respect and good-will among my fellow-men. Now, honourable
gen t lemen, I will ask that Mr. Barwick be permitted act as my counsel for the present.

THE HON. MR. TAsst.-Before we proceed further, I would like to ascertain if
Mr. J. C. Langelier is here. I would like to put him a question, if he has no objec-
tion.

J. CHRYSOSTôME LANGELIER being re-called, was further examinied:-

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé.
Q. In your last evidence before us, the following took place between you and

Ine. It is taken from the notes of the official stenographer:-
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"Q. You have referred to a letter- published by in L'Etendard in the beginning
of May. What was the amount specified by you in the letter as having been paid
in settlement of the claim ?-A. I do not think I specified an amount. Q. I think
you did ?-A. I may, I do not remember. Q. I think you said $200,000 had been

aid by you ?-A. Nearly that ; but I do not think I specified the amount.." Now,
want to read your letter, and 1 will read it first in French. (Letter read in French.)

Now, I will ask Mr. Creighton to read the letter in English.
The Clerk read the letter in English, as follows:-

QUEBEC, 3rd June, 1891.
The Editor of L'Etendard, Montreal.

SIR,-Under the title "Strange Rumours," yoù publish on the 30th of May a
little article concerning the affairs of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, in
which it is said: " But the dotails which come to us on the subject of the application
which lias been made of these letters of credit are such that we are obliged to call
immediately thereto the attention of the parties inteiested." I was appointed by
Order in Council a Commissioner to pay the claims iii connection with the cons-
truction of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, so that the preceding quotation applies
directly to me. Now, I deny the extremely grave accusation which your state-
ment contained. I affirm that I have employed conformably to the law and to
my instructions, the $200,OOO which were put at my disposition, and I defy you to
prove the accusation which you thus bring against me. As to the pretended letters
of credit which may have been partially refused, that is news for me. The papers
upon which the funds have been raised were sent to me in my capacity of Commis-
sioner. Iendorsed them in this capacity, and in less than two hours everything was
settled to the satisfaction of those interested, whose receipts I have in my hand. I
have sent the duplicates of these to the Department of Publie Works, where any-
hody can examine them. I hope, therefore, you will make it a duty to retract what
you say on the subject of the employment that has been made of these letters of
credit, failing which I shall be obliged to take other means immediately to protent
myself against these calumies.

I have the honour to be,
Your obedient servant,

J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissioner Baie des Chaleurs Railway.

Q. You wrote that ?-A. Yes, certaiily.
The HON. MR. PowER-Has the Counsel for the Government of the Province of

Quebec any questions to asc the witness ?
MR. LANGELIER, Counsel for the Province of Quebec-My questions would not

be strictly legal, because they would be contined to hearsay evidence. I have heard
a good deal of hearsay evidonce in regard to Mr. Pacaud, and if hearsay is to be taken
my brother would say something about that 8100,000.

Chairman ruled that the questions would not be ii order.
The HoN. MR. BOULTON-Does Mr. Barwick consider the security of the Ontario

Bank is gone as far as the lien of Mr. MacFarlane upon the road is concerned?
MR. BARWICK-No, I do not; the lien still exists, and is preserved by order of

Mr. Justice Pagnuelo.
The HoN. MR. BOULTON-But possession is gone?
MR. BARwIcK-Yes.
THE CHAIRMAN-Would the lien be effected by the passage of the Bill now before

the Committee if there is no amendment to it ?
MR. BARwICK-Certainly; if the Bill were to pass in its present shape our lien

would absolutely disappear.
The HON. MR. MILLEa-YOU are so advised by eminent Counsel ?
MR. BAawicK-I am so advised by several Counsel; three Counsel, I think, we

have submitted it to.
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The HON. MR. BOULTON-Suppose it does rot pass at all, in what position would
you be in as far as the lien is concerned ?

Mr. BARWICK-W e would be left to the mercy of the Local Government of Quebec,
and we do not kinow how much more money will be mis-applied.

Tho CHAIRMAN-It is your opinion that the Bill ought to be passed to protect you ?
Mr. BARWICK-If no Bill is passed we will be unprotected. The promoters of

tho Bill know it, and laugh at the probable result of our labours.
The Hon. Mr. SMITH-If this Bill be passed as it is presented, without amend-

ment, you say your rights are gone ?
Mr. BARIcK-Yes, sir.
Hon Mr. MILLER-YOI1 want the Bill passed with amendments ?
Mr. BAawIcK-With the fairest amendments to the company.
The CHAIRMAN-To preserve your lien ?
Mr. BARwICK-Yes, sir.
Hon. FRANÇOis LANGELIER-I would ask to correct a misstatement of the

evidence made by Mr. Barwick. His statement of the evidence is not correct on a
most important point. I do not say that he wilfully misstated it, but he is mistaken
on an impdrtait point. He stated a few minutes ago that the negotiations between
Mr. J. J. Macdonald and his compniiy or synidicate on one side and the Quebec Gov-
ernment on the other side were broken off on account of the 8100,000 paid to Mr.
Pacaud. This is contradicted clearly by Mr. Macdonald's testimony. Hon. gentlemen
will not find a line in Mr. Macdonald's testimony to bear out that statement. I have
here Mr. Macdonald's statement, page 72 of the printed evidence before this Com-
mittee :-

" By Hon. Mr. Power;

Q. In your negotiations with Mr. Mercier with respect to your taking over
this work and completirig it, you and ho came to the terms that he offered. Were
they satisfactory to you-the $400,000 which Mr. Armstrong of London proposed-
did you and the Quebec Governnent have any difference-was this proposed under-
taking of yours broken off on account of any difféence with the Government of
Quebec ? "

That is a very clear question, and the aunswer is " No," and he says how it was
broken off :-

" It was broken off, because Mr. Riopel did not agree that lie had arranged with
me for $175,000. and insisted on getting botter terms, and I would not give it to him."

There is not one tittle of evidence to substantiate the statement that it was on
account of the $100,000 that Mr. Pacaud got, and his influence being used with Mr.
Mericier or his Government that the agreement of Mr. Macdonald and his syndicate
with the Government was broken off. I have givon Mr. Macdonald's own statement,
and but that it would be a waste of the time of the Committee I miglit quote some
other portions of the testimony.

By the Hon. 3r. McMillan:

Q. On page 91 I put a question to Mr. Macdonald as follows:-" The witness
did not explain why the arrangements were broken off after he had seen Mr. Thom,
why did you not go on with Mr. Cooper?" And the answer was:- "They were
not prepared to come in with an interest. They wanted me to pay $150,000 and
take the whole thing over."

Mr. LANGELIE-That proves that the trouble was not with Mr. Mercier, but in
a different direction.

Hon. Mr. MOMILLAN-He was told he would have to pay $150,000, to force
him out.

Mr. LANGELIER-I wish to refer to the evidence given by Mr. J. C. Langelier
and to make a correction. Mr. Barwick has stated that according to the evidence
he gave the $100,000 cheque to Mr. Pacaud and afterwards changed it to five
cheques.

149



Mr. BARwIcK-Gave the cheque to Mr. Armstrong. I corrected mysolf.
Mr. LANGELIER-Then we agree, because my brother established the fact that

he had nothing to do with Mr. Pacaud. As I stated I have been conducting Mac-
Farlane's case-not the case of any of the creditors-to the best of my knowledge
and ability, and ho wilI say ho was satisfied. I never said one word against
MacFarlane's claim. I said and still think ho was most outrageously treated and the
more I know of his case the more I am convinced it is a most just claim. I have
gone through a long investigation of the case at Quebec, over 6 months, and I am
convinced it is a legitimate claim, and if I had anything to do with the payments of
claims against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway his would have been the first paid
after the claims of the labourers.

Mr. BARwIcK-On page 1t5 of the evidence, Mr. Armstrong is asked to tell the
Committee what took place on that train and replies as follows:-" There was very
little took place so far as I was concerned, because it was a very short run from
Montreal to St. John's. He went into the private ear, where I understood the
Ministers were and only came out just as we reached St. John's, so I only saw him
half a minute while the train stopped, and it stops a very short time at St. John's.
He told me no doubt the matter would be arranged satisfactorily as sôon as they
knew that the arrangement with Mr. Macdonald and Mr. Camoron were off, they
had not yet any positive information from them on this point."

THE HONOURABLE CHARLEs ALPHONSE PANTALÉON PELLETIER, a member of
the Senate of Canada, who took the oath and was examined by the Hon Mr.
MCINNES (B.C.)

Q. During this investigation one or more notes were produced here and your
name happened to be on the back of them as one of the endorsers, and the impression
was produced that the proceeds of those notes were applied to an improper purpose,
that was the impression left on oui' minds. low came your name to be on as
endorser, and give any other statement that you may see fit to the Committee ?-
A. Before answer-ing that question I will make a statement. I knew nothing of
that Baie des Chaleurs settlement and I was not interested, either directly or indi-
rectly, and knew nothing of the details of that affair. I never heard of it until 1 saw
the report of this Committee. I have never' been consulted about it and of course
am not the least interested.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. What settlement do you refer to?-A. Between Pacaud, Armstrong and the
Quebec Government. l fact 1 never heard of it, except, perhaps, as a rumour in
the papers. I never inter'ested myself in it, I never took part in it, I was never
consulted, and I was not connected with it in any way. About the notes, I would
contend that I am not obliged to answer before this Committee as to what these notes
were foi', but as I have nothing to hide or nothing to be ashamed of I am quite
willing to tell what these notes were foi', if required.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnis :

Q. Had they anything to do with the Baie (les Chaleurs Railway ?-A. Not in
the least. I am willing to answer, however. I thought Mr. Bar'wick said this morning
that the proceeds of theso notes were used to pay the debts of Mr. Mercier, Mr.
Langelier and myself.

MR. BARwIcK-No; I said the proceeds of the letter of credit were used to pay
Mr. Mercier's debts and your personal obligations, being the obligations on that
note.

lon. Mr. PELLETIER-The proceeds were not used to pay my personal debts.
To show that they had nothing to do with the elections, I will say that after the
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elections were over, it was expected that a good many elections would be protested
and a good many counter contestations, and, of course. nearly ail our friends, w1iether
elected or defeated, where interested but had not the means to fyle the deposit in the
court or in the Treasury Department, as the law requires, of $1,000 in each case.
As in many other cases I endeavoured to help my friends. It was a private matter,
and Mr. Mercier, before leaving for Europe, expecting this would be requircd, left
in 'My hands three, or I would not be sure but that it was four notes endorsed in
blank, in case we would require money to -help our friends make these deposits. I
kept these notes until they were required and these amounts were raised for a good
nany petitions and counter contestations. Ir, the absence of Mr. Mercier we tilled

up these notes, endorsed them, and I never saw anything of them afterwards. They
were placed in the banks and used for making these petitions and counter-contest-
ations in the courts.

By the lon. Mr. Miller

Q. In whose hands did this money go?-A. I never saw a dollar of it.
Q. Then how do you know how it was u-ed ?-A. My friends say they got il for

this purpose, as far as I am able to say.
Q. You believe it was used for that purpose?-A.~I not only believe, I am

positive.

By the Hion. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Was Mr. Pacaud's naine on tie notes when you endorsed them ?-A. They
were signed altogether in the presence of each other.

Q. How were they paid ?-A. It was not expected they would have to be paid.
We expected they would be renewed until the contestations were over.

By the ion. Mr. Tassé:

Q. Have they been renewed ?-A. I have no knowledge.
Q. What where the dates ?-A. I do not rnember exactly; the notes have been

fyled.
Q. Have they been renewed ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you paid anything?-A. No.
Q. You never expected to pay?-A. We thought most of the contestations

would be in our favour and that is why we expected we would never pay.
Q. Was it expected Mr. Pacaud would take charge ?-A. He was the one to

distr-ibute these anounts among our friends.
Q. At what place were they sigfed or endorsed ?-A. I think one or two in my

own office or at my private house. I could not say positivoly. The others were
endorsed either at my office or at may private house.

Q. Were others present ?-A. I could not say positively. Mr. François Langelier
was present, but as to the details I do not remember exactly.

Q. They were signed and endorsed at the same time?-A. Yes; I cannot say
who was present when euch a note was made; I do not remember which note was
made at my office and whieh at my house.

By the lion. Mr. McInnes:

Q. You expected that ail the protests would be in youir favour ?-A. Yes; that
is what I said.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé :

Q. What became ofthese notes when they matured?-A. I do not know; I never
saw them since.

Q. They have matured since ?-A. They have matured.
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By the Hon. M1r. McCallun:

Q. [think you said Mr. Mercier left these notes in blank; what are we to un-
derstand by that?-A. I say he endorsed the notes in blank; the amount was not
put on.

Q. Mr. Pacaud's name was not on it, then ?-A. No; I had the blank endorse-
ment; he left me the blanks endorsed and we filled up the notes afterwards. He
sinply lett the blank paper with the endorsement on it.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller :

Q. Whose naine was filled in in that blank? Whose name did you till in in the
blank as payee?-A. I did not make the notes myself.

Q. But whose name was filled in ?-A. The notes were signed, I believe, by Mr.
Pacaud in favour of Mr. Mercier, but I could not say positively.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton ;

Q. You say the amount was left blank ?-A. I say it was a blank papor on whic ti
Mr. Mercier had put his name as endorser in case we would want it.

By the Hion. Mr. McCallum:

Q. He gave you these notes endorsed on the back ?-A. Only that.
Q. He gave you several notes?-A. I said I thought three. and I would not be

sure, but there may have been four.
Q. You endorsed them with the other parties and Pacaud signed them ?-A.

That was some time afterwards.
Q. That was what Mr. Mercier left you to carry on your contestations ?-A. In

case we would need it for contestations.
By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Where did that money go ?-A. The money went as a deposit in the courts
and is then transferred to the Treasury Department, and 1 suppose it is there still.

Q. In what court ?-A. The court in which the contestations are held.
Q. Where-in Nova Scotia ?-A. No; in the Province of Quebec.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (British Columbia) :
Q. At the time the blank notes were placed in your hands, had the protests

been sent in ?-A. No; there were perhaps not one-third of them, I think perhaps it
was before ahy was made.

Q. Do 1 understand that the reason why the blank notes were put in your hands,
was because you were not aware of the number of elections that would be protested ?
-A. Of course we were not aware.

Q. And did Mr. Mercier and your other Liberal friends there in Quebec endorse
these notes for the purpose of depositing the necessary thousand dollars in protested
eleotions ?-A. That it what, I believe, I stated. I said it before, and I repeat that it
was for that.

Q. It was for that purpose alone that you endorsed the notes ?-A. Yes.
Q. The question is asked how you expect to be paid. Is it because you believe

your case a just case and do you expect you would lose none of those deposits ?-A.
We were not sure we would notilose some.

Q. I am asking your opinion and belief. Did you expect that you would get
that moncy back ?-A. I could not say that we were sure of winning them all, but in
those we would lose we would expect to pay the amount, and I was willing to pay
my share.

By the Hon. Mr. Dever:

Q. I think you said that the proceeds of these notes arq now in court; is that
so?-A. No: in the Treasury Dcpartment of Quebec, where these deposits are
transferred by law.
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Q. It is forthcoming yet ?-A. The contestations are not decided, but the money
will be there until-

Q. Consequently the proceeds of the notes are there ?-A. In the Treasury
Department.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. You raised the money on these notes, and I understand that this money

raised on these notes has been deposited in the courts and is there yet?-A. I
believe it is there yet, I never-

Q. These notes have been paid by whom ?-A. I see by the report of the Com-
mittee that it appears they were paid by Mr. Pacaud, I never meddled with that.

By the Hon. 1fr. McInnes (British Columbia):
Q. For what time were they made ?-A. I took no note of that. I admit that

the statement here is correct. (Document ref'erred to).

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Opposants :
Q. All these notes are over-due some time ?-A. I believe so.
Q. You never renewed them ?-A. No.
Q. How nany notes were there ?-A. I believe one note made at one month

was renewed.
Q. How many notes were there ?-A. 1 said just now I was not positive ; three

or perhaps four.
Q. Not more than four ?-A. I do not believe there were more than four.
Q. For what amount ?-A. I am not mure; I believe three were for $5,000, and

another perhaps a little less. I did not pay much attention Io the amount at that
tine, because I knew the purpose of the note.., and I was not the one to administer
the proceeds of these notes. 1 signed them, as it was understood, to help my
friends.

Q. These notes were under $20,000 ?-A. Well, I do not believe they were for
more than that; I am not positive.

Q. About $20,000; you endorsed the notes ?-A. Yes.
Q. And are personally responsible for them ?-A. Yes.
Q. If you had been sued you would have had to pay ?-A. Of course.
Q. The note was a personal obligation of yours ?-A. But I knew the money

was to be deposited, and we would not pay until the contestation was over, because
We would renew the notes.

Q. If the banks had let you ?-A. Oh, they would have been too glad to do it.
Q. But they took the cash ?-A. They took the cash.
Hon. Mr. PowER-I do not want to interfere with Mr. Barwick, but I would

desire to know in what capacity he now appears, having withdranvi from the case
for the Ontario Bank.

Mr. BARWICK-I am appearing for the Ontario Bank; a new witîness has been
called and I desire to examine him.

The CHAIRMAN-Since Mr. Barwick intimated his withdrawal from the case a
new witness has been called in the case in which he was concerned, and he has a
right to cross-examine.

Q. Here is a note of yours for $5,000 endorsed by you, due on the lst of May,
do you remember it ? (Exhibit 38.)-A. I do not remember; I believe it is
correct.

Q. Here is another note due on the 18th of May for $5,000 and another note
due on the 4th of August for $3,000 ?-A. I do not see my name there.

Mr. BARWICK-A witness swore that your name was there.
Hon. Mr. PELLETIER-But I do not swear it.
Mr. BARwIcK-It was sworn to by Mir. Webb. Here is another note of the

Banque Nationale for $5,000, which makes $23,000 altogrether. Now were these notes
ail signed for the purpose you mention ?-A. I do not see my name for $23,000 I
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do not say it is not. Al these notes I endorsed were for that purpose, I say that
p -sitively. Mr. Pacaud was the one who was given the money to distribute. He
told me so. I endorsed the nictes without looking at the dates of expiration. I did
not even look at the amounts, because I knew what they were for.

Q. How manny election petitions were there ?-A. I could not say. There
were a good many petitions and counter petitions.

Q. Those notes were made for the district of Quebec ?-A. It was understood
for that.

Q. Ilow many petitions were there in the district of Quebec ?-A. I say 1 do
not know. I did not know how many petitions or counter-petitions.

Q. You do not know whether they were for Quebec district or not ?-A. I
understood it would be from Thice Rivers down to thie Gulf, I do not know i I had
nothing to do with that.

Q. Do you think there were 23 ?-A. I say r do not know.
Q. Do you think there were 10 or 23 ?-A. I told yon I did not know how many

petitions or counter-petitions.
Q. You have no idea whether there were 10 or 23 ?-A. I believe of petitions

and counter-petitions there were more than 10.
Q. 15 ?-A. Weil, I do not know, I think my answer is clear.

By the Hon. fr. Tassé :
Q. Did you hold a meeting of the persons whose names are endorsed on these

notes before you decided to raise the finds ?-A. There was no particular meeting.
There were several friends and we decided to raise the money.

Q. Can you remember the names of the parties present ?-A. There was no
formai meeting. There were a couple of us at my office or at my private house and
we endorsed the notes.

By the Hon. Mr. M cCallum:
Q. Was that befire Mr. Mercier left ?-A. I say he left those blank notes in

with me.
Q. Did he say who vas to endorse then ?-A. He know very well I would be

oie.

By the Hon. fr. Bolton :
Q. You did not receive any ot' the proceeds of these notes ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. About this $100,000, alleged to have been paid to Mr. Pacaud, had you any
previous knowledge of the payment befoie these notes were made ?-A. I said just
now I had not.

The committee adjourned till Friday at. 10.30 a. m.
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THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Rooi No. 8,

FRIDAY, Auous-r 28tlh, 1891.
Mr. BARWICK, Counsel for Opposants-May I be permitted to inake an explana-

tion? Yesterday it appears I did Mr. Armstrong an injustice which I desire to
correct as soon as possible In the printing of the exhibits, exhibit 5 was printed
as " a correct statement of the work done and remaining unpaid." Mr. Armsti ong
withdrew his written documer.t, and before he went a certified copy was made by
one of the typewriters up stairs. The certified copy read exactly as the document
is priiited (at page 268), " A cor ect statement of work done and remaining unpaid."
Without admitting that it affects the main argument I desire to point out that
in my address yesterday I called attention to what I asked the Conmittee to say
was a statement untrue on Mr. Arm.strong's part, because vhen the documen
was produced by Mr. Chrysostome Langelier it read, " A correct statement of
estimates of work done." I find on enquiry that I was wrong, that the document
was twice mis-copied and misprinted wrongly, but the document which Mr. Arm-
strong has, roally contains the words, "A correct statement of estinates of work
done." Having donc him that injustice, I desire to repair that as soon as I can, and
if the Committee will permit, I would like all that part of my remarks referring
to that poi nt struck out of the official report of the remarks addressed to the
Cominittee.

This request was granted.

GEORGE A. TAYLOR, contractor, of Brockville, in the Province of Ontario, being
duiy sworn, was examined by the Hon. Francois Langelier, Q.C,, counsel for the
Quebec Government.

Q. You are a railway contractor ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have been a contractor for the Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. Yes.
Q. To what portion of the road did your contract apply ?-A. To the first

twenty miles.
Q. Your contract was not a lump sum, but an item contract ?-A. Yes; it was

entered into on the 9th of June, 18S6.

YesQ. Look at this paper (exhibit 68) and state whether you can identify it ?-A.

Q. That is the affidavit you took in Quebec on the 27th January, 1891 ?-A.
Yes.

Q. Have you just read it again ?-A. No.
Q. Plese iread it and say whether it contains the truth, to the best of your

knowledge ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you know what amount of Local and Federal subsidies were applicable

to those 20 miles of road you built ?-A. $300,000 of Dominion ,ubsidy and $70,000
of Local subsidy.

Q. That was the amount available for the construction of the work ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have carried out your contract for the building of these 20 miles ?-A.

Yes; but it was not quite finished.
Q. What was the value of the work remaining to be done on these 20 miles,

When you left ?-A. It is very hard to say; we made no estimate.
Q. Could you give it approximately ?-A. As regards the work in our contract

the main item was ballasting.
Q. You could not say how nany thousands of dollars ?-A. Oh no; we made no

estimate.
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Q. Was it a large proportion of the total work, or was it a small proportion ?-
A. A smaIl proportion as far as our contract was concerned.

Q. There remained very little to do on your contract ?-A. Yes.
Q. How much money did you receive from the company for the work you have

executed on that section of 20 miles? When I say you, I mean your firm of Mac-
donald, O'Brien & Co. ?-A. Our estimate amounted to about $252,000.

Q. That is what you got ?-A. Yes; that is our estimate, we settled on that.
Q. Did it include work done or something else put in your estimate, which did

not represent any work ?-A. There was a guarantee we paid over at the start, and
that was added to the estimates, and a drawback was added.

Q. You gave a certain amount at the start?-A. Yes; as a guarantee, $10,000.
Q. And that amount was refunded to you by adding something on to the esti-

mates?-A. Certainly, on the settlement.
Q. So in the sum of $252,000 you have jnst mentioned is included that $.10,000

you gave at the start?-A. No; that represents work actually done.
Q. And the $10.000 is bosides that?-A. Yes.
Q. Will you look at this deed (Exhibit 69) i do you remember that deed ?-

A. Yes.
Q. You were a party to it and present when it was signed by the other parties?

-A. Yes.
Q. The other parties were the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Co., C. N. Armstrong,

your firm, and one of your firm, Mr. Roderick L. McDonald, individually ?-A. Yes.
Q. And George B. Burland, of Montreal, who is present bere to-day ?-Yes.
Mr. LANGELIER-This is a memo of agreement between the Baie des Chaleurs

Railway Co., Armstrong and others, dated the 5th July, 1886.
Q. I would like you to give me some explanation to sone portions of that agree-

ment. The tirst clause of the deed after the recital of several other agreements
provides for the transfer to Mi. Burland of the subsidies applicable to these 20
miles?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Burland was to be trustee for the company and your firm ?-A. Yes.
Q. Of all the subsidies earned on the construction of the rond ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And these subsidies were to be paid over to your firm to the extent that they

were to be earned ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Mr. Burland was the onIy party who had the right to receive any of these

subsidies under this deed?-A.. Yes.
Q. No one else had a right to get a cent of these subsidies except Mr. Burland?

-A. No. sir.
Q. The deed says that the said railway company does transfer and make over

to the fifth party these subsidies. The fifth party is Mr. Burland ?-A. Yes.
Q. I see, that in the second clause of that agreement it is provided that Mr.

Light, the company's engineer, is going to make, about the 15th of Auîgust, an esti-
mate of the vork then executed as well as the work to be executed. Did Mr. Light
mako that estimîte of work then executed as well as of the work remaining to be
executed?-A. I believe he did.

Q. Can you state what he estimated the value of the work done and to be
done ?-A. I do not exactly remember.

Q. Could you state approximately; is it far from the amount you received for
the same work ?

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Was it in writing ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Langelier:

Q. You are aware he did make an estimate ?-A. I am aware that he made an
estimate.

Q. You don't remember the exact figures of the estimate he made ?-A. No, sir.
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Q. When did he make that estimate; is it on the date mentioned in thcdeed?-
Later on-that is we did not see it until later on.

Q. It inay have been· made at the date mentioned there, but you hoard of it later
on ?-A. Yes.

Q. I see that it is stated in that agreement that Mr. Burland as trustee is to
pay out of the moneys ccming to him from the subsidies, the amounts due the con-
tractors. That is to your firm ?-A. Yes.

Q. To pay $2,000 of each instalment of $60,000 received from the Dominion
Government. First of ail, how were these instalments payable by the Federal Gov-
ernment-how was the vork divided as to the payments to be made by the Federal
Government?-A. In five separate payments.

Q. Each four miles.-A. One-fifth of the work.
Q. It is not divided by miles but by the amount of the work ?-A. By the

amount of the work.
Q. The Federal subsidy was to be paid in five equal instalments of $60,000 each.

-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The agreement says, to the third parties the sum of two thousand dollar en

of each instalment of sixty thousand dollars received from the Dominion Govern .n-ni
forming in ail ton thousand dollars and being the amount payable by the sevm-4d
party to the third parties under an agreement between them before W. B. S. Reddy,
notary, on the ninth day of June instant 1886, under No. 505 of bis minutes. I will
show you the agreement. Pleae look at this notarial agreement and state if this
agreement is the agreement referred to in the clause I was just reading from ?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. That agreement is dated 9th June, 1886.-A. Yes, sir.
Q. It was passed before Mr. Reddy, Notary of Montreal ?-.A. Yes, sir.
Q. Will you please state all you know about this $10,000 which is refbi red to, in

the agreement (Exhibit 69) and in the other agreement (Exhibit 70) ?-A. It was
given as a guarantee when we signed the contract that we would fultil the condition
of the contract.

Q. Who did you pay that money to ?-A. It was paid in Quebec at the time the
contract was signed.

Q. To whom was it paid ?-A. To Mr. Riopel'and Mr. Armstrong.
By the Hon. Mr. McCallun:

Q. What did you pay them-83,000 ?-A. No, 85,000 at that time.
By Mr. Langelier:

Q. You paid that in two instalments of $5,000 each ?-A. The other five thous-
and was paid later on.

Q. You paid $10,000 altogether ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Will you please state, as a member of the Comnitteo asked it, at what date

the payment was made?-A. The tirst one was made at the time of the signing of
the contract botween ourselves and Mr. Armstrong.

By the ion. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. 9th June, 1886 ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Langelier;

Q. When was the second payment made ?-A. The second payment-I do not
quite ronember the date.

Q. Did your firm give a promisory note for that $5,000 ?-A. That T am not
propared to say-I forget.

Q. You are sure you paid the 85,000 ?-A. Oh yes, we paid the other tive
thousand.

By the lion. Mr. Bolton.
Q. According to agreement? A. Yes sir.
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By Mr. Langelier:
Q. Were you recouped that ten thousand dollars you paid ? A. Yes.
Q. How were you recouped? A. In the final settlement.
Q. Out ofthe estimates ? A. Yes.
Q. It was paid out of Provincial and Dominion Subsidies ? A. Yes sir.
Q. How was that amount paid back to you-added to your monthly estimates?

A. Yes; added to our miotnthly estimates according to agreement.
Q. I see in the deed. "In consideration thereofthe contractor binds and pledges

him.self to repay to the said sub-contractors the sum of $2000 out of each and every
the five sums oftsixty thousand dollars each to be paid by the Government of Can-
ada in connection with the contruction of the said 20 miles, and the contractor will
cause to be added to the ordinary estimate of the company's engineer by which the
said sub-contractor became entitled to said payments of sixty thousand dollars each
the sum of two thousand dollars on each and every of the five estimates." Was that
done ?-A. I cannot say how it was done. I know we got it back, we received the
money from the trustee on the esti mates of Mi. Armstrong's ongineer.

Q. If I understand you rightly besides the estimates for work nearly donc
under these conditions, the $10,000 were added to your estimates to recoup you the
810,000 you had first paid Mr. Riopel ?-A. Certainly.

Q. So that this $10,000 represents no real work done on the 210 miles ?-A.
They represent the $10,000 we had given then.

By The Hon. Mr. Read. (Quinte.)

Q. I would like to ask whether your sub-contract was under Mr. Armstrong ?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. BARwicK.-Mr. Chairman, I am appearing for Senator Robitaille. I under-
stand that Mr. Langelier is appearing for the Government of the Province of Quebec,
and I put in now the shorthand statement of his charge here, which I am meeting
for Senator Robitaille.

MR. LANGELTER.-I can iepeat my charge. I do not hold myself bound by a re-
port that I never saw. I staiel the other day that $118,00of Federal and Local sub-
sidies applicable to the first 20 miles had been misapplied. I was told afterwards that
I used an expression too strong in saying that it was embezzelled or misapplied.
The English is not my native language, but I wanted to express the French word
détourner I am told that embezzlement is not the word to use. I say the funds were
misap plied, I used the wrong expression, if the word "embezzle" mens a criminal
act. I do not want to say there vas anything criminal.

Mr. BARICK.-YoU spoke of criminal proceedings ?
Mr. LANGELER.-That is aitother statement, and I will prove that statement

THE CHAIRMAN.-The clik lias entered the world you used as misapplied.
Mr. LANGELIER.-He is familiar with French and English; and he would

see what I meant, and he would see that the words do not correspond with one
another. I was told afterwards that the two words ceould not mean the same thing.
If embezzlement means something criminal, I do not want to say anything of that
kind.

Q. I sec that the deed provides for being paid from monthly certificates of
work done.u i nder certificates to be delivered by Mr. Light, engineer of the company.
Did you receive those estimates ?-A. We i eceived our paynients on the certificates
of Mr. Armstrong's engineer. We received our payments through Mr. Burland,
trustee, and ho received the estimates, the documents.

Q. That is to say your estimates were first prepared by Mr. Leduc, Mr. Arms-
trong's engineer, and these were certified to by Mr. Light, the Government engineer?
-A. I am not certain.

Q. At all events you received the amount of the estimates, whatever they may
have been, regularly trom Mr. Buriland ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You received them, if I understand right, in accordance with this agree-
ment ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Burland carried out correctly this agreement?-A. Yes.
Q. I see in that agreement it is stated that five instalments of $8,000 each are

to be paid to you, and that it states " said sums of oight thousand dollars, each, shall be
paid to the third parties (that is McDonald, O'Brien & Co.) by the fifth pa'rty (that
is Mr. Burland), out of the subsidies to be paid by the Federal and Local Örovern-
ments within two months after the final eompletion of 'the whole work
to the satisfaction of the engineer of the company ? " Why were those instalments
of $8,000 each made payable to you ? Were they for work to be really executed or
for something else ?-A. They were for certain drawbacks. I think it states it in
the deed.

Q. "Of the amount estimated by the said Light of the value of the price men-
tioned in the contract, a second sum of $40,000 to provide for the payment of five
installments of $8,000. each, to be paid to I. Noel, as herein stipulated." Who was
Mr. Noel ?-A. The manager of the Quebec Bank in Ottawa.

Q. Was Mr. Noel to recoive those 840,000 for work executed on the road, or for
other purposes ?-A. I do not know how much ho recoived, I suppose lie was paid
through Mr. Burland. &

Q. What was it for ? Was it for work done by you, or some other purpose ?-
A. It is supposed to be for the usual drawback on the work.

Q. At ail events, you never had that sum of inoney for your own use?-A. We
received it in our final settlement.

Q. Did you pay it over ?-A. We never had the handling of it.
Q. You iever had it ?-A. No. It was the prie taken off our estimates in the

final draw back. ,
Q. And you never got it?-A. We got it in our final settlement.
Q. Is it included in the 8252,000 yon spoke of?-A. No. That is the amount

of the work we did.
Q. ILow did this $40,000 become payable to Mr-. Noel of the Quebec bank?

«What business relations had he with your firm ?-A. Ho had none. I do not know
how it was.

Q. For whoni was Noel to receive these five instalments of $8,000 each ?-
A. That, I cannot say. I do not know.

Q. Here is what I flnd in the deed. The said sums of $8,000 each shall be paid
to the third paity by the fifth party out of the subsidies to be paid by the Federal
and Local Governrents withiin two months of the final completion of the whole
work to the satisfaction of the engineer of the company. You got that sum
after the wholo work was conpleted, out of the money coming from the subsidies?
-A. Out of the money wo roceived froin Mr. Burland.

Q. You stated a few moments ago that under this agreement (Exhibit 69) all
subsidies had become payable to Mr. Burland as trustee ?-A. According to the deed
-Yes.

Q. Did yo become aware at a certain time that some other parties than Mr.
fiurland had received a portion of that money ?-A. A certain portion went to
-Quebec at one timc.

Q. To whom ?-A. To the bank.
Q. To whose crodit ?-A. I suppose it went to the companv's credit.
Q. You were informed that the company had, as a matter of fact, received

-840,o0 of that moniey which should have gone to Mr. Burland ?-A. Yes.
Q. At what date did yon receive that information ?-.\. Immediately after it

'Was paid.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Froin whom did you get that information ?-A. Through our lawyers ii
Ottawa, Mesers. Ferguson and Geimmill.
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By letter?-A. One of my partners was here and wired us to Quebec to come
up in regard to the matter. We came up, but the money had gone down to Quebec,
and we went, right down, taking our solicitor from Montreal.

By Mr. Langelier:
Q. On receiving that information did you go to Quebec, or were you there

before?-A. We were not. We went down.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. Whom do you mean by " we " ?-A. Myself and partners.
Q. Did you go yourself?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Langelier:
Q. Whom did you want to see in Quebec ?-A. The President of the Company,

Mr. Robitaille.
Q. Did you meet him?-A. Yes.
Q. Please state what took place in relation to this matter ?-A. He said he -was

ready to transfer the money; that it was a mistake.
Q. Did he admit that the Company received the money which ho had no right

to receive?-A. I cannot remember that. I only remember that we demanded the
money.

Q. Did ho admit that the company had the money ?-A. I understand ho gave
a cheque for it.

Q. Did he give that right off, immediately on your asking?-A. He was ready
to, I believe, but it had to be cotinter-signed by his brother, the secretary of the
company.

Q. Did you consult a lawyer as to the stops which should be taken to get the
money back into the hands of the trustee. Mr. Burland ?-Yes; we already telegraphed
to Mr. Stuart of Quebec to take means to hold that money, so we could not lose it.

Q. Look at this telegram (Exhibit 71), and state whether it is a telegram that
your tirm received at that time ?-A. I remember seoing such a telegram.

Q. By whom is it sent?-A. lBy Theodore Robitaille.
Q. That is the President of the Company, Senator Robitaille ?-A. Yes.
The telegram reads as follows:-
From Quebec via Montreal.

OTTAWA, 10th February, 1887.
To McDonald, O'Brien & Co.

Russell House or Grand Union,
Ottawa.

I find on inquiry at bank that amount has been paid to credit of company.
Bank refuses pay trustee on my order, and requires company's secretary's signatuîre.
le is absent. 1 telegraph him to send cheque. I am ready to adopt other means

you may suggest.
(Sgd.) THEODORE ROBITAILLE.

Q. That is the telegram you received concerning that $40,000 business ?-A. I
remember receiving that.

Q. After that, the $40,000 were handed back to Mr. Burland, trustee ?-A. I
suppose so.

By Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. That is what you say-you suppose?-A. I believe it was.

By Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. At any rate you were satisfied ?-A. Yes.

By 11r. Lanqelier:
Q. This telegram relates to your complaint that the $40,000 which should have

been paid to the trustees had been illegally obtained by the company ?-A. I do not
kniow whether it vas illezal or not.
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Q. 1ll you can state is that it had been obtained after the transfer ? -A. That
is alil.

Q. You are not personally aware whether the money was paid back to Mr.
Burland, but you are satisfied it was ?-A. I am quite satisfied it was paid back.

Q. Will you please look at this letter (Exhibit 72). It reads as follows: -

THE BAIE DES CHALEURs RAILWAY COMPANY,
QuEBEC, l6th December, 188(;.

To Messrs. MCDONALD, O'BRIEN & CO.,
Contractors, Metapedia.

SIRS.-On behalf of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company I desire to draw
your attention to clause second of the agreement passed between this company, first
party, C. N. Aimstrong, second party, your fir'm, third party, R. L. McDonald, fourth
party, and G. B. Builand, fifth party.

Whereby it is stipulated that the trustee, Mr. Burland, shall be bound to re-
transfer to this company whatever may remain of the subsidies transferred to him
after deduction therefrom :

lst. Of the amount estimated by Mr. Light.
2nd. Of the sum of $40,000.
3rd. Of the sum of $33,000. .
Now, as you have some time past been supplied with the requisite estimates

trom Mr. Light, I am to notify you, on behalf ot this company, to comply forthwith
with that clause of the agi-eement, viz., to request Mr. Burland to retransfer to the
Bais des Chaleurs Railway Company the renaining portion of the subsidies in his
hands.

I have the honour to be, Gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
President B. d. C. R.

Q. Do you remember your firm having received this letter ?-A. Yes; I believe
we received this, or one similar.

Q. Was it long before the reception of this letter, that Mr. Light made his esti-
mate of the work done and to be done whieh was alluded to in the letter?-A. It
Was before this ; I could not say how long.

Q. Did you comply with the request contained in that letter?-A. No, sir.
Q. You did not; what was your contention ?-A. Our contention was that Mr.

Light's estimato was not sufficient to complote our contract.
Q. Then, what was the point of difference between you and the company which

brought about that letter, and the protest which I an going to show you?-A. We
did not transfer back any portion of the subsidy.

Q. The company wanted to get the subsidies at once re-transferred to thei?
Hon. Mr. McCuLum-Ask what they wanted.
Mr. LANGELIER-[ put the question first in strictly legal form, and I want to

Iefresh the memory of the witness. I have seen many questions much more leading
than that put to the other witnesses.

The CHAiRMAN.-Ycur questio-, is all right.
The WITNEss-All I can say is, that we did not consider Mr. Light's estimates

sufficient to do the work, and we declined to transfer the subsidies.
Q. What did the company want ?-A. They wanted us to re-transfer the differ-

ence.
Q. What did they want to have transferred back ?-A. The difference, the

balance of the subsidy.
Q. That is the dfffeience between Mr. Light's estimates and the total amoup' of

the subsidy ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you did not want to do that?-A. We would not do it.
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By the on. Mr. Boulton:

Q. That was the agreement, was it not?-A. That was one clause of the agree-
ment.

Q. Will you look at this paper whieh is produced, dated 2nd December, 1886, by
Messrs. Marler & McLennan, notaries of Monitreal, at the instance and request of the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, and state whether vou remember having
received that protest. I mnay state that the protest is to the same effeet as the
letter?-A. I fcel very sure that that protest was received. (Document tiled as
Exhibit 73.)

By Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Hon. Théodore Robitaille:
Q. This is your affidavit (Exhibit 68) ?-A. Yes.
Q. Chrysostome Langelier drew that affidavit?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Why did he draw it ?-A. As I supposed, to assist Mr. MacFarlane.
Q. Not with a view to making a scandal against Senator Robitaille ?-A. No.
Q. This is his handwriting here in the last paragraph. " The said amount?

A. "Amount " is in his handwriting-Yes.
Q. le polished up the affidavit after it had been printed. This was printed in

bis office?-A. I signed it there.
Q. You swore to it before J. Chrysostome Langelier, Justice of the Peace ?-A.

I signed it in his office.
Q. Did you kiss a Bible ? at the time you swore it ?-A. I am not quite sure.
Q. I am qirite serious. Are you a Presbyterian ?-A. No; 1 am Church of

England.
Q. You are not a Presbyterian; you do not object to taking an oath in the way

vou took one this morning, by kissing the Bible ?-A. No.
Q. That is the way you usually take an oath ?-A. By all means.
Q. You did not kiss a Bible when you swore tiis affidavit in Chrysostome

Langelier's office ?-A. I am not quite certain.
Q. There was not a Bible there, was there ?-A. I don't knîow.
Q. Did you take a book in your haiid-did you take a dictionary?-A. I do not

remember doing that?
Q. There was not even a dictionary there?-A. There might be.
Q. iowever, you did not kiss any book at the time you swore that affidavit ?-

A. 1 am not quite sure.
Q. How did all these letters that are put in here get into the hands of the

Counsel for the Quebec Government ?-A. I gave thein to Mr. Macfirlaie; lie is a
friend of mine.

Q. You gave them to him to help him ?-A. In his case against the company-
yes.

Q. low they got froin Mr. Macfarlane's hand into Mr. François Langelier's
hand you cannot state ?-A. No.

Q. You made your contract with Charles INewhouse Armstrong on the 9th
of June, 1886 (Exhibit 70) ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. By that contract you agreed to build the first twenty miles?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And what were you to be paid ?-A. On estimate.
Q. How much, do you remember?-A. We were to be paid all we got.
Q. What was the bargain ?-A. Perhaps I do not quite understand your

question.
Q. I will put it in another way. You deposited a certain sum in the hands

of the contractor ?-A. Yes.
Q. To show your good faith in going on with the contract ?-A. Yes.
Q. Just as with the Publie Works Departrnent of Canada, you would put up a

marked cheque ?-A. it was a guarantee.
Q. Instead of putting up a marked cheque to show your good faith and ability

to do the work which you had contracted to do, you put up $10,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you got it back ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Was there anything dishonest about getting it back ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You were entitled to it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You looked to them for it, and they gave it to you as honest men ought to

do?-A. Certainly.
Q. I will read a clause of the agreement-" Now these presents witnesseth that

the sub-contractors have this day paid to the said contractor the sum of five thou-
sand dollars in cash, and bind and oblige themselves upon the signing of a transfer
of the subsidies amounting to three hundred and seventy-three thousand dollars by
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to a Bank as a Trustee, to pay to the said
Charles Newhouse Armstrong a further sum of five thousand dollars." That is
$5,000 down, and $5,000 when you got the transfer of the subsidies ?-A. Yes.

Q. Now this $370,000 subsidy was made up of $300,000 Dominion and $70,000
Quebec subsidy?-A. Yes.

Q. Payable in respect to your 20 miles ?-A. Yes.
Q. IIere is a clause in the contract: " In consideration thereof the contractor

(that is Armstrong) binds and pledges himself to repay to the sub-contractors (that
is McDonald, O'Brien & Co.) the suin of $2,000 out of each and every the five sums
of $60;000, each to be paid by the Government of Canada "-that is, the Dominion
subsidy was payable in sums of $60,000 each ?-A. Yes.

Q. And five times $60,000 is 8300,000?-A. Yes.
Q. Out of each sum of $60,000 Armstrong was pledged to pay you back 82,000,

was he ?-A. Yes.
Q. And did he ?-A. I suppose he did; I got it.
Q. Was there anything dishonest about that ?-A. No.
Q. Was it honest ?-A. Yes; what we were entitled to.
Q. The contract provides that the transfer of the subsidies made to the sub-

contractors, Messrs. McDonald, O'Brien & Co., should also secure the re-payment of
the above-mentioned $10,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. That is, you got an assignment of the whole $300,000 to secure the payment
to you under your contract first ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the repaymient back to you honestly of' that $10,000 ?-A. Certainly.
Q. On the 5th July, 1886, came this next agreement (Exhibit 69). This agree-

ment governed how you were to be paid the amount of the estimates?-A. Yes.
Q. In this the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company was the first party, Arm-

strong the second, your firm the third, R. L. McDonald the fourth and Mr. Burland
tifth-Mr. Burland was the trustee ?-A. Yes.

Q. This agreement recites other agreements, the assignment of $300,000 to
secure the party mentioned. and then assigns to Mr. Burland the sum of $300,000
and the subsidy of $70,000, recites the giving of an absolute power of attorney to
Mr. Burland to entitle him to receive the subsidies, Burland being the party named
by you as a thoroughly reliable man to receive these subsidies?-A. Yes.

Q. And goes on to provide that the engiieer of' the railway company should
make an estiniate of the work on the 15th of August next ?-A. On or about.

Q. The work done by your tirm?-A. The work to be done.
Q. The work done under your contract and the work remaining to be done.

And then provided that in the event of such estimate being less than the amount of
subsidy hereby transferred, Mr. Buriand should be bound at the request of
McDonald, O'Brien & Co.-at your request-to transfer the surplus in Mr. Burland's
hands to the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. Meaning that you were bound to be protected in the payment of your
money?-A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Burland was to see you paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. Until then, and not till you gave consent, was the balance to go to the com-

pany ?-A. Not till we gave our consent.
Q. And the balance of that subsidy belongs to the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was there anything dishonest about that?-A. Not to my idea.
Q. It was honest and true ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Being entitled to receive the money ?-A. Yes.
Q. After you were paid?-A. Yes; for work done.
Q. And Mr. Burland could not pay $1 to the company until you told him to?-

A. No; not under that agreement.
Q. The dispute arose as regards the $40,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then followed the letter of Théodore Robitaille of the 16th December, 1886

(Exhibit 72) ?-A. I remember that letter.
Q. By that letter Mr. Robitaille called upon you, pursuant to this document,

(Exhibit 69), of the 5th July, 1886, to request Mr. Buriand to transfer the surplus
over and above what is due to you to the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. Was that honest ?-A. According to the agreement between us.
Q. Then followed this telegram of the 10th February. 1887 (Exhibit 71); that

was from the President of the company to your firm ?-A. Yes.
Q. Here is a certificate of Mr. Light's, is it not ?-A. It is his signature. It is

a certificate dated the 12th of February, 1887 (Exhibit 74).
Q. You stopped work about the 17th of January, 1887?-A. Yes.
Q. And the work you did not do on your section was completed, by Armstrong

doing a portion of it and Macfarlane the balance ?-A. I believe so.
Q. And this certificate certified that the subcontractors for the first 20'miles,

did not proceed with the work in a manner to complete their contract by the first of
December, 1886, as provided by the contract between Mr. C. N. Armstrong and the
sub-contractors Messrs. McDonald, O'Biien & Co., dated the 9th June, 1886, and fur-
ther certifies that the said works were not ccmpleted on the said first of December,
1886, and are not completed at the present time, and is signed by A. L. Light. Is
that certificate true ?-A. I never saw it. It is true so far as the work not being
conpleted.

Q. This $40,000, Mr. Langelier speaks of, was paid to the Quebec Bank ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was the $40,000 due out of the Dominion subsidy in respect to your 20

miles ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which Dominion subsidy Mr. Burland ought to have received and should have

kept until you gave him liberty to pay whatever balance was due the company, to
the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, the Government made a mistake and paid that $40,000 to the Quebec
Bank ?-A. Yes.

Q. Subsidies are drawn from the Dominion Treasury by powers of attorney, as
a rule ?-A. So I understand, as a contractor.

Q. And Mr. Burland held a power of attorney under whicih he was to receive
$370,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Noël got a subsequent power of attorney ?-A. I do not know.
Q. HIow did lie corne to get that $40,000 ?-A. That I cannot understand.
Q. Did you not understand that it was a departmental mistake ?-A. So Mr.

Robitaille told me.
Q. And you insistod upon that $40,000 being put back ?-A. We insisted on

that.
Q. Mr. Armstrong claimed diffèrently ?-A. Yes.
Q. He wanted the $40,000?-A. He did.
Q. And he claimed that the document which provided that that noney should

not be paid to the old company without your consent, was a clerical error and that
his name ought to have been in there ?-A. That was his contention.

Q. You denied that ?-A. Yes.
Q. And on that contention you enployed your solicitor ?-A. Yes.
Q. And Armstrong his ?-A. I heard so.
Q. And Senator Robitaille his ?-A. I heard that too.
Q. And Senator Robitaille was in Quebec at the time and you went to sece hin ?

-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you see him?-A. At the St. Louis Hotel.
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Q. On what date ?-A. Well somewere about the middle of February, I am not
sure of the date, the telegram will show.

Q. And you began firing protests at each other all round, did'nt you?-A. Our
protests were at Armstrong.

Q. Where is your protest to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company?-A. I
don't remember whether we did protest them or not.

Mr. BARWICI.-Mr. Chairman, here is a copy of it, which with your permission
I will put in to-day, and will undertake to put in a notarial copy if necessary. Hlere
are the particulars showing this is a notarial copy in the notes of Mr. Couture,
Notary Publie of Quebec, No. 2743. This is not certified, but if I be permitted to
use this. I will undertake to procure from Mr. Couture's notes a notarial copy. This
is a protest from McDonald, O'Brien & Co. to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
panly.

(Document filed as Exhibit 75). No. 75, now in, is a protest from the Baie des
Chaleurs to Macdonald, O'Brien & Co., and then I have a protest from the Baie des
Chaleurs to G. B. Burland, 24th December, 1886. Exhibit 74 is Ar. Light's certifi-
cate, 75 is the one just put in, and 76, which I would put in is the protest fron the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to G. B. Burland. (Document filed as Exhibit
76). [ will not trouble the Committe to read these things, but these when printed
will show what the dispute was between these parties.

Q. Now you went to Quebec to try to get that $40,000 paid by mistake to Mr.
Noel re-transferred to Mr. Burland ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you saw Governor Robitaille ?-A. Yes, tir.
Q. With your solicitor, or were you alone ?-A. 1 think there were only

ourselves, just the firm.
Q. Who were they ?-A. Mr. McDonald, Mr. O'Brien, Mr. Rodgers, and myself.
Q. And Senator Robitaille, prudent man. referred the whole matter to his

solicitor ?-A. I do not know; I suppose he did.
Q. Did you hear what bis solicitor's name was, Bossé ?-A. Bossé, I think.
Q Now a Judge ?-A. Yes.
MR. BARwIcK.-I put in the written opinion of Mir. Bossé.
MR. LANGELIER -That cannot be evidence.
,MIR. BARwIcK.-Does anyone dispute his signature ?
MIt. LANGELIER.-I do not say that, but that cannot go in as evidence.
MR. BARwICK.-It shows whether Mr. Robitaille auted honestly; whether lie

was guilty of enbezzlement. (Iocument filed, Exhibit 77.)
Q. And what did Mr. Robitaille agree to do when you were down there ?-A.

He agreed to transfer the money.
Q. And how long were you there ?-A. A, couple of days, I think.
Q. Did he agree to transfer it the first day you were there ?-A. I think so.
Q. He told you it was a mistako ?-A. Yes.
Q. He did not know it had been paid in, until you went down there ?-A. I am

not prepared to say-I do not know.
Q. You went down there to see Senator Robitaille. How soon after you saw

him, did he agree to transfer it back ?-A. At our first interview.
Q. le agreed at once ?-A. lie agreed, yes.
Q. Agreed like an honest man to pay it back ?-A. He agreed to give a cheque.
Q. To pay it back instantly to Mr. Burland ?-A. To Mr. Burland, yes.
Q. In order that the $40,000 night remain where it was originally intended to

remain until you were paid in full?-A. Yes.
Q. There was nothing dishonest in his conduct in that ?-A. No.
MR. BARwICK.-I put in a telegram from Mr. Robitaille which I will prove by

Mr. Armstrong afterwards. Telegram to Mr. Armstrong, February 12th, 1887.
" Su b-contractors returning Montreal, nothing done. Theywill seeyou. Amount

will be placed credit trustee. I leave for country Monday. Theodore Robitaille."
(Document filed as Exhibit 78.)
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Q. On the 10th of February this telegran, (Exhibit 71), was sent to the firm ?
-A. Yes. I saw that.

Q. You had got back to Ottawa in the meantime?-A. I had come up from
Montreal to Ottawa, and I turned right round and went back.

Q. You come up to see it transferred ?-A. I came up to see my partn er, I knew
nothing about this.

Q. You went down that 10th of February ?-A. Yes.
Q. This telegram was received before you went to Quebec ?-A. I presune it was.
Q. This telegram told you that Senator Robitaille was prepared to pay that

money straight over to the trustee, but there was some little delay in getting the
Secretary's signature ?-A. Yes; there was delay in getting the signature.

Q. But you and your partners thought it best to go to Quebec ?-A. I went
down.

Q. You went and saw Senator Robitaille and he treated you as honestly as one
would expect ?-A. He agreed to give a cheque.

Q. Is it not true that ho treated you as one would expect one of his character
and position to treat yo ?-A. Certainly.

Mir. BaRwrcK-I should have put in before, another protest, that of C. N. Arm-
strong to George B. Burlaid.

Document filed, Exhibit 79.
Q. You never made a threat of criminal proceedings to Senator Robitaille ?-

A. We demanded our- noney.
Q. And you got it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you make a threat of eriminal proceedings ?-A. I don't think so.
Q. Say I yes " or "'no."-A. No; we did not.
Q. So it is not true that criminal proceedings were threatened against Senator

Robitaille ?-A. 1 don't think it was.
Q. That part of the charge is false.-A. Oh, yes; we did not make any charge

of anything of that kind.
Q. You went down as business men to demand your $40,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you went to Senator Robitaille to speak to him as an honest man, and

ho treated you as that, and ho transferred the money back as an honest man?-
A. Yes.

Q. And it is false that you threatened him with criminal proceedings ?-A. Yes.
Q. You would never have dared to do that with one of his character ?-A. No;

hardly.
Q. Now, on the 26th of Marel, 1887, you submitted the whole question between

you and Mr. Armstrong as to the amount that should be paid, to arbitration ?-A.
Yes; we submitted the whole question to arbitration.

Q. Is this the deed of submission to arbitration ? (Document produced.)-A.
Yes. (Document filed as Exhibit 80.)

Q. This document is dated the 26th of March, 1887. It recites the differences
between these parties, and refers the whole matter to arbitration in the most friendly
way, does it not ?-A. Yes.

Q. You were not to have any quibbles about law ?-A. No.
Q. You were to wipe out quibbles, get down to hard pan and find what was

d ne ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was pretty honest ?-A. We differed in the amount, Mr. Armstrong

and ourselves.
Q. This agreement provided that the $40,000 was to be paid over to you. The

sub-contractors, that is you, shall be entitled to receive all the money, and so oi.
The moncys wero held then in Mr. Burland's hand, that is the $40,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. So that on the 26th March, 1887, Mr. Armstrong agreed to your getting the
$40, 000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you got it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was there any embezzlement about it?--A. No.
Q. Were you entitled to it?-A. We were indeed.
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Q. Ionestly ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Under your contract ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. This agreement provided that before you submi'ted the questions to arbitra-

tration you should be entitled to $0,000 (lue by the Quebec Government ?-A. Yes,
s1r.

Q. You got that ?-A. Yes.
Q. And should there be any deficiency after you got these sums, the $40,000 and

$30,000, the difference should be paid out of the first moneys received on the first
instalment from the Dominion Government ?-A. Yes, that was the arrangement.

Q. And the remainder of the subsidies transferred to and held by Mr. Burland
shall be transferred to the trustee approved by you ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And such trustee shall bo bound to mako payments to your firm as provided
in the clauses I have just read to you ?-A. Yes.

Q. Who was the trustee you chose ?-A. Mr. J. Murray Smith.
Q. Who was he ?-A. Manager of the Bank of Toronto in Montreal.
Q. The new trustee to be named within three days after the delivery of the

arbitrator's report ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is a fair, honest, clear agreement ?-A. I think it is a fair agreement.
Q. As between man and man ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. It was fairly and honestly carried out, was it not ?-A. Yes.
Q. And who were the arbitrators named ?-A. Mr. Leduc and Mr. Fowler.
Q. Mr. Leduc was the company's engineer ?-A. le was Mr. Armstrong's

engineer.
Q. And Mr. Fowler was yours ?-A. Yes.
Q. His name is Z. J. Fowler ?-A. Yes.
Q. These gentlemen did not have even to call in the third arbitrator ?-A. No.
Q. Thoy found the ainount to be $251,51Ô and that is their award ?-A. Yes,

we agreed to that.
Document filed as Exhibit 81.
Q. And you got your money ?-A. Yes, we got paid.
Q. You got your pay out of the subsidies ?-A. Yes, ont of the subsidies.
Q. You got every dollar that was due to you ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Every dollar you were entitled to ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Every farthing.you expected ?-A. Yes, every farthing we expected.
Q. And you had not any more claim to the balance of the subsidies than J have?

-A. No; not after this was settled.
Q. The amount of sabsidy transferred to Mr. Murray Smith was that $118,000 ?

-A. I do not exactly remember the amount.
Q. That was about the amount ?-A. I cannot say.
Q. The Dominion and Quebec subsidies which were transferred toyour firm were

8370,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Your award was $251,510 ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the balance of these subsidies vou transferred to Mr. Murray Smith ?-
A. Well, we got the $10,000 besides.

Q. In with the $251,000 ?-A. No ; outside of that. We got $10,000 back out of
the instalments.

Q. But the $10,000 you put up as security was honestly paid back ?-A. It was
)aid back.

Q. And the anount, $251,510, was paid out of the Dominion and Quebec subsidies ?
-A. Was paid out of the subsidies.

Q. For work actually donc ?-A. Yes.
Q. Ont of the estimates furnished by the engineers ?-A. Yes.
Q. Any monkeying there ?-A. No.
Q. Now the difference betveen $370,000 and $251,510 was received by Mr.

Murray Smith under the power you gave him to receive it?-A. Yes; I do not know
how much he received, whatever the difference was.
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Q. And the difference was $118,490 ?-A. That $251,510 was our estimate for
work done.

Q. Subtract that amount from $370,000-how mueh doos it leave ?-A. It would
leave $118,000.

Q. But you had got your $10,000 back before you got the balance of $251,510 ?
-A. That $251,000 represented work actually donc.

Q, Yes; I understand that. The addition of the actual certificates of work
done. The $10,000 was outside of that ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you got the security of $10,000 back ?-A. Yes ; in settlement.
Q. And what you really got was $10,000 of your own money and $251,510 in

subsidies ?-A. Yes.
Q. How soon did you get that back ?-A. We got it nearly all back about the

time of the arbitration in April, 1887, from Mr. Burland, and the balance from Mr.
Murray Smith.

Q. Mr. Murray Smith paid you out of the last instalment of the Dominion sub-
sidy ?-A. Yes.

Q. So Murray Smith stood entitled to receive $118,490 for the old company?-
A. Yes.

Q. Was there anything dishonest in Mr. Murray Smith receivingthat $118,490 ?
A. No.

Q. Any ombezzlement in that?-A. No.
Q. Was it honest on Senator Robitaille's part ?-A. I think so.
Q. Was there any misapplication of moneys?-A. Not that I can sec.
Q. This document (Exhibit 68) was stated by Counsel for the Quebec Govern-

ment to be a document which would show that $118,000 was embezzled or mis-
applied by the old company. Now tell us whether you intended to make any
insinuation of embezzlement or misapplication of moieys in that affidavit, if you
made it ?-A. I certainly did not.

By Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. What does your affidavit mean ?
Mr. LANGELIER.-I want to object to the question whichiis being I)Ut. Witness

is asked to give an opinion as to a document which is filed. I contend we are not
to get the opinion of the witness, as the document speaks foritself.

The CIIAIRMAN.-I understand the question is what ho, who made the affidavit,
meant by it, and I think the question is a proper one.

Q. Who asked you to draw the affidavit, Chrysostôme Langelier ?-A. Chrysos-
tôme Langelier.

Q. What did ho say to you ?-A. I wish to explain a little.
Q. Just answer my question, please. We wili ask you the question how you

came to go there, but suy first what he said to you ?-A. lie wished to know whether
I would bc willing to put certain facts in the form of an affidavit.

Q. Did he tell you the facts ?-A. I had explained them to him.
Q. Is this about what he said to you? You have read that in the newspapers?

-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember what is in it ?-A. Yes; I remember what is in it.
Q. What did Chrysostôme Langelier say about embezzlement or mis:Jpplication

of the money ?-A. I did not kiiow anything in connection witi that.
The Hon. Mr. TAss.-I would like to know if the paper signed by the witness

was the first copy, and the only copy that was drawn.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. I will ask you that. Did Chrysostôme Langelier write what you told him?
-A. Yes.

Q. With a pen ?-
Hon. Mr. PowER.-Or was it not a pencil ?
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By Mr. Barwick:
Q. Was it with a pen or a pencil?--A. It was either a pen or pencil; I could

not say.
Q. You do not remember that ?-A. No; I do not remember that.
Q. But lie wrote down what you told hini ?-A. Yes.
Q. Had he it written before you went there ?-A. I think so.
Q. He had it all ready before you went thore ?-A. I think so.
Q. ie sent for vou to come to bis office ?-A. I was there several times with

Mr. MacFarlane.
Q. Did he have an inner room in bis office?-A. An inner room-I do not

remember that.
Q. What place was this meeting at ?-A. In the buildings, in Quebec.
Q. The Parliament Buildings?-A. Yes.
Q. Chrysostôme Langelier's private office ?-A. In bis office.
Q. You went there, and when you got there he told you he had the document,

did he?-A. Yes; he told me ho had it.
Q. Who went there with you ?-A. George MacFarlane.
Q. That is Ienry MacFarlaue's son ?-A. Yes. We were there several tinies.
Q. Did Henry MacParlane go with you several times ?-A. No; George.
Q. I mean George?-A. I think he did.
Q. Did you talk about the document before you signed it ?-A. There was a

little casual conversation ; I do not remnember it.
Q. He read this over to you ?-A. Yes.
Q. Asked you if that was not the facts?-A. Yes.
Q. Were you told what the effect of it would be ?-A. No. 1 understood this

was merely for the assistance of Mr. McFaLrlane in his case, in the troubles.
Q. Mr. Chrysostome Langelier being the Comnissioner appointed by the Quebec

Government for paying the men ?-A. Exactly.
Q. You understood the document was going to assist him ?-A. To assist Mr.

MacFarlane.
Q. You never joined in a conspiracy to hurt Senator Robitaillc?-A. No.
Q. This charge of embezzlement was not made with your knowledge ?-A. No;

I was much surprised to soe this document in the papers.
Q. You were surprised to sec this document used as a basis of a charge of em-

bezzlement ?-A. Yes.
Q. You never intended to do it; it is a false use of the document?-A. Yes.
Q. An untrue use of the document ?-A. Yes.
Q. An unfair use ?-Unfair.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (B.C.)

Q. Was the document read to you before you signed it ?-A. I read it over.
Q. Did you understand it?-A. I understood it vas just nerely the facts I was

giving in connection with our work.

By Mfr. Barwick :

Q When you got there and the document was in Mr. J. C. Langelier's hand-
w'riting, did you wait until ho got it type-written ?-A. Yes, I did. I do not know
whether ho did it just then or not, but it was sent outside of tho room.

Q. To the type-writer outside ?-A. 1 suppose so.
Q. Did you wait there until it came back ?-A. I do not know whether I went

away and came back the same day or the next day. I was there three or four times.
Q. And the document was drawn on the first day you went to Quebec ?-A. No,

nlot unîtil two or three days.
Q. And about a day or two after the document was drawn with a pen by Mr. J.

C. Langelier, you vent back and it was type-written ?-A. I do not know how long
it was.
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Q. It may have been a day or two, as to that you have foigotten ?-A. Yes.
Q. And when you went back Mr. J. C. Langelier sat down and made these

alterations with a pen ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you thought nothing of it afterwards until you saw the use of it by

Counsel for the Quebec Government ?-A. Yes.

Mr. (;EORGE BULL BURLAND, of the City of Montreal, Province of Quebec, who
being duly sworn was examined by the Ho0n. FRANVOIS LANGELIER, COunsel ftOr' the
Quebec Governmen t:-

Q. You have seen an agreement between the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, Armstrong and others and yourself?-A. Yes.

Q. You were appointed trustee by that ?-A. Yes.
Q. For the purposes of the agreement in question ?-A. Yes.
Q. In that capacity you were to receive all subsides which were to become pay-

able to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, both by the Local and Federal
Governments ?-A. Yes.

Q. And by that same deed these subsidies were transferred to you ?-A. Yes.
Q. You carried out the trust you undertook, to the best of your ability ?-A.

Yes.
Q. You paid the several sums to the parties mentioned as stipulated in the

agreement?-A. I paid the total amounts but it was a regulardrawing account; tho
sub-contractors drew as they went.

Q. And re-transferred what balance remained to the company ?-A. I think so.
Q. So nothing bas remained in your name ?-A. Not in my naine. Everything

was settled up.
Q. What date did you make the last transfer to the company ?
WITNEss.-To Mr. Smith ?
Mr. LANGELIER.-Yes, for the company ?
A. No, I do not remember any date. It was inmmediately after this arbitration.
Q. And the amount you transferred was $118,000 ?-A. I do not remember the

amount. I had only to do with the amount I received.

By Mr. Barwick (Counsel for the Hion. Theodore Robitaille)-

Q. Will yo send to the committee a statement showing the amount of subsidies
r-eceived, the amounts paid, and to whom ?-A. I have a statement here. (Docu-
ment produced.) The amount I received was three instalnents of $60,000 from the
Dominion Govornmeit, one of$40,000, one of $30,000, and $35,000 froin the Quebec
Government. The contractors were paid in the ordinary way as they drew ; and
there was a sum ot' $42,000 paid otherwise-$8,000 to Mi. Armstrong on September
30th. 1886; and in October, 1886, $8.000 to Mr. Noel ; on November 15th, $8,000 to
Mr. Noel, and December the 18th, $8,000 to Mr. Noel. I retained sufficient to pro-
tect the sub-contractors and myself all the way through.

Q. You have heard Mr. Taylor's evidence in regard to tie dealing with these
subsidies, in answer to me ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is what he bas said truc ?-A. I think so, per'fectly true.
Q. Now, another' thing, Mr. Burland. Have these subsidies, so far as you are

aware, been honestly handled, honestly dealt with by Senator Robitaille ?-A. I do
not think there was anything to use in any other way, so fai as i was concerned,
except the $42,000, and $8,000 of this went to Mr. Armstrong, and the rest for the
benefit of the contractors through the Quebec Bank.

Q. And no one has been paid except the men you have named ?-A. And the
sub-contractors. I was thinking I might have paid an account for Mr. Armstrong,
but I think not.

Q. Is there anything in the handling of these subsidies which would justify the
charge of the counsel for the Government of Quebec that there was embezzlement
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or misapplication of the funds by the old company ?-A. It was utterly impossible,
so far as my knowledge or handling of the money is concerned.

Q. And you are the man who ought to know ?-A. Yes; the money was in my
hands. I thought I was rich at one time, with so large an account in the bank.

Q. And you were the man who would know ?-A. If there had been any attempt
at boodling they would not come to me. Mr. Armstrong did several times urge me
to let him have money. He came to mne when I was in bed with a broken leg. He
wanted me to give him the $40,000 without the consent of the others, as he was very
much pressed. But I held on to the money, I wanted to protect myself and the
sub-contractors. He was very anxious to get money. W hat he wanted it for of
course I knew nothing about. He urged me very strongly, and if I had been weak-
minded I think he would have persuaded me to give him some of the money.

Q. He urged you to pay him the 840,000 ?-A. He wanted some of the money
that was in my hands, because he said ho had disputes with the other men. But I
would not deviate from my position, and would not give way, whether he wanted me
to or not. I kept the whole amoint, and had a big aecount in the bank during the
whole dispute.

By the Hon. 3fr. Power:
Q. Do you remember how much you paid over to Mr. Murray Smith at the close

of your trusteeship ?-A. I do not think 1 had any money in my possession at the
time. I think the moneys were paid out, and the contractors and myself used up
every cent, I am pretty sure. There was very little if any cash at all.

Q. Will you send a statement of the amount received and paid out, and the
names of persons to whom paid ?-A. There were only two persons to whoni money
vas paid: Messrs. Armstrong and Noël.

The Committee thon adjourned until Monday evening at 8 o'clock.
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TuE SENATE,
COMMITTEE ROOM, MONDAY, August 31st, 1891.

The Committee met at 8 p.m., Hon. IIr. VIDAL in the Chair.

GEORGE A. TAYLOR was re-called and examined by Mr. François Langelier
Counsel for the Quebec Government.

Q. You stated the other day that you were not quite sure whether you had been
sworn or net by Mr. J. C. Langelier when you took the affidavit which has been put
in ?-A. I am iot quite certain whether I kissed the Bible.

Q. Did you ever see this book ? (showing witness a book).-A. I do not know.
I am not sure, I have seen several that looked like that.

Q. Will you swear you never saw that in my brother's office ?-A. No.
Q. You will not swear that you were not sworn on that Bible ?-A. No.

did. Q. At all events what you signed contained the truth ?-A. Most assuredly it

Q. You stated that the affidavit or wvhatever it might be which you signed on
that occasion had been prepared by Mr. J. C. Langolier ?-A. Well, it was written
out by him, I may have given him some notes, it is as likely as not.

Q. Please look at this paper- (Exhibit 83). Did you make that out?-A. Yes.
Q. In whose handwriting is it ?-A. In mine.
Q. Written by you on that occasion ?-A. Yes, written by me when I was in

Quebec.
Q. I understand it was written as instructions to Mr. J. C. Langelier to prepare

the affidavit ?-A. Well, I gave no instructions.
Q. Why did you give him that statement ?-A. Simply to assist Mr. MacFarlane

in his case with the company.
Q. But for what iminediate purpose did you hand that paper to J. C. Langelier ?-

A. I wish to say I went to Quebec as a witness in MacFarlane's case, and this memo-
was given for 'that purpose as I could not remain.

Mr. LANGELIER-1 will read the document. It is as follows:-

[First 20 miles Baie des Chaleurs Railway, McDonald, O'Brien & Co., Contractors.]
Subsidiet transfeired to then or to their trustees by the Railway Company as secu-
rity. Dominion Government grant $300,000, payable in five instalments of $60,000
each, Quebec Government grant 10,000 acres of land per mile, one half payable in
cash, 70 cents an acre, $70,000; total, $370,000. Contractors to complete road-bed
and fencing, track and ballasting, including purchase of ties and rails, all at sehedule
rates. Moneys received by contractors on account of the work ;-tirst instaiment,
Dominion Government, $60,000; second instalnent, 860,000; third instalment,
$60,000; fourth instalment (in part), $40,000; Quebec subsidy, first ten miles,
835,000 ; Quebec subsidy, second ton miles (on account), $30.000. Out of the fifth
instalment, Dominion Government, $9,000, making a total of $294,000. Cash paid
over, to Armstrong and Robitaille on signing a contract $5,000; cash paid to Arm-
strong and Robitaille on transfer of subsidies, $5,000; cash paid to Armstrong out of
first Dominion instalment $8,000; cash paid to Quebec Bank, Dominion instalment
$8,000 ; cash paid to Quebec Bank, second Dominion instalment $8,000 ; cash paid
Quebec Bank, third Dominion instalment 88,000; total paid by contractors, $42,000.
Total amount estimated work done and first 20 miles $252,000. Amount of advance
by contractors out of subsidies, $42,000. Total received by contractors out of sub-
sidies $294,000, total subsidies, transferred $270,000. Balance of subsidies in cash
re-transferred to Company $76,000. Land subsidy, also re-transferred. Add amount
transferred to contractors $42,000. Total amount of excess of contractors' estimates
$118,000
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Q. It is upon this- paper which you handed to J. C. Langelier that he prepared
the affidavit?-A. Likely.

Q. And the figures in the affidavit are exactly these ?-A. They correspond.

By Mr. Barwick, (Counsel for Senator Robitaille)
Q. This document (exhibit 83) is in your handwriting ?-A. Yes.
Q. And on the third page shows $39,000 as the amount demanded by:the com-

pany to be re-transferred, that is the $40,000 which counsel for the Quebec Govern-
ment accuses Senator Robitaille of embezzling ?-A. That is the amount sir.

Q. And this statement is true ?--A. Yes.
Q. Any intention of founding a charge of embezzlement upon it ?-A. By no

means.
Q. You never thought it was going to be used for any such dishonest purpose ?

-A. I never thought it was going to be used for any such purpose. I may say that
Mr. MeFarlane went over what our contract had been and I got this statement up
in connection with Mr. McFarlane.

Q. In order to acquaint counsel with the facts ?-A. I could not say that.
Q. In order to acquaint, at ail events, whoever had charge of his case ?-A.

Well that is what I understood.
Q. You received the telegram you told us about from Senator Robitaille saying

that the $40,000 would be re-transferred at once ?-A. Yes.
Q. That telegram was received before the four members of your firm went to

Quebec?-A. I believe it was.
Q. That is you knew fron Robitaille that the money was going to be transferr-

ed ?-A. From that telegram.
Q. Then you went to Quebec ?-A. Yes we went down there.
Q. You were bound to have that $40,000 back ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you first meet Senator Robitaille when you went to Quebec ?-

A. In the St. Louis Hotel in the dining room, I think. It was at breakfast time,
just after we airived.

Q. Did the Senator come over and join you ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did he say?-A. He did not speak to me, he spoke to Mr. O'Brien.
Q. Can you give us the substance of the conversation. It was in regard to this

matter, and what was going to be done ?--A. We had a talk after breakfast. He
Was disposed to turn the money over to us.

Q. Just as soon as he could ?-A. Yes ; as soon as lie could.
Q. That is before he saw his solicitor ?-A. Well, it was just after caming out.
Q. -He told you he woull re-transferthe money ?-A. Yes; to Mr. Burland.
Q. Your contract on the first twenty miles was not for the whole work ?-A. No.
Q. And a large amount of work was remaining to be done when you got

through ?--A. We had the track laid and there was some ballasting to be done and
some rip-rapping, and there were some tresties torn down.

Q. There was an engine-house remaining to be built, and a turn-table to be
built ?-A. That was not a part of our contract.

Q. Did you contract to put up an engine-houso or a turn-table ?-A. No; that
had to be put up.

Q. Was there any water service, or any rolling stock, or any road diversion ?-
A. We built a road diversion, but there might have been more.

Q. What about the buildings ?-A. We put up no buildings.
Q. What about ballasting ?-A. We did no ballasting.
Q. Were any ties in ?-A. Oh, I could not say that.
Q. What about road crossings, had they been provided for ?-A. No.
Q. How many remained to be done-seven ?-A. All of that; we put in cattle

guards.
Q. But you did not build road crossings or farm crussings or fencing-what

about fencing ?--A. Fencing was built, but I understand it had to be rebuilt.
Q. To what extent-3,000 rods ?-A. I could not say.
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Q. Does 3,000 rods sound right ?-A. It sounds like a good deal. There was
ahout five miles of double fencing; I know it was defective.

Q. How much vas defective, several miles?-A. I understood it was defective.
Q. How about the bridge at Selars-was there any bridge there ?-A. No.
Q. How about the bridge at Rivière du Loup ?-A. I think there was no bridge

there.
Q. How about the bridge at Sowerby's, was that built ?-A. We had a contract

for that.
Q. ILow about rip-rapping-were there 16,000 feet to be done ?-A. Yes; more

than that.
Q. And rock excavation ?-A. Not unless they widened the cuts.
Q. Any earth excavation ?-A. Not unless the grade was raised.
Q. T am told there was about 43,700 yards of earth excavation to be done for

raising the grades ?-A. I could not say.
Q. Does it sound right ?--A. It is a large quantity ; these grades would have

to be raised a good deal to make that amount. I could not say exactly.
Q. Was the right of way paid for ?-A. I heard not.
Q. What about the engineering superintendence ?-A. We paid no engineer,

except our own.
Q. So theso items reprosent a large sum cf money ?-A. Yes, they do.
Q. Cati you give us an estimate of how many thousands ?-A. Oh, I would have

to make a calculation.
Q. But whatever it cost it had to be paid out of the 8 118,000 which counsel for

the Quebec (iovernment says Mr. Robitaille embezzled-is that so?-A. Well, I do
not know. It would be supposed to be paid out of that sum.

By the Hon. M3lr. Macdonald, (B.C.) :
Q. Where did you leave that account (Exhibit 83) when you made it out?-

A. I left it at Mr. J. C. Langelier's office.
Q. Who told you to make that out ?-A. Mr. Macfarlane requested mne to give

those figures, and I made it out.
Q. Not of your own motion. You were asked to make it out ?-A. Well, Mac-

farlane asked me in the first place.
Q. And in the second place ?-A. Woll in the second place Mr. J. C. Langelier.

By Mr. Langelier:

Q. Are you aware whether these works mentioned as undone, have been left
undone ? For instance, telegraph lines ?-A. No.

By the Hon. 3fr. Boulton;
Q. The were not part of your contract ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. Barwick.

Q. Some of them were you say?-A. Oh, soine of them were, but ve could not
finish them because we were obstricted.

' By the on. 3r. Power:
Q. How obstructed ?-A. By delay in the right of way and in the furnishing of

plans and deciding on structures.
Q. Who was to find the right of way for you ?-A. Mr. Armstrong, and furnish

the plans, and decide on all structures.
Q. Then you stopped work because ho did not carry out his part ?-A. Yes,

that is the reason why I wanted a settlement.
Q. Could you not give us an estimate of what remained to be done ?-A. Not

without calculating it.
By Mr. Langelier:

Q. Did you get back that $40,000 mentioned in that document?-A. Well, we
did not recoive any money at al]. Mr. Burland paid us on the estimates of the
engineer.
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Q. Did it come back to you in one shape or another, over and above the
8252,000 ?-A. We only got the $252,000.

Q. So you never got back that $40,000 ?-A. No, Mr. Burland received it.

By the ion. Mr. Miller :
Q. You got ail you were entitled to ?-A. Everything.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. When you got the $252,000 you had not a claim of a cent on that $40.,000 ?-
A. No, we ht.d no more claim.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. What time did you leave the work ?-A. In January, 1887.

HENRY MACFARLANE, of the City of Sherbiooke, in the Province of Quebec,
contractor, being duly sworn, testified as follows

By iIon. FRANÇoIS LANoELIER, Counsel foi the Government of the Provigcee of
Quebec.

Q. You have been the contractor for the tirst 60 miles of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway from Metapedia down to the River Cascapedia ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You took that contract from Mr. Armstrong, the first contractor, and also
from the Company themselves ?-A. How is that ?

Q. That is to say they became parties to the contract afteg it had been entered
into between you and Mr. Armstrong ?-A. Yes, they signed the contract.

Q. Did there remain a good deal of worl to be done on the first 20 miles of the
railway which had been partly built by Messrs. Macdonald, O'Brien & Co. ?-A. Yes,
there was a good deal to be done.

Q. Ilow many thousand dollars worth of work ?-A. I am not prepared to give
you that this evening, Sir, that is, not very correctly; because it would be almost
impossible for even the engineers to do that. I had to work not by contract but for a
percentage. If you will allow me to come forward to morrow if the Committee sits
again 1 could bring documents fr-om which I could give more particular.

MIt. LANGELIER-I suppoSe the COmmittee would have no objections tO allow-
ing the witness time to prepare a statement. (No objection was raised.)

Q. You entered into that contract, if I am not mistaken, in June, 1888 ?-A.
Yes; we signed the contract in June.

Q. And you went to work immediatly?-A. Yes.
Q. And carried on tho work with as rnuch activity as you could ?-A. We pre-

tended to, oi we intended to anyway.
Q. When did you cease to work on t hat contract,when did you stop work ?-A.

Do you mean finally ?
Q. Yes, the last wor-k you did, when was that ?-A. I should say it was some

time in December, 1889. I should think it was about that time; of course we did
not do very much work after August, but probably we were there till after January,
1890.

Q. When you stopped work in the fall of 1889 or the commencement of the
winter how much money was due to you by the Company ?-A. That I'could not tell
you without looking at my documents.

MR. LANGELIER-1 presume that it would be no difficulty in allowing the wit-
less time to prepare this statement also. I wish to call attention to a most impor-
tant point upon which there seems to be no evidence. The only ground upon which
the Ontario Bank could oppose the Bill is on the ground of their being a creditor,
but I do not find any proof of it or of Mr. MacFar-lane's claim. If my testimony is
to be taken I would say that I have no doubt of Mr. MacFarlane's claim. I have
.assumed that the Ontario Bank's was a good claim. As to Mr. McFarlane's claim I
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think i know as much as any man in the country can know. If my statement is to
be taken as evidence I am ready to give it, that claim is to the amount of $190,000.

Q. You could not tell without referring to your books or notes how much money
was (lue to you by the Company when you left the work ?-A. I could not do so
very well. Our books and everything was filed in court.

Q, At all events you took an action against the Company to get paynent of the
balance you claimed ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you have not been paid yet ?-A. I am sorry to say we have not.
Q. I understand you have been in financial difficulties ? You had to make an

assignment?-A. I did in the commencement of the winter of 1889.
Q. What was the cause of the troubles and difficulties ?-A. I had not money

enough to pay the bills.
Q. If you had been paid that claim of yours by the Company would you have

been in any financial di fticulty ?-A. No, sir, I do not think so.
Q. That was then the cause of your financial difficulties, that uipaid claim of

youris due by the Company ?-A. That is the way I looked at it.
Q. Will you be kind enough to look at your documents and put yourself in a

position to give an exact figure, as far as possible, of the amount of your claim ?-
A. I will get it ready for the Comrnittee as soon as I can. Our books are filed in
a court but I have certain documents by which I can corne pretty near the amount.

MR. LANGELIER-I presume the learned Counsel, who, as the representative of
Ontario Bank, has been insisting upon that claim, will not now deny it as the repre-
sentative of the old compauy.

Mr. BARwIc.-That is proved.
Mr. LANGELIER.-If SO I have nothing else to ask, except as to the amount of

work to be done. Mr. Barwick says it is proved and if he admits it as represnting
the old company the matter ends there.

Mr. BARWICK.-I could not admit that for the old company. Mr. Langelier
knowns that very well. I came here and proved that it was due, you will find the
evidence on page 84 of the printed evidence. In the negotiations the Cot mittee
will remember that Mr. John J. Macdonald says that Mkr. Riopel was ready to allow
Mr. McFarlane $75,000 for his claim.

Mr. LANGELIE.-There is not a bit of proof in that; a small commissioner's
court would not admit that as proof. But if the Committee is satistied that the proof
exists, I am satisfied personally that the claim is a legitimate claim to the extent
of over $190,000.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:

Q. Were you dealing with the old company or with Mr. Armstrong ?-A. With
both.

Q. You wvere a sub-contractor ?-A. I toolk the contract from Mr. Armstrong, it
was backed up by the company.

Q. So you had to deal with Mr. Armstrong and with Mr. Robitaille as Prebi-
dent?-A. I should not have taken it if Mr. Robitaille had not beein in the mill.

By Mr. Barwick;
Q. That is Senator Robitaille ?-A. Yes.
Q. Why?-A. Because there were people who doubted whether it would be

carried through and I was a stranger to all these parties, I did not know them.
Q. Why did you rely upon Senator Robitaille ?-A. On account of what [ had

heard.
Q. What do you mean by that ?-A. I mean I would not have taken it if he had

not been in it.
Q. Your claim is in litigation in Montreal?-A. It was in Quebec, but I believe

it is in Montreal.
Q. I mean the Province of Quebec. The amount of your claim will be settled

when the suit is determined ?-A. It will settle the amount. I (lo not know whether
I will ever get the money or not.
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Q. But the settlement of the suit will settle the amount?-A. I think so.
By the Hon. Mr. Macdonald (British Columbia) :

Q. Did you borrow money from the Bank ofOntario ?-A. I do not know whether
you call it bortowing. I had rnoney from them.

Q. Did you repay ail that; are you indebted to them ?-A. I never paid them
a cent; I transferred ail my government subsidies that were transferred to me; I
am n3t prepared to say how much the bank got back.

Q. Can you say whether they got it ail back?-A. Idon'tthinkthey did, accord-
ing to what we hear.

By the Hion. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Did you expend the advances on this road that you got from the Ontario

Bank on your contract ?-A. Certainly.
By Mr: Barwick :

Q. You got advances from the Eastern Townships Bank in the same way ?-A.
Yes, I got froin them after the Ontario Bank stopped advancing.

Q. You got it for the road ?-A. Certainly.
Q. The money of these banks went into the road ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. Was your contract for the whole 100 miles ?-A. For only 60.

By the lon. Mr. O'Donohoe :
Q. Did you give it any other security ?-A. I gave all the security I had; I

transferred everythiig to theni,
Q. Did you give any other security ?-A. That is all they had.
Q. You gave no real estate ?-A. No.
Q. No mortgage made ?-A. No; I transferred my contract to then with the

subsidies.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. You gave them everything you had ?-A. I gave them everything under my

Con tract.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé;

Q. Have you ever employed members of Parliament or members of the local
legistature at Quebec in connection with the settlement of your claimis?-A.
Mem bers.

Q. Yes ?-A. No I cannot say I have.
Q. What are the names of the parties you have employed ?-A. I never employed

any body. When I enterod this suit, I employed for my lawer Mr. Demarais fron
St. Hyacinthe.

Q. Was he not a member ?-A. le is now; I do not know but what he was
then.

Q. For what county ?-A. I cannot tell you; I know too but I cannot remember.
Q. St. Hyacinthe ?-A. Yes.
Q. How long did you employ him?-A. Well; as far as I am concerned ho is

employed yet by me. I never dismissed him and I don't think any body else did,;
but Mr. Langelier here carried the suit on.

Q. Are you able to tell how much you have paid to him ?-A. I paid when-he
Went over the line to look at it; I think I paid him about $100 that is about all; he
never made out his account to me. le has not been paid yet.

Q. When did he commence to be employed by you?-A. Sometime in 1889; I
think in August.

Q. When was Mr. Langelier employed by you? Not then?-A. Not at that
time.
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By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. So $100 is the sole amount you have paid to Mr. Demerais ?-A. I think $100.
Q. And ho is the only member of the Local Legislature to whom you have

given any money in any capacity?-A. I never gave them a dollar. That is why
they do not like me.

By Mr. Langelier:
Q. How much money did you give me for conducting your case for nearly six

months ?-A. I never gave you a dollar.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. Who paid him ?-A. I do not know.

By Mr. Langelier;
Q. I received $300 from the curator of the estate. -ow long did I wor-k at

that case for you ?-A. Some 13 months or more.
Q. Did I ever neglect your case becauso you could give me no money ?-A. I

do not think you did.

ANOUS MCINTYRE THOM, who being duly sworn, was examined by Mr. Langelier,
cou nsol for Quebec Government -

Q. You aie, I think, the secrotary or the secretary-treasurer of the re-organized
Baie oes Chalourb Railway Company ?-A. Yes.

Q. The negotiations for the assumption of' the enterpriso by the Montreal
syndicate who now compose the company were, I understand, mostly conducted by
you ?-A. Solely.

Q. Therefore, nothing in connection with these negotiations, has taken place
which you do not know ?-I do not think so.

Q. The negotiations of the new syndicate were with the Government of Quebec?
-A. Yes.

Q. You had negotiations with other parties also, with the old company-that is
to say, the company as originally composed ?-A. No, I had no negotiations with
them, beyond buying them out.

Q. Therefore, you conducted ail those negotiations with those composing the
company and with those to be recognized by the Government as offcring the neces-
sary guarantees of financial ability to complete the road-you conducted those negoti-
ations with the Government ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mention the names of the Ministers with whom you had those negotiations ?
-A. Well several times I met the whole Council in session.

Q. Was Mr. Mercier present ?-A. No.
Q. He was in Europe ?-A. He was somewhere-he was not there.
Q. Did ho leave before your negotiations commenced ?-A. I understand ho

lett previous to my negotiatiorns.
Q. How did these negotiations commence-did the initiative commence with

the Government or with your syndicate ?-A. Well, the initiative as far as we are
concerned, commenced with Armstrong.

Q. What did Armstrong do originally when he commenced ?-A. He gave me
a list of the subsidies and what ho thought a fair estimate of the debts-placed it
before me as a business transaction and I looked into it as such.

Q. Did he tell you how much you would have to pay to buy out the whole com-
pany ?-A. You mean for the stock-well, ho mentioned several amounts; and I after-
wards came to an amount mysely.

Q. What date was it when Armstrong first approached you ?-A. I think it
would be about the early part of March, probably betbween that and the middle of
March.
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Q. Did ho mention to you, that ho himself had a claim against the company ?-
A. Yes, he gave me to understand that he had a large claim.

Q. And did he leave you to understand that you would have to settle with him,
if you took the affair in hand ?-A. Certainly, that was the basis of our agreement.

Q. It was understood between you and Mr. Armstrong, that his claim would be
paid ?-A. Certainly.

Q. Did you come to an understanding as to the amount that was going to be
paid by your vompany ?-A. Not for a considerable lime afterwards.

Q. And the amount was not fixed at first ?-A. No.
Q. le simply told you how much was due and he pretended to make an esti-

mate ?-A. I cannot say that, he represented that there was about $200,000 or $225,-
000, necessary to secure his interest and that of the company.

Q. After you had been approached by Armstrong what did you do-with whom
did you negotiate ?-A. I immediately entered into negotiations with the Government.

Q. You wrote that letter which is in evidence and which is embodied in the
Order-in-Council?-A. Well, that was a considerable time after I first approached
the Government.

Q. That was simply the embodiement of what nogotiations have been going on
before ?-A. Yes.

Q. The embodiment of negotiations which had preceded this letter ?-A. Ygs.
Q. How long before this letter was written did you first approach the mombers

of the Government ?-A. I think the first interview was in New York. It was merely
a prelimtiary interview extending over two or three minutes.

Q. What took place ?-A. I was introduced by Mr. Armstrong and by the
Hon. Charles Langelier to the lion. Mr. Robidoux. I asked thein if they were pre-
pared to negotiate. They said they were, but that they could not entertain any pro-
position until they would return in about three weeks. They wore going on an
inspection of Lunatie Asylums, I think, and were not prepared to receive proposais
until their return.

Q. They did not invite proposals there and you made none?-A. Not at all.
Q. How long was it after that that you met them again ?-A. About the date of

that Jetter. I did not see any in the interim between that and my visit to Quebec.
Q. You had no other interviews ?-A. No.
Q. Whom did you see in Quebec ?-A. I first saw Messrs. Garneau and Ross.
Q. That was the Hon. D. A. Ross, who is President of the Executive Council?-

A. So I heard.
Q. You had conversations with these gentlemen, please state what took place

during those conveisations ?-A. I think it was more as to the value of the road.
Mr. Ross, I understood, had been in that country for a considerable time, and I
think the first interview was only as to the probable prospects of the road as a
epeculation. They gave me to understand that they would likely be in a position to
receive proposais and intimated that any proposai I would have to make would have
to be upon a basis of privileged claims.

Q. Did they say why they would have to be based upon privileged claims ?-
A. Becau-.e, I understood, that Governments generally stipulate that the labourers
will have to be paid before any other claims.

Q. Did not the law of the previous session make that obligatory ?-A. They
certainly drew my attention to that law.

Q. And they said it would be a condition of any arrangement that those debts
should be paid ?-A. That was the peremptory condition.

Q. Did you see any other Ministers on that occasion, but Messr. Ross and Gar-
nleau ?-A. 1 do not think I saw any Ministers except at Council.

Q. When was that-long after that interview you had with Messrs. Ross and
Garneau ?-A. It was probably a couple of days. I would not like to be positive.

Q. Mr. Garneau was then acting Premier of the Province ?-A. Yes.
Q. And also Minister of Public Works ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the railways are in bis branch ?-A. So I understand.
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Q. State what took place at that meeting of council which you attended ?-A. I
attended several meetings, and we had interviews as to the terms of the contract.
The Government wanted to impose conditions on me which I would no submit to in
this matter.

Q. There were informal meetings of the Executive Council, where you were
admitted to discuss with the Government your proposals and their counter-proposals?
-A. I do not know that you could call them informal; I wrote them several letters
before this, and these interviews were the result of them. They wanted to impose
conditions I would not agree to, and on the other hand I wanted to impose
conditions to which they would not agree.

Q. Well, will you please state whether these conditions that you would not
agree to had any connection with any money to be paid to Mr. Pacand or anybody
else ?-A. Oh, no, sir; neither Mr. Pacaud or anybody else. What we disagreed
upon was the time of starting. They wanted that I should start the road at once.
I was determined I would not start until the privileged claims were paid. Until
that was done I could not build the road. [ stipilated in my letter that I should
start work on the 10th of May, and as a counter proposition provided that the
prviledged claims were to be paid by that date. That was a sort of compromise.

Q. Was there a difficulty to be overcome in getting possession of the road ?-
A. Considerable.

Q. Was that question mentioned between you and the Government at some of
the interviews ?-A. Yes.

Q. By whom-by you or by them ?--A. About getting possession ?
Q. Yes.-A. I mentioned it.
Q. As one of the difficulties that would have to be overcome ?-A. Certainly.
Q. At these several interviews which you had with the Government, was Mr.

Pacaud's name or anybody else's name mentioned or hinted at by'any member of
the Government ?-A. I do not quite understand your question.

Q. Was any name mentioned as being the name of a party to whom you should
speak, or whom you should approach ?-A. Never.

Q. Your interviews, if I understand you rightly, wero simply business inter-
views, and solely with the Government, such as might take place betweeri business
men ?-A. Certainly.

Q. Business men who want to do an honest transaction ?-A. I think so.
Q. When you settled with Mr. Armstrong, did Mr. Pacaud see you about the

settlement ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Mr. Pacaud nover saw you; you were not asked by Mr. Pacaud to settle with

Mr. Armstrong ?-A. No; during all the negotiations I do not think I saw him more
than twice; once in New York and once in Quebec.

Q. Did he make any propositions as to his getting something ?-A. Not any.
Q. le never spoke to you of that ?-A. I spoke to Mr. Pacaud at various times

after the business was concluded with the Government. During the progress with
the negotiations I never had any interview with Mr. Pacaud.

Q. After the negotiations were completed, after you had completed your agree-
ment with the Government, you saw Mr. Pacaud in connection with some money to
be given to him, or that he lad received, or something of that kind ?-A. It was,
indirectly.

Q. What was it?-A. Previous to this closing of this contract Mr. Armstrong
came to me and asked me to accept an order in favour of some bank in Quebec, I
do not remember the name, for either fory-six or thirty-six hundred dollars. I
objected to, that for the reason that I had not decided to go into the contract. I
asked him what it was for, and he told me it was for a debt due to Mr. Pacaud and
this bank. He had negotiated a subsidy through Mr. Pacaud for forty-five or fifty-
four thousand dollars. I thought I had botter not accept it as a matter of business,
and refused to accept it. The day after the bank manager called upon me and asked
me to accept it.

Q. A bank in Quebec ?-A. Yes.
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A. What bank ?-I cannot say. I deelined to accept it. A few days after that
Mr. Pacaud came to me and asked me if I would not accept this from Mr. Arm-
stiong; that I was likely to go on with the contract, that the matter was closed, he
had heard, and I said I would not accept any order.

Q. So that before you entered into the contract you never spoke of any business
seriously with Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Never.

Q. And these were the only things you had to do with hin ?-A. As far as my
memory serves me.

Q. Did Mr. Garneau or Mr. Ross, or any other member of the Government
intimate to you or hint directly or indirectly that you should deal with Mr. Pacaud
or any one else ?-A. Never; his name was never mentioned.

Q. Did you know that anything had taken place between Mr. Pacaud and Mr.
Armstrong when you entered into the agreement with the Government ?-A. J had
my suspicions that something had taken place, but I know nothing of it. Mr.
Armstrong introduced me to Mr. Pacaud.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller :
Q. You siy you had your suspicions, what does that mean?-A. Something

must have taken place or Mr. Armstrong would not have introduced me. It was he
who introduced me.

Q. You had your suspicions, that something had been done ?-A. Not that a
payment of money had been made.

By -Mr. Barwick:
Q. When did you first learn of the payment of $100,000 to Mr. Pacaud ?-A.

In this room.
By Mr. Langelier:

Q. It has been stated by Mr. Macdonald, you were here at the time, --.I suppose
you remember the statement-that you had told him that all the money that had
been paid to Armstrong I think had gone in1 "boodle." Do you remember the state-
ment of Mr. Macdonald ?-A. I do not think I ever made such statement. I would
not like to say he states what is wrong, but I think he is mistaken.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum :
Q. You would not swear you did not ?--A. I have been joked so often about

this thing, that I would not like to swear as to what I had said.
Q. At the time yon had the interview with Mr. Macdonald had you any know-

ledge or suspicion about the 8100,000 ?-A. I had seen it in the papers by that time.
My interview with Mr. Macdonald was considerably after I had closed the negotia-
tion-the middle of May.

Q. You had no knowledge except from the paper ?-A. No.
Q. If ever you used that word to Mr. Macdonald-if he is not mistaken as to

the word-you had been speaking from newspaper report and not from not anything
You knew personally ?-A. Certainly, or the reports of some other person.

By Mfr. Barwick :
Q. The reports of some men ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Armstrong tell you the smallest amount he would take for the

claim?-A. I forced that settlement on Mr. Armstrong.
Q. You forced the settlement of $175,000 of which 8100,000 went to him and

$75,000 you paid out?-A. Tho 875,000 I paid out in different amounts ; to the old
Shareholders, $60,000; and $14,000 the balance of obligation of the Company and
Mr. Armstrong jointly.

Q. That is $60,000 to the old shareholders, and the balance of the proceeds of
the letter of credit of $75,000 went in payment of debts for which Mr. Armstrong
and the Company were jointly liable ?-A. I would not say that exactly but debts of
the Company and of Mr. Armstrong for which in some cases they were jointly liable.
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By Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. The object of paying the old shareholders was to get control of the road ?-Yes.
By Bon. Mr. Miller :

Q. If you got the contract you were to get any portion of the $280,000 remain-
ing after the privileged claims?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you know that $100,000 of that sunit was to go to Mr. Pacaud ?-A.
Certainly not; I had no notion of it.

Q. Did you know that Mr. Armstrong was to get $175,000 ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Iad you any idea of how that sum of $100,000 was to be appropriated-

vhat was to become of it?-A. Certainly; I had an understanding.
Q. What was it?-A. I spoke to him several times. This is a private matter

and I would rather not speak of it, but if the Committee insist upon it I shall speak.
Mr. Armstong, I may explain, as those who know him well will agree, is genorally
in the state of being hard up-a chronic state of hard up. On going into the oper-
ation I stipulated that he should hand us the road fiee from debt, except what claims
might be due for wages by the estate of McFarlane. When Mr. Armstrong first
spoke to me, he left me under the impression that his portion of the liability was
about $15,000. When I got to Quebec, lookingover the matter with Mr. Riopel and
Mr. Robitaille, I was presented with a list showing obligations of $8,884 I think it
was, which they gave nuw as the whole liabilities of the Company, apart from what
I have mentioned. Subsequently I ealled on these gentlemen and was presented
with a list of $19,000, and on the 20th of April Mr. Armstrong handed me an order
in favour of the Bank of Mon treal for $ 13,000. Then the Quebec Government put in
a bill for taxes of $6,900, and another firm in Montreal handed in a bill of 66,900.

By Mr. Barwick:
'Q. What was the name of the firm?-A. I would rather not give the name of

the firm; it would do the Committee no good and might do me harmi, but I can show
the account te any gentleman who wants to see it. It is one we may have to pay
and there may be a law suit over it. It would have ben injudicious for me to go
upon the assumption of Mr. Armstrong paying the debts. I stipulated that I hould
have that $75,000 and pay the money myself.

By the lon. Mr. Miller:

Q. You do not understand me; I wanted to know if you knew what was to
become of the $100,000 ?-A. I said to him: Now, Armstrong, this $75,000 I am
to pay out for you, ought to put you in a pretty good position ; what are you
going to do? Well, he said, I have several debts to pay, and in speaking of the
balance he used the word " pot." He intended to say that ho was going to settle it
on his wife. I inferred that he had to pay the $45,000 or 54,000 dollars for which
he and Mr. Pacaud had asked me to accept an order for interest on.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. You said forty-five hundred dollars ?-A. The amount was fifty-four or forty-

five thousand. The order was for the interest, i took it for granted that Mr. Pacaud
was responsible for the loan or the negotiation of the Government subsidy, until I
asked Mr. Armstrong, in the street the other day, when he told me Mr. Pacaud was
i.esponsible for the interest only and not for the principal. That seemed to me not
reasonable. But that misled me at the time. I understood he had this amount to
pay, and that he was going to give the balance to his wife and family, and I found
ont that was not right, and I accused him of deceiving me. I accused him of dividing
the money with Mr. Robitaille and Mr. Riopel, a statement for which I must, apolo-
gise now. ie assured me that he was not doing so and that was his explanation.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. He did not tell you it went in boodle ?-A. No.
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By Mr. Barwick:

Q. He asked you to advance about forty-five hundred dollars the interest on this
sum of forty-five or fifty-four thousand ?-A. He asked me to accept an order; I
could not swear to the amount of it in favour of a bank.

Q. Which you understood was the interest on a larger loan ?-A. Yes.
Q. About forty-five thousand dollars ?-A. Yes.
Q. You agreed that you would pay certain debts for which lie was liable and

jointly liable with the Company ?-A. I agreed to pay them out of his $75,000.
Q. And you paid all you agreed to pay out of that ?-A. I might say that there

are certain amounts due yet to Mr. Armstrong.
Q. Have not you disposed of the whole $75,000 ?-A. I have to account for it.
Q. You have disposed of the whole $75,000 ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Now, Mr. Thom, I do not want to inquire into your private business, but

you paid more to Armstrong than $75,000 ?-A. I did not pay that to him.
Q. You have advanced other moneys to pay Armstrong's debts over and above

the $75,000 ?-A. I do not catch what you are driving at.
Q. Did you not advance other money for Armstrong's debts besides the $75,000.

You p aid some of Armstrong's debts ?-A. We have paid them with this money.
Q. How did you come to pay debts for him over and above the $75,000, when

he had $100,000-did that not strike you as peculiar ?-A. No.
Q. Why did you not tell him to pay his own debts instead of calling on you ?-

A. This money was givei for the purpose of paying these debts.
Q. You have paid debts in excess of the $75,000 ?-A. No. We have paid

$75,000 and more, but we will stop when we reach $75,000.
Q. How much did you pay the old company ?-A. $60,000.
Q. Then the difference between 860,000 and $74,000 is the amount of the

payment of the company's debts ?-A. Yes, that is all the money I got.
Q. And you paid some of Armstrong's debts outside of that ?-A. No, because

I have all this money of his to pay.
Q. You are going on paying Armstrong's debts up to $74,000 ?-A. Certainly,

that money I insisted on making Armstrong give to secure me in my position.
Q. Then you have not spent the whole $74,000 yet ?-A. No.
Q. And you are going on until you have expended $74,000, and then you will

stop ?-A. Yes.
Q. The whole $60,000 is gone to the old company ?-A. Yes.
Q. And $14,000 besides ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then you are going on paying debts of Armstrong until you reach $74,000 ?

-A. Yes.

lBy the Hon. Mr. Boulton:

Q. Then you propose to replace $60,000 taken out of the (overnment subsidy
in order to buy out the shareholders of the old company, with your own money ?-
A. Yes.

Q. Your money is going to pay the old company ?-A. Yes.
Q. Not the subsidies money ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McMillan :
Q. What day did you meet these gentlemen in New York ?-A. I am not sure.

Whatever date Mr. Mercier sailed it was a day or two after.
Q. When you met these gentlemen in New York, Mr. Mercier was there ?-A.

Q. It was after he sailed ?-A. A day or two after, I am not sure.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. What members of the Government were there ?-A. Messrs. Robidoux and

Charles Langelier, that was all.
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Q. Did they telegraph for you ?-A. No; I came up at the request of Arnstrong.
Q. Was Armstrong there ahead of you ?-A. No, we went together.
Q. To interview the Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud tell you that Armstrong telographed to go down ?.-A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Pacaud was there?-A. Yes. It was the first time in my life that

I met him. I was introduced to him at the Brunswick hotel.
Q. Did you meet the members of the Goveinment in a room ?-A. No; i met

them in the vestibule.
Q. Who introduced you ?-A. Mr. Pacaud or Mr. Armstrong, I could not say

which.
Q. You left Mir Pacaud there with the members of the Government ?-A. Yes;

my interview only lasted a few minutes in the vestibule.
Q. Was the arrangement with Mr. J. J. McDonald ever broken off ?-A. I under-

stood it was broken off long before. I understood that from Mr. J. J. McDonald
himseif or I would not have entered into it.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. With respect to that $175,000, paid to get the right of the old company, do

you think that was a business like, roasonable settlement ?-A. Well, it was a simple
matter of business. I was there to make the best bargain I could foir myself.

Q. The balance after this was paid, was to go to your company ?-A. The balance,
after the payment of the privileged claims if any, by the Order in Council, came
to us.

Q. Thon it was in your interest to get the claim of the old corporators as low
as possibie ?-A. Certainly.

Q. You spoke about your being asked to accept an order in Mr. Armstrong's
favor as to a sum with which Mr. Pacaud was in some way connected. What was the
impression left on your mind by all that took place there. and explain the financial
relations between Pacaud and Ar-mstrong?-A. I was under the impression that
Armstrong had negotiated alone, through Mr. Pacaud's intercession, against some
subsidy. I naturally concluded the interest was on that subsidy and that Armstrong
would have had to pay Pacaud that interest. I understood also that the principal
had to be accounted for to Pacaud, but Mr. Armstrong tells me now that Mr. Pacaud
was only responsible for the interest.

Q. Is your impression still the same ?-A. I was connected with hundieds of
transactions like that, and I never knew of a case where the party negotiatiig was
not responsible foir the principal.

Q. Then you thought at the time that Armstrong was indebted to Pacaud for
$45,000 or $54,000 ?-A. That is the impression left on my mind.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:

Q. Iow could you arrive at impressions ?-A. He came and told me.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. Who toldyou?-A. He did not tell me that Pacaud was responsible for the
money, but when he asked for the accommodation I certainly supposed Pacaud was
responsible.

By the Hon. Mr. McMillan;
Q. You knew that Armstrong was negotiating for the Government?-A. Not

until he came to me. I had no knowledge of any transaction until Armstrong came
to me sometime in March, previous to that New York meeting.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :
Q. Was there any other negotiation, as far as you know, with the Quebec Gov-

ernment about this matter, excopt youir own ?-A. Not to my knowledge. I have
heard of MeDonald's negotiations, but not to my knowledge.
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By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Did you not know that Armstrong was negotiating with the Government

until ho came to you?-A. I had no previous knowledge; that was before the New
York meeting.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. Did your president have anything to do with the Quebec Grovernment ?-

A. No.
Q. What are the politics of your Board ?-A. Well, I guess they are mixed.

By the Ron. Mr. MacInnes (Burlington) :
Q. You had nothing to do with the matter until the syndicate was formed, or

had you anything to do with it until then ?-A. No; these are the only treaties
I had.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. Have you been down to the road since negotiations were closed or before ?-

A. I have been down twice since.
Q. Have yon ascertained how much remained to be done on that 60 miles before

it would be completed?-A. Not positively; that is one of the things I had to bolt.
Q. Can you give a general idea ?-A. I estimate that it will cost say $60,000 to

complete the first 60 miles.
By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Did you know that Pacaud was negotiating between Armstrong and the
Quebec Government ?-A. Armstrong told me Pacaud was negotiating between him
and the Government.

By the Hon. M1r. Boulton:
Q. You took it for granted that Pacaud had made arrangements with the Gov-

ernment before you began negotiations ?-A. He came to me and represented that
there was so much subsidy due and represented that it would be a good business
speculation; that the subsidies were voted long prior to that and that no change had
been proposed.

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. Your firm was entitled to the whole of the balance of $280,000 after paying

the privileged claims?-A. Yes ; our company.
Q. As the result of that arrangement with Armstrong, it was perfectly imma-

torial to you whether his claim was a privileged one or not ?-A. ] did not care
whethier it was privileged or not.

Q. Whether privileged or not, you had to give him $175,000 ?-A. Yes that was
the agreement.

Q. Whether his caim was privileged o: not?-A. I never went into it on that
basis; I went into it on the basis that it was a privileged claim.

Q. What inquiries did you make?-A. I found out there were some debts, and
that Armstrong was really the owner of sixty miles of that road.

Q. HIow?-A. Under contract with the company.
Q. And you examined that contract?-A. Not very carefully.
Q. At any rate, whother his claim was privileged or not, you had to pay him

8175,000 ?-A. I would not have gone into it at all unless I could make some
arrangement with Armstrong's claim.

Q. You had to pay him 8175,000 to get in, whether ho was a privileged creditor
or not ?-A. 1 do not say that, because it was represented to me that it was one of
the privileged claims.

Q. You had te pay him, whether or not, $175,000 ?-A. I would not have gone
into it at al]. I wanted to get Armstrong's title, and the only way I got into it was
to pay him and get the stock.
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Q. Well, did you examine all the vouchers and engineers' estimates making up
Mr. Armstrong's. claim ?-A. I did not think it was necessary. I saw attached the
signatures of men in whom I had the utmost confidence.

Q. But you never thought of verifying them ?-A. No.
Q. You never verified that statement hefore you certified to Mr. Langelier by

this document that $175,000 ought to be paid to Mr. Armstrong?-A. Not further
than looking over it.

Q. You simply looked over the clains submitted ?-A. I saw Mr. Light's esti-
mates and the figures there.

Q. Where did you see Mr. Light's estimates ?-A. I think it was in Mr. Riopel's
house.

Q. Do you remember the date?-A. [ do not remember.
Q. Do you remember about the date ?-A. The negotiations were between the

15th and the 23rd of April.
Q. You had not very much time between the 15th and the 23rd to go through

and check that claim in Exhibit 5 ?-A. Not the details of it.
Q. You did not check any details?-A. It was impossible for me to do so; it is

an engineer's business.

By the .Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Did the Government let you understand that $175,000 had to be paid ?-A.
No, sir.

By the Hon. Mr. Perley:

Q. That was a matter between Mr. Armstrong and you ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach :

Q. And Pacaud ?-A. I had no conversation with Mr. Pacaud.

By 1fr. Barwick:

Q. This is the document (document produced) shewing $294,000 (lue and this
was aceepted by you as correct ?-A. After it had beon vouched for by the other
people,-by Mr. Riopel and Mr. L. A. Robitaille and Mr. Light.

Q. But Mr. Light only certified that these were estimates of work done. That
is the account, do you understand, that is the total amount due to Mr. Armstrong
-the total amount of the estimate ; you know that now ?-A. Yes.

Q. The figures below-the dotails of Mr. Light's certificates you do not know
anything about?-A. I looked over then, probably I could explain them if you
would allow me to look at them. I verified them as far as I could.

Q. How many hours did it take you to verifr that document ?-A. I looked
over these statements here.

Q. That is the summation of Mr. Light's certificate ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You did nct look at anything below that ?-A. Let me look at it.
Q. Here is the total, $1,235,297. Did you check these figures ?-A. I believe I

must have, but I have no recollection of it. I would not g.1o into it without satisfy-
ing myself at the time.

Q. The only other question is whether any vouchers were produced to you ?-
A. The only vouchers were Mr. Light's certificates. I might exiplain that when the
statement was presented it was certified by Mr. Riopel, Mr. Robitaille, and my
present engineer Mr. Leduc, in whom I have every confidence. He was in Quebec
at the time, and weit into the matter.

By the Chairman :

Q. Was it pos4ble for Chrysostome Langelier to pay any of these claims with-
out your signature approving them or without your approval ?-A. That is provid-
ed for by Order in Council.
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Q. That is not an answer to my question. Could he have paid any claim with-
out your approval or without your certifying that it was correct ?-A. Not without
taking the alternative.

Q. What was that ?-A. Arbitration.
Q. Then, as a matter of fact, you gave Chrysostome Langelier the certificate of

the accuracy of that large account ?-A. Yes, sir, I agreed to that payment.
Q. Without any investigation ?-A. No. Not without investigation. I had the

certificate of the Company, the secretary of the company, the general manager, Mr.
Light, and our own engineer I do not think I could have had better proof than
these gentlemen's statements.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. There has been something said about your negotiations with the Quebec
Government. Tell me if I am mistaken. As I understand it the Quebec statute
and order in council set out the conditions upon which any company might get the
contract for completing this road ?-A. I believe so.

Q. Once you had made arrangements with Mr. Armstrong to take over the
interest of the old corporators of the road. had you any one to negotiate with the
Quebec Government, or were not you able to do it yourself?-A. I did it myself.

Q. You did not need any intermediary ?-A. No; in fact there was none.
Q. Did Mr. Armstrong, once you and he agreed upon terms, act after that as

intermediary between you and the Quebec Government ?-A. Who? Mr. Armstrong ?
Q. Yes.-A. No; he never did.

By Mr. Langelier :
Q. If I am not mistaken, Mr. Thom, these transactions were not the first

business relations you had iad with Mr. Armstronig-A. No; not at all.
Q. You had known him for some tine ?-A. Yes; for a number ofyears.
Q. And ho had dealt with the firm of Cooper, Fairman & Company, with which

you are connected ?-A. In whose business I have an interest-yes.
Q. It was not a surprise to you then when he came to you to propose a business

transaction ?-A. Not at ail, sir.
Q. After you had given your consent to Mr. Armstrong's claim being paid to

the amount of $ 175,000, could Mr. Chrysostome Langelier decently oppose the pay-
ment of the claim ?-A. I do not think so, sir.

The Hon. Mr. T Asst.-Before we adjourn, I should like to ask Mr. Langelier if
he has any other witnes1ses?

Mr. LANGELIER.-Not to-night.
The Hon. Mr. TAsst.-Have you any other charges to make in reference to this

matter ?
Mr. LANGELIER.-I shall have a statement to put before the Committee, deuling

with the facts that have been brought forward.
The Hon. Mr. TAsst.-Mr. Chairman, I desire to cail your attention to some

facts. On the 10th of August, you received the following telegram from Mr.
Garneau :-

" Telegram transmitted from Quebec inforns me summons sent requesting me to
appear before Committee, Wednesday morning. Summons not received here. How-
ever, mv state of health does not allow me to go to Ottawa at present. Will send
doctor's certificate if required."

On the 13th of August you received the following telegram from Mr. Garneau:-
" Since sending my first telegram, I am informed, my colleagues are of opinion

we are responsible to the Legislature only. Therefore I respectfully decline to
appear."

On the 14th August, you received the following letter from Mr. Langelier
"DEAR SIR,-I enclose a telegram I have just (2.15 P.M.) received from the

"Honourable P. Garneau. As you may see, he is too unwell to come up. My
telegram to which he replies was to this effect: Unless you are unable to do so

187

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

through illness I believe you should come. When here, if any question is put to
"you to elicit information in your official capacity, you may then objeet and decline

to answer."
I would like to know, Mr. Chairman, if further information has reached yon since.
Can Mr. Langelier tell you what position he intends to take? Because these teiegrams
are conflicting. Mr. Garneau's last telegram says Mr. Garneau will not come because
he does not recognize the authority of the Committee, while the other says it is on
account of his health. I would like to know the position of Mr. Langelier's client?

Mr. LANaErIER.-I have had no communication with Mr. Garneau since the
last telegram, whieh I handod over to the Chairman of the Committee. If the hon.
gentleman looks attentively at the telegrams ho will see there is no contradiction.
M. Garneau says at first that he is not well enough to come to OLtawa; not neces-
sarily that he is sick in bed, but that he is not weil enough to come. He bas sent a
Doctor's certificate to that effect. After he had sent that excuse for not attending,
he learned that his colleagues had deternined to question tho jurisdiction of the
Senate in this matter, and then he mentioned that as another reason for not attending.
I do not see that there is any contradiction in the two positions he has taken. He
still persists that he is toounwell to attend, but even if he was well enough he might
perhaps persist in not attending, because his colleagues believe that he should not
attend.

Hon. Mr. TAssÉ.-Mr. Chairman at the last meeting I requested you to issue a
summons for the appearance of Mr. Lesage, Deputy Minister of Public Works for
the Province of Quebec. I would like to know if that summons was issued and any
answer received.

The Hon. CHAIRMAN.-I received a telegram this afternoon, which reads as
follows:-" I received instructions from mrnem bers of the Quebec Cabinet not to appear
before the Senate Committee.

(Sgd.) LESAGE,
Deputy Commissioner of Public Works.

This is addressed to me as Chairman of the Committee.

Hon. Mr. TAsst -Then I would like the Hon. Mr. Langelier to explain this fact
and how it is that Mr. J. C. Langelier appeared beforo us. Had he leave of absence
to appear before us or not. Mr. Lesage in his answer states that lie will not appear
because members of the Government will not permit him to appear before us. But
in the other case Mr. J. C. Langelier, who appears as Deputy Provincial Registrar,
has appeared bore for some days. How can you explain ail these things.

Mr. FRANÇoIs LANGELIER, Counsel for the Quebec Government.-The explanation
is an easy one. If Mr. J. C. Langelier had consulted the Government, I think ho
would not have come. I am quite sure from information before the Committee that
the Government would have given him the saine instructions, but he did not consult
the Government. He came right through from Baie des Chaleurs and did not see
the members of the Government, but he was so anxious to appoar before the Committee
seeing in the newspapers some aspersions on his character.

lon. Mr. KAULBAc.-Have you not instructed them, as thoir attorney, to
como here ?

Mr. F. LANGELIER.-YeS, I said before, what I can only repeat, that I advised
them as to the position they should take, but I never advised them not to appear;
because there might be sone questions put to them in their private capacity which
they might be at liberty to answer.

The Committee adjourned until 10.30 to-morrow morning.

188

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

THE SENATE, COMMITTEE RooM No. 8,
TuEsDAY, 1st September, 1891.

HENRY NI AcFARLANE re-called and fuither examined.

By the Hon. François Langelier (Counsel for the Government of the Province
of Quebec) :

Q. Have you looked for the information I asked for from you last night about
the amount of work which remained to be done on the first twenty miles when you
took the work ?-A. I cannot give it at ail, Mr. Langelier, because that work was
never measured. That work was carried on by the day, you might say, for a
percentage.

Q. Then you could not give approximately the amount of the work ?-A. I think
it cost us somewhere in the neigh bourhood of 670,000.

Q. Then as to the other question I put to you yesterday evening, will you please
state the amount of balance remaining due to you for the work you executed upon
the sixty miles, and for which you have taken proceedings in court ?-A. In the
neighbourhood of $200,000; perhaps a little more, it may be a little less. •

Q. That is what you consider is honestly due to you by the company?-A. I
consider so, or I would not have put in the claim.

Q. You made a statement yesterday, jokingly I think, but I want to know
wvhether it is serious at all, that you gave nothing to any political man in Quebec,
and that was the reason you had not got paid. Will you please explain that ? Do
you pretend to say that you were approched, or that it was hinted to you that if you
paid anything to any political man in Quebec you would get your claim settled ?-
A. No; I did not say that at ail. I said that was why they did not like me. But
I will take that back.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. How do you know they do not like you ?-A. I said that in a joke. As a

matter of fact. I think they do.

By Mr. Langelier:
Q. Have you any ground for stating that if you had given money, y:ou would now

be bettier off?-A. No reason whatever.
Q. Have you any reason to complain of the friends of the Government of

Quebec in the treaiment of your case ?-A. I have not, sir.
Q. You say you gave them no money and promised theni none ?-A. So far as

I know, my case was conducted satisfactorily. It did not go very far.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. Had you any transactions with the Ontario Bank before this Baie des
Chaleurs business ?-A. I had, sir, for several years.

Q. And how was the balance at the time this business began-was there a
balance?

Mr. BARWICK.-IS it right to enquire into these other transactions.
The Hon. Mr. PowER-It bears directly upon your claim.
Mr. BARwICK-If it does I have not the slightest objection. The only thing I

desire is to ask that other transactions should not be inquired into unless it affects
this.

The Hon. Mr. PowER-I simply asked that one question, whether at the time
this began you owed the bank or not ?--A. I secured them for ail I had from them,
and more than ail I had.
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Q. Do you know how much had been donc, or had you any means of knowing
what had been done on the tirst twenty miles from the time McDoiald, O'Brien &
Co. stopped work until you began ?-A. I could sec the work ; that is all I know.
I did not know the quantities. I had no way of knowing that.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. You have a lien upon the rcad, have you not?-A. I did have; 1 suppose I

have it yet.
Q. You are supposed to have it yet?-A. I expect so.
Q. The object of this Committee is to ascertain what has becoine of certain

funds, because the Ontario Bank have asked protection by the insertion of an
amendment in the Bill before the Railway Committee. Would your security bc
strengthened by the insertion of that amendment?-A. My impression was that
that security could not be taken away until I was settled with.

Q. It was the old conpany that owed yor the money?-A. Yes.
Q. The new company has taken its place?-A. The new conpany I have

nothing to do with.
Q. You have no claim against them ?-A. No.
Q. You have a claim against the road itselt?-A. The part I built.
Q. lias that lien been injured by any action since ?-A. I do not know. Of

course, the possession ofthe road has been given over to the new company. I cannot
say whether the lien was injured or not. It might be.

Q. You would desire some protection for it under the new Bill ?-A. I certainly
do if I can get any.

By the Hon. Mr. Power:
Q. Did you ever get any statement of your account from the Ontario Bank ?-

A. I did. Do you mean the winding up?
Q. Yes.-A. Just at the time, October, 1889, or November, we did get a state-

ment when we were making up our accounts to see how we stood, in order to find
where the balance of the money was coming from to pay the accounts. I think
thai at that date we owed them in the neighbourhood of $100,000.

Q. Why were you not able to pay them ?-A. Didn't have the cash.
Q. Why ?-A. Because we could not get it.
Q. Why could you not get it? What hindered you? Was there not enough subsidy

to pay you ?-A. I think so. We did not get it because it was paid over to the party
I was doing work for.

Q. Who was that ?-A. Mr. Armstrong and the company.
Q. Then you would have been able to pay the Ontario Bank if Mr. Armstrong

and the company had paid you ?-A. If they had paid what I claimed was due I
could have paid everybody.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. Did they get the money?-A. I expect they did, but I do not know. I had

no way of knowing. All the money that was coming to me had been transferred to
the Ontario Bank, and I knew nothing about it until they reported to me. It was
not necessary; they were running that part of it.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (British Columbia):
Q. Has he given you any reason why he did not pay you?-A. Uniess he says

he has paid all he owed me.
By the Hon. Mr. O'Donohoe:

Q. How was possession of the road taken from you ?-A. I cannot say it was
taken from me.

Q. It has been handed over ?-A. This new company has got leave to go on and
finish the road, I believe, and repair it, and run their material for the next forty
miles over it.
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Q. By an order ?-A. By an order in court, I believe.
Q. Do you know if the order in court was for taking over such things as were

necessary for the progress of the work, or giving up the corpus of the road ?-A. I
think they were to have the use of the rolling stock, and all that. In fact, I think
in their transaction with Mr. Armstrong and the company they have bought every-
thing.

Q. But the order of court that you speak of-was that only to give them
materials-the rolling stock, and such things as were necessary for the progress of
the work ?-A. I cannot say that; I never had any report fron the court.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. I an going to trouble the Committee with a question about the Ontario Bank,

because these answers are often misrepresented. In your dealings with the Ontario
Bank how weie you treated ?-A. First rate; got all the money I wanted.

Q. AIl the statements you wanted ?-A. Certainly.
Q. So there is no- ?-A. No reason whatever. I did not require the state-

ment. I was workiig night and day, and the bank was furnishing the moiey up to
a certain time.

Q. There were no difficulties between you and the bank?-A. No; up to that
day, when the difficulties occurred in regard to the bridge work, the change which
kept nie back five months. I believe the thing looked blue to the Ontario Bank,
and they shut down.

Q. But you believe they have treated you fairly enough ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was the old debt secured by the Baie des Chaleurs subsidies ?-A. Not at all.

The bank had a right to do with the subsidies what they liked. They could take it
all up into Ontario if they liked.

Q. They applied it on the debt in Motitreal?-A. Yes.
Q. You had your advances from the Montreal and Toronto branches. They were

kept entirely separate, and the Montreai branch advances covered the Baie dee Cha-
leurs Railway ?-A. Certainly.

Q. And the subsidies were kept there and applied on that alone ?-A. That is
the way the business was carried on.

Q. You have some statement that Mr. Langelier asked you to prepare ?-A. It
is very simple.

Q. 1 intend to put them in.-A. I have not shown them to Mr. Langelier yet.
(Document filed as Exhibit 85).

Mr. BARwIcK-This is a statement abstracting Mr. MacFarlane's position
shortly. Mr. MacFarlane had assigned to him to secure his contract on the first 40
miles a Dominion subsidy of $62,000, and he had a Dominion subsidy assigned to him
to secure his work on the next 20 miles of $128,000. He had a Quebec subsidy
assigned to him to secure his work on the third 20 miles of $70,000, total, $260,000.
What Mr. MacFarlane claims is, that instead of having $70,000 assigned to him for
the third 20 miles ho should have had $140,000, because the work cost double what
it was represented it would.

Q. Is this right ? You had $70,000 assigned to you for the last 20 miles of the
work ?-A. Yes.

Q. Quebec subsidy ?-A. Yes.
Q. You think you ought to have had $140,000 ?-A. Yes; that is'what was pro-

mised me.
Q. You were promised sufficient subsidies to pay the work ?-A. I had promise

of $330,000; instead of that I got 8260,000.
Q. Did you ever get any money in payment of your work except out of the subsi-

dies ?-A. That is all.
Q. And the Quebec Government retained $28,000 of subsidy which was due to

you, did they not ?-A. I think it was about that. I could not say positively. That
is a matter lor the Ontario Bank to deal with, but I think that was about it.
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By the lion. Mr. Boulton :
Q. Your contract for the first 60 miles included the first 20 miles for which

McDonald, O'Brien & Co. had done the bulk of the work ?-A. Yes.
Q. And on the second twenty Armstrong himself had done a certain amount of

the work-about how much? Was the track laid ?-A. I think it was, except about
five mil( s.

Q. That was done by Armstrong himself ?-A. I do not know that he did the
tracklaying; there was a party there who had the contract for masonry and grading.

Q. Was your contract to finish up on the first 20 miles, and finish úp on the
second 20 miles, and do 20 miles of new work ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. fr. Power:

Q. Did you get any subsidies on the first 20 miles ?-A. There were $62,000
transterred to me for the first 40 miles.

Q. But for the first 20 ?-A. I cannot tell you. It might have been on the
second '0 miles.

Q. As far as you know, there was nothing on the first 20 ?-A. I cannot tell.
Q. You got only $62,000 on the first 40 miles ?-A. That is what was transfbrred

to me.

By Mr. Armstrong, representing the lHon. Mr. Robitaille:

Q. Did you pay the Ontario Bank on account of your Toronto debt aiy portion
of money on account of advances made to you in regard to the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway ?-A. I did not pay the Ontario Bank a dollar.

Q. If they took any noney paid by the Government, was that right to take any
of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway money to pay any other debts ot yours ?-A. If
they advanced me $300,000 they had a right to take a part of it back.

Q. Had they the right to take any of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway money
away from the trustees. between you and me ?-A. I do not think they had, and I
do not think they did.

Q. You are not positive ?-A. No ; but they advanced me $300,000, and I put it
on the road and only drew a little over $200,000 from your subsidies.

Q. Are you not aware that the transfer of these subsidies to the Ontario Bank
were simply that they should be paid out as the work progressed ?-A. Exactly.

Q. Did you give them a statement of work done as it progressed ?-A. No ; Ido
not think I did. Any tatement ought to have come from the engineer.

Q. You should have got it from the engineer ?-A. What engineer ?
Q. The engineer who was giving thé estimate for the work-Mr. Leduc or Mr.

Light ?-A. Mr. Leduc in my contract was my engineer.
Q. For the purposes of your contract you were to have the control of Mr. Leduc.

Did you ever get an estimate of the work from Mr. Leduc to give the Ontario
Bank, so that they could judge how much money to advance ?-A. I think all they
got was a statement of my own work.

Q. As a matter of fact, did they not advance money to you without any state-
ment at all, taking your word as to what work was done ?-A. Certainly, that was
my contract with them.

Q. Did tlfey not advance you more than the total subsidies ?-A. Yes; in the
neighbourhood of $300,000.

Q. Are you sure it was not $280,000 ?-A. It was $200,000-odd ; I have no state-
ment of it.

Q. You have an estimate from Mr. Leduc for the last 20 miles at the close of
your work-how much was that ?-A. I do not remember. I did not get it at all
myself. It was merely made out as an index to the regular statement.

Q. Did you not accept Mr. Leduc's certificate for the work on the 20 miles as
correct ?-A. I suppose it is correct; I never disputed it.

Q. You do not dispute it now ?-A. No.
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Q. How much was the value of the work done on the 20 miles ?-A. I do not
know.

Q. Did it exceed $198,000-the amount of subsidies received on that 20
miles ?-A. I bad not the slightest idea. I have not an idea of the work done. I did
not get estimates.

Q. You got a final estimate which is in court ?-A. I saw that, but I cannot tell
what the amount is.

Q. Have you changed your mind about it since the statement was filed in
court ?-A. I always thought Mr. 1educ an honourable man.

Q. Did the subsidies cover the work done on the 20 miles from 40th to the 66th
mile ?-A. You said you had been promised $140,000 of Quebec subsidy on that
section instead $70,000?

Q. IIow do you know that?-A. By your own letters.
Q. Produce them ?-A. They are in court.
Q. Was it not proved in court that promise was never made ?-A. I have a

letter written by you a few days before I signed the contract, that the amount of the
contract you would transfer to me, and that the balance would make $13,400. You
would not deny it?

Q. I have given my evidence under oath; the contract was that I was to get
$70,000; you got every dollar of what the contract said you were to get ?-A. Yes;
the contract called for the 870,000 ?

Q. And you got that ?-A. I expect so.
Q. It has been stated here that I have transferred $70,OO to you and afterwards

collected it myself. Did that take place ?-A. I do not think so.
Q. Did I ever collect what I transferred to you ?-A. I cannot say whether you

did or not, but I know that $70,000 we are speaking of should have been in my
contract. You were not prepared thon to give it, but your letter said I would get it.

Q. Did that letter not refer to a longer distance, 30 instead of 20 miles, and you
did not take 30 miles ?-A. No, becanse you did not give it to me.

Q. Therefore, you are not entitled to that $70,000, as you would have been if
you had taken the 30 miles ?-A. Oh, no ; that is how it was.

Q. I want to make it clear that you had no right to that 870,000 ?-A. Well, so
would I ; if it had been clear before we would never have had this trouble.

Q. Your contract said you were to get $70,000 and you got it ?-A. You wrote
me that letter which is in court.

By Mr. Langelier:

Q. You are aware that almost immediately, or at all events a short time after
you entered into your contract with the company and Armstrong, a conditional sub-
sidy was paid by the Quebec Legislature, amounting to $3,500 a mile and covering
the 40 miles from the 20th to the 60th mile ?-J think so.

Q. Did you over get a cent of that subsidy-I mean, of that $3,500 a mile for the
40 miles ?-A. Well, it is pretty hard for me to say.

Q. Did you get any other subsidies than those mentioned in your contract ?-
A. No.

Q. And you said a tew moments ago that when you entered on the contract it
was contemplated that such additional subsidy should be voted ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you never got that ?-A. No.
Q. If you had obtained that subsidy, $3,500 a mile, would you have been able

to carry out your contract completely ?-A. I think I should.

By Mr. Barwick :

Q. You have always insisted that you were entitled to that $70,000 ?-A. Cerl-
tainly.

Q. And that the company should pay it ?-A. Pay it out of that or somethi
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Q. And that is the question you are fighting the company on in the courts ?-
A. Yes; that and the balance.

Q. And that is before the courts for determination now ?-A. Well, whether it
is the 870,000 or not, I am fighting them for a settlement. I do not think I put that
$70,000 in my statement.

Q. I was under the impression that the question whether you should receive
$70,000 was now before a judge for determination ?-A. No ; I think not. I put in
imny claim for the balance.

Q. Then this is before the judge now ?-A. ko.
Q. The question before the judge is, simply what balance is due to you?-A.

Yes, I think so.

By Mr. Arnstrong :

Q. If you had been paid twice over for your work, you could have paid your
men ?-A. Oh, 110, you are making a mistake.

Q. What was your contract and what amount were you to get under it ?-A. It
is pretty hard for me to tell what my contract was for the first 40 miles; I do not
think your company's engineer knew the first thing about the work laid out until we
commenced; the work on the first 40 miles from day to day was kept increasing and
against your will, too, I think ; but, however, that $70,000 I claim is a certain amount
of money, and I do not care whether it comes out of that $70,000 roferred to or not.

Q. From the time that subsidy was voted did you ever make a demand on me
until after your failure ?-A. I never mentioned it to you; I had not time.

Q. Well, you had 18 months ?-A. I was working niight and day to build the
road.

Q. Who first told you you were entitled to that amount ?-A. You are the man
who tirst lold me. You wrote it to me in this letter that I speak of.

Q. That was befbre the contract was signed ?-A. Certainly.
Q. You should go by yotir contract ?-A. Yes.
Q. By youir contract you are entitled to that $70,000 ?-A. No.
Q. Who put that idea into your head ?-A. Do you not think my head capable

of containing that idea ?
Q. Yes; but not originating it-who gave you the idea first?-A. I had the idea

from the time you wrote me the letter. You told me it was going to be, and I took
your word.

Q. Who told you flrst to make a claim in connection with that second $70,000 ?
-A. Nobody told me; I think I was capable of making a claim myself without any-
body telling me.

Q. Did Mr. Demerais, your legal adviser advise you that you should get thut
money ?-A. He told me I should get my claim, but so far as the $70,000 is con-
cerned, 1 claim that was to be put up as security, but it was not put up as security.

Q. For 18 months you did not claim it, and it was not until your insolvency that
you put in any claim for it ?-A. That is the time; [ did not know it was necessary
for me to come back from my work and claim that $70,000. You agreed to give it
to me; [ suppose that letter will show it was mine.

Q. You owed that money to the Ontario Bank, and yet you never informed the
bank during the eighteen months?-A. They furnishod me money according to my
contract.

Q. Why not inform them, so they could get it ?-A. The Ontario Bank knew all
about it. I gave them all my rights and claims. The day my contract was signed
they got all my rights. If they did not follow it up it was not my fault.

Q. You did not tell them of the $70,000 until after your failure ?-A. I do not
know that I did; I do not know but I did.

Q. You knew perfectly well you had no right and did not claim it?-A. They
knew my security-$13,400 a mile.
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By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:

Q. The work on the first 40 miles under your contract was put in in day
work, or was it a lump sum?-A. It was done on a percentage, and there was a per-
ceontage on thq material furnishod also.

JAMES COOPER, of the City of Montreal, in the District of Montreal, in the Pro-
vince of Quebec, merchant, President of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company,
who being duly sworn and examined, testified as follows:-

By the Hon. Francois Langelier, (Counsel for the Government of the Province
of Quebec:)

Q. You are the President of the re-organized Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. One of the principal shareholders ?-A. Yes; I am one of the lai ge share-
holders.

Q. You have been one of the promoters of the re-organized company ?-A.
I promoted a syndicate for taking over the company, for re-organizing it with the
assistance of Mr. Thom.

Q. During the negotiations which took place between your syndicate and the
Government of the Province of Quebec, was it insinuated, or intimated, or hinted to
you, directly or indirectly, that you should have Mr. Pacaud to approach the Govern-
ment of Quebec ?-A. No.

Q. Of what nature have been your negotiations or transactions with the Quebec
Government in connection with this agreement ? Was there any boodling, was there
anything improper in these negotiations ?-A. I have no knowledge of it.

Q. The whole thing then was conducted in a business-like manner, as between
business men and business men ?-A. It was. The understanding I had was that
the road was to be delivered to the new syndicate free of debt or litigation, and that
the new syndicate, which, through my influence, was organized was to take up the
road and build it. I had two objects: one was to secure a debt I was afraid I was
going to lose, which amounted personally and through my connection with the
firm of Cooper, Fairman & Co. to $22,000. I saw it was going to be lost by
litigation and wrecking, that the road been left in a shape for a year and a half
which was very bad, and the rolling stock which I had furnished to the road was
lying exposed to all weathers, summer and winter, and I had paid my monoy for that
stock, and never got a penny for it. I felt that litigation was going to ruin the
whole chance of getting anything out of that debt. I urged to the best of my
endeavours Mr. John J. McDonald to take it up. He was a friend of mine, and I
begged and beseeched him to organize a syndicate, and I got fairly disheartened
when he told me he was going to England and would abandon the w hole project. I
said : If you go to England and leave the road in the shape it is I shall endeavour to
reorganize a syndicate to take it over. I would never have taken that step except
on these conditions if you had given me the road for a present. I would not be
identified with all this scandal and disgrace, such as appears in the papers.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller :
Q. What do you mean ? Do you mean the Pacaud scandal ?-A. I mean that all

this scandal is detrimental to my success in carrying the work through. The road
is going to be short-at least, when I went into it it was $300,000, and our resources
as a company are in the bonds, and if the road is to be built we have to get the
ceo-operation of both Governments to finish it. That is the only true principle of the
matter. If you will allow me to give you an i:xplanation. I am a business man, and
I will give it as to why the disaster came. The disaster happened in this way: The
Ontario Bank advanced money to Mr. MacFarlane for a very large sum. I do not
know how much. They at length, wheri they got up to the whole length of the
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subsidyfJ presume, got alarmed at the amount of morney expended. The error that
was committed, which I know, and which I think they would not commit again, was
in not appointing an engineer to report to thern as the work went on. They would
then have a guarantee that the work would be done. I supplied the stock, and
when I did so the company was to pay in thirty days. At the end of thirty days I
was told that they could renew for three months, and that I could get the -money
out of the next subsidy. They got the subsidy. but 1 was not paid. I waited twelve
months, and the Ontario Bank collected $17,500 and I got nothing. That is all. In
the extremity they forced or induced Mr. MacFarlane to give them a transfer of ail
his interest, irrespective of or otherwise to the detriment of myself and other
weditors. I allowed that transfer to remain for forty-five days, in the hope that the

Ontario Bank would come forward and help Mr. MacFarlane out, as he claimed ho
only wanted $30,000 more. I had to put him into insolvency, with a view to pro-
tecting myself and the other creditors. That is the cause of the disaster; that is
the history of the thing.

By the Hon. Mr. Langelier;
Q. If I understand you rightly, it was your firm of Cooper, Fairman & Co. who

put Mr. MacFarhne into insolvency ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you took out a capias against hin ?-A. Y,es.
Q. Founded on the transfer of all his assets to the Ontario Bank ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Which transfer you pretended was to defraud the creditors ?-A. So my

solicitor informed me.
Q. You 1ook out the capias, and upon that Mr. MacFarlane was put into insol-

vency ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When you spoke of scandal, you spoke of the scandals which were in the

papers before you went into this business at all ?-A. No; I could not have said
anything about that. I alluded to what has turned up since in regard to this thing,
as a very serious detriment to my interest now, and that is why i want to impress
upon the gentlemen of this Senate that if they do not give me a clean bill that that
road can never be built if I am to use their charter. There is not money enough in
it to do it. I am not a phiilanthropist, you can undertauîd, but at the same time I
went into it to build the road if possible to recover my own and pay the legitimate
debts of the road. I have formed a syndicate of the most respectable men I could
find, the best men I could get enlisted to carry it out. 1 do not want to cast reflec-
tions on anybody else, but I am a main who wants to do things straight and right. I
think I can appeal to one gentleman here-I did not know I should have the honour
of seeing him here-who has known me for eight years, who knows me from the
sole of my foot to the erown of my head, and who knows that I would not, or my
syndicate would not, take hold of it unless it was fair and right, and reasonable to
every body.

Q. You have seen these atiacks made on the company about the sum of $100,000
supposed to have gone to Mr. Pacaud in boodle, as it was said. During the course of
your negotiations did you ever hear of anything improper going on ?-A. I had no
knowledge of it.

Q. Noknowedge whatever?-A. No knowledge whatever.
Q. When did you hear for the first time that there was a charge.of improper

proceedings or transactions taking place?-A. First from an article which I under-
stood appeared in L'Electeur or some other paper in Quebec, calling attention to the
matter.

Q. Have the proceedings before this Committee been calculated to help the com-
pany or to hurt it?-A. The proceedings that are taking place now?

Q. Yes.-A. They must hurt it now, of course, for our future must depend on
our going to England and getting assistance on the bonds.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. How are you hurt?-A. Any road.that has a scandal attached to it, English

capitalists will not so readily go into.
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Q. What scandal are you alluding to ?-A. All that is referred to in the news-
papers; these are copied in England.

Q. Do you allude to the Pacaud scandal?-A. i allude to any scandal.
Q. How do you know that the scandals have hurt the company ?-A. I take it

as a business man.
Q. There has been nothing brought before the Committee, except within the

p ast day or two, with reference to the old company; the only scanda has been the
Facaud scandai. It must be that that did the injury ?-A. Two of them have come
up now.

Q. At the time you spoke of, when the scandals had injured the standing of the
company, you must have referred to the scandal before the Committec before the
old company's business was brought before us ?-A. I do not know how it is going
to affect me; I hope it may not. But I am a little nervous about it, so mucb so, that
I would not think of offering the bonds until this thing blew over.

Q. When did you first hear of the Pacaud scandal ?-A. The first I heard of it
was in the Quebec paper I spoke of.

Q. Was not that the scandal you believed would injure the prospects of the
company in England ?-A. Any scaindal would.

Q. Was not that the particular scandal ?-A. I will not say that.
Q. Givo a fair answer?-A. That is the only answer I can give.
Q. Did you not fear that that scandal would injure the company ?-A. I felt that

any scandal would.

By the lHon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. That one included ?-A. You may infer that if you likce.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton :
Q. Do you recognize the lien Mr. MacFarilane has upon the road ?-A. That is to

be decided in court, I understand.
Q. Do you feel yourselves accountable to Mr. MacFarlane for any claim he may

have ?-A. I suppose I will be accountable to the asignee, the curator who has
charge of his estate.

Q. Your company hold yourselves responsible for any liability the court de-
cides ?-A. Certairly. They have the same claim now as they had before. They
have their two men on the line as heretofore, and the new company are simply using
the line for construction. We are building twenty miles, which we wili have com-
p leted I think by November. We were kept back by two months of litigation in
Montreal, but I think we will get it completed notwithstanding. The expenditure
of over $300,000 which has been made must have increased their security.

Q. If the court awards $150,000 to Mr. MacFarlane's estate you will have to pay
it ?-A. Certainlv.

By the lion. Mr. Ogilvie:

Q. Mr. Langelier referred to the negotiations having gone on about the new
company, but as a iatter of fact, except by 'heresay, you do not know anything
about these negotiations at all ?-A. I do not.

Q. And ali that you know about the negotiations between the Government and
the old company was nothing else but heresay ?-A. I got it by heresay.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Your reconstructed company have subsidies amounting to $870,000, have

they not ?-A. No, sir.
Q. The subsidies amount to $670,000 in the reconstructed company ?-A. Not

half of that.
Q. If you count the $280,000 in cash which the Quebec Government was to give

to pay off the debts of the road, would it not amount to $870,00 ?-A. I never
attended to that; Mr. Thom generally attends to the financial part of the business.
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Q. If the $280,000, including the $100,000, was not given to you, would it not
affect your company ?-A. There is no subsidy for the ten miles now building from
the Dominion Government.

Q. If you got back that $100,000 into your company would it not help you ?-
A. I could utilize it certainly to advantage.

By Mr. Barwick :

Q. When did you see that article in L'Electeur ?-A. I think in June of this
year.

Q. That is Mr. Pacaud's paper ?-A. Yes. My attention was called to it, it
being in French.

Q. What was the substance of the article. Did it deny this charge of $100,000 ?
-A. I was told something about the $100,000, and I think I was told, if you want
any information refer to Armstrong. The article was in French; that is what I
was told it contained.

Q. You understood there was a charge that $100,000 was paid to Mir. Pacaud
out of that subsidy ?-A. No; there was $100,000 they were trying to hunt up.

Q. You understood that $100,000 had gone in boodle ?-A. They claimed that
$100,000 had disappeared; I do not read French.

Q. When did you speak to Mr. Thom about that ?-Q. I do not think I spoke to
him about it.

Q. When did you epeak to him about this missing $100,000 ?-A. Afterwards,
when I saw it in the papers.

Q. What papers ?-A. I am too busy a man to notice what papers.
Q. Did you know about the Ontario Bank ?-A. You would deny that the

Ontario Bank took $17,000, which Macfarlane had bargained to pay me over.
Q. When did you first speak to Mr. Thoni about this $100,000 ?-A. I do not

think I spoke to him at all.
Q. Never to this day ?-A. Well, I do not know.
Q. Do you mean to say that you never did ?-A. I do not know that I did; 

may have when I saw it in the papers.
Q. When did you first speak to Mr. Thom about this missing $100,000 -A.

Not the missing 8100,000.
Q. About any scandal, the exposure, or about Mr. Pacaud, or boodle-when did

you first discuss these ?-A. I could not tell you; I cannot remember.
Q. How long tefore it is mentioned in this Committee?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. Did you speak to him before it came up in this Committee ?-A. I cannot

remeinber.
Q. Are you sure? He negotiated this whole thing for you, did he not ?-A. He

was the man in charge of all the financial portion of my business.
Q. That is not the question. He had charge of the whole Baie des Chaleurs

negotiation ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was the man who met the Government; who met Armstrong, and went

to New York alone ?-A. I was thinking whether he did go to New York. I do not
remember.

Q. You never heard that he went to New York ?-A. I really could not swear
that he did.

Q. Had he your authority to go there and meet members of the Government
and endeavor to carry out this arrangement ?-A. He had my authority to recon-
struct the company to save the property from being wrecked and to rescue, if
possible, my large interest.

Q. And therefore had full authority to go to New York ?-A. Therefore I paid
no further attention to it.

Q. Answer my question. Had Mr. Thom full authority to go to New York and
endeavour to make sone arrangement with the Government-yes or no ?-A. If ho
went there he had authority simply on the instructions I gave him.
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Q. I want you to say ?-A. No; you cannot force me to say what I do not want
to say ; I mean, you cannot force me to misrepresent myself. I am not willing to
do that. I told you exactly the interest I had there to secure, and if I had not had
that interest I would not be president of this company.

Q. I think 1 am entitled to an answer. If Mi. Thom went down to New York
to meet members of the Government, as you saw in the papers he did, had lie your
authority to go ?-A. No; except on this condition, that I told him if he could reor-
ganize the company on true business principles to carry out this enterprise, to do so.

Q. Then if he went down to New York in the course of an endeavour to re-or-
ganise the company in a business way he had a right to go for you ?-A. I suppose
he had.

Q. Did you ever discuss the re-arrangement with Armstrong ?-A. I discussed
nothing with Armstrong.

Q. Nothing with any of them-Armstrong or Thom?-A. No; I left Mr. Thom
to run the whole thing.

Q. And the arrangement ultimately reached was satiifiactory to you ?-A. As
represenited to me.

Q. And as represented in the letter Mr. Thom wrote to the Government ?-A. I
never saw that letter.

Q. Well, he submitted that letter to the Government, even without showing it to
you ?-A. 1. I have no recollection.

Q. Did you see that letter before sending it to the Government ?-A. I do not
know what letter you mean ?

Q. The offer to build the road ?-A. He had my authority.
Q. Did you see that letter ?-A. I cannot remember; I cannot say.
Q. Had you a meeting of your provisional directors to discuss that ?-A. After

the matter was closed.
Q. Mr. Thom said there were several changes in the letter before it was finally

revised and sent in-did you ever hear of that ?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. Then you learned the amount of subsidies secured to you by the offer first

from this letter that Thom sent in ?-A. The only thing I was apprised of was that the
road was to be delivered to me free of all debt, and on that understanding I went
into it.

Q. What amount of subsidies were you to get under that Order in Council ?-A.
I do not know. Mr. Thom arranged all that.

Q. You do not know within $250,000 ?-A. I do not know the amount of the
subsidies.

Q. Thon, what did you mean, that the road in your opinion, cannot be com-
pleted without further applications to the two Governments ?-A. Because my
engineer gave me figures to that effect. I naturally wanted to know how much I
was going to lose when I went into it.

Q. What were the figures which the engineer gave you ?-A. I cannot tell you
from memory.

Q. What is the difference betweei the figures and the total amount of' subsidy
you were to get ?-A. You call Mr. Thom and he will tell you; I cannot say.

Q. How much subsidy were you to get from the Dominion Government ?-A. I
cannot say.

Q. But you intend to apply to the Dominion and Quebec Governments for further
subsidy, is that so ?-A. I have not made up my mind what I will do yet.

Q. But you wanted the Committee to understand that you could not build this
road unies you got assistance-did you mean by way of subsidies ?-A. The Quebec
Government have subsidized it to the end of 100 miles.

Q. What did you expect from the Quebec Government-that they would fold
back some more subsidies ?-A. I did not.

Q. Do you expect to get any more money from them ?-A. No; I do not.
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Q. Do you expect more money from the Dominion Government? - A.
Yes; I hope to get $100,000 more. I would like to.

Q. You do pot hope or expect to get any more from the Quebec Government ?-
A. Well, I do not know.

Q. You said "No" a few minutes ago. You want to change that ?-A. I will
change that, and say I referred all that business to Mr. Thom.

Q. I insist on an answer. I understand you to say you did not expect to get any
more pecuniary assistance from the Quebec Government ?-A. I did not give it con-
sideration.

Q. Have you not at this moment any anticipation of getting any more money
from the Quebec Govern ment than provided by Order in Coucil ?-A. I cannot say.

Q. J think you must say ?-A. I have no hope of getting any.
Q. You have no hope of getting any more ?-A. No.
Q. Have you any anticipation ?-A. i have no hope. I do not know how it will

end until I get through.
Q. You have no promise ?-A. No promise.
Q. No anticipation ?-A. I have no hope.
Q. Then, Mr. Cooper, what did you mean by stating to the Committee a few

minutes ago that that you could not finish the road without getting assistance from
the Quebec Government ?-A. I said I could not finish the road without the assist-
ance of the bonds.

Q. No, sir. You said a few moments ago, and I think the Committee will bear
me out that you said that you could not finish the road without further assistance
from the Quebec and Dominion Governments.-A. No.

Q. Do you want to tell us that you did not mean that ?-A. What I meant was,
that I did not want my bonds injured. I want these Baie des Chaleurs bonds intact
and in good shape, and appreciated by the people, so that I can place them, and sell
thern at the highest figure we can realize.

Q. That is no explanation of my question, and no answer to it. Do you mean
to say you did not mean to convey the impression to this Committee that you
expected more money from the Quebec Goveinrnment ?-A. I say when I made tliat
remark I referred to any legislation in regard to the bonds.

By Hon. Mr. Macdonald (.British Columbia):
Q. How do you expect $100,000 from the Dominion, and nothing from Quebec?

-A. My reason for expecting we might get assistance from the Dominion Govern-
ment is-there are thirty miles that have not a dollar from this Government.
If they had given already I would not apply to them.

By Mr. Barwick :
Q. Have you ever heard Mr. Thom tell you that the company has entered

into a solemn agreement with the Crown not to apply for a subsidy ?-A. I never
heard that. I did not hear it was in that shape.

Q. What shape did you hear it was in ?-A. We have not applied for a subsidy;
consequently, you need not bring that discussion in. I won't answer that?

Q. You will not answer that question ?-A. I will not answer.
Q. You won't answer the question, what was your- understanding of that agree-

ment with the Crown about asking for any further subsidy? That is a faiir questioi.
-A. I do not know what you mean.

Q. You do not know what I mean ?-A. I do not know what you are driving
at ?

Q. I do not want you to know what I am driving at.-A. What do you mean by
Crown-the Quebec Government ?

Q. You do not understand that question, do you ?-A. I do not know whether
I do or not.

Q. I will repeat it. Do you understand there was an agreement with the Domin-
ion Government that you would apply for no further subsidy ?-A. Yes ; I understand
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so in regard to the old company, but not in regard to the new company, because we
are putting in steel bridges instead of woode-i structures, which cost a great deal
of money, and there is a great deal of additional expense otherwise. The road will
be built with a view to running it, and not for the sake of drawing the subsidies,
putting the money in your pocket, and leaving the road, but to develop the trade
of the country, and put it in first-class shape. If the Dominion Government con-
siders thatwe are entitled to more they will give it to us; if not, they won't.

Q. Did you not know that the Dominion Government were holding back $31,000,
the price of the steel bridges, which the old cornpany were bound to put in ?-A. I
was informed they are holding that back for the completion of the sixty miles.

Q. Did you ever hear of steel bridges ?-A. I have supplied them; I think I
ought to know something about them.

Q. You knew that the old company was bound to put in steel bridges ?-A. No;
not exactly.

Q. You did not know that the steel bridges you supplied- 9 -A. The Dominion
Bridge Company supplied.

Q. Were pronounced too short for the purposeof the road in the time ofthe old
conpany. Did you ever hear that before ?-A. I heard that recently.

Q. You did not hear that before ?-A. No.
Q. You heard that before you came to the conclusion to ask for another subsidy ?

From the Dominion Government ?-A. No.
Q. You did not come to any conclusions about that. The only assistance you

required was the $100,000 ?-A. I am not asking any.
Q. But you require assistance ?-A. I am asking for a clean bill, that is what I

am asking.
Q. You must answer ny question. The assistance you hoped to get frorn the

Dominion Government was $100,000 to enable you to finish the road ?-A. I have
not expressed that.

Q. Can you finish it without $100,000 from the Dominion Government ?-A. It
depends upon how much you and gentlemen like you are going on in this thing.

Q. You are going off the track again ?-A. You have swallowed a large sum of
this estate which I and others in Montreal have hqd to puy. I am a creditor of the
estate, and there was a warfare in May and June costing $8,000 or $10,000 which
must come off the estate.

Mr. BARWICK-Mr. Cooper will not keep to the line. I think he should be
directed to answer my questions.

Q. Now try to keep to the track without starting off on any side linos. The
Committee was led to understand that you did not expect more from the Quebec
Government than was provided by the Order in Council.

The Hon. Mr. PowER-Are Mr. Cooper's expectations or hopes ovidence ?
Mr. BARwICK-Certainly, he has told the Committee in the early part of his

evidence that he could not finish the road unless he got further assistance from the
two Governmeoits.

The WITNEss-Not bonuses, I did not mean that.
Q. You mean you did not expect bonuses from either Government?
The Hon. Mr. PowER-Objected that this was merely badgering the witness.
Mr. BAÂRwck-1 think the witness ought to be confined to ny question. I will

leave it to the Committee if I am pressing him unduly or unfairly.
Q. You did not want the Committee to understand that you expected more

bonuses from either Government to enable you to finish the road ?-A. I do not
know what I want. The road has to be extended to Gaspé, eig hty miles, and there-
fore it remains for the future to say what we will want.

Q. Then you do expect more ?-A. Weil, eighty miles will have to be built.
Q. And you expect bonuses for that?-A. Certainly.
Q. From the Quebec Government?-A. They have a large interest in that part

of the country, and there is no part of the country that needs a railway more.
Q. You expect bonuses froin the Quebec Government ?-A. Certainly.
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Q. Look at the extraordinary position you are in. You told us half an hour
ago that you expected assistance from the Quebec Government to build that road,
then a few minutes afterwards you told us you did not expect money assistance, and
now you say you do ?-A. Yes, because if the road goes to its destination, that is,
Gaspé, it will have to be done.

Q. One other question. Whatever amount is due to Mr. McFarlane, he has got
to look to the Company for it ?-A. I don't know; there is a curator has charge of
the whole estate. He is the man that is to pay it.

Q. The man who has got to be paid ?-A. He is the man, I believe, who has
got to look after it. I arn very largely interested there myself.

Q. I an representing the curator.-A. Than you nust be representing me at
the same tine.

Q. Looking at the choques you appear to have takeii pretty good care of
yourself?-A. I want you to prove how I have taken good care of myself. I will
not go one word further until you do.

The CHARMIAN-I have to renind you, Mr. Cooper, thut you are giving evidence
to the Committee. You will be pleased to answer the question.

The WITNEsS-He says I have known how to take good caro of myself. I want
him to prove it. I say it is a vile siander.

Mr. BARwICK-My remark is based on the exhibits filed in this case.
Q. MacFarlane's estate has to be paid whatever amount is due to it?-A. Wbat-

ever the courts decide.
Q. Whatever the courts decide as to the amount due to the MacFarlane estate,

the estate must look to the company for it.-A. Whatever amount is due the corn-
pany will pay.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. The new company ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. Not the individual members of the company ?-A. The company will payit.
Q. Will the individual members of the company undertake to pay it?-(No

answer).
Q. Answer the question.

Mr. LANGELIER-I submit that this is not fair. Any mian of sense must knoW
that the company will have to pay it. To ask if the individual members of the com-
pany will pay it as reasonable as to ask if I will pay it.

Mr. BARwIcK-That is a fair question. The individual members of the corn-
pany did net incur any responsibility in regard to that.

The WITNEss-ThA company will pay its debts.
Q. Did the individual members incur any responsibility ?-A. The company

will puy it.
Q. Have the individual members of the company refused to incur a dollar's

worth of responsibility in regard te that claim? Will you answer that?-A. I say
that they have not refused.

Q. Was that put beforo them in the negotiations when Mr. Cockburn met you
the other day ?-A. Yes, it was, because ho has no claim. Mr. Cockburn-if you
mention him; I do net know him except as a gentleman I used to remember in To-
routo thirty-five years ago, but I kniow the Ontario Bank-they have not substan-
tiated their claim.

Q. The Ontario Bank is not seeking protection ? It is to the company only that
the MacFarlane estate has to look. You do not understand that ?-(No answer).

By the Hon. Mr. MacInnes (Burlington) :

Q. You say Thom conducted negotiations for the syndicate ?-A. Yeu.
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Q. Did you not give him full authority to act ?-A. I stated I would give him full
authority to reorganize the company, to do'what would resuscitate it and put it in
such a shape that we could get the debts back.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :
Q. You spoke of that part of the road from Paspebiac to Gaspé, you have no

contract for that ?-A. I have no contract, it is embodied in the charter; they have
a right to go there.

Q. When you said you expected no further subsidy from either Government,
did you mean you expected no more subsidy than you are entitled to under existing
law on the first 100 miles ?-A. I have no hope to, beyond what the law gives.

By the Ron. Mr. Read:

Q. Then I understand your company intends to pay this accountof McFarlane's,
whatever it may be, and as this bill aims at putting it in such shape that it can be
paid, what reason is there why it should not be so amended as that MeFarlane may
get his money?-A. The bill has been already amended with the approval of Mr.
Cockburn and Mr. Barwick both, and they pledged their honour it should not be
interfered with any more. That is what I understood from Mr. Lonergan. The bill
was amended to protect the Ontario Bank and myself as well. I ranking as a cre-
ditor and having to take my percentage on that estate as well as the Ontario Bank.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. If this bill is passed authorizing the issue of these bonds, will that not be a

first mortgage cutting out this claim?-A. I am not a lawyer; all I know is that I
am connected with a great many companies and every one of them puy 100 cents on
the dollar and I hope this will be the case with this one. I will be sorry if it is not.
I could not answer you in regard to the legal position, but it did not matter whether
legal or not, I should see that that money was paid.

The witness retired and the Hon. Chairman addressing cotnsel for the Quebec
Government asked him if he had closed his case.

Mr. LANOLIER-I have no other witnesses.
Hon. Mr. TAssÉ-And no other charges ?
Mr. LANGELIER-I will make a statement to the Committee.
Mr. BARWICK-Mr. Chairman, in appearing in the second charge I appeared for

Senator Robitaille, because the charge was levelled against him.
Mr. LANGELIER-No, it was not levelled against him but against the company.
Mr. BARICK-I should have said that the charge was levelled against Senator

Robitaille amongst others.
Mr. LANGELIER-If it had been confined to Senator Robitaille, most probably I

Would not have made the charge, but I never mentioned his name and the shorthand
writer's notes show it, but Senator Robitaille seemed otfended because the old com-
pany of which ho was President, was the object of the charge. I never said one
Word against him. If it had been Senator Robitaille alkne who was concerned there
Would have been no difficulty. M y client has no complaints of him. Those having
dealings with the old company always said that if they had all been like Sonator
Robitaille they would not have complained. I desire that this should be taken down,
because I think Senator Robitaille was the best man of the old company.

Hon. Mr. TASsÉ-And this is the only charge you have to make and none
against Senator Robitaille ?

Mr. LANGELIER-No.

CHARLEs N. ARMSTRONG recalled and further examined by Mr. Barwick.
Mr. BARwIcK-1I put in the agreement of the 12t1 of April, 1887, between C. N.

Armstrong and McDonald O'Brien & Company, and the transfer. of the subsidies
from Mr. G. B. Burland to Mr. J. Murray Smith? (Document filed, Exhibit 86).

203

54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.) A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. Now, Mr. Armstrong, I want t'o show the Committee the neaning of this

agreement. Prior to that agreenient what ainount of subsidy had Mr. Burland
received ?-A. There had been transferred to him $370,000 of subsidy.

Q. Now, sir, he paid Messrs. McDonald, O'Brien & Company how much prior
to the date of that deed ?-A. McDonald, O'Brien & Company acknowledge to have
received by this deed and prior to the date $246,975.

Q. They acknowledged to have $246,975 out of the $370,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then Mr. Burland received in addition to that how much ?-A. He received

$30,000 on account of the $70,000 of Quebec subsidy.
Q. Then he transferred the balance of the four instalments of $60,000, did not

he, to Mr. J. Murray Smith ?-Yes. Twenty thousand dollars, being the balance of
the fourth instalment of $60,000.

Q. Ho transferred that to Mr. J. Murray Smith ?-Yes.
Q. And ho transferred the fifth instalment ?-A. Yes, the tifth instalment of

$60,000.
Q. And thon there was an unpaid balance of the $70,000 of the Quebec subsidy,

amounting to how much ?-A. -$5,000.
Q. That totalled $361,975 ?-A. Yes.
Q. There was a commission on the $40,000 choque which was sent back by the

Quebec Bank ?-A. Yes; they charged $25.
Q. And there was an amount paid to you ?-A. Yes.
Q. The amount paid to vou was $8,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. This completed the $370,000 ?-A. Yes.
The Hon. Mr. BoULToN-Who is Mr. J. Murray Smith?
Mr. BARwICK-He was the trustee named to receive the subsidies after Mr.

Burland had received the subsidies suffBcient to pay McDonald, O'Brien & Co.
Q. Now, sir, Messrs. McDonald, O'Brien & Co. were entitled to receive

under their award $251,510 ?-A. Yes; that has been stated already.
Q. Then there was $500, they were entitléd to receive, a debt from you to

then ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then they were entitled to get back tw o instalments of $2,000 each on the

$10,000 they had paid to secure the performance of the contract ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That made- $4,000.-They were to get $5,000 for their plant ?-A. For some

plant 1 bought,-yes
Q. That made $256,510 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which they got out of the $370,000 ?-A. They have received $246,975 from

Mr. Burland.
Q. They were to got $9,035 and also $500 from Mr. Smith ?-A. Yes; and they

did get it.
Q. These three sums came out of the $370,000, and made in all $256,510 ?-A.

Yes.
Q. Every dollar of that came out of the $370,000 ?-A. Yes. sir.
Q. What Mr. Murray Smith got was $85,000?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. He paid to O'Brien $9,035 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And to the Ontario Bank for Mr. Macfarlane $28,000 ?-A. Yes,
Q. And also $18,724.52 ?-A. Yes.
Q. That made $56,259.52. The difference between $85,000 and $56,259.52 is

$28.740.48. How was that expended ?-A. That was paid out in different amounts.
I nay say I did not know I would be asked to make this statement, and did not get
the full statement from Mr. Smith.

Q. That is Mr. Murray Smith ?-A. Yes. He is the Manager of the Bank of
Toronto in Montreal. I telegraphed him to give me the statements of the amount
and the parties to whom paid. But I know that every dollar was used in connec-
tion with the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.
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Q. In answer to the question of what became of the $18,000, Mr. Murray Smith's
statement, which you will receive in answer to the telegram. will show the expen-
diture of every dollar.-A. Yes ; and every dollar of it paid on my order.

Q. For what ?-A. For work done on the road, and supplies.

By Hon. M1r. McCallun :

Q. That is the amount that it is said the old company embezzled ?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. That is the amount mentioned by Mr. Langelier in his charge ?-A. Yes.
I think I have explained that $30,000 of that was actually received by'Mr. Burland.

Q. Answer my question, please.-A. You asked me whether that -was the
8118,000; Mr. Smith only got $5,00o. Mr. Burland actually received $30,000.

By Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. It was all paid for the same-purpose ?-A. Mr. Burland paid his $30,000 to
McDonald, O'Brien & Co.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. The statement s you have made is in explanation of the $118,000 in whieh the
Counsel for the Quebec Governmeiit charged embezzlement or nisapplicatioi of
funds. How many cents of that was embezzled ?-A. Not one cent..

Q. What do you understand by the French word detournement desfonds?-A. I
have always understood that it was using money criminally for purposes for which
it had not been intended to be used.

Q. Do you speak French well ?-A. Tolerably well.
Q. And without being a lawyer what haye, you understood the detournement des

fonds to mean ?-A. I have always understood it meant the same thing as the Eng.
lish word " embezzlement." I am no lawyer, though.

Q. Do you understand from the charge made by Mr. Langelier that he was
charging embezzlement against Mr. Robitaille ?-A. 1 was not here.

Q. Did you understand that from the papers ?
Mi. LANGELIER-We are not going iito a grammatical discussion. I might

bring witnesses who might be better authorities than Mr. Armstrong in this matter,
though lie is an intelligent man. I do not think ho will protend to be an authority
ii the French larguage.

Mr. BARWICK-The Counsel on the other side treats this as a joke, but Senator
]Robitaille understands that if he had proved his charge it would have resulted in
Senator Robitaille's expulson from the fouse.

Mr. LANGELiER-When did I say that ?
Mr. BARWICK-YOU never said that, but I say that Senator Robitaille urider-

stands that if Mr. Langelier could have proved his case the House would have been
compelled to expel him, and Mr. Robitaille understood that in naking his statement
he gave Mr. Langelier an >pportunity to prove, if he could, what, if proved, would
drive him out of the House, and out of respectable society.

Mr. LANGELIER objected to the Counsel interrupting the examination of the
witness to make a speech to the Committee.

Mr. BARwICK explained that he was answering the objection that had been
raised.

Examination continued.
Q. This document (document produced) is the certificats of the 20th June,

1887 ?-A. Yes.
Document filed as Exhibit 87.
Q. It shows the amount of work to be done to be $428,000, the value of the

Work done $322,000, and the work remaining to be done $106,000 ?-A. Yes; on
the basis of the work done the company was entitled to a payment of $40,000.
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Mr. BARWICK-This is fot the original letter, but it is a copy of the letter,
which can be verified by sending over to the Department Public of Work?-A. This is
a copygiven to me at the time it was made in June, 1887, by Mr. Bradley, the Secretary
of the Department, as being the copy of the report of the Chief Engineer.

Q. On this report the $40,000 was paid ?-A. Yes.
Q. And paid how ?-A. Paid to the Quebec Bank, and by them remitted to

Quebec, as shown in evidence.
Q. And sent back?-A. Yes.
Mr. BARWICK-I put in a copy of Mr. Justice Pagnuelo's judgment, and the

petition on which the temporary use of the road was given.

The Committeo adjourned until 10.30 to-morrow.
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Tn SENATE, COMMITTEE Roo No. 8,
WEDNESDAY, 2nd September, 1891.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., lon. Mr. VIDAL in the Chair.

The Hon. CHAIRMAN.-I wish to make a statement about the non-attendance of
witnesses summoned yesterday. Mr. LeSage sent a telegram which I read yester-
day, but it was thought not proper to take action until we had evidenc that the
summons was actually served on Mr. LeSage; then we can take such action upon it
as we think desirable. Mr. Robert McGreevy could not be found, and consequently
could not be served. Mr. Creighton will make a statement with reference to Mr.
McGreevy.

Mr. CREIG;TON, Clerk of the Committee, said: I sent one of our messengers to
the Royal Exchange Hotel to enquire for Mr. McGreevy. He was told he had been
there, but they did not know whother ho was there now. ]He looked at the book
and found Mr. McGreevy was registered at that hotel on Friday. Thoy denied that
he was there, and said they knew nothing about it. I then got Commissioner Sher-
wood to take the matter in hand, and he said that if Mr. McGreevy was in town ho
would serve him within half an hour. He took every measure by his detectives,
had all trains watched, but nothing could be found of him whatever.

Mr. C. N. ARMSTRONO re-ealled, was examined by the Hon. Mr. Power.
Q. You informed us on a previous occasion. when under examination, that the

money was paid out at a comparatively late date to the Ontario Bank as the result
of interviews had between yourielf and the lai e Premier, then Minimter of Railways.
Is that a fact ?-A. Yes, I gave some evidence about it.

Q. What was the arrangement you came to with the Minister of Railways with
respect to the workman's claims ?-A. He agreed to pay the money to the OntarioBank, provided they agreed to see the wages paid to the men.

Q. Was there any limitation to the amount to bo paid?-A. No; there was the
amount of $13,000 mentioned. Sir John asked me if I knew what was the total
amount. I said " No;" on the contrary, [ had sinply Mr. McFarlane's statement;
but that ho would be perfectly safe if ho took the guarantee of the bank for the
Wages, whatever they amount to.

Q. I sce in the exhibits, I presume it is a mistake of the printer, that we have
a letter from the Department to the Ontario Bank in reference to this matter in two
forms. Exhibit 64 reads as follows:-"If the Government pay over this $54,000
forthwith to Mr. Noel, to be paid to the Ontario Bank, the bank undertakes to see
the wages of the men paid." In the other copy of the letter it reads, "the above
Wages of the men," which is in accordance with the arrangement with the Premier?
-A. Of course I had notning to do with the letter. It was distinctly understood
that the agreement would cover the whole of the wages; it was understood that the
ýQuebec Government had $28,000 foi- this purpose, and it was only inr the event of the
Wages exceeding that amount that the Ontario Bank would be called upon to pay.Q. Did the Premier know that the Quebec Government had this $28,000?-A.
Yes. I told him that the Order-in-Council had been passed undortaking to pay out
of the $28,000 whatever was due for wages along the line.

Q. You are familiar with the whole history of this Baie des Chaleurs Railway
from the time the first sod was turned up to the present time ?-A. Weil not the first
sod, because the first sod was turned several times on that road. The last time I
think it was in 1886.

Q. Could you state the amounts that were received and paid out on the road, or-Can you refer to any particular statement in these exhibits which will show just
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what was paid and what was received ?-A. There is a statement in the exhibits of
the amount paid out by the .Dominion Goveriment.

Q. That is $524,000. I think ?-A. No; I tbink $490,000. I think $526,000 is
the total they should have paid; the statements are given in detail in the evidence,
as the estimates were made on each section.

Q. What does it come Io on the 60 miles ?-A. The total amount is $524,175.
Q. That money was paid to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, at least it

is so stated ?-A. The Dominion Government always pay their subsidies to the rail-
way companies. When they are paid to other parties, it is simply under power of
attorney.

Q. Well this $524,000 was paid to the company, liow much was paid by the
Quebec Government altogether ?-A. $350,000.

Q. Does that include the amount paid to McFailano's labourers this spring ?-A.
That includes every dollar except the $280,000 which was not payable to the com-
pany, but includes all the money paid to the company on that 60 miles of road.

Q. How much in addition to that has been paid out of this $280,000 paid to the
workmen ?-A. I only know what Mr. J. C. Langelier's evidence before this Com-
mitte shows.

Q. The company received that much money, what moneys has the eompany
paid out ?-A. I said the Government nominally paid the subsides to the company,
but on powers of attorney. Of that sum $220,000 was paid to Mr. Burland; the
balance was paid to the Quebec Bank who held a power of attorney.

Q. As a matter of fact the money was all paid to the company through theso
attornies? I want to -know what the company did with the money. The money
was paid to construet the road, was it not ?-A. Every dollar was either paid direct
to me, or on my orders to the sub-contractors, for work done and supplies furnished
for the road.

Q. How much was paid out ?-A. The whole of that amount was paid out and
more too.

Q. On the construction of the road ?-A. Yes, and more I put in outside of the
subsidies.

Q. How nuch did you put in ?-A. Roughly speaking $40,000; and I put in
$45,000 of borrowed money besides which werit in as actual cash. Probably about
$100,000 altogether was paid out through me on that 60 miles outsido of the sub-
sidies. Then there were of course some debts besides that which are unsettled yet.

Q. You contend that you owed MeFarlane nothing at the close ?-A. I still
say so.

Q. And he claims you owe $200,000 ?-A. $180,000 I think he claims.
Q. If you split the difference and say you owed him $100,000, that would

make $974,000, and the money the Quebec Government paid tho labourors would
make about a million dollars. You heard the evidence of Mr. Light and ot Mr. J. J.
Macdonald, to the effect that the road should not cost more than $13,000 altogether
on the outside?-A. Mr. Macdonald put it at $12,000 or $13,000, and Mr. Light at
$14,000.

Q. That was the outside figure, Mr. Light said. That would make, for the
whole distance, $780,000, taking the middle estimate which that road ought to cost.
Was any portion of the road completed when it was haided over to this new com-
pany, say, even the first 20 miles ?-A. Well, the Dominion Government, on the first
20 miles, held back $200 for the complotion of the water service ; with that excep-
tion it was complete.

Q. Were the telegraph lines completed ?-A. No telegraph lines were required
in the contract.

Q. I understood so ?-A. In the contract between the Government and myself
a telegraph line is to be erected, but so far as the contract with the Company is con-
cerned, it does not cail for a telegraph line.

Q. You say all this money was paid out on the road or for the purposes of the
road-do you remember being examined before the Committee of Privileges and
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Elections in the other House with respect to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway ?-A. I
do.

Q. Do you remember that you stated there that you had paid out of the subsidies
$42,000 to Rolert McGreevy in order to acquire his stock ?-A. I did not state that
I bad paid $42,000 out of the subsidies. I paid him $10,000 in cash and $32,000 out
of the subsidies. That money was replaced by me, and to a larger extent than that.
It was simply for the purpose of securing him in the agreement that the money was
to be paid him in that manner-$10,000 in cash and four ptiyrnents of $8,000 each.

Q. You say you replaced the money. Have you any document to show that ?-
A. I would have to bring a lot of documents running away back to 1886. -

Q. I don't think it would need many documents. You paid to Mr. McGreevy
the sum of $42,000 in four payments I think ?-A. There is no difficulty about
proving the payment, but replacing the equivalent amount of money by me in the
work was not in any specified payments ; it extended over a long time and all sorts
of payments.

Q. I think it would be desirable that you should furnish the Committee infor-
mation showing how the money went on the road. I presume you will produce the
evidence?-A. The $10,000 was paid in cash and had nothing to do with the subsidy.
It is only a question of thc $32,000.

Q. In your examination before the Committee of the other Ilouse you admitted
that you still had $8,000 ?-A. I still admit it.

Q. Do yo remember what the number in the exhibits was of the contract with
the Company ?-A. The Company's contract is at page 29, the contract with
McFarlane page 33.

Q. How much work was admitted to be remaining to be done on the 60 miles at
the time that your connection with the road ceated ?-A. The estimate made by the
Dominion Engineer, Mr. Ridout, is $31,825, I think.

Q. That is the amount of work to be done ?-A. That is the amount of work
remaining to be done on the 60 miles, Mr. Light, the Quebec engineer, estimated
$28,465 I believe.

Q. About $30,000 of work to be done on the first 60 miles to build it according
to the contract between the Goveriment and the Company. The Dominion Govern-
ment ; there is no contract between the Quebee (overnment and the Company.

Q. Did that include the replacing of these bridges that Mr. Light said had been
objected to ?-A. It included the replacing of wooden bridges, which are the bridges
provided for by the Government.

By the Hon. Mr. Mfiller:

Q. Placing or replacing ?-A. Placing.

By the Hon. Mr. Power :
Q. I said replacing because certain bridges had been condemned ?-A. No

bridges were condemned by the Dominion Government engineer.
Q. They weie condemned by Mr. iight?-A. Mr. Light at first stated that he

had condemned all the bridges, but then it boiled down that he had eondemned
only one.

Q. Did that include the replacing of this bridge, the Cascapedia I think ?-
A. No, it was the Escuminac.

Q. Did it include the replacing of the Escuminac bridge ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you know anything of the internal arrangements of the Company, the

arrangements between the President, Senator Robitaille, and his colleagues ?-
A. I had nothing to do with that.

Q. You do not know whether or not $30,000 was paid to Senator Robitaille and
Mr. Riopel at a comparatively early stage in the history of the Company ?-A. Paid
by whom?

Q. Paid by the Company.-A. I had nothing whatever to do with that.
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Q. Al you kiov of is that $24,000 that you paid to Senator Robitaille after you
had closed with the new promoters ?-A. I did not pay it; it was the new share-
holders.

Q. But it was a choque you handed to him-I think I understood you to say you
had handed it over on behalf of the new company ?-A. I said I was not sure whether
it was handed over by Mr. Thom or by me ; but I have the knowledge that the $24,-
000 was paid.

Q. Have you any knowledge of his having paid any money into the undertaking?
-A. Yos, sir.

Q. What sums ?-A. Ever since I had to do with the road, he has been paying
out expenses of different kinds in connection with it.

Q. Out of his private funds ?-A. Yes ; the Company never paid him a cent to
my knowledge.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:

Q. You say these were paid out of his private funds ?-A. Yes, sir; to my
kiowledge ho never received a dollar from the Company.

By the Hon. Mr. Power;
Q. With respect to your dealings with Mr. Pacaud, you have been acquainted

with him for a good while, have you not ?-A. About five years.
Q. You have had a good deal to do with him ?-A. Yes; I saw him pretty fre-

quently.
Q. After you had paid him that handsome sum last spring, did not he make

some payments for you or to you-did ho pay certain suns for you ?-A. Mr.
Pacaud once accepted a draft of mine for $2,000.

Q. Was this afterwards ?-A. A long time afterwards-a couple of months. It
was quite late.

Q. Was that ail ?-A, That is all. It was merely a matter of accommodation.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé :
Q. When, about?-A. I cannot tell exactly; probably in the nonth of June.

By the lon. -Mr. Miller :

Q. Come as near it as possible ?-A. I say it was probably in the month of June.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. What year ?-A. This year. It may have been July; I an not sure.

By the lon. Mr. Power :
Q. You never drew upon him for any amount ?-A. I say he accepted my draft

for $2,000. I was expecting to make a discount through him with the Union Bank
on a matter of subsidy of $14,000-the Union Bank in Quebec. He could not
arrange it at that time, and this draft was made to be paid out of that subsidy.

By Ron. Mr. Tassé :
Q. Was it the old subsidy ?-A. It had nothing to do with the Baie des Chaleurs

Railway.

By Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Had it anything to dowith the $100,000 ?-A. No; it was simply a business

accommodation.
Q. Entirely a business matter ?-A. A pure matter of business and perfectly

legitimate.
Q. In your numerous conversations with Mr. Pacaud, did he let you understand

what induced the acting Premier, Mr. Garneau. to sign these letters of credit of
$75.000 and $100,000 ?-A. Well, I do not think he ever said anything to me par-
ticularly about the signing of the letters of credit.
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Q. Did he let you understand what inducement led Mr. Garneau to give these
letters of credit ?-A. The letters of credit were issued in pursuance of the Order
in Council passed.

Q. Well, then, the Order in Council ?-A. I do not understand that there was
anything particular in regard to the signing of the Order in Council.

Q. Did he not let you understand that it was in consequence of representations
to hin that Mr. Mercier expected certain moneys to be paid out of that $100,000, a
list of which Mr. Pacaud had, that induced them to issue that Order in Council ?-
A. I do not think he ever brought the matter up with me. There was lots of
rumors of different kinds in Quebec in regard to the transaction, and I spoke to him
aboit it. But he never addressed me on the subject.

Q. Whether he addressed you or you addressed him, did not ho let you under-
stand that in consequence of this money being needed to meet certain claims, a list
of which he presented to him, he was to issue that Order in Council ?-A. The only
point was that it had been stated in Quebec that he had had to use pressure on Mr.
Garneau to make these payments.

Q. What pressure ?-A. I do not know exactly ; that was the rumor.
Q. Did not you got that from Mr. Pacaud himself ?-A. No, sir; I did not.
Q. He never intimated to you that was the reason why Mr. Garneau was in-

duced to sign it ?-A. I asked him whether there was any truth in the matter, that
is in the rumors going about.

Q. To what effect ?-A. To the effect that he had to press Garneau before the
matter was finally settled.

Q. Did he let you understand it was so ?-A. He let me understand that he had
a good deal of difficulty to get the muatter settled ut once.

Q. Did he lead you to understand that it was in consequence of his representa-
lions that these moneys were required to be paid, a list of which ho had that
induced them to grant the Order in Council ?-A. He never said a word about
a list.

Q. Did ho speak of money to be paid ?-A. He spoke of urgent payments that
he had to make, but ho never mentioned any names.

Q. Did he not reprosent that to Mr. Garneau ?-A. Yes.
Q. That he had payments to make?-A. Yes.
Q. For Mr. Mercier and others ?-A. That is what he told me.
Q. For Mr. Mercier and others ?-A. No; ho did not mention Mr. Mercier at all.
Q. Did he not refer to the list ?-A. No, sir; he did not tell me who they were

at all.
Q. Did what he said not induce you to believe-A. I object to answering such

a question, Mr. Chairman, I have no right to make him responsible for my opinions.
Q. From what conversation you had with him did you not infer that these were

the payments he referred to ?-A. As I said, ho did not refer to any list at all.
Q. Did ho say ho had payments for these parties ?-A. He said ho had urgent

payments to make, but he never mentioned any names.
Q. Did not ho louve you to understand they were payments of Mr. Mercier? -

A. No; he never mentioned Mr. Mercier's name in that connection at all.
Q. I think this $75,000 which you were to get was arranged at La Banque

Nationale ?-Yes; the letter of credit was discounted ut that bank.
Q. Was any person present ?-A. Yes; Mr. Chrysostome Langelier, Mr. Thom,

and the manager of the bank.
Q. After you recoived that, did you consider that you had anything more to do

with the arrangements ?-A. After that I-
Q. Say, yes or no ?-A. I consider that I have nothing more to receive, except

there was a small balance on the letter of crodit.
Q. You signed the receipt where ?-A. Previous to that.
Q. There was nothing more to be done by you in reference to the $100,000 ?

A. I was not told there was any thing more to be done at the time.
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Q. Did you consider that you had any thing more to do?-A. 1 did niot know,
but perhaps I might be asked to sign something. I had what I was going to get
out of it, and did not trouble myself any more about it.

Q. The moment you got the $75,000, as ftr as you were concerned, you were
done with the arrangement ?-A. That is ail I had to get.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud not lead you to understand that lie informed Mr. G'arneau

that if he did not issue letteis of credit, that he would telegraph _Mr. Mercier ?-A.
That was the statement I had hear'd and which I asked Mr. Pacaud about. He told
me that Mr. Mercier lad left him instructions to have that Baie des Chaleurs aail-
way matter settled as quickly as possible, that he wanted to see the mon at work
before he got back, and that if Mr. Garneau did not settie the mnatter he woul I cable
to Mr. Mercier about it.

Q. But did lie not tell you that ho infor'med Mr. Garneau at the time that ho
would do this ?-A. I have already stated so.

Q. That was the pressure you referred to ?-A. Certainly.
Q. I want to refer you to the evidence of Mr. J. C. Langelier, I see there was

an agreement made to meet him at Mr. Pacaud's offiee-did you make any appoint-
ment with him to meet him at the time those five twenty thousand dollar cheques
were given ?-A. I have no recollection of making any appointment with Mr. J. C.
Langelici' at Mr. Pacaud's office. I do not think I did.

Q. When did you liist hear of' that $100,000 chcque-did you direct him to
issue the $100,000 cheque ?-A. The $ 100,000 cheque, which he says in his evidence
was destroyed, I never hear'd of before.

Q. When did you tirst hear of it ?-A. When 1 heard his evidence.
Q. Did you give an order to destroy that choque ?-A. No.
Q. Did you give him an order to issue that choque for $100,000 ?-A. lie may

have issued one without my directions.
Q. Did you give him any directions to issue any cheques ?-A. No.
Q. Then if ho issued the $100,000 che'que tirst, it would be without your direc-

tion ?-A. It would be perfectly regular.

By the Hon. Mr. Tassé :
Q. Did you ever sec that $100,000 cheque ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:
Q. I read in the evidence of Mi. J. C. Langelier, the following: "I wrote and

signed them at the demand of Mr. Armstrong, that is the fiLe $20,000 cheques."
now did you givo any directions at all about issuing any cheques at ail to him ?-
A. No; I did not. Mr. Langelier is mistaken.

Q. Mr. Langelier says further "'Mr. Armstrong asked me to go to Mi. Pacaud's
office to pay the $100,000. It was at the demand of Mr. Armstrong that I made
those choques." You say that is not correct ?-A. T never made any demand for the
issue of five $20,000 cheques.

Q. Mr. Langelier further says that he wrote a choque for $100,000 and that you
asked him to destroy it, is that true ?-A. No; sir.

Q. Were the cheques written in Mir. Pacaud's office?-A. I cannot tell where
they were written, they were alr'eady written when I saw them.

Q. When you went to Mr. Pacaud's office you did not go with any intention or
in the belief of meeting Mr. Langelier ?-A. I have already stated that I have no
recollection how I came to go to Mr. Pacaud's office on that occasion.

Q. You did not expect to meet Mr. Langelier ?-A. I would not be too positive,
it is barely possible I might have done so.

Q. Unless you had made an appoint ment how could you expect to meet him ?
-A. Well, I say my remembrance is that I did not expeet to meet him there, but
it is possible.
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By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. You knew that Mr. Langelier was in the habit of going there very often ?-

A. I do not think I saw him there except on this one occasion.
By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach :

Q. You. say that after signing a receipt for the $75,000 you gave yourself no
concern about anything further ?-A. I understood that the matter was arranged.

Q. Between the Commissioner and Mr. Pacaud ?-A. Well, I do not know how
it was done.

By Hfon. Mr. McInnes (B.C.)
Q. At the time you paid Mr. Pacaud the the $100,000 did you owe Mr. Pacaud

any sum of money ?-A. No, sir; I have never owed him any money.
Q. Were you under any obligation to Mr. Pacaud which induced you to hand

over that sum of money ?-A. No; I think I may make a statement with regard to
Mr. Thom's evidence. I sec by the reports in the newspapers (fbr which, however,
1 do not want to hold Mr. Thom responsible) that ho stated that I went to him and
asked him to accept an order on him for $45,000 or $54,000 in favour of Mr. Pacaud.
Afterwards he states that it was an order for $4,500, according to the newspapers.
The facts are that Mr. Pacaud had previously arranged for me a discount, in con-
nection with a subsidy on other railways, at the Union Bank. The amounts were
due, and needed renewal hy the Union Bank. The amount of' interest due to the
Union Bank was $4,000. Mr. Pacaud w'as tiot responsible for it in any way, shape
or form, and simply acted for me in getting the thing through the bank. Tlcy had
security, and hearing, I suppose through Mr. Pacaud limself, that 1 was about to
receive a large sum of money, they wished to get this interest, and asked him to
give an order on Mr. Thom. representing the new syndicate, for the amount of the
interest. 1 gave that order $4,500, but Mr. Pacaud was in no way responsible for it,
and it is one of the amounts the company will pay out of my $75,000.

By the Hon. Mr. O'Donohoe:
Q. There are three separate estimates of the value of the sixty miles, but taking

the highest, $14,000 a mile, that would give $840,000. The sum received was about
$1,000,000, what became of the difference between these two sums ?-A. Well these
estimates were ail wrong. I have prepared a memo. here, whieh I wish to place
before the Commïittee, regarding the ceost of the whole lino. I have taken the
different sections, and show the quantities and the different items-earth-work, rock
work, crib-work, stone filling, masonry and bridges, showing the proportion of cost
of each section of that lino, and I have reduced it for the sake of simplicity to a
question of percontages, making it so easy that anyone can understand it, and
it amounts to this: The first 20 miles are equal to 26.8 of the whole work; the next
section of 10 miles (they are ail ton miles exeept the first section) amounts to 9.1;
the next section to 7.2; the next section to 8.3 (that is one of the MeFarlane sections);
the next section 7.4 (that is the other McFarlane section, two of the lightest on the
line) ; the next section to 13; the next to 9.5; the next to 11.3, and the last section
to 7.4; that ends at Paspebiac, the end of my contract for 100 miles, and that makes
100 per cent. Taking the first 40 miles that represonts 43.1 per cent.; the last 40
miles, which McDonald and Light say will cost $18,000 a mile, represents 41.2 or 2
per cent. less; the middle section built by McFarlane represents 15.7 (the one is 8.3,
the other 7.4). These were estimates made at the beginning of the work by my
engineer, based upon actual surveys and profiles. By these estimates the 60 miles
represented 58.8 of the whole work. After the work was actually done fiom actual
mteasurements, and the actual cost obtained from Mr. Ligbt'r, certificate, included in
iny statement, the actuai proportion of the work is ascertained to be 59.3. That is,
that our original estimates were only a half per cent. out, and these are sworn to by
Mr. Light as absolutely correct, so there can be no question as to the proportion of
the amount of work on the different sections of that line. Taking Mr. Light's and

213

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2 A.)

Mr. McDonald's estimate of the last 40 miles, $18,000 a mile, it would make the first
40 miles cost a trifle over $18,000 a mile. Mr. McDonald carefully went into the last
40 miles, because he was proposing to build it. He got all our estimates, even down
to culverts and farm crossings, detailed estimates of all these were in his hands with
the plans and profiles when he went over that forty miles. The first sixty miles he did
not cure about. It was done, and he had nothing to do with it. If he had taken the
same trou ble about the first sixty miles that he did about the last forty, bis conclusion
would have been different. He simply went over it in a day, and I am satisfied that
if he went carefully over the work and got an order to make a close estimate, ho
would not have stated $12,000 or $13,000 a mile. In the first place, the first 20
miles alone, according to the estimate of' Mr. Schrieber himself, cost $428,000, and
according to Mr. McDonald, if the whole only cost $12,000 a mile, it would leave
only $300,000 for the other forty miles. It is clear that ho is entirely wrong, and
that Mr. Light is wrong also, and bis figures show that ho is wrong. Here are the
detailed estimates which, ho says, ho has gone over with care. They were prepared
by Mr. Leduc, und everything was measured.

By the lion. Mr. Power :
Q. Mr. Light said ho agreed with Mr. McDonald ?-A. I believe ho placed it at

$14,000 a mile,
The Hon. Mr. MILLER.-Does Mr. Barwick intend to put these papers in ?
Mr. BARwICK.-Tiey are iot put in ut my instance as representing Seriator

Robitaille. Mr. Robitaille has not seen these figures, they are Mr. Armstrong's own
idea.

The WITNEs.-These statements were finished at 1 o'clock this morning, and
nobody bas seen them yet. Mr. Barwick is wrong, I think, in saying that they are
not put in at the instance of Mr. Robitaille. They are prepared at his request. I
take it that the object of the Committee is to find out what the road has cost and
what it is worth. Mr. Leduc can verify overy point, for they are based upon bis
original figures, but I took the responsibility for the figures are given in these
papers.

By the Hon. fr. O'Donohoe:

Q. The difference between you and these gentlemen, you charge, arose by reason
of their under-estimating the cost of the work ?-A. Entirely.

Q. You do not agree with Mr. Light in his valuation ?-No; I prefer to tako
bis estimates carefully made ut the time rather than his off-hand statement.

Q. You say that the work cost more than Mr. Light estimates it to have cost ?
-A. I say the work cost about $17,000 a mile of actual hard cash.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (British Columbia):

Q. Do you mean the whole 60 miles ?-A. Yes, sir, and I think that is a fair
estimate for the whole line. I think $17,000 a mile is a fair estimate for a contrac-
tor to build the last forty miles, and that is about Mr. MeDonald's estimate, because
ho includes the sum of $1,250 a mile for Mr. Pacaud in his estimate. His actual
cash estimate of the work is $16,750, and 1 think that is as close an estimate as any
body could make. The average is about the same on the other sixty miles.

By the Hon. Mr. O'Donohoe;

Q. Your estimate of the work was about a million dollars ?-A. My estimate
for sixty miles, based on part cash and part bonds, amounts to a little over $1,118,000.

Q. Nearly $1,200,000.-A. That was payable partly in bonds. It would not be
fair to count that as a cash price.

By the Bon. Mr. Tassé:

Q. That is according to your contract with the eompany ?-A. Yes, sir.
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By the Hon. Mr. O'Donohoe :
Q. Was that amount of $1,118,000 put into these works ?-A. I did not say that.

I say that was the price the company had to pay me for the work, but that included
a portion of bonds, and it is not fair to take that as a cash valuation of the work.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. What are the bonds worth-50 cents on the dollar ?-A. I think that is too

low a price. The estimate made as to the value of the bonds, and I think a fair
estimate under ordinary circumstances, is 75 cents on the dollar, and in making my
arrangement with the company that is the basis I worked on. That would have
given me the subsidies payable on that hundred miles of road, say Dominion Govern-
ment subsidy on the first twenty miles $300,000, then a hundred miles at $3,200 a
a mile, $320,000, making in all $620,000 payable by the Dominion Government. The
Quebec Government gave a subsidy of 10,000 acres of land ot one hundred and
eighty miles, which was afterwards applied entirely to the hundred miles, making
$630,000, the two subsidies amounting to $1,250,000, or $12,500 per mile. That lett
me to receive $7,500 a mile in bonds, and taking these bonds at 75 cents on the dollar
would have given me $5,250 a mile, or that equivalent in cash, being a total of
$17,750 per mile for the building of the line.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. Iow do you make that out on the bonds ?-A. Taking them at 75 cents-

that was my valuation of them.
By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Was not that a high value for the bonds ?-A. I think not, sir; I think it was
a fair estimate. I think these bonds are fairly worth 75 cents on the dollar.

Q. Were they when you made that computation?-A. Thàt was in 1886-yes.
I hold that they are worth that.

Mr. BARwIcK.-Do you want thebe three statements to go in ?
The WITNEss.-Yes, I want them to go in as Exhibits.
Documents filed as Exhibits 89a, 89b, 89c.
The WITNESS.-I wish to put in also another Exhibit. This is the Agreement

made between the company and me as the basis for giving the estimates and certi-
ficates by the company's engineer. The contract price being $20,000 per mile, and
being payable according as the work progressed, some sections, of course, would
receive more than the $20,000, and some less, and it was necessary to put a value on
each particular class of» work. so that I cou ld get each month an estimate for the
work done during the month. There is a long list of the different classes of work,
each one of which was to be done at a price. Mr. Light in his evidence drew attention
to the fact that there was a difference between these prices and the sub-contractor's
prices. Naturally there was. My friend, Mr. Barwick, has spoken several times
about " hoisted " prices. Mr. Light said my prices was 40 cents for earth work, and
that the sub-contractor got only 25. I wish to point out that my earth price included
hard pan, loose rock, &c., and I paid the contractors as high as 90 cents, the ordinary
price of hard pan being 75 cents and loose rock 50 cents, though my price covered
everything at 40 cents.

By the Hon. Mr. Miller:
Q. Where did you pay that 90 cents?-A. For earth-work iirfoundations and

s0 on, and loose rock and hard'pan from 40 cents to 45 or 50 cents.
Q. Did you say you had paid 90 cents ?-A. Yes, for loose rock, but that is

included in my earth price, there is no specification for it.
Document filed as exhibit 90.
I also want to put in the estimates made by my engineer on the last forty

miles.
Document filed as Exhibit 91.
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By the Hion. Mr. Power:

Q. Are these certified ?-A. They are certified by the engineer who made
theni. Exhibit 90 is not certified. It is a press copy of the original, and on my
oath I state that it is a true copy of the original.

By Mr. Barwick ;

Q. This Exhibit 90 shews, of course, in many instances that you are charging
the Company far more than you were paying ?-A. Naturally so, because--

Q. Never mind explanations. Naturally they are. This is a bill of quantities
and prices, as it is called, so made up as to form the price of $20,000 ?-A. That is
piecisely what it says.

Q. Of course. So that in most instances the prices and quantities are over
that they cost you?-A. The quantities are perfectly correct.

Q. I meant the prices. The prices are over what they cost you. The average
of t hem, of course, is over what they cost you ?-A. Yes, they would have to be
reduced to a cash basis.

Q. And you just took this ore instance to shew how much more you paid ?-
A. I only took it because Mr. Light did; I did not pick it out, it was M1r. Light
picked it out.

Q. You paid Robert McGreevy how much ?-A. $42,000.
Q. Will you explain the transaction from the beginning ? And why you made

it, and why you wanted him out of the Company ?-A. When I tirst had an inter-
view with the Company with reference to an offer to build the line, I was asked to
nake a tender, and so was Mr. McGreevy. The tenders were sent in, and my
tender was so much more favorable than Mr. McGreevy's that the Company doubt-
ed whether I could carry it out.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes, (British Columbia):

Q. Which McGreevy ?-A. Robert. I was asked to meet the Company in
Quebec and satisfy them that I could carry out the contract on the terms I had
offered. We agreed upon the terms, but I stated that I would not enter into the
contract with them if Mr. McGreevy continued to be the Vice-President, or conti-
nued to have control. They said the only way was to buy Mr. McGreevy out. I
said I was prepared to do that on reasonable terms. I had several interviews with
Mr. McGreevy after that, and it ended by our agreeing upon terms, for buying him
out, of $50,000.

By Mr. Barwick:

Q. You were to pay Mr. McGreevy $50,000 for his stock ?-A. His stock, his
plant and the work he already had done there. He claimed to have a verbal con-
tract with the company besides that, upon which he had commenced work.

Q. You bought his claim under that contract?-A. I bonght him clean ont.
Q. What was the amount of plant ho had there ?-A. It was worth a great deal

less than I understood.
Q. What did you undeistand it was worth ?-A. I think roughly I agreed upon

$15,000 or $20,000 upon the plant and the work he had done. He did not exactly
give me those figures, but that was my idea from what he said.

Q. What did'it turn out to be worth ?-A. Less than that.
Q. So you were getting $15,000 or $20,000 for his interest in the plant and work,

and the balance you were giving him for his stock and rights under a verbal con-
tract which he claimed he had ?-A. And got rid of him entirely.

Q. You say that money was paid ?-A. I paid him $10,000.
Q. Down?-A. Well $3,000 down and a short note for $7,000 which was paid

at maturity.
Q. Practically cash ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Paid out of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway subsidies ?-A. No; my own
private money.

Q. How much did that leave to be paid ?-A. $40,000.
Q. And there was an agreement about that ?-A. I was to pay that in five

instalments of $8,000 each.
Q. How ?-A. When I received each instalment of $60,000 from the Dominion

Government.
Q. You were to pay him out of whatever portion of the Dominion subsidy you

yaurself were entitled to ?--A. Yes; and I would have had to earn the $40,000
before I paid it to him.

Q. How much of that $40.000 have you earned and paid to him ?-A. I have
earned it all, except the last payment of the Dominion Government, and until the
final payment by the Dominion Governîment is received he is not entitled to his
money.

Q. If you had done work sufficient to entitle you to a certificate to get that
balance from the Dominion Government he would have got it ? -- A. Yes.

Q. How much have you received ?-A. He bas received $32,000.
Q. And this was paid out of each certificate which entitles you to the subsidy ?-

A. Yes.
Q. Have you the stock yet ?-A. I have received a portion of it, $42,000, I think,

the balance is transfierable when ho gets tho balance of the money. There is one point,
that apart from the cash he was to receive$25,000 in bonds in addition.

Q. Who from?-A. From me.
Q. And he holds the balance of his stock, $33,000, until he gets the other $8,000

in cash and $25,000 in bonds ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have been acquainted with this road from the beginning?-A. Well,

since 1886, but the company was begun in 1872.
Q. Have you examined the books of the company lately ?-A. I saw some of

the books within the last few days.
Q. Did you examine the books with a view of ascertaining whether Senator

Robitaille had drawn a dollar out of this company ?
Hion. MR. PowER objected to the question and it was withdrawn.
Q. To your knowledge lias Senator Robitaille drawn a dollar out of that com-

pany ?-A. No.
Q. You have a letter from Mr. J. Murray Smith, of the Bank of Toronto, in

Mon treal ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was the attorney who received the Dominion subsidies and the Quebec

subsidies after Mr. Burland had received sufficient to pay Messrs McDonald, O'Brien
& Co. ?-A. He was the trustee to whom the attorney paid the money. Mr. Noël
was the attorney here in Ottawa.

Q. Mr. Burland was the attorney chosen between McDonald, O'Brien & Co., and
yourself?-A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Smith afterwards and he saw them paid the whole amount due to
them ?-A. Yes.

Q. And after, when the Dominion moneys were paid to Mr. Noel ho transferred
them to Mr. Smith ?-The Dominion Government money. Mr. Smith received the
mfoneys from the Quebec Government direct.

Q. And this is a statement from Mr. Murray Smith showing the disbursoments.
It is in the form of a letter addressed to you ?-A. Yes.

MR. LANGELIER objected to the letter going in as evidence but the objection was
not sustained.

Q. You know Mr. Murray Smith's handwriting ?-A. Perfectly, that is his
handwriting.

Q. He is the Manager of the Bank of Toronto in Montreal?-A. Yes.
MR. BARwICK-I will read it and you will correct me if I am wrong :-
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The following appear to be the payments made by me with the names and
dates:-

Year. Ainount.

1887.
Aug. 24 ... Yourown note.....,... ........... ........ ................... 1,101 65

" " . . ýYour own note to Barb Wire Co........................................ 395 04
" 25.... Your note to Cooper Fairman & Co. .................................... 5,043 54

24 ... Note Fosbrook to Arnistrong. .................... 2,100 00
" 25. ... Note C. N. Armstrong. .......... . . ....... ........ 93

1888. ... Note Dominion Barb Wire Co... ...................................... 395 0<
1888.

Jan. 24. . .. McDonald, O'Brien & Co.............................................5 25
Feb. 28..... T. T. Turnbull. ... ................................................ . ,ooo oo

" 29 .... Cooper, Fairman & Co....................................................18,000 Of)
Aug. 7...... Clendenning & Son. .............................................. 659 48

...... L. G. Fosbrooke........................................................3,000
" 8 .. .. Bank B. N. A ..................................................... 4,88400

10.. . D. C. Henderson. ................... ................................. 695 00
11.. McDonald, O'Brien & Co............................................ 2,351 75

1889.
Jan. 8 ..... T. T. Turnbull. in trust............................................... 3,370 00
Marci 4 .... W. W. L. Chipnan . ............................................. 3,2M0 00

" ". Cooper, Fairnan & Co.............................................. 10,500 00
" . C. N . Armistrong. ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 5 0 X

" "... Ontario Bank . .................................................... 18,724 52
69 4 4 6 '......' .'....... .. . . .. . ................ .... 6,898 35

" 7.... McDonald, O'Brien & Co.............................................. 467 00
Aug. 6,... Ontario Bank. .................................. ................ 18,794 60

4625...................................... .................................. 1,847 .30

(Signed) J. MURLRAY SMITHI.

Mr. BAawICK-Malcing a total of $124,104.36 (Exhibit 92). 0f' that amount
$40,120 is payable on the subsequent section beyond the finst 20 miles. So the diWfer-
ence 683,984.36 was the balance of' the $118,000 ?-A. Yes, payable by Burland.
840,00O was payable out of other transfers.

By Hon. .Mr. Miller :
Q.You meai, by that statement to account for the $118,000 ?

Mr. [BÂRWIcK-I aceounit for the balance of it.
By the Hon. Mr. Tassé:

Q.To your knowledge have the payments made for supplies referred. to in that
letter been made ini connection with the road ?-A. JEvery dollar, and ail paid on My
order.

Document filed 1Exhibit 92.
By Mr. Barwick:

Q.Now this statement, iMr. Armstrong, shows an expenditure of about $118,000
with the exception of about $1,000 ?-A. Yes ; with the exception of about $1,000.

Q. Ail these payments made on Mr. Murray Smith's part are traly mnade ?-A.
Yes ; and ail on xy oî1der.

Q.For work on the road ?-A. Foir work on the road, for' supplies or acivances.
Q.That is, advances of money which went into the work ?-A. Yes ; ail ex-

pended on the road.
Q. So that every dollar of that $118,000 was expended on thé road ?-A. This

only refers to $85,500.
Q. The whole $83,984.36 which Mr. Mut'ray Smith handled, went into the road ?

-A. Every dollar of it, yes.
Q. What about the balance of this between 883,984.36 and $118,000?-A. A por-

tion of that was paid by Mr. Burland. Eveî'y dollar of the $370,000 went into the road.
0 018
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Q. Every dollar of that balance of $118,000 went into the road ?-A. There is
a balance of about $1,000 that Mr. Smith has not yet received.

Q. From the Dominion Government ?-A. Partly from the Dominion, partly
from the Provincial Government.

Q. So that the whole of the $118,000 is accounted for by the amount Mr. Smith
and Mr. Burland have received and the small balance which remains in the hands of
the two Grovernments ?-A. Yes.

Q. And every dollar that Mr. Burland bas received, and that Mr. Smith has
received have actually gone into that road ?-A. Yes.

Q. Has a dollar of it been embezzled ?-A. No, sir.
Q. <r misappropriated ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Or mis-applied ?-A- No, sir.
Q. What is the English of this expression de tournenent desfonds ?
HON. MR. POwER-I object, we had all that befoire.
MR. BARwICK-I would like to put this statement in.
Document filed Exhibit 93.
Q. This shows how the whole $370,000 has been used ?-A. Yes, except about

$1,000 not yet paid, or still in the hands of Mr. Smith.
Q. It shows you how the $370,000 has been used, with the exception of

$1,015.64 still in the hands of the two Governments ?-A. Yes, or Mr. Smith.
Q. There is still a small balance in the hands of Mr. Smith?-Yes, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Tasse :

Q. To your knowledge have you ever heard of tho criminal proceeding referred
to by Mr. Langelier to be taken against the directors of the old company ?-A.
Never, except what has taken place before this Committee.

Q. Not before ?-A. No, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. When you were examined on the 14th of August you gave the following
evidence as reported on page 62, part A :-

" Q. What did Mr. Pacaud tell you about his efforts to have this matter put
through and the money made forthcoming ?-A. There was nothing said to him- "
I suppose it should be by him.

"-- about his efforts in putting the matter through. I know he was running
about with reference to the letter of credit, but I did not bother my head about that.

"Q. He was running forward and backward to Garneau ?-A. Not that I know
of. I think he was running about among the banks more.

" Q. Did not he describe to you his visits and interviews with Garneau ?-
A. No."

Q. Was that statement true ?--A. Pertfectly.
Q. With respect to this sheet of paper, you gave the following evidence:-

"Q. What other names did you notice ?-A. I do not remember. I paid very
little attention; it was done in a moment.

" How did he connect Mr. Mercier's name with the list ?-A. Ie did not cou-
nect it with the list in any way.

" Q. Did he mention Garneau's name ?-A. IHe mentioned no namies. He
simply said: It is too bad to be kept waiting when I have all those to pay. 11e held
out the list for a second before me, but he did not show it to me, to look at atten-
tively."

Q. I do not know whether I understood you correctly to say, in reply to aques-
tion by Mi. Kaulbach, that Mr. Pacaud had told you that he had said to Mr. Garneau,
in order to induce him to assent to the Order in Council, that he, that is, Pacaud,
Wanted to make some payments ?-A. I said there was no difficulty about the Order
in Council. It was about making the payments afterwards, there was delay about
that.

219

54 Victoria. A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

Q. Did you say that after the Order in Council was made that he, that is, Pacaud,
said to Mr. Garneau, that he wanted the money to make payments ?-A. That he
had payments to make; that is the expression I made use of. The reason of his
urgency was that Mr. Thom, representing the syndicate, threatened to return to
Montreal if the thing was not closed at once.

Q. I think you described in your previous evidence the way you got these five
cheques of Mr. Langelier in Mr. Pacaud's office.-A. I think so; I have described
it pretty often.

Q. Now, you spoke a while ago in reply to the Hon. Mr. Katilbach of your
having nothing more to do when you got the $75,000. Were not you to get the
cheques for $100,000 also?-A. I was simply to get it for the purpose of paying it
over; I was to get no benefit from it. I did not worry when the other party was
to get it.

Q. You had arranged to give it to Pacaud ?-A. I had arranged that he was to
get it.

Q. You had to endorse the cheques?-A. I was not awaro of that. I would not
be surprised if I was asked to endorse the cheque, but I did not worry much over it.

Q. You stated just now that all the money that had coie of the $370,000
subsidies had gone into the road, and nowhere else. What about the $32,000 you
paid to Mr. McGreevy?-A. The inoney had gone into the road.

Q. It went to McGreevy ?-A. lt replaced money I had put into the road. I
put it into the road before I got a dollar.

By the Hon. Mr. Boulton:
Q. I understood you to say that this $75,000 you received was due for payneit

of work done ?-A. Tho $175,000 was a compromise on a total claim of $298,000.
Q. What I wanted to arrive at was that the terms were dictated to you by

which you could rceive the $75,000. It was a conspiracy on your part to join in
diverting the public money ?-A. No, Mr. Pae-aud was employed by me to arrange
the best terms ho could, and if he got the terms I agreed to give him $100,000.

Q. The evidence looked very much like a conspiracy to divert $100,000 from its
legitimate purpose ?-A. I knew I could not get the $75,000 without giving the
$100,000.

Q. So that the terms wero dictated to you by which you could get $75,000?-A.
The terms I understood had been arranged previously between Messrs. McDonald,
Cameron and Pacaud. I was simply carrying out the arrangement they had made.

Q. Were they to give the same amount ?-A. Well, I must say that I had been
told they were to give $75,000, but I did not have that from any authority.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum :
Q. Mr. McDonald offered $50,000 ?-A. So I heard him say.

By Hon. Mr. Tassé :
Q. But you had to double the price ?-A. I understood the amiount they were to

give was $75,000, and mine was $25,000 more.
Q. Who told you he was to receive $75,000 from Mr. McDonald ?-A. I would

not be sure but he told me himself.
Q. You have heard 5fr. McDonald swear ho was to give $50,000 ?-A. Mr.

McDonald, as I understood it, had not settled any amount, but in his estimates he
put down $50,000 for Mr. Pacaud.

By the Hon. Mr. McCallum:
Q. You will not swear that Mr. Pacaud did not tell you lie was to receive

$75,000 ?-A. 1 do not think I hoard it from him tirst.
Q. You will not swear that ho did not tell you ho was to receivo $75,000 ?-

A. Undoubtedly I will not; I think lie did.
Q. Was Mr. Pacaud acting as the agent of Mr. McDonald ?-A. Certainly.
Q. As well as for you afterwards?-A. Both before and afterwards, for both

parties.
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By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. With the Government ?-A. Certainly.

By the' Hon. Mr. Tassé:
Q. Did Mr. Pacaud tell you how the $100,000 was to be distributed ?-Never.

By Mr. Langelier:
Q. An I to understand that your claim of $298,000 was a genuine claim or a

bogus claim ?-A. It was a perfectly genuine claim, and, in fact, there were some
items that I did not get into it. I had a lot of plant and material on the road that I
never took any account of. I agreed to transfer that in addition, and that was worth
$30,OO or $40,000 besides.

Q. So that your claim was not a put-up job, but a legitimate claim against the
Company ?-A. Yes, and approved by every official of the Company; and cannot be
denied by anybody.

Q. lad the Government anything to do with the settlement of the claim ?-
A. Nothing whatever, except the payment of the amount.

Q. What you had to pay to Mr. Pacaud was not for settling a claim against the
Govern ment ?-A. I had no claim against the Government at all.

Q. What you did pay to Mr. Paeaud must have been paid to settle your claim
with the new syndicate ?-A. It was my claim against the Company. The new
syndicate did not exist.

Q. I understand you to say that what you paid Mi. Pacaud was for his influence
in getting your claim settled by the Company ?-In order to have my claini settled
by the Company, they had to make the arrangement which was afterwards made
with the Government.

Q. But was there any difficulty as to this arrangement with the Government?
-A. Not the slightest.

Q. Do you think the Government paid too much to the Company for doing the
work they have undertaken ?-A. No; I think it was a perfectly good business
arrangement.

Q. Did any Member of the Government, direetly or indirectly, tell you, or in-
timate to you, or hint to you that you should apply to Mr. Pacaud to get a settlement
of your claim ?-A. I never had a word to say to any Member of the Government.

Q. You never saw any Member of the Government with regard to the settlement
of your claim ?-A. Never.

Q. The settlement took place entirely between you and the members of the com-
pany as re-organized ?-A. With Mr. Thom; he was the party who acted for the
synd icate.

Q. Did Mr. Thom in his negotiations intimate or insinuate that he had to admit
your claim to the extent of $175,000, or to any amount, or did he discuss the matter
with vou purely in a business-like manner ?-A. I fixed the amount myself that I de-
manded from the company in settlement: Mr. Thom considored it a fair settlement,
and agreed to it.

Q. Did Mr. Thom settle with you on any outside consideration, or simply on
the merits of the transaction itself?-A. Entirely on the merits; he knew nothing
of outside matters.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Was it not the value of Mr. Pacaud's influence with the Government that you
regarded as the consideration for the $100,000 ?-A. Certainly; that is what I em-
ployed Mr. Pacaud for.

Q. Was he acting as agent for McDonald and you simultaneously ?-A. Well,
he might have acted for lots of other people.

Q. Ie acted as agent for McDonald against you; he was setting off McDonald
against you ?-A. Not at all.
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By Mr. '. Langelier (Counsel for Quebec Government)

Q. You stated that Mr. Pacaud mentioned to you that he had been obliged to
use some compulsion in order to bring Mr. Garneau to consent to the, arrangement ?-
A. I did not state that.

Q. I understood so ?-A. I distinctly did not state that.
Q. To use great efforts ?-A. Not in regard to the arrangements, which were

all closed ; it was in regard to the immediate paymnent of the amount so that the
work migrht be gone on with.

Q. He never told you that he had to bring pressure in order to secure the pas-
sage of the Order in Council ?-A. No; there was no difficulty about that.

Q. You stated afterwards that Mr. Pacaud told you that in order to bring Mr.
Garneau to consent to the immediate payment he had to resort to some compulsion
or some means of compulsion ?-A. Pressing.

Q. Did he tell you that the means of compulsion resorted to, consisted in show-
ing Mr. Garneau a list of debts lie had to pay ?-A. I have contradicted that already.
He never told mie he showed any list ofdebts to Mr. Garneau.

Q. Then you understood him to say that the means of comphlsion resorted to,
consisted in stating that Mr. Mercier was most anxious that the work should be in
full swing as soon as possible ?-A. That is one of the reasons.

Q. He knew that Mr. Mercier, represeiting the County of Bonaventure, was
anxious that the work on the railway in his county should be in full swing when he
came back from Europe ?-A. Yes, and the men paid.

By the Hfon. Mr. Iaulbach :

Q. What are the other reasons ?-A. Mr. Pacaud stated that he had pressing
payments to make.

By M1fr. Langelier:

Q But he did not tell you that ho had arranged that with Mir. Garneau?-A. I
told him thatl had heard that, and he said he had told Mr. Garneau.

DANIEL O'LEARY, Inspector of Dominion Police, Ottawa, was re-called and
examined.by the Hon. Chairman.

Q. Inform us if you served Mr. LeSage with the notice entrusted to you ?-A. I
served him on last Saturday in the Parliament House at Quebec, personally.

Q. Did he make any observation to you as to his willingness to come ?-A. He
road it over and said, " hat is all right."

MICHAEL STEPHEN LoNERGAN, solicitor, of the City of Montreal, in the Province
of Quebec, being sworn, was examined by Mr. F. Langelier, counsel for the
Quebec Government.

Q. You are, I understand, one of the present directors of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company, as reorganized ?-A. I arn.

Q. You have been connected with the reorganized company?-A. I was elected
a director on the 6th of May last and previously had acted as legal adviser of the
syndicate in the arrangements preceding the reorganization.

Q. You must have been aware of all the negotiations which have been going on
with the syndicate which took up the company and the Quebec Government ?-A.
My clients informed me so far as they might have thought it necessary to the advice
I might give them.

Q. Did it come to your knowledge that any improper transactions or proceed-
ings were going on, or were to take place, between the Government of Quebec or
any of its members and the syndicate?-A. Any knowledge of that kind which I
have is derived from the proceedings of this Committee.
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Q. You never board of anytiiing improper before ?-A. No.
Q. And you were aware of what was going on between the company and the

Government?-A. Well, I was consulted almost constantly by Mr. Cooper and Mi.
Thom about their arrangements, and they did not inform me of anything of the
kind which has transpired before this Committee; I refer to the alleged improper
diversion of moneys.

Q. Did you have any interviews with the Quebec ('overnment or with any
members of it ?-A. Well, hardly. I was at Quebec two or three times. The first
time I went there was at the request of Mr. Cooper, who informed me that Mr. Thom
was there with the intention of closing the iegotiations, and he was very anxious
that 1 should look over the subsidies payable by the Province of Quebec to this road
and be certain that they were appliable to the forty miles which they were about
to build. Also, I was asked to examine the books of what is now called the old
company, in order to be sure that they were able to deliver over the property to us.
My instructions were that the syndicate had aç option of the property at a certain
price and ny services were required to make certain that the so-called old company
should deliver what they had promised in legal form.

Q. Who directed you 9-A. Mr. Cooper.
Q. I presume you became aware that in order to get hold of the road, the com.

pany as reorganized, would have to settle with Mr. Armstrong ?-A. Certainly. I was
told, if that be any evidence, if you want the narative, that Mr. Cooper expected
that his syndicate would get a clear road. That was a fundamental condition of bis
going into the business. And that not only would he get a free road but free frorn
all liti;ation and trouble of every kind. And 1 understood that Mr. Armstrong
had to be disposed of before we could feel that there was any use in undertaking the
work. There was no use in trying to go on with the work unless we could wipe out
what went béfore us. The first thing necessary to be done, it appears to me was to
remove Mr. Armstrong.

Q. Then he was about to settle with Mr. Armstrong and get rid of him ?-A.
Yes, but these negotiations were carried on with Mr. Thom.

Q. You had nothing to do with these negotiations ?-A. No.
Q. Had the Government anything to do with these negotiations or with the

settlement of Mr. Armstrong's claim ?-A. Not to my knowledge.

By the Chairman:
Q. Were you aware of the claim of Mr. Macfarlane, or did you consider that to

be included in Mr. Armstrong's claim?-A. I was aware of it, because from the
commencement of it I was an attorney of record in the same case, but I may state,
inasmuch as reference has been made to a statement I presented to the leader of
the Government here, that I always believed and still believe, that after the settle-
ment and discharge of the Armstrong claim, there was enough remaining of the
subsidy to pay off any judgment that the Macfarlane estate would ever obtain.

By the Hon. Mr. MeCallum:
Q. That is a matter of opinion only ?-A. That is the opinion of those concerned

in the case. It is my opinion derived from two sources.
Q. A lawyer's opinion ?-A. As a party in the case-and an attorney of record

and as inspector of the Macfarlane estate.
Q. And as a stockholder in this present company and a director of the road,

as you are ?-A. I may say that as the inspector of the estate, I had a right to know
what the opinions of the counsel of the estate were as to the amount which might
be recovered, therefore when I spoke a moment ago I based my judgment upon my
own opinion as well as upon the opinion of the leading and senior counsel of the
estate.

By the Chairman:

Q. I asked because it seemed to me that Mr. Maefarlane's claim was ignored ?-
A. Not at all. 1 may say 1 was consulted chiefly in the first instance by Mr. Cooper
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with reference to that Maefarlane claim and to the manner in which it would be
disposed of. The expectation was that the matter could be settled then and theie,
when I went into it 1 expected that we would be able to settle that claim. But the
difficulty grew as we went along.

By the Hon. Mr. Kaulbach:

Q. Was there any great difficulty in settlement of the Armstrong matter ?-A.
I was not consulted on that.

Q. In settling with Mr. Armstrong, you did not anticipate any difficulty ?-A.
I took no part in that part of the settlement. But I certainly advised that it was
necessary to eliminate his hold upon the road before we could advantageously enter
upon the work.

Q. Did you know that that could be obtained for $50,000 ?-A. I did not.
Q. What did you estimate it at ?-A. I made no enquiries, because, as 1 remarked

that was settled with Mr. Thoni. If I were allowed to state what J have heard I
could throw some light on it further'.

By the Hon. 11r. McCallum:
Q. You wanted to remove him ?-A. That is perhaps not a beautiful expression.

My opinion was that we could do nothing unless the claims that Mr. Armstrong had
and the rights which attached to these claims, were eliminated.

By the Hion. Mr. Miller :
Q. I do not see why you tron bled Mr. Lonergan to come here
The WITNESS. If I may interpose a remark, I have not been able to perceive

that from the first.
By the Hon. Mr. Power:

Q. Did you know anything about the payment of $100,000 to Mr. Pacaud?
Then or afterwards ?-A. Neither now or then, nor ever except as far as the evidence
in this case goes.

Q. You were promoting the Bill which we are dealing with when it was before
the House of' Commons ?-A. I was attending to it.

Q. Did Mi». Cockburn, who is one of the directors in the Ontario Bank, or Mr.
Barwick, who acted as his counsel, know anything of this alleged payment or actual
payment of $100,000 or some such sum, to Mr. Pacaud before the Bill left the
Commons ?

Mr. BARWICK. No.
The ION. MR. POWER objected to the witness being iraterfered with.
Q. Before that Bill left the House of Commons, were Mr. Cockburn and Mr.

Barwick aware that payment had been made or that it was alleged a payment
had been made to Mi. Pacaud ?-A. I remiember that Mr. Barwick stated to the
Committee that $239,000 of this $280,000 had been diverted. I remember that,
because t challenged the statement. It was contrary to my information and I
thought I ought to be as well informed as he was. I remember further Mr. Cock-
burn using the expression-I vill only speak positively of the two wordb-some-
thing to the effect that steps ought to be taken in the interest of public morality-1
know he used the words " public morality "-that an enquiry should be instituted
into the doings of these people. The expression " public morality " directed my
mind to the allegations which at that time were appearing in the newspapers and
elsewhere.

Q. Mr. Cockburn and Mr. Barwick then did know something of the matter
before the Bill came here.

Mr. BARWICK. He does not say so.
The HoN. MR. POWER. Practically he does say so.
Q. What do you say about that, Mr. Lonergani ?-A. I would rather, if the Com-

mittee so will, confine my evidence to facts. I am not able to state in so many
words that any of these gentlemen mentioned said that $100,000 was so paid. I may
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have certain impressions, but my experience of life leads me to believe that a man's
impressions may oftentimes be at fault, and I would rather not express such
impressions here.

Q. What do you say about that, what was the impression on your mind ?-A. I
would rather contine my evidence to facts. I am not able to state that, in so many
words, any of these gentlemen nentioned stated that $100,000 was so paid. I may
have a certain impression, which my experience of life tells me a man's impression
may often be at fault, therefore I would not like to express them.

Q. Were any amendments made in the House of Commons Committee to this
Bill ?-A. Yes; the first time Mr. Cockburn submitted an amendment with refer-
ence to clause 5, as proposed by ourselves, which we accepted. The only objection
I find to it is that it expresses with greater prolixity what was already provided for.
The Bill was referred a second time to the House of Commons Committee, and itwas
argued then that Mr. Macfarlane had a lien on these 60 miles of road for the payment
of his claim, and that the clause as then worded did not protect or continue that
lien. I opposed that because I was confident, in the first place, that there was no
lien, and that, in the second place, clause 5 protected everything that existed, and
that was all the Cotmmittee could pass upon. However, in order to make no trouble,
I agreed to accept an addition of the word " lien " to the clause. As it read pre-
viously, the clause had the word " privileges," which Quebec lawyers will admit is

pretty much the saie as 'lien," and also another word, "undertaking," which met
with the satisfaction of the opposants, and I thought everything after that vas
smooth water, until the trouble arose here.

Q. In your opinion, as a Quebec lawyer and having considered the matter, does
the wording of the Bill as it is now protect Mr. Macfarlane's claim, supposing he
recovers a judgnient for $50,000 in the present suit ?

Objection having been taken to the question, the Chairman ruled that it was a
proper one, and Mr. Power repeated it, as follows:-

Q. Supposing Mr. Macfarlane recovers a judgment foi $50,000. do you think the
Bill, in its present form, would protect that judgment?-A. I am extremely reluc-
tant to advance my own opinion as a lawyer, but I do not think there is a lawyer in
the front rank of the profession in Quebec who would not admit that the Bill, as
now drawn, would protect every claim Macfarlane has of right. I may say this, as
a member of the company-which is trenching on fuct-that this company at no
time has ever contemplated getting out of the payment of that claim. So soon as it
is decided by the court it will be paid.

Q. I have referred to the opposition made to this Bill on behalf* of the Ontario
Bank, which you supposed was removed and agreed to by representatives of the
Ontario Bank. Was there any opposition other than the Ontario Bank opposition
threatened by any other member of the other House ?-A. I cannot remember of
any-I beg pardon, upon reflection I recollect that some suggestions were made to
me about the time limit. I asked for five years, originally in the Bill, to build the
road, and some members interested in the locality thought the time was too long,
that a bon2 fide company should build the road in a shorter time. We intend and
will, unless this trouble prevents, build the road by the 31st December, 1892, but in
drafting the Bill I wished for a year extra.

Q. Did this member make any demand on condition of withdrawing his oppo-
sition ?-A. Weil he thought the time should be reduced, and I did reduce it.

Q. You did as he asked ?-A. Not quite, he wanted it reduced to three and I
did reduce it.

Q. Did he make any other proposition in consideration of withdrawing his
opposition ?-A. I think he wanted some personal explanation as to the sufficiency
of our company and the bond fides of its intentions, upon which points I gave satis-
factory explanations.

Q. He did not want anything for himself ?-A. He was simply interested in the
country down there and in the road.

225
2A-15

A. 1891



Q. There was no demand made on behalf of the party himself ?-A. I under-
stood that the gentleman who spoke to me on the subject-in fact I may say I spoke
to him, appeared satisfied with my explanation. As to whether we did intend to
act in good faith and to go on with the work as rapidly as possible, I told bini the
contract was drawn at that time and would be put into operation as soon as possible.
I think I told him that four or five hundred men were employed on the road, whicli
is the case.

Hon. Mr. PowER-I do not mention any name because what I referred ta was
a rumour floating about the House of Commons and as everybody knows rumours
are not often well' founded and I thought it was an objectionable thing to give the
name until I found out whether there was any foundation for the rumour.

By the Hon. Mr. McInnes (B.C.) :
Q. Was any demand made upon you by any member of the House of Commons

in consideration of his support ?-A. No.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow morning at 10.30 o'clock.

TuE SENATE, COMMITTEE ROOM No. S,
TiURSDAY, 3rd September, 1891.

L. P. GODIN, of the City of Ottawa, in the Province of Ontario, member of the
Dominion Police, who, being duly sworn and examined, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Barwick:
Q. You are on the staff of the Dominion Police ?-A. I am, sir.
Q. Did you serve a suinmons on Mr. Philippe Vallière in Quebec ?-A. Yes.
Q. State when you served him, and how ?-A. On the 14th of August, in the

morning, at the door of his shop in St. Vallière street, Quebec.
Q. Have you a copy of the summons ?-A. I have. (Document produced.)

By the Chairnan ;
Q. You served him personally ?-A. Myself, personally, at his shop door.
Q. Did ho say anything to you whei you served the summons ?-A. le looked

at it and laugzhed, and said it was all right.
Q. Did you serve Mr. Demers ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Personally.-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did he make any remark ?-A. He was up here on the lSth; I saw hlm

porsonally and talked with him.
Q. You say he obeyed the summons ?-A. He was here, in tue room; ho told

me when T saw him that Mr. Vallière was on his road here in the train, and would
be in at one o'clock.

Q. Did Mr. Vallière come ?-A. That is what Mr. Demers told me, that lie
would be in by the 1 o'clock train.

On motion the witness was discharged.

CHARLES N. ARMSTRONG re-ealled anid further examined:

By lon. Mr. Tassé :
Q. You are well acquainted with Senator Robitaille ?-A. I have been fbr some

years.
Q. Do you know if he was a Senator when the transactions connected with the

$118,000 referred to here took place ?-A. Yes. he was.
Q. That is the amount referred to by Mr. Langelier ?-A. Yes, sir.
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The Hon. Mr. TAssÉ made the following statement:-When I asked for the
summons to be sent to Mr. Lesage, Deputy Commissioner of Public Works for the
Province of Quebec, my object was to prove by bis evidence certain circumstances
connected with the payment of the sum of $100,000, the improper retention and
misapplication of which has formed one of the subjects of enquiry by your Commit-
tee, and I further state that my object having been attained by the evidence given by
other witinesses, I have now no special reason for insisting upon the attendance of
Mr. Lesage.

After further proceedings,-
The Hon. Mr. TAss.-Yesterday I asked the Committee, to ask the permission of

the House of Commons to have the Hon. François Langelier here, to give evidence
in connection with a certain matter that I wanted elicited. Sinceyesterday, I desire
to say, as no action has been taken upon the motion, I have obtained from other
sources the information I wanted from Mr. Langelier. I will tell you how the
matter stands. In Mr. Pelletier's evidence, at pages 150 and 151 of the printed
Minutes of Evidence, appears the following:-

" Hon. Mr. PELLETIER.-The proceeds were not used to pay my personal debts.
To show that they had nothing to do with the elections, i will say that after the
elections were over it was expected that a good many elections would be protested
and a good many counter contestations, and, of course, nearly all our friends, whether
elected or deteated, were interested, but had not the means to file the deposit in the
court or in the Treasury Department, as the law requires, of $1,000 in each case.
As in many other cases, 1 endeavoured to help my friends. It was a private matter,
and Mr. Mercier, before leaving for Europe, expecting this would be required, left
in my hands three, or I would not be sure but that it was four notes, endorsed in
blank, in case we would requiro money to help our friends make these deposits. I
kept these notes until they were required and these amounts were raised for a good
Manly petitions and couniter contestations. Iii the absence of Mir. Mercier we tilled
up these notes, endorsed them, and I never saw anything of them afterwards. They
were placed in the banks and used for -making these petitiors and counter contest-
ations in the courts."

Mr. PELLETIER further testifies as follows, in reply to Mr. Barwick:-
" Q. Here is another note due on the 18th of May for $5,000 and another note

due on the 4th of August foi' $3,000 ?-A. I do not see my name there.
Mr. BARwICK-A witness swore that your name was there.

"Hon. Mr. PELLETIER-But I do not swear it.
Mr. BARwIcK-t was sworn to by Mir. Webb. Here is another note of the

Banque Nationale for $5,000, which makes $23,000 altogether. Now, were these notes
all signed for the purpose you mention ?-A. I do not see my name for $23,000; I do
not say' it is not. Al these notes I endorsed were for that purposo; I say that posi-
tivelv. Mr. Pacaud was the one who was given the moiey to distribute. He told
m1e so. I endorsed the notes without looking at the dates of expiration. I did not
even look at the anounts, because I knew what they were for.

" How many election petitions were there ?-A. I could not say. There ýwere
a good many petitions and counter petitions.

" Q. These notes wer e made foi' the district of Quebec ?-A. It was understood
for that.

" Q. How many petitions were there in the district of Quebee ?-A. I say I do
not know. I did not know how many petitions or counter petitions.

" Q. You do not know whether they were for Quebec district or not ?-A. I
inderstood it would be from Three Rivers down to the Gulf; I do not know ; I had
nothing to do with that.

"Q. Do you think there were 23 ?-A. I say I do not know.
"Q. Do you think there were 10 or 23 ?-A. I told you I did not know how

inany petitions or counter petitions.
" Q. You havenoideawhethertherewer'e 10 or23 ?-A. Ibelieve ofpetitions and

COunter petitions there were more than 10.
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"Q. 15 ?-A. Well, I do not know, I think my answer is clear."
It will be seen that Mr. Pelletier says that all the notes were discounted after

theelections-the elections were on the 5th of March. I would like the Clerk to read
Exhibit 41.

Exhibit 41 was read by the Clerk as follows

QUEBEC, 28th February, 1891.
" $5 ,000.

In two months from this date for value received I promise to pay to the oder
of the Honourable iLonoré Mercier the surm of five thousand dollars.

(Signed) " ERNEST PACAIUD.
" (Endorsed) "HONORÉ MERCIER.

"1F. LANGELIER.
"CHs. LANGELIER.
"C. A. P. PELLETIER.
"ERNEST PACAUD."

The Hon. Mr. TASSÉ-Was that protested ?
The Clerk-Protest was made on the lst May, 1891, by C. N. Tessier, Notary

Public. Notice was given to the endorsers.
Hon. Mr. TAssÉ.-On page 84, in Exhibit 38, another note is mentioned of the

Union Bank (the first was La Banque du Peuple), due the lst of May, the same day,
$5,000. So far we have not been able to ascertain the date of the signing and dis-
counting of that note. Yesteiday, at my request, Mr. Barwick telegraphed the Bank
as follows:-

" Please wire immediately date of Five thousand note paid May 1st.-W.
BARwICK.

Telegram filed as Exhibit 94.
and this is the answer received -

"I Dated February 28th, at two months date. E. E. WEBB."
Telegran filed as Exhibit 95.
Hon. Mr. TAss-That inakes $10,000 discounted before the elections. That is

the point 1 wanted to make.
Mr. LANoEIER-It does not say so.
The Hon. Mr. TASSÉ-Do yOU dispute my statement that it was dated the lst

of May ?
Mr. LANGELIER-There is no evidence there to show when it was discounted.
The Ron. Mr. TAssÉ-It was signed on the 28th of February.
Mr. LANGELIER-It was dated that.
After further proceedings,-
Mr. C. N. ARMSTRONG-Before the evidence is closed I would like to put in a

statement with refeience to Mr. Macfarlane's account with me.
After discussion, the document was allowed to be put in, and was filod as

Exhibit 96.
Mr. LANGELIER-I have very little to say as to the charges against the Local

Government. I have not to diseuse them here; they will be investigated and dis-
cussed in another place. I understood thatI was to come here to discuss a charge I
made the other day against the old company, as we call it, to distinguish it from
the re-organized company. I am very much surprised that I do iot see one word
in the official minutes about that charge. I have seen the counsel for the Ontario
Bank harping on the words i used, and quoting what I thought to be the official
record of the proceedings, and yet I do not find one word in the official report about
that charge. It does not appear to have been made, so that you have been losing a
great deal of time in discussing what does not appear iii the record. I have read it
again and again, and there is no record whatsoever of such a charge having been
made. It should be in the official records of the proceedings, and yet I do not find
a word about it. I am surpiised, therefore, to find the counsel representing the
Ontario Bank has been harping upon a word which I have used.
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THE CHAIRMAN. The charge has been duly entered upon the corrected minutes.
Mr. LANGELIER-1 may remark in passing that the translation made here bears

out what I contend. After all the discussions we have had with dictionaries, the
official translation of Mr. Chrysostome Langelier's evidence bears out what I have
said about the word "detourner." If the members of the Committee will take the
trouble, instead of look at dictionaries, to look at page 130 of the Minutes of Evidence,
they will see to what I refer. It will be remembered that Mr. Chrysostome Langelier
gave his evidence in French.

The Hon. Mr. TAbs-Partly in French and partly in English.
Mr. LANGELIER-At the page of the Evidence i refer to you will find this ques-

tion and answer:-
" Q. Do you know what induced the Local Governinent to pay the workmen

out of a local subsidy the first time ?-A. It was because the Government thought if
they puid the money to the company or the contractor the money might have been
misapplied from its proper purpose as it was before." My brother, the witness. used
the word " detourner," and it was translated " misapplied." I think that disposes of
all the dictionary discussions we had the other day. I had nothing to do with this
translation, but it exactly agrees with my contention. The word has two different
meanings; it nay inean criminal "detournement " or only illegal " detournement."
It has been alleged that " detournement " could not have any but a criminal meaning.
I have proved that that is not correct. Now, I come to the charge. I must say first I
vould like to know whether the statement just filed by Mr. Armstrong will be taken

as evidence.
The CHAIRMAN-NO.
Mr. LANGELIER-Because if it were, the whole of this investigation will be for

nothing. The only locus standi of the Ontario Bank is as a creditor ot Mr. Macfarlane,
because Mr. Macfarlane is supposed to be a creditor of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company. Only that I brought out that evidence myself the other day, there was
not a particle of evidence in the record to prove that there was a claim either of the
Ontario Bank or Mr. Macfarlane, and if this statement was to be admitted the whole
case would go for nothing. The only testimony we have is the testimony of Mr.
Macfalane himself. I take it for granted that this evidence, which is uncontradicted,
is to be accepted, and niy argument will be based upon that. I cannot presume
that the Committee wvill fail to admit it, because it is the basis of their assumed
jurisdiction. They would have no jurisdietion, real or pretended, if there was no claini
of Mr. Maefarlane, and the whole inatter would fall to the ground on that. I will con-
tent m yself with referring the Comnittee to a fe'w facts which appear in the evidence.
Accord ing to the testimony of Mr. J. J. MeDonald, page 84 of the printed evidence,
the 60 miles of railway built have cost at most an average of $13,000 per mile. He
says fromi $12,000 to $13,000 per mile. I take the outside figure. Mr. Light in his
evidence, at page 111 of the same printed evidence, says the worlk executed on the
whole 60 miles is worth $14,000 a mile. Let us take the middle figure between the
$14,000 a mile stated by Mr. Light and the $12.000 a mile which is the least figure
given by Mr. McDonald, and put the whole value of the work at $13,000 a mile. That
would make $780,000 of work which is there. We have value for that amount.
Upon that it is in evidence that there remains to be paid when the work was executed
$298,000 due to Mr. Armstrong. I do not presume the old Company will dispute
that amount. It is founded on their own admission, in writing, which we have here.
It is three times before us in writing, signed by the managing director and by the
secretary, and certified to by Mr. Light, the engineer of the company. With these
things I do not presume the Company will dispute the genuineness of the claim of
$298,000. Some other parties may dispute it, but the Company can have no right
to appear before the court like this and say: We dispute the claim which we have
already admitted in writing. There remains, then, that much to be paid. I have
proved by Mr. Macfarlane that he bas a claim of about $200,000. That makes a
total of liabilities of $498,000. That is to say, out of that total amount of $780,000
of work which we have, $498,000 remained unpaid when the work was
conipleted, or completed to the state in which it now is. So that what that company
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has put into that work is the difference between $780,000 and $498,000, that differ-
ence being $282,000. That is all that the company, according to the evidence that
we have here, is proved to have expended on the road. The rest remains unpaid.

t is see what the conipany bas got to pay this $282,000. It has received from the
Federa! Government (I quote from the Public Accounts, ard we have it here also in
two places in the Officiai Record) the following sum : In 1887, page 10 (iRoman
figures), $250,000; in 1888, at page 8 (Roman figures), $50,300; 1889, page 8
(.Roman figures), $75,200 ; in 1890, page 7 (Roman figures), $148,675, making a total
amount of $524,175 which they have received in hard cash from the Dominion
Government. Let us see what they have received from the local Government of
Quebec. I again take my information froin the Public Accounts of the Province of
Quebec, an official document which is here in the library. In 1887 (page 137 of the
Public Accounts of Quebec for that year) they received $66,000; in 1888 (page 150
of the Public Accounts), they received $74,000; in 1889 (page 180 of the Public
Accounts), they received $180,984, making a total of $320,054, which they have
received from the Local Government. If we add these two amounts together we
get a total of $845,129, and that is the amount of cash which the old company has
received from the Government of the Dominion and the Government of Quebec.
Deducting from this the amount which they have paid, $282,000, we sec that they
'iave to account for $563,129 of Dominion and local subsidies which wasmisapplied.
They must explain what they have done with that money. It is not for me to go
into the details.

The Hon. -Mr. MCCALLUM-IS Pacaud's $100,000 included in that ?
Mr. LANGELIER-I arm speaking of the old company.
The Hon. Mr. MCCALLUM-Did they not, get that from the old company ?
Mr. LANGELIER-It bas nothing to do with the matter of which I am speaking.
The CHAIRMAN-I think we had better allow 1r. Langelier to proceed without

interruption.
Mr. LANGELIER-I do not complain at all at the demand for explanations. But

that has nothing to do with the case I am making. I speak of the company before
its re-organization. I have proved by the documents in possession of the Comnittee
the amount of money received, and also the amount of work that was donc.

The Hon. Mr. McCALLUM-BuIt that money came out of a subsidy.
Mr. LANGELIER-The amount of money they have received, is proved by the

Public Accounts, and what they have given is proved by the testimony of Mr.
McDonald and Mr. Light. And the amount remaining unpaid is proved in the
recorde before the Committee. The evidenco contradicts ail their statements, and
they cannot show work for the amount they have received. low has it gone ; has
it gone in boodie ? Or something else. I do not know. But there is no work for it.
We have an explanation of some of the items. No contradiction bas been adduced
of the evidence I have brought out, that $10,000 was paid by the first contractors,
Messrs. McDonald and O'Brien to Mr. Riopel and Mr. Armstrong. This $10,000 was
repaid to the contractors, was recouped to them out of the subsidies which they got.
They never got the $10,000 from Mr. Riopel, therefore the $10,000 paid out of subsi-
(lies renains in the hands of Mr. Riopel according to the evidence. Let us take the
$40,000 paid to McGreevy. That also bas been taken out of the subsiily. Mr. Arm-
strong stated that he paid it out of his own money. What does it matter whether he
paid that amount out of his own money or out of other peoples money; he had so
much less to do the work on the road when ho had taken this $40,000 to buy out
Mr. McGreevy. What bas been done with this $40,000 ? It bas not gone into the
work but into Mr. McGreevy's pocket. Therefo're I say the company has to account
for $563,129 of money which they have got more than the work which is proved to
have been executed by them.

The Hon. Mr. TAssÉ-Will you repeat those figures, please ?
Mr. LANGELIER-The full amount of work executed was $730,000. There was

unpaid on that work $298,000 to Mr. Armstrong (I take the round figure, it is nearly
$299,000) and $200,000 to Mr. Macfarlane according to his testimony before this
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Committee, making a total unpaid of $498,000. So that we have to deduet that
amount from the work which is in existence, leaving paid on the work $282.000. If
we deduct the amount of work paid froi the total amount of the subsidies which is
$845,129 we find an amount unaccounted for of $563,120.

The Hon. Mr. READ-To whon have they paid $282,000?
Mr. LANGELIER-I do not know.
The Hon. Mr. READ-We have it in evidence that $252,000 was paid to McDon-

ald, O'Brien & Co., and that a large amount was paid to Mr. Macfarlane.
Mr. LANGELIER-We have it in evidence that they gave back $10,000 of that

money. I do not say the money was directly taken. I do not say the Company
went direct to the Government and took the money.

The lion. Mr. McMILLAN-But $250,000 was paid to O'Brien and McDonald,
and then there is Macfarlane's claim of $200,000; what amount of-work did he do?

Mr. LANGELIER-I do not know.
The Hon. Mu. McMILLAN-It is in evidence here.
Mr. LANGELIER-No; there is no evidence of the amount paid to him. There is

evidence this morning of the amount paid to Mr. Armstrong; there is evidenc3 of
the amount due to Mr. Macfarlane, but not of the amount paid.

The Hon. Mr. MCMILLAN-Did not he swear to the amount of work done?
The Hon. Mr. McCAL LUM-You say there is so much money to account for; to

whom will they account ? '
Mr. LANGELIER-That money should have gone on the road, but we do not find

it did.
The lon. Mu. McCALLUM-Who is responsible? Who got that money?
The CHARMAN-1 think it would be butter to let Mu. Langelier proceed without

interrupti)g hin.
HoN. MR. READ (Quinté)-I would like to have an answer to one question.
HON. MR. ALioN-If Mr. Langelier is to answer questions, I move that he be

put on oath.
HON. MR. READ-Mr. Langelier says they have done woîk for $780,000, and

received money from the Dominion and Quebec Governments of $845,129. Now,
that is all the work done on the road ?

MR. LANGELIER-AecOrding to the evidence.
HoN. MR. READ-How do we understand that the company and the road is in-

delted to Mr. Armstrong for $298,000?
MR. LANGELIER-I do not understand it; I take the admission of the company

itself. I am speaking against the company here. How can the company gainsay
their own written statement? They admitted that they were indebted to the amount
of $298,000. It is not foe me to discuss it; we have got it here, and in a court of
law they wvould be taken, on their own written admission. They owed Mr. Arm-
strong $298,000, and it is in evidence here (they do not admit it, they deny it I must
say it at once, but this Committee cannot deny it because they would have no juris-
diction if they did) that Macfarlane's claim is about $200,000. Therefore we have
it in evidence incontrovertable that $498,000 remains unpaid by the old company
out of a total amount of work proved of $780,000. These are not my witnesses. I
beg the Committee to remember that. I did not bring up one of these witnesses.
Mr. John J. Macdonîald was not brought up as a witness by me. Mr. Light, the
engineer, was not brought up by me. These gentlemen er'e br'ought up as witnesses
by the Ontario Bank, and the whole case has been rested by the counsel upon their
evidence. I say this, gentlemen, whatever may be said elsewhere, it is proven that
there is no vork now for more than $780,000, and I say that makes out as clearly as
I ever saw a case that they must account for $563,189. What have they done with
it? It is not my business to enquire. I take the case as we have it now, with the
evidence we have in the record.

MR. BARwIcK-Mr. Chairman, I appear for the Hon. Senator RobitaillA, not
because it would have been necessary for him under ordinary circumstances to
employ counsel, but because owing to his physical infirmities he is unable to exercise
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bis voice in anbwe- to charges when they are made against him here, and I desire
to be se understood as speaking this morning. Before I take up the facts of the
case with regard to this charge, I only desire to say one or two words with regard
to the figures quoted by the counsel for the Quebec Government. He says the evi-
dence produced makes it perfectly plain that the company have disbursed only
$282,000. He surely does not forget the exhibit we put in yesterday (Exhibit 93)
in which they showed an expenditure of $360,000 in one sum. The Ontario Bank
alone bas received $278,254, Mr. Taylor got $262,000. And yet the counsel for the
Quebec Government says to this Committee that the documents put in proved that
they have disbursed only $282.000. The counsel for the Quebec Government says
that the company had disbursed only $282,000.

The Hon. Mr. POwER-I understood the counsel for the Quebec Government
to say that only so nuch money had gone into the road. I don't think he spoke of
the ainount disbursed.

Mr. BARICK-1 mean that. And yet Exhibit 93 shows that $370,000, with
the exception of a balance of $972.75, as actually. gene into the road. That small
balance being in the hands of Mr. Murray Smith or of the Grovernment. In addition
it must be remembered that the Ontario Bank have received $278,254, according to
this Exhibit 93, Mr. Taylor's firm received $262,000, and in addition the Ontario
Bank advanced to Macfarlane moneys which went into the road, $278,254.
Take another set of his figures. He says that he bas proved that $10 000 went into
the bands of Mr. Riopel and it has never been got back. I leave it to the Com-
mittee if we did not prove by his own witness whom he called to prove misappro-
priation that that $10,000 -was placed in the hands of the company as security by
the contractors that they would carry out the contract, and every dollar of that was
returned honestly and honourably. Yet the ceunsel says that Mir. Riopel holds
$10,000 to-day. i say that charge is not true and there is not a bit of evidence to
support it. There is not a bit of' evidence to prove in the record that Mr. Riopel got
a dollar. There is proof that $10,000 went into the bands of the company sinply as
a marked cheque, as a deposit, and it was returned. Then he says $40,000 was paid
to Mr. McGrcevy. Certanly. We had the explanation yesterday. Mr. Armstrong
would not go into the company unless Mr. McGreevy went out, and he agreed to
pay $40,000 for Mr. McGreevy's rights under the contract, for his plant and stock,
and Mr. Armstrong paid hin $40,000 out of the money whieb he was honestly
entitled to receive under his contract, and he paid him with the exception of the last
>um of $8,000 which lie is to pay him under his contract when that money is drawn
from the Government, and then Mr. McGreevy is to assign bis him stock. Is the're
any boodle in that ?

Mr. LANGELIER-That is exactly my contention.
Mr. BARtWICK-Exactly. His contention was that the $40,000 wvas boodled,

stolen, and I say the proof is clear that that contention is not a true one. Now, the
counsel for the Quebec Governnent says the record does not contain a charge of
embezzlenent or misapplication of funds. But the record does, and I read the
record, Exhibit 84. It is part of the official shorthand written notes. I will read it.

Mr. LANGEIEn-Where is that printed ? It is not in the official record.
Mr. BARwIcK-It is yet to be printed. You will find it if you inquiîre up stairs.
" HON FRANÇOIS LANoELIER-l'assert, and my a:sertion is not a more idle one,

but it is borne out by a statutory declaration which can be made good on oath by the
witness, that $118,000 granted directly to the company was embezzled.

" Hon. Mr. RoBITAILLE-By the conpany ?
"lHon. FRANÇols LANGELIER-I go further. Criminal proceedings were

threatened against the company, and they had to pay up under a threat of' crimiinal
proceedings.

" IHon. Mr. RoBITAILLE denied the alegations and expressed the hope that the
" matter be fully investigated.

" After further discussion,
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" The Hon. Mr. TAss--If I understand the case, Mr. Langelier takes the
" responsibility of naking a charge against the company to the extent of $118,.O.

" Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-My statement is in the statutory declaration which is
"fyled.

"Hon. Mr. RioBITAILLE-That is your statement and you are responsible for it.
"Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-I say my statement is borne out by the state meit that

"$118,000 was embezzled or misapplied-call it what you like.
-' On the proposal of the Hon. Mr. Tassé the statement was read to the Com-

mittee.
" The Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE-I heard in that document nothing about criminal

proceedings. I suppose that Mr. Langelier would have no objection to with-
drawing his statement.

" Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-I did not say that the threat, of criminal proceedings
"was made in the documents. I say that criminal proceedings were threatened

against the oid proprietors.
After further discussion.

"AN HONOUJRABLE MEMBER-DO you make the charge.
"The Hon. MI'. LANGELIER-I make the charge from the infornùation that 1

" have that if you bring here Mr. Taylor and the other gentlemen",
Who is not named but who, the Committee will remember, was Mr. Burland.
"-it will be proved that $118,000 of Federal subsidy were misapplied or embez-

gled-call it what you like.
" The Hon. MI'. OGILVIE-The hon. gentleman made the statement that they

"had embezzled $118,000, and he was prepared to prove that by statutory decla-
ration. I ask the Chairman to say that he said that.

" The Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-I said that I made such a statement, and my
" statement is borne out by statutor'y-evidence."

Now, I say that the charge, as Senator Robitaille understood it, was a charge
levelled at him of misappropriating $118,000 and there was a charge coupled with it
that he had restored $40,000 under threat of criminal proceedings. Now, on the
27th of August appears on page 147 of the evidence printed, Senator Robitaille an-
swered the charge in these words:

"At the last meeting of this Committee, the Honourable Francois Langelier, a
gentleman of high standing, who occupies a high position of Professor in Law in
Laval University, and who has the honour to occupy a seat in the House of Com-
mons of Canada, who was a member of the Government of Quobec when I was Lieu-
tenant-Gover'nor. has felt it his duty to prefer a charge of embezzlement against me
and my associates, acting as directors of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.
I asked you to institute a searching investigation into the charge, and 1 am here to-
day to repeat the request that you shall investigate the matter and probe it to the
very bottom, nay, I desire that you should extend your investigation into all the
doings of the company since its ince ption, and that every facility should be afforded
and extended to the accuser. Should you, in the course of your investigations, find
out any wrong-doing on the part of the railway company I am prepared to stand by
the consequences, but if not, and should the investigation prove that everything is
right, as I know it is, I would ask that I should be reinstated in the position I occu-
pied before the public before the charge was made, namely, a position of trust and
ionour, esteem, respect and good-will among my fellow-men."

Now the Honourable Senator Robitaille accepted that charge as meaning that he
stole $118,000, there is no use quibbling about words, but the Honourable Mr. Massen
knows as a Frenchman and every Frenchman knows that the meaning of the word
" detournement de fonds" means that the man stole, I do not care whether it is
called embezzlement or not. I am told by the Honourable Mr. Masson and other
prominent Quebec lawyers, members of this House, that embezzlement is understood,
by every student at law exactly in the way we understood it. On the 28th August
the Honourable Francois Langelier appeared here. He was afforded ever'yfacility to
prove his charge. He was asked to name his witnesses. He named his witnesses,
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he was allowed to put in his statutory declaration and he brought his wit-
nesses here and began with his proof, first taking up the charge of the
8118,000. He called Mr. Taylor and he put in Senator Robitaille's letters and
Senator Robitaille's telegrams, to do what? To show that Senator Robitaille was one
of those who misappropriated the $118,000. He even objected to the attempt to
prove that Senator Robitaille had consulted an eminent counsel in Quebec and had
acted under his advice. He protested against putting in the written advice of that
eminent counsel to show why le acted, and low he acted, and that opinion was put
in against his protest because it was considered that this evidence proved whether
or not Senator Robitaille had been guilty of embezzlement. Mr. Taylor gave his
evidence, I do not know whether the Committee thought so, but Mr. Taylor gave his
evidence apparently niot clearly until he came to be cross-examined, and then it was
perfectly plain that if ever there was an honest man it was Mr. Taylor, and ho gave
his evidence as clearly as a man could give it, and ho showed that he came here
under a sense of injury, and it became clear that ho felt injured, that his declaration,
made for an honest purpose, had been twisted and contorted and distorted with a
view to ruinin- a man of the eminence of Senator Robitaille. Mr. J. Chrysostome
Langelier sa there, the Deputy Registrar of the Province of Quebec, here without
leave, remaining here day after day. Why was he the only official of the Province
of Quebec that was here ? Because le came with the papers in his pocket, to place
them in the hands of his brother, the Hon. Mr. François Langelier, to ruin Senator
Robitaille if ho could. Now, the Hon. François Langelier made another charge. He
charged on the 28th of August that criminal proceedingswere threatened and that
threat having been made the $40,000 was restored. 1is first charge was made on
the 25th of August and on the 28th of August ho repeated the charge. Tliree days
after he had made his first charge, having had ample time to consider and weigh the
meaning of English words we find him saying this: I said "You spoke of criminal
proceedings."

" Mr. LANGELIER.-That is another statement, and I will prove that statement
also." That was a statement that lie would prove, that ho undertook the responsi-
bility of proving, that the lon. Senator Robitaille and his co-directors had restored
money under a threat of criminal proceedings. What proof did ho offer ? He never
asked one question. He has never to this day dared to ask a witness a question as
to whether criminal proceedings had been taken or not, and lie has allowed Mr.
Taylor to complete hid evidence and allowed me to draw from him, on cross-exami-
nation, the statement ho has never made a threat of criminal proceedings and would
never have dared to do so, and that there was no necessity for it. And yet the Hion.
François Langelier, though he made that charge on that day, leaves it unwithdrawn
now. Now, the Hon. François Langelier has an organ in the Province of Quebec,
called the L'Electeur

Mr. LANGELIER.-1s that in evidence?
Mr. BARWICK.-I read it to show how the public have understood his charge,

and how his friends understand the charge. .n L'Electeur of the 28th August I find
an article, as follows:-

Now, here is an enquiry which turns against their friends and spreads terror
in their camp. You remember the other day Hon. François Langelier accused the
Robitaille-Riopel Company of having taken $118,000 of subsidy voted to aid in the
construction of the railway. He made his proof this morning

Several Hon. MEMBERs.-Oh, oh.
Mr. LANGELIER-That is a matter of opinion.
Mr. BARwICK-Hon. François Langelier says that is a matter of opinion here.

Is his opinion in his organ.
"He made his proof this morning."

That was the day Mr. Taylor was examined.
"Not only has he proved that the money was taken, but ho produced writings which
showed how it had been divided. Hon. Mr. Langelier has proved more than he had
promised. He had promised to prove that $118,000 of the subsidies, in place of being
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used in the construction of the road, had been absorbed in boodle. Not onily has ho
proved that, but he has proved whore the money (detourner), diverted from its
destination, went.

M4r. LANGELIER-Why do you not say embezzled?
Mr. BARWICK-Because détournement (diverted) is the meaning there. It is not

détournement de fond. If a man diverts a river, you do not say he embezzles a river.
" And ho established that nearly the whole went into the pockets of a Senator and
two deputies in the House. This is Hon. François Langelier's organ.

Mr. LANGELIER-I would call the Committee's attention to the fact that the
counsel is allowed to read from papers on the one side, and if so, I shou Id be allowed
to read from papers on the other side.

Mr. BARwIcK-With pleasure.
Mr. LANGELIER-It wili take up a great deal of the time of this Coimittee.

He says it is my organ. It is not so. It is a paper belonging to my party, I admit,
but its statements cati have nothing to do with this case.

Hon. Mr. OGIviE-All the statements we have had from your side have had
very little to do with the case.

Mr. BARweIC-" But Mr. Langelier."
That is Hon. François Langelier did not stop at that. He has proof which

throws a light upon certain past events. He has shown that $40,000 has been taken
directly from the publie chest to use in the elections of 1887.

That is what he proved by Mr. Taylor I suppose.
"So thon, as I have shown above, under the terms of the document of 9th June,

1886, no one other than Mr. Burland. has the right to touch a sou of that $370,000 of
subsidy which the company by that same document had committed to his trustee-
ship. Yet in ,January, 1887, it is shown ail of a sudden that the Federal Govern-
ment paid $40,000 to the company, than which they had no more right to receive
than a man in the moon."

Then there is a clause devoted to the abuse of me.
The Hon. Mr. TAssÉ-Please read the cxtract of the day previous.
Mr. BARWICK-Fron the L'Electeur of the 28ih August.
" The simple minded men of the Senate pretend that they have full jurisdiction

in the affair of the $100000, but as soon as they are referred to the $75,000 of
Riopel and Robitaille, to the $52,000 of Federal subsidy obtained under false pre-
tences by the Ontario Bank, or the $118.0 10 pocketed by Riopel and Robitaille in
connection with the contract Macdonald and Taylor. they do not want to inquire
into anything. What does the public think of these old comedians."

The CiiAIRMAN-Do you know who is the Ottawa correspondent of that paper ?
Mr. BARwIcK-Now, I quote that sentence, not with a view of bringing anybody

into contempt, but with a view of showing how the publie have understood the
charge levelled at a man occupying so high a position, by one occupying a position
almost as high. Now, the Government of the Province of Quebee disputes the
jurisdiction of the Committee, almost defies its power, refusing to permit any official
to come here exce)t Mr. J. Chrysostome Langelier, but when the Government of
the Province of Quebec wanted to ruin a man like the Hon. Senator Robitaille did
they dispute the jurisdiction of this Committec ? Did they not come here and use
every facility this Committee could afford to try to ruin that man. This is not a
charge made by an isolated individual it is a charge made by the Government of
the Province of Quebec- through its counsel, Hon. François Langelier, and it sets
aside its objections to the jurisdiction of the Committee to ruin an honourable man.
Now, the Hon. Senator Robitaille met that charge, for ho was prepared to stand by
the consequences, and he knew that the consequences were, if Hon. François Lange-
lier, counsol for the Government of the Province of Quebec, proved his charge that
ho would have to retire by resignation from this House or face a vote of expulsion. He
knew that if Hon. François Langelier proved that charge, or even half of it, ho who had
always thought himself an honourable man and was deemed an honourable man by his
fellow citizens would be handed down in Canadian history branled as a thief. Who
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made that charge ? One of Her Majesty's counsel learned in the law, a Professor of
law in a distinguished University, a Member of Governmeits, a Mem ber of the House
of Commons. He took the responsibility of making the charges which the lon.
Senator met as solemnly as they were made. lie asks the Committee to find that
the two charges were made: first, that the charge was made of embezzlement, of
misappropriation of public funde; second, and by the saine person, that vriminal
proceedings were threatened against him and his associates, and that under th. eat ot
criminal proceedings they restored $40,000 which they had attempted to misappro-
priate. He asks the Committee to find that Hon. François Langelier, a Member of
the House of Commons of Canada, stated his ability to prove bis charges by docu-
ments which ho would lay before the Comnittee, and by witnesses whom ho desired
to hâve summoned. The Hon. Senator Robitaille asks this Committee to find that
on the production of such documents and upon the hearing of such witnesses it
appears that the charge of misappropriation was false, and he asks the Committee to
find that Hon. François Langelier, a member of the House of Commons of Canada
offered no proof in support of his charge that criminal proceedings had been threat-
under which the $40,000 had been restored, and that such charge is false. As Hon.
Senator Robitaille was prepared to stand by the consequences of the charge and of
the inquiry, he now asks in the words of his answer that this Committeo reinstate
him by their finding in the position which ho occupied among his fellow men before
these. .... fbise......charges were made.

Hon. Mr. MACDONALD (British Coltumbia)-l desire to ask an explanation. The
counsel for the Province of Quebec charged that $118,000 was misapplied, but now
he speaks only of a sum of $500,000. I wish him to explain as to the différence.

Mr. LANGELIER-The $118,000 is inicluded in the larger amount which I have
proved was misapplied. I may say a word as to the question of jurisdiction, which
bas been mentioned by Mr. Barwick. On this point there seems to be a misappre-
hension. I do not know the practice in Ontario, but in Quebec in -ll our courts-as
Mr. Creighton, who is very well acquainted with our law can say-every day you
see defendants objecting to the jurisdiction of the court, yet when the court decides
that it bas jurisdiction the defendant romains and defends himself. It is a matter
of daily occurrence.

Hon. Mr. MAssON-Do the witnesses refuse to come ?
Mr. LANGELIER-Ifthey refuse to cone the court will compel them to come,

and I understand this Committee will take proceedings to ceompel the attendance of
these witnesses whom they have called or punish them for thoir refusai. I diesireto
say a few words as to some of the arguments of the learned couns4l. As to Mr.
Chrysostôme Langelier, his statement is entiroly unwarranted. le says that Mr.
Langelier was here without leave; that he was here against the rule of the Civil
Service, and that he was spending bore several days.' Mr. Langelier has been on
leave at the Baie des Chaleurs for a month, and ho came heore in obedience to the
summons. He states that ho consulted nobody. If ho had, ho would never have
cone. Doos the Committee blame him for obeying its summons when others did not
do so ? If the learned counsel's statement means anything, it means to blame Mr.
Langelier for coming.

Mr. BARwiC K-No.
Mr. LANGELIER-If it does not mean that it does not mean anything.
Hon. Mr. BOULTON-It was on your recommendation he came.
Mr. LANGELIER.-He wanted to be here; ho telegraphed me before, there was a

suminons wanting him to come and contradiet some statements. I said that I had no
control, but I was anxious that he should come to clear iis character which had
been belied in his absence. As to the misapplication .of the money, let us come to
the $40,000. The Iearned counsel says I did not prove my statement. Let us take the
facts in evidence. The Baie de Chaleurs Railway Company had no more right to
touch this $40,000 than the man in the moon; every member of the Committee
knows that we have it on record that the whole of the subSidies were transferred to
Mr. Burland. Nobody else had any right to receive this $40,000. The Presidont of
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the Comumittee signed that transfer. Yet what do we see. The company which bas
made the transfer of the subsidy goes to the Government and gets the money. Some-
body nust have gone to the Railway Department to get that money.

Mi. BARwIeC-No.
Mr. LANGELIER-At all events, the Company received the money; it could only

be got by false pretences.
Mr. BARWICK.-No.
Mr. LANGELIER-Then it must be a charge against the Railway Department; if

the Company did niot deceive the Dominion Government then the Dominion Govern-
ment committed a criminal act in paying money to one party which should have
been paid to another. But I do not say that the Dominion Government knew any-
thing. If they had known that there was a transfer to Mr. Burland they would not
have paid the $40,000. A great deal of stress is put upon the fact concerning
criminal proceedings. If criminal proceedings were not taken they might have
been taken ; they should have been taken against the parties who received the
money. Whoever received the money did an act for which ho might be sued
criminally. They consulted a lawyer in Quebee, according to Mr. Taylor's evidence,
Mr. Taylor wanted to resort to legal proceedings. What could he do ? Any lawyer
would have told him that the person who received that money was no more entitled
to it than the man in the moon, and that the way to proceed was to take a criminal
action. HIad he cone to me, that is what I would have advised him.

Hon. Mr. OGeLVIE-That is too thin.
Mr. LANGELIER-I do not think the public will think that it is too thin; we

have all a judge of final resort in this matter, and though I have great respect for
this Committee, I know that we are to bejudged by a higher court than either of our
Houses and by the electors of this country, and I am ready to abide by their
decision. Now, as to the use of the money, the counsel for the old company wishes
to make it appear that I have charged Senator Robitaille in particular. He harps
on the naine of Senator Robitaille. I charged the old company thon and I charge
it now. I do not withdraw one word of my charge.

Hon. Mr. OGILVIE.-You have not proved it.
Mr. LANGELIER.-Thatt is the Hon. Gentleman's opinion. I am sure it will not

be the opinion of tho public if such a long investigation had becn gone into on other
points as was made into the misapplication of this $100,0,00, some very interesting
facts would have been elicited. It is a fauct that Mr. Armstrong has spent all this
money, the money has gone into somebody's pockot, because it has gone ont of the
public treasury. But has it gone into the work ? that is the point. i have Mr.
Light's and Mr. McDonald's testimony to show that it did not go into the work.
Where did it go ? It is for this Committee to answer.

Mr. BARWICK.-It was perfectly and plainly proved that the $40,000 was paid
by mistake and was returned before the demand was made. Before Mr. Taylor went
to Quebec to see Senator Robitaille ho had a telegram in his hand that it would be
paid as sooi as Mr. Riopel came back to sign the choque.

lon. Mr. TAss.-I would like, Mir. Langelier, to put you a question now that
the case is over : Has this Committee given you every chance to bring your wit-
niesses and to make good your charges?

Mr. LANGELIER.-Yes; I have never complained that they did not. As I stated,
I did not conduct an investigation, I only watched the proceedings most of the time,
but every witness that I have asked to be summoned has been summoned.

Hon. Mr. TAssÉ.-Then you are perfectly satisfied.
Mr. LANGELIER.-Certainly ; I have never complained, neither here nor else-

where.
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1891.

THE SENATE OF CANADA.

SELEcT commIrzITE

RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS.

IN RE

fle Bill illtituled " i ÀOd respecting the Baie (les Chaleurs Railway collipally.

LIST OF EXH1BITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE.

No. Produced by.

1 Counsel for Opposants.

2 (o.

3 C. N. Arnstrong .....

Date
w h e

Produc

Aug. 7,

12,

12,

C. N. Armstrong ....... [Aug. 12,

21-1G

Date
n of Subject.
ed. Document.

1891 June -, 1891 Memo. for Hon. Mr. Abbott as to the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company and its financial
position.

1891 Aug. 6, 1891 Letter from Law Clerk of Senate to Charles N.
Armstrong, by order of Coinmittee, request-
ing him to appear before theni on Friday, ith
Augsst, 1891.

1891 June 9, 1886 Contract between Charles Newhouse Arn-
strong and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, for the construction and equip-
ment of the railway fron Metapedia to Pas-
pebiac.

1891 do 8, 1888 Contract between Charles Newhouse Arm-
strong, contractor, and Henry Macfarlane,
sub-contractor, for construction, &c., of cer-
tain portions of the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way, and ratification thereof by Théodore
Robitaille, President of the Company, with
joint and several obligation of the Company
with the contractor to the sub-contractor, and

do 16, 1888 Extract fron Minutes of a meeting of Board of
Directors of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, at Quebec, 28th May, 1888, autho-
rizing the President to execute a contract, on
the ternis of the draft of agreement annexed,
for construction of the railway from Meta-
pedia to Paspebiac.

1891 Apr. 22, 1891 Statement of Account between the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company and C. N. Arm-
strong with certificate of balance due C. N
Arnstrong, $298,943.6

A. 1831
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCEI) BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produced. Document.

A pr.28, 1891 Endorsed on face with receipt fron J. C.
Langelier, Deputy Provincial Registrar, of
$175,000 by C. N. Armstrong in full settle-
ment of this account.

6 Counsel for Opposants.. . Aug. 12,1891 Aug. 10, 1891 Copy of telegram froi Hon. A. Vidal, Chair.
lîan Senate Railway Counrnittee, to C. N.
Armstrong, Inch Arran House, Dalhousie,
N.B., requiring his presence to testify on
Wednesday, 12tl August, 1891.

7 A. P. Bradley, Secretary do 13, 1891 Nov.. 7, 1885 Certified copy of agreement between the Queen
(if Dept. of Railways and the Baie des Chaleurs Hailway Company,
and Canals. for paynent of a subsidy(Dominion) of $300,-

000 for 20 miles (if railway fr run Metapediac
eastwards. No. 7,879.

do .... Aug. 13, [891 Nov. 7, 1885:Certified copy of agreement between the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Co. and The Queen foi
payment of a subsidy (Dominion) of $3,200 a
iile for 80 uiles fron a point 20 miles east of
Metapediae to Paspebiac, and further agree-
ni(uut to request authority fron Parliamient
to pay the $3.200 a mile, voted in 1883, for
the tirst 20 mniles east of Metapediac, upon
the first 20 iiles of said 80 unles, so as to
make e64,000 a mile on that section of the 80
muiles.

9 d . do 13, 1891 June 2, 1888 Certified copy of provisional agreement between
The Queen and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, for application of $96.000 subsidy
(Dominion) under 46 V., -. 25 (1883), to the
section between the 40th and 70th miles be-
tween Metapediae and Paspebiac in lieu of
the last 30 miles.

10 .... do 13,1891 Aug. 12,1891 Brief history of the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way.

il do . . .. do 13, 1891 .......... Statenent of paynents inade to Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway Company on account subsidy
(Dominion) Septemtber 28th, 1886, to Octo-
ber 21st, 1889. Amount, $524,175.

do . . . . do 13, 1891 . .. ......... Statenut of amuouiuits of subsidies (Doninion)

1 Auguste Gabouury, Presi-
dent of La Banque
Nationale, Quebec.

14 dl,

15 du .

15a do

15/, do ....
15c dlu ....
15d do ....

Sdo ...

unearned and unpaid.
Report

do 13, 1891 Apl. 21, 1891 Certified copy of Order in Council (No. 237),
Approved Province of Q.uebec, respecting the Baie des

Apl.23,1891 Chaleurs Railway Company, setting fortht
and approving :

Ajpl. 17, 1891 Letter from A.M. Thom to Hon. P. Garneau,
Commissioner of Public Works and Premier
ad interi, as to reorganization of onipany
and proposition for paynent of subsidies,
con letion of railway, and paymuent ot clainims.

Report
do 13, 1891 Apl. 21, 1891 Certified copy of Order in Council, Province of

Approved Quebec, appointing J. C. Langelier, Deputy
Apl. 23, 1891 Registrar of the Province of Quebec, Connnis-

sioner for the paynent of clains against the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.

do0 13, 1891 Aug. 11, 1891 Certified copy of accounut of .1. C. Langelier,
Commissioner, with La Banque Nationale
fron April 28th to .July 13th, 1891.

f'o 13, 1891 Apl. 28, 1891 Cheque on La Banque Nationale signed by J.
C. Langelier, Coinnissioner, payable to C.
N. Arnstrong or order, for $31,750.

do 13, 1891 do 28, 1891 Cheque do do $24,000.
<lo 13, 1891 do 28, 1891 Cheque do do 816.000.
do 13, 1891 do 29, 1891 Cheque do do $111.64.
(do 13, 1891 Jul. 13, 1891 Cheque on La Banque Nationale payable tC

1. I James Cooper, Esq., or order, for $2,200.
242
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Date
Produced by 1 w h e I

I Produced.

10 Auguste Gaboury, Presi- Aug.13, 1891
dent of La Banque,
Nationale.

17 do .... do 13, 1891

18 d( .... do 13, 1891

. de i

Date
of

Document.

Apl. 30, 1891

Aug. 12,1891

13, 1891 do 11, 1891

do 13, 1891 do 7, 1891

do .... do 13, 1891 do 11, 1891

B. Dumnoulin, Mana-
ger of La Banque du
Peîupl, Quebec.

do> ...

do 14, 1891 do

do 14, 1891 ....

6, 1891

19

20

21

22 P.

23

24

25

26

do0 .... Aug.

E. E. Webb, Cashier of d
The Union Bank of
Canada, (ebec.

2A-16½

14,1891 May 6, 1891

o . . Apr. 29, 1891

243

No. Subject.

Meio. as to proceeds of letter of credit, 28th
April, 1891, for $75,000 to J. C. Langelier.
Discounted at 8 per cent., $74,111.64.

Letter fron H. V. Machin, Assistant Treasurer,
P.( ., to the cashier of La Banque Nationale,
Quebec, enclosing copies of Crders in Council
referred to in letter of Acting Premier
authorizing advance of $75,000 to .J. C. Lan-
gelier, Commissioner.

Extract fron minutes of meeting of Directors
of La Banque Nationale on 30th A>ril, 1891,
authorizing loan of $75,000 to J. C. Langelier,
on security of letter of credit.

Certified copy of account of Ernest Pacaud
with La Banque Nationale, fron 15th May
to 6th July, 1891, $19,732.60.

Letter fron Ernest Pacaud to the Cashier of
La Banque Nationale, requesting that all his
cheques up to date be delivered to the bearer
Mr. Auguste Edge.

Receipt for 24 cheques by Auguste Edge. And
meno. signed " A.E." that these cheques were
drawn by Mr. Pacaud on La Banque Na-
tionale.

Certified mnemno. of proceeds of discount of note
of Ernest Pacaud in favoir of P. Vallière,
15th July, 1891, for $20,000. Discounted at
8 per cent., $19,732.60.

Certified copy of acknowledgment by Ernest
Paeaud that the balance to his credit this
day is $1,237.13 and that the cheques have
been returned to him this day.

Certified copy of account of Mr. Ernest Pacaud
with La Banque du Peuple, Québec, fron Oth
May to 3rd June, 1891, $25,555.34. Balance
at (redit of Pacaud, $30058.

Certified extract from Discount Book of La
Banque du Peuple, on 6th May, 1891, showing
proceeds of note for $20,000, made by Ernest
Pacaud, endorsed by P. Vallière and Ernest
Pacaud, due 18th July, 1891, $19,720.

Cei tified extract fron register of Bills Receiv-
able, La Banque du Peuple, 6th May to 3rd
June, 1891. showing noces made by A. F.
Carrier, Jas. Carrel, J. G. M. Deschène and
.1. I. Tarte, and endorsed by Ernest Pacaud.
Tarte's note also endorsed by Frs. Langelier.

Certified extract front letter fron P. B. Du-
moulin, Manager of La Banque du Peuple,
Qýuebec, to .. S. Bousquet, Cashier, respecting
Mr. Phillipe Vallière's note for $20,000 to
the order of Ernest Pacaud, discounted this
day ; the Government security which Mr.
Vallière has deposited ; and the application
of proceeds by Mr. Pacaud to ineet various
liabilities.

Certified copy of letter fromn which Exhibit
No. 26 is an extract. Giving in addition the
reasons why Mr. Dumoulin at first refused
the discount, but was promised by Hon.
Charles Langelier, who accompanied Mr.
Vallière, a deposit of $50,000.

Cheque on Union Bank of Canada drawn by
J. C. Langelier, Conmissioner, in favour of
C. N. Armstrong or order for $20,000.
Endorsed by C. N. Armstrong and P.
Vallière.

A. 1891
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE- Contfinued.

Date
No. Produced by w h e n

Produced.

28b E. E. Webb, Cashier of Aug.14,1891
The Union Bank of
Canada.

28e dou ... do .

do ....

du ....

do ....

dol

35 do .... do

35 do . .. (10

363 do . ... Aug.19,

37 d( .... do

38 do ... do

39 P. B. Dunmoulin, Man- do
ager of La Banque du
Peuple.

40 P. G. Lafrance, Cashier do
of La Banque Nationale

41 do . .. do

1891

Date
of Subject.

Document.

Apr. 29, 1891 Cheque on Union Bank of Canada drawn by
J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, in favour of
C. N. Armstrong or order for $20,000. En-
dorsed by C. N. Armstrong, P. Vallière and
La Banq ue Nationale, Quebec.

do .. do do do, for $20,000. Endorsed by C. N.
Aristrong only.

do .. do do do for $20,000. Endorsed by C. N.
Armstrong only.

do .. do do do for $20,000. Endorsed by C. N.
Armstrong only.

do . COpy of letter from E. Webb, Cashier Union
Bank of Canada, to H. T. Machin, Esq., As-
sistant Treasurer of Quebec, asking for copy
of Order in Council authorizing advance of
$100,000 to J. C. Langelier, Commissioner.

Apr. 30,1891 Copy of letter of H. T. Machin, in reply to
foregoing, enclosing Orders in Council asked
for.

May 6, 18191 Copy of letter froin E. E. Webb to P. Vallière,
Quebec, advising himn that the Union Bank
of Canada will pay the cheque of J. C. Lan-
gelier, Comnmissioner, for $20,000, in favour
of C. N. Armstrong, endorsed hy Vallière,
when the ainount mentioned in letter of 28th
April of Honourable Mr. Garneau, Acting
Provincial Treasurer and Acting Prime Mi-
nister is paid and placed to Langelier's credit
at the bank.

May 16, 1891 Copy of letter from E. E. Webb to T. S. Bous-
quet. to the sanie effect as reslp-cts cheque
No. 5 (Exhibit No. 28c.)

do .. Copy of letter from E. E. Webb to J. C. Lan-
gelier, advising him that the Union Bank of
Canada holds the letter of 28th A pril of Hon.
Mr. Garneau on collection on Langelier's
account.

.Juily 9, 1891 Copy of aceouxnt of J. C. Langelier, Commis-
sioner, with Union Bank of Canada, 9th Juy,
1891. Showing letter of credit deposited
$100,000 and five cheques of $20,00 each
drawn.

........... Copy of account of Ernest Pacaud with Union
Bank from (th Juily, 1891, to 12th August,
1891, $61,594. Balance to debit of Pacaud $35.

....Copy of confirmation of statement of account
in Union Bank of Canada to last day of July,
1891, and receipt for 93 cheques by Ernest
Pacaud.

..... ...... Copy of account of Ernest Pacaud in Savings
Department of Union Bank of Canada, l8th
June to 10th August, 1891, $25,000.20.

Aug. 17.1891 Copy of account of Ernest Pacaud with Union
Bank of Canada, fron 30th April to 13th
August, 1891, $76,922.95, showing balance at
credit of Pacaud, $465.

May 8,1891 Certified copy of deposit slip La Banque du
Peuple, showing deposit by La Banque
Nationale of $14,607.34.

........... Credit Slip, La Banque Nationale, showing
past due note E. Pacaud, $5,00M.

May 1,1891 Notarial copy of protest by Cy. Tessier, N.P.,
of note at two months for $5,000, dated Que-
bec, 28th February, 1891, made by Ernest
Pacaud and payable to the order of the Hon.
Honoré Mercier. Endorsed by Honoré Mer-
cier, F. Langelier, Chas. Langelier, C. A. P.
Pelletier and Ernest Pacaud.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produced. Document.

42 P. B. Dumoulin, Man- Aug. 19,1891 July 11, 1891 Depsit slip La Banque du Peuple, showing
ager of La Banque du deposit $3,000 to credit of Chas. Langelier.
Peup e.

43 E. E. Webb, Manae do July 13, 1891 Cop of deposit slip Union Bank of Canada,
Union Bank of CanadaI showing deposit 82,690.

44 P. G. Lafrance, Cashier do .May 15, 1891 Requisition on La Banque Nationale for a Bill
of La Banque Nationale of Exchange on Paris in favour of the Hon.

Honoré Mercier for 85,000 - 25,500 francs,
drawn by " E. Pacaud per P. L."

45 Louis Cyrille Marcoux, Aug.20, 1891 Aug.19, 1891 Certified extract fron cash lok of La Caisse
Secretary-Treasurer of d'Economic de Notre Dame de Québec, show-
La Caisse d'Economie, ing account of L. P. Sirois, 16th May to 30th
Quebec. May, 1891, $8,000; also extract from ledger

No. 24, saine dates, same amount. ,
46 do .... do . do .. Certified copy of deposit slip La Caisse d'Econ-

omie de Notre Dame de Québec, 16th May,
1891, $8,000 to credit of L. P. Sirois.

47 do .... do do .Certified copy of deposit slip La Banque
Nationale, 16th. May, 1891, $9,300, to credit
of La Caisse d'Econonie de Notre Dane de
Québec.

48 do .... do .. do .. Certified copy of deposit slip La Banque du
Peuple, 18th May, 1891, showing deposit of
cheque for $7,000 to credit of La anque
Nationale.

49 do .... do .. May 26, 1891 Certified col>y of cheque on La Caisse d'Écono-
mie de Notre Dame de Québec, drawn by L,
P. Sirois in favour of Dame Mary Jane D.
Fry or her order.

50 P. G. Lafrance, Cashierof do .. Aug. 12,1891 Copy of account of A. Mc. Thom with La
La Banque Nationale, Banque Nationale, fromî 29th April to 30th

. May, 1891, *31,750.
50a do do .. ApI. 29, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque

Nationale, payable to bearer, $08 ; endorsed,
"C. M. Armstrong and J. Demers."

50b do o .do (Io .. Cheque drawn by A. Me. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to bearer, 84,275; en-
dorsed, " paid to L. A. Robitaille."

50c do ... do . Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thon on La Banque
Nationale, payableto bearer, $250; endorsed,
"paid to Mr. L. A. Robitaille."

501 do .... do .. do . Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to bearer, $350 ; no endor-
sation.

00c do o.. do Io .. Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to bearer, $1,000 ; stanped
on back, " the property of the Bank of Brit-
ish North Ainerica."

50f do .... do .. May 1, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to C. N. Armstrong, Esq.,
or order, $600 ; endorsed by " C. N. Arm-
strong," and stamped " for collection on ac-
count of the Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J.
Murray Smith, Manager."

50 do .... do . do .. Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to Jas. Cooper or bearer,
81,000; endorsed "James Cooper," and
staimped "for collection on account of the
Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray Smith,
Manager."

50h do .. do .. May 4, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to James Cooper or order,
$1,500; endorsed and stamped saine as 50y.

50i dp .. do .. May 1, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to C. N. Armstrong, Esq.,
or order, $2,280; endorsed and stamped same
as 50f.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTE-Continued.

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produced. Document.

50i P. G. Lafrance, Cashier of, Aug. 20.1891 May 7, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Me. Thom on La Banque
La Banque Nationale. Nationale, payable to C. N. Armstrong or

order, $6,5o ; endorsed, " C. N. Armstrong,
James Cooper," and stamped "for collection
on account of the Bank of Toronto, Mon-
treal, J. Murray Smith, Manager."

50k Io .... do May 9, 1891 Cheque drawn hy A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to C. N. Armstrong. Esq.,
or order, $500; endorsed, " C. N. Armstrong,"
and stamped saine as 50j.

501 (o .. , do May 12, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to Bank of Toronto or
bearer, $400.77 ; and stamped on back "for
collection on account of the Bank of Toronto,
Montreal, J. Murray Smith, Manager."

50m do . ... do May 14, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to James Cooper or bearer,
$3,000 ; endorsed " pay to the order of L. .1.
Riopel, "and stanped "for deposit to credit
of ank of Montreal, Quebec, J. Macara
Manager."

50n do .... do .. do Cheque drawn by A. Mu. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to James Cooper or order,
$300 ; endorsed " pay C. N. Armstrong or
order, James Cooper, C. N. Arnstrohg,"
and stamped " for collection on account of
the Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray
Smith, Manager."

500 do ... do .. May 12, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thomr on La Banque
Nationale, payable to Count de Louvières or
order, $30 ; endorsed, "Louvières, F. La-
gacé," and stamped " For credit of Union
Bank of Canada, Savings Bank Branch, Que-
bec, for deposit to credit of Union Bank of
Canada,Quebec, No. 2, J. G. Billett, Manager."

do . ... do .. May 14, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to James Cooper or order,
$200, account note Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Co. ; endorsed, "Pay to the orderof C. N. Arm-
strong, James Cooper, C. N. Armstrong,
Arch. Canpbell," and stamped " Pay Mer-
chants' Bank of Canada or order, for the
credit of Merchants' Bank of Canada, Q.uebec,
J. C. More, Manager."

50g do .... do .. May 15, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to James Cooper or order,
$91.10 ; endorsed, "Pay to order of the
Union Mutual Life Insurance Co., James
Coo r, Union Mutual Life Insurance Co.,
per. C. de Salaberry, Cashier," and stamp-
ed "For deposit in Bank of Montreal,
of Montreal, Canada, to credit of Union
Mutual Life Insurance Co., Portland, Maine;
for collection and credit of Bank of Montreal,
H. V. Meredith, Manager ; for deposit to
credit of Bank of Montreal, Quebec, J. Mac-
ara, Manager."

50r Counsel for Opposants... do .. May, 27 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to bearer, $600. No en-
dorsation.

50s du . ... do May 26, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to -James Cooper or order,
$751; endorsed, ".James Cooper ;" stamped
"For collection on account of the Bank of
Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray Smith, Man-
ager."
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continîoud

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produnced. Document.

50t Counsel for Opposants.. . Aug. 20,1891,

51 (o . . . do

52 do

53 do ...

54 do ....

55do ....

57 dIo ....

58 do

58 do ..

6o do ....

do ....

Aug.21,1891

do

do

do
dIO

do

do

do

do

18o1

May 29, 1891 Cheque drawn by A. Mc. Thom on La Banque
Nationale, payable to ,Janmes Cooper or order,
$7,714; endorsed, "Janes Cooper," and
stamped "For collection on account of the
Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray Smith,
Manager."

Aug. 9, 1891 Cheque drawn by Ernest Pacaud on the Union
Bank of Canada, payable to Henry Harris,
Esq., or order, $280; certified and paid,
12th Aug., 1891; endorsed, " Henry Harris,"
" R. M. Stocking per Henry Harris," and
stamped "For deposit to credit of Bank of
Montreal, Quebec, J. Macara, Manager."

Aug. 20,1891 Certified statement from the books of the Union
Bank of Canada as to details of promissory
notes referred to in evidence of E. Webb
Cashier of the Union Bank of Canada.

Aug. 7, 1889Cop)y of letter fron A. P. Bradley, Secretary of
Departmnent of Railways and Canals, Ottawa,
to J. M. Courtrney, Minister of Finance,
enclosing 83 bonds of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Co. for £500 stg. each, received as
security for completion of the railway from
70th to 100th mile.

June 14,1888 Notarial copy of transfer by the Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway Co. to the Manager of the
Ontario Bank, Montreal, in trust of 870,000
payable by the Province of Quebec on com-
Ietion of railway fromn 40th to 60th mile, in

lieu or conversion of the land subsidy granted
by 45 Vict., chap. 23, Quebec Statutes; and
intervention and consent of C. N. Armstrong
Contractor.

do .. Notarial copy of signification of preceding to
j the Treasurer of the Province of Quebec.

Dec. 13, 1889 Copy of letter from H. V. Machin, Assistant
Treasurer of the Province of Quebec, to the
Manager of the Ontario Bank, Montreal,
acknowledging the latter's letter of 3rd Dec.,
1889, protesting against subsidies transferred
to the bank bemng applied by the Government
to paynent of clains for work done &c., and
replymng thereto.

.. ......... Extracts from general Report of the Commis-
sioner of Public Works of the Province of
Quebec, 1889.

........ .. Extracts fron general Report of the Commis-
sioner of Public Works of the Province of
Quebec, 1890.

... ...... Extracts from Return (No. 90a1) to an Address
of the Legislative Assembly, dated 30th Jan.,
1890, for the special report of Mr. Charles
Langelier, Coimmtissioner, dated this day, re-
specting Section K of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Co. ; and the list of workmen, with
the amounts due to each of them.

. Memorandum of legislation of Legislature of
the Province of Quebec affecting the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Co.

. ........ Extracts from speeches in the Legislative As-
sembly, Quebec, by the Honourable Honoré
Mercier, on the subject of the Baie des Cha.
leurs Railway Co.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Produced byNo.

62

63

63a

64

65b

65c

65d

65e

66

Counsel for Opposants...

J. C. Langelier ........

do ..

Counsel for Opposants...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do ...

do

J C. Langelier.

Dat
whe

Produc

Aug. 25,

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

do

Aug. 27,

do

Date
n of Subject.
ed. Document.

1891 June 27,1890 Letters from J. C. Langelier to Manager of the
Ontario Bank, Toronto, informing latter that
the former was appointed to pay privileged
claims on the 60 miles of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway, covered by sub-contract of Henry
Macfarlane, out of $28,546 of subsidy remain-
ing due; that he has paid all pri vileged claims
proved and acknowledged; and that all proved
claims for wages have been paid, except
82,150.07, which will be paid on fulfilnent
of formalities.

April 28,1891 Stateinent of account Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way Company and C. N. Armstrong, with
certiticate of balance due C. N. Armstrong,
8298,943.62; and receipt by C. N. Armstrong
from J. C. Langelier of $175,000 (similar to
Exhibit No. 5).

do .. Discharge and quittance by C. N. Armstrong
of Baie des Chaleurs Railway Co. of all claims,
and cancellation of contract of 9th June, 1886,
for construction of railway; authorization to
Company to take possession of works, ma-
terials and rolling stock, and transfer of all
claims against Henry Macfarlane or the in-
solvent estate of Henry Macfarlane & Son.

.. !Oct. 12, 1889 Letter from A. Simpson, Manager of the On-
tario Bank, Ottawa, to the Minister of Rail-
ways and Canals, Ottawa, saying that if
e54,000 of Dominion subsidy due the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company is paid to
the bank, the bank undertakes to see that
$13,000 due for wages to Macfarlane's men
are paid.

do .. Statenment showing proceeds of discount of let-
ter of credit for *75,000 in favour of J. C.
Langelier, and the disposal thereof according
to the evidence produced.

do .. Statement showing proceeds of note for $20,000,
endorsed by P. Vallière, and the disposal
thereof according to the evidence produced.

.. ........... .Statement showing proceeds of E. Pacaud's
note for $20,000, endorsed by P. Vallière,
and the disposal thereof according to the
evidence.

.. ............ Statement showing payments by E. Pacaud
from proceeds ofthree cheques for $20,000
each, drawn by. J. C. Langelier, Commis-
sioner, on the Union Bank, payable to C. N.
Armstrong.

.... . ..... Recaitulation of foregoing statements, Ex-
hibts 65a, 65b, 65c, 65d.

1891 Aug. 27, 1891 Statemment of disburements re balance of Quebec
su bsidy applicable to miles 40 to 60 of the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway from 28th Novemuber,
1889, to 31st October, 1890, $28,545.

Apr. 24, 1891 Letter from A. McThom to J. C. Langelier
stating that the former refuses to certify the
account of C. N. Armstrong against the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company for more than
$175,000, and only on express condition of
Armstrong's cancellation of contract and dis-
charge of all claims against the railway.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produced. Document.

68 Counsel for the Govern- Aug. 25,1891 Jan. 27, 1891 Document purporting to be an affidavit by
ment of the Province and again George A. Taylor, before J. C. Langelier, J.
of Quebec. Aug. 28, P., as to transfer by C. N. Armstrong and the

1891. Baie des Chaleurs Railway Co. to Mc-
Donald, O'Brien & Company, of 8300,000
Dominion subsidies and 870,000 Quebec subsi-
dies as security -payment of $252,000 to said
firn for building 20 miles of railway, and re-
transfer of the balance of said subsidies to the
railway conipany. Also as to deposit of $10,-
00) by said firmi as guarantee.

69 do .. Aug.28,1891 June30,1891 Notarial copy of Indenture between the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company, C. N. Armi-
strong, McDonald, O'Brien & Co., Roderick
L. McDonald and George B. Burland, consti-
tuting George B. Burland trustee to receive
subsidies and make payments out of subsidies.

70 do .. do . .'June 9, 1886 Notarial copy of agreement between C. N. Arm-
strong and McDonald, O'Brien & Co., as to
810,000 deposited by the latter as security for
their sub-contract.

71 do .. do .. Feb. 1), 1887 Telegran froni Hon. Théodore Robitaille to
Me)onald, O'Brien & Co., Ottawa, re pay-
ment of trustee.

72 Counsel for Hon. Théo- do Dec. 16, 1886 Letter from Hon. Théodore Robitaille, President
dore Robitaille. Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, to Mc-

Donald, O'Brien & Co., Metapedia, notifying
them to comply with agreement and request
G. B. Burland to re-transfer remaining portion
of the subsidies in his hands.

7 do .. do .. Dee. 2, 1886 Notarial copy of protest by W. de M. Marler,
N.P., at the instance of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company, against McDonald,
O'Brien & Co., requiring themn to consent to
re-transfer by George B. Burland of subsidies,
after deducting $331,395.62 therefrom.

74 do .. do .. Feb. 12, 1887 Certificate of A. L. Light, Chief Engineer Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company, as to non-
conpletion of the works contracted for by
McDonald, O'Brien & Co.

75 do .. do . Dec. 21, 1886 Copy of protest by McDonald, O'Brien & Co.
against the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany re A. L. Light's estimate, &c.

7 do . do .Dec, 24, 1886 Notarial co y (if protest hy the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company against (eorge B. Burland,
requiring himi to re-transfer balance of subsi-
dies.

7d .. do .. Feb. 7, 1887 Legal opinion of Tos. G. Bosse, Esquire, Q. C.,
as to re-transfer of subsidies and 840,00)
cheque deposited in the Quebec Bank.

78 do .. do .. Feb. 12, 1887 Telegram fron Hon. Théodore Robitaille to C.
N. Arnstrong, saying amnount in bank will be
placed to credit of trustee.

79 do .. do .. Feb. 14,.1887 Notarial copy of protest by C. N. Armstrong
agaimst George B. Burland, requiring himnot
to part with 838,604.38 out of moneys te-
ceived from the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, that amount being due to Arm-
strong.

80 do . do .. Mar. 26, 1887 Notarial copy of submission to arbitration, by
C. N. Armstrong and McDonald, O'Brien &
Co., of the settlement of the value of the work
done by the latter on the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway.

81d .. April 4, 1887 Award of arbitrators under foregoing deed of
arbitratien. Amount of work done by Mc-
Donald, O'Brien & Co., $251,510.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITTEE-Continued.

Date Date
No. Produced by w h e n of Subject.

Produced. Doclunent.

82 G. B. Burland... ...... do... . ...... .Extract from ledger of Geo. B. Burland, show-
ing the account of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company with hin, in trust, froin
July, 1886, to 31st December, 1887.

83 George A. Taylor. ..

84 Counîsel for the H
Théodore Robitaille

85 Henry Macfarlane

86 Counsel for Hon. TI
dore Robitaille.

do

do

C. N. Arnstrong.

do

do

do

do
dIo
dIodi)

93 Counsel for Hon. T
dore Robitaille.

94 Hon. Mr. Tassé ..

95 do

. Aug.31, 1891 ....... .. .. Original neio. hy George A. Taylor, upoin
which his affidavit, Exhibit No. 68, was based.

on1. do . . Aug. 25,1891 Shorthand writer's notes of statements made
by Counsel for the Government of the Pro-
vince of Quebec, on Tuesday, 25th August,
1891, as to the eibezzlenent or nisalplica-
tion oif certain suins of noney by the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company.

... Sept. 1, 1891...... ..... Memorandum of Henry Macfarlane, showing
subsidies assigned and applicable to payment
of work performued by hin uipon the first 60
miles of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, which
he coutracted to complete.

hýo- dIo .. April12,1887 Notarial copy of deed of agreement and settle-
ment between Charles N. Armstrong and
McDuald, O'Brier & Co., and transfer by
George B. Burland to J. Murray Snith, iii
trust, of certain portions of subsidies, &c.

do . Jan. 28, 1887 Copy of letter No. 42307, from Collingwood
Schreiber, Chief Engineer of Goverunient.
Railways, Ottawa, to A. P. Bradley, Secre-
tary of the Departient of Railways and Ca-
nals, Ottawa, as to estimates of cost of work
on the first 20 miles of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway.

.... June 4, 1891 Copy of petition of the Superior Court of the
Province of Quebec, District of Montreal, in
ri Bai des Chaleurs Railway Company, plain-
tiff, rs. Henry Macfarlane et al, defendants;

... , do June 27,1891 And judgment of the Honourable Mr Justice
Pagnuelo on the said petition.

. . Sept. 2, 1891 Sept. 2, 1891 Estinated quantities of varions classes of work
on the different sections of the Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway.

.... dho . . do . . Percentage of cost of each section of line. Pre-
liminary estimates.

.... do Meiiorandumn of subsidies voted to the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company.

do .. do .. Bill of quantities and prices. Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway Company.

... do . do .. do do 60th to 70th mile.
.... dou <u . do do 70th to 80th do

do .. do . o do 80th to 90th 'do
.... do .. do .. do do 90thto 100th do
.... do .Sept. 1, 1891 Letter fromn J. Murray Smith, Manager of the

Bank of Toronto, Montreal, to C. N. Arm-
strong, giving dates and amouits of payments
inade by the former out of subsidies held by
him in trust.

héo- do ........... ,...Statement showing the disposition made of the
$118,000 of subsidies, payable in respect of
the first 20 miles of the Baie des Chialeurs
Railway, over and above the amount due to
Me.srs. McDonald & O'Bnien, sub contractors.

Sept. 3ept.9 , 18pt. 3, 1891 Telegran from Mr. Barwick, Counsel for Oppo-
sants, to Mr. Webb, Union Bank, Quebec,
asking date of note for $5,000, paid lst May.

do . . Sept. 2, 1891 Telegram from E. Wbb, in reply to above, say-
ing note is dated 28th February, at two months.
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LIST OF EXHIBITS PRODUCED BEFORE THE COMMITfrEE-Continiud.

Produced by

Charles N. Armstrong.. .

Hon. Mr. Tassé .........

Date
w h e n

Produced.

Date
of

Document.
Subject.

do .. Sept. 3, 1891 Memorandum by C. N. Armostrong, as to the
position of affairs in connection with the con-
tract between C. N. Armstrong and Henry
Macfarlane.
(NOTE.--This Exhibit !#) icas received and

ordered to be printed for information only, with
the statenent that Mr. Armstrony hait not been
cross-exainncd upon its contents. )

Sept. 3, 1891 Sept. 3, 1891 Telegramn from E. Webb as to sanie note, saying
it was discounted 28th February; filed by
consent of Hou. F. Langelier, Counsel for
Governmient of the Province of Quebec.
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Appen<iix (No. 2A.)

EXHIBIT NO. 1.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY.

Memo. for Hon. M1r. Abbott.

Directors:-James Cooper, Prest; James P. Dawes, Vice-Prest; A. M. Thom,
-Treas; Alexander Ewan, James Williamson, Wm. Cassils and M. S. Loneigan.

The total issue of capital stoek, of which 10 per cent. is paid up, is six
thousand (6000) shares of $50 each.

Of this the I)irectors hold tive thousand three hundred and fifty (5,350) shares.
The new proprietors came into offlee 6;th May, 1891, and they have undertaken

with Quebec Government to complete 40 miles (tinishiing 100 miles from Metapedia
to Paspebiac) by 31st December, 1892.

The sixty miles alrcady nearly constructed must be also finished and put in
first rate order. This includes serious repairs and the erection of two considerable
and other smaller steel bridges.

The Company will do this at once, and aie awaiting a judgment (in chambers)
in the MeFarlane case, to pi oceed.

They have also contracted wilh M. J. Ilogan, a reputable contraetor, to build
20 miles from miles 60 to 80 this summer, and expect to elose all arrangements to
that end this week.

To finish the first (0 miles will cost $50,000. Against this there is balance
Federal subsidy, $31,000.

The Company lias for the 40 miles fron Cascapeia to Paspebiae from Quebee
'Governnent $7,000 per mile. less $20,000, already expended 8260,000.

Fron Federal Government oi section 'K ," milecs 60 to 70, 864.000.
From Quebec Goverîrnenit, special subsidy on Grand Cascapedia bridge, $50,000.
Quebec Subsidy Act of 1st session devotes 800.000 acres to paynîeît of debts,

labour claims, &c.
This has been converted at 35 per cent., equaliung $280,000.
At present all claims in those counties for labour, and all privileged debts of

Est. McFarlane, are being paid out of this.
When judgment in suit of McFarlane is rendered, it wili be paid out of this aiso,

and should there be a balance left it will be accounted for to us at completion ot
100 miles.

The bonds of the Comîpany are yet unsold.

EXHIBIT No. 2.
(Copy.)

OTTAWA, 6ti August, 1891.
Sra,--By or(ler of the Select Committee of the Senate on Railways, Telegra1phs

and larbours, I am instrueted to request that you wil be present at the meeting of
the said Committee to be held to-morrow the seventh of August instant, in Room
No. 8 of the Senate, at ton o'clock in the foienoon, to give 9videnee as to any know-
ledge you may have as to any matters relating to the said Bill, and that you will
produce befo.e them any papers or documents in your possession relating to such
matters.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. G. AYLWIN CREIGHTON,
Law Cerk of the Senate.

-C. N. ARMSTRONG, Esq..
Russell House, Ottawa.
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EXHIBIT No. 3.

On this ninth day of the month of June, in the year eighteen hundred and
cighty-six.

Before me, William B. S. Reddy, the undersigned Notary Public duly admitted
and sworn, residing and practising in the City of Montreal, in the District of Mon-
treal, and Province of Quebec.

Appeared Charles Newhouse Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, railway con-
tractor, hereinafter called " the contractor."

And the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, a body politic and corporate,
having its chief office and place of business at Quebec, in the Province of Quebee,
and herein acting and represented by the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, of the
City of Quebec, the President thereof, and hereunto for ail purposes of these presents
duly authorized by a resolution of the Directors of the said Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, passed at a meeting of said directors duly called, and held at the City of
Quebec, on the twenty-fifth day of May last, a duly certified copy of which resolution
is hereunto annexed and signed ne varietur by the parties hereto and by the under-
signed notary, said Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, hereinafter called "the
conipany " of the second part.

Now, therofore, these presents witness that the contractor has contracted and
hereby contracts and undertakes ail the works necessary to construct, build, equip,
and in every respect complete the. Baie des Chaleurs Railway from Metapedia, in
the Province of Quebec, to its terminus at Paspebiac, a distance of about one hundred
miles, more or less, and which said works and said contract have been undertaken
by said contractor, and let to him by said company upon the following terms, con-
ditions, considerations and stipulations, to wit:-

The warks heroby undertakein by said contractor are intended to include and
shall include ail works of construction and materials required and necessary in the
making, building, equipping, and in every respect conpleting of said Baie des Cha-
leurs Railway from Metapedia aforesaid, and shall comprise ail clearing, close cutting,
grubbing, fencing, excavations, embankment, draining, ditching, foundation works,
bridge and culvert masonry, crib work, bridge superstructure, cattle guards, diversions
of the post road, road and farm crossings, permanent wayand ballasting rails and
track laying, water tanks, turi-tables, wood-sheds, passenger and freight stations of
a suitable size at an average distance of about seven miles apart, such stations not to
be inferior to those on the North Shore Railway, witi sufficient siding accormmo-
dation, also an engine house with accommodation for three engines at each end of
the fine, also the neeessary blacksmith and repair shops with necessary tools and
appliances, as the engineer may deem suitable and proper for the ordinary repairs
of rolling stock, alsc locomotive engines and rolling stock as the same are more fully
described and set forth in the specifications liereunto annexed, aid a telegraph line
with single wire, with posts irsulators and ahl necessary apparatus for telegraphing,
torether with aIl other works, whether temporary or permanent. which may be
necessary for the entire completion ot said road or railway, and in accordance with
the specifications hereunto annexed and signed by the parties hereto ne varietur and
specially referred to as forming part of these presents,said specifications being those
provided by the Government of Canada, and forming part of the contract between
the said Government and the company.

The said detailed specifications for the first twenty miles shill also apply to the
next eighty miles of the line to Paspebiac as regards the manners of performing the
work and the quality of the materials used.

The present contract has been made and entered into by the said contractors
for and in consideration of the sum of twenty thousand dollars per mile payable as
follows: The sum of six thousand four hundred dollars per mile, to be paid to the
said contractor, by a transfer to him of the subsidies payable to the company by the
Dominion Government, and ailso for and in consider:ation of the further sun of
thirteei thousand six hundred dollars per mile, to be paid to him by the transfer
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and delivery to him of first mortgage bonds of the said railway company, payable in
twenty-tive years, bearing intei est at the rate of five per centum per annum, said
bonds forming a portion of a first issue of fifteen thousand dollars per mile, which
said first issue shall be secured by a first lien and mortgage on the land grant of the
company and on the railway of the company and all its appurtenances and belongings.

Also for and in consideration of the payment and transfer of one-half interest
in the franchises, rights and titles of the company, the same to be delivered to the
contractor upon the completion of the lino to Paspebiac, by the assignment and
delivery to the said contractor of paid up shares in the capital stock of the com-

pany to an amount equal to the total number of shares thon issued and held by the
bhareholders of the said company, which said shaies shall also be fully paid up.
The total subscribed stock of the coinpany shall not exceed seven hundred and fifty
thousand dollars at the time the said transfer of shares and payment is to be made
to the contractor as above stipulated.

Should the Legislature of Quebec authorize the payment of cash or Government
bonds or other securities in lieu and stead of lands granted to the company, the
contractor shall be paid and receive the said cash, bonds or other securities in lieu
of an equivalent amount of the above-mentioned bonds of the railway company, and
the amount necessary to make up the said sum of thirteen thousand six hundred
dollars per mile shall be paid by the company in cash or in tirst mortgage bonds of
the company, as the company may select.

The land grant bonds to be issued by the company in conformity with the provi-
sions of this contract shall be as nearly as possible of the same form and tenor,and sub-
ject to the same general coiditions as the land grant bonds issued by the Canadian
Pacific Railroad Company. It is distinctly understood that though the said bonds
appear to bear interest payable semi-annually, yet no interest shall accrue and be
payable until after the completion of the line to Paspebiac.

During the construction of the first forty miles of the line, monthly estimatos
will be furnished by the engineer of the company, and the contractor shall receive
eighty-five per cent. of said estimates in cash as soon as suclh amount of cash shall be
received from the Government of Canada or Quebec. The whole amount of cash to
be so paid on the first forty miles shall not exceed an average of twelve thousand
dollars per mile on the whole distance, nor shall a sum exceeding one hundred and
fifty thousand dollars be paiu on any one section of ten miles.

The balance of the contract price (less fifteen per cent. to be retained by the
company as a guarantee for the completion of the whole line to Paspebiac) shall be
paid to the contractor upon the completion of each ten miles, in bonds of the isues
above referred to, or in cash, or in Government bonds or other securities, as the com-
pany may select.

During the construction of the lino fiom the end of the first forty miles to the
terminus at Paspobiac, the contractor shall be paid in cash sixty per cent. of the
monthly estimates of the company's engineer; and upon the completion of each sec-
tion of ten miles, and as soon as the ubsidies froin the Government of Canada and
Quebec shall have been received for the said ten miles section, ihe contractor -hall
receive out of the said subsidies the balance of his contraet price for the said section,
less fifteen pet cent. to be retained as a guarantee until the completion of the lino
to Paspebiac. All the said payments shall be made in a proportion of cash and
debentures of the company as will be necessary to establish the payment of the
whole of the price of this contract in the proportion of six thousand four hundred
dollars in cash, and thirteen thousand six hundred dollars in debentures of the com-
pany for each mile, the same as provided by clause three ot this contract. The
remaining fifteen per cent., together with the fifteen per cent. previously retained
on the first forty miles, shall be paid to the contractor upon the completion of the
line to Paspebiac, to the satisfaction of the engineer of the com pany, and in accord-
ance with the terms of this contract; but only after delivery by the said engineer
to ihe said contractor of a certificate of acceptance of the said railway, in working
order and in every respect completed under the terms and conditions of this contract
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and after deducting all sums which may then be payable by the said contractor to
the said company for damages or reimbursements under some or any of the stipula-
tions of this contract.

The Company shall have the option at all times to pay in cash or Governmnent
bonds or other Government securities any amount which by the ternms of this con-
tract is mtipulated payable in bonds of the Company.

The estimates made by the Engineer of the Compuny shall in all cases be based
upon an average price of twenty thousand dollars per mile, and upon the compara-
tive cost of the work on each section of ten miles for which the estimates are given.

The Company hereby agrees to transfer to a trustee to be mutually agreed upon
within fifteen days from the date hereof the subsidies payable by the Governments
of Canada and Quebec respectively, for the pur-pose of securing the due paynent of
the money that may become due, and payable to the contractor by the terms of this
contract, and the said trustee will be authorized to pay the said contractor or his
order out of the said subsidies cach and every amount to which the contractor shall
be entitled by the terms of this contract.

The Company shall loan to ie contractor all plans, profiles. books of reference,
and field books now in their possession, and they, together with ail plans, profiles,
books of refèrence, and generally all maps and other work donc by the engineers in
connection with the carrying out of' this work shall, ut its completion, be returned
to the Company.

The contractor shall provide the funds necessary for the purchase of the right
of way and land for station purposes, but the Company binds itself to hand over to
tle contractor, as compensation for so muclh, such sins as it shall or may receive
from the tintinicipalities for right of' way and for station purposess ; al other dis-
bursements in connection with obtaining said right of way and station grounds, the
completion of the titles thereto, and registeriing same shall be borne by the con-
tractor.

The contractor shall have the right to use the name of the Company in all pi o-
ceedings in connection with the expropriation of land for right of way or station
grouinds.

In the present contract the words " works or work " shall, unless the context
requires a different meaning, inean the whole f t lie work and materials, matter and
things requü ed to be done, furnished and performed 'iy the contractor under this
contraet. The word "Engineer " shall mean the engineer of the company at the
time lthe reference is made, and shall extend to and include any of the assistants
acting under his instruct:ons ,-and all instruetions and directions, or certificates
givon or decisions made by anyone acting for the said engineer, shall be subject to
his approval, and may be cancelled, altered, nodified and changed as to hi may
scem lit.

The contractor will, at his own expense, provide all and every kind of labour,
maehinery, plant, lands foi borrow pits, ballast pits, spoil banks and other purposes,
temporary or otherwise, required for the works or iii the construction thereof and
materials, articles and things whatsoever necessary for Ile duo execution :1nd coi-
pletion of all and every the work required in the building and making ot' said rail-
way, and in accordance with the plans and drawings already prepared and which
may hereafter be prepared for the purpose of the work, and will execute and fully
complete the respective portions of such works, and will begin the work ofe construc-
tion not later than fifteen days after the date horeof, and complete the tirst forty
miles of the line on or before the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred and
eighty-seven, and deliver the said railway to said company completed by the first
day ot'July, eighteen lundred and eighty-eight (1888). Theworkto be constructed of
the best materials of their several kinids, and finished in the best and most workman-
like manner, and in the manner required by and in strict confor'mity with this con-
tract and specification annexed, and the plans and drawings now and hereinafter- to
be prepared and furnished by the contractor and approved by the Engineer of the
Company, and to be executed to the complete satisfaction of the said engineer.
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The Engineer shall be the sole judge of the quality and quantity of the work,
and his leciion and ineasurement shall be final and conclusive between theRaiway
Company and the Contractor. Upon the completiou of ail said works, the Contrac-
tor shall clear away ail rubbish and tnnecersary material.

A competent Forenian shall be kept on the ground by the Contractor during
ait workinîg hours, to receive the orders of the Engineer, and should the person so
appointed be deemed by the E'ngineer incompetent, or conduct himself improperly,
ho may be discharged by the Engineer and another shall at once be appointed in
his place, such Foreman shall be considered as the lawful representative of the Con-
tractor, and shall have full power to carry out ail requisitions and instructions of
the said Engineer. In case of any material or other things, in the opinion of the Engi-
neer, not in accordance with the said several parts of this contract or not sufficiently
sound or otherwise unsuitable for the respective works, be used for or brought to
the intended work or aiy part thereof, or in case any work be imptoperly executed,
the Engineer nay require the Contractor to remove same and to provide proper
niaterial or other' things, or properly re-execute the work as the case may be, and
thereupon the Contractor shall and will immediately comply with the said requisi-
tion, and if tweniy-four hiours shall elapse and such requisition shall not have been
complied with, the Engineer muy cause such niaterial or other things, or sucli work
to bc removed, and in any such case the Contractor shall pay said Company ail such
damages and expenses as shall be incurred in the removal of such work, or said
Company may, in its discretion, retain or deduet such damages and expenses from
any amounts payable to the Contractor.

If, at any time during the progress of the work, in the opinion of the Engineer,
the force employed, or the fate ot progress thon being made, or the general charac-
ter of the work being performed, or the naterial supplied or furnished are not such
as to ensure the completion of the said wol ks within the time stipulated, or in accor-
dance with this contract, the Company shal be at liberty to take any part or the
whole works out of the hands of the Contractor, and employ such means as they
may sece fit to complete the works at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contiac-
tor shall bc liable for ail extra expenditure incurred thereby; or the Company shall
have power at their discretion to annul this contract. Whenever it may become
necessarv to take anîy portion or the whole work out of the hiands of the Contractor
or to annul the Contract, the Company shall give the Contractor seven clear day's
notice in writing of their intention to do >o, such notice being signed by the Presi-
dent otr the Company, or by any other person authorized by the Company,
and the Contractor shall thereupon give up quiet and peaceable possession of
al the works and materials as they then exist ; and without any other or fur-
ther notice or process or suit at law, or other legal proceedings of any kind
whatever, or wvithout its being necessary to place the Contractor On demeure. The
Company in the event of their annulling the Contract, may forthwith, in their dis-
cretion, proceed to re-let the saime or any part thereof, or employ additional work-
men, tools and materials, as the case inay be, and complete the works at the expense
of the Contractor, who shall bc liable for all extra expenditure which may be incurred
thereby, and the Contractor or his assigns or creditors shall forfeit all right to the
percentage retained and to ail money which may be due on the works, and they
shall not mnolest or hinder the mien, agent or officers of the Company from entering
upon and completing the works as the Company may deem expedient. AIl materi-
als and things whatsoever, and all horses, machinery and other plant provided by
the Contractor for the purposes of'the works shall remain and be considered as the
Property of the Conpany for the purposes hereinafter mentioned. Sbould the Con-
tractor at any time tail, refuse or neglect to pay any sum due for the work done or
supplies furnished or for any other matter connected with this contract the Company
Inay pay any of such claims so far as they eau be ascertained and charge the same
as a payment on accoint of this Contract.

It is understood that the said contractor shall be at the expense of locating said
line of railway where not at present located, and doing ail other engineering work
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required. The Contrnctor shall have the right to locate the line in the most advan-
tageous manner, and to make such alterations in the present location as he may see fit,
provided the line is not materially lengthened, and that such alterations are ap-
proved by the engineer of the Company, and that they are not contrary to the terms
of the contract between the Company and the Government of Canada. The con-
tractor shall deliver to the Company the plan and profile of each section of ten miles
of the line for their approval before commencing the work on each said section.

The said Company shall be placed in, and shall take possession of said ioad, on
the said first day of July, eighteen hundred and eighty-eight (1888), up to which
date the Contractor shall have the right of running trains over and upon said road
for his own advantage ; but after the completion of the first forty miles of the line,
the Contractor shall be bound to run a train twico a week, in each direction, over
the said forty miles. lu the event of the said forty miles not being completed on the
said first day of July eighteen hundred and eighty-seven, and in the event of the
whole of said road not being completed on said first day of July, eighteen hundred
and eighty-eight, the Company shail have the right of taking possession of said road
and all its appurtenances, with all tools, materials, horses, machinery and plant, and
of conpleting said road and the works thereon and of running the same at the costs
and charges of the Contractor.

The Contractor shal be responsible for al damages or loss done or sustained
in the course of the progress of the works, cither to the works thenselves, or to,
the material provided for the sanie, by change of season, or by fire or flood, or by
robbery, theft or otherwise, all of which shall be at the risk of the Contractor; and
the Contractor shal hold the Company harmless and indemnified fron ail danages
and trespass caused by the neglect or omission, of whatsoever nature done
or committed by the Contractor or by any person in his employ or in the
employ of any sub-contractor, to or upon any iieighboring lands, orchards, gardons,
or other premises, in the course of the piogress of the works. And the Company
shall be entitled to charge to the Contractor ail amounts paid by the Company from
or by roason of the said neglect, omission or act, and to deduct the same as pay-
ments on account of this contract.

The Contractor shall not in way sel, transfer, lot or sub-let this prosent contract
with the Company to any person or posons without the approval of the Board of
Directors of the Company expressed by a resolution passed to that et1ect.

Nothing contained in this agreement shall be considered or construed ps being
comminatory, but shall be hold to be absolute without which these presents would
not have been passed, nor as constituting or creating personal liability upon or by
the President and directors of the Company or any of them towards the said Con-
tractor.

The contractor shall not permit, allow or encourage the sale of any spiritaous
liquors, on or near the works.

Any notice, which it may becorne necessary or desirable to be given by the
company to the contractor, under or touehing these presents, shall bo deemed to be
well and sufficiently notified, or given if the same be left ut the contractor's office,
or mailed in any post office to the contiactor, registorod and addressed to him at
Montreal, or to his last known place of business.

Done and passed, at the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, on the day,
month and year heroinabove firstly written under the number four hundred and
ninety-nine, and after due reading the parties have signed with, and in presence of
the said undersigned notary, and the seal of said Company is heireto attached.

(Signed), THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
President of the B.C.R. Co

[L.S.] L. A. ROBITAILLE,
Secretary of the B.C.R. Co

CHARLES N. ARMSTRONG
WM. B. S. REDDY, N.P.

A truc copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office.
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EXHIBIT No. 4.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY.
SECRETARY AND TREASURER'S OFFICE,

QUEBEc, 16th June, 1888.
EXTRACT of the minutes of a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Baie des

Chaleurs Railway Company, held at the offiee of the company, in the City of
Quebec, on the twenty-fifth day of May, one thousand eight hundred and
eigh ty-six.
It is resolved that the president of this company, be and is hereby authorized

to execute a contract with the said Charles N. Armstrong, on the terms and condi-
tions of the draft of agreement hereto annexed, for the construction of this Con-
pany's Railway, from Metapedia to Paspebiac, and that the said contract be signed
by the president on behalf of this company, and countertsgned by the secretary, and
the seal of the company be affixed thereto.

" It is further resolved, that the president be empowered to execute and sign
all deeds, transfers of subsidies, bonds or debentures, and any other document
required to fully carry out the terms of the said contract."

Certified true extract,
[L.S.] . Signed, L. J. RIOPEL,

Assistant Secretary.

Tiiis INDENTURE made in duplicate this eighth day of June one thousand eight
hundred and eighty eight by and between Charles Newhouse Armstrong hereinafter
called " the Contractor " of the first part and Henry Macfarlane-hereinafter called
the " sub-contractor " of the second part. WITNESSETH :-

THAT in consideration of the covenants and agreements on the part of the con-
tractor hereinafter contained the said Sub-contractor covenants and agrees with
the said contractor as tollows:-

THAT the said Sub-contractor will at his own cost provide all and every kind of
labor, machinery and other plant, materials, articles and things whatsoever necessary
for the due execution and completion of ail and every the following works on the
Baie des Chaleur Railway which Railway said contractor is now under contract to
build, that is to say:

1. The said Sub-contractor shall complete and finish the forty miles of said
Railway now partially constructed and built, and shall provide rolling stock additional
to that already on said work to the amount and extent specified in the Schedule of
Rolling Stock hereunto annexed.

2. The Sub-contractor shall build twenty miles of new road in extension of said
forty miles, the whole to be built and completed in accordance with said contractor's
contract with said Company and under the direction of said Company's Chief Engineer,
and in accordance with the plans and specifications referred to in said contract which
tcontrctit and specifications are herein roferred to as furnishing the criterion by which
said work is to be executed and the same shall also be completed to the satisfac-
tion of the Dominion Government Engineer.

3. The said work shall be completed by the first day of January one Thousand
eight hundred and eighty nine.

IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing undertaking on the part of said Sub-con-
tractor, the said contractor obligates:himself to pay the said Sub-contractor as follows:

1. For all expenditure necessary for the purchase of rolling stock, rails, steel
bridges, right of way, and other necessary material, as well as engineering, the said
contractor shall pay to the said Sub-contractor in addition to the actual costs, five
per cent on the total amount, together with the interest, which said Sub-contractor
nay be obliged to pay to the bank advancing the necessary funds.

2. For all labor required to complete the said forty miles partially completed
the said Sub contractor shall be paid in addition to the actual cost of the same twelve
and a half per cent.
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3. For the twenty miles of new road in extension of said forty miles the said
contractor shall pay to said sub-contractor the prices as detailed in the schedule of
prices hereunto annexed, and paraphed by said parties ne varietur.

AND FOR sEcURING the said payments to to be made by said Contractor to said
sub-contractor, the said contractor hereby agrees to execute a notarial transfer of
the subsidies granted by the Government of Canada towards the construction of said
railway and applicable to said sibty miles of railway amounting to sixty two thousand
dollars upon the first forty miles also the sum of Qne hundred and twenty eight thou-
sand dollars applicable to the twenty miles of new road in extension of the forty
miles that is to say: forty to sixty, and also the sum of seventy thousand dollars
granted by the Quebec Government on said twenty miles of new road, and furnish to
said sub-contractor all necessary power and authority to obtain said subsidies, which
subsidies shall be paid in trust into some Chartered bank to be named by the said
sub-contractor, and paid ot to him as the work progresses and as the same shall
have been earned from the Governîment, and upon the completion of said work and
of this contract, whatever balance may remain of said subsidies, after paying said
sub-contractor in full shall be paid over to said Company.

TUE sAID CONTRACTOR further agrees that said Company will in all things ratify
and confirm these presents, and obligate themselves jointly and severally with said
contractor for the payment to said sub-contractor of all sums of money to which he
may become entitled in virtue of this contract and of the fulfilment of the same on
his part.

TuE RAILWAY now partially completed, with all rolÌing stock thereon as well as
that portion from said forty to sixty miles to be built with all appurtenances per-
taining thereto, shall romain in tlie possession and under the control of said sub-
contractor as additional security until the final payment of all sums of money to
which he may be entitled under this agreement.

THE CONTRAcTORS' engineer shall be under the control of said sub-contractor in
the execution of this contract.

THis AGREEMENT shall not be executory nor have any force or etfect until the
following conditions are complied with, viz..-

1. The contractor shal obtain an Order in Council from the Government of
Canada oxtending the time for completing the said work until the first day of Jan-
uary. 1889.

2. The said Baie des Chaleurs Railvay Company shall become a party to this
agreement and in ail things ratify and contirm the same, and obligate themselves
jointly and severally with said contractor for the payment of all sums of money
which may become due to him in virtue of this agreement.

3. The subsidies above mentioned shall be legally transferred to said sub-con-
tractor in the manner above set forth.

TiESE TIIREE conditions are of rigour and are to be complied with within ten
days from this date, otherwise this agreement shall be null and void.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said parties have signed and executed these presents
at the City of Montreal the day and year first above mentioned.

Signed, sealed and delivered (Sgd) C. N. ARKMSTRONG.
in the presence of ' H. MACFARLANE.

(Sgd) D. LEDUC.

I, the undersigned Theodore Robitaille, iresident of the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way Company hereby confirm and ratify on behalf of said Company the above writ-
ten agreement and obligate the said company jointly and severally with the said
contractor for the payment to said sub-contractor of al! sums of money to which he
may become entitled in virtue of said contract and of the fulfilment of the same on
his part.

(Sgd) TIHEODORE ROBITALLE.

Quebec, 14th June, 1888.
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SCHEDULE 0F PICES referTed to in contract made on the Sth lay of Jue bet-
ween Charles Newhouse Armstrong and Henry Macfarlane:-

Clearing per acre. ............................................. ... $2000
Close cutting per acre............... ............................ 40.00
Grubbing per acre.............. ........... .......... 100.00
Fencing per rod......... ......................... .................. .. 90
Gates each..... ...... ,............ ............................ .. 2.00
Earth excavation on Section (H1) per cubic yard........
Solid rock excavation per cubic yard....... ................. 1.25
Loose rock excavation " .........................
Earth excavation on section (J) per cubic yard........ ... .. 24
Ilardpan or cemented material 4 ........... ..
Earth excavation in foundations " .50
Cross logging per sup. yard ............. .3o
Timber in coffer dams per thousand feet board measure 30.00
Rip rap per cubic yard..................... 1.50
Stone drains ... ................
Masonry 1st class 15.00

do 2nd class 9.00
do 3rd class 8.00

Paving 3.00
Crib work tilled .10
Cedar tiniber in cuiverts, cattle guarls, per thousand

feet board maeasure........ ............... ........... 20.00
Pine shingles in work per thousand feet board mesure ... 3.00
Timber in tresties 35.00
Timber in fondations &415.00
Rond crossings and sign boards ec...... .................. 20.00
Faim crossns, eh....1..............................12.00
Ties, each.............................................. .18
Trackiayirîg per mile................................ ...... 2 25. 00
Ballastinig per cubic yard ................................. .25
Station building .. ......................................... 1,200.0

do ,.1...... .................................... 800.00
Days work at eost plus 12ý per cent.
Iron in wçork por pound........................... .05

Sub-coîîtractor t.o be allowed five per cent on total cost of ail rails and coine-
tions, switclies and Iroii bridges, also on cost of righJt of wray nnd enginee~ring.

Tho Con tractor to furnish fill the necessary rolling stock fr~ee of chairge.
(Signed) C. IN. ARMSTUONG,

4e 1. MAUFARLANE.
The following ils the Iist of rolling- stock required for the first sixty miles of the

Baie des Chaleurs Iailhvy:-
2 Engines.
1 First class passenger car.
1 second class ''
1 Baggage and postal car.

10 Box cars.
10 Flat cars.
1 Iron plow.
1 Flanger.

This is the Schedule of rolling
attached.

(Signed)

(Signed)

stock referred to in the agreement hereto

TIÉODORE ROBITAILLE,
President of the Baie des Chaleurs

Railway Company.
C. N. ARMSTRONG,
H. MACFARLANE.
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BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.
Specification for clearinq, grubbing. excavation, rip rap, stone drains, stone filling, etc.

Measurements.-1. No work shall be measured or paid for that lias not been
laid out by the engineer, earth and rock shall be measured in excavation as laid out
by the engineer. Where the character of the excavation is such that it cannot be
easily measured, the engineer may measure the embankment making such allowance
for shrinkage, as he deems proper, other work will be ineasuied as laid out by the
engineer.

Price.-2. The prices quoted shall be for the different works complete in every
detail.

Extru wvork.-3. No claim shall be made or allowed for extra work, unless such
work shall have been specially ordered in writing by the Chief Engineer.

Outside work.-4. The engineer may order work to be done, outside of the right
of way, and such work shall bu done at contract prices when so ordered.

Clearing, grubbing and close cutting.-5. The Chief Engineer shall direct vhen
clearing, grubbing or close cutting is to be done.

Clearing and burning.-6. Lumber fit for ties, fuel or timber shall be piled safe
from fire. All waste materials shall be piled in windrows about twenty feet from
the ceutre line and burned.

Grubbing.-7. Grubbing shall be allowed in cuts of less than two feet under
such banks as the Chief Engineer may di: ect, no grubbing shall be allowed on ditches
or borrow pits.

Excavation.-8. All materials excavated f rom cuts shall be deposited in the
embankments, except rock suitable for masonry, rip rap or stone filling which shall
be deposited where the engineer shall direct.

Excess in cuttings.-In the case of excess in materials in a cutting the Chief
Engineer shall direct either that the cutting shall be merely gulleted or that the
materials shall be used in other works, in widening banks or be wasted.

Loose rock.-Loose rock shall mean all rock found in pieces of more than half
a yard.

Structures.-The embankment around structures shall not be begun until autho-
rized by the engineer, and shall proceed simultaneously on both sides, the earth
being car-efully punned in their layers.

Opposite crib work.-The embankments opposite crib work shall be formed at
such a speed as will not interfeie with stone filling.

Hand laid rip rap.-land laid rip rap shall be formed oT stones not less than (3)
tiree inches thick, nor less than ono cubie foot solid contents, laid and bonded in
such manner as the Chief Engineer may direct.

Random stone.-Random stone shall be formed of stones not smaller than a cube
of ten inches, piled in such shape :.s the Chief Engineer may direct.

Stone Drains.-Stone drains shall be formed of stones not smaller than a cube
of twelve inches piled in such a shape as the engineei may direct, smaller stones
may be placed in tho top layer.

Pipes.-Earthenware pipes shall be laid on cedar sills, tive feet long and eight
inches through, two feet apart.

Stone filling in culverts, crib work.-Stone used in tilling culverts, crib work,
etc., shall be of such size as to fill the spaces between the cedar logs, at the back
smaller stones may be used.

Berms.-Where borrow ditches or pits are excavated along the sides of the
embankments a berm of at least five feet must be left undisturbed outside the bottom
of the slope of the embankment when finished. Should the borrowing be unsloped
the berm shaH be increased by one and a-half times the depth of such borrowing.

Ditches.-Ditches.shall be made where ordered by the Chief Engineer.
TIMBER WORK.

Measuiement.-No work shall be measured or paid for that has not been laid out
by the Engineer, piling will be measured in the work. Other timber wili be measured
by the plans.
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Prices.-Prices shall be quoted for the different works complete in every detail,
all accessories being furnished by the Contractor free of charges.

Extra work.-No claim shall be made or allowed for extra work unless such
work shall have beei specially ordered in writing by the Chief Engineer.

Detail.-All details necessary for the due completion of each piece of work
shall be constructed by the Sub-contractors at their own expense, even if buch details
be omitted fron the plans and especifications.

Excavation for foundations.-Excavations shall not be commenced till a quantity
of mateijal sufficient in the opinion of the Engineer for the prosecution of the work
has been delivered on the ground.

All material excavated-shall be deposited within one hundred feet as the
Engineer may direct.

Plans.-Strict conformity to the plans shall be required in all structures.
Trestles.-Pine timber shall be sound and straight, free from large knots, and

wanes, and Ivilt according to plans to be furnished.
Piling.--Piles shall he straight and sound, not under ten inches at small end, and

not over fifleen inches at large end. They shall be driven till they sink less than
half inch under a twelve hundred pounds hammer falling twenty feet.

Culverts.-Flatted cedar in walls and sUis of culverts must have at least two
inches face and shall form a wall twelve inches thick, all cedar shall be sound
and green.

Crib wvork.- Crib work shall consist of round green cedar logs with the bark on
of not less than ten inches diameter at small end and built according to plans to be
prepared by the Chief Engineer.

MASONRY.

lst Class Masonry.-First class masonry shall be in regular courses of large
well shaped stone laid in their natural beds, the beds and vertical joints shall be
dressed so as to form 4 inch joints. The vertical joints shall be dressed back square
9 inches, the beds shall be dressed perfectly parallel throughout. Thework shall be
left with quarry face excelt the outsideéarises, strings, bridge seats and coping which
shall be chisel dressed.

Courses.-The courses shall not be less than 12 inches, and may range up to 24
inches, the thinnest courses being invariably placed towards the top of the work.

Bridge Seats.-The bed stones for bed girders shall be of the best description of
sound stones free from drys or flaws of any kind, they shall not be less than 12
inclies in depth and 8 feet superficial aiea on the bed.

Headers and Stretchers.-Ileaders shall be built in every course not further
apart than 6 feet. They shall have a length in line of wall of not less than 24 inches
and shall run back at least three times their height unless the wall will not allow
this proportion, in which case they shall pass through from front to back. Stretchers
shall have a minimum length in line of wall of 30 inches, and their breadth of bed
shall be at lcast 1ý times their height. The vertical joints in each course shall overlap
thotse in the course below 9 inches at least. The dimensions are far minimum courses
(12 inches) the proportions, shall be the same for thick courses.

Coping stones.-Coping stones, string courses and cut water shall be neatly
dressed.

Backing.-The backing shall consist of flat bedded stones well shaped having
an area of bed of four superficial feet or more. Except in abutments two thicknesses
of backing stone but not more may be allowed in each course but the joints shall
not exceed that of face work. When the Chief Engineer considers it necessary the
backing shall be in one thickness. The beds shall be scabbed off to give a solid
bearing, no pinning shall be admitted between the backing and the face stones and
there shall be a good square joint not exceeding one inch in width, and the face stone
shall be scabbed off to allow this. In walis over three feet in thickness headers shall
be built in fi ont and back alternately and great care sli-11l be taken in the arrangements
of the joints to secure perfect bond.
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Second class masonry.-Second class masonry shall be laid in cenent. The
stones shall be large, durable and weil shaped and shall not be less than 10 inches
depth of courses, and shall be laid header and stretcher alternately. 'E[eaders shall
be not less than three feet unless wall is less, in which case they shall be thrmugh
stones. Headers in face and back shall bond. Vertical joints shall overlap not less
than 8 inches, and shall be squared back 6 inches. No pinners shall be allowed.
Bridge seats shall be >f through stones not less than 12 inches thick. AU stones
shall be dressed to form good beds with half inch joints.

Dry inasonry.-Dry masonry shall be built of well proportioned durable stones
not less than 6 inches thick, not more than four feet area on the bed with scabbed
beds forming close joints and shall be well bonded throughout. Stones shall be laid
on their natural beds the top courses shall be of through stones covers shall fit close
thiroughout their bearing.

Paving.-Paving shall be of durable flat bedded stones set on edges close fitted
breaking joints, and in lengths, and widths to give strength. The stones shall be
laid parallel with the walls of the structure and the top of the paving when laid
shall present uniform appearance.

Cement.-Mortar of best Portland Cement shall be used on all masonry (except
dry) the cement shall be fresh ground of the best brand, and shall be protected
carefully until used. Proof of its hydraulie properties satisfactory to the Engineer
shall be afforded before it shall be used.

Preparation of cement.-Cement shall be carefully incorporated with approved
proportions of cleaned, sharp grained, fresh water sand, and may be varied by the
Chief Engineer to suit the quality of cernent used. Cement shall be made so as to
be used fresh. Grout shall be made by adding water to properly proportioned cement.

Pointing.-All masonry shall be neatly pointed and if from any cause stone
should require re-pointing before the expiration of the contract the snb-contractors
shall make the same good at their own cost.

Commencing work.-Masonry shall not be started at any point until the found-
ations have been prepared, nor until the sub-contractors have provided a sufflicient
quantity of materials and plant to enable the work to be proceeded with regularly
and systematically.

Autumn work.-No masonry:shall be built in the autumn after the Engineer has
declared the cold te be too severe. Work left unfinished in autumn shall be properly
protected by the sub-contractor during the winter.

Plans.-All masonry shall be built according to plans to be prepared by the
Chief Engineer and the quantity of work done shall be calculated by these presents.

Measurements.-No work shall be measured or paid for that lias not been laid
out by the Engineer, excavation will be measured and laid out.

Extra work.-No claim shail be made or allowed for extra work unless such
work shall have been specially ordered in writing by the Chief Engineer.

Excavation, culverts and bridges.-Excavations shall not be commenced till a
quantity of material sufficient in the opinion of the Engineer for the prosecution of
the work has been delivered on the ground. All material excavated shall be
deposited in such places within one hundred feet as the Engineer may direct. Any
increased expenses caused by excavations being taken out prematurely shall be
charged to the contractors. Cost of baling shal be done by the sub-contractors.

Coffer dam.-Coffer dams shall be built according to the plans to be prepared
by the Chief Engineer. The price shall include charge for removal.

Timber.-Timber fbundation shall be built according to plans to be prepared
by the Chief Engineer. The price shall include the cost of getting into position,
sinking and securing.

Piles.-Bearing piles shall be of Tamarac or spruce not less than 10 inches
diameter at small end, not more than 15 inches diameter at large end, straight, free
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of large knots and other imperfections and shall be banded at the head to prevent
splitting. They shall be driven till they shall sink î of an inch under a twelve
hundred pounds hammer falling twenty feet. Price will include pointing and
splicing and cutting off above water. When required by the engineer the point will
be shod with an iron shoe to be furnished by the sub-contractors at cost.

Cutting of pile.-The head of bearing piles will be eut off square at the height
required by the engineer. If eut off below low water mark a price per pile will be
allowed.

Baling.-Unless otherwise provided the prices for all foundation work shall
include the baling, pumping, (incident to the work).

Measurements.-When no provision has been made as to method of measure-
ments the Chief Engineer shall determine the cases.

Road crossings.-Road way must be properly planked and approaches properly
graded and will have suitable boxes or drains for the conveyance of water when
required. Also notice boards.

Farm Crossings.-Road way to be planked and approaches pro perly graded
into suitable or drains for the conveyance of water w hen required
or trestle bridges from outer edge of ditch to top of embankment.

FENCING.

The posts to be of cedar four and a half feet high above the ground and 6 inches
diameter at the small ead, where the ground is rocky they will be dovetailed into a sill
and spiked with two six inch eut spikes. The brace to be of cedar not less than 34
inches diameter. Where ground is not of solid rock posts to be sunk in ground
four feet.

There will be a top board five inches wide and 1½ inches thick set on edge on
the top of the posts and set into the posts the thickness of the top board and secured
with two four inch eut spikes into each post and each end to have two four inch
spikes.

Barbed wires.-Four barbed wires of the Intercolonial Railway standard are to
be stretched and properly secuied with staples to each post. Straining posts are to
be put in every four hundred feet.

The approaches from the fences to the cattle guards to be built of boards suitable
for that purpose with top boards secured same as for wire fence.

The whole to be done in a workmanlike manner, and all the materials to be the
best of their several kinds.

(Sgd.) THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
President of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Co.

(Sgd.) C. N. ARMSTRONG.
(Sgd.) Il. MACFARLANE.
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EXHIBIT No. 5.

BAIE DES CHALEURS IRAILWAY COMPANY, DR. TO C. N. ARMSTRONG.

Certificate of A. L. Light, 1st July, 1889, Section A E..............$ 535,485 0
do do do do F.................. 172,320 09
do do do do G...................140,2 42
do do 1st Sept. do i...................198y661 33
do do do do c ..tin .................. 140024 84
do do J9th Oct. do K.................... 38693 87
do do 7th Jan. 0do K L M H ............. 10000 00

Total......................................$l1235,297 55

Substitution of steel superstructure for bridges in lieu of wooden
Howe Truss, $16,786.00-say 50 per cent............ ..............

Surveys executed in excess of contract-
Section C................ ....................... 270

do H...................................... 1.51
do J .......................................... 2 -90

88,393.00

per mile.
do
do

7-11

Cascapedia front line, 14-77-21·88.......... ...................................... $ 2,188 00
Steel girders on hand, 1-60 ft...... . .... ....................... ,277 oo

do 1-40 ft......................................... 1,581 00
do 1.30 ft.......................... 1,207 00

6,065 00
One combination car ..................... 3,200 00
Timber, piles and ties on hand .......... * 1,227 29
Stone at Metapedia, 155 cubic yards, at $6.............................. ...... * 930 00

do Labour, Black Cape Quarry ....... ............................... .... * 3,334 68

MONTREAL, 20th April, 1891. $1,260,635 52

D. LEDUC, Contractor's Chief Engineer.

By subsidies transferred at my request-
Dominion Government.................. ........ $556,000
Provincial do .......................... 350,000

- $ 906,000 00

Balance due C. N. Armstrong ... .......... ..... ........ $ 355,635 52
LEss-Paid in bonds 21 of £500 stg...... 51,099 93

$ 304,535 59
*LESS these amounts,................ 5,591 57

$298,943 62

*The correctness of these itesi.iiot yt ascertaned.
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We certify that this amount, $298,943.62, is † a correct statement of estimates
of work done and remaining unpaid to C. N. Armstrong in accordance with the-
terms of his contract with the Company.

L. J. RIOPEL, Managing Director.

L. A. ROB1IAILLE, Secretary-Treasurer.

QUEBEC, 22nd April, 1891.

QUEBEC, 28th April, 1891.
Received from J. C. Langelier, Deputy Provincial lRegistrar, the sum of one

hundred and seventy-five thousand dollars, in full settlement of this account.

C. N. ARMSTRONG.

† In the original the word " due " is here erased and in the margin is the note " is a
correct statement of estimates of work done and remaining unpaid " intialled " L. J. R."
"L. A. R."

EXHIBIT No. 6.

(Canadian Pacific Railway Company's Telegraph.)

THE SENATE, OTTAWA, 10th August, 1891.
To CHARLES N. ARMSTRONG,

Inch Airan House, Dalhousie, N.B.

The Senate Railway Committee meet on Wednesday next, the 12th instant, at
ten o'clock, a.m., when you are required to be pi'esent to testify iii the matter of the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company's Bill.

A. VIDAL.

Chairman of the Senate Railway Committee.
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EXIIIBIT No. 7.

"A."

THE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

This section of Railway extends fron the Metapedia Station of the Inter-
colonial Railway, eastwardly, 20 miles along the north side of the
Restigouche River.

Works to be This specification refers to all works of construction and equipment,
covered by and materials required in making, building and equipping this section of
.contract. railway, also including sleepers, rails and fastenings, spikes, frogs,

switclies, t rack-laying and ballasting, equipment, station buildings, tanks,
turn-tables and everything that is necessary to put this section ot railway
in first-class condition, ready for operation.

It comprises clearing, close-cutting. grubbing, excavation, masonary
and tiniber, culverts, paving and rip-rap, public and private road
crossings, drains, trestling, ditching, foundations, road and strean
diversions, together with ail other works connected with the coristrue-
tion of the road, according- to the following specifications, profile and
drawings:-

The said works to be constructed of the best materials of their several
kindt, and finished in the best and most workmanlike manner, in the
manner reicuired by and in strict conforinity with the said specification,
profile and drawings, now prepared, and to the complete satisfaction of
the Minister of Railways and Canals.

RIGHT OF WAY.

Right of way. The company to furnish all land necessary for right of way and
station grounds. the width of right of way to be not less than 100 feet.

FE NCING.

Portion to be The company is to enclose all the ground with a .good fence, which. if
fenced. they prefer, may, in the first instance, be temporary, and shall keep the

sane enclosed during the progress of work so as effectively to preserve
the adjoining land froi trespass, and prevent any injury whatever to

Temporary parties by reason of the want of sufficient fences to separate their lands
from the works, and the company shall be wholly responsible for all
dainages to crops and all the consequefces f insuflcient feneing.

Permawt Before the termination of the coitract the company shall construet a
fence. permanent fonce, of the Intercolonial Railway standaid, throught all

parts of the line.
The posts to be of cedar-, 4ý feet higli above ilie ground, and 6 inches

dianieter small end. Where the ground iw rocky they will be dovetaileid
ihto a sill, and spiked with two 6-inch eut spikes. Braces to be 3½ feet
long, and spiked to sill and post vitli two 5-inch eut spikes. The brace
to be of cedar, not less than 33 inehes dianeter. Where ground is not
of solid rock, 8-foot posts to ho sunk in ground 4 feet.

There will be a top board 5 inches wide and 1½ inches thick, set on
edge on the top of th'i posts and set into the posts the thiekness of the
top board, and secured with two 4-inch cut spikes into eachi post, and
each end to have two 4-inch spikes.

Barbedl wire. Four barbed wires, of the Intercolonial Railway standard, are to be
stretched and properly secured with staples to each post. Straining
posts are to be put in every 400 feet.

The approaches front the fentes to the cattle guards to be built of
boards suitable for that purpose, with top board secured same as for
wire fence.
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The whole to be done in a workmanlike manner, and ail materials to
be the best of their several kinds.

CLEARING, &C.

Where the railway passes through wooded sections the land must b width (iof
cleared to the width of 50 feet on each side of the centre line, and, also clearing.
the entire area of station grounds.

The clearing is to be done so that all the brush, logs and other loose
materials, within the above limits, shall be burned or removed. In no
case shall any of' the brush or logs be cast baek upon cte adjacent tinber
lands; they must invairiably be made into piles near the centre of the
space to be cleared, when, if not removed for fuel or otherwise used,
they must be entirely consumed. Ail brush or trees accidently or other-
wise thrown into the adjacent voods must bc dragged out and burned or
renoved. Whcn completed, the land must be lest in a clean condition
within the railway limits.

Where emibankments are to be formed less than 4 feet and more than Close cutting.
2 feet in height, all the standing timber and stumps must be chopped
close to the ground within the limits of the embankment and burned.
Close-cutting will also be required 10 feet inwards from the toe of all
embankments over 4 feet in height.

When excavations will not exceed 3 feet in depth or embankments 2 (rubbing.
feet in height, all stumps and large roots must be grubbed out, and, if
passible, burned. Those that will not burn must bu carried beyond the
Iiimits of the cuttings and ombankments.

GRADING.

Under this head is included ail excavations and embanminents and Itens includ-
surface-forming, whatever may be the niateriais, and whether the same "] uder

bc required for the line of railway, or for the diversion or trming ofgradig
water-courses, roads, approaches to public or private erossings, draining
or offEtakce ditelies, station grounds, foundations, and ail other works
contingent upon or relating to excavations and embankments, a> required
by the nature of the contract, described in this specification or shown in
the profile and drawings.

In wooded sections the grading will not be commenced until the clear- Tine of coi-
ing, close-eutting and grubbing required shall be completed. "e"*"'

In places where the natural surface of the ground is covered vith Material iii
muck or vegetable matter, such as would impair the work, the same nust
be removed. The natural surthce of the ground shal1 be deeply plowed
over the base of' side bill-embankments.

On the completion of the cuttings, ditches for* the reiroval of the Side ditehes.
surface water shall be formed along each side, ut the botton of tle slopes.
Catch-water drains shall be constructed, as well as ail other drains and
ditches, for the proper drainage of the railway and workcs.

The wvidth of formation level will be 16 feet for railway embankments Width of
and 20 feet for cuttings. roadned.

The slo)es will be one-and-a-half horizontal to one vertical for earth Bernis.
excavation, and one horizontal to four vertical for solid rock excavation.
In ail cases of rock cuttings a berm of 5 feet shall be left between the edge
of the rock and the carth slope, if any.

Ii cases where the line cuttings are insufficient to form the embank- Wid.euing
ment, the deficiency shall be supplied by widening the cuttings, or from ""i'i
borrow-pits.

Where borrow ditches or pits are excavated along the sides of the Borrow dit-
embankments, a berm of at least 5 feet must bc left undisturbed outside cels.
the bottom of the slope of the embarkment when tinished. Should the

271

54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2.A.) A. 1891



54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.) A. 1891

borrowing be unsloped, the berm shall be increased by one-and-a-half
times the depth of such borrowing.

Should the company borrow outside the railway limits, they shall
themselve,ý be responsible for ill damages to outside parties.

Filling over Great care mubt be exercised in filling round and over structures, and
structures. all tendency to side thrust must be strictly avoided, by filling on both

sides simultaneously and ramming the earth carefully along and above
the structure, to the depth of 3 feet, before allowing the embankment to
proceed. No vegetable matter of any kind, ice or snow, will be allowed
to enter an embankment.

Service roads. Roads constructed to and from any point on the line of railway for the
convenience of the company must be at their own risk and cost.

Public roads Wherever the line is intersected by any public or private roads the
to be iob- company must keep open, at their own cost, convenient passing places,structed. and they shall be held responsible for keeping all crossings, during the

progress of the work, in such condition as will enable the public to use
them with safety, and such as will give rise to no just ground of complaint.

Cattle guards. At all public roads crossed on the level the company will be required
to put in two cedar cattle guards of the Intercolonial standard ; also

Farn cros- notice boards; and roadway to be propeily planked and graded. Farm
sings. crossings will be established where required. They will be graded and

planked and will have suitable boxes or drains fbr the conveyance of
water where required. The company will also provide and put in place
two gates at each farm crossing, of approved design.

Finishing up The company shall, at their own cost, before the work is finally
work. accepted, finihh up cuttings and enbankments, drain borrowing-pits,

dress slopes to the required angles, repair all damages from any cause,
and complete everything connected with the grading of the roadbed,
bridging, ballasting and track-laying, in a creditable and workmanlike
manner.

Foundations. Foundation pits must be sunk to such depths-as may be necessary
for the safety and permanency of the structure Io be erected. They will
in all cases be sunk to such depths as will prevent the masonry being
aeted upon by the frost. Foundation timbers, when required, will be of
such lengths and sizes and laid in such manner as the nature of the
bottom m1a11y necessitate.

RIP-RAP.

Wherever the slopes of embanknents are liable to be washed by the
streams or tides, they will require to be protected by a rip-rap wall of
durable stone of fair size, carefully hand laid, for such distance and to
such heights as may 'be necessary.

CULVERTS.
Standard for Where stone culverts are required, they must be built in a substan-
stone culverts. tial and permanent manner, and of durable and suitable materials, and

be equal in character to similar sized structures on the I. C. R. Where
wooden cul- wooden culverts are required, they will be open, and constructed in
verts. strict accordance with the standard. The timber used to be sound mer-

chantable cedar. Care must be taken, in bedding the sills, to give a fair
Cedar for and uniform bearing throughout. All framing to be in a thorough and
wooden cul- workmanlike manner.
verts.

MASONRY.

Bridge masonry and arch culverts shall generally be in regular
courses of large, well-shaped stone, laid on their natural beds; the beds
and vertical joints will be dressed, so as to form þinch joints. The
vertical joints will be dressed back square 9 inches; the beds will be
dressed perfectly parallel throughout. The work will be left with the
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quarry tace," except the outside arrises strings and coping, which will
be chisel-dressed.

The courses shall not be less than 12 inches, and may range up to Thickness of
24 inches, the thinnest courses being invariably placed towards the top courses.
of the work. The bed stones for girders shall be the best description of
sound stone, free from drys or flaws of any kind; they must be not less
than 12 inches in depth and 8 fieet superficial area on the bed.

Headers will be built in every course not further apart than 6 feet;
they will have a length in line of wall of not less than 24 inches, and
they must run back ut least three times their height, unless where the
wall will not allow this proportion, in which case they will pass through
from front to back. Stretcherts will have a minimum length in line of
wall of 30 inches, and their breadth of bed will at least be 1 times their
height. The vertical joints in each conrse must be arranged so as to
overlap those in the course below 10 inches at least. The above dimen-
sions are for minimum courses of 12 inches; the proportions will be the
same for thicker courses.

Coping stones, string courses and eut-waters shall be neatly dressed.
The backing will consist of flat bedded stone, well shaped, having an Backing.

area of bed equal to 4 superficial feet or more, except in abutments, two
thicknesses of backing stone, but not more, will be allowed in each
course, and their joints must not exceed that of the face work. In
special cases, where necessary, the backing shall be in one thickness;
the beds nust, if necessary, be scabbled off so as to give a solid bearing;
no pinning will be admitted. Between the backing and face stones
there must be a good square joint, not excecding 1 inch in width, and
the face stones must be scabbled off to allow this. In walls over 3 feet
in thickness headers will be built in front and back alternately, and
great care must be taken in the arrangement of the joints, so as to give
perfect bond. Ali masonry must be neatly and skillfully pointed, but Pointing.
if donc out of season or from any other cause, it may require re-pointing
before the expiration of the contract, and the company nist make good
and complete the same a; their own cost. Work left unfinished in the Untinished
autumn must be properly protected during the winter by the company work.
at their risk and cost.

Masonry shall not be started at any point before the foundation has Foundation
been properly prepared, nor until the company has provided a sufficient for masonry.
quantity of proper materials and plant to enable the work to be pro-
ceeded with regularly and systematically.

Open culvert masonry shall be laid in line and lipped with Portland
cement, 4 inches. The two upper courses shall be laid in cernent. Stones
to be large, durable and well shaped, and are to be laid on their natural
beds. Stones to be not less than 10 inches depth of courses, and are te
be laid header and stretcher alternately. Headers to be not lcss than 3
feet, unless wall is less, in whieh case headers to be through stones.
Headers in face and back to bond. Vertical joints to overlap not less
than 8 inches and to be squared back 6 inches. No pinners will be
allowed. Bridge seat to be through atones not less than 12 inches thick. Lime.
.Alil stones to be dressed, to form good bed, with *-inch joints. 'Lime to
be of best quality, and clean, sharp fresh-water sand to be iised through-
out.

Box culvert masonry shall be laid dry and is to be built of well pro- Box culverts.
portioned durable stone not less than 6 inches thick, nor more than 4
feet area on the bed, with scabbled beds, forming close joints, and shall
be thoroughly well bonded throughout. All stone to be laid on their
natural beds, - to be through stones; top course to be entirely through
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stones ; covers to fit close throughout their bearing. All culvert
masonry to be built in a neat and workmanlike manner.

MORTAR OF THE BEST PORTLAND CEMENT

Cenent. will be used, in building all masonry, from the foundations up to a line
2 feet above the ordinary level of the stream. It will be used, also, in
turning arches, in laying girder beds, coping, covering of walls gene-
rally, in lipping and in pointing. The cernent must bc fresh ground, of
the best brand, and it must be delivered on the ground, and kept till
used in good order.

Before being used, satisfactory proof must be afforded of its hydrau-
lic properties, as no inferior cernent will be allowed.

Coninin lime. Comnon lime mortar must be made of the best common lime, and
will be emploped in all nasonry (except dry) where cement is not
directed to be used.

Mortar, how Both cernent and lime must be thorough}y incorporated with
made. approved proportions of clean large-grained sand. The general propor-

tions may be one part of lime to two parts of sand, but this may be
varied according to the quality of the lime or cement. Mortar will be
only made as required by the company's men. Grout shall be formed
by adding a sufficient quantity of water to woll tempered and well-pro-
portioned mortar.

Grouting. When mortar is used, every stone must be set in a full bed and
beaten solid ; the vertical joints must be flushed up solid, and ever'
course must be perfectly level and throughly grouted.

Lipping. In all walls built in common lime the exposed face will have a 4
inch lipping of cernent.

Punning and After the masonry of the structure has been completed for a period
tilhng. of four or five weeks, the formation of the embankment around it may

be proceeded with. The earth must be carefully punned in thin layers
arouid the walls, and in this manner the filling must be carried up
simultaneously on both sides. The company must be extremely careful
in forminig the embanikments around cu verts and bridges, as they will
bu held liable for any damages to the structures that may arise. The
punning inust be carefully attended to, and the whole filling must inva-
riiably e done in uniform courses, from the bottom to the top of the
cm bankments, without loading one side of masonry, more than another.

WOODEN BRIDGES.
Length of There will be one Howe truss span of 60 feet, two of 50 feet and

of work one of 40 feet; upper chords and diagonals to be of white pine, and
Workmanship lower chords of pitch pine. Iron to be best refined. The whole to be

constructed in the best manner.
ROAD DIVERSIONS.

Width of Diversions of the Post Road shall be made at the places indicated
Public Road, on plan. The road must not be left less than 25 feet wide, propertly

graded and side-ditched, gravelled, and made satisfactory to the Road
Commissioner or Supervisor.

CRIB WORK.

Side hill to be Between stations 43 and 91-239 and 248-267 and 277-439 and 444-
bench. 461 and 469 there is very steep side hill ground ; the slope is about one

to one. The side hill will require to be benched out, and the line carri-
ed on crib work.

The crib work will be built of round, green cedar logs, with bark
on, straight and sound, and not less than 10 inches diameter. The cribs
to be filled with stone.
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PAVINU.

To be of durable flat-bedded stone set on edge, close fitted breaking
joint and in lengths and widths, to give strength ; to have a depth of 12
in., and to be well bedded on the underlying broken stone or other foun-
dation ; all to be laid parallel with the side walls of the culvert, and to
extend outside the end walls such distance as may be necessary. The
top of the paviig wheu laid to present a uniform surface.

SLEEPERS.

The sleepers to be 8 feet long, 8 inches wide, and 6 inches thick,
2600 to the mile.

The sleepers must be hewed ; they are to be squared, not merely Size and <lia-
flatted to dimensions, and they must all be butted off square to the Eity of tin er.

exact length. Sawed sleepers will not be accepted.
Al the sleepers are to be sound, green wood, free from wanes,

8hakes and rotten knots; they may be of Prince's pine, tamarac or cedar.
TRACK-LAYING AND BALLASTING.

The track-laying and ballasting will embrace all labour, and tools Works includ-
r dfor uloading and distributing ail rails, joint-fastenings, spikesed indervequired fo'nodn n itiuigal aljitfseigs pks track-laying

switches and sleepers; laying, lifting, centreing, lining and surfacing annanist.
i lie track ; also, for making roads to ballast pits and laying all service ing.
tracks ; for getting, loading and unIoading the ballast, placing the same
in the roadbed and trimming it up.

The rails to be of approved steel, 56 lbs. per yard, joints connected Rails, fasten-
with angle fish-plates. Rails, fastenings and spikes, frogs and switches, ings, &c.
to be equal in character to those used by the Intercolonial Railway.

TRACK-LAYING.

The sleepers shall be placed in the track 2 feet between centres, and spaing of
the rails shall be laid to a gauge of 4 feet 8J inches clear between the ties.
rails; they shall be well and carefully fastened at the joints, kept tight,
fully spiked, and on curves the outer rail shall be elevated according
to the degree of curvature as follows; that is to say, Î of an inch for
each degree of curvature up to a maximum of 5 inches elevation. The Elevating
rails shall be - handled with great care, and before being run over by track on
either engine or cars, they must be full tied and surfaced. Every pre- Curves.

caution shall be taken to prevent them getting bent during the progress
of the ballasting.

BALLASTING.

The land for ballast pits and approaches thoreto, will be furnished Land for Bal-
by the Company. In selecting land for the purpose a preference must last Pits.
always be given to those points where the best material can be pro-
cured. Diring the working of any pit, should the material be found
unfit for ballasting, the company to close sueh pit and open others.
The surface of ballast pits shall be stripped of soil, where such exists,
and no material whatever shall be placed on the roadbed but good, cean
gravel, free from earth, clay, loam, or loomy sand; no large stones shall be
allowed. The maximum size of gravel must not be greater than 3 inches, Size of gravel.
and such only shall be allowed in the lower lift, the second lift and
dressings being composed of gravel of a finer character. The track must
be raised to a proper level in two "litts, and after each lift the ballast
must be well beaten and packed round and under the ties. The end of
each lift shall extend over not less than throe rail lengths, and before
trains are allowed to pass over the inclined portion of the track it must
be made sufficiently solid to prevent bending the rails, twisting the rail-
joints, or iajuring the rolling stock. After the last lift the track shall
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be centred, linled, topped, surfaced and tiiimined off. The quantity
of ballast to bc 2,000 cubic yards per mile.

The Company shall keep ail public and private road crossings in a
safe and serviceable condition during the progress of the work, loaving
them well and properly planked inside and outside of the rails, as may
be directed by the engineer, and gravelled to a depth of at least 10 inches
for a distance of 50 feet on both sides of the track.

The track shall bc left by the Company with everything complete,
and in first class surface. The ballast shall bc dressed off to a slope of 1
to 1, and the whole work shall be executcd and completed in every
respect to the satisfàction of the Minister of Railways and Canals.

The Company will bc required to furnish the following equipment,
which must bc in accordance with the following patterns:

2 Engines, similar to engine No. 37 I. C. Railway.
1 First class car similar to car No. 65 do
1 Second-classcar do car No. 468 do
1 Baggage and Express car similar to car No. 728 I. C. Railway.
6 Box cars similar to car No. 2370 I. C. Railway.
6 Flat cars do car No. 5166 do
1 Flanger do flanger No. 8 do
1 Snow plough do snow plough No. 24 I. C. Railway.
2 Station buildings in accordance with drawing and specification

No. 18.
2 Water services in accordance with drawing and specification

No. 17.
1 Engine house in accordance with drawing and specification

No. 19.
2 Turntables (iron) in accordance with drawing and specification

No. 20.
2 Hand cars similar to standard hand car used on Intercolonial

Railway.
Also sufficient siding accommodation.
All bridges, culverts and other structures nust ho of ample size and

strength for the purpose intended; piers and abutments of truss bridges
must be of massive masonry, and culverts under embankments over
twelve feet in height must be of well-built, strong. second class masonry,
or iron, made of durable and suitable materials, thoroughly peimanent
in character, and equal in evory essential particular to the best descrip-
tion of like work employed in similar railway work in the Dominion.
Culvorts under embancments less than twelvo foot in height may be of
cedar timber, except the track stringers of beam culverts, which shall
be of white pine. Superstructure of truss bridges may be of wood.

Specification, marked A, referred to in the annexed Agreement,
No. 7,879, signed this 7th day of November, A.D. 1885.

Signed in piesence ot: Sgd THOPORE IOBITAILLE,
Sgd L. J. RIOPEL, , President, B. C. R. Ce.

" ELZÉAR AUBE. L. A. ROBLTAILLE,f Secretary, B. C. Ri.Co
Ahd in presence of J. H. POPE,

Sgd H. A. FISSIAULT, Minister of Iailways & Canais,
M. JPESJARDINS, A. P. BRADLEY,Secretary.
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ARTICLES oF AGREEMENT made in duplicate this Seventh day of November, in
the year of Our Lo:d one thousand eigbt hundred and eighty-five,

BETWEEN:-IIER MAJESTY QUEEN VICTORIA, acting in respect of the Dominion
of Canada, and herein represented by the Honourable the Minister of Railways and
Canals, of the first part, and

TUE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY, of the second part.

WHEREAs by an Act passed in the fO.ty-seventh year of Her Majesty's reign,
chapter eight, the necessary authority was given by the Parliament of Canada for
the expenditure of the suin of Three hundred thousand dollars for the construction
ot a Branch of the Intercolonial Railway, from Metapediac Eastwards, towards Pas-
pebiae, twenty miles, in the Province of Quebec.

And whereas the tenders called for this work were in excess of the amount
authorized, and under date the first of May, A.D. 1884, the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company (holders ota Provincial charter to r the construction of aline from Metapedia
to Paspebiac and beyond to Gaspé Basin, which company, further, is subsidized by
the Local Government of Quebec and by the Dominion Government,) submitted a
proposition to construct the said twenty miles of road from Metapedia Eastwards,
towards Paspebiac, as a part of their own line, under the supervision of the Govern-
nient Engineer of the Dominion, and subject to such conditions as the Governor in
Council may see fit to impose, the said Company receiving therefor the said sum of
$300,000 voted for said road in the Session of the year 1884, and revoted in 1885.

And whereas by two Orders of lis Excellency the Governor General in Council,
bearing date the eigiteenti day of Septeniber and twenty-eighth day of October,
A.D. 1885, the said Minister has been duly authorized to enter into contract with the
said Company and to place in their hands the work of building and equipping the
said twenty miles of road from Metapedia Eastwards, towards Paspebiac, under
Government supervision and certain conditions hereinafter mentioned.

Now, therefore, the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company do covenant and agree
with Her Majesty the Queen, in consideration of the subsidies granted as hereinbefore
and hereinafter mentioned.

1st. That the said Company shall and will well and truly and faithfully make,
build, construct, complete and equip a line of Railway from Metapedia Eastwards,
towards Paspebiac, twenty miles, the points and route and course being shewn on
the map, marked F, and profile marked G, duly signed by the parties and romaining
of record iii the Department of Railways and Canals, where reference thereto may
be had, and all the works and equipnent apDurtonant to said line of railway, according
to the description and specification hereunto annexed, marked A, and to the plans
respectively marked B, C, D and E, duly signed by the partieshereto and remaining
of record in the Department of Railways and Canals, where reference thereto may
be had; and that the said Company will build, construct, <omplete and equip the
said line of railway, and shall perfori ail Engineering services, whether in the field,
or in preparing plans or doing other office works, to the entire satisfaction of the
Governor in Council.

2nd. That the gradients and alignment shall be in conformity with the plan of
location, marked F, and profile, marked G, aforementioned.

3rd. That the Company shall and will furnish bills of quantities of the whole
line of Railway in sections of four miles, and that before the work is commenced on
anly section, such bills of quantities shall be approved by the Governor in Council,
and before any payments are made, the Company shall furnisb such further returns
as may be required to satisfy the Minister as to the relative value of the works
executed with that of the works remaining to be done.
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4th. That the Company have already comienced the works embraced in this
agreement, and will carry on the same with ail reasonable despatch, and so that the
whole line of Railway from Metapedia Eastwards, towards Paspebiac, 20 miles in
length, shall be completed by the tirst day of July, A.D. one thousand eight hundred
and eighty-eight.

5th. That the Company will, upon and after the completion of the said line of
railway and works appertaining thereto, (if the said line of railway be or become
the property of the Company as hereinafter provided,) truly ana faithfully keep thie
same, and the rolling stock required therefor, in good, sufficient and proper working
and running order, and shall continuously and faithfully operate the same.

6th. That the said line of railway and works appertaining thereto, shall be
built, equipped and completed in all respects in accordance with the said annexed
specification.

7th. And that (in the event of Parliament not disapproving of the present
arrangement,) the said line of railway and vorks appertaining thereto, together
with all the franchises, rights, privileges, property personal and real, of every charac-
ter, shall, upon the completion of the said line of railway and works appertaining
thereto, be the property of the Company.

8th. It is hereby clearly understood that Her Majesty's Government of Canada,
provisionally accept the offer of the said Company above cited, to make this section
a part of their line, the said Company undertaking to mnaintain and operate it as such,
and that this arrangement is made with a view to this issue, conditionally as atore-
said.

9th. In consideration of the premises and upon the terms and conditions here-
inbefore and hereinafter mentioned, Her Majesty agrees to grant, and does hereby
grant, to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company the said sum of Three hundred
thousand dollars for the twenty miles of railway so to be constructed as aforesaid,
payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of Canada in five payments. that is
to say, for each portion of the said work as shall be equal in value to one-tifth of the
whole work undertaken, such proportion to be established by the report of the
Miqister of Railways and Canals, and payment to be made upon the certificate of the
Chief Engineer of Government Railways after its approval by the Governor in
Council.

10th. That the payment hereinbefore mentioned of the said sum of Three
hundred thousand dollars voted for the building of tie said road, which is now pro-
posed to be made to the Company, shall cover the price and costs of constructing
and equipping the road, the buildings and other works, the price and cost of all the
land and property necessary for the right of way, station grounds and other property,
including rolling stock, and ail costs of Engineering, and everything necessary to
complete and equip the railway.

llth. It is hereby further specially provided that if Par]iament should disapprove
of the present arrangement during the next session thereof, then the said section of
twenty miles shall not be the property of the said Company, but shall belong
absolutely to the Government of Canada, in the condition it may thon be in: the
works shall then be stopped and this contract shall be thereby absolutely null and
void, and no further inuneys in such case shall be payable therefor by Her said
Majosty, or on claims arising therefrom, over and above moneys which niay then
have already been paid or which may be payable under the then current certificate
of the Chief Engineer.

In witness whereof the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company have caused their
corporate soal to be aflixed hereto, and these presents to be signed by the President
and by the Secretary of the said Conpany, and the Minister of Railways and Canals

278

54 Victoria. A. 1891



hath hereinto set his hand and caused these presents to be sealed and countersigned
by the Secretary of the Department of Railways and Canals.

Signed by the President and by the
Secretary of the said Company,
the corporate seal of the Company
having been hereto affixed, in the
presence of

L. J. RIOPEL.

ELZÉAR AUBÉ.

Signed and sealed by the Minister
and by the Secretary of the De-
partment of Railways and Canais,
in the presence of

H. A. FISSIAULT.

M. DESJARDINS.

(Signed,) TH1ÉODORE ROBITAILLE,
President B. C. B. Co.

L. A. ROBITAILLE,
Secretary B. C. R. Co.

Seal.

(Signed,) J. H. POPE,
Minister Of Raicays and Canals.

"g A. P. BRADLEY,
Secretary.

{ Snal.j

EXHIBIT No. S.

A.
SPECIFICATION AND DESCRIPTION.

lst. The railway shall be a single track lino with gauge four feet eight and one
half inches, with necessary sidings.

2nd. The aliguments, gradient and curvature shall be the best the physical
features of the country will admit of, the maximum grade not to exceed sixty-seven
feet to the mile, and the minimum curvature not to be of less radius than seven
hundred and sixteen feet.

3rd. In all wooded sections the land must be cleared to the width of not less
than fifty feet on oach side of the centre lino; all brush and logs must boecompletoly
burnt and none thrown ôn the adjacent land.

4th. Ail stumps must be grubbed out within the limits of cuttings under three
feet in depth, or embankments less than two feet in height.

5th. Ail stumps rnust be close cut where embankments are less than four feet
and more than two feet in height.

6th. Through settlements the railway must be enclosed with substantially-built
legal fences, of vire or wood, with the necessary gates and crossings to accommodate
the farmers.

7th. Road crossings with cattle guards and sign boards shall be provided at ail
public highways crossing the railway on a level with the rails.

8th. The width of cuttings at formation level shall be twenty feet, embankments
sixteen feet.

9th. Efficient drainage must be pro%ided by open ditches and under drains.
10th. Ail bridges, culverts and other structures must be of ample size and strength

for the purpose intended; piers and abutments of truss bridges must be of massive
masonry, and culverts under embankments over twelve feet in height must be of woll
built, strong second class masonry, or iron, made of durable and suitable materials,
thoroughly permanent in character, and equal in every essential particular to the
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best description of like work employed in similar railway work in the Dominion.
Culverts under embankments less than twelve feet in height may be of cedar timber
12 inches by 12 inches, except the track stringers of beam culverts, which shall be
of white pine. Superstructure of truss bridges nay be of wood.

11th. The rails shall be of steel, weighing not less thari fifty-six pounds per lineal
yard, of approved section, and with the most approved fish plate.

12th. The railway must be well ballasted with either gravel or other suitable
material in accordance with the diagram hereto annexed. The sleepers to be 8 inches
face bv 6 inches thick and 8 feet long-2,600 to the mile.

13th. Sufficient siding accommodation, stations, tanks, turntables or Y's, and
huch other structures and buildings as may be necessary to meet the requirenients of
the traffic, shall be provided by the company.

14 h. Sufficient rolling stock necessary to accommodate and to conduct promptly
and efficiently the traffic and business of the line shall bc provided by the cornpany.

Signed in presence of ' Signed, THEODORE ROB1TAILLE,
President P. C. .R. Co.

L. J. RIoPEL, " L. A. ROBITAILLE,
ELZÉAR AUBÉ. Secretary B. C. R. Co.

And in presence of Signed, J. H. POPE,
Minister of Railway and Canals,

H. A. FIssIAULT, R. P. BRADLEYa
M. DESJARDINS. J - -- Secretary.

ARTICLES oF AGREEMENT made and entered into this seventh day of November,
in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five,

BETWEEN " The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Coinpany," of the first part, and Her
Majesty Queen Victoria, represented herein by the Minister of Railways and Canals.
of the second part.

WITNESSETH, that whereas it is, in and by an Act passed in the session of the
Parliament of Canada, held in the forty-sixth year of ier Majesty's reign, chapter
twenty-five and intituled, " An Act for authorising subsidies for the construction of
the lines of Railways therein mentioned," amongstother things in effect enactedthat

it shall be lawful for the Governor in Council to grant to the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company for 100 miles of their Railway from Metapedia, on the Intercolonial
Railway, to Paspebiac, in tie Province of Quebec, a subsidy not exceeding Three
thousand two hundred dollars per mile, nor excecding in the whole Three hundred
and twenty thousand dollars, the said subsidy to be granted to such conpany, it
being provided therein that the lino of Railway shall he eommenced within twoyears
from the first day of July, 1883, and completed within a reasonable time, niot to
exceed four years from and after the passing of this Act -25th May, 1883), to be
fixed by Order in Council, and according to descriptions and specifications to be
approved by the Governor in Council on the report of the Minister of Railways and
Canais, and specified in an agreement to be made by the company with the Govern-
ment ; such subsidy to be payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of Canada
by instalments in the completion of each section ofnot less than ten miles of Railway,
proportionate to the value of the portion so completed in comparison with the whole
work undertaken, to be established by the report of the said Minister.

Pi ovided always, that the granting of such subsidy shall be subject to such con-
ditions for securing such running powers or traffic arrangments, and other rights, as
will afford all reasonable facilities and equal mileage rates to ail railways connecting
with that so subsidized, as the Governor in Council may determine.

And whereas provision has already been made, in and by another agreement of
even date herewith, for the construction and maintenance thereafter as a part of their
own line of the first twenty mile section of the company's proposed railway, that is
to say, from the' Metapedia station of the Intercolonial Railway to a point twenty
miles eastwardly therefrom towards Paspebiac, and for the payment thereof out of
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a sum of Three hundred thousand dollars voted in the session of Parliament of the
year 1884, and revoted in 1885, as a branch of the Intercolonial Railway, it has been
agreed, and it is hereby agreed, that so much of the subsidy of three thousand two
hundred dollars per mile voted in 18S3, for the whole line from Metapedia to Pas-
pebiac, as had reference to the said first twenty mile section of said Railway, shall
cease to apply to the said first twenty mile section, and that the present agreement
shall apply only to the further eighty miles of the said line of railway.

AND WHEREAS the Governor in Council has duly approved of the descriptions
and specifications hereto annexed, narked " A," as the descriptions and specifications
for the construction of the Railway from a point where the first 20 mile section
mentioned in the other agreement of even date herewith, may terminate eastwardly
from Metapedia station of the Intercolonial Railway, and extending therefrom to
Paspebiac, a distance of about eighty miles.

NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that in consideration of tlhe said subsidy to
be paid in the manner aforesaid, " The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company," cove-
nants and agrees to, añid with Her Majesty, Her Heirs and successors, in manner
following, that is to say :-

1. That the Conpany shall and will well, truly and faithfully make, build, con-
struet and complete a line of railway from a point where the first 20 mile section
mentioned in another agreement of this day may terminate eastwardly from Meta-
pediac station of the Intercolonial Railway, and extending therefrom to Paspebiac, a
distanee of about 80 miles, the points and approximate route and course being shown
on the map hereunto annexed, marked " B; " an-d -ail bridges, culverts and works
appurtenanît thereto, and will build, construct and complete the said line of railway,
bridges, culverts and all engineering services, whether in the field, or iii preparing
plans or doing other office works, to the entire satisfaction of the Governor in
Council.

2. That the company shall and will locate and construct the said line of railway
on as straight a course as practicable, between the points above mentioned, with only
such deviations as may seem absolutely indispensable to avoid serious engineering
obstacles, and as tshall be allowed by the Governor in Council.

3. That the gradients and alignment shall be the best that the physical features
of the country will admit of in conformity with the aforesaid specification hereto
annexed, marked " A."

4. That the Company shall and will furnish profiles, plans and bills of quantities
of the whole lino of railway in ton mile sections, and that before the work is eom-
menced on any ten mile sections, such profiles, plans and bills of quantities shall be
approved by the Governor in Couneil, and befo:e any payments are made, the Com-

pany will furnish sici further returns as may be required to satisfy the Minister of
Railwavs and Canals as to the relative value of the works executed with that remain-
ing to be done.

5. That the said Company hav'e commenced the works embraced in this agree-
menti and shall complete the sane on or before the twenty-fifth day of May, A.D.
eighteen hundred and eighty-seven, time being declared to be material and of the
essence of this contract, and in default of such completion as aforesaid, on or before
the said date, the Company shall forfeit ail right, claim or demand to any aInd every
part of the subsidy remaining unpaid, as also to any moneys whatever which may
be at the time of the failure of the completion as aforesaid due and owing to the
company.

6. That the company will upon and after the completon of the said line of rail-
way and works appertaining thereto, truly and faithfully keep the same and the
rolling stock required therefor in good sufficient working and running order, and
shall continuously and faithfully operate the same.

It is hereby further agreed that Her Majesty's Government of Canada shall
undertake to request authority from Parliament at its now next Session to pay over
to the Company for the section comprised between the 20th and the 40th mile, in-
cluding said 40th mile, eastwards, from Metapedia (which now shall constitute the
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first 20 mile section of the 80 miles now to be built), the sum of $3,200 per mile
voted in 1883 for the first 20 mile section, eastwards from Metapedia, so that the
total amount payable for the first 20 mile section of the said 80 miles, shall be $6,400
a mile in place of $3,200; and that the said Company, however, shall not be entitled
to such additional subsidy unless and until the Parliament of Canada shall have duly
authorized such additional payment.

7. That the Company will build, construct and complete the said line of railway
and works appeitaining thereto in all respects in accordance with the specitication
hereto annexed, maiked " A"; and upon a line of location to be approved of by the
Governor in Council.

8. That the granting of the said subsidy shall be subject to such conditions for
securing such running powers or traffic arrangements and other rights as will afford
all reasonable facilities and equal mileage rates to.all railways connected with the
said line of railway so subsidized as the Goverrior in Council may determine.

9. And that the said line of' railway and works appertaining thereto, together
with all the franchises, rights, privileges, property, persorial and real of every
character, ,hall, upon completion of the said line of railway and works appertaining
thereto, be the property of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, " The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company " have caused
their corporate seal to be affixed hereto and these presents to be signed by the Presi-
dent and by the Secretary of the said Company, and the Acting Minister of Railways
and Canals hath herounto set his hand and eaused the same to be sealed and cou nter-
signed by the Secretary of the Department of Railways and Canais.

(Signed) THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
Signed by the President and by the President B. C. R. Co.

Secretary of the said Company, the L. A. ROBITAILLE
corporate seal ot the Company
having been hereunto affixed, in Secretary B. C. R. Co.
the presence of

(Signed) L. J. RIOPEL. Seal.
ELZÉAR AUBE.

(Sigied) J. il. POPE,
Signed and sealed by the Minister Xinister of Railways and Canals.

and by the Secretary of the De- " A. P. BRADLEY,
partment of Railways and Canals, Secretary.
in the presence of

(Signed) H. A. FISSIAULT. Seal.

M. DESJARDINS.

EXHIBIT No. 9.

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT made in duplicate, entered into this second day o June,
A.D. 1888.

BETWEEN ler Majesty QUEEN VICTORIA, represented herein by the Honour-
able JOHN HENRY POPE, Minister of Railways and Canals, of the first part, and the
BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY of the second part, hereinafter called "The
Company; "-

WHEREAs by the Act forty-sixth Victoria, chapter twenty-five, the Governor in
Councit wýas authorized to grant to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, incor-
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porated by Act of the Legisiature of the Province of Québec, a subsidy not exceed-
ing three thousand two hundred dollars per mile, nor exceeding in the whole three
hundred and twenty thousand dollars, for one hundred miles of their railway from
Metapedia on the Intercolonial Railway to Paspebiac in the Province of Quebec, and
by the Act forty-seventh Victoria, chapter eight, further authority was given to the
Governor in Council to grant a subsidy not exceeding in the whole three hundred
thousand dollars, for a branch of the Intercolonial Railway froin Metapedia east-
ward towards Paspebiac, twenty miles in the Province of Quebec, subject in both
cases to certain conditions meitioned in the said Acts respectively; and whereas
the said Company by two separate instruments, designated as articles of agreement,
made in duplicate, between Her Majesty Queen Victoria and the Company, both
bearing date the seventh day of November, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-
five, have undertaken to construct, in the manner and subject to the conditions
set forth in the said instruments respectively, as well the said twenty miles as the
remaining eighty miles of the railway from Metapedia to Paspebiac.

AND whereas by the Act 49 Vic., ch. 17, the two instruments of agreement
hereinbefore referred to were approved and confirmed, and whereas considerable
portion of work has been executed by the Compa.ny under the said agreements and
in pursuance of the said last mentioned Act upon the first forty miles of the said
line of railway from Metapedia eastward, the said forty miles being now nearly
completed, and whereas tbe Company have applied for assistance from the Govern-
ment of Canada towards the completion of the remaining sixty miles of the said
Railway, and it has been agreed by and between the Government of Canada and the
Company, subject to the approval of Parliament, that the subsidy of $3,200 per mile,
applicable for the last thirty miles of the said Railway ending at Paspebiac shall be
made applicable to the thirty miles of railway immediately to the westward thereof,
being the section commencing with the forty-first mile of the said Railway running
eastward from Metapedia and the seventieth mile, to the intent that there may be
applicable to the said thirty miles of railway as a Government subsidy the full sum
of $6,400 per mile; and it has been further agreed, subject to the approval aforesaid,
that as a security for the due completion of the last thirty miles of the said Railway
in pursuance of the agreements and statutes in that behalf, the said last thirty miles
to be constructed without subsidy from the Government of Canada, the Company
should transfer to the Government bonds to the amount of $200,000 of the character
described in sections 13 and 14 of the Company's charter (ch. 53 of the Acts of 1882,
Quebec). Now this agreement witnesseth that in consideration of the premises and
of the sum of $1, lavful money of Canada now paid by each of the said parties to the
other, the receipt whereof is hereby by each of them respectively acknowledged,
Her Majesty the Queen, subject to the approval of the Parliament of Canada, doth
hereby agree to and with the Company that the Government of Canada shall pay to
the Company as a subsidy for the completion of that section of the said Railway,
beginning with the 41st mile and going eastward and ending with the 70th mile, at
the rate of $3,200 per mile in addition to the subsidy already applicable to the said
section in pursuance of the agreements and statutes in that behalf, such subsidy to
be payable at the times and in the manner, and subject to the sanie conditions as the
said subsidy already provided for is applicable thereto.

It is further agreed between the parties that the Company hereby waives and
gives up aH right to be paid any subsidy or receive any sum of money under any
contract heretofbre existing between the parties or any statute in that behalf in
respect to the said last thirty miles of the said 100 miles of railway, the Company
hereby undertaking and agreeing to construct and complete the same in pursuance
of the said contract and statutes without a further subsidy from the Government of
Canada; and it is hereby further agreed between the parties that before any money
shall become payable to the Company under this contract the Company shall deposit
with the Government as security for the completion of the last 30 miles of the said
railway the Company's first mortgage bonds to the amount of $200,000, issued under
and in pursuan 3e of sections 13 and 14 of their said charter, it being hereby under-
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stood that the issue of which such bonds are to form a part, shall not exceed in
amount the sum of $20,000 per mile on the said 100 miles of railway, and shall
extend over the whole railway.

It is hereby further agreed between the parties that except as in this agreement
stated, the said two agreements hereinbefore referred to shall continue valid and have
full force and effect. It is further agreed between the parties hereto, that the
Government ot Canada shall undertake to request authority from Parliament at its
next session to ratify and confirm this agreement and everything herein contained.

This agreement is exeeuted subjeet to and shall only operate upon such author-
ity and ratification being obtained from Parliament as aforesaid.

In witness whereof the Honourable John Henry Pope, Minister of Railways
and Canals as aforesaid, has hereunto set his hand and caused the same to be seated
and countersigned by the Seeretary of the Department of Railways and Canale, and
the Company have also caused their corporate seal to be affixed thereto, and the
President and Secretary of the said Company having also signed these presents the
day and year first above written.

Signed and sealed by' (Sgd.) J. Il. POPE,
the Minister and by the
secretary of the Depart-
ment of' Railways and (Sgd.) A. P. BRADLEY,
Canals, in the presence of

(Sgd.) F. A. FIssIAULT. Secretary.
" L. H. FILTEAU. (Seal.)

Signed by the President (Sgd.) THEODORF ROBITAILLE,
and Secretarv of the Com-
pany and the corporate
seal of the Company hav-
ing been affixed iii (Sgd.)
presence oft Secretary.

(Sgd.) H. A. FiSSIAULT.
cc L. H-1. FiTEAT. (Seal.)

EXHIBIT No. 10.

BRIE I IISTORY OF THE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

lIn 1883, by 46 Victoria, Chapter 25, a subsidy wvas granteti for the Section of
IRoad from Metapedia to Paspebizic a distance of* 100 miles not exceeding $3,200 per
mite nor exceeding in the whole S320,000.

The work îîot having been commenced, anti the pro4pects of it being commenced
in the near future under the above Act not being considereti favourabie it wvas tieter-
inneti to undertake the first 20 miles out from Metapedia Station as a Governnient

work anti for this pu'-pose a suili of $300',000 wa8 voteti by Parhiament by 47 Victoria,
Chapter 8.

Tenders Nwcre invited and received, but nonu of them coîning wvithin the amount
of the above appr-opriation of $300,000 and an offer having been matie by the Baie
des Chaleurs 1Railway Company to builti and operate this 20 mile Section for the
above $300,000 the offei' was accepteti by Ortier in Council, l8th September 1885,
and contract wvas entereti into on 7th November 1885, also a contract of same date
wvas made for the construction of the balance of '80 miles subsidizeti al, $3,200 per
mile, provideti the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on the first 20 miles be applied to the
second 20 ruiles miaking the subsidy oit the second 20 miles $6,400 per mile.
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By the 49 Victoria, Chapter 17, this doubling up of the subsidy was ratified
and the term for completion extended to lst December 1888.

The Road not having been completed on 1st December 1888, the balance of
subsidy unpaid ($244,500) lapsed and was revoted by the 49 Victoria, Chapter 17,
by this same authority the subsidy of $3,200 per mile on the 30 miles from the 71st
to 100th mile was doibled up on the 30 miles fiom the 41st to the 7Oth mile making
the subsidy on this Section $6,400 per mile. The Company depositing with the
Government Bonds of the Company to the value of £83,000 sterling as security for
the fulfilment by the Company of their undertaking to build the Section from the
70th to the 100th mile without Federal subsidy.

The total subsidy granted is....... ................... $ 620,000
Of which has been paid............. .................... 524,175

Leaving a balance unearned of.............. .............. .... $ 95,825

Ail payments are made upon the report of the Chief Engineer of Government
Railways after inspection.

DEPARTMENT OF RAILWAYS & CANALS,
AGUST 12th, 1891.

EXIHBIT No. 11.

STATEMENT of payments made to Baie de.- Chaleurs Railway Company on account
subsidy:-

lst to 20th Mile Section.

28th September, 1886............................... $60,000
3rd November, 1886.................................. 60,000
30th do do .......... ...................... 60,000
4th February, 1887.......................... ......... 40,000
17th August, 1887 ........................... . ...... 20,000
28th December, 1887........ ........................ 6,700
3rd December, 1888....... .......................... 15,200
27th February, 1889 ................................. 17,100
2nd August, 1889 . .... .................... ........ 18,950
21st October, 1889................................... 1,850

-- $299,800

21st to 30th Mile Section.
4th February, 1887.................................... $30,000
28th December, 1887...............,................. 23,600
2nd August, 1889 ........................ 1,700

-- 55,300

31st to 40th Mile Section.

27th February, 1889 ................................. $39,000
2nd August, 1889 .................................. 16,500

55,500
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41st to 50th Mile Section.

27th February, 1889.................................. $ 3,900
2nd August, 1889....... ................. 57,200

61,100

51st to 60th Mile Section.

21st October, 1889............................. ...... $52,475
-- 52,475

Total ........... . ................................ $ 524,175

EXHIBIT No. 12.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

1st to 20th mile.

Total subsidy...... ..... .......... ................................. $300,000
Earned and paid.......................................... ........ 299,800

Unearned and unpaid................................. 8 200

21st to 70th mile.

Total subsidy................................. .. $320,000
Earned and paid........ ......... ........ ....... 224,375

U nearned and unpaid.................. ........................... $ 95,625

EXHIBIT No. 13.
(Translation.)

" Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Exceutive Couicil,
dated 21st Apr-il, 1891, approved by the Lieutenant Governor on the 23rd April, 1891.
No. 237.

Concerning the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.
The Honourable the Commissioner of Public Works, in a Report dated 20th

April instant (1891), sets forth that he bas received a letter from Mr. Angue N.
Thom, of date the 17th April instant, readipg as follows :-"

To HONOURABLE P. GARNEAU, QUEBEC, 17th'Åpril, 1991.

Commissioner of Public Works and Premier, ad interim.
SIR,-We are in a position to secure the transfer of the charter of the Baie des

Chaleurs Railway if the following proposition is accopted by the Government, the
company under the management of a new board of directors will be prepared to go
on with the works, complete the road and have it ready for traffic on or before the
31st December, 1892, from Matapedia to Paspebiac, and thence to Gaspé Basin as
soon as circumstances will permit.

For the carrying out of the present proposition it is understood that the Gov-
ernment shall pay the company:-

1. The balance of the subsidy granted by the Statutes of Quebec, 45 Vic., chap.
23, and its amendments, and 51-52 Vic., chap. 91, sec 12, amounting to $260,000 to
be payable as earned.
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2. The subsidy of $50,000 granted by the statute of last session, 54 Vic., chap.
88, sec. 1, sub-sec. I, to be payable as soon as a bridge over the Grand Cascapedia is
finished and accepted by the Government.

3. To comply with the intention of the law these subsidies of 800,000 acres of
land granted by the Statutes of last session, 54 Vie., chap. 88, sec. I, sub-sec. J, shall
be converted and the proceeds thereof shall be used by the Government to pay the
legitimate and privileged claims, in accordance with the above Act, now existing
against the road or against the company ; and if any surplus should exist after the
payment by the Government of all claims now existing against the said road as
aforesaid, such surplus, if any, shall go to the new company on final settlement.

The said debts and claims after they shall have been approved and certified by
Mr. Thom, representing the company, shall be paid by a person appointed by the
Government for that purpose, and failing such approbation and such certificate by
Mr. Thom, they shall be paid upon a judgment or arbitrators' report in favour of
any payment. When the commissioner appointed by the Government shall accept
a claim and Mr. Thom refuses his certificates and approbation, then and in each case
the claimant has an absolute right to an arbitration, and the decision of the arbitra-
tors shall then state that the costs incuirred shall be paid by the party against whom
the decision is given. If Mr. Thom fails to appoint an arbitrator atter fifteen days'
iotice to do so, the comnissioner may then pay the claim, and his action shall be
binding on all parties.

As a guarantee that they will go on with the works, build, complete and run
the road, the company will deposit with the Government bonds of the actual com-
mission to the amount of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) which shall be
exchanged for an equal amount of bonds of another issue of same amount and value
in case the company would deem proper to cancel the present issue and replace
with others or other satisfactory security in lieu thereof, it being distinetly under-
stood that the company will be handed back the bonds or other security so deposited
on the completion and equipment of the road to Paspebiac.

The board of directors of the company under the new organization shall be
composed as follows:-James Cooper, of Montreal; J. P. Dawes, of Lachine; Alex-
ander Ewing, of Montreal; James Williamson, of Montreal; Angus M. Thom, of
Montreal, and two other persons to be named by the Government.

On the sixty miles of the said road comprised between Metapedia and the big
river Cascapedia, the company will resume the works as soon as they can take pos-
session of that section, and on the forty miles ending at Paspebiac, surveys will be
commenced as soon as tho present proposition is accepted and the works will pro-
ceed with the utmost diligence.

The whole respectfully submitted.
(Signed) A. M. THOM.

"And upon the said A. M. Thom, and the persons in the name of whom he
acts and whom he represents obtaining a transfer of the charter of the Baie de
Chaleurs Railway, and seeing that persons mentioned in the propositions above
cited have the necessary means to carry out the enterprise, as required by the
Statute of last session, 54 Vic. chap. 88, section 1, sub-section J, and seeing that it is
in the interests of the province to accept it, the Honourable Commissioner of Public
Works recommends that the said proposition be accepted as follows, that is to say:-

1. To re-organize the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.
2. T. construct and put in operation on or before the 31st December, 1892, the

one hundred miles of the said railway comprised between Metapedia and Paspebiac,
and the remainder as far as Gaspé Basin as soon as circumstances will permit.

3. To continue the works on the sixty miles comprised between Metapedia and
the river .Grand Cascapedia, as soon as the company shall bé able to take possession
of this part of the road, that is to say as soon as the claims which are not contested
shall bave been paid; which shall be done at the diligence of the Government,
between now and the lth May next, at the latest, but without recourse against the
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Government in default of such diligence, to commence the explorations upon the
forty miles between the river Grand Cascapedia and Paspebiac, as soon as the pro-
position shall be accepted, and push them on with the utmost dispatch.

4. That the first Board of Directors of the said com pany shall be composed of
the following persons: James Cooper, of Montreal; J. P. Dawes, of Lachine; Alex-
ander Ewing, of Montreal; Angus M. Thom, of Montreal; James Williamson, of
Montreal, and of two persons narned by the Government.

5. To deposit as a guarantee in the hands of the Government five hundred thou-
sand dollars of debentures or bonds of the company of the present issue or any other
satisfactory guarantee with the privilege of exchanging the said debentures or bonds
for an equal amount of debentures or bonds of any other issue, not to exceed, how-
ever the actual issue and of the same value in case it shall be judged expedient to
withdraw the present issue ; which debentures or bonds or other guarantees shall
be returned by the Government to the company as soon as the road shall have been
finished to Paspebiac.

On condition.
1. That the balance, to wit, $260,000 of the subsidios granted to the said railway

by 45 Vie., chap. 23 and its amondments and 51-52 Vie., ch. 91, sec. 12, shall be paid
to the company in proportion as the same shall have been earned according to law.

2. That the subsidy $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars) granted by the statute 54 Vie.
chap. 88, sec. 1, sub-section I, shall be paid to the company as soon as the bridge
over the river Grand Cascapedia shall have been constructcd and accepted by the
Lieutenant Governor in Council, upon a report of the Government Engineer.

3. That tie Government binds itself to pay the compaiy with the subsidy of
800,000 acres of land granted by the statute 54 vie., chap. 88, section 1, sub-section
J, converted into money, which subsidy shall be kept by the Government and em-
ployed by it to pay the actual debts of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway; and the sur-
plus, if any, shall be. after the payment of all claims actually existing against the
company, kept by the Government, which shall render an account thereof to the
company in final settlement.

That the said debts and claims after they shall have been approved of' and cer-
tified by Mr. A. M. Thom, representing the company, shall be paid by a person
named for that purpose by the Government; and in default of such approbation and
such certificates they shall be paid upon a judgment or report of arbitrators in favour
of any claimant. In the case of the Commi:sioner named by the Government ac-
cepting a claim and of tho said Mr. Thom refusing his certificate, then and in
each case the claimant shall have an absolute right to an arbitration and the award
of the arbitrators shall then declare that the costs shall be at the charge of the party
who shall fail; and in default of the said Thom to name an arbitiator after tifteen
days' notice so to do, the Commissioner may pay the claim for all purposes whatever
of law, and his action shall bind all tha parties."

Certified,

(Signed) GUSTAVE GRENIER.

Clerk of the Executive CounciL
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EXHIBIT No. 14.

(Translation.)UopY of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Executive Council, da-ted the
21st A pril, 1891, approved by the Lieutenant-Governor 23rd April, 1891.

As to the nomination of a Commissioner to pay the claims against the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company.

The Hlonourable the Commissioner of Public Works in a memorandum dated
twenty-first April instant (1891), recommends that Mr. J. C. Langelier, Assistant-
Registrar of the Province, be named a Commissioner to pay the claims against the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, in conformity with the dispositions of the
Order in Council number 237 of the 23rd April, 1891.

Certified,
(Signed) GUSTAVE GRENIER,

Clerk of the Executive Council.

EXHIBIT No. 15.
Folio 396 C. C.

J. C. LANGELIER, Commissioner.
In account with La Banque Nationale, Quebec.

Cheque...... ..... .. ...... $31,750 00 April 29... ..... Discount........... *74,111 64
do ............. ....... 24,000 00
do ..................... 16,000 00
do ..................... 111 64
do ..................... 2,250 00

$74,111 64 $74,111 64

Certified Copy of the Account of

Quabec, 11th August 1891, J. C. Langelier, " Commissioner."

P. LAFRANCE,
Cashier.

EXHIBIT No. 15a.

CHEQUE.

(Translation.)
No ......

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

Pay to C. N. Armstrong....................................or order, thirty-
one thousand seven hundred and fifty Dollars, 631,750.

(Sgd) J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissioner.

Marked on face:--

2A--19

Accepted payable the first of May, 1891.
P.L.

Payable 18th May, 1891.
J. E. P.
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396

LA BANQUE NATIONALE

(Stamped) yPaid
May lst., 1891.

QUEBEC.
Endorsed on back:-

Pay to A. Mc Thom or order
C. N. ARMSTRONG.

A. Mc Thom.
For the credit of

La Banque Nationale,
Quebec.

No. 2. P. LAFRANCE,
Cashier.

EXHIBIT No. 15b.

CIIEQUE.

( Translation.)
QUEB3EC, 28th April, 1891.

No.-
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

Pay to C. N. Armstrong.............................................or order
Twenty-four thousand ......................... dollars
$24,000.

J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissioner.

Marked on face :-Accepted payable the first of May, 1891.
P.L.

Payable the lst May, 1891.
J. E. P.

La Banque Nationale.
Paid

(Stamped) May 1, 1891.
_ Quebec.

Endorsed on back:-
C. N. ARMSTRONG.
TII. ROBITAILLE, M.D.

To be deposited at
La Banque Nationale

To the credit of
(Stamped) La Caisse d'Economie de Notre.Dame

of Quebec.
Upper Town Office.

FRS. COTE.
Accountant.
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EXHIBIT No. 15c.

CIIEQUE.

tion.) QUEBEc, 28th April, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALjE.

Pay to C. N. Armstrong ............... ................ or order
Sixteen Thousand ...................................................... dollars
($16,000.)

J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissioner.

Marked on face :-Acepted, payable the 1st day of May, 1891.

396

Payable the lst May,

(Stamped)

Endorsed on back:-

P. L.

1891.
J. E. P.

La Banque Nationale.
Paid

May 2, 1891.
Quebec.

Pay to bearer,
C. N. ARMSTRONG.

(Stamped)

For deposit to credit of
Bank of Montreal, Quebec.

J. Macara, Manager.

EXHIBIT No. 15d.

CHEQUE.
tion.)

QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.
Pay to C. N. Armstrong, Esq.,................or order

one hundred and eleven........................................M Dollars.

Marked on face:- 396

C. L.
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(Transla
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(Transla
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La Banque Nationale.
Paid

(Stamped) Ma 1, 1891.
Quebec.

Endorsed on back:-
C. N. AIRMSTIRONG.

Pay to order of La Banque Nationale, Quebec,
for the account of

(Stamped) La Banque Nationale, Montreal.
ALF. BEUNET,

Manager.

And written in lead pencil on back in French:-
To pay note of Mr. C. N. A.

Re Duquet.
Paid D. 855.00.

EXHIBIT No. 15e.

CHEQUE.

(Translation.) 
QUEBEC, 13th July, 1891.

No.-
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

Pay to James Cooper, Esq.................................. or order,
two thousand two hundred and fifty.............................. Dollars,
82)250.00. (Sgd.) J. C. LANGELIER,

Commissioner.
Marked on face G 94

396

L. B.

La Banque Nationale.
Paid

(Stamped) July 17, 1891,
Quebec.

Bank of Toronto.
(Stamped) 4200

Montreal.

Endorsed on back:-
JAMES COOPER.

For collection on account of
the Bank of Toronto,

(Stamped) Montreal.
J. MURRAY SMITH,

Manager.
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EXHIBIT No. 16.

Memo.
(Translation.)

Letter of Credit signed by the Honourable P. Garneau, in
his capacity as representative of the Prime
Minister and as Treasurer of the Province of
Quebec, authorizing La Banque Nationale to
advance the sum of $75,000 to J. C. Langelier,
Dated 28th April, 1891................................. $75,000 00

Bearing 5 per cent interest commencing from the 1st June to
the 10th July, due date of the letter of credit,
39 days at 5 per cent................................... 400 68

Discount-
$70,400 68

78 days at 8 per cent.................................... 1,289 04

Proceeds...................................... ............. $74,111 64

TRELASURY DEPARTMENT EXHIBIT No. 17.
ARxs,

QUEBBRIC.
The Cashier La Banque Nationale,

Quebec.

QUEBEC, 30th April, 1891.

SIR,-I beg to inclose herewith copies of the Orders in Council reforred to in
the letter of the Honourable the Acting Premier, authorizing the Bank to advance
$75.00 to J. C. Langelier, Esq., Commissioner.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obediont servant,

H. J. MACHIN,
Assist. Treasurer, P. Q.

(Translation.)
EXHIBIT No. 18.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

QUEBEC, 12 August, 1891.
Extract fron the minutes of a meeting of directors of La Banque Nationale

held 30th April, 1891.
" Loan of $75,000 made to J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, upon guarantee of a

Letter of Credit from the Provincial Government is approved."

Certified copy.

(Signed)
Seal.

P. LAFRANCE.
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EXHIBIT No. 19.

(Translation.)
(Folio 403, C.C.)

ERNEST PACAUD, in account with La Banque Nationale, Quebec.

Da. CR.

1891.
May 15.........

16 .........
19 .. ......
20.........
21... .....
22 ........
23 .........
26 ........
27 .........

29 .........

June 2.........
3. ...
9....

16....
26 .........
27 ....... ..

July 3.
6;.......

Cheque..........
do ..........
do ........ .
do0 ..........
3. ..........
2 ..........

5.........
4 ..........

Cheque..........
do ..........
7 ..........
6 ..........

Cheque..........
do ..........
1 ..........

10 ..........
9l..........

11q..........
Cheque... ......

do .........
do ..........
do .........
(o ..........
dIo .. .. .. .. . .

8 ets.

5,00000 May15...
5,000 00

250 00
1,000 00
1,50000

20 00
50 00

315 00
75 00
50 00

1,000 (0
1,000 00

50000
25 00

400 00
500 OU
555 40
260 00
500 00

1,000 00
500 00
100 00
30 00

102 20

19,732 60

.D iset.............

Certified copy of the account of Ernest Pacaud, in current accounts.

Quebec, 1lth August 1891.
(Sgd) P. LAFRANCE.

Cashier.

EXHIBIT No. 20.
(Translation.)

The cashier of La Banque Nationale will please deliver all my chequ
this day to the bearer, Mr. Auguste Edge.

7th August, 1891.

ERNEST PACA
Received from La Banque Nationale 24 cheques.

AUGUSTE El

QUEBEC, 7th August, 1891.

These cheques are drawn by Mi. Pacaud on La Banque Nationale.
A

294

es up to

UD.

>GE.

. E.

$ ets.

19,732 60

19,732 60
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EXHIBIT No. 21.
(Translation.)

MEMo. of discount of ERNEST PACAUD, Esquire.
No. 19,872. Note Ernest Pacaud in favour P. Vallière of

15th July 1891 ......................... ............ $20,000 00
Discount, 61 days at 8 per cent........ ............. 267 40

Proceeds to the credit of E. Pacaud............. .. $19,732 60
Certified.

QUEBEC, llth August, 1891.

P. LAFRANCE,
Cashier.

Memo.
A cheque for $20,000 drawn by J. C. Langelier, " Commissioner, " on La Banque

Nationale in favour of P. Vallière, accompanied by a letter from the cashier of the
same Bank, addressed to P. Vallière, saying that the said Union Bank will pay
these cheques as soon as the letter of credit in favour of J. C. Langelier, signed by
the Honourable P. Garneau, of date 28th April, shall be paid to the said Bank. I
believe that the cheque of $20,000 was to the order of C. NArnstiong, endorsed by
him and P. Vallière.

P. L.

EXIIIBIT No. 22.
(Translation.)

LA BANQUE DU PEUPLE,
QUEBEC, 6th August, 1891.

Mr. P. B. DuMOULIN, agent.
I acknowledge by these presents, that the balance this day, to the credit of my

account with La Banque du Peuple, Quebec, is $1,237.13, and that the cheques have
been returned to me up to this date, 6th August, 1891.

E. PACAUD.
To the Cashier of La Banque du Peuple,

Quebec.
True copy.

P. AUG. LABADIE,
Accountant, Banque du Peuple, Québec.
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EXHIBIT No. 23.
(Translation.)

MR. ERNEST PACAUD in account with La Banque du Peuple, Quebec.
DR. OR.

May 6....

8.,.

9....

11....

12...

13....

14....

15....

16....

18...

19....

20....
21....
26....

29..

June 1

Cheque ............. ... .
S ............. ..

fi . ...... ...........
fi .. ... ... . . .. .... .
S..................

..... ............

......... ........
S ..................
.... ..............

S..................

o ..... .. ......
S ..................
S..................
S ..................
S..................
S . ........... ......

if ............. ....
t, ..................

S.......... . .. ...
n...... ........ ...

fi ...... ............

S.................
S..................

S................
S . ........ ... .

S.......... .......

n .................

S .... ........ . ..
B aa c ...... ........ ..

May 6....
14 ....
15....
16 ...
18....
21....

June 1....

$ ets.
5,000 00
1,000 00
2,150 00

100 00
400 00
918 23
200 00

75 00
1,000 00

25 00
40 00

1,000 00
150 00
115 00
25000
2000
5000
10 00

400 00
1,000 00

150 00
45 54
19 00

100 00
25 00
12 50

150 00
22 50
14 25

600 00
39 00

7,000 00
15 40
3000
51 12

100 00
20000
25 35

1,000 00
130 00
5000
10 00

425 00
50 00
15 35

550 00
43 92
17 60

300 00
100 00
360 58

25,555 34

Quebec.

296

$ ets.
Balance, 5th May, 1891.. 219 69
E.................... .. 19,720 00
D ...................... 1,000 00
E.... ............ ..... 1,419 80
E .. ................... 195 85
D..... ................ 1,500 00
D ........ .............. 1,000 00
D ....................... 500 00

25,555 34

True copy
P. AUG. LABADIE,

Accountant, Banque du Peuple,
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(Translation.)
EXTRACT from the Discount

EXHIBIT No. 24.

Ledger of La Banque du Peuple, Quebec, on
6th May, 1891.

True copy.
P. AUG. LABADIE,

Accountant, Banque du Peuple, Quebec.

EXHIBIT No. 25.
(Translation.)
EXTRACT from the Register of Bills Receivable of La Banque de Peuple, Quebec,

from the 6th of May to the 3rd of June, 1891.

Promissor. Endorsers. Face of Note. Due. Paid.

I cts.

A. F. Carrier.................... Ernet Pacaud.. ......... 400 00 May 6..... May 6.
Jas. Carrel .......... ....... do . . ....... 150 00 do 8.. do 6.
Jon. G. M. Deschène ......... do ...... 150 00 do 31. ... do 11.
J. I. Tarte ..............-. er ..and Frs. Laf- 1,000 00 June 3. do 11.

True copy.
P. AUG. LABADIE,

Accountant, Banque du Peuple, Quebec.

EXHIBIT No. 26.
(Translation.)

LA BANQUE DU PEUPLE,
QUEBEC, 6th May, 1891.

J. S. BouSQUET, Esq.,
DEAR SIR,-Mr. Phillippe Vallièro, one of our wealthy clients, has discounted

here to-day, bis note for $20,000, to the order of Ernest Pacaud. Mr. Vallière bas
a guarantee from the Government which he has sent to me, and which I will collect
myself on the 10th of July. The proceeds of this discount are to be applied by Mr.
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Pacaud to meet various liabilities spread out from now to the 3rd of June, amongst
vhich there is $5,000 payable to ourselves, so that we shall disburse $15,000 only.

Yours truly
P. B. DUMOULIN,

A true extract from the original. Agent.

P. AUGUSTE LABADIE,
Accountant, La Banque du Peuple, Québec.

EXFIBIT No. 27.
(Translation.)

LA BANQUE DU PEUPLE, QUEBEC, 6th May, 1891.
J. S. BoUSQUET, Esq.

DEAR SIR,-Mr. Phillippe Vallière, one of our wealthy clients, has discounted
here to-day, his note for $20,000, to Ihe order of Ernest Pacaud. Mr. Vallière has
a guarantee from the Government which ho has sent to me and which I will collect
nyself on the 10tli ot July. The proceeds of this discount are to be applied by Mr.

Pacaud to meet various liabilities spread out from now to the 3rd of June, amongst
which there is $5,000 payable to ourselves so that wo shall disburse $15,000 only.
The only inconvenionce that I saw in this transaction was the want of funds in
which I am. I at first refused for that reason, but the Ilonourablo Charles Lange-
lier, who accompanied Mr. Vallière, has promised me a deposit of $50,000 upon the
proceeds of the loan, and this over and above the amount which you expect to have
yourself. Under those circumstances, I believed I ought to make the transaction.

Yours very truly,
P. B. DUMOULIN.

True copy.
(Signed) P. A UG. LABADIE,

Accountant, Banque du Peuple,
Québec.

EXHIBIT No. 28a.

CiEQUE.

QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.

"', T HEi''I" UNION BANK OF CANADA.

Pay C. N. Armstrong.............................. ....... ........ or order
Twenty thousand........................................ ...... Dollars

$20,000.00 J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissaire.

Marked on face:-- 185
10th July.

C. E.D.

Union Bank of Canada.
(Stamped) July 10, 1891.

Certified
Quebec.
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(Stamped)

Endorsed on back:-

Union Bank of Canada.
July 11, 1891.

Paid
Quebec.

C. N. ARMSTRONG.
P. VALLIERE.

B. du P.
Jul. 10, 1891.

Que bec.

EXHIBIT No. 28b.

CHEQUE.
QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.

TO T"1ER UNION BANK OF CANADA.

Pay C. N. Armstrong ........ ................ or order
Twenty thousand ...................................................... dollars.
$20,000.

Marked on face:- 185

C.E.).

J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissaire.

(Stamped)

Union Bank of Canada
Jul. 10, 1891.

Certified
Quebec.

(Stamped)

Endorsed on back:-

(Stamped)

No. 3.

Union Bank of Canada
Jul. 11, 1891.

Paid
Quebec.

C. M. ARMSTRONG.
P. VALLIÈRE.

For the credit of
La Banque Nationale,

Quebec.
P. LAFRANCE

Cashier.
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EXHIBIT No. 28c.
CHEQUE.

No. 5. QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.
To 7HE CASHIER UNION BANK OF CANADA.

Pay C. N. Armstrong, Esq........................or order
Twenty thousand........................ ........................... Dollars

$20,000.00.
J. C. LANGELIER.

Commissaire.

Marked on face:- 8077

185

C.E.D.

(Stamped)

(Stamped)

Endorsed on back:-

No..........

$20,000.00.

Union Bank of Canada.
Jul. 10, 1891.

Certified.
Quebec.

Union Bank of Canada.
Paid

Jul. 10, 1891.
Quebec.

C. N. ARMSTIRONG.

EXHIBIT No. 28d.

CHEQUE.

QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.

rO T CÂHIER UNION BANK OF CANADA.
Pay C. N. Armstrong .......... .......................... or order
Twenty thousand... . ..................... ........................... Dollars.

Marked on face:- 7729

July 20, '91.

185

C.E.D.

J. C. LANGELIER,
Commissaire.

j Union Bank
of Canada.

(Stamped) Jul. 10, 1891.
Certified.
Quebec.
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Union Bank of Canada.
Paid

(Stamped) Jul. 10, 1891.
Quebec.

Endorsed on back:-
C. N. ARMSTRONG.

EXHIBIT No. 28e.

CHEQUE.
No.........

TO THIER UNION BANK OF CANADA.
Pay C. N. Armstrong, Esq.................. ............... ....... or order
Twenty thousand.................................................. Dollars.

$20 ,000.00.
J. C. LANGELIER.

Commissaire.

Marked on face:- 7730

July 10 '91.

185

C.E.D.

Union Bank of Canada
Jul. 10, 1891.

(Stamped) Certified.
Quebec.

Union Bank of Canada
Paid

(Stamped) Jul. 10, 1891.
Quebec.

Endorsed on back:- C. N. Armistrong.

EXHIBIT No. 29.
(Copy.) UNION BANK OF CANADA,

H. J. MACHIN, Esq., QUEBEC, 29th April, 1891.

Assistant Treas. P. of Que.
DEAR SiR,-WilL you kindly furnish me with a copy of the Orders in Councit

referred to in your letter authorizing the Bank to advance $100,000 to J. C.
Langolier, Esq., Commissioner.

And oblige,
Yours truly,

(Signed) E. WEBB,
Cashier.
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(Copy.) EXHIBIT No. 3L0.
E. EBBN QUEBEc, 30th April, 1891.
E. WEBB,

Cashier Union Bank,
Quebec.

DEAR SIR,-I enclose herewith copies of the Orders in Council asked for in
your letter of yesterday.

Yours truly,
(Signed) H. J. MACHIN,

Assistant Treasurer, P.Q.

(Copy.) EXHIBIT No. 31.

UNION BANK OF CANADA,
QUEBEC, 6th May, 1891.

P. VALLIÈRE, Esq., Quebec.
DEAR SIR,- This is to advise you that we will pay the cheque of Jean Chrysos-

tôme Langelier, CommiEsioner, for $20,000 drawn on this Bank in favour of C. N.
Armstrong, and endorsed by him and by you, when the amount mentioned by Mr.
Garneatu's lutter as acting Provincial Troasuror, and acting Prime Minister, of 28th
April, 1891, is paid by the Government and placed to the credit of the said J. C.
Langelier, Commissioner, with the Ba'nk.

Yours truly,
(Signed) E. W. WEBB,

Cashier.

(Copy.) EXHIBIT No. 32.

UNION BANK OF CANADA,
QU.EEbEc, 16th May, 1891.

J. S. BOUSQUET Esq., Cashier.
DEAR SIR,-This is to advise youthatwe will pay the cheque of Jean Chrysostôme

Langelier, Commissioner, No. 5, for $20,000 drawn on this Bank in favour of C. N.
Armstrong, if the amount mentioned in Mr. Garneau's letter, as acting Provinciai
Treasurer, and acting Prime Minister, of 28th April, 1891, maturing 10th July, 1891,
is paid over before that date by the Government, and placed to the credit of the said
J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, with this Bank.

(Signed) . WEBB,
Cashier.

EXHIBIT No. 33.

UNION BANK OF CANADA,
QUEBEC, 16th May, 1891.

J. C. LANGELIER, Esq., Commissioner.
DEAR SIR,-This is to advise you that we hold the letter from Mr. Garneau as

acting Provincial Treasurer, and acting Prime Minister, dated 28th April, 1891, on
collection on your account.

Yours truly,
(Signed) E. WEBB,

Cashier.
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EXHIBIT No. 34.
J. C. LANGELIER, Commissioner, in accourit with Union Bank of Canada.

Date. Particulars. Dr. Cr. Balance. Days.

1891. $ cts. $ ets.

July, 9.. Letter of Credit.......... .......... 100,000 00
do .. Interest on saine......... ..... ...... 534 25
do Cheque .............. 20,000 00 ............
do .. do ................... 20,000 00..........
do do.... ....... .... .20,000 00......
do .. do ................. .20,000 00 ..........
do do ..... ... ....... 20,0000 0 ..... ...
do .. To Balance at Credit.... . 534 25

100,534 25 100 534 25

EXHIBIT No. 35.
Copy Account-ERNEST PACAUD, Union Bank.

Interest.

Date. Particulars. : Dr. Cr. Balance. Days. Interest.

1891. $ cts. $ ets.

July 6.. Balance ..... ...... ... ..... .... 1,559 00
do 10.. Deposit.... ... .... ... . . ...... 60,000 00
do 11.. Cheque.................. . 50000
do 11.. do .................. 25,000 00
do 11.. do ..... ............ 3,000 00
do IL. o ... ...... ,... 8,000 00
do 11.. do .................. . 5,00000
do 14.. do ............. .... 29 00
do 17.. do .................. 2.5 00
do 21.. do ............... 7,000 00
do 22.. do ... ...... ..... 5,000 00
do 24.. do ....... ........ 3,000 00

Aug. 10.. do ......... ..... . 15,000 00
do 10.. do .... ............. 1,000 40)
do 10.. do .. ... .... ...... 50 00
do 10.. do ... ......... .... 500 00
do 10.. do ..... .... .. .. .5W000
do 10.. do .................. 1,000 0
do 11.. do .......... ... ... 210 00
do 12.. do ............... 280 00

By Balance at debit................. 35 00

61,594 00 61,594 00

EXHIBIT No. 36.
We hereby confirni the statement of our account with the Union Banik of

Canada to the last day of July, 1891, as contained in our pass-books, and acknow-
ledge receipts of cheques, vouchers, to same date.

39 cheques, February, 1891, to July, 1891.
26S. Dept. cheques, February, 1890, to June, 1891.

(Signed) ERNEST PACAUD.
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EXHIBIT No. 37.

ERNEST PACAUD in account with Union Bank Savings Department, Quebec.

Date. Particulars. Dr. Cr. Balance. Days. Interest.

1891. $ cts. S css.

June 18.. Balance ...... .... ..... ..... ...... .. . 0 20
July 11.. Deposit...... ................. ............ 25,000 00
August 10.. Cheque .. ... ........ ....... 25,000 00

Balance at credit... ....... ..... 020

25,000 20 25,000 20

August 17, 1891.

EXHIBIT No. 38.

ERNEST PACAUD in Account with Union Bank of Canada.

Date. Particulars. Dr. Cr. Balance. Days. Interest.

1891. $ etS. $ ets. $ ts.
April 30.. Balance .................. ............ 9,222 95
M ay 1.. Cheque.... .................... 4,000 00
do 1.. Note ........................ 5,00000
do 2.. Cheque.. ...... ............... 100 00
do 4.. do .. ... ............... .... 110 50

June 18.. Interest on note.... .. . ...... 153 45
July 4.. D eposit......................... ..... ...... 7,200 00

do 6. Cheque...... .. ............... , 5,500 00
do 10.. Deposit.................... . . . 60,000 00
do 11.. Choque.. ...................... 500 00
do 11.. do ........ .............. 25,000 00
do 11.. do ..... . ................. '3,000 00
do 11.. do .................... .... 8,000 00
do 11.. do ........... ............. 5,000 00
do 14.. do ......................... 29 00
do 17.. do . ................... .. 25 00
do 21.. do ................ ........ 7,000 00
do 22.. do ... . ...... .,......... . 5,00 0
do 24.. do ......................... 3,000 00

Aug. 10.. do .................. ..... 1,500 00
do 10.. do ........... ...... ....... 1,000 00
do 10.. do .... ............ ...... 50 00
do 10.. do ......................... 500 00
do 10.. do ........................ 50000
do 10.. do ......... .............. 1,000 00
do 11.. do .. ................... 210 00
do 12.. do ...................... 280 00
do 13.. Deposit. .... ........... ........... ... 500 00

dBalance at credit .... ......... . 465 00

76,922 95 76,922 95

17th August, 1891.
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EXIHIBIT No. 39.

BANQUE DU PEUPLE, CREDIT, LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

QUEBEC, 8th May, 1891L
N otes ........ . ............. ..... ........... ....................... .$
C heq ues .. .... .......... ..... ...................... .......... ..

dIo ...... .. . .. ..... .,. .. ... ...... ...... ,. .. .... .. .. ..... .... .. -.. - .
d o0 .... .... ..... ... ..... .... . ..... 1. .... ..... .. . ..........
d o ... ..>. .... .. .. . ...,. .... ..... .... ..... .... . ....... ...... ... .. .
d o0 .. ....... .. .. ... ... .. ... ..... ..... .. .... .. .. ... ..... ....
d o ..... .. . . .. . ........... . .. .... ..... .. .... .... .. ... ...
d o) .. ............... . . ..... .... ..... .. .... .. ...... ...
d o0 ... ..... ... ..... ...... . .... ... . .... .... .. . . ... .. .. .. .. .. ..
d o0 .... .. .. .. . . . ..... ....... .... .. .. . ... .. ..... ..... .. .. .. ... ..
d o0 ............ ... . . . . . .. . .. . . . . .. ......... .... .. .
dIo ... ............... ,..................... .. ....... ... ,........
d o ...... . . .... .... ....... .. ........ ...... . . ..........» ....
d o .. ...... .. ...... .. .. . .. .... . .. ......... .. .... ... .. .. ... .
do ............... ....... .... ........ ... ... ... ........
d o .......... ... .... ........ ..... . .. .... ..... ...... . .....
d o .. .... ..... .... .... .. .. .. . .. .... ... .. ...I . .. ... ... ... ..
d o4 ............ .. ....... . ... . .... .. ....... .......... .... ....
do0 ... . ... ............. ,.... .. ...... ........ ......... ... ....
dIo .. ..... . .... . ...... ........ .................... ....... .

Truc copy.

7,920 00
100 00
170 00
31 22
88 01

524 60
250 00
93 77

250 00
196 Ù0
368 95
24 00
18 00
50 00
47 50
25 50
11 25
15 00

3 40
8 50

10,195 70
4,411 64

14,607 34

P. AUG. LABADIE,
Accountant.

BANQUE DU PEUPLE, CREDIT, LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

QUEBEC, 8th May, 1891.
Notes................. .... . ..... ...... ..... . ..... .......... $ 2,665 0
Cheques.... ............. .... ............................... .... . 160 40

do .. ......... . .. ..... ....... ... ... .. ........... .......... 100 0 )
dIo ...... ... . ..... ................... .. ......................... 72 72
<lu .... .... ....... , ... ..... ....... ................... . .... 64 00
(Io ..................... ...... ...................... ............ 77 87
do ...... ...... ..................... . ................ ..... 200 04)
<lu .... ..... .. ........... ... .... .......... . ..... ........... 17 0u
du. .... ... ........... ............... ... . .. ........ ..... 268 88
do ....... ...... ........ .. . .... ... .... ... .. . ... ... 266 38
do . ... . ................. ............... .................. ....... 200 00
do ...... .... . ... .... .... ..... ,.... ....... ........... 45 3)
do ............ .. .. .. .. .... ... .. . ......... ......... ........ 24 30
d o ....... ... . ................................. ............ .... .30 10
do................................................67 84
do ... .... ....... .... ,.... ............... ................... 25 56
do ........ . . .. . .. ... ........ ................ .... .. .. . 2 ; 20

84,411 64

True copy.
P. AUG. LABADIE.

Accountant.
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EXHIBIT No. 40.

(Translation.)
c. LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

Credit interest-
5 days at 7°, $5,000 ............................... ............ ,. $4 80

Notes past due-
15505.

2nd May, 1891.

(Sgd.) E. PACAUD.

(Stamped)

11-4-90-10000.

5,000

La Banque Nationale.
Paid.

May 6th, 1891.
Quebec.

Teller.
Marked on back in lead pencil:-

E. PA CAUD.

End. C.L., F.L., H.. et al.,
28 Feb., 2 months

froin the first of May, $5000.

(Sgd) LAFRANCE.

Figures in lead pencil in corner:-

5,004 80
3 58

5,008 38

EX HIBIT No. 41.
(Translation.)

(Scal.)

C. V. T ESSIER,

N P.,

Quebec, Can.

QUEBEc, 28th February, 1891.
$5,000.00.

In two months from this date, for value received, I promise to pay
to the order of the ilonourable Honîoré Mercier the sum of five thousand
dollars.

(Signed) ERNEST PACAUD.

(Endorsed) HONORÉ MERCIER,
F. LANGEL1ER,
CHs. LANGELIER

C. A. P. PELLETIER,
ERNEST PACAUD.

ON this first day of May in the year one thousand eight hundred and ninety-one,
I, Cy. Tessier, Notary Public for the Province of Quebec, dwelling in the City of'
Quebec, in the said Province, at the request of La Banque Nationale, Quebec, did
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exhibit the original of the note whereof a true copy is above written, to Ernest
Pacaud, Esquire, the promissor, at his office or place of business, and there speaking
to a cle*rk did demand payment thereof, unto which demand he answered: " Mr.
Pacaud is away, he will only return to his office on Monday." Wherefore, 1, the
said notary, at the request aforesaid, have protested and by these presents do protest
against the promissor and endorsers of the said note, and all other parties to the said
note or therein concerned, for all costs, damages and interest, present and to come
for want of payment of the said note.

All of which I attest by my signature.
Protested in duplicate, whereof one is of record in my office bearing the number

three hundred and fifty-five. Eleven words erased are null.

(Signed) CY. TESSIER, N. P.
True copy of the original remaining in my office.

(Signed) CY. TESSIFR, N. P.

QUEDEC, 18t May, 1891.
The lonourable HoNoRÉ MERCIER,
The Honourable F. LANGELIER,
The Honourable CHs. LANGELIER and
The Honourable C. A. P. PELLETIER,

Quebec.
The note of Ernest Paesud for $5,000.00, dated at Quebec the 28th February,

1891, payable two months after date to the order of the Honourable Honoré Mercier,
and endorsed by you, has been, this day, at the requisition of La Banque Nationale,
Quebec, duly protested by me for non-payment.

(Signed) CY. TESSIER, N. P.
True copy of the original remaining in my office.

(Signed) (Y. TESSIER, N. P.

And afterwards, I, the aforesaid protesting notary public, did duly serve notice,
in the form required by law, of the foregoing protest for non-payment of the note
protested, upon the Honourable Honoré Mercier, the Honourable F. Langelier, the
Honourable Chs. Langelier and the Honourable C. A. P. Pelletier, at Quebec, in Her
Majesty's post office, on the second day of May, one thousand eight hundred and
iinety-one, and prepaying the postage thereon.

In testimony.whereof I have, on the last rnentioned day and year, at Quebec
aforesaid, signed these presents,

(Signed) CY. TESSIER, N. P.

True copy of the original remaining in my office.

(Signed) CY. TESSIER, N. P.
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EXIHIBIT No. 42.

(Translation.)

LA BANQUE DU PEUPLE,
QUEBEC, 11th July, 1891.

CHEQUES :

EXHIBIT No. 43.

(Copy.)

(Stamped.)

Union Bank
of Canada,

Jul. 13, 1891.
Paid.

Qiebec.

BASx NorEs:

× 1=......... .... .............
× 2= .......... .... ..... .......
S 4= ....... .. ...... ...........
× 5=...... .. ................. ..
× - .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - -.-
x 7 = .... .. ... . ....... . ......
× 10 = ......... .. ..... ...... ....
× 20= .. ......... ... ........
× 50=...........................

10x100=............... . . ......... 1,000
4 .500 ... .......................... 2,000

S IVER......... ... ...... . .....
G REENBACK ............... ... . .....

Credit
of

Depositor.

(Signed) CHS. LANGELIER.

$3,000 Dolla

1 ........ .. ........ ........

2 ........ ......... .......

4............. ..............

152x 5...............

× 6...............

+ 7.............

58X 10...............

X 20.............

x 25...............

1x 50 .................

13x 100 ................

x 500........... .....

x1,000 .

EXHIBIT No. 44.

(Translation.)

REQUISITION.

346. To be filled up by persons desiring Bills of Exchange on London, Paris, New
Yor.k, &c.

QUEBEC, 15th May, 1891. Details.

Required from LA BANQUE NATIONALE a Bill of Francs.................. 25,500
Exchange on.. Paris ...... in favour of ...... The Honourable-
H. Mercier, for the sun of $5,000.

(La Banue Nationalp 5,100 00
AiD) ý 100 00

.... (Sgd.) E. PACAUD.... ....... .Requirer. May, 15. g-

per P.L. 3--Quebec-3. J 5, 00 00
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EXHIBIT No. 45.

EXTRACT from the Cash Book of La Caisse d'Economie de Notre Dame de Québec.

DR.

Date. Nane. Folio. Deposit. Ainount.

$ ets.
May 1;, 1891.... L. P. Sirois................................... .... 14843 ........... 8,000 00

CR.

Date. Naine. Folio. Paid. Anount.

$ ets.

May 30, 1891... L. P. Sirois . ....... .. ............ . ... ..... 14843 ........... 8,000 00

Certified a correct extract.
L. C. MARCOUX,

~Secretary Treasurer.
QUEBEc, 19th August, 1891

EXTRACT from Ledger No. 14 of La Caisse d'Economie de Notre Dame de Québec

Date. - Deposits. Cheques. Balance.

$ ets. $ ets. $ ets.

ay16, 1891..... ......... .. ........ ..... D 8,000 00 ....... ....... .. 8,000 00
" 30,1891............ .. ............... .. T .... ...... ,.. 00 .... ....

Extract from the account of L. P. Sirois, Esq., N.P., certified correct.

L. C. MARCOUX,
Secretary Treasurer.

QUEBEC, 19th August, 1891.
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EXHIBIT No. 46.

LA CAISSE D'ECONOMIE DE NOTRE-DAME
DE QUEBEC.

Foli 14843.
QUÉBEC, 16 Mai 1891.

+ 1 ="

+ 2-"

+ 52

+ 7=

Notes ..... ....

Cheques.... ..

Fractional Pape

rold . ........

Silver.. .......

ed)(Signê
L. P. SIROIS.

+ 10 ="

+~ 20 =

+ 100 = "

+ 500 =."

............. 7,000

.. .. .. . 1,000

r..........

S~ 8,000

Certified copy.

19th August, 1891.

L. C. MARCO
s

EXHIBIT No. 47.
000.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE,

QUEBEC, 16t,1 M

Mo trea] ..... ...... .. .... .. . .... . .. ........ ..... . ....... .$
Nationale............ ................. ................. ... .......

" . . ................ .. ..... . .. ............ . . . . . .
Peuple...... ....... ..... ...... .. ... .. .. ............ .. .
U nion. ........ ..................... ............... .. .... .. .....

" . ........... . . . . , ..... ..... . . . . ....... . . .
M en t eal ... .............. ................................ .... .....

$
310

Ux,
ec.- Treas.

ay, 1891.

19 50
9 00

1,000 00
7,000 00

20 00
3 00

30 00

8,081 50

A. 1891

8-4-91-50,

C HEQUES.
B.
B."6

"
"
" 6

" 6
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BANK NOTES.
×< =1
× =2

2 x == ...................... ......... ,.............. .............. 8
102 × .... . .... ... ..... ...... . .. .... ... . ..... ........... 510
68 10..... ................ ..... ........ ....... .. ..... .... 680

1 =20 .. ................ ......... ...... ............ .... .20 1,218 00
x = 50
x = 100
x = 500

G old .. ... ..... .. .......... ................ ..................
S ilver ........ .................... ... ... ........ . . ...... 50

Credit
of

Dopo.sitor.

50

$ 9,300 001

FOR DEPOSIT IN

La Banque Nationale, Quebec, Nine thousand three
to the credit of

La Caisse d'Economie (le Notre Dame hundred dollars.
<le Québec.

Upper Town Office,

FRS. COTE, Teller.

A correct copy.

L. A. MARCOUX,
Sec. Treas., C.E.N.D.

August 19, 1891.

EXIEBIT No. 48.

BANQUE DU PEUPLE CREDIT .LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

QUEBEC, 18th fMay, 1891..
N otes........... .... . . ....... .... ... .... .. ..... . $3,235 00
C heques ..... ....... . ............. . .................. . . ...... . .34 38

do .. . .. . . .. ..... .......................... ...... ...... ... 257 19
do ............ .......... ..... ........................ 7 50
dIo ............ .. ............. ............................. 16 00
do . .... ... . .... .. . .. . .. .......... ....... ............. 25 35
do ........ .. .. ....... .... ........ .... ..... . ....... ...... 167 74
(Io .......... ....... ... .... .... .................. .. 42 57
do .... ........... .... . ....... .. ........................ 198 98
do .......... . ........... .. ... .. ....... ............ ... 589 10
do . ...... .... ........... ............... ............ ............ *7,000 0K
do ................. .... , ....... .... ............ ................ 101 48
d o . ... .. . ..... ..... ... ......... ........................ 30 (0
do . .... ..... ..... ....... . ............................... .. .. 103 70
(do ........... ..... ............. . ........ . 400 00
do .... .. .. ............ ........ ............... ... ... ...... 134 10
do ..... .............. .... ..... ... ........ ................. .. 184 20
do ........ ..... ................. ............ ......... ........... 100 00
d.. ..... ....... ..... ..... . .. ............................. ... 40 00

812,667 29
3,574 67

$16,241 96

*This cheque was accepted by us the 16th May.

True copy

P. AUG. LABADIE,
Accountant.
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BANQUE DU PEUPLE CREDIT LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

QUEBEc, 18th May, 1891.
N otes ... ......... ... ..... ........ .... ..... .... .... .. ........ ... $2,38o 00
Cheques .. .. ....... . .... .................. .................. ...... 165 00

do .............................................................. 20 00
(10 ............ ....... . ...................... .. .... ......... 15 00
do .... ... ..... .. . . ..................... ............ .. . 27 00
do ...... ..... .... .. .... .... ......... ... ............... 60 00
do .. ............. ... ...... . ........ ........ ... ..... ........ 350 00
do .. ................ ........................ ................ 215 00
do .... ....... ......................... ..... ... ............ 10 67
do ............ .. .................. ..... . ......... ........ ....... . 35 00
d o ............ .................. ........... ...... ......... .... 97 00
do ................. .................... ............... .... 100 00
(10 ...... ....... ....... ................ .. ..... .... . .. ....... 100 00

83,574 67

Truc copy.
P. AUG. LABADIE,

Accountant.

EXHIBIT No. 49.
(Translation.)

LA CAISSE D'ECONOMIE DE NOTRE DAME DE QUÉBEC.
No. 1279.

liPPER TOWN,
QUEBEC, 26th May, 1891.

You will please pay to Mr. Mary Jane D. Fry or order the sum of eight
S thousand dollars, aiid charge the same to my accour.t, folio 14,843.

Certified copy. (Sgd.) L. P. SIROIS,
N. P., in trust.

Witness:
F. C. MARCOUX,

Sec.-Treas.
August 19th, '91.

Marked on face:-

C. E. N. 1).
(Stamnped) Paid

Upper Town.

The Property of the
Quebec Bank, Montreal,

C. 115.

Endorsed on back (Sgd.) MARY JANE D. FRY,
For collection and credit on account of the
Quebec Bank, Montreal.

TiroMAs MCDOUGALL, anager.
Per E. L.

(Sgd.) THOS. 11. JONES,
Accountant.
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EXHIBIT No. 50.

QUEBEC, 12th August, 1891.
A. Mc. Tuom in aceount with La Banquo Nationale.

Dr. Ci. Balance.

$ ets. $ ets. $ ets.

April 29............... ... .......... . .. C 408 00 31,750 00 25,467 00
do 29.. ........................... .. 3C 4,275 0)
(Io 29..................... ............. 4C 250 00
do 29......... ..................... .. .C 350 00

M ay 30.... .................... ......... C 1,000 0)
do 2..... ...... .... . ..... ......... C 600 00
do . ..... ... .............. . ........ C 1,000 00
do 5............ .......................... 1,500 00
do 6................................ .. C 2,280 00
do 8........ . ................... , .C 6,500 00
do 11...... .......... .... .. .. .... C 50 ) 00
do 13.................................. C 400 77
do 1. .......... ... ..... ........... . C 3,00000
do - ............ C 300 00
do -.......... ... .... ............ C 30 00
do 16..... ............ .. ............. C 200 00
do 19.... ... . .. .................... C 91 10
do 27..... ...... ...................... C 600 00
do . -............... ........... ....... C 751 00
(10 30................ ................ C 7,714 13
do .. .... .... ....................... D 31,750 00

EXHIBIT No. 50a.
No.

QUEBEC, April 29, 1b91.
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PA" to....... ......................................... or bearer, Four Hlundred and Eight
Dollars ($408).

A. Mc. THoM.
Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, paid April 29, 1891, Quebec.
Marked on back: C. N. Armstrong, J. Demers.

EXHIBIT No. 50b.
No. 3.

QUEBEC, April 29, 1891.
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to.... .... 3...........3..............or bearer, Four Thousand Two
liundred and Seventy-five Dollars (84,275).

A. Mc. Trom.
Marked on face : -La Banque Nationale, Quebec, paid April 29, 1891.
Marked on back in pencil : Paid to Mr. L. A. Robitaille, 42 × 100 = 4.200 - 7

X 10 = 70 - 1 × 5 = 5 - 4 275.
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EXHIBIT No. 50c.
No. 4.

QUEBEc, April 29, 1891.
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to ................ 4 ......................... or bearer. Two Hundred and
Fifty Dollars ($250).

A. Mc. Taom.
Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, Quebec, paid April 29, 1891.
Marked on the back in pencil: Paid to Mr. L. A. Robitaille, 27 × 100 - 200 - 5

× 10 = 50 = 250.

EXHIBIT No. 50d.
No. 1.

QUEBEC, April 29, 1891.
LA RANQU7E NATIONALE.

PAY to................. .... . 1 ...... ................. or bearer, Threo Hundred and
Fifty Dollars ($350).

A. Mc. THom.
Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, Queboc, paid April 29, 1891.
Marked on the back in pencil :-2 × 100 == 200-15 x 10 = 150-350.

EXHIBIT No. 50e.
No......

QUEBEC, April 29, 1891.
LA BARQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to........................ 5 ....................... or bearer, Ten iHundred Dollars
(81,000).

A. Mc. Taox.
Marked on ifàce: La Banque Nationale, 1-Quebec-B, paid May 1, 1891.
Marked on back : The property of the Bank ot Biitish North Anerica.

EXHIBIT No. 50f.

QUEBEc, May 1, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.
PAY (o C. N. Armstrong, Emq. or order, Six Hundred Dollars ($600).

A. Mc. THON.

Marked on face: Bank of Toronto, Mýontreal, T 1446, for the credit of La Banque
Nationale, Quebec. P. LaFrance, Cashier No. 3.

Marked on the back: C. N. Armstrong, for collection on account of the Bank of
Toronto, Montreal. J. Murray Smith, Manager.
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No...... 
EXHIBIT No. 50g.

QUEBEC, May 1, 1891.

PAY to Jas. Cooper or bearer, Ten Hundred Dollars (1000).
A. Mc. THoM.

Marked on face : For the credit of La Banque Nationale. Quebec, P. Lafrance,
Cashier No. 3.

Marked on back : James Cooper, for ïollection on account of the Bank of
Toronto, Montreal. J. Murray Smith, Manager.

EXIIIBIT No. 50h.
No......

QUEBEc, May 4, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

Pay to James Cooper or order, Fifteen Hundred Dollars ($1,500).
A. Mc. THox.

Marked on face: Bank of Toronto, Montreal, $1500. La Banque Nationale, paid
May 6, 1891.

Marked on back : James Cooper: For collection on account of the Bank of
Toronto, Montreal. J. Murray Smith, Manager.

EXHIBIT No. 50i.
No......

QUEBEC, May 1, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONA,',

Pay to C. N. Armstrong or order, Twenty-two Hundred and Eighty dollars
($2,280).

A. Mc. THOM.

Marked on back: C. N. Armstrong, Esq.: For collection on account of The
Bank of Toronto, Montreal. J. Murray Smith, Manager.

EXHIHIT No. 50j.
N o.........

QUEBEC, May 7, 1891.

LA BANQUE 3ATIONALE.

PAY to C. N. Armstrong or order, Six Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($6,500).
A. Mc. THOM.

Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, paid May 8, Qiiebec: Bank of Toronto,
Montreal C., 5.939. Marked on the back, C. N. Armstrong, James Cooper: For col-
lection on account of the Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray Smith, manager.
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EXHIBIT No. 50k.
N o.........

QUEBEc, May 9, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to C. N. Armstrong or order, Five Hlundred Dollars ($500).

A. Mc. THowv.

Marked on face: Bank of Toronto, Montreal T., 1755 La Banque Nationale,
Quebec. Paid May 11, 1891.

Marked on the back: C. N. Armstrong, Esq., for collection on account of the
Bank of Toronto, Montreal, J. Murray Smith, manager.

EXHIBIT No. 501.
No.........

QUEBEc, May 12th, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to Bank of Toronto or bearer, Four Hundred Dollars & ($400.77.)

A. Mc. THoM.

Marked on face: Bk Toronto, Montreal, T 1846: La Banque Nationale,
Quebec. Paid May 13th, 1891.

Marked on the back: For collection on account of the Bank of Toronto, Mont-
real. J. Murray Smith, manager.

EXHIBIT No. 50n.
No.........

QUEBEC, MAY 14th, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATiONALE.

PAY to James Cooper or bearer, Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000).

A. Mc. TaoM.

Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, Quebc. Paid, May 16th, 1891.
Marked on the back: Pay to the order L. J. Riopel-James Cooper-L. J.

Riopel. For deposit to credit of Bank of Montreal. J. Macara, manager.

EXHIBIT No. 50n.
N o.........

QUEByC, May 14th, 1891.

L.A BANQUE AATIONALE.

PAY to James Cooper or order, Three Hundred Dollars ($300).

A. Mc. THoM.

Marked on face: Bank of Toronto, Montreal, T 1948. La Banque Nationale,
3 Quebec 3. Paid, May 15th, 1891.

Marked on the back: Pay C. N. Armstrong or order. James Cooper-C. W.
Armstrong. For collection on account of the Bank of Toronto, Montreal. X. Murray
Smith, manager.
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EXHIBIT No. 50o.
No.........

QUEBEC, May 12th, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to Count de Louvières, or order, Thirty Dollars ($30.)
A. Mc. THOM.

Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, 1 Quebec B. Paid. May 16th, 1891.
Marked on the back : Louvières ; Fr. Lagacé. For credit of Union Bank of

Canada, Savings Bank Branch, Quebec. For deposit to credit of Union Bank of
Canada, Quebec ; No. 2. J. G. Billet, manager.

EXHIBIT No. 5 0p.
No..

QUEBEC, 14th May, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to James Cooper, or order, Two Hundred Dollars ($200).
A. Mc. THom.

Marked in writing on face : Acet. note Baie des Chaleurs Ry. Co. Stamp, La
Banque Nationale paid May 18th, 1891, Quebee. Montreal R. 50.

Marked on back : Pay to order of C. N. Armstrong; James Cooper. Pay Mer-
chants Bank of Canada, or order; C. N. Armstrong; Arch. Campbell. For the
credit of Merchants Bank of Canada, Quebec, J. D. Moore, Manager. J. A.

EXHIBIT No. 50q.
No..

QUEBEC, May 15th, 1891.
LA BANQUE NATIONALE.

PAY to James Cooper, or order, Ninety-one Dollars and Ton cents ($91. 10).
A. Mc. THOM.

Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, paid May 19, 1891, Quebec. Bank of
Montreal, May 16, 1891. 4. 05512.

Marked on back : For deposit in Bank of Monti eal, of Montreal, Canada. To
credit of Union Mutual Lite Ins. Co., Portland, Maine. Pay to order of Union
Muttial Lilb Insurance Co., James Cooper.

For deposit in Bank of Montreal, of Montreal, Canada, to credit of Union
Mutual Life Ins. Co., Portland, Maine. Union Mutual Life Insurance Co., per H.
Desalaberry, cashier. For collection and credit of Bank of Montreal, Montreal, H.
V. Meredith, manager. For deposit to credit of Bank of Montreal, Quebec, J. MacUra,
Manager.

EXHIBIT No. 50r.
No. QUEBEc, 27th May, 1891.

PAY to.............................or bearer, Six Hundred Dollars ($600).
A. Mc. THoM.

Marked on face: La Banque Nationale, paid May 27, 1891. Quebee.
Marked on back in pencil: 6 x 50=300

30 x 10=300

$600
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EXHIBIT No. 50s.

No...... QUEBEC, May 26, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIOYALE.
PAY to James Cooper or order Seven Hundred and Fifty-one Dollars.

A. Mc. THoni.
$751.00.

Marlked on face: Bank of Toronto; T. 2294.-La Banque Nationale; paid
May27th, 1891; Quebec.

Marked on back :-James Cooper. For collection on account of the Bank of
Toronto, Montreal; J. Murray Smith, Manager.

EXHIBIT No. 5ot.

No...... QUEBEC, May 29, 1891.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE.
PAY to James Cooper or order, Seven Thousand Seven Hundred and

Fourteen f1 ,j Dollars.

A. Mc. Tiom.
$7,714 1-.

Marked on face in pencil: 965. La Banque Nationale; paid; May 30, 1891.
Quebec.

Marked on back: James Cooper. For collection on account of the Bank of.
Toronto, Montreal. J. Murray Smith, Managei:.

EXHIBIT No. 51.

No...... QUEBEC, 9th August, 1891.
THE UNION BANK 0F CANADA.

PAY Henry Harris, Esq., or oider, Two Hlundred and Eighty Dollars.

ERNEST PACAUD.
$28> 100

Marked on the face: W.L., 325. Union Bank of Canada ; August 13th, 1891
paid ; Quebec. To the Manager of the Union Bank of Canada; August 12, 1891;
Quebee.

MarkOd on the back: Henry Harris; R M. Stocking, per Henry Harris. For
deposit to c-redit Bank of Montreal, Quebec. J. Macara, Manager.
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EXHIBIT No. 52.

ERNEST PACAUD.

6919 El
20

7025 Er

7177
7363
7400 J.

Promissor. Endorser. Date. Terni. Due Date.

ias Mailloux. . Ernest Pacaud ..... ... .Feb. 28, '91 4 mld July 2, '91
do . do ... ..... do 28, '91i 4 nùd do 2, '91

H. Mercier, .1.1. Tarte)
nest Pacaud C. A. P. Pelletier . Mar. 10, '91 4 ild do 13, '91

C. Langelier........ f
do . H. Mercier and others. . April 1, '91 4m/d Aug. 4, '91
do do do . do 15, '91 1 May 18, '91

I. Tarte...... Ernest Pacaud......... do 21, '911 20 did do 14, '91

UNIoN BANK OF CANADA,

When Paid.

500 June 18, 91
5001 do 18, '91

5,000 July 11, '91

3,000' do 11, '91
5,000 May 9, '91

400

Union Bank of Canada.
QUEBEC, 20th August, 1891.

Cetified-
I certify the above to be correct, and are the notes referred to in my evidence

before the Committee.

E. WEBB,
Cashier, Union Bank of Canada.

EXHIBIT No. 53.

By Bearer.

Copy No. 35,224.

August 7th, 1889.

SIR,- am instructed to enclose to you for safe-keeping 83 Bonds, dated 2nd
January last, of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, Nos. 0001 to 0083, for
£500 sterling, each, with 50 coupons attached, each for £12 10 0, payable on 2nd
Julv and 2nd January in each year, from 2nd July, 1889, to 2nd January, 1914.
The Bonds have been received in conformity with the provisions of the Railway
Subsidy Act of last session, being equal in amount, and over the sum of $200,000,
as security for the complation of 30 miles of that Company's line, from 70th to
100th mile.

Please acknowledge receipt.
I am, Si

(Sgd.)

r,
Your obedient servant,

A. T. BRADLEY,
Secretary.

J. M. COURTNEY, Esq.,
Deputy Minister of Finance.

EXHIBIT No. 54.

On the fourteenth dty of the inonth of' June, in the year one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-eight.

Befo:e meihe undersignred Notary Public for the Province of Quebec, practising
in the City of Quebec, District of Quebec.

Appeared-The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, a body politic and iuleor-
porate, having its chief office and pla-n of business in the City of Quebec, in the
Province of Quebec, and herein acting and represented by the Hon. Theodore
Robitaille, of the City of Quebec, the President thereof, and hereunto, and for all
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purposes hereof, duly authorized by a resolution of the Directors of said Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company, passed at a meeting thereof, held at the City of Quebec,
on the twenty-fifth day of May, eighteen hundred and eighty-six (1886), a duly certitied
copy of which resolution is annexed to the original hereof and signed for indenti-
fication by the said undersigned Notary. Which said Company, represented as
afbresaid, doth hereby seli, assign, cede, transfer and make over, with legal warranty
unto the Manager of the Ontario Bank, at Montreal, in trust, the sum of seventy
thousand dollars ($70,000), payable by the Province of Quebec to said Railway Com-
pany, under an order of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council on the completion of
the fifth and sixth sections of ten miles each-miles forty to sixty on account and in
lieu or conversion of the land subsidy granted to said Company, by and in virtue of
the Act of the Legislature of the Province of Quebec, 45 Vie., chap. 23, said sum so
payable as aforesaid, and hereby transferred, being equivalent to thirty-tive cents per
acre upon two hundred thousand acres of land, being the subsidy on the fifth and
sixth sections of the line of said Company.

To have, hold, receive, recovor, use or otherwise dispose of the sum of money
herein above transferred as aforesaid, in trust unto and by the said transferee, his
assign, and on payment thereof, good and pPoper receipts and discharges for the
same to grant, and in default of payment, to use and take ail lawful and legal ways,
means or proceedings for the recovery thereof, the said transferror hereby subroga-
ting and substituting the said transferee, his heirs and assigns, in and to ail the
rights, names, actions and privileges of him, the said transferror, under or resulting
from the above recited Order in Council or otherwise in the premises.

The present transfer has been made for good and valid consideration which the
said transferror anknowledges to have received from the said transferee previous
to the passing hereof.

And to these presents intervened Charles N. Armstrong; of the said City of
Montreal, railway contractor, and aiso contractor for the construction of the said
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, who having taken communication hereof,
declares himself content and satisfied therewith, and doth hercby consent and agree
that the foregoing transfer have its fullest force and effect, notwithstanding any pre-
vious transfer in respect to said subsidy made by said Company in his favor.

For the registration and signification hereof, the parties hereto hereby grant ail
nccessary power and authority to that effect to the bearer of an authentic copy
hereof.

Whereof Act donc and passed at the said City of Quebec, on the date herein
above firstly nontioned, and the remnaining of record in the office of said under-
signed notary under the number eighteen hundired and fifty-nine of his orginal
minutes, and after due reading said parties have signed with baid notary, and the
beal of the Company bas been heieto affixed.

(Signed) THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
President of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway.

C. N. ARMSTRONG,
ALEX. GAUVREAU, N.P.

True copy of the original remaining record in my office.
(Signed) ALEX. GAUVREAU.

EXHIBIT No. 55.

On the fourteenth day of the month of June in the year one thousand eight
hundir d and eighty-eight.

At the request of Charles N. Armstrong, of the City of Montreal, railway con-
tractor and also contractor for the constructing of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company, I Alexander Gativreau the undersigned notary public for the Province of
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Quebec in the Dominion of Canada, residing and practicing at the City of Quebec,
have gone up to the office of the Honourable Treasurer of the Province of Quebec in
the House of Parliamerit at Quebec, where being and speaking to Henry Turner
Machin, Esq., Assistant Provincial Treasurer of the Province of Quebec, I have signi-
fied, speaking as aforesaid to the said the Honourable Treasurer of the Province of
Quebec, a certain transfer of a sum of seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) payable by
the said Province of Quebec to said Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, for the
causes mentioned in the said deed of transfer consented to by the said Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company, a body politic and corporate having its chief office and
place of business at the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, and therein acting
and represented by the Honourable Theodore Robitaille, of the said City of Quebec,
the President of the said Company duly authorized for all purposes thereof in favour
of the Manager of the Qntario Bank at Montreal in trust before the undersigned
notary on this fourteenth day of June, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-eight,
praying him the said treasurer to take cognizance of the said transfer and to act in
consequenlee.

And in order that the said treasurer of the Province of Quebee may not pretend
ignorance of the same, 1, speaking as aforesaid, have left with him a certified copy
of the said deed of transfer and a certified copy of the present deed of signification.

Done and signified at the said City of Quebec under the number eighteen hundred
and sixty, of the minutes of the undersigned notary, and I have signed these presents
in testimony whereof.

(Signed) ALEX. GAUVREAU, YP.
True copy of the original remaining of record in my office.

(Signed) ALEX. GAUVREAU, N.P.

EXHIBIT No. 56.

The Manager 
QUEBEC, 13th Dccember, 1889.

Ontario Bank, Montreal.
Sia,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 3rd instant,

protesting against the balance of the subsidies granted by tho Province of Quebec
in aid of the construction of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, by the Acts of Quebec,
45 Vie,, ch. 23, sec. 1, paragraph (b), and 49-50 Vie., ch. 76, applicable to the flfth
and sixth sections ot ten miles each of the said railway, being applied by the Gov-
ernment to the payment of the claims for work done and materials furnished for the
construction of the said railway, on the ground that the subsidies had been regularly
transferred to the bank, which had in good faith advanced the full amount of the
same upon receiving the transfer thereof, the transfer having been regularly signified
on the Government.

The transfer referred to was made in the City of Quebec, on the 14th June, 1888,
before A. Gauvreau, N.P., by the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company to the
Manager of the Ontario Bank at Montreal, in trust, " of the sum of $70,000, payable
by the Province of Quebec to the said railway company, under an order of the
Lieutenant Governor in Council, on completion of the fifth and sixth sections of ten
miles each-miles forty to sixty-on account of or in lieu or conversion of the lani
subsidy granted to the said company by the Act of Quebec, 45 Vie., ch. 23, being
equivalent to thirty-five cents per acre upon 200,000 acres of land, being the subsidy
on the fifth and sixth sections of the line of said railway."

" The Transfer authorized the transferee to receive the sum transferred, and to
grant receipts and discharges on payment thereof."

And to the transfer, Charles N. Armstrong, contractor, for the construction of
the said railway, intervened and consented, notwithstanding any previous transfer
to him of the said subsidy.
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This transfer was signified on the Treasurer of the Province on the day of its
execution.

And there have been paid to the Manager of the Ontario Bank, Montreal, on
account of the said subsidy, with the knowledge and sanction of the said railway
company, and in virtue of the transfer above mentioned, authorized by the Lieu-
tenant Governor in Council, to be paid to the said Railway Company, sums amount-
ing in all to $41,454, for which the receipts and the discharges of the said manager
have been given.

On the l8th October, 1889, ther-e was signified on the Treasurer of the Province
a tra"sfer made on the 14th October, 1889, before W. B. S. Reddy, N.P., Montreal,
by Henry Macfarlane, contractor for the building and tinishing of the fiist sixty
miles of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, to William Warwick Lawrence Chipman,
Manager of the Ontario Bank at Montreal, of all sums of money payable to him by
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, or by Charles N. Armstrong, contractor,
under a certain contraet betweeii the said Armstrong and the said Macfailane,
bearing date the 8th June, 1888, together with (besides certain property and Domi-
nion subsidies) the sum of $70,000, granted by the Government of the Province of
Quebec on the said 20 miles of new road; appointing the transferee bis lawful attorney
to receive all sums of money due or to become due by the Government of the Pro-
vince of Que iec to the transferror.

On the 21st October, 1889. the Treasury Department wrote to E. G. Meredith,
N.P., who had signified the Macfarlane transfer, calling attention to the fact that
the subsidy therein referred to had already been transferred to the Manager of the
Ontario Bank by the transfer of 14th June, 1888 (above cited), and that there had
been paid to the Manager on accountf of the subsidy transfeirred the sum of
$41,454.

On the 25th October, 1889, the Manager of the Ontario Bank at Montreal sent
to the Treasury Department a copy of the contract, dated 9th June, 1886, between
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company and Charles N. Armstrong, contractor for
the construction and equipment of the said railway from Metapedia to Paspebiac,
and copy of the indenture made 8th June, 1888, between Charles N. Armstrong,
contractor, and Henry Macftrlane, sub-contractor, for completing the construction
and equipment of the first forty miles of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and for
building twenty miles of new road.

By t he terms of the contract between the Company and Armstrong, the con-
tractor, lie was to receive al cash authorized by the Legislature of Quebec to be
paid instead of the land grant.

And itis one of the conditions of the contract that "should the contractor at
any time fiil, refuse or neglect to pay any sum due for work done or supplies fui-
nished, or for any other matter connected with this contract, the Conpany may pay
any of such claims, so far as they can be ascertained, and charge the same as a pay
mont on account of this contraet."

By the terms of the indenture between Armstrong, contractor, and Macfarlane,
sub-contr'actor, the contractor agireed, for securing the payments to be made to the
sub-contractor, to execute a notarial transfer of the $70,000 granted by the Quebec
Government on the said twenty miles of ncw road to the sub-contractor, vith all
necessary power's to obtain the same, whiich was to be paid into some chartered
bank, to be paid out to the said sub-contractor as the work progressed and as it was
ear'ned from the Government.

No signification was made to the Government of the contract bet ween the Coin-
pany and Armstrong, nor of the indenture between Armstrong and Macfarlane.

No transfer of the subsidy as agreed in the indenture between Armstrong and
Macfarlane to be made appears to have been executed. The transfer. therefore, of
the 14th June, 1888, of the $70,000 by the Company to the Manager of the Bank of
Ontario, Armstrong assenting thereto, would seem to be in lieu and instead of the
execution of the transfer agreed to be made to Macfarlane by Armstrong.
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With reference to these subsidies and the transfer thereof, I beg leave to remark :

1. That the subsidy granted by the Act of the Legislature, 45 Vic., chap. 23,
was granted " in aid of the construction of a railway from Metapedia to Gaspé
Basin; " and by the Act 49-50 Vie., chap. 76, it is provided: "That no such subsidy
shall become due or payable for any part of the road less than ten continuous and
uninterrupted miles completed."

2. That the transfer of the 14th June, 1888, is for the sum " of $70,000 payable
to the Railway Company under an order of the Lieutenant Governor in Council, on
completion of the fifth and sixth sections of ten miles each; " and all such sums so
ordered to be paid to the Company, being part of the ten thousand acres per mile,
converted at thirty-tive cents per acre, have been paid to the Manager of the Ontario
Bank, authorized by the Railway Company to receive them in virtue of the transfer.

3. That the Government has not undertaken to pay to or hold for the manager.
of the bank the full anount of the subsidy on the twenty (20) miles of road. but
has held the transfer as an authority to pay to the bank such sums as might be froim
time to time earned by the company.

4. That the clause of the contract which provides that should the contractor at
any time fail, refuse or negleet to pay any suin due for work done or supplies fur-
nished, &c., the company may pay any of such claims and charge the same as a pay-
ment on accouit of the contract, would prevent the contractor from availing himself
of the transfer of subsidy to the extent of such payments.

5. The transfer to the bank gave it only the right of the company to said sub-
sidy and it cannot be denied that the Government could legally pay those claims
with said subsidy.
' On the 5th October, 1889, prior to the signification of the transfer by Macfar-
lane to the Manager of the Ontario Bank, the Lieutenant Governor in Council, in
view of the state of affairs that had arisen on the Baie des Chaleurs Railway in con-
sequence of the non-payment of anounts due for labour, right of way, material fur-
nished, &c., and of the neglect and refusal of the company to comply with repeated
notifications by the Government engineer, respecting certain defective and insuffi-
cient work on the line, ordered an enquiry to be made and appointed a Commissioner
for that purpose.

On the 25th November, 1889, after receipt of a report by the said Commissioner,
who had exanined and verified by the evidence of the sub-contractor the equity of
the claims, the Lieutenant (overnor in Council ordered the balance of the subsidy,
granted by the Legisiature on the said twenty (20) miles of railway, to be placed in
the hands of a Civil Service officer, in order that he might proceed to the spot and
use such balance in the discharge of such claims.

I am instructed by the Honourable the Prime Minister and Acting-Treasurer to
say that in the disastrous state of affairs that had occurred on the railway there was
no other course open to the Government than that pursued, and in so doing he can-
not admit, in view of the above record of the facts connected with the subsidy and
its transfer, that the Goveriment has acted either with hardship or injustice. At
the same time, the Govern ment recognizes the injustice done to the bank by the rail-
way company or its contractors, and it desires, if there is any way in which it can
be accomplished, to protect the bank against the loss of moneys advanced in good
faith.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

H. V. MACHIN,

Assistant-Treasurer, P.Q.
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EXIIBIT No. 57.

ExTRAcTsfrom General Report of the Commissioner of Public Works for the Province
of Quebec, 1889.

(Page 3 of Report.)
The undersigned has the honour the submit the General Report of the Depart-

ment of Public Works for the twelve months from 1st January to 31st December,
1889.

The work done by this Department is chiefly in connection with the different
publie buildings, the insurances against fire upon those buildings and their contents,
the subsidies granted to railway companies, and for building iron br'idges.

RAILWAYs.
(Page 5 of Report.)

Appendix No. 3 shows the present condition of the railways in course of con
struction in this Province, and the work performed upon each road during the year
1889. This statement is followed by tables, giving the amounts paid to the various
companies during the twelve mont hs of 1889, on account of their respective subsidies,
as well as the amounts paid on the old accounts and for the outstandiig caims of
the former Quebec, Ottawa and Occidental Railway.

The Government, acting upon Article 596 of the Revised Statutes of the Pro-
vince of Quebec, 1888, has believed it to be its duty to employ Commissioners to
establish the amount of the outstanding claims against the Hereford and the Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Companies in consequence of the difficulties which have arisei
in connection with these two companies on account of the non-payment of the
laboirers and purveyors of supplies, &c.

Mr. John P. Noyes, Advocate of Waterloo, was entrusted with the enquiry in
connection with the Hereford Railway Company. His report, which forma part of
Appendix No. 3, establishes that the claims for which this company is respoisible
to the labourers and purveyors of supplies, &c., who have built portion of its road,
amount to the sum of 636,131.49. The amount of the subsidy accruing to the
Hereford Company will be applied, with as little delay as possible, to the extent of
this sum in payment of these claims.

Mr. Charles Langelier, Advocate of Quebec, was entrusted with the enquiry
concerning the Baie des Chaleurs Railway. His preliminary report shows that
about $29,000 is owing to the labourers, purveyors of supplies, &c., who constructed
the railway, for which the company had then a right to receive a subsidy from the
Government.

A portion of this amount, that is to say about $17,000, has already been paid to
those entitled to the same, and the balance will ho paid forthwith.

In both cases the companies have been calied upon by the commissioners to
urge, in opposition to the claims filed, all the lawtul pleas they can present.

The whole respectfully submitted.
(Signed) P. GARNEAU,

Commissioner.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

(Page 61 of Report.)
Ten miles were this year added to the fifty miles already nearly completed of

this line last year from its junction with the Intercolonial to within a few miles of
the Grand Cascapediac River. During the last twelve months the Company caused
Messrs. MacFarlane & Son to complete the unfinished wor-ks on the section extend-
ing between Metapedia and the 50'.h mile. These sub-contractors took a contract
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from Mr. C. N. Armstrong, the principal contractor, and bound themselves by its
terms to complete all the works which had remained unfinished from the first to the
40th miles inclusively, and in addition to do and execute all the works and construc-
tions between the 40th and 60th miles. This contract, on certain conditions therein
specitied, were accepted by the company, which transferred to the contractor-who
in turn made a transfer and subrogation thereof to Messrs. MacFarlane & Son-the
balance of the subsidy to which it was er.titled under and in virtue of the Acts 45
Vict.. chap. 23, clause 1, par. b. and 51-52 Vict., chap. 91, clause 12, for the sections
which the sub-contractor undertook to thus complete.

According to Table C, the company or its contractors or sub-contractors received
frorm the Treasury in January last a sum of $61,485.50 for the value of the supple-
mentary works done on the first 50 miles and on 10 miles additional of the Une
between Metapedia and Paspebiac.

There still remained a sum of $29,046 coming to the Company for the balance of
the subsidies due on the 60 miles nearly completed. This sum was appropriated by
the Treasury in discharge of the Company, to the payment, in October and Novem-
ber last, of amounts considered to be legitimately due to the workmen, furnishers
and sub-contractors, having claims outstanding for nearly six months against the
contractors in the Company's employ, for wages, materials furnished, work done, &c.
The way in which these $29,046 were employed will be found indicated at the end
of my report in the Orders in Council,. Nos. 488 and 606, dated the 3rd of October
and 23rd November last, and in the preliminary report submitted to His Honour
the Lieutenant-Governor on the 19th November last, by Mr. Charles Langelier,
advocate of this city, who was appointed Commissioner (commissaire enquêteur) to
enquire into the merits of the claims in question.

Some construction work has still to be finished on the section between the 50th
and 60th miles, more particularly the ballasting, certain bridges in coàrse of erection,
stations, water tanks, &c. Still, the defects pointed out to the Company by the
Government engineer, as well as by tne Government, do not prevent the tïack from
being in sufficiently workable order to warrant Messrs. MacFarlane & Son, in taking
upon themselves to put on regular passenger and freight trains, which run daily
between the Metapedia and Patricktown stations, a distance of 57 miles, ana can, even
at need, push on as far as the 60th mile ut a moderate rate of speed.

According to the information which has reached me, it appears that the traffie
on the line in operation is pretty abundant.

During the twelve months elapsed the contractor, Mr. C. N. Armstrong, prose-
cuted the works of construction beyond the 60th mile on the section extending to
the Grand Cascapediac River, and had already expended a considerable sum on cut-
ting and filling embankments, culverts, ditches, &c., when the difficulties which arose
between him and the sub-contractors, Messrs. MacFarlane & Son, this fall, forced him
to abandon these works and to stop the further prosecution of the enterprise.

There still remains payable to the Company, on the amount of its subsidy of
10,000 acres per mile-converted into money ut the rate of 35 cents per acre-for a
distance of 100 miles between Metapedia and Paspebiac and of 80 miles between
Paspebiac and Gaspé, under the authority of the Acts lastly cited, a balance of
$140,000 on each of these two sections, or a total of $280 000.

Mr. J. C. Langelier, Deputy Registrar of the Province, recently returned from
a visit to the Townships of Nouvelle, Maria and Carleton, in the County of Bona-
venture, whither he was deputed by the Government to pay off the claims against
the Company, or its contractors or sub-conitractors, which had been filed with the
Commissioner, Mr. Charles Langelier. The delegate had, up to that time, effected
the settlement of claims to the amount of about $17,000 out of the $28,546
entrusted to him for that object. The surplus of this last sum will be soon, if it bas
not already been, applied to the purposes of the settlement, in conformity with the
Order in Couneil No. 606, hereunto annexed, in order that justice may be done to
the injured parties within the briefest possible delay.
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Among the questions which Mr. Charles Langelier was instructed by the Gov-
ernment to enquire into on the spot was that of the selection of the best site for the
principal station of this railway at Maria, in the Township of that name. A num-
ber of petitions with other documents in support were addressed to your Depart-
ment in the fall of 1888 by the great majority of the residents of that parish,
protesting against the decision arrived at by the Company to erect its station on
the property of Mr. Giroux to the westward, instead of building on a site claimed
to be more suitable on ground to the eastward of Church road, and this, notwith-
standing the numerous representations and protests made to the Company by what
seems to be the majority of the ratepayers of the locality. On the other hand. the
Company sent in counter petitions signed by many residents of the same place and
of Irishtown, the adjoining locality, with documents in support. to justify the choice
made by the Company of M. Giroux's property for the erection of its station.
Messrs. L. A. Vallée and James Cadman, engineers, were instructed by you to make
a personal examination on the spot in order to fit themselves to properly decide
upon the merits of the arguments put forward on one side and the other in favour
of the most advantageous site for the construction of this station. In the reports
which they submitted to you in February last, of the result of their inspection,
they both pronounced in favour of the ground to the east of the Church road, as
offering the most central and favourable site in an engineering point of view, and
best suited for the general interests of the locality. On his part, the Managing
Director of the Company placed in your hands the written opinion of Engineers
and other competent persons in favour of the site on Mr. Giroux's land chosen by
the Company for the erection of its principal station, the Company further invok-
ing the fact that it lias built a station at Patricktown, at a distance of a few miles
from the first, and that it has thus better subserved the general interests of the
Township of Maria than if it had erected a single station on the ground to the east
of the Church road as originally requested. In the supplementary report shortly
to be made to the Government by Mr. Charles Langelietr on the result of his investi-
gation of idl the difficulties that have arisen in connection with this railway, he
will, doubtless, not fail to express his opinion on the subject of the site of this
station at Maria, as well as on the other disputed points submitted for his
examination.

TABLE C.

(Page 92 of Report.)

STATEMENT of payments made by the Treasury Department, on reports prepared by
the Director ofiRailways, on account of the Subsidies in money and lands (the
latter converted into money) under the authority of.the Acts 45 Vic., chap. 23,
and 51-52 Vic. 91, respectively, trom lst January to 31st December, 1889.

Names of Railway Companies.

z -

Paid to the difcrent followiiny. S et. $ cts.

Jan. 12, 1889 22 Baie des Chaleurs:-For the value of supple-
mentary works done on the first 50 miles and
the 10 miles additional between Metapedia
and Paspebiac .... ...... . .. ............ 10'0 ............ 61,485 50

326

54 Victoria. A. 1891



54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.) A. 1891

(Page 97 of Report)
TABLE D.

TABLE showing the mileage of Railways built or in operation or ready to be opened
to traffic, in the Province of Quebec, on the 31st December, 1889.

Baie des Chaleurs Railway.
Miles.

From the junction with the Intercolonial at Metapedia,
going towards Paspebiac, to near the large river of that
nam e ....................................................... . . ..... 60 .00

LOUIS A. VALLÉE.
Engineer.

(Page 117 of Report) •

CoPY of the Report of the Honourable the Executive Conncil, bearing date the 3rd
October, 1889, and approved by the Lieutenant-Governor on the 5th October,
1889.

No. 488.
Concerning the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.

The Honourable the Commissioner of Public Works, ad interim, in a report,
bearing date the 3rd October, inst. (1889) represents:-

That difficulties have arisen on the lino of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway between
the company of that name and its contractors and sub-contractors, or between the
latter and the workmen and furnishers on the construction of the said railway, and
that a strike has even taken place among the workmen in the employ of these con-
tractors in consequence of the non-payment of their wages or salaries, and that
moreover there are other outstanding claims against the company or against its con-
tractors for the right of way, work done, materials furnishod, salaries, &c.

That further, the company has neglected and refused to pay any attention to
tbe repeated warnings of the Government engineer and his frequent notifications
with respect to certain works and constructions found defective, insufficient, &c., on
one section of its line, and that the said company or its contractors or sub-contrac-
tors persist in the construction of works condemned by the said engineer or other-
wise disapproved by the Government.

Whereas it is to the interest of the province, which has subsidizod this railway
to a large amount, that the Government's orders relative to the works and con-
structions should be executed in conformity with the general requirement of the
region traversed by the road, and that, on the other hand, it is desirable that
the persons injured by the action of the company or of its contractors should be paid
their legitimate claims, seeing the Government has received a number of complaints
on this head, and that it is just to grant the demand of the different claimants and
to give them ail the protection possible under the circumstances ;

The Honourable Commissioner ad interin recommends that, according to the
terms of Articles 596 and following of the Revised Statutes of the Province of Quebec,
1888, an enquiry be instituted to ascertain (1.) The amount legitimately due on the
various outstanding claims-arising out of the construction of this railway; and (2).
Ali the complaints that have been already made, or which may be made before the
Commissioner hereinafter named, against the said company or its agents or contrac-
tors by reasons of works or constructions defective, insufficient or contrary to the
general interests of the region interested, and that for the purpose of this enquiry
Mr. Charles Langelier, advocate of this city, be named Commissioner to conduct and
direct this enquiry, with power to summon before him witnesses, and to take their
evidence orally or in writing, and to require them to produce ail documents and
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things which he may deem necessary-the said Commissioner to report within as
short a delay as possible-the fees of the said Commissioner, his travelling expenses,
and all the expenses occasioned by the said enquiry, to be paid out of the subsidy
granted to the said company, and he, (the Honourable Commissioner ad interim),
being authorized to make such advances as he may deem right to the said Commis-
sioner, for such expenses of enquiry out of the said subsidy.

The said Commissioner shall give notice to the interested parties of the day,
hour and places at which he shall proceed to hold such enquiry.

Certified.
(Sgd.) GUSTAVE GRENIER,

Clerk of the Executive Council.

To His Honour the Lieutenant Governor of the Province of Quebec.

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR HONOUR :-In conformity with the instructions contained
in a Commission, in date of the 3rd October last, appointing me i o make an enquiry,
among other things, into the difficulties that have arisen on the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway between the Company and its contractors or sub-contractors, on the one
p art, and the workmen, furnishers of materials, and others, on the other, I have the

onour to report that I have held the said enquiry and heard all the interested par-
ties who presented themselves.

I am actually preparing a more detailed report; but as 1 have reason to fear a
repetition of the strikes and troubles that have already broken ont if the workmen
and furnishers are not paid within the sho'test possible delay, I deem it to be my
duty to make a preliminary report, in order to recommend the Government, in the
intereste of public order and to prevent fresh troubles which threaten to arise, to
take immediate steps to secure the payment of all the claims connectdd with the
construction of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, comprised between Metapedia and
Caplan. I annex to the present report a list of these claims for sections H and G,
as well as for the other sections to the westward. Apart from those relating to
indemnities for the right of' vay, all the other claims have been admitted by the con-
tractors, so that there can bo no objection to their payment or no dispute with
respect to the different amountIs. may add that, in all cases, I found that the pre-
tensions of the claimants corresponded with the entries in the books of Messrs.
MacFarlane & Son. sub-contiactors for the partof the road situated to the west of
the Cascapediac River. For this part, the claims for work, workmen's board and
materials furnished, including the sub-contractor's claims, amount to the sum of
nearly $29,600, as shown by the list hereunto annexed and the pay-lists filed and
duly attested.

On sections H and G, of which Messrs. MacFarlane are the contractors, there is
due by the Government a balance of subsidies to the extent of $28,546 ; and as the
Federal Government itself has retained about $31,O00 to guarantee the completion
of the works which remain to be finished, I submit that the above balance of
828,546 should be at once paid.

That the Government should, without delay, send a person to distribute this
sum to those having claims on the said two sections;

That the workmen's wages should be paid directly, taking from them a receipt
in the form hereunto annexed; and if there remain a sufficient balance to pay the
contractors, to do so; if not, to distribute the said balance pro rata between their
respective claims.

It suffices to refer to the pay lists-controlled by the depositions-to which it is
easy to refer with the aid of the index following them.

I repeat that I deem it urgent that immediate action should bt taken in the
sense indicated.

328

54 Victoria. A. 1891



*54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2A.) A. 1891

With regard to the other claims and the other sections, my general report will
contain the suggestions concerning them, but you will understand on going through
the record, that the report will necessitate prolonged labour, and that it would be
unjust as well as imprudent to delay the part which contains this preliminary
report and the lines of which are well defined.

The whole respectfully submitted.
(Signed) CHAS. LANGELIER.

Commissioner.
QUEBEc, 19th November 1889.

Form of Receipt.
.....................

............................... ... ...... 1889.

Received this day from the Government of the Province of Quebec, in discharge
of' Messrs. MacFarlane & Son, the sum of ........... ....... ......... dollars
in full payment of all accounts or claims to the........... ...... . .. .............. 1889,
for.....................day's work of men and horses, workmen's board, materials
furnished, journeys, forge work, joiner's work, in connection with the construction
of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, section...... ............. ........

(Signature).................. ..... ...... ..........

W itness,..........................................

(Page 121 of Report.)

CoPY of the Report of a Committee of the Ilonourable the Executive Council, dated
the 23rd November, 1889, and approved by the Lieutenant-Governor, on the
25th November, 1889.

No. 606.
Concerning the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company

The Honourable the Comimissioner of Public Works, ad interim, in a repoi t
bearing date the 23rd of Ndvember instant, 1889, sets forth:-

That by an Order in Cou neil, No. 488, of the 3rd of October last, it was decreed
that an enquiry should be held to establish: 1. The amount legitimately duo on
various outstanding claims arising from the construction of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway; 2. Ail complaints made or to be made against the said company or its
representatives, by reason of works of a defective character or contrary to the
general interests of the region interested; and that, for the purpose of the said
enquiry, Mr. Charles Langelier, advocate, of the city of Quebec, was, by the same
Order in Couicil, named Commissioner to conduct and direct the said enquiry;

That on the 19th November last the said Commissioner, Mr. Charles Langelier,
sent in a first report, showing that he has held the enquiry with which he was
charged, that he has heard ail the interested parties who came forward, and that he
is prepaiing a more detailed report; but, having reason to apprehend a repetition of
the strikes and troubles that had already broken out if the workmen and furiishers
are not paid within the shortest possible delay, he bas deemed it his duty to make a
preliminary report to recommend the Governrment in the interests of public order
and to prevent the fresh troubles that threaten to arise, to take immediate steps to
secure the payment of all the claims connected with the construction of the por-
tion of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway comprised between Metapedia and the River
Cascapediac;

That to the said report is annexed a list of these claims for sections Il and G,
as well as the other sec ions to the westward; which claims, with the exception of
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those for the right of way, have, as attested by the Commissioner, been all admitted
by the contractors, so that there can be no objection to their payment and no dispute
as to the different amounts-the pretensions of the claimants corresponding exactly
to the entries in the books of Messrs. MacFarlane & Son, sub-contractors for the por-
tion of the road situated to the west of the River Cascapediac. According to this
list, as established by the Commissioner, the claims for work, workmen's board and
materials furnished, including the claims of the sub-contractors, amount to the sum
of $29,000 or thereabouts ;

That on the sections of the said railway for which Messrs. MacFarlane & Son
are sub-contractors there remains due by the Government of this Province a balance
of subsidy to the extent of $28,546.

That by a report of Mr. Light, the Government Engineer, dated the 26th Sep-
tember, 1889, it is established that on section H, that is to say, from the 40th to the
50th mile, all the works-unfinished at the date of his previous inspection-have
been completed, and that that section is now in perfect order, so that the $6,500
retained to secure its completion may be paid ;

As for section G, that is to say, from the 50th to the 60th mile, it is established,
by the saine report of Mr. Light, that the greater part of the works, unfinished at
the time of his previous inspection, have been executed, so that the line is in good
working order and that a passenger and freight train runs daily between Metapedia
station and Irishtown (a distance of 57 miles), and might even go as far as the 60th
mile at a satisfactory speeJ, notwithstanding certain defects in the track which he
notes ;

That in the interest of public order and to prevent the fresh troubles which
threaten to arise, if the outstanding claims connected with these works are not
p roinptly settled, and whereas the Dominion Government has itself retained about

31,000 of its subsidy to guarantee the completion of the works remaining to be
completed, it is urgent to pay the sum of $22,046, balance of the subsidy appertain-
ing to this section of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, and to apply it to the payment
of the workmen, furnishers of materials and others, who have contributed to the
execution of the works of this railway ;

That the two sums above mentioned, namely $6,500 and $22,046 forn together
one of $28.546, total balance of the Provincial subsidy coming to tho Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Company, which should be paid immediately.

That ont of this sum of $28,546, in view of the default of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company or of its representatives to meet its obligations towards the work-
mon, furnishers and others, who have contributed to the execution of the works, it
is just-deduction first made of the costs of the said enquiry, of the allowance to the
Commissioner, his travelling expenses and all other legitimate expenses connected
therewith-that the claims of the labourers, workmen, furnishers of materials, of
board, and others privileged, should be paid in fuill, and then the sub-contractors and
other claimants, at so much in the dollar, out of any balance of the sid sum that
may remain.

Wherefore the Ilonourable Commissioner, eid interim, recommends that the sum
of $28,546 be paid to Mr. J. C. Langelier, Civil Service employé, to be by him applied
to the payment, in discharge of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, or of its
representatives--deduction tirst made of the expenses of the said enquiry, the allow-
ance to the Commissioner, his travelling expenses, and all other legitimate expenses
connected therewith-of the amount due to the labourers, to the workmen, to those
who supplied board to the workmeoi and labourers, to the furnishers of building
material and to other privileged parties, in full, conformably to the list annexed to
Mr. Langelier's preliminary report; and that the balance, which shall remain after
settlement of the claims above enumerated, be distributed between the sub-contractors
and other unprivileged claimants pro rata to their respective claims.

Certified.
(Signed) GUSTAVE GRENIER,

Clerk of the Executive Council.
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EXHIBIT No. 58.

EXTRACTS :

From General Report of the Commissioner of Public Works of the Province of
Quebec, 1890.

APPENDIX No. 3.
(Page 56 of Report.)

RAIL WAYS.

Department of Railways of the Province of Quebec.

To the Honourable P. GARNEAU,
Commissioner of Publie Works.

Si,-The summoning of the Legislature for an autumn session necessitates my
presenting, at an earlier date than usual, a general report of the administration of
my department, and of the various operations that have taken place upon railways,
which are being built, or are about to be so, from the tst of January last up to the
present time.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your very obedient servant,

E. MOREAU.

QUEBEC, 1st October, 1890. Superintendent of Railways.

(P. 58 of Report).

Baie des Chaleurs Railway.

The troubles, to which I drew attention in my last year's report, between the
Company and Mr. C. N. Armstrong, its contractor, and between the latter and the
sub-contractors, Messrs. 11. MacFarlane & Son, have not yet been settled, and judicial
proceedings, resulting from the insolvency of the sub-contractors, are going on, their
business being in course of liquidation.

The resuit of these continued difflcultieswas the forced suspension of the works,
on the 70 miles, which were almost finished between Métapedia and the Little River
Cascapediac, and on the 30 miles remaining to be completed to reach Paspebiac, the
terminus of this section of 100 miles.

The daily trains which for some time were kept running over the first 60 miles,
almost completed, were obliged to stop their regular trips, to the great damage and
annoyance of the inhabitants.

With reference to the employment of the $28,546.00 and of the $20,000.00,
placed at the disposal of Mr. J. C. Langelier by the Treasurer of the Province to
settle, out of the grant payable to the company on sections G, H and K, of their
road, all claims established during the enquiry or admitted by the sub-contractors,
I would refer you to the pieliminary report of Mr. C. Langelier, published in the
general report of this Department flor 1889; and to the subsequent reports, sup-
ported by vouchers, made by Messrs. Charles Langelier and J. C. Langelier, in
answer to addresses or orders of the House, voted during the session of 1890, on the
resuits of their respective operations with reference to the troubles existing in con-
nection with this railway and to the unsettled claims therewith produced.
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EXHIBIT No. 59.

EXTRACTS from ReturI (No. 90a) to an Address of the Legislative Assembly dated
the 30th January, 1890, for the special report of Mr. Charles Langelier, Com-
missioner, dated this day, respecting Section K of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway Company, and the list of workmen with the amounts due to each of
them.
I cannot yet make my final report as Commissioner appointed to enquire into

the difficulties connected with the construction of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway. I
have to hear Mr. L. J. Riopel, the managing director of the company, who is at
present in Ottawa for the session. As soon as I have obtained his deposition, I will
be in a position to make my final report, as all the rest is ready.

But I deem it my duty to make a special report with reference to Section K
for the following reasons

According to a statement which I have carefully prepared from information
obtained at the time of the inquiry and since then, the amount due for labour,
boarding accounts and materials supplied is about $20,000.00. Of course, this
amount does not include what is due to the sub-contractors.

Of course, this section of the railway is not complete ; the work is not finished,
and the question is as to whether the Government has a right to pay now. To my
mind the matter is quite clear.

Section 4. of the Act 49-50 Vict., chap. 76, says that no such subsidy shall
become due or payable for any part of the road less than ten continuous or uniiter-
rupted miles completed.

What interpretation should be given to this section ? To my mind the Legisla-
ture meant to say that no company could avail itself of this Act before having given
proof of its good taith and of its resources for the construction of the road, by com-
pleting ten miles and putting them in operation. The Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company bas at present sixty miles in operation, so that this restriction cannot
apply to the case now before us.

This restrictive clause was inserted in the Act to protect the Government,
which may avail itself of it. or renounce it, just as any private individual who
renounces a condition which he has inserted in a contract for his own security and
which he renounces when he no longer requires it.

Moreover, I think that the Goveinment frequently makes advances to its ordin-
ary contractors, and it seems to me that the two cases may perfectly be assimilated.

According to the sworn evidence of Mr. D. Leduc, the Chief Engincer of the
contractor Armstrong, it appears that there is work done on this Section K for an
amount of $24,342. 10. Apart from this, Mr. Leduc also tells us that there ar> on the
spot 130,000 feet of cedar, worth $2,600, besides the lumber for culverts, stcie, &c.,
and worth about $10,000, making a total of 860,343.10 for work done and materials
supplied, besides the plant on the ground and the work done since the last statement
filed by Mr. Leduc on the 19th October, 1889.

I must also-state that on this Section K there are the two bridges of the Casca-
pedia River, which are of rather considerable dimensions, but the company bas
subsidies for this section which allow it to perform all this work without any
difficulty. In the first place, it has the subsidy of 670,000 from the Local Govern-
ment, then $64,000 from the Federal Government, to say nothing of the right of way
which is paid by municipalities crossed by the railway.

As the Federal Act passed last year (52 Vict., chap. 3, sec. 2) adds 896,000
to the resources of the company for this section of its road, it is evident that it has
ample means for the construction of the said bridges and ten miles of road.

I have also reason to believe that a considerable balance will be left to te
company or its contractor out of the subsidies already paid for the sixty miles
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between Métapedia and the River Cascapedia. The most conipetent persons tell me
that these sixty miles of road have certainly not cost over $600,000, and I see by the
Public Accounts of Quebec and Ottawa that, up to the 30th June, 1889, the company
received from the two Govern ments $696,454. Consequently, there remains a sum of
about one hundred thousand dollars to apply to the two bridges on the Cascapedia
River.

For the above reasons I deem it my duty to recommend to Your Honour to
pay immediately the sums mentioned in the statement which I have prepared,
viz.: $20,000.

The whole respectfully submitted.
(Signed) CHS. LANGELIER,

Conmisioner.
QuEBEC, 30th January, 1890.

N.B.-Section K comprises the portion (10 miles) between the west bank of
the Grand Cascapedia River, in the vicinity of Pritchard Point, two miles east of the
Little Cascapedia River.

(Signed) CHS. LANGELIER,
Commissioner.

EXIIBIT No. 60.
MEMORANDUM of' legislation of Legislature of the Province of Quebec affecting the

Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.

1882.-The Company was incorporated by statute passed, 45 Vie., cap. 53.
Capital, $3,000,000.
Vested with rights to build a railway from some point on the Intercolonial, in

the vicinity of Restigouche River, or connecting with Intercolonial Railway and
extending to -New Carlisle or Paspebiac Bay, with right of continuing lino to Gaspé
Basin.

Power was granted to Company to issue bonds to an amount not to exceed the
amount of the capital stock of the Company.

1882.-An Act was passed, 45 Vic.,cap.23, entitled "An Act to grant subsidies for
the construction of certain Railways."

1. The Lieut-Governor in Council is authorized to grant the following subsidies
in aid of the construction of the railways hereinafter designated:

(b). A quantity of ten thousand acres of land per mile for a railway, starting
from the Metapedia station, in the County of Bonaventure, on the Intercolonial Rail-
way, as far as Gaspé Basin, passing by the port of Paspebiac, in the County of Bona-
venture, on the Baie des Chaleurs, provided the Iongth of such road does not exceed
one hundred and eighty miles.

1886.-49-50 Vict., cap. 76. An Act better to aid the construction of Railways.

" 1. It shall be lawful for the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to convert in
whole or in part any subsidy in land to which any company may be entitled in
virtue of the Act 45 Victoria, chapter 23,or of any Act passed duringthe present ses-
sion of the Legislature into a money subsidy, by paying a sum not exceeding 35 cents
per acre at the tirr.o the said subsidy becomes due, and another sum not exceeding
35 cents per acre when the lands allotted to the said company shall have beon sold
and paid for,pursuant to the rules and regulations ofthe Department of Crown Lands,
and subject to such conditions to secure the construction of the road to which the
said subsidy shall apply as the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may think proper to
establish, provided that the companies entitled to any land subsidy shall declare their
option, within the delay of two years after the passing of this Act, in favour of the
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said conversion of the said subsidy, by a resolution of their board of directors duly
communicated to the Government through the Commissioner of Agriculture and
Public Works."

* * * * * * * * *

"4. The subsidy in ]and granted by the said Act 45 Victoria, chapter 23, or any
bubsidy in money, or part in money and part in land, which may be substituted
therefor by this Act, will be payable to the company entitled thereto in the following
manner :-

"' 1. No such subsidy shall become due or payable for any part of the road less
than ten continuous and uninterrupted miles completed.

"' 2. The company interested shall give notice to the Commissioner of Agrici.Lture
and Public Works of the fact that such portion of its road is ready for inspection, by
the govern ment engineer, and request such inspection and report.

"' 3. Such company shall further comply wit h ail provisions of law touching such
inspection and report, and the cost thereof.'

1886-49-50 Vic., chap. 80-An Act respecting the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
Company.

"2. The directors nay make or issue stock as paid-up stock, and may pay or
agree to pay in such paid-up stock or in the bonds of the company such sums as
they deem expedient to engineers or contractors, or for right of way, or material,
plant or rolling stock, and for the services of such persons as may be employed by
the directors in the furtherance of the undertaking or purchase of right of way,
material, plant or rolling stock."

1888.-51-52 Vie., chap. 91-An Act respecting Railway Subsidies.

"12. The Lieutenant Governor in Council may apply, upon the eighty miles of
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, extending from the twentieth mile to the
east of Metapediac as far- as Paspebiac, the first thirty-five cents per acre of lands
of the subsidy belonging to the company, which subsidy was converted into a subsidy
in money in virtue of the Act 49-50 Victoria, chdpter 76, coming to the eighty
miles of tho said road from Paspebiac to Gaspé.

"In such case the second thirty-tive cents of the said subsidy coming to the eighty
miles from twenty miles to the east of MVetapediac as far as Paspeciac, shall apply
pleno jure upon the eighty miles fi om Paspebiac to Gaspé.

" The thirty-five cents so applied upon the eighty miles to the east of Metapediac
as far as Paspebiac shail be payable in the same manner as the first thirty-five cents
coming to the said portion.

" The Lieutenant Governor in applying this section may impose upon such
company the conditions lie shall deem most calculated to assure the construction,
within the shortest delay, of the road as far as Gaspé Basin."

The Revised Statutes of the Province of Quebec respecting Joint Stock Companies
enact as follows :

" CHAPTER THIRD.-COMPANIEs.-SECTION 1.
"JOINT STOCK COMPANIES' GENERAL CLAUSES.

" 1. Declaratory and Interpretative.
"4651. This section may becited as the ' Joint Stock Companies' General Clauses

Act.' 31 V.. c. 24, s. 42.
" 4652. The following expressions, both in this section and in the charter, have

the meanings hereby assigned to them, unless there is something in the subject or
context repugnant to such construction :

"The expression 'the charter' means any Act incorporating a company for any
of the purposes contemplated by this section;
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"2. The expression 'the company' means the company incorporated by the
charter;

"3. The expression ' the undertaking' means the whole of the works and
business of every kind which the company is authorized to cariy on;

" 4. The expression 'real estate' or 'land' includes all immovable property of
every kind;

" 5. The expression 'shareholder' or 'stockholder' means every subscriber to,
or holder of stock in the company, and extends to and comprise- the personal repre-
sentatives of the shareholder.-31 V., c. 24, s. 1.

"4653. When not otherwise expressly enacted, this section applies to every joint
stock company incorporated by any charter, for any of the purposes within the jurisdiction
of the Legislature, except for the construction and working of railways and the business
of insurance. 44-45 V., c. 12, s. 1.

" 4654. For the purpose of incorporating this section, or any of its pi ovisions,
with a charter, it shall not be necessary to insert them in such charter; but, save in
so far as they are expressly varied or excepted by such charter, such provisions
shall be construed as if formally embodied and reproduced therein.-31 V., c. 24, s.3.

" SECTION II.
"INCORPORATION OF JOINT STOCK COMPANIES.

" 1.-Declaratory and Interpretative.
"4694. This section may lie cited as 'the Joint Stock Companies' Incorporation

Act.'-31 V., c. 25, s. 57.
" 2.-Granting of the Charter.

"4696. The Lieutenant Governor may, by letters patent under the Great Seal,
grant a charter to any number of persons, not less than five, who petition therefor.

" Such charter constitutes the petitioners and all others who may becomo share-
holders in the company thereby created a body politic and corporate for any of the
purposes within the jurisdiction of this Legislature, except for the construction and
working of railways and the business of insurance.

" 2. It is not necessary that an Order in Council be passed for granting any such
charter, but the Lieutenant-Governor may grant any charter upon a favourable
report from the Attorney General.-38 V., c. 39, s. 2; 44-45 V., c. .11, s. 1.

"4697. The applicants for such letters-putent shall previously give notice of
their intention to make such application.

" Such notice shall be published during four consecutive weeks in the Quebec
Qficial Gazette and contain :

"1. The corpor ate name of the proposed company, which shall not be that of
any other company, or any name liable to be confounded therewith or, otherwise on
public grounds objectionable ;

"2. The object for which the corporation is sought;
"3. The place within the limite of the Province selected as its chief place of

business;
"4. The proposed ainount of its capital stock;
"5. The number of shares and amount of each share;
"6. The name in full and the address and calling of each of the applicants, with

special mention of the names of not less than three or more than nine of their num-
ber who are to be first directors of the company ;

" The major part of such directors shall be resident in Canada and be subjects
of Her Majesty.-44-45 Vie., c. 11, s. 2."

Sections 4653, 4696 and 4697 of the Revised Statutes respecting Joint Stock Com-
panies, above set forth, were amended by Statute 52 Vic.. 1889, ch. 42.

(Assented to 21st March, 1889.)
"ier Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislature of Quebec,

enacts as follows .-
" 1. Article 4653 of the Revised Statutes of the Province of Quebec is replaced

by the following :
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" 4653. When not otherwise expressly enacted, this section applies to every
joint stock company incorporated by any charter, for any of the purposes within the
juribdiction of the Legislature.

" 2. Tho second clause of paragraph 1 of Article 4696 of the said Revised Statutes
is repealed by the following :

. Such charter constitutes the petitioners and all others who may become share
holders in the company thereby created a body politic and corporate for any of the
purposes within the jurisdiction of this Legislature, except with regard to the incor-
poration of railway or insurance companies, in which case an Order in Council is
necessary.

"3. Article 4697 of the said Revised Statutes is amended by adding thereto the
following paragraph :-

S7. Tin the case of the incorporation of a railway company the notices shall also
be inserted during four weeks in English and French in two newspapers published
in the district through which the proposed line is intended to pass.

" The notices shall be published in the English and French newspapers in each
district, if there be any published in those two languages; if not, then in the news-
papers in the same language published in the neighbouring districts.

" Such notices shall make known the stai ting point of tho proposed road, the dis-
tricts through which it is intended to run and the terminus.

" 4. This Act shall come into force on the day of its sanction."

1890-54 Vict., chap. 37-An Act to amend the Laws respecting Railways in
this Province.

(Assented to 30th December, 1890.)
Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislature of Quebec,

enacts as follows:
1. The following articles are ndded after Article 5183 of the Revised Statutes of

the Province of Quebeo:-
" 5183a. It shall be lawful for the Lieutenant-Governor in Council at any time

upon the report of the Railway Committee of the Executive Council to cancel the
charter of anv railway company incorporated under the laws of this province when
the said company has not complied with the terms of its charter as to the commen-
cement and completion of its works within the prescri-bed time, or when the said
company has become insolvent, or when the company does not or is not able to pro-
ceed with the work, or for any other cause which, in the opinion of' the Lieute iant
Governor in Council, is sufficient to justify such cancellation.

" 5183b. Such cancelling takes effect, to all intents and purposes, fliteen days
after the publication in the Oficial Gazette of a proclamation to that effect under
the Great Seal of the Province, which at the sane time fixes t ie day, hour and place
at which the meeting of shareholders is to bc held to appoint a liquidator or three
liquidators, under Articles 4777 and following of these Revised Statutes.

"5183c. In default of the appointment of the said liquidators, or if a vacancy
should arise amongst them, or if such appointnent be not made, the whole under the
circumstances or for the reasons mentioned in Articles 4778 and 4779, the Commis.
sioner of Public Works may, like any shareholdç r, institute all necessary proceedings
authorized in and by the said articles to attain the object above mentioned "

"5183d. The liquidation is then proceeded with in the manner set forth in A rti-
cles 4780 and following of these Revised Statutes.

"2. This Act shall come into force on the day of its sanction."

1890.-54 Vie., chap. 88-An Act respecting certain Subsidies to Railways and
other Companies and undertakings.

( Assented to 30th December, 1890.)
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Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislature of Quebec,
enacts as follows:-

" 1. It shall be lawful for the Lieutenant Governor in Council to grant the sub-
sidies hereinafter mentioned to aid the construction of the railways hereinafter
enumerated, or to the railway and other enterprises, to wit:-

Total Total
Subsidies in Subsidies in

Money. Lands.

$ ets. Miles.

1. To contribute to the cost of constructing the bridge to be built over the
Grand Cascapediac River, on the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, a subsidy
not exceeding in all.................. . . .............. ........... .. 50,00 0

(Upon condition that the said bridge be built at the place fixed by the
Lieutenant (overnor in Council, w o nmay order that such bridge be built
for the passage of vehicles and foot passengers, as well as for the passage of
railway trains, if he deens it in the public interest.)

2. To aid in conpleting and equipping the Baie des Chaleurs Railway,
throughout its whole length, for the part not conmenced and that not
finished. about 80 miles, going to or near Gas pé Basin, a subsidy of ten
thousand acres of land per mile, not to exceed in all.. .. ... ..... .... .... ........... 800,000

(Payable to any person or persons, conmpany or companies, establishing
that they are in a position to carry out the said works and to supply the
rolling stock for the whole road and keep it in good working order, and also
upon condition that the balance of the privileged debts due by the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway Conmpany be paid, the whole to the satisfaction of the
Lieutenant G overnor in Council).

EXHIBIT No. 61.
(Translation.)
EXTRAoT from the Speech of the Honourable Mr. Mercier, upon a motion for the

production of papers relating to the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, made by F. A.
Carrier, 21st November, 1890.

EVENING SITTING, 20th November, 1890.
Leaving the poetic side I now come to the practical side of the question. It is

perfeetly useless to try and have any illusions about this. That country is beauti-
ful, that country is rich, and only asks the aid of the Province in ,order to develop
its resources and to render its population happy.

Everybody remembers the touching accord which took place at the last session
when the House unanimously authorized the Government to pay a sum of $20,000
to those poor workmen on the railway who had not been paid.

I wish that every member had time to read the sad romance which is about to
be laid before the House. One tinds there a recital of the most lamentable state of
affairs. Poor workmen who have nothing but their work for their means of liveli-
hood, and who in the month of March last had not received their wages for the last
two months, the only thing upon which they could count for the subsistence and
nourishment of their families. This money which had been paid by the Province,
counting that it would serve to pay legitimate privileged debts, had been in the fob
of speculators. More than that: the farmers over whose lands the road passed had
not been paid, and in vain did they demand what was due to them. They weie
answered by being put out of the door of the company's office. And I reinember
one case in particular. A poor fisherman who had onily a lot of land, which was
almost wholly taken by the railway, finding it impossible to make anything out of
the little morsel which remained to him, came to see me, and said to me: "This is
my position. I had a littie bit of land from which I harvested the necessary products,
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such a potatoes, etc. In addition to that I got my living by fishing. The railway
has taken from me a part of my land. I cannot cultivate the rest of it, and they
have not given me a cent." I had a special agent of the company come to me (t
am speaking to you now of 1888, the period when 1 passed some time in that part
of the country); I asked hin why ho had not paid. He said to me " I have not
paid, because the company has given me no money." " Then, why have you
taken possession of the land without offering the money ?' " Because the company
promised to send me the money at once, and to pay the amount agreed upon." " You
have made claims, thon?" " Why, yes; at least three times a month I write, and
they do not even answer me. It is perfectly impossible for me to pay this honest
man a debt which we recognize is legitimately due, and for a good reason: it is
because those who are at the head of the company occupy themselves with getting
the money and never sending it to me. And that is the position."

How many cases there are like that. Take those poor workmen, who, during
the winter have been making sleepers, what are called ties; they worked all
winter; they have brought thein down the rivers with all the hardships possible;
they have delivered them to the company, and up to the last moment when we
intervened more than three-quarters of these people had not been paid. They had
given their work, their time, they had passod the winter in the shanties in order to
earn a little money. and contributed by their work to the construction of this road.
Their wood had been used, and they had not been paid. They were left in misery.

Go and ask the poor people who have supported for whole months the laborers
who were working on the îoad, and who furnished them the necessary provisions.
Go and ask the poor merchants up on the hill, who were always being asked for
provisions for, the mon. They will all tell you the same story: " We have not been
paid." And ut the present moment, notwithstanding that we have paid more than
fifty thousand dollars, and twenty-eight thousand dollars which remained from the
money due to the company, and twenty thousand dollars which the House autho-
rized us to pay, there yet romain due about fifty thousand dollars of privileged debts.
The thing has been explained to you. There are sixty miles of road partly con-
structed out of one hundred; forty miles from Cascapedia to Gaspé Basin, where
there is not an inch of road built. From the Cascapedia, coming up this way, you
have nearly sixty miles ofroad partly constructed, and there is not one bridge. Whon
you come fot the Grand Cascapedia, a superb river, you need a bridge which will cost
more than one hundred and fifty thousand dollars. Ther'e has been nothing done
there either. At certain seasons of the year, in spring and autumn, it is a physical
impossibility to cross. And yet it is the great artery of communication of' Gaspesia.
Every one who wishes to take the cars at Campbellton must pass there. •

i say to those who are doing me the honour to listen to me, I say to the members
of the Legislature of this country, who have intelligence and who ought to have
hearts: You have there a population which counts upon you. When it was a ques.
tion of the sufforing of the inhabitants of' the Lake St. John region we did not hesi-
tate. We doubled the subsidy. because we saw that it was impossible for the com-
pany to complote that railway, which was to bring here the riches of that beautiful
region, and ut the saine time to assure the prosperity of that locality. What we
have done for Lake St. John we beg of yo to do for the Baie des Chaleurs.

(Translation.)
SPEECH Of the Honourable Mr. Mercier on the second reading of the Bill te amend

the General Railways Act, Statutes of 1890, (2nd Session) Chap. 37.-Saturday,
27th December, 1890.

Sitting of 26th December, 1890.
A debate took place upon the railway law of this Province, the principal clause

of which reads as follows:-
"l It shall be lawful for the Lieutenant Governor in Council, at any time, upon

the report of the Rai lway Committee of the Executive Council, to cancel the charter
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of any railway company incorporated under the laws of this Province, when the
said company has not complied with the terms of its charter as to the commence-
ment and completion of its works within the prescribed time, or when the said Com-
pany bas become insolvent, or when the said company doos not or is not able to
proceed with the work, or for any other cause, which, in the opinion of the Lieu-
tenant Governor in Council, is sufficient to justify such cancellation."

The Honourable Mr. Blanchet saw in this clause a great danger for popular
liberties, and proposed the six months' hoist.

The Ilonourable Mr. Mercier replied to him as follows:

(Extract.)
"Mr. Speaker, what is happening at the present time ? Take the Baie des

Chaleurs Railway. •

" This company has asked to have its subsidies doubled up. It had been granted
a subsidy of 10,000 acres per mile for 180 miles, which makes 1,800,000 acres. The
Federal Government had granted it $3,200 per mile for 180 miles.

" Both Governments have doubled up the subsidies. That is, the company
after having received all the subsidies intended by the authorities for the railway,
arrests the whole progress of that country, refuses to pay legitimate debts, refuses
to pay for the lands over which the road passes, to pay for the crossings which
were made last winter by the poor farmers, and to pay for the provisions bought in
the shops.

"This company is there, and when we say to other persons: 'Go on and try
to buy out the rights of the present shareholders in order to proceed,' the share-
holders ask exorbitant prices. They do not want to do anything but make money
at the expense of the public. We ask to have the power of annulling this charter
in the publie interest.

"If we obtain this power, what will be the result ? The shareholders will sell
their rights at reasonable prices, and other persons will be able to construct the-
road.

"Take some other cases. You have the Montreal and Sorel Railway Company,
to which we have given 6112,000 to pay certain claims and to finish the road. The
claims have been paid, but the company has refused to finish the road. And since
that time the company not only reiuses te obey us, but it does not even answer the
letters which we write te it.

"Do you believe that is just ? Why not annul this charter and permit respon-
sible people to finish this road, which will give an outlet to the rich population of
the Counties of Verchères and Chambly? The public interest demands it. Private
interests object to it. I might cite other cases, but I content myself with these two,
which seem to be the most exorbitant."

(Translation.) MONDAY, 29th December, 1890.
EXTRAcT from the Speech of the Honourable Mr. Mercier, delivered in the Legislative

Assembly on the 23rd December, 1890, upon a resolution concerning theÎRailway
Subsidies granted by the Statute 54 Vic. (2nd Session), chap. 88.
We have, gentlemen, at the eastern extremity of the country, a railway for which,

the Province of Quebec has already made enormous sacrifices-the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway. I will not yield to the temptation to say what I think of those who have,
received the money of the Province and of the Dominion to make this road, and
who have not made it. In matters of this importance recriminations are not only
useless, but they become dangerous; and I shail net advance the course of public
prosperity by making recriminations at this time.
. But the fact is there. All the world can judge of it. Consequently, I need not

passjudgment in this respect. All that I will say is, that this road bas received a
subsidy of 10,000 acres of land for 180 miles, which makes 1,800,000 acres of land at
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35 cts. for the first half. See the enorinous sum of money that that makes. The
Federal Government on its part has granted a subsidy of $3,200 per, mile, and, to add
to the misfortune, both Governments have consented to double up the subsidies for
the second part of the road upon the first part. When we had the report that the
first part was done we paid, as did the Federal Government, ail the subsidies, so that
the other half is now completely uncovered.

Not only that, but the railway not having been utilized nor worked for two
year!, the works are in a desporate state. The culverts thereaten to disappear; the
ties have been carried away sometimes by floods; and the embankment is not neaily
as good as it was, as is easily understood. So that it would be necessary again to
spend considerable money in order to put in good condition the part of the road upon
which the doubling up has been done-that is to say, the part of the road upon
which a double payment of the subsidies has been made. We have decided to maike
a new sacrifice. There still remain some thousands of dollars due to the workmen
and to the farmers who have not been able to get paid in spite of the geierosity of
the Legislat ive Assenbly at its last Session, as you will see by the statements which
were read the other day before the House. We have not been able to pay everything,
either because we had not enough nioney, and that is the principal reason, or because
the proof of the claims arrived too late.

We ask you for a subsidy of 800,000 acres of land to finish this road over and
above the 850,000 to construct the bridge over the River Cascapedia.' We hope to
make an advantageous bargain with capitalists or with powerful companies. May
Heaven grant that our hopes be realized this time, and that we shall not be deceived
anew ! But, in any event, we ar'e going to redouble our precautions. We are going
to act with more prudence than ever, and we are going to try and finish this railway
as far as Gaspé Basin, in order to connect with the navigation of the Atlantic.

EXIiIBIT No. 62.

QUEBEC, 27th June. 1890.
C. HoLLAND, Esq.,

Manager of the Ontario Bank,
Toronto, Ont.

SIR,-Agreeable to your request, I beg to give the following information:
1. By an Order in Council of'the 25th of November last, I was appointed special

officer to pay, in diseharge of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company or its repre-
sentatives, the privileged claims against the 60 miles of that road covered by the
sub-contract of Henry MacFarlane, out of the $28,546 of subsidy remaining due by
the Government of Quebec for that part of the railway;

2. That balance of subsidy was by the Government placed to my credit and out
of that sum I have paid all the privileged claims, sworn to before the Commissioner
and acknowledged by H. MeFarlane or the other sub-contractors, which were
presented to nie for payment, comprising ail proved and admitted claims for wages;

3. Ail proved claims for wages have been paid, except for the amount of
$2,150.07, which amount will be paid as soon as ail the necessary formalities are
fulfilled.

Yours very humbly,
J. C. LANGELIER
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EXHIBIT Nlo. 63.

Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company Dr. to C. N. Armstrong.

Certificate of A. L. Light, 1st July, 1889, Section AE $535,485 00
"st " " " F 172,320 09
ist " " " G 140,112 42
lst Sept. " " i 198,661 33
1st " " " J 140,024 84
19th Oct. " " K 38,693 87
7th Jan. " " KLMH 10.000 00

$1,235,297 55
Substitution of steel superstructure for bridges in

lieu of wvooden Howe truss $16,786, sav 50 per
cent............ ....................

Surveys executed in excess ot coitract-
Section C 2-70 mile.

H 1-51
J 2-90

7'11
14-77

21-88

Cascapedia front line

Steel girders on hand 1-60 ft.....................3,277
1-40 " ................... 1. 581
1-30 " ............... ..... 1207

1 com bination car................... ...... ..................
Timber, piles and ties on hand............................
Stone at Metapedia, 155 cub. yards at $6............

Labour Black Cape Quarry......................

$1,
MONTREAL, 20th April, 1891.

(Sgd.) D. LEDUC,

.~ ~

~0 ~e

8,393 00

2,188 00

6,065
3,200
1,227

930
3,334

00
00
29 The correctness

0 of these items
n)ot yet ascer-

68) tained.

260,635 52

Contractor' Chief Engineer.
By subsidies transferred at my request-

Dominion Government.. ............... $556,000
Provincial " .................. 350,000

8906,000 00

Balance due C. N. Armstrong................... $355,635 52
Less paid in bonds, 21 of £500 btg ............ 51,099 93

* Less theso amounts............... .... ........

We certify that this amount, $298,943.62, ib ‡ to C.
ance with the terms of his contract with the company.

L. J. RIOPEL, L.
Managing Director.

QUEBEc, April 22nd, 1891.

8304,535 59
5,591 57

$298,943 62
N. Armstrong in accord-

A. ROBITAILE,
Secretary-.Treasurer.

NoTE. -In the origial the word " due " ii erased after " i8 " and the alteration is vade in a marginal
note as abore.)
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EXHIBIT No. 63a.

I, Charles N. Armstrong, contractor for the construction of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway, do hereby grant a full and complete discharge and quittance to the
Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company of all and every claim of whatsoever nature and
kind which I have or may have against the said company, and I further agree to
cancel and annul and I do hereby cancel and annul the contract and agreement
enteredinto with the said company on the ninth day of June, 1886, for the construc-
tion of said railway.

I hereby authorize the said company to take possession of the works on the said
railway, and all materials provided for the construction of the line, together with ail
the roi ling stock placed on the line in furtherance of the provisions of said contract,
9th June, 1886.

And I further transfer, assign and make over to the said company all and every
claim which I have or may have against Henry Macfarlane or the insolvent estate
of Henry Macfarlane and Son, and the said company is hereby authorized to use my
name in enforcing or collecting such claim.

Signed at Quebec this 28th day of April, 1891,
C. N. ARMSTRONG.

EXHIBIT No. 64.

Copy. ONTARIO BANK,
OTTAWA, 12th Oct., 1889.

The Honourable Minister Railways and Canais,
Ottawa.

SIR,-The Ontario Bank understands that there are wages due to Macfarlane's
men for work on the first sixty mile section of Baie des Chaleurs Railway, amount-
ing to thirteen thousand dollars. Thore is payable to the railway company fifty-four
thousand dollars, part of the Dominion subsidy. The Ontario Bank is entitled to
receive this fifty-four thousand dollars per Mr. Noel, manager Quebec Bank, Ottawa,
who is attorney for the railway company, to receive this subsidy for the Ontario
Bank. If the Government pay over this fifty-four thousand dollars forthwith to
Mr. Noel, to be paid to the Ontario Bank, the bank undertakes to see the wages to
the mon paid. I remain, Sir, your obedient servant,

A. SIMPSON, Manager.
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DISPO~(SITION Of N16CEE9S Of LE1IlS 6F (REIE T FOR11 ' 7âf 15 6,

A EXHIBIT No. 65a.

LA BANQUE NATIONALE, Quebec, in account with J. C. Langelier, Commissioner.

1891.

April 29.. To Proceeds of discount of $75,000, letter of credit, dated 28th April,
1891, signed by the Honourable P. Garneau in his capacity as
representative of the Prime Minister, and as Treasurer of the
Province of Quebec, authorizing La Banque Nationale to advance
the sum of $75,000 to J. C. Langelier, bearing 5 per cent. interest,
commencing from the 1st June to the l0th July, (lue date of the 74,111 64
letter of credit........ .. ..... .......... .. .. ..........

(Exhibit No. 15.)..

do 29.. By Cheque-Payment to promoters of the old company for their
interest in the railway and the stock of the company (Exhibit
Nos. 15a and 50)................................ .... ............. 31,750 0
Cheque- (Exhibit No. 15b)......... ....................... .. ............ 24,000 00

do ( do 15c) .... . ............................ ........ ,... 16,000 00
do C. N. Armstrong (Exhibit No. 15d).. .......... ..... .... ....... 111 64
do James Cooper ( do 15e)............................ 2,250 00

74,111 64 74,111 64

B EXHIBIT No. 65b.

LA BANQUE DU PEUPLE, Quebec, in account with Ernest Pacaud, Esq.

1891. $ ets. $ ets

May 6.. To proceeds of notes of E. Pacaud, endorsed by P. Vallière, due
July 18, secured by deposit of cheque for $20,000 deposited,
drawn by J. C. Langelier, Conimissioner, on the Union Bank, in
favour of C. N. Armstrong, payable when the amount of the
letter of credit for $100,000 was paid and placed to the credit of
said J. C. Langelier, Commissioner, at the Union Bank ....... .19,720 00

(Exhibits 16, 23, 24, 28a, 31, 34.)

do 6.. By Cheque-Note of A. F. Carrier, endorsed by E. Pacaud......... .......... . 400 00
do do James Carrel do do ... ..... .......... 150 00

do 11.. do do G. M. I)eschene do do due May 8 ..... ..... 150 00
do do J. . Tarte do do .. ..... ..... ... .. 1,000 00

do 16.. do Paynent on account of purchase of house on Dufferin '
Terrace by E. Pacaud... . ............. ... ... ...... .... 7,000 00

(Exhibits 25, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49.)
Balance unaccounted for (cheques withdrawn August 6) .......... ............ 11,020 00

(Exhibit 22.)
19,720 00 19,720 00
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EXHIBIT No. 65c.

A. 1891

LA BANQUE NATIONALE, Quobec, in account with Ernest Pacaud, Esq.

1891.

May 15..

do 15..

do 15..

$ cts. $ cts.

To proceeds of note of E. Pacaud, endorsed by P. Vallière, due July
15, secured by deposit of cheque drawn by J. C. Langelier,
Connissioner, for $20,000 on the Union Bank in favour of C.
N. Arnstrong, payable when the amount of the letter of credit
for $100,000 was l)aid and placed to the credit of the said .1. C.
Langelier, Commissioner, at the Union Bank ......... ...... .. 19,732 60

(Exhibits 11, 19, 21, 28b, 34.)
By Cheque-Note of E. Pacaud, endorsed by Hon. C. A. P.

Pelletier, Hon. Honoré Mercier, Hon. Charles Langelier and
Hon. Franois Langelier, dated April 15, due May 18 ...... ..... 5,000 00

(Exhibit No. 17.)
Cheque - Bill of exchange on Paris in favour of Hon. Honoré

Mercier for 25.500 francs ... .. ........................ .. .......... .5,000 00
(Exhibit No. 44.)

Balance unaccounted for (cheques withdrawn Aug. 7).......... ...... ..... . 9,732 60
(Exhibit No. 20.)

19,732 60 19,732 60

EXHIBIT No. 65d.

STATEMENT showing payments by E. Pacaud from proceeds of
$20,000 each, drawn by J. C. Lange lier, Commissioner, on
payable to C. N. Armstrong.

three choques of
the Union Bank,

Aniount received, being proceeds of three cheques for $20,000 each,
drawn by J. C. Langelier, Comnissioner, on the Union Bank in
favour of C. N. Armstrong, and held on collection by Union
Bank until the amount of letter of credit for $100,000 was paid
and placed to the credit of said J. C. Langelier, Commissioner,
at the Union Bank........... . . .

(Exhibits Nos. 28 a, b, c, d, e, and 35 and 38.)
Paid note of E. Pacaud, endorsed by Hon. H. Mercier, J. I. Tarte,

Hon. C. A. P. Pelletier and Hon. C. Langelier, dated 10th March,
due 13th July .......... . . . - -... ......... ....... .... ... . ...

(Exhibits Nos. 35, 38 and 52.)
Paid note of E. Pacaud, endorsed by Hon. H. Mercier and others,

dated 1st April, due 4th August.......... . ..............
(Exhibits Nos. 35, 38 and 52.)

Paid Hon. Chas. Langelier................. ....... ..... ... ...
(Exhibits Nos. 35, 38, 42 and 43.)

Withdrawn and deposited to credit of E. Pacaud in Savings Bank
Departnent of Union Bank. ..... . . . . . ........... .... ....

(Exhibits Nos. 35 and 38.)
N.B. -This sum was withdrawn fron Savings Badk Department

of Union Bank by E. Pacaud, 10th August, 1891.
(Exhibit No. 37.)

Balance unaccounted for, cheques having been withdrawn from Bank
8th A ugust, 1891......... .............. ................ .... .....

(Exhibit No. 36.)
6

0 cts. ets

0.000 00

5,000 00

3,000 00

3,000 00

25,000 00

...... .. 24,000 00

,000 00 60,000 00
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E EXHIBIT No. 65e.

RECAPITULATION.

$ cts. $ ets.

Amount received by J. C. Langelier-Commissioner-
Letter of credit... ... .......................... 8 75,000 00
Interest 5 per cent ........ . ........... ... ..... .... 400 68

$ 75,400 68
Bank discount....... ...... ....................... 1,289 04

(Exhibit No. 16.) -- 74,111 64
Amounts received by E. Pacaud-

From Union Bank. ....... ............... .................. 60,000 0
(Exhibit No. 28a, b, c, d, e.)

From Banque du Peuple......... .... ....... ...... 20,000 00
Discount . . . ... ........ ........ ......... .... 280 00

(Exhibits Nos. 23, 24, 26 and 27.) 19,720 00
Fromn La Banque Nationale....... .. ...... ..... 8 20,000 00
Discount ...... ... .......... .... .... ... .... . .. ...... .. 267 40

(Exhibits Nos. 19 and 21.) 19,732 60
Paid promoters of old company.............. ........ ........ ..... .. ......... .71,750 0()
do C. N. Arnstrong.......................... ...... . ........ .. . ........ ........ 111 64
do James Cooper ................. ...... .. .... ....... . .. .............. 2,250 0
do E. Pacaud and Hon. H. Mercier and personal obligations of Hon. H.

Mercier, Hon. Chas. Langelier, Hon. C. A. P. Pelletier, Hon. F.
Langelier, J. I. Tarte, E. Pacaud and others..... . ... ....... ........ . . 54,700 0

(Exhibits Nos. 15a, b, c, d, e, 37, 65b, c, d.)
Bank discount ........... .............. ... . ........... i.5.... .. . . 76
Balance unaccounted for, cheques having been withdrawn from banks by E.

Pacaud, 6th. 7th and 8th August..... ....... ..... ............... . . . ........ 44,752 60
(Exhibits Nos. 20, 22 and 36.)

175,000 00 175,000 0<)

EXHIBIT No. 66.

,Statements of Diabursements, i.e., balance of Quebec Subsidy applicable to miles 40 to 66
of the Baie des Chaleurs J.ailway, from Nov. 28, 1890, to Oct. 31, 189 1.

SUBSIDY ........................ . . .828545 0

Paid Macfarlane's workmen and other bis'in connec-
tion with contract............. .................. $259379 90

Paid Armstrong's workmen and other debts............ 689 50
Expenses of the investigation and payment in eonnec-

tion with same ..................................... 2,475 60

. 28.545 0

E. & 0. E. J. C. LANGELIE...
OTTAWA, Aug. 27th, 1891.)

Hon. Chas. LANGELER, Commiaioner named by Letters Paient, dated, th
October, 1889, began taking evidence with a view of fixing the amonnt due Mac-
farlane's wo nkmen on the 23rd October, 1889.

J. C. LANGELLER.
QuiC, 24th Apri, 1891.

PRegistrar's Offihe,. .
ttamp. o..Apr. 24, 1891.

(Province of Quebee.
J. C. LANGELIER, Esq.,

Q uebee.
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EXHIBIT No. 67.

DEA. SiR,-In auswer to yours of the 23rd inst., transmitting for my approval
'he account of C. N. Armstrong, Esq., agent of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Com-
pany, to the amount of $298,943.62, I beg to state that I refuse to approve and cer-
tify that account for more than one hundred and seventy-five thousand dollars,
(8175,000.00, and this on the express condition that Mr. Armstrong shall cancel and
annul his contract with- company and shall give full and abso<lute discharge of
any claims whatever against the road or anything appertaining to it, directly or
indirectly.

Yours very truly,
A. MIc. T HOM.

EXHIBIT No. 68.

GEoRGE A. TAYLOR, of the Town of Brockville, in the Province of Ontario,
depose as follows:-

That on the ninth day of June, 1886, Roderick L. McDonald. of Pugwash, Nova
Scotia; Michael J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, Ontario; James Rogers, of the City of Mon-
treal, and George A. Taylor, of Brockville, Ontario, trading for the purposes of the
contract hereinafter mentioned as "I McDonald, O'Brien & Co.," contracted with
Charles Newhouse Armstrong, the chief contractor for the building of the first
twenty miles of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, viz., the twenty miles comprised
between the station of Métapedia and a point in the vicinity of Pointe-à-la-Garde ;

That tht, works were to be executed for the prices mentioned in a schedule of
rates annexed to the contract;

That in order to insure the payment of the works so to be done the said C. N.
Armstrong and the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company transferred to Roderick L.
McDonald, one of our firm, in trust, ail the subsidies belonging to those twenty miles
of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway, viz., three hundred thousand dollars from the
Dominion Government and seventy thousand dollars from the Quebec Government;

That the firm of McDonald, O'Brien & Co. did build the said twenty miles of
railway, less some works of little importance which could be executed at the utmost
for a few thousand dollars, and they received in full payment of said works the sum
of two hundred and fifty-two thousand dollars and then re-transferred to the said
company the balance of the said subsidies of three hundred and seventy thousana
dollars;

That by deed in date of the 9th June, 1886, before W. B. Reddy, N. P., it was
agreed that the said MeDonald, O'Brien & Co., bound themselves to pay to C. N.
Armstrong, as guarantee, a sum of ten thousand dollars, half cash and half by a pro-
missory note at seventy-five days. at the time of the transfer of the subsidies ;

That the said amount was paid to L. J. Riopel, who actually styles himself
managing director of the said company, in his own house in Quebec, and taken on
the subsidies transferred, to secure the payment of the works comprised in our
contract.

Sworn before me at Quebec, (Signed) GEO. A. TAYLOR.

this 27th day of January, 1891.
(Sgd) J. C. LANGELIER, J. P.

EXHIBIT No. 69.

THIs INDENTURE, bearing date the thirtieth day of June, one thousand eight
hundred and eighty-six, and executed in duplicate.

Between the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, a body politic and corporate,
having its chief place of business at the City of Quebec, in the Province of Quebec
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herein acting by the Honourable Théodore Robitaille, of the said City of Quebec,
the President theieof, and hereunto duly authorized by a resolution of the Board of
Directors of said Company held on the twenty-fifth day of May last, " Hereinafter
called the Railway Company," first parties; Charles Newhouse Armstrong, of the
said City of Montreal, Contractor, second party; the commercial firm of McDonald,
O'Brien & Co., Contractors, having their chief place of business at Metapedia, in the
said Province of Quebec, composed of Roderick L. McDonafd, of Pugwash, in the
Province of Nova Scotia; Michael J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, in the Province of
Ontario; James Rogers, of the City of Montreal, and George A. Taylor. of Brock-
ville, in the Province of Ontario, as the co-partners of the said firm, third parties ;
the said Roderick L. Mc)onald, fourth party; and George B. Burland, of the said
City of Montreal, Lithographer and Engraver, fifth party.

Whereas by agreement under seul bearing date the seventh day of November
last, 1885, between Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented by the Honourable the
Minister of'Railways and Canais, and the said railway company, the said railway
company undertook to construct, equip and complete a line of railway from Meta-
pedia eastwards towards Paspebiac, twenty miles, in consideration of the sum ot
three hundred thousand dollars payable as is set forth in the said agreement.

And who eus by contract and agreement executed before W. B. S. Reddy,
Notary, at Montreal, on the ninth of June, 1886, between the said railway com-
pany and the second party, the latter undertook toconstruet, complete and equip the
said twenty miles of railway.

And whereas by contract executed before the same notary on the saine day,
ninth June, 1886, the secord party has sublet to the third parties the execution of
the whole of the works required to be done in the construction of the said twenty
miles of railway mentioned in the schedule of prices which is inserted in said
contract.

And whereas to secure the pnyment to the third parties of the considerations
which the second party undertook to pay the third parties for the works to be
performed by them for him the railway eompany by transfers passed before the
said Mtre. Ieddy, on the ninth day of June, 1886, transferred unto the said Roderick
L. McDonald. in trust -

1. The sum of three hundred thousand dollars payable to the railway company
by the Dominion Government under the said agreement, of date the seventh day of
November last, 1885.

2. The subsidy of seventy thousand dollars granted by the Government of the
Province of Quebec in aid of the said twenty miles of railway.

And whereas it was stipulated in the said tiansfers that within thirty days
from the date thereof the said iRoderick L. McDonald would name a bank, which
would accept the appointment of» triistee to receive the transfer of the said subsidies
and would agree to carry out the conditions of the trust in conformity with the
terms of the contract between the second and third parties, whereupon tho railway
company, upon being notified of such acceptance by a bank to be approved of by it,
bound itselfto make a transfer of said subsidies to such bank as trustee, which
transfer would take the place of the transfers so made to the said Roderick L.
McDonald in trust.

And whereas with the consent of all parties the tifth party, instead of a bank,
has been named by the said Roderick L. McDonald to ieceive the transfer of the
said subsidies and the railway company has approved of such appointment.

Now thebe presents witness and the parties have covenanted and agreed as
follows :-

First.-The said railway company doth, by these presents, assign, transfor and
make over unto the fifth party thereof accepting in trust for the purposes herein-
after mentioned.

1. The said sum of three hundred thousand dollars payable to the said railway
company, under the contret between Her Majesty Queen Victoria, and said railway
company of date the seventh of November last, 1885.
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2. The subsidy of seventy thousand dollars granted by the Government of the
Province of Quebec in aid of the said twenty miles of railway and equivalent at
thirty-five cents per aci o to the subsidy of two hundred thousand acres of land to
which the railway company is entitled by the Act 45 Viotoria, cap 23.

And the said railway company hath, simultaneously with the execution hereof
made and delivered to the fifth party powers of attorney, irrevocable as regards said
railway company until the completion of the contract for the said twenty miles of
railway, to recover and receive these subsidies in the name of the said railway
company, from the Governiments of the Dominion of Canada and of the Province of
Quebec, and in the name of the said railway com pany good and sufficient acquit-
tances to give and grant fbr the same ; and the said railway company agrees on the
demand of the fifth party to execute such further transfers of the said subsidies as
may be necessary fully to vest the same in the said fifth party and to pass such
further resolutions as may be necessary to avail themselves of money payments of
thirty-five cents per acre in lieu of the lands granted by the Province of Quebec in
aid of said portion of iRailway.

Second.-On or about the fifteenth day of August next, Mr. A. L. Light, the
Engineer of said railway company, shall make an estimate of the work up to that
time done by third parties in execution of their contract and of the work remaining
to be done by them to complete the same, aud in the event of such estimate at the
rate mentioned In the contract beween the second and third parties being less than
the amount of the subsidies hereby transferred to the fifth party, the latter shall be
bound, at the request of the third parties, to re-transter to the railway company
whatever may remain of the subsidies after deduction therefrom:

1. Of the amount estimated by the said A. L. Light to be the value at the prices
mentioned in the contract between the second and third parties of the work done
and to be done by the third parties to complete their comtract. And 2. Of the sum
of forty thousand dollars to provide for the i epayment of the five instalments of eight
thousand each which shall have been paid to H. Noel as hereinafter stipulated.

3. Of the sum of thirty-three thousand dollars.
Third.-Out of the amounts which may be received by the fifth party he

shall pay :
1. To the third parties the sum of two thousand dollars out of each instalment

of sixty thousand dollars received from the Dominion Government, forming in all ten
thousand dollars, and being the amount payable by the second party to the third
parties under an agreement between them before W. B. S. Reddy, Notary, on the
9th day of June instant. 1886, under No. 505 of his minutes.

2. To the third parties the amounts to which they are then entitled, as shown
by the monthly certiticates of the Engineer for work done and materials furnished
by them in execution of their contract. But out of the amount which the third

parties will be er titled to receive out of each Government payment of sixty thousand
dollars, the fifth party shalh pay a sum of eight thousand dollars to H. Noel, the
Manager of the Quebec Bank at Ottawa, forming a total sum of forty thousand dollars.

The said sums of eight thousand dollars each shall be paid to the third parties
by the tifth party out of the subsidies to be paid by the FedTeral and Local Govern-
ments within two months after the final completion of the whole work to the satis-
faction of the Engineer of the Company.

3. To pay to the second party out of each Government payment his proportion
of such payment up to, but not exceeding, the total sum of eight thousand dollars, as
set forth in the contract between the second party and the third parties.

Fourth.-Should there remain in the hands of the fifth party any moneys after the
ceompletion of the contract of the third parties, and the complete payment to them
of the total sum coming to thei under their said contract with the second party,
and after payment of the sums payable by the tifth party under the last preceding
clause, the fifth party shall pay over such monies to the said Railway Company.
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Fifth.-In conbequence of the pi esent agreement, the transfers made by the said
Railway Company to the said fourth party in trust, on the ninth of June, 1886, are
hereby cancelled, these presents being executed in lieu theroof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereunto set their hands.
Signed in the presence of

(Signed) L. J. RIOPEL,
OCTAVE MARTriN.

(Signed) TE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY CO.
THEODORE ROBITAILLE, President.
L. A. ROBITAILLE, Secretary.
C. N. ARMSTRONG.
M. J. O'BRIEN.
GEO. A. TAYLOR.
JAMES ROGE RS.
(. B. BURLAND.

(A true copy.)
(One marginal note is good.)

(Signed) W. de M. MARLE R.
BEFORE Mtre. William de M. Mariler, the undersigned Public Notary for the

Province of Quebec, residing at the city of Montreal-
APPEARED Michael J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, in the Province of Ontario, contractor,

one of the firm of McDonald, O'Brien & Co., contraetors, having their place of
business at Metapedia, in the said Province of Quebec, who deposited with me, the
said Notary, to remain among my notarial records, the foregoing Indenture of'
Agreement, executed in duplicate, and bearing date the thirtieth day of June last, 1886,
between the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, Charles Newhouse Armstrong,
the said firm of McDonald, O'Brien & Co., Roderick L. McDonald and George B.
Burland.

To the end that communication may be had and copies granted à qui de droit.
WHEREoF ACTE, executed at the said City of Montreal, on the fifth day of July

eighteen hundred and oighty-six and of record in the office of the said Mtre. Mariler,
under the No. Twelve thousand one hundred and seventy-six, and after due reading
hereof said appeare: sigiied in presence of said Notary.

(Signed) M. J. O'BRIEN,
W. DE M. MARLER, .N. P.

A true copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office.
(Signod.) W. DE M. MARLER.

EXHIBIT No. 70.
BEFoRE ME William B. S. Reddy, the undersigned Notary Public, duly admitted

and swornt, residing and practising in the City of Montreal, in the District of Mont-
real and Province of Quebec-

APPEARE> Charles Newhouse Armai rong of the said City of Montroal, Railway
Contractor, party of the " First Part " hereinafter called " the contractor ";

And Roderick L. M cDonald, of Pugwash, in the Province of Nova Scotia, Michael
J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, in the Province of Ontario, and herein acting and repre-
sented by the said Roderick L. McDonald under and by virtue of a power or letter
of attorney, James Rogers, of the said City of Montreal and George A. Taylor, of
Brockville, in the Province of Ontario, trading for the purposes of the Contract
hereinafter mentioned as "McDonald, O'Brien & Co." called " the sub-contractors ";

Whereas the parties hereto have by deed bearing even date passed before me the
undersigned Notary, entered into a contract f'or the construction of twenty miles of
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company;
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And whereas the sub-contractors have agreed to deposit with the said con-
tractor the sum of ten thousand dollars as a guarantee for the carrying out of the
said contract:

Now these presents witnesseth that the said sub-contractors have this day paid
to the said contractor the sum of five thousand dollars in cash and sub-contractors
estimates.

It is further understood and agreed that should the said transfer of subsidies
not be complete on the part of the said sub-contractors within thirty days from the
date hereof or the said sum of five thousand dollars in cash or the said note for five
thousand dollars be not given to the said Charles Newhouse Armstrong, within
thirty days from the date hereof, the sum of five thousand dollars paid this day
shall be forfeited.

Whereof Acte.
Done and passed under the number five hundred and five and after due reading

said parties have signed with and in the presence of said undersigned Notary as
follows, to wit: by the said Roderick L. McDonald, Charles N. Armstrong, the said
M. J. O'Brien, by his Attorney R. L. McDonald and George A. Taylor, at the City of
Quebec, in the Province of Quebec, on the ninth day of June eighteen hundred and
oighty-six, and by the said James Rogers at the said City of Montreal, the tenth day
of the same month and year.

(Signed) CHARLES N. ARMSTRONG,
R. L. McDONALD.
GEO. A. TAYLOR.
M. J. O'BRIEN.

Per R. L. MCDONALD, Attorney,
JAMES ROGERS.
WM. B. S. REDDY, N.P.

A true copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office. One word
erased is null.

(Signed.) WM. B. S. REDDY, N.P.

EXIIBIT No. 71.

CANADIAN PACIFIc TELEGRAPH,
OTTAWA, Feb. 10, 1887.

From Quebec-10 vid Montreal 10.
To MCDONALD, O'BRIEN & Co.,

Russell Ilouse or Gd. Union.
I find on enquiry at bank that amount has been paid tò credit of conhpany.

Bank refuses to pay trustee on my order, and requires company's secretary's signa-
ture. He is absent. I telograph him to send cheque. I am ready to adopt other
means you may suggest.

THEODORE ROBITAILLE.

EXHIBIT No. 72.

THE BA[i, DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY,
QUEBEC, 16th December, 1886.

To Messrs. MCDONALD, O'BRIEN & Co.,
Contractors, Metapelia.

SIR,-On behalf of the Baie des Chaleurs Railwav Company I desire Io draw
your attention to clause second of the agreement passed between this company, first
party, C. N. Armstrong, second party, your tirm, third party, R. L. McDonald, fourth
party, and G. B. Burland. fifth party.
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Whereby it is stipulated that the trustee, Mr. Burland, shall be bound to re-
transfer to this company whatever may remain of the subisidies transferred to him
after deduction therefrom :

1st. Of the amount estimated by Mr. Light.
2nd. Of the sim of $40,000.
3rd. Of the sum of $33,000.
Now, as you have some time past been supplied with ihe requisite estimates

from Mr. Light, I am to notify you, on behalf ot this company, to comply forthwith
with that clause of the agreement, viz:., to request Mr. Burland to re-transfer to the
Baie de Chaleurs Railway Company the remaining portion of the subsidies in bis
hands.

I have the honour to be, Gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

THEODORE ROBITAILLE,
Président B. d C. R.

EXHIBIT No. 73.

On this second day of December, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-six,
at the instance and request of the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, a body
politic and corporate, having its chief place of business at the city of Quebec, in the
Province of Quebec:

I, William de M. Marler, the undersigned public notary for the Province
of Quebec, residing at the city of Montreal:

Proceeded to the Balmoral Hotel, in the said city of Montreal for the purpose
of meeting with George A. Taylor, of Brockville, in Ontario, -one of the members
of the firm of McDopald, O'Brien & Co., contractors, having their chief place of busi-
ness at Metapedia, in the said Province of Quebec:

Where being and speaking to the said George A. Taylor, by and through hin
to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.:

1 declared that by an indenture dated the thirtieth of June last, 1886, deposited
in the office of the undersigned notary on the 5th of July last, between the said Baie
des Chaleurs Railway Company, first partiesi Charles Newhouse Armstt ong, second
party; the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., third parties; Roderick L. McDonald,
fourti party, and George B. Burland, of the said city of Montreal, Esq., fifth party';
as to certain works to be done by the third parties, said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.,
in the construction of twenty miles of the railway of the said Railway Companyi
it was inter alia agreed : That on or about the fifteenth day of August thon next and
now last, Mr. A. L. Light, the engineer of the said railway Company should make
an estimate of the'work up to that time done by the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.,
in execution of their contract, and of the work remaining to be done by them to com-
plete the same, and in the event of such estimates at the rate mentioned in the
contract between the said Charles N. Armstrong and the said McDonald, O'Brien &
Co., being less than the amount of the subsidies transferred by said indenture to the
said George B. Burland, the latter would be bound at the request of the said
McDonald, O'Brien & Co., to re-transfer to the said railway company whatever may
remain of the said subsidies after aeduction therefrom:

1. Of the amount estimated by the said A. L. Light to be the value at the prices
mentioned in the contract between the said Charles N. Armstrong and McDonald,
O'Brien & Co., of the work done and to be done by the said McDonald, O'Brien &
Co., to complete their contract.

2. Of the sum of forty thousand dollars to provide for certain payments to H.
Noel :

3. Of the sum of thirty-three thousand dollars.
That the said A. L. Light has made an estimate of the work done and to be

done by the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., as on the fifteenth of August last : a copy
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of' which has previously hereto been delivered to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.,
by which it appears that the work done anounted to the sum of $36,223.80, and the
work to be done to the sum of $222,171.82, forming a total sum of two hundred and
fifty-eight thousand three bundred 'and ninety-five dollars and sixty-two cents to
which the sum of forty thousand dollars and thirty-three thousaud dollars are added
a grand total is arrived at of threo hundred and thirty-one thousand three hundred
and ninety-five dollars and sixty-two cents.

That the subsidies transferred by the said indenture to the said George B. Bar-
land amount to three hundred and seventy thousand dollars, an ainount in excess of
the last mentioned sum.

That the said George B. Burland is willing with the consent of the said MeDon-
ald, O'Brien & Co. to re-transfer to said railway company whatever may remain of
said subsidies after deduction of the said sum of three hundred and thirty-one thou-
sand three hundred and ninety-five dollars and sixty-two cents.

Wherefore, I the said Notary, at the request aforesaid, and speaking as afore-
said, do hereby demand of and require the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.
to consent to the transfer by the said George B. Burland to thé said rail-
way company of the remainder of the subsidies transferred by the said in-
denture to the said George B. Burland after deducting therefrom the said sum
of three hundred and thirty-one thousand three hundred and ninety-tive dollars
and sixty-two cents and to sign their consent to such transfer being so made as
herein expressed and demanded:

To all which I received for answer. I will consult my partners.
Which answer on being rcquested to sign, the said George A. Taylor declined to

sign.
Which answer being unsatisfactory, I, the said Notary. have protested and do by

these presents most solemnly protest against the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. for
all loss and damage which the said railway company may suffer in consequence. For
all of which I did and do most solemnly protest.

And I have served a copy hereof upon the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. for
signification hereof spealing as aforesaid.

Thus done and protested at the City of Montreal, and I have signed these pre-
sents which are of record in rmy office under No. twelve thousand six hundred and
seventeen, in truth and testimony of the premises.

(Signed) W. DE M. MARLER, N.P.
A true copy of the original hereof of record in my office. Three marginal notes

are good.
(Signed) W. DE M. MARLER.

EXIIIBIT No. 74.

' Government DEPARTMENT OF GOVERNMENT RAILWAYS, P.Q.,
Railways, ENGINEER'S OFFICE,
Quebec. QUEBEC, 12th February, 1887.

I hereby certify that the sub-contractors for the first 20 miles of the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway did not proceed with the works in a manner to complete their
contract on the first day of December, 1886, as provided by the contract between
C. N. Armstrong and the sub-contractors, Macdonald, O'Brien & Company, said con-
tract dated June 9, 1886; and [ further certify that said works were not completed
on the said first day of December, 1886, and are not completed at the present time.

A. L. LIGHT,
Company's Chief Engineer.
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EXHIBIT No. 75.

On this twenty-first day of Decem ber, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-six,
at the instance and request of the commercial -firm of Macdonald, O'Brien & Co.,
contractors, having their chief place of business at Metapedia, in the Province of
Quebec,

I, Joseph G. Couture, the undersigned Public Notary for the Province of Quebec,
residing at the City of Quebec,

Proceeded to the office iii the said city of Quebec of the Baie des Chaleurs -Rail-
way, a body corporate having its chief place of business in the said City of Quebec,

Where, being and speaking to a clerk in the said office, I declared in answer to
a notification and protest signified upon the said TMacdonald, O'Brien & Co., by the
ministry of Mr. de M. Marler, Notary,' at Montreal, on the second day of December
instant, at the request of said Railway Company, and in answer also to a demand
made upon them by said Railway Company by letter missive:

1. That the estimate made by A. L. Light was not made on or about the
fifteenth day of August last in terms and under the provisions of the agreement in
part recited in said notification and protest.

2. That such estimate is informal and inexact, and was not made personally by
the said A. L. Light as it purports to be.

3. That such estimate does not make a fair allowance for the work done and to
be done, and is actually incorrect in the following among other instances:-

(a.) The item of first-class masonry takes no notice of two structures in masonry
of a value of about twenty thousand dollars.

(b.) The quantity of hard-pan is double that in the estimate.
(c.) The item of rails and fastonings is near fifty-four thousand dollars, instead

of fifty-two thousand dollars.
4. That the amount to be retainied by Mr. Burland is not, therefore, sufficient.
And 1 did and do most solennly protest against the said Baie des Chaleurs Rail-

way Company for all loss, costs, delays, damages, injuries and hurts already had,
suffered or sustained, or whieh may be hereafter in any way had, 'sutiered or
sustained by the said requirants, in consequence of the failure of the said railway
company to cause the said estimate to be properly made at the time agreed upon;
and of the failure of said railway company in other respects also to carry out the
terms of the agreement of date the thirtieth of' June last, and I have served a copy
hereof upon the said railway compaiy for signification horeof, speaking as afore-
said.

Thus done and protested ut the city of Quebec, on the date first written ; and I
have signed these presents, which are of record in my office, under No. two thousand
seven hundred and forty-three, in truth and testimony of the premises.

(Signed,) "J. G. COUTURE,"
"N. P."-

A true copy of the original remaining of record in my ofice. Six wordsstruck
off are null.

(Signed,) J. G. COUTURE,
N. P.

EXI1BIT No. 76.

On this twenty-fourth day of' December, eighteen lindred and eighty-six,
at the instance and request of' the Baie (les Chaleurs Railway Company, a body
politic and corporate having its principal place of business at the City of Quebec,
in the Province of Quebec.
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1, William McLennan, the undersigned Notary Public for the Province of Que-
bec, residing in the City of Montreal,

Proceeded to the usual place of residence in the said City of Montreal of George
B. Burland, Esquire.

Where being and speaking to the said Mr. Burland in person, I declared,
That by an indenture dated the thirtieth of June last, deposited in the office of

the undersigned Notary on the fifth of July last between the Baie des Chaleurs Rail-
way Company; Charles Newhouse Armstrong, McDonald, O'Brien & Co., Roderick
L. McDonald and the said George B. Burland;

As to certain works to be done by the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., in the
construction of twenty miles of the railway of the said Railway Company; it was
inter alla agreed, that on or about the fifteenth day of August, then next and now
last, Mr. A. L. Light, the Engineer of said Railway Company, should make an esti-
mate of the work up to that time done by the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., in
execution of their contract and of the woik remaining to be done by them to com-
plete the same, and in the event of such estimates at the rate mentioned in the
contract between the said Charles N. Armstrong and the said McDonald, O'Brien &
Co. being less than the amount of the subsidies transferred by said indenture to
the said George B. Burland, the latter would be bound at the request of the said
MeDonald, O'Brien & Co. to retransfer to the said Railway Company whatever may
-emain of the said subsidies after deduction therefrom :

1. Of the amount estimated by the said A. L. Light to be the value at the prices
nentioned in the contract between the said Charles N. Armstrong and McDonald,

O'Brien & Co. of the work done and to be done by the said McDonald, O'Brien &
Co. to complete their contract.

2. Of the sum of forøy thousand dollars, to provide for certain payments to H.
Noel.

3. Of the sum of thirty-three thousand dollars.
That the said A. L. Light, has made au estimate of the work done and to be

done by the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., as on the fifteenth of August last a copy
of which has previous hereto been delivered to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co.
and the original whereof I the said Notary exhibited to said Mr. Burland, by which
it appears that the work done amounted to the sum of $36,223.80 and the work to
be done to the sum of $222,171.82 forming a total sum of two hundred and fifty-
oight thousand three hundred and ninety-five dollars and sixty two cents, to which
if the sums of forty thousand dollars and thirty-three thousand dollars are added a
grand total is arrived at of three hundred and thirty-one thousand three hundred
and ninety-tive dollars and sixty-two cents.

That the subsidies transterred by the said indenture to the said George B. Bur-
land amount to three hundred and seventy thousand dollars, an amount in excess of
the last mentioned sum.

That the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. have been requested to re-transfer to
the said railway company whatever may remain of the said subsidies after deduc-
tion of the said sum of three hundred and thirty-one thousand three hundred and
ninety-five dollars and sixty-two cents, but have neglected or refused to do so.

That the refusal or neglect of the said McDonald. O'Brien & Co. to make such
-:ransfer does not in any way relieve the said Mr. Burland as trustee, from the
obligation to transfer the said balance.

Wherefore, I, the said notary, at the request aforesaid and speaking as aforesaid,
do hereby demand of and require the said George B. Burland to re-transfer to the
said railway company the remainder of the subsidies transferred 'y the said inden-
ture to him after deducting therefrom the said sum of three hundred and thirty-one
thousand thrce hundred and ninety-five dollars and sixty-two cents.

To all of which I received for answer,
4 As soon as McDonald, O'Brien & Co. instruet me I will do so, according to our

agreement."
Which answer on being requested to sign the said Mr. Burland refused to sign.
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Which answer being unsatisfactory, I the said notary have pr-otested, and do by
these presents nost solemnly protest against the said George B. Burland for ail loss
and damage which the said railway company may suffer in consequence.

And I served a copy hereof upon the said George B. Burland speaking as afore-
said.

Thus donc and protested at the city of Montreal, and I have signed these pre-
sents which are of record in my office under the number two thousand eight hundred
and twenty-fou". In truth and testimony of the premises.

(Signed),
WILLIAM McLENNAN, N.P.

A truc copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office.
(Signed),

WILLIAM McLENNAN, N.P.

(Translationi.)
EXHIBIT No. 77.

By agreement of 30th June, 1886, the Baie des Chaleurs RailwayCo., of the tirst
part, C. N. Armstrong, of tlie second part, McDonald, O'Brien & Co., of' the third part,

. L. McDonald of the fourth part, and G. B. Burland of the fifth, after having
declared that the company had obtained certain subsidies from Federal and Local
Governments; that it had contracted with Mr. Arnstrong for the construction of the
railway; that Mir. Armstrong had contracted with Messrs. McDonald, O'Brien & Co.
for the construction of a portion of the line; tbat Mr. Arnstrong had already trans-
ferred to his sub-contractors as security for payment MO00,000 of Federal subsidy
and $70,000 of Provincial subsidy, made the followingagreenents with each other :-

First.-The said Railway Company doth by these presents assign, transfer and
make over unto the fifth party thereof accepting in trust for the purposes therein-
after mentioned: 1. The said sum of thice hundred thousand dollars payable to
the said Railway Company under the contract between H1er Majesty Queen Victoria
and said Ruilway Company of date the seventh of November last 1886.

2. The subsidy of seventy thousand dollars granted by the Govenrnent of the
Province of Quebec in aid of the said twentymiles of Railway, and equivalent and
thirty-five cents per acre to the subsidy of two hundred thousand acres of land to
which the Railway Company is entitled under the Act 45 Victoria, Chap. 23. And
the said Railway Compiany hatl sinultareously with the execution hereof made
and delivered to the fifth party. Powers of Attorney, irrevocable as regards said
Railway Company until the completion of the contract for the said twenty miles of
railway, to recover and receive these subsidies in the name of the said Railway
Company, from the Governments of the Dominion of Canada, and of the Province
of Quebec, and in the name of the said Railway Compaty, good and sufficient to
give and giant for the same, and the said Railway Company agrees on the demand
of the fifth party, to execute such further transfers of the said subsidies as may be
necessary fully to vest the same in the said iifth party and to pass such further
resolutions as may be necessery to avail themselves of money payments of thirty-
five cents per acre in lieu of the lands granted by the Piovince of Quebec in aid of
said portion of Railway:-

Second.-On or about the fifteenth day of August next, Mr. A. L. Light, the
Engineer ot said Railway Company, shall make an estimate of the work up to that
time done by the third parties in execution of their contraet and of the work remain-
ing to be donc by them to complete the same, and in the event of such estimate at
the rate mentioned in the contract between the second and third parties being less
than the amount of subsidies hereby transferred to the fifth party, the latter shall
be bound at the request of the third parties to retransfer to the Railway Company
whatever may remain of the said subsidies after deduction therefrom :-1. Of the
amournt estimated by the said A. L. Light to bc the value at the prices mentioned
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in the contract between the second and third parties of the work done and to be
done by the third parties to complete their contract ; and, 2. Of the sum of forty
thousand dollars to provide for the repayment of the five instalments of eight
thousand each, which shall have been paid to H. Noel, as hereinaftor stipulated:-
3. Of a sum of thirty-three thousand dollars.

About the end of October last Mr. Light made an estimate by which it appeared
that the works would not absorb all the subsidies transferred and that there should
reinain after payment for the works, a sum of above $30,000, and this sum it appears
should be retuined to Mr. Armstrong.

Two protests, dated second and twenty-fburth December, were made by the
company, requiring.Mr. Burland to accept Mr. Light's estimate and to pay the
balance of the subsidv.

A couinter prot~est was made by the sub-contractors on the twenty-first of
iDecember, by which they say that the estimate was not made by Mr. Light, that it
is irregular and incomplete, does not cover all the works and that the whole subsidies
are not sufficient to pay the cot of these works.

Mr. Burland refuses to pay because the demand is not made to him by the sub-

A cheque of the Federal Government for about $40,000 has been issued, payable
to the order of the company and is now deposited in the Quebec Bank.

Mr. Armstrong, referring to Mr. Light's report, demands that the company
should pay him this amount and adds that the clause in the contract by which Mr.
Burland should pay the balance at the demand of the sub-contractors is a clerical
error and that this clause should have said that this payment should be made on Mr.
Armstrong's demand.

I an asked, under these circumstances, what the company should do ? I am of
opinion:

lst. That the clause in the agreenent by which the return of the balance of the
sub>idies should be made on the demand of the sub-contractors cannot, at least in
the absence of positive proof, be considered to be a clorical error.

2nl. That this proof, very difficult to make, would be, even if made, probably
vendered uscless by the other stipulations of the agreement, that the transfer by the
company is absolute and that the powers of attorney given by it are declared to be
irrevocable uintil the completion of the works.

3rd. That the refusal ofMr. Burland is strictly within the limits of the trust with
whivh lie has been invested.

4th. That the company cannot intervone and Lliat it wvould not be opportune or
legal for it to endorse the choque in favour of Mr. Arnstrong. It could not do it
without violating its contract and its officers wWid be placed iii a very difficult
position.

5th. That under these circumstances, and for the present, it should hold back,
loave the cheque where it is and wait to adopt later on a line of conduct which would
be dictated bv what the interested parties themselves nay do.

(Signed), JOS. G. BOSSE.
QUEBEC, 7th February, 1887.

EXHIBIT No. 78.
From Quebec, 12.

" FEB. 12, 1887.
'To C. N. ARMSTRONG,

"Place d'Armes Hill.
"Sub-contractors returning Montreal; nothing done ; they will see you. Amount

oank will be placed to credit trustee. I leave for country Monday.

" THEODORE RORITAILLE."
357

54 Victoria. Appenidix (No. 2A.) A. 1891



Appendix (No. 2A.)

EXHIBIT No. 79.

On this fourteenth day of February one thousand eight hundred and eighty
seven:

At the request of Charles Newhouse Armstrong, of the city of Montreal, con-
tractor.

I, William McLennan, the undersigned Public Notary for the Province of
Quebee, residing at the said city of Montreal.

Personally went to the usual place of business in the said city of Montreal of
George B. Burland, Manufacturer, where being and speaiking to a grown person I
declared:-

That by an indenture dated the thirtieth day ofJune last and deposited in tho
office of Mtre W. de M. Marler, Notary, on the fifth of July then following. between
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, the said Requerant, McDoiiald, O'Brien &
Company, Roderick L. McDonald and the said George B. Burland the whole of
which is well known to the said George B. Burland and wheieby inter alia
the said George B. Burland was appointed the trustee to hold certain moneys,
namely, the sum of three hundred and seventy thousand dollars tor the benefit of
the said railway company and the contractor, namely, the said Requerant and the
sub-contractors as thercin set forth; that the estimate agreed upon thercin was duly
made by the engineer of said company, whereby it appears that the works done by
the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. on the fifteenth of August last amounted to the
sum of thirty six thousand two hundred and twenty-three dollars and eighty cents
and the wor'k remaining to be done to the sum of two hundred and twenty-two
thousand one hundred and seventy-one dollars and eighty-two cents which amounts
(with the sum of seventy-three thousand dollars which it was agreed Mr. Burland
should retain) compose a grand total of three hundred and thirty-one thousand four
hundred and five dollars and sixty-two cents and that according to the said agree-
ment the said Mr. Burland obliged hinself to pay over the difference between this
last mentioned sum and the amount ieceived by him, namely, a sun of thirty-eight
thousand six hundred and four dollars and thirty-eight cents to the said Railway
Company.

And further that such Requerant and the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. have
not agreed as to the disposition of said balance and the said Mr. Burtland has fre-
quently promised iot to pay over any noneys until such differences were adjusted.

That the said Requerant has been informed that a large sum of money has been
remitted by the said company to the said George B. Burland as such trustee.

Wherefore, 1, the said Notamà at the request aforesaid and speaking as afore-
maid do hereby notify the said George B. Burland that the sum of thirty-eight
thousand six hundred and four dollars and thirty-eight cents is due, owing and
payable to the said Requerant, and I do hereby require him not to dispossess himself
of or anly part with the said sum out of tho moneys received or to be received by him
from said company under pain of being personally held liable and responsible for all
costs, losses, damages, injuries and hurts already or which may hereatter be suffered
or received by said Requerant in consequence.

For atl of which I did and do most solemnly protest.
And I served an authentie copy of these presents upon the said George B.

Burland spoaking as aforesaid.
Thus donc and protested at Montreal aforesaid and I have signed these piesents

which romain of record in my office under No. two thousand nine hundred and
eleven in truth and testiinony of the premises.

(Signed) WILLIAM McLENNAN, N.P.

A true copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office.

WILLIAM McLENNAN, N.P.(Signed)
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EXHIBIT No. 80.

Before William de M. Marler, the undersigned Public Notary for the Province of
Quiebec, residing at the city of Montreal, appeared Charles N. Armstrong, of the
said city of Montreal, railway contractor ; hereinafter called the " contractor " of
the first part.

And McDonald. O'Brien & Co., railwgy contractors, having their place of business
at Metapedia, in the said Province, composed of Roderick L. McDonald, of Pugwash,
in the Province of Nova Scotia ; Michael J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, in Ontario; James
Rogers of tho city of Montreal, and George A. Taylor, of'Bi ockville, in Ontario, as the
co-partners of said tii m, hereinafter called the "sub-contractors," and herein acting
by the said Roderick L. McDonald, Michael J. O'Brien and George A. Taylor, of
the second part, who declared unto the said Notary:

That whereas by a contract and agreement executed before W. B. S. Reddy,
Notary, on the ninth day of June last, the sub-contraetors agreed and obliged them-
-elves to do certain works for the said contractor on the Baie des Chaleurs Railway
tor the prices and considerations therein exp:essed.

And whercas the partio have agreed 10 leave to arbitration the settlement of
tle value of the works done by the said sub-contractors upon the said railway.

Now these presents witness and the parties have agreed as follows:-
I. Denis Leduc, the engincer of the contractor and Zaecheus Fowler are hereby

tamed by the parties hereto as thoir respective arbitrators to determine:-

1. The value of the works donc by the said sub-contractor upon the said railway
i. execution of the said contract at the prices mentioned in the schedule forming
part of the said coitract.

2. What additional or extra works donc by the said sub-contractors upon the
said railway should be paid for by the said contractor and the value thereof.

3. What sum in addition to the contract price should be paid the sub-contractors
for the masonry at Gagne's Mill.

Il. l case the said two engineers are unable to agree they shall choose a third
arbitrator.

Aid the parties hereto bind and oblige themselves to abide by the decision of
the said Me.srs Leduc and Fowler or the majority of the three arbitrators without
having any right to appeal from sucli decision oii any ground whatsoever.

III. The arbitrators shall not be bound to follow the forms prescribed for pro-
cedure before the court, but shall proinounce as amiables compositeurs according to
equity having such regard to the rules of law as they may thinlc proper; but no
claim for danages arising out of said contraet or the breaeh of the same by either
party or in contection with said contract shall be allowed to either party, the parties
hîereto expressly waiving such claims in consideration of this submission.

IV. The arbitrators shall rentder their decision within two weeks froin this date.
The report shall be made in duplicate and the parties waive the signitication of such
:tward or th atnouncement of the (ecision to then within the specified delay. The
arbitrators being bound only to deliver withii said period of two weeks one copy of
said award to the contractor, by leaving the same addressed Io him at his office in
Montreal, and the other to the sub-contractors, by Ieaving the same addressed to them
at the Balmoral Hotel in this city.

V. When the value of the works thus donc by the sub-ceontractors for the
contractor has been determined, the balance found to be (lue thein shall be paid to
the said sub-contractors as follows:-

1. The sub-contractors shall be entitled to receive on account the moneys now
actually in the hands of George B. Burland, of the city of Montreal, Esquire, who
is hereby authorized by the said Charles N. Armstrong to pay the saine over to them
as soon as the rel)ort of the arbitrators is made.

2. The sub-contractors shall also be entitled to receive, and shall be paid the
sum of thirty thousand dollar, now due by the Quebec Government, and for which
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an Order in Council has been passed, or so much of said sum as may be necessary
to make up the amount due the sub-contractors after deduction of the sums in the
hands of Mr. Burland.

3. And should there be still a deficiency, the same shall be paid out of tbe first
moneys received on account of the fifth instalment of the Dominion Government
subsidy of sixty thousand dollars.

VI. The remainder of the subsidies transferred to and held by Mr. Burland, and
not yet recived from the Governments of the Dominion of Canada and the Province
of Quebec (except the said Quebec subsidy of thirty thousand dollars) shall be
transferred to a trustee selected by the contractor and approved of by the sub-
contractors; and such trusteo shall be bound to make the payments to the sub-
contractors as provided in the foregoing clause. The said transfer to be made by
Mr. Burland to sucb new trustee within five days after the award of the arbitrators
bas een executed and delivered as above provided. The new trustee to be naned
by the conttactor- within three days after the delivery of the arbitrators' report.
The sub-contractors agree to accept as trustee the manager ofany chartered bank in
the Province of Quebec or in the city of Ottawa or any such bank.

And should the said contractor fail to name his trustee within said period of
three days, the said George B. Burland shall continue to be trustee, and shall be
bound to make the payments to the sub-contractors in the mannerstated in Clau.seV.

VII. Upon the report of the said arbitrators being made and payment made to
the sub-contractois of the moneys in the hand of the said G. B. Burland, the said
contract of date the ninth of June last, shall be ipso facto cancelled as regards the
wvo.k yet to be performed thereunder, und the contractor be entitled to take
possession of the works.

It was thus agreed upon between the said parties hereto under the reserve by
them respectively maide of ail their rights and actions, to none of which they intend
to renounce by the declirations herein contained, but agreed that in the event of
the decision of the arbitrators being made as above provided such decision shall
operate as a tinal settlement of ail claims and pretensions of either party against
the other arising out of said contract.

WHEREOF Act executed at the city of Moitrcal, on the twenty-sixth day of
March, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-seven, and of record in the office of
said Mtre. Marier under No. Twelve thousand nine hundred and eighty-nine, and
the parties after due reading hereof signed in presence of said notary.

(Signed) C. N. ARMSTRONG,
" R. L. M)ONALiD,

M. J. O'BRIEN,
G. A. TAYLOR,
W. de M. MARLER, N.P.

A true copy of the original hereof remaining of record in my office. Thee
marginal notes are good; two words erased are null.

(Signed) W. DE M. MARLER.

360

54 Victoria. A. 1891



54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2&.)

EXHIBIT No. 81.

" MONTREAL, 4th April, 1887.

"C. N. ARMSTRONG, sq.,
" Place d'Armes Hill.

"SIR, - The undersigned arbitrators appointed by agreement made on March
26th, 1887, to value the work donc by McDonald, O'Brien & Co., on Baie des Chaleurs
Railway, have valued said work and established the total amount thereof to be two
hundred and fifty-one thousand five hundred and ten dollars ($251,510.00).

"D. LEDUC,
"Z. J. FOWLER."

EJXHIBIT No. 82.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

DR. G. B. Burland, in trust. CR.

To Cash, McD. O'Brien & Co.'
do do .
do do
do C. N. Arnstrong...
do Que. Bank per \oel.
do McD. O'Brien & Co.
(10 Quebec Bank.......
do McD. O'Brieti & Co-
do do
dIo Quebec Bank.

do MeD. O'Brien & Co.
do do..
do (10
do do
do G. B. B. foradvances.

To Discouuit.......... . ....

$ ets.

10,000 00
22,000 00
18,000 00
8,000 0)
8,000 00

42,864 88
8,000 00

35,600 00
62,001 39
8,000 0)

4,000 00
12,000 00
11,217 00)
30,348 35

5,574 22
25 00

1886.

Sept. 29iBy Subsidy...... .........
Nov. 10 do
D ec. 1 do ...... ..... ....

1887.

Jan. 20 By Quebec subsidy
Feb. 151 do Subsidy. ...... . . . ....
July 4 (o do .. .. .....

285,630 84
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1886.

July
Aug.
Sept.

do
Oct.

d(1
Nov.
do

Dec.
do

35
1

15

18

1887.

Jan. 25

Feb. 15
April 13
.lune 4
Doec. 31

8 ets.

60,000 00
6,0,000 0>
60,000 00

35,000 00
40,000 00
30,630 84

285,630 84
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EXHIBIT No. 83.

1ST TWENTY MILEs of Baie des Chaleurs Railway, McDonald, O'Brien & Co. Con-
tract, subsidies transferred to them or to their Trustee by the Railway Coi
pany as security:-

Dominion Govt. grant of $300,000, payable ii five
instalments, $60,000 ea................................. $ 300,000

Quebec Govt. grant of 10,000 acres of land per mile,
one half payable in cash, at 70c per acre......... 70,000

$ 370,000

CONTRACTORS to complete roadbed, fencing, track and ballasting, inelnding the
purchase of ties and rails, all at sehedule rates:-

Monies received by contractors on a/c of work-
1st instalment from Dom. Govt . ........................... s 60,000
2nd do (10 . ......................... ., o,000
3:d do do .............................. 60,000
4th do (in part)do .............................. 40,000
Quebec subsidy, 1st ten miles............................... 35,000

do 2nd do on a c ....................... 30,000
Out of 5th instalment, Dom. Govt......................... 9,000

Total amt. reed.............. ....... 294,000

Cash paid over to Armstrong and Riopel on signing
contract. ...... .................. ......... ................ $ 5,000

do (10 on transfer
of bubsidy......... ................. ...................... 5,000

Cash paid to Aimst rong out o1l:st )om. instablment .... 8,000
do Quebec Bank do do .... 8,000
do do 2nd do .... 8.000
(10 do 3rd do . 8,000

Total paid by contraetors..................$ 42,000

Total amount of contractors' estinhate of work donc
on lst twenty miles.,.... ..................... ....... 8 252.000

Amount advaneed by contractors out of'subsidies..... 42,000

Total recd. by contractors out of subsidies............. $ 294,000
do amount subsidies transferred........ ...... ........ 370,000

Balance of subsidies in cash retranstd to coy., land
subsidy also retransferred to conipany ............ $ 76,000

Add amount advanced by contractors ....... ........... 42,000

Total cash subsidy in excess of contractors' est ....... $ 118,000

Total amount of company's est. to complete McD.,
O'B. & Co.'s contract .................................... $ 258,000
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Add to pay to Quebec Bank out of each Dom.
Govt. instalment, $8,000......... .................... 40,000

Add amount advanced ....................................... 10.000
do do paid C. N. A. out of st Dom. payment.. 8,000

$ 316,000
Additional for rolling stock.................................. 15,000

$ 331,000

Subsidies tr'ansfd................................. .............. $ 370,000
Amt. advaiiced by company to be retransferred ...... 39,000

EXHIBIT No. 84.

SHORTHAND writer's notes of stiitements by Hon. FRANÇoIS LANGELIER, Q.C., on
Tuesday, 25th August, 1891.

The Hon. FRANÇOIS LANGELIER-I assert, and my assertion is not a mere idle one,
but is borne out by a statutory declaration, which can be made good on oath by the witness,
that $ 118,000 granted dirtctty to the conpany was embezzled.

Hon. Mr. RoBITAILLE-By the company?
Hon. FRANÇois LANGELIER-I go further. Crininal proceedings were threatened

against the comnpany, and they had to pay up under a threat of crininal proceedings.
Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE ienied the allegations, and expressed the hope that the

mnatter will be fully investigatcd.
After further discussion,
The Hon. Mr. TAssÉ-If I understand the case, Mr. Langelier takes the re-

sponsibility of making a charge of embezzlement against the company to the extent
ot $118,000.

Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-My statmonent is in the statutory deehiration which is
filed.

Hon. Mr. ROBITAILLE-Thit is your statement, and you are responsible for it.
Hon. Mir. LANGELIER-I say my statement is borne out by the statement that

$118.000 was embezZled or misapplied-call it what you like.
On the proposal of the Hon. Mr. Tassé, the statement was read to the Comimittee.
The Hon. Mr. RoB[TAILE-I heurd in thatt document noihing about vriminal

proceedings. I suppose that Mr. Langelier would have no objection to withdrawing
his statement.

lion. Mr. LANGELIER-1 did not may the threat of crirninal p.oceedings Was
made in the documents. I say that criminal proceedings were threatened against
the old proprietors.

After further discussion,
An Hlonourable Member-Do you make the charge ?
The Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-I make the charge from the infrnmation that I

have that if you bring hero Mr. Tc.ylor and the other gentlemen it will be proved
that $118,0t'0 of Federal subsidy were misapplied or enbezzled-cali it whtt vou like.

The Hon. Mr. OGILVIE-The hon. gentleman made the statement that they had
embezzled*118,000, and ho was prepared to prove that by statutory declaration. I
ask the Chairman te say he said that.

The Hon. Mr. LANGELIER-1 said I mado such a statement, and my statement is
bo:·ne out by statutory declaration.
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EXHIBIT No. 85.

MEMORANDUM Of Henry Macfarlano, showing bubsidles assigned and applicable to
payment'of work performod by him upon the first 60 miles of the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway which he contracted to conplete:

Dominion subsidy in respect to first 40 miles assigned.. $ 62,000
Dominion subsidy in respect of 40th-60th mile section

($6,400 per m ile).............................. ............... 128,000
Quebec subsidy in respect of 40th-60th mile section

($3,500 per m ile) ....................................... ..... 70,000

$260,000
Quebec subsidy in respect of 40th-60th mile section.

Not assigned as agreed ................. ................... 70,000

8330,000

EXIHIBIT No. 86.

Before William de M. Marler, the undersigned Public Notary for the Province
of Quebec, residing at the City of Montreal, appeared Charles N. Armstrong, of the
said City of Monitreal, Railway Contractor, of the first part.

The commercial lirm of McDonald, O'Brien & Co., railway con tractors, having
their place of business at Metapedia, in the said Province, composed of Roderick L.
McDonald, of Pugwash, in Nova Scotia; Michael J. O'Brien, of Renfrew, in Ontario;
James Rogers, of the City of Montreal; and George A. Taylor, of Brockville, in
Ontario, as the members of the said firm, herein acting by Roderick L. McDonald,
Michael J. O'Brien and James Rogers, of the second part; George B. Burland, of
the said City of Montreal, Esquire, of the third part, and J. Murray Smith, of the
said City of Montreal, Batik Manager, of the fburth part.

Who declared unto the said notary as follows:
Whereas by an Indenture bearing date the thirtieth day of' June last, 1SS6,

deposited in the office of the undersigned notary on the fifth day of July last, between
the Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, the s:aid Chairles N. Arnstrong, the com-
mercial firm of McDonald, O'Brien & Co., Roderick L. McDonald, and the said George
B. Burland, the said railway company tranîsferred unto the said George B. Burland,
as trustee: 1. The sum of three hundred thouisand dollirs payable to the said railway
company, under the contract between Her Majesty Queei Victoria and said railway
company, of date the seventh of November, eighteen hundred and eighty-five, for
the construction of the twenty miles of the said railway, eastwards from Metapedia
towards Paspebiac: 2. The subsidy of seventy thousand dollars granted by the
Government of the Province of Quebec in aid of the said twenty miles of railway.

And whereas the primary objeet of the said Indenture and the transfer thetein
contained was for the purpose of securing payment to the said McDonald, O'Brien
& Co. of the amount which would beconie due and payable to thein under the contract
and agreement made between the said Charles N. Armstrong and the said McDonald.
O'Brien & Co., passed before W. B. S. Reddy, notary, on the ninth day of June last,

And whereas the said George B. Burland, as such trustee, has reeived fron the
Dominion Government, on account of the said subsidy of three hundrM thousand
dollars the sum of two hundred and twenty thousand dollars, and from the Quebeef
Government on account of the said subsidy of seventy thousand dollars, the sun o
thirty-five thousand dollars, forming a total receipt of two hundred and tifty-five
thousand dollars, and has paid out in accordance with the provisions of the said
indenture, to the said McDor.ald, O'Brien & Co., the sum of six thousand dollars on
account of the sum of ten thousand dollars payable to themn by the ;aid Charles N.
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Armstrong, under the agreement between them before said Mtre. Reddy, on the
ninth of June last, under No. 505 of his minutes. 2. To the said McDonald, O'Brien
& Co., on account of their contract works, the sum of two hundred and forty
thousand nine hundred and seventy-five dollars, including the sum of twenty-four
thousand dollars payable under said Indenture to H. Noel, the manager of the
Quebec Bank at Ottawa. 3. To said Charles N. Armstrong the sum of eighty thou-
sand dollars. 4. For bank charges on a cheque of forty thousand dollars twenty-
five dollars, making a total expenditure of two hundred and fifty-five thousand
dollars.

And whereas by a deed of submission to arbitrators, passed befoie the under-
signed notary, on the twenty-sixth ofMarch last, 1887, thesaid Charles N. Armstrong
and McDonald, O'Brien & Co. submitted to arbitration tne amount which the said
McDonald, O'Brien & Co. were entitled to.receive as the value of the work donc by
them for the said Charles N. Armstrong on the said railway, and the said arbitrators
have iendered their award in the manner provided by the said deed of submission,
and have fixed the sum of two hundred and ffty-two thousand and ten dollars as the
total value of the works done by the said MeDonald, O'Brien & Co. for the said
Charles N. Armstrong on the said line of railway.

And whereas the amount of the actual indebtedness of the said Charles N.
Arnistrong to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., at the present time, after deducting
the amouints received by the latter on account, has been fixed and determined by
them in accordance with the terms of the agreement between the said railway corn-
pany, the said Charles N. Armstrong, the said MeDonald, O'Brien & Co., and the
said George B. Burland, executed before the undersigned notary on the fourth day
of April instant, at the sum of thirty-nine thousand and thirty-five dollars, as set
forth in the statement hereunto annexed signed for identification by the parties.

And whereas the said George B. Burland, in accordance with the directions
contained in the last-mentioned agreement, of date the fourth of April instant, is
ready and willing to assign and transfer to the said J. Murray Smith, as the trustee
nanied by the said Charles N. Armstrong to receive the same, the remainder of the
subsidies transferred to and held by the said George B. Burlanid under the provisions
of the said Indenture and not yet received froni the Goveriinients of the Province of
Quebec and of the Dominion ofCanada, except always the sum of thirty thousand
dollars, part of the subsidy of the Quebec Government, and for which an Order
in Council has been passed, the whole upon the conditions expressed in the said deed
of subnission.

Now these presents and 1, the said notary, witness that for the considerations
above expressed, and under and in virtue of the directions and conditions of the said
deed of subnission to arbitrators and of the said agreemeiit of date the fourth of
April instant, ceorfirming said submnission, the parties hereto have covenaited and
agreed as follows:-

First -The said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. acknowledge to have received from
the said Charles N. Armstrong, by the ands of the said George B. Burland, before
the execution hereof, the sum of two hundred and forty-six thousand nine hundred
and seventy-five dollars on account of the indebtedness to them of the said Charles
N. Armstrong; and the contract executed between the said McDonald, O'Brien &
Co. and the said Charles N. Armstrong, of date the ninth of June lamt, is cancelled
as regards the remainingwork yet to be performed under said contract, and the said
Charles N. Armstrong is entitled to take possession of the works forthwith.

Second.-The sum of thirty thousand dollars, part of the Quebec Government
subsidy, and for wbich an Order in Council has been passed, shall, when received by
the said George B. Burland, be paid to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. in further
payment of the indebtedness to them of the said Charles N. Armstrong.

Third.-And the said George B. Burland, at the request of the said Charles N.
Armstrong and McDonald O'Brien & Co., and in compliance with the directions con-
tained in said deed of submission and subsequent agreement of the fourth of April
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instant, doth hereby assign, transfer and make over, without any warranty or gua-
rantee of any kind, except as to his own acts and deeds, unto the said J. Murray
Smith, thereof accepting in trust for the purposes hereinafter set forth :

1. The unpaid portion of the said Dominion subsidy of three hundred thousand
dollars, to wit, twenty thousand dollars on account of the fourth instalment of sixty
thousand dollars and the whole of the fifth instalment of sixty thousand dollars.

2. The sun of five thousand dollars, being the unpaid portion over the sum of
thirty thousand for which an Order in Council has been passed, of the Quebec sub-
sidy of seventy thousand dollars.

To have and to hold the same unto the said J. Murray Smith, in trust for the
purposes fillowing, namely:-

1. Out of the first monies received by hin on account of the tifth instalment of
the Dominion Government subsidy of sixty tnousand dollars, and when the same has
been actually received by him, to pay to t e said McDonald, O'Brien & Co. the sum
of nine thousand and thirty-five dollars, being the entire balance of the indebtediess of
the said Charles N. Armtronmg to the said McDonald, O'Brien & Co., either for work
done by the latter for him in execution of their contract with him or for additional
work not covered by said contract, or for the indebtedness of said Armstrong to them
under the said agreement of date the ninth July last, or for any other cause or reason
ut this date.

2. To pay to the said Charles N. Armstrong the unpaid portion of the fourth
instalment of the Dominion Government subsidy and the balance of the Quebec
subsidy, aud tho remainder of' the fifth iinstalment of the Dominion Government
subsidy, as and wheni the same are respectively received by him and as the same are
actually received.

Fourth.-And in consideration of the premises, the said Charles N. Armstrong
and McDonald, O'Brien & Co. do release and discharge the said George B. Burland as
such trustee of and fromn all further responsibility or accountability to them for any
matter arising out of said Indenture and the documents hereinbefore referred to. save
and except always the proper application, under the terms hereof, of the sum of thirty
thousand dollars, which is to be paid over by him when received to the said McDonald,
O'Brien & Co., under the terms hereof.

WHEREOF ACTE executed at the City of Montreal, on the twelfth day of April,
one thousand eight hundred and eighty-seven, and of record in the office of said
Mtre. Marler, under number thirteen thousand and twenty-five, and after due reading
hereof, the parties sign in presence of said Notary.

(Signed) 0. N. ARMSTRONG.
R. L. McDONALD.
J A MES ROGERS.
GEORGE A. TAYLOR.
J. MURRAY SMITI.
G. B. BURLAND.
W. DE M. MARLER, N.P.

A true copy of tho original hereof remaining of record in my office. Sixteen
words erased are nuill. One marginal note is good.

(Signed) W. DE M. MARLER.

EXHIBIT No. 87.

Copy of No. 42307.
OTTAWA, 28th Jany., 1887.

Si,-I instructed Mr. Ridout to inspect the first 20 miles of the Baie des
Chaleurs Railway, and he did so on the 14th instant, but that owing to the groat
depth of snow it was accomplished with difflculty, and to sone extent imperfectly.
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The estiniated cost of the work is set down at............ $428,000
He estimates the cost of the work remaining to be

done at.................. ...................................... 106,000

Value of work done on above basis............... ... ....... $322,000

Upon this basis there appears to be within about $20,000 of 4 of the work
done.

The subsidy applicable to this section is. ......... $300,000
4 of which would be ...... . ......... ........... ..... $240,000
tess value of work done to complete -i of the

wor-k ...... ..... ........ ............... 20,000

$220,000

The Chief Accountant could best inform you of the amount of subsidy paid up
to this date upon this section.

I may here mention that it is said by the Quebec Government Inspecting
Engineer, (Mr. A. L. Light), that upon the section between the 20th and 30th
miles about $84,000 worth of work has been executed-it being nearly ready to
receive the track.

I have the honour to be
Your. obt servt

(Signed.) COLLINGWOOD SCHRIEBER.

EXHIBIT No. 88.

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC' SUPERIOR COURT.District of Montreal.
THE BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY COMPANY,

Plaintiff,
vs.

HENRY MACFARLANE ET AL,
Defendants.

The humble petition of the plaiibiff in this case respectfully sets forth that
which follows -

The defendants, Riddell and Watson, are in possession of the plaintiff's road,
which is the subject of litigation in their capacity as curators of the property of the
defendant Macfarlane.

The defendants have often admitted that Macf'arlane's contract with Armstrong
recounted in the declaration of the present case for the completion of the tirst forty
miles of road, and for the construction of the twenty miles which follow, has not been
entirely executed; they have admitted that they find it impossible to finish their
contract, and that they have not the necessary funds to make the repairsrequired to
protect the work done, and certainly the contract has not been terminated and the
defendants have not any resource to terminate it and to make the repairs required
to protect the work already done.

The defendants, Riddell and Watson, are setting forth a claim upon the road to
the extent of four hundred and seventeen thousand one hundred and forty-two
dollars and twenty-nine cents and interest, as alleged in their pleadings, and they

piretend to have the right of holding the road, of' the rolling material as security
until their re-imbursement of the amount above named.

The deterioration of the road goes on augmenting for want of maintenance, and
the company, the plaintiff, is beconing from day to day subject to damages opposite
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properties bordering on the road and others, in consequence of the default of the
defendant, Macfarlane, to fulfil opposite them the obligations to which ho had been
bound by his contract, notably by the defauilt to maintain fences, ditches and water
courses.

The rolling material is already deteriorated, and a portion is threatened with
ruin.

The road is losing in value every day for want of maintenance and the repairs
are becoming more costly. Two important bridges upon the first sixty miles are
not finished, those over the Rivers Nouvelle and Escuminac and several other bridges
of -loss importance are incompleted. The superstructure of these bridges over the
Rivers Nouvelle and Escuminac has not been built. The foundation works have
been partly made, but through failure to finish these bridges they will becomo
defective and unsuited, in consequence of deterioration, for the use for which they
have been made.

Already a provisional order has been obtained in the present case in order to
make certain of those repairs as appears by the potition and jndgment on it, but the
defendants, notwithstanding such judgment, have not been willing to allow such
repairs to be made.

The company's charter aut' orizes only the construction of that portion of its
road which the said company shall have built in 1892, and the said company shail
lose the profit from its charter for every portion of its road which will not have
been built within the prescribed delay.

If the company do not continue the construction of its road, the said company
is exposed to the loss of the subsidies which have been voted by the Parliament of
Canada and the Legislature of the Province of Quebec.

In order to avoid the loss of the subsidies, the company bound itself to the
Government of the Province of Quebec to buildi without delay forty miles of road,
and is actually occupied with the said works, but without the advantage of the said
sixty miles of road, the said company will find it impossible to do that.

The company, plaintiff, has already paid off, and is actually paying otr, the
wages of workmen and other privileged debts on the road contracted by Maefarlane
at the time of the construction, not that it was personally responsible, but in order
to assure the construction of its road.

It is impossible for the said company to make these repairs and construction of
bridges and construction of a new portion of rond without having the use of the said
road, its rollinig material and construction material, tools, &c.

Such usage of the road, of the rolling material and construction material can be
accorded to the company, the plaintiff, without dispossessing the defendants and
without hindrance to their privilege and right of retention.

The defendants are bound at ali events to keep the pledge, and their default to
dothat which is necessary for the preservation of the pledge authorizes the plaintiff
to make the present demand.

The interest of the parties in the actual case has need of delays which render
impossible an adjudication before next autumn.

An adjudication in the direction of the present petition is in the iitorest of the
parties in the present case.

The company, the plaintiff. is perfectly solvent, and will be ready to pay every
amount which shall be adjudged in favour of the defendants, if nevertheless there be
be such adjudication in their favour against the pretensions of the plaintiff.

In these circumstances the company, the plaintiff, concludes that the temporary
and provisional use of the road, of its rolling and construction material and tools be
accorded to it for the following purposes: a. The repairs of that portion of the
road already partly constructed to wit, the first sixty miles which form the object of
the contract of the defendant, Macfarlane, with the defendant, Armstrong; b. the
completion of that portion of the road ; c. the construction of the rest of the road,
the whole subject to the legal possession of Watson and Riddell, and without preju-
dice to the rights and privileges which they can have, and the nature and extent of
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which shall be determined by the final adjudication in the present case. The whole
with expenses, the awarding of which expenses tlie undersigned demand.

MONTREAL, 4th June, 1891.

LACOSTE, BISAILLON, BROSSEAU & LAJOIE,
Advocates for the Plaintif.

ANGUS M. THOM, of the cit-y of Montreal, secretary-treasurer of the company,
plaintiff, being duly sworn, doth depose and say:

That he bas taken communication of the foregoing petition in this case, praying
for the use and occupation of plaintiff's said railway, as stated therein, and that it is
to his knowledge that the allegations and facts therein contained are true and well
founded.

And deponent had signed.
A. M. THOM.

Sworn and acknowledged before me
at the City of Montreal, this
fourth day of June, 1891.

HENRY FRY,
Commissioner of the Superior Court, District of Montreal.

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC,
District of Montreal.

No. 1636.

SUPERIOR COURT.

The twenty-seventh day of June, eighteen hundred and ninety-one.
Present:-The Hon. Judge Pagnuelo.

The Baie des Chaleurs Railway Company, a body politic and corporate, having
its principal place of business at Quebec, in the District of Quebec,

Plaintiffs.
vs.

Henry Macfarlane, Railway Builder, of the City of Toronto, in the Province of
Ontario, and Charles Newhouse Armstrong, Contractor, of the City of Montreal, in
the District of Montreal, and Alexander F. Riddell, Accountant, and Thomas Wat-
scn, Contractor, both of the City and District of Montreal, in their capacity of joint
curators to the insolvent estate ofthe commercial firni of " H. Macfarlane & Son,"
doing business in the Province of Quebec, consisting of Henry Macfarlane, the
detendant above mentioned, and of George Henry Macfarlane, contractor, of
Toronto,.in the Province of Ontario,

And
Defendants,

The said Company plaintiffs, Petitioners.
We, hie undersigned, Judge of the Superior Court for Lower Canada, having

heard the parties upon the petition presented the 6th Jane instant, by the company
plaintiffs, in order to obtain the temporary and provisional use and occupation of the
railwaiy of the said company, constructed by the defendant Macfarlane and of which
ho haseremaMied in possession until this day by virtue of a clause inserted in the
contract made between the parties for the construction of this road ; also to obtain
the tempotary and provisional use and occupation of the rolling stock, building
materials and tools for the purpose

1. Of repairing the sixty miles of the road already in part constructed by
Maefarlane; 2. Of completing that part of the road and more particularly two
bridges, of which the foindations alone exist; 3. f constructing the remainder of
the road.
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The whole subject to the legal possession of the defendants Watson and Riddell,
curator to the goods abandoned by the defendant Macfarlane insolvent, and without
prejudice to the rights and privileges whieh they can have upon the road and of
which the nature and extent shal be determined by the final adjiudication in this
cause, having taken communication of the writings of the parties, the exhibits aid
prootfs of record, and upon the whole deliberated :

Seeing that by contract between the defendants Armstrong and Macfarlane and
the company plaintiffs, of date the 8th June, 1888, t he defondant Macfarliane agreed
to complete and finish the forty miles of a road of the company plaintiff then in course
of constructionl, and to furnish all the material for construction and rolling stock ;
2. To construct twenty miles of new road in addition to the forty miles, and that it
was agreed among other things that the road thon partially made with all the roll-
ing stock and the twenty miles additional above mentioied should remain in the
possession and under the control of the saidi Macftarlane as additional guarantee until
final pay ment of the whole sum which he would have the right to recover from the
company by virtue of said contract.

Seeing that the said Macfarliane as well by himself as by the curators to the
effects by hin abandoned, bas always been and is now in possession of the said road
by him constructed and of the rolling stock connected therowith, as stipulated in
the said contraet; that on the one hand ho is before this Court claiming against the
company a sum exceeding $400,000, for material by him turnis.hod, and work dono
upon the said road according to the said contract, that this action taken at Que-
bec uînder number 1339, bas been transmitted to Montreal and joined to the present
case for purposesof instruction, that on the other hand, the company plaintitis have
taken the present action to resiliate the said contract for nont-execution by the said
Mactalane, of part of his obligation and demand 1o put themselves in possession
of the rond, and that these 1woactions are contested and still pending.

Considering that the debtor cannot claim the restitution of' the security until
after having entirely paid the debt guaranteed theroby (1975 C. C.) and that the
Judge cannot deprive Muefarlane of the possession ot the said road to doliver it to
the company plaintiffs before acounts have been settled between the parties by a final
judgment in the said actions, and that the company pjaintitfs have paid to Macfar-
fhrlano what they might owe him for the construction of the said r9ad and the rol-
ling stock;

Considering nevertheless that the plaintiffs demand, by their petition, not the
possession but only the tempolary and provisional use of the road,of its rolling stock,
build ing material and tools for certain purposes of repairs and construction, and this
without prejudice to the legal po-session of the doendants and to the rights and
privileges which they can have npon the road, and allogos that the defendants are
not in a position to terminate the contraet and make the bridges in question, that
the i oad is deteriorating as well as the rolling stock, that the plattorm of two.import-
ant bi idges have not been fixed ; that the eharter of the company will expire in
1892, Ilr part of the roaid which will not bc thon constructed; t hat the company-is
exposed to lose the subsidies which have been voted for it by the Gove:nmnîoit
of Canada and by the Legislature of Quiebec; that it is under an engagement towards
the Government (if Quebec to make 40 miles of new road and that it is impossible to
perfoim this work without having the use of the 60 miles ailready constucted, that
it bas alreatdy paid in full the workmen's wages and certain other privileged debis
contracted by Maefarlane; that the defendants are bound to maintain the security
and that their defitult to piovide therefur auithorizes the company plaintifs Io make
the present demand, and that the company plaintiffs are perfectly solvent and in a
position to pay in full the amount which may bu adjudged to the defondant and
that the works which will be performed upon the sixty miles will increase the
value of the security of Macfarlane;

Considering that the comp>any has proved a gi cater interest on its part to com-
plete the 60 miles of roHd undertaken by Macifarlane and to, use these 60 miles in
order to continue the construction of the rond, that the defendants are not in a posi-
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tion to finish the bridges in question, and that they do not draw any profit from the
road in the state in which it now is; that the works which the company are to
undertake will increase greatly the value of the 60 miles constructed by Macfarlane
and that the question raised is to know if it is possible to reconcile the demand now
made by the company with the possesion of the road by Macfarlane; if, in other
words, the court ean grant to the company the temporary use of the road and ofthe
rolling stock tor the purposes indicated without putting in danger the rights which
the stipulated clause of retention in favor of Macfarlaie cau confer upon hini;

Coisideriig that the retention stipulated in favor of Macfarlane confers upon
hini rights: lst, against the company; 2nd, against the creditors of the conpany;
that the pledge of an immoveable confers upon the creditor to whom it is pledged
the right of receiving the fruits of the immovable on condition or imputing them
upon the debt and of retaining the immovable until final payment thereof (Art.
1967 C. C.), but that the privilege only exists in so far as the pledge romains in the
possession of the creditor or of a third person agreed upon between the parties.
(Art. 1970. C. C.)

Considering that with regard to the debtor the possession of tho creditor can
operate either personally or by an agent, and even by the debtor if the creditor makes
him his agent or receiver, and that any agreement between them to that effect is
valid and should be executed; that the Judge called upon to settle the rights of the
parties according to law and equity cau grant to the debtor provisional and tem-
porary use of the thing pledged without prejudice to the rights of the creditor upon
the claim, as against the debtor, and that the partial possession which he may grant
in such case to the debtor should be specified and should constitute for the debtor
only a temporary possession for a special purpose; that besides the possession of the
creditor does not prevent the proprietor from seeing to the preservation of the thing
and from making repairs and new constructions which he may judge suitable; that
the Court cain always intervene to insure to the creditor the benefit ofthe pledge
which is granted to him; that under these circumstances and in consideration of the
facts of the case, and principally the greater interest of the plaintiff in not losing its
charter in part and destroying tho road, and the advantage which Macfarlane will
have from the works which the company declares itself ready to perform, the Court
would be justified in intervening to permit the proprietor to repair and complete the
road as also to make use of it for the purpose of extending it; provided that it only
gives to the company a temporary possession, under reserve of the rights which the
clause of retention can confer upon Macfarlane as against the company, but that in
this case the company could only demand the use ot the road and rolling stock which
are its own property, and cannet on any ground demand the building material and
impleinents of Mactarlane.

AS REGARDS THE CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY.

Considering that the pledge of an immoveable doe.s not confer upon the creditor
any priviloges in the iminoveable itself, but only a right to receive the revenues,
and to retain the imnoveable until payment (Ai t. 1967 and 1975); that it does not
prevent the proprietor from selling the immovable or hypothecating it; that this
subsequent sale or hypothec will rank before the pledge accorded to the creditor, if
it has been registered before the title creating the pledge, that in this case the
creditor's possession will be without effect as against the hypothecary creditors or
the subsequent pirchaser who have registered, that if the pledge bas been registered
before the subsequent sale or hypothecation the creditor to whom the pledgo has
been given could perhaps set up his title against the sub>equent purchaser or hypo-
thecary creditor, but that in every case the possession of the creditor holding the
pledge would add nothing to his rights against the subsequent hypothecary creditor
or purchaser, and that their respective rights should be determined seloly by
priority of registration.

Considering that if the agreement alleged creates in favour of Macfarlane no
privilege upon the railway in question, the law does not confer one upon him, the
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privilege of the builder is only preserved by registratiori accompantied by special
formalities, which Macfai'lane does not allege that he as followed and the right
which would be assur-ed to him in this case would be a privilege upon the greater
value which the construction had given to the immovable, and not a right of enjoy-
ment nor of retention; that the builders' privilege is independent of the possession
of the immovable by the builder, and that the possession which the proprietor
might grant him would add nothing to his privilege;

Considering that in consequence Macfarlane himself, in losing possession of the
road, would not be in a position moire unfavourable thau if ho retained it, in regard
to the purchasers and the hypothecary creditors of the company;

Consideiing that as regards the chirographic creditors of the debtor, the pledgo
of an immovable assuies to the creditor holding the pledge the enjoyment of the
revenues of that immovable, and that the chirographic creditor's of the debtor have
no title to givo then possession of it; that as between two purchasers of a movable,
ho who is in possession would be preferred, that on this ground Macfarlane has an
interest in not being dispossessed of the road which he has built, and of its rolling
stock ;

Consider'ing moreover that the creditor has an absolute right of retention of
the thing given in pledge, even when he doos not derive any benefit therefrom, since
such was the will of the parties. But agaii the plaintiff does not pray for the
dispossession of Macfarlane, the question is to know whether it is possible to recon-
cile chat possession with the use which the company wishes to make of the road ;

Considering that if the possession of the creditor should disseize the debtor and
seize the creditor, if it is to be real and effective, so that the creditor have the
appurent control of the thing as regairds third pesons, it does not follow that a
debtor cannot reserve to himself, or have the right to enter upon the immovable, in
order to perform acts ot' repair or of construction ; that the possession of the creditor
is not incompatible with a certain co-operationi from the debtor for the preservation
and the amelioration of the thing while leaving the creditor in. exclusive possession;
that the possession of the creditor can be accompanied by an intervention of the
debtor as tenporary possessor' (à titre precaire), and that whenever the assistance or
the intervention of the debtor is necessary or uselul, it should be allowed on con-
dition that it doos not in any respect interfere with the seizin of thecreditor;

Considering that the temporary use and occupation which the court might
accord to tie company of the road and the rolling stock for the purposes indicated
is not incompatible with the effective possession of the road by Maefarlane as
agaist the chirographie creditors of' the coinpany;

Doth grant to the company plaintiff the temporary use and occupation of the
sixty miles (f road of the company plaintiff constructed by Macfarlane. starting
from Metapedia, and of' is rolling stock foir the purposes: lst. Of repairing and
completing that part of the road particularly, by constructing thereon the bridges
which are not finished. 2nid. Of continuing the construction of the roin upon a
further extent of forty miles; the whole subject to the legal possession of the
defendants and without prejudice to the rights which they possess in virtue of the
clause of retention above mentioned, and of their possession, provided that the said
Macrtilane and his curators preserve the possession and control of' the road and of
the rolling stock to the extent that they shall not he str'ictly bound for the works
above specified. and saving the right to summarily revsoke the powers above granted
in case the said company does not respect the possession of Macfarlane, or does not
proceed with diligence and good faith to the wor ks above mentioned, and doth reject
the said deniand in so fLi as ii concerns the building mater'ial and implernents which
are the property of the defendants.

The whole without costs.
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EXHIBIT No. 89a.

ESTIMATED Quantities of various classes of work on the different Sections, Baie des
Chaleurs Railway.

Miles. Earth. Rock. Cedar. Cribwork. Stone filling. Masonry.

Cub. yds. Cub. yds. Feet. Feet. Cub. yds. Cub. yds.

0 - 20 383,448 17,000 44,255 87,041 8,010 1,099
20 -30 144,462 4,755 28,076 7,600 1,350 90M
30 - 40 8.5,000 1,000 12,000 2,000 200 [ 130
40 - 50 62,000 1,000 11,000 ......... .. ........ 150
50 - 60 93,000 2,000 16,000 1,800 180 .. .... ...
60 - 70 165,000 4,000 17,000 28,000 3,254 300
70 - 80 121,000 10,000 11,000 1,200 120 1,120
80 - 90 76,000 1,000 10,000 6,000 900 .... ......
90 -100 82,000 1,000 13,000 600 600 350

Bridges.

$
27,398

6,458
7,505

S48,207d
5.734

51,420
2,540

OTTAWA, 2nd Sept., 1891. C. N. A RMSTRONG.

EXHIBIT No. 89b.
BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILwAY-Percentage of cost of each Section of line.

PRELIMINARY ESTIMATES.

Miles. Per cent.

0 - 20 26-8
20 - 30 9-1 lst 40 miles represent . . ..... .. . ........ .... ......... .431 per cent
30 - 40 7-2 20 " MacFarlaie.. ................................ 15-7
40 - 50 8-3 Last 40 miles represent . .. ........ ................. ... 412 "

50 - 60 74 100 "
60 - 70 13 Preliminary estimfates lst 60 miles............ ... .... .... 588
70.- 80 9-5 Actual certificates, A. L. Light, as per C. N. Armstrong's
0 -90 11-3 statn ent... .................... ........ 59-3

90-100 74

100-

OTTAWA, 2nd Sept., 1891.
C. N. ARMSTRON{G.

EXHIBIT No. 89c.

MEMORAMDUM of Subsidies voted to the baie des Chaleurs Railway Company.

$ cts. $ ets.

Dominion Govt.-On lst 20 miles..... .. ..... ........................ 30(,000 00
do 100 miles, at $3,200 per mile .... ..... ........ .... 320,000 00

- 620,000 0
Quebec Government-180 miles =10,000 acres; 1,800,000 acres, at 35c. cash. ......... ... 630,000 0

Total amount payable by the two Governments on lst 100 miles. ............. 1,250,000 00
or per mile, $12,500.

This is exclusive of the anount voted by the Quebec Government to any person or company to pay
claims, &c.

OTTAWA, 2nd Sept., 1891.
C. N. ARMSTRONG.
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EXHIBIT No. 90.

BILL of Quantities and Prices to forn $20,000 per mile.

Works. Quantities. Rate. Ainounît.

S cts. $ cts.

Right of way ... . ... ... ...... .............. .... . 100 miles ...... ..... 300 00 30,000 00
Clearing........... .... ... . . .. ............ ..500 acres............ .. 30 00 15,000 00
Grubbing... ........... ......... ...... . ... ... .. 51 do ........ .... 100 00 5,100 00
Close cutting..... ............ . ......... .. .. .. 33 do .. ........ .. 40 00 1,320 00
Fencing.. .................. . .... ........ . . .. .. ,62,540 rods............ 1 20 ,75,048 00
Excavation-Excavation earth, liard pan, loose rock-

Extra hard, &c.. ..................... ..... ... 1,211,910 c. ys.... 0 40 484,764 O0
Excavation-Solid rock........ ................ . .... 41,755 do ....... 2 25 93,948 75

W ork Carleton cape .... .... .... .... ... ..... i................... .. .........1 35,000 00
W ork on road diversion................ .. .. .. .. ........ ............ .... .... 3,520 00

Culverts--
Foucndation, earth excavation......... ....... 1;, 907 c. s0 66 11,158 62

do rock do ............... ...... 209 ào ........ 4 50 04050
Rip-rap.. .. .................... ... ......... 4,395 do .... .... 2 00 8,790 00
Stone drains and drain pipes .... .... .... ........ 2,547 lin. ft.... ... 1 50 3,820 50
Arch nasonry .... .... .. ..... ..... ... ..... 550 c. yds ... .... 2500 13,750 00
Second-class masonry....... ................ . .. 8 .. Io .0.. .... 12 50 10,625 00
Dry masonry... .... .......... ... ..... .... 1,531 do ... .... ) 0() 13,779 00
30 in. pipe.. .... . ... ..... .... .. .............. 308 lin. ft....... 12 00 3,696 00
Cedar. ....... ... .. . 162,311 do ... O.... 0 20 32.462 20,
Pine in stringers. ........................... ..... 99,657 B.M. . ....... 40 00 3,9c6 28

Crib-work-Cedar .... ... . .......... .. ........ . 92,041 lin. ft......... 0 15 13,806 15:
do Stone filling.. ......................... 9,234 c. yds. .... 2 25 20,776 50

Trestles-Excavation foundations..... ...... ...... 4,264 do ......... 0 66 2,814 24
do Frame timber....... ........ .... ....... 721,000 B.M .......... 50 00 36,050 00
do Piling........... ................. ......... 2,952 lin. ft.... . .. 0 50 1,476 00

Bridges-
Excavation foundations. . ........................ 6,476 c. yds .......... 2 30 14,894 80
P iling. ..................... ........... ......... 7,553 lin. ft........ 0 80 6,042 40
Timber ................. ... .. ... . .. .... ... 29,437 do 0 46 13,541 02
Coffer-dams ........ .. .............. . .. .. .. .... ............ .. ........ 4,000 00
1st class nasonry ............... .......... .. 5,044 c. yds . . 2.q 00 129,812 0&
2nd do .. ............................ . 220 do ......... 12 68 2,789 60
Cedar crib-work.. .. .... ............ .... .. .. 42,100 do .... . .. 0 15 6,315 00
Stone filling .. .... . .. ..................... 2,200 do ......... 2 58 5,676 00
Steel superstructure, ties, &c........ ........ .... 25 sp. deck, 2.......... 948 00 1,896 00
do do do .. ..................... 30 do 1.... ..... 1,207 00 1,207 00
do do do ....... . ... 40 do 2.. .... .. 1,581 00 3,162 00
do do do ........ . .. ........... 40 do through, 1. 1,782 00 1,782 OU
do do do .. ... .............. .... 50 do 2......... 2,357 0 4,714 00
do do do ....... .. ..... . ... .60 do 7...... ... 3,277 00 22,939 OX
do do do .. ... ....... .......... 60 do through, 1. 4,053 00 4,053 00
do do do ........... .. . ....... 175 do 4... ...... 5,807 00 23,228 O)
do do do .. .......... ... .... .80 do through, 1. 6,900 00 6,900 00
do do do ........................ 125 do do 1 14,11600 14,116 00
do do do .... ... . .... , ... . 150 do do 2 17,22(100 34,442 00

Road crossings. ......................... ...... 54 ........... .... . INo. 25 1,350 00
Farm do .......................... 728... ............... 15 00 10,920 00
Overhead bridges....... .......... ............... 3....... .. .. ....... 750 00 2,250 O0

Metapedia Road--
Clearing and grubbing ......... ........... . . 9 acres......... . ... 40 00 360 00
Excavation. ..... ... ... ............ . .... ... 14,452 c. yds .... ... 1 00 14,452 OU
Crib-work, cedar... ................ ..... ... . 42,653................. 0 10 4,265 30
Ties........... ..... .. ....... .... ....... . 272,000...... .. ...... 0 25 68,000 0U
Rails and fastenings... . ...... .. ... .. ...... . 9,900... ... . ......... 35 00 346,500 00
Track-laying..... . .. ..... ......... ........... 102û............ ..... 300 00 30,750 O0
Ballasting.. ... ..... .............. ............. 200,000... ........... 0 35 70,000 00
Station buildings......... ...................... 6................. . 2,000 00 12,000 00

do ........ ...................... ... 5..................... 1,600 00 8,000 00
do ....................... ........ 4............. ... 800 00 3,200 00

W ater supply....... .. . ....................... 7....... ............ 3,200 00 22,400 00
Engine houses.......... ................. ..... 2.......... .... ... 5,000 0 10,000 00
Turntables.. .. ................................. 2................... 2,000 0, 4,000 OU
Telegraph line.. .. ......... ......... . . 100 miles ......... .. 80 00 8,000 0)
Engineering and superintendence...... ............. 100 do ..... .... 800 00 80,000 00

374

A. 1891



54 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2&.)

BILL of Quantities and Prices to form $20,000 per mile.-Concluded.

Works. Quantities. Rate. Amourt.

$ ets- ets.
Locomotives.. ..... ....... .. ............. ... 4. . .............. 10,000 00 40,000 00
First-class cars.. ................. ... . 2...... ... ......... 4,800 00 9,600 00
Second do .. . . ........ . . ................ 2... ........ ....... 3,200 00 6,400 00
M ail, baggage and express ........... .... .... ... 2 .. ................ 2,400 00 4,800 00
Comnbination. ..... .... ........... .. . .. . .... ......... ........ . 3,000 0) 3,000 00
Conductors' vans. ...... .. .... . .......... . 2 . .. .... .... . 2,000 00 4,00) 00
Refrigerators.................. ................. 2 ... ............... 1,600 00 3,200 00
Box cars. .......................... .......... 10... ........ ....... 640 00 6,400 00
Platforn ears ... . ............. ... . .......... 25.......... ......... 480 00 12,000 00
Flanger ... .................... .. .. ..... . 1....... ........... 1,600 00 1,600 00
H and cars.... ... ...... . .......... ... .... .. 16.......... ........ 80 00 1,280 00
Track tools...... ............. ..... ............ .16 . ... ............ .. 40 00 640 00
Snow plough. .. .. ....... ..... ..... . ....... .. . ................. .. 1,600 00 3,200 00

EXHIBIT N,. 91a.
BAIE DES CHUAL EURtS RAILWAY.

SECTION K. (Cascapedia), 10th October, 1888. Mile Post 60 to
cost at Company's Prices.

Works. Quantities.

___ 2,015,708 86

70-Estimate of

Price. Amiount.

$ cts.

Right of way..... ....... .. . .... ... . .............. 10 miles .... .. 300 0
Clearing........ ..... ... ..... ........... ........... 100 acres... . ..... 30 0
Grubbing............... .......... . . .......... ..... 15 do . 100 00
Close-cutting....... ..... .. . .... .... . ........ . ......... .....
Fencing.. . ... .......... 6,400d.... 1 20
Excavtioi-Earth, &c...... .. ............ .......... 135,013 C. yds ....... O 40

do Solid rock.... ......... .................... 10,000 do 2 25
do Foundation, earth, &c ... ... ......... ... 1,500 do 0 66
do do solid rock ................................

Rip-rap random stone. ...................... .. 300 c. yds........ . 2 00
Stone drains . . . . ... ...........................................................
Masonry, 1st class ...........................................................

do 2nd do ................................. 194 c. yds 12 50
do dry ..................................... 106 do.900

Crib work, cedar............................................................
Stone filling ............ ................-........... 3,500 C. yds......... 2
Culverts and cattle guards, cedar............ . ..

do do pine stringers . .... .

Bridge foundations, masonry and superstructure, Grand
river, Cascapedia.. ..... ....... ....

Bridge foundations, masonry and superstructure, Little
River, Cascapedia .. .............................. ..................

Bridge foundations, overheadi bridge, 1 No................. ..............
Road diversions ............ .....................................
Road crossings...................................5,No..25 0
Farm do ...................................... 40,No.............. 1500
Ties..... .......... ......................... 27,000 No............ 25
Track-laying ....................................... 10t miles........ 300 00
Ballasting ............................... 20,00 c. yds. O 35
Rails and fastenings.................................,00 tons.......... 35 00
Telegraph line ........................................ 10 miles........... 80 0
Station, Grand Cascapedia. ...............................................

do Little do .
Water service ...........................................
Engineering and superintendence......................................
Stream diversions ................................ 1,000. 40
Treste, Grand Cascapedia ........ .. .................... 311,000 t.,. 50 00

MONTREAL, 4th December, 1889.
375

$ cts.

3,000 00
3,000 0
1,500 0

7,680 0
54,005 20
22,500 00

990 00

600 00

2,425 00
954 00

7,875 0
6, 666 00

67,646 00

22,452 00
750 00
100 00
125 00
600 00

6,750 00
3,075 00
7,000 0

35,000 00
800 00

1,600 00
2,500 00
8,000 00
4,000 00

15,500 0

287,893 20

(Signed) D. LEDUC.

A. 1891
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EXHIBIT No. 91b.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

SECTION L. (Black Cape), 17th December, 1889. Mile Post 70 to 80-Estimate of
Cost at company's Prices.

Works. Quantities. Price. Aimiotint.

$ ets. $ ets

Right of way............ ........................... 10 miles.............300 04 3,000 00
Clearing ... ...... ................................ 32 acres................0 04 940 00
Grubbing ......................................... do............. 10000 70000
Close cutting................................................. .......................
Fencing..............................................6,m0 rods.......... 7,680 00
Excavation-Earth, &c............ .................... 70,000 c. yds.......... 40 28,000 )

do Solid rock. ............................. 14,000 do 2 25 31,500 00
di) Foundation, earth, &c .... ................... 2,3 do . 66 1,574 10
do do solid rock. . ...................

Rip-rap random stone.. . ......... .... .. ............. 3m0C. yds....... 200U 60000
Stone drains, drain pipes........ ....................... 337 lin. ft.. . 50 505 50
Masonry, 1st class ..........................................................

do 2nd class......................... ........ 90 c. y................50 2,375 00
do dry........... . ..... ... ............... 700 do.............. 9 00 6,300 00

Trestles...................................386,000 ftL B.M 50 00 19,30 0
Stone filling .... ..... . ....... ........... .................................................
Culverts and cattle guards, cedar........................16,000 lin. ft.......... 20 3,200 0

do do pine stringers ............... 16,000 ft. B.M 40 00 640 00
Bridge foundations, masonry and superstructure..........Caplan River. . . 8,021 0

do tim ber ........... ............ . . . .. .. . . . . . .. .. . .. . . . . . .
do piling............ ... ....................................................

Road crossigs ......... *... ............. ............. 9, No .... ....... 5 00 225 00
Farui do......... ....... ..... .......... ..... 120, No............ 15 00 1,800
Tics......................... 1 .................... 27,000, No ........... 25 6,750 00
Ti-ack-laying ....... ................................ 10 miles........... 300 00 3,075 00
Ballasting .................. .. .................. .... 70,000 c. yds.. ..... .. 35 7,00 00
Rails and fastenings .......... ...... ................. 1,000 tons ........... 35 00 35,000 00
Station, Caplan...................................... 8... .. d ........... .. 1, c L
Teleiraph lne ... .... . . . ..... .............. ......... 10 miles. ............. 80 00 800 00
E'ngineerin. and .perintendence ..................................................... 8,000 00

oater cervice......... .... ...................... .... 9.... .............. 2,500 0

181,105 60

M1ONTREAL, 4th December, 1889. (Signed) D. LE DUC.
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EXHIBIT No. 91c.

BATE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

SECTION M. (Bonaventure.) 10th January, 1889. Mile Post 80 to 90-Estimate
of cost at Compauiy's Prices.

Works. Quantities. Price. Ainount.

$ ets. $ cts.

Right of way... .ile............300 00 3,000 0
Clearing............ ......................... 2 acres..30 00 1,860O
Grubbing ................... ................. '12 do.100 00 1,200 0x)
Close-cutting................. .................................
Fencing.............................................6,400 rods * 20 7,680 00
Excavation -Earth, &c ............................... 100,412 c. yds O 40 40,164 80

do Solid rock...............................1,50 do 2 25 3,375 00
do Foundation, earth, &c..................... 1,672 do O 66 1,103 52
do do solid rock............................................ ... .

Rip-rap and random stone .............................
Stone drains and drain pipes..........................126 lin. ft......... 1 50 189 OU
Masonry, lst class......... .... . ............................

do 2nd do .. ............................................................
do dry... .................................. ........

Trestle Watts Brook... ............................ 65,000 ft. WM 50 O 5,&) OU
do Ruisseau Blanc.. . .................... ,1000 ... .. . 3,250 OU

Culverts and cattle-guards, cedar.... ........ ... . . O 20 2,944 20
(10 do pine stringers. . . 12,788 do 40 OU 511 52

Bridge foundations, nasonry and superstructure, Little
Bonaventure...... .. ........................................ .......... . OU

Bridge foundations, masonry and superstructure, Big Bona-
venture... .. ............................ 47,742

Bridge foundations, nasonry and superstructure, piling........................................
Road diversions.......................................

do crossings.......................................8, No..............25 OU 200
Farin do........................,170 do... ....... 15 OU 2,550 OU
Ties.. .... ....................................... 27,000.............. . 25 6,750 OU
Track-laying................ ............. .... 10* miles......... .300 O0 3,0Î5 OU
Ballasting...................................... 20.00 c. yds O 35 7,000 OU
Rails and fastenings............................. ,000 tous.......... .5 OU 35,000 OU
Station, Bonaventure.................................................. .. .. ,600 OU
Water station ................................. ............. .......... 2,500 OU
TelegraphLine........... ........................... 10 miles.......... ... 80 0U 800 0
Engineering and superintendence .......... .... ......... ..... .... .... ....... 8,000

2001172 04

MONTREAL 4th 1December, 1889. (Sined) D. LEDUC.
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EXHIBIT No. 91d.

BAIE DES CHALEURS RAILWAY.

SECTION N. (NOw Carlisle), 10th January, 1889. Mile Post 90 to 100-Estimate of
cost at Compan y's Prices.

Works. Quantities. Prices. Amount.

$ ets. $ cts.

Right of way. . . ...... .... ... .. .......... . 10 miles .... .. .... 300 00 3,000 00
Clearing....... ............... .... ................ . 53 acres .... . .... 30 00 1,590 0
(rubbing ............ ... ..... .. ..... .. ... ....... 14 do .... . .. 100 00 1,400 00
C lose-clutting ...... ... . .. ...... .. ....... ... . ..... .... .. .
Fencing............ . ......... .. ........ .... ..... 6,404 ) ods.. . ..... 1 20 7,680 00
Excavation- -Earth, &c... ........ .. ............ . ... 72,770 c. yds. ..... 0 40 29,108 00

do Solid rock.. ...................... .. 1,000 do ........ 2 25 2,250 00
do Foundation-Earth, &c.... ... .... ..... 1,820 do ....... 0 66 1,201 20
do do Solid rock..... ............... .. ...... ...........

Rip-rap........ . .. ... .. 30) c. yds.......... .. 2 00 600 00
Stone drains........... .............. 300 do 1 50 450 00
M asonry, lst class..... .... ......... .. ........... . . .......

do 2nd do .... .......... ..... .. .... ..... ............. .... .... .....
do dry.. .. ......... . ........... ... 587 c. yds...... ..... 9 00 5,283 (00

Crib work, cedar.. ....... ..... ......... ........... .... ....... ...... ... ..........
Stone filling... .... . . ...................... ....... . .... ... ....... .... ....
Culverts and cattle guards, cedar ...... . ...... ........ 21,024 lin. ft .. .... 0 20 4,204 80

do do pine stringers ............ , . 15,240 ft. B.M... . ... . 90 00 609 60
Bridge tile, Day's Brook.............. ........ ......... ...... ............. ... 504 00

do McCallumî's Brook .. ... ...... ...... ......... ...... 368 00
do Road diversions................. ..... .... .. .. .... . .. ... ........... .00 00

P iling .......... .. .. .. ... . ........ ............ . . .... ............. ..... .... ..... .... .
Road crossings.. ......... .......................... .. 15, No..... ........ 25 00 375 0
Fari do . . .. ................. .. ..... ..... . 148, No. ......... 15 00 2,220 00
Ties .................. . . ...... .... ... .......... 28,000, No.......... O 25 7,000 00
Track-laying.......... ............. ... .......... .. 10·25 miles . . ... . 300 00 3,075 00
Balasting........ .... .......... ... ................ 20,360 c. yds.... ... 0 35 7,126 00
Rails an fastenings..... .. .... ....... ...... ......... 1,000 tons.. ...... 35 0 35,000 0
Telegraph line....... ...... 10 miles . . ...... 80 00 800 00
Engineering and superintendence... .... ... ............. ......... ... ...... ... 8,000 00
Station, New Carlisle..... .. ............. ........... .......... ........ ........ 2,000 00

do Paspebiac........................ ........... .... ......... 2,000 00
W ater station... . .... ............... . . .. .......... .......... . ... .... ' 2,500 (0
Engine house. . .. ........... . . .................... ......... .......... 5,00 0
Turn table..... ........ ......... ....... .......... . ................... 1,800 00

135,644 60

MONTREAL, 4th December, 1889. (Signed) D. LEDUC.
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EXIIBIT No. 92.

BANK oF TORONTO, MONTREAL, lst September, 1891.
C. N. ARMSTRONG, Esq., Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-I am in receipt of your telegram of this norning, to which I
replied.

The following appears to be the payments made by me, with names and dates:-

August 24, '87.... 'Your own note.... .. ............. .... s 1,101 (;5
do 24, '87.... Your note to Barb Wire.. ............................ . 395 04
do 25, '87.... do Cooper, Fairman & Co.. .. . . 5,043 34
(10 24,' 87-... Note, Fosbrooke to Armstrong .. .. ....... 2,100 >0
(10 25, '87.... C. N. Armstrong. ... . .. ........... . ............. 2,964 97
do 25, '87.... Dominion Barb Wire Co...... ...... ......... 395 0X)

Tanuary 4, '88. .. McDonald, O'Brien & Co... . .... ............... .. 6,683 25
February 28, '88.... T. T. Turnbull ............ ... . .... ................... 7,000 00

do 219, '88.... Cooper, Fi.irmian & Co .......... ..... .... .......... .... 18,000 00
December 7, '88.... W. Clendining & Co... ................... ... . .. 638 48

do 7,'88.... L. G. J. Fosbrooke. ............ . . ........... 3,000 00
do 8, '88.... Bank of British North Ainerica....... .......... 4,884 00
do 10, '88.... D. C. Henderson . .. ... ....... .. . ........ ... . .. ...... . 695 00
do 11, '88.... McDonald, O'Brien & Co. . . ............ ............ .... 2,851 75

January 8, '89.... T. T. Turnbull, in trust. ... ...... ............. ............ 3,370 00
March 4, '89.-.. W. W. L. Chipman. ..................... .... .. ..... 3,250 00

do 4, '89.... Cooper, Fairman & Co .... . ....... ... ...... 10,500 00
do 4, '89.... C. N. Armstrong .............. 0. . .. ... 00 00
do 4, '81.... Ontario Bank ..... ..... . ........ . . ..... . . 18,724 52
do 'o ......... ... ..... ... ... ............... ..... 6,898 35
do 7, '89.. . . McDonald, O'Brien & Co........................ ........ ..... 467 00

August 6, '89.... Ontario Bank ... . ....... ......... ......... ..... ......... 18,794 60
October 25, '89.... do ................. ... ............ ................ 1,847 30

Should there be any other information which I can give, kindly let me know,
and I will supply it. I trust there will be no need of briinLinig me to Ottawa, as it
would be very difficult for me to got away t'com my work here.

Yours truly,
J. MURRAY SMITH.

EXIIJBIT No. 93a.

THE $118,000.
STATEMENT showing what becamo of the 8118,000 of Subsidies payable in respect of

the lst 20 miles Section over and above the amount due to Messrs. McDonld,
O'Brien & Taylor, Contractors.

' $ cts. $ ets.

Dominion subsidy....... ...... ........ ....... 300,000 00
Quebec subsidy...... ................. . ...................... 70,000 00

_ 370,000 00
Amount of award fixing the claim of McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor, for work

done as sub-contractors.. ........... ................ ............... 251,510 00
Balance alleged to have been misappropriated by Senator Robitaille and his co-

directors........ .............. ..... ................. .. .... ... .. ........... 118,490 0)

370,00) 00 370,000 00
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EXHIBIT No. 93b.
STATEMEN'r showing amount due to McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor, in respect of their

sub-contract, and payments on account thereof.

$ cts. $ ets.

Award . ........................... .... ........................... 251,510 00
Amount due by Armstrong to O'Brien....... . . ............................ 5w 00
Am ount due for plant...... ... .... . .... ....... ................. 00
Amount due in respect of deposits made by McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor toi

secure performance of their sub-contract . . ....... .... .... . . . . ..... 10,000 00
Amount paid to McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor by Geo. Burland, Esq., trustee,

out of subsidies...................... ...... ... ... .. .......... ........... .246.975 00
do do do . .... . ...... 6,M00

Amount paid to McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor by J. Murray Smith, trustee, out
of subsidies . . .... ......... ..... 9,035 00

dodo 467 00
Balance withheld on account of purchase of plant ........... ..... .. .... ................. 43 00

262,520 00 262,520 00

EXHIIBIT No. 93c.
STATEM-,ENT showinig dealings of Geo. Burland, iEsq., with subsidies assigned to him

as Trustee.

Dominion subsidy...... ............ ...... ........ .... ...... 00
Quebec subsidy...... ....... ....... ......................... .70,000 00

370,000 00
Paid McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor on account of their dlaim under sub-contract.... .... 246,975 00
I>aid McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor three instalments of $2,000 each due in

respect of depo-).it made to mecure their performance of sub-contract ......... ...... ...... ,000 00
Paid C. N. Armstrong................................................ .......... 8,000 00
Paid H. V. Noel, Esq., trustee, by order of C. N. Arinstrong.........................24,000 00>
Paid bank commission on cheque sent to Quebec in error and returned.......... .......... 25 00Balance transferred to J. Murray Smith, Esq., trutee... .. ... ............. . 43 00

370,50 00 370,000 00

EXHIBIT No. 93d.
STATEMENT showing dealings of J. Murnay Smith, Esq., with balance $85,sde) a n

Subsidies trarisferred to himn as Trustee by Geo. Brland, Esq., Trustee.

$ cts. $ cts.

Balance of $370,000 subsidies transferred ......... ............ 85,000 0
Aug. 24, 1887 Paid C. N. Arinstrong-Note ..... ........................-........ 1,101 65û

do 24,1887 Dominion Barb ire ompany .... .... ........ ...... ........00395 04
do 24, 1887 L. G. J. Fosbrooke.... ................ ...... .... ......0...0. 2,100 00
do rep, 1887 Cooper, Fairan & e o..... .... f . sub-contr.. . .. ... ............... 50 34
do 25,1887 C. N. Armstrong ..................... ........................... 2,9W4 97
do a5, 1887 Dominion Barb Wire Company ..... .. .... ................. . 395 0
do 28,1887 T. T. Turnbull...............................................7,000 00

Jan. 4, 1888 McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor, on accont of award.... ........... 246,683 25
Dec. 7,1888 W. Clendening & Son............................ .......... 0638 48
do 7, 1888 L. G. 1. Fosbrooke .........--.................... i......... . 3,000 00
do 8, 188 Bank of British North America ..................................... 4,884 00
do 10, 1888 D. H. Henderson................................................ 695 00
do 11, 1888f tcDonald, mBrien & Taylort balance of award. . ........ ........... 2,351 75

Mar. 4, 1889 Ontario Bank ............ ............................... ........ .18,724 52
do 4,188S9 do.................. ... ............ .... ... . .... 6,898 35
do 7,1889 McDonald, O'Brien & Taylor, on account of plant baac *80467 00

Aug. 6, 1889 Ontario Bank.........................................18,794 60
do 25, 1889 do .. 1,847 30

Balance of price of p)lanlt withheld by ore of C. N. rmstrong ..... ... .. 43 00
Balance on hand, less bank commissions and amounts not yet

received f rom Dominion and Quebec Governments ..... ... .. ......... 972 75

85,000 00 85,000 00
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EXHIBIT No. 94.

(Canadian Pacific Coy's Telegraph.)
To W. WEBB,

Union Bank, Quebec.
Please wire immediately date of tive thousand note paid May 1.

W. BARWICK.

EXIIIBIT No. 95.

(Canadian Pacific Bailway Company's Telegraph.)
From Quebec.

2nd September, 1891.
To W. BARwICK,

Sonate Railway Committee, Ottawa.
Dated February 28th at two months' date.

E. WEBB,
Cashijer.

EXHiBIT No. 96.

NOT.E.- This exhibit was received and ordered to be printed *or information only,
with the statement that -Mr. Armstrong has not been cross-exramined upon its contents.

J. G. A. CBEIGfHTON,
Law Clerk of the Senate.

MEMORANDUM of position Of affUirs in conneetion with the contract between C. N.
Armstrong and Hlenry Macfarlane:-

The actutil value of work done and matorials supplied by Macfirlaino on
the 20 miles (miles 40 to 60) eonstructed by him as per certifieate
of D. Leduc, C.E., which certiticate has been accepted by
M acfarlane, is.....................................................................8 148,814 95

To which is to be addeI the cost of rails, etc., for the 20 miles, furnished
by M aefarlane & Co ....... ..................................................... 52,000 00

Total amouint oarned by Macfarlano is ....................... ....... $ 200,814 95

Against which has been transferred to Ontario Bank on ac Mac-
fiailane-

Dominion subsidy........................................8 128,000 00
Quebec do ............ ........................... 70000 ()0

198,0o0 00

Balance duo to Maufarlane on 20 milos .............. .................. $ 2.814 95

Estimated cost of comploting the first 40 mile, as fixed before work was com-
menced was-

Rolling stock ......................... ..................................... $ 25 350 00
Buîilding,, bridges, etc......... ........................ ................. 13,300 00
Ballastinag, earthwork, etc ........................... ................. 23,600 00

Total ...................... .................................. .. 62,250 00
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Against which subsidies were transferred to the Ontario Bank on
ntecouit M aefarIla e.............................................................. $ 62,000 00

And in additional, municipal subsidies to the extent of$18,000 payable
on aecount of right of way were aiso transferred........................ 18,000 00

$ 80,000 00

According to Muefarlane's evidence the Ontario Bank advanced him
about $300,000 on account of work done on the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway............ .................................. $300,000 00

The vulue of the work< done by MAaefarlaneon the 20 miles
(40 to 60) is............................................. ........ $200,814 95

The work done by him on the first 40 miles may have
sonewhat exceeded the original estimate, but it cer-
tainly did not exceed in value ............................ 100,000 00

Making total value of work done by Maefarlane............. $300,814 95
Of the above work and suppl ies Maicfarlane has left unpaid

an am ount of.. ................... ............................. 83,032 66

Showing arnount paid out by Macfarlane tu be................................. 217,782 29

Leaving a suin of to be accounted for by Mactarlane out of the advances
made to him by the Ontario Bank ....... ..... .......................... $82,217 71

C. N. ARMSTRONG.
OTTAWA, 3rd September, 1891.

EXHIBIT No. 97.

(Great North- West Telegraph Co. of Canada.)

From Quebec, Sept. 3, 1891.
To Mr. BARWICK, Q.C.

Discounted February twenty-eiglht.
E. WEBB.
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